

2021 GEA Spring Regional Meeting

Abstract Compendium

Association of American Medical Colleges

Table of Contents

Plenaries	3
Invited Sessions	3
GME Solution Generating Session - We Are Better Together	3
Promoting 1st Generation College Graduate Success in Medical School: An Online Toolk	kit of Resources
	3
Developing Effective Narrative Evaluations for the MSPE	4
Practical Approaches to Applying Conceptual & Theoretical Frameworks to Medical Edu	
Research	
Continuing Professional Development (CPD): The Engineer to Build the Bridge of Educa	
Innovations	
CGEA Innovation Abstracts	
NEGEA Innovation Abstracts	
SGEA Innovation Abstracts	
WGEA Innovation Abstracts	226
Research Abstracts	284
CGEA Research Abstracts	285
NEGEA Research Abstracts	344
SGEA Research Abstracts	409
WGEA Research Abstracts	446
Workshops	475
CGEA Workshop Abstracts	476
NEGEA Workshop Abstracts	485
SGEA Workshop Abstracts	503
WGEA Workshop Abstracts	
2021 GEA Joint Regional Conference Committees	
2021 GEA Planning Committee	
Tools and Tech Committee	
Paviawars	521

^{*}Please note both poster presentations and oral presentations are designated under the "Accepted as" field.

Plenaries

Disabusing DisabilityTM: Demonstrating That DISability Doesn't Mean Inability

Oluwaferanmi Okanlami M.D., M.S

Assistant Professor of Family Medicine, Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation, and Urology University of Michigan Medical School

Disability is regularly neglected in conversations about diversity, equity, and inclusion, yet it is one demographic that we may all identify with one day. Therefore, disability should serve as a means of demonstrating that we are all much more similar than we are different. As a disabled, black, Nigerian immigrant, cis-gender, heterosexual, male, physician, athlete this presentation will talk about the intersectionality between all of those identities, striving to demonstrate that disability is not inability, and encouraging us to allow people to demonstrate what they can do, rather than attempting to limit them based on what they can't. It will end with practical examples of what is being done at The University of Michigan to embody this message.

Wither Whiteness: The (in) Visible Hierarchy in Medical Education

Zareen Zaidi MD, PhD Professor, General Internal Medicine University of Florida

The plenary aims to shed light on the spaces in which whiteness has made its home in medical education. The hierarchies imposed by whiteness manifest as an implicit system of signification and imposition. These assumptions are taken for granted by professionals and students alike and need to be remedied for true progress to be possible. The speaker will introduce the study of Critical Race theory as a basis to analyze such systems and the ways they manifest.

Invited Sessions

GME Solution Generating Session - We Are Better Together

Cathy Jalali, Cecile Foshee, Deborah Simpson, Heather Billings, Karen Marcdante, Vera Luther

During this 60-minute session medical educators and thought leaders from six institutions will facilitate a series of small group discussions and solicit solutions specific to these four GME challenges:

- Residency Recruitment without Step 2 Clinical Skills
- Facilitating faculty development around diversity, equity and inclusion
- Maximizing response rates to well-being assessments
- Supporting professional identity during times of unprecedented change in medical education

We invite you to come share, come learn, and come together as we explore novel and effective ways to meet these challenges within our own institutions.

Promoting 1st Generation College Graduate Success in Medical School: An Online Toolkit of Resources

Alejandra Casillas, April Buchanan, Hyacinth Mason, Jacob Altholz, Lisa Coplit, Mytien Nguyen

GEA UME Section Workshop:

Medical students who were the first in their families to graduate from college bring unique assets to medical institutions. They often possess a track record of highly desirable traits for a physician such as grit, resilience, self-determination, and innovative thinking as well as important insights into the complex health disparities facing the U.S. healthcare system today. However, first generation college graduates (FGCG), and others who come from backgrounds with limited exposure to medicine, may also have unique needs and face challenges that are not always publicly recognized by their schools. For example, cultural capital (what one knows about the culture they are in) and social capital (who one has as their guide) may be in short supply for FGCG students, leaving them encumbered by what researchers have shown to be invisible yet very real barriers that do not affect their continuing generation counterparts. Medical schools may also underestimate the financial constraints that some students face.

Recently, the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) introduced a First-Generation College Student Indicator to allow medical schools to more accurately identify FGCG applicants. In 2019, the Undergraduate Medical Education (UME) Section of the Group on Educational Affairs (GEA) convened a work group to develop an online toolkit of resources for medical schools and mentors to support and celebrate FGCG medical students/trainees.

The purpose of this workshop will be to share resources from the recently published toolkit and to help participants develop strategies for supporting FGCG medical students at their own institutions.

Developing Effective Narrative Evaluations for the MSPE

Donna Elliot

A GSA/GEA Constituent Collaborative Project:

Writing Narrative Feedback for the MSPE convened a working group in early 2019 to consider the current state of narrative feedback used to compose the MSPE. The intent of the working group is to build upon the work done by the MSPE Task Force that developed the 2016 MSPE Guidelines to enhance the transmission of useful information from UME to GME in the residency application process. This work will contribute to move the focus from primarily quantitative measures to more qualitative measures of student performance and to find ways to explicate students' competencies beyond medical knowledge to include patient care, professionalism, communication, practice-based learning and improvement, and systems-based practice.

Practical Approaches to Applying Conceptual & Theoretical Frameworks to Medical Education Research

Andrea Berry, Anna Ciancolo, Beth Bierer, Cayla Teal, Elizabeth Bradley, Heeyoung Han, Janet Riddle, Jorie Colbert-Getz

Continuing Professional Development (CPD): The Engineer to Build the Bridge of Education Continuum

Alice Fornari, Alisa Nagler, Clara Schroedl, Moss Blachman, Nels Carlson

Engage in a growth mindset as applied to CPD. How often have you been perplexed about the terminology: CME vs CPD and its application to the education continuum? Leave this session able to guide others on the importance of CPD to our academic cultures and mission.

Innovations

CGEA Innovation Abstracts

<u>Innovative Strategies Implemented in the 2020 Online Generalists in Medical</u> Education Conference to Enhance Virtual Meeting Experience

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin
Stephanie Corliss, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School
Peter De Jong, Leiden University Medical Center
Nagaraj Gabbur, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell
Elissa Hall, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Carol Hasbrouck, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Michele Haughton, Weill Cornell Medical Center
Larry Hurtubise, Ohio State University College of Medicine
Komal Kochhar, Indiana University School of Medicine
Hugh Stoddard, Emory University School of Medicine
Terry Stratton, University of Kentucky College of Medicine
Tasha Wyatt, Medical College of Georgia at Augusta University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose is to examine how conference changes impacted attendee participation.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

For over forty years, The Generalists in Medical Education (TGME) have welcomed medical educators to their annual conference. Due to Covid-19, TGME transitioned to an online conference and implemented several innovative elements to ensure the perpetuation of quality presentations and community building that have been hallmarks of TGME.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The typical TGME conference is 1.5 days with three concurrent sessions in each time slot. The schedule was modified to three hours/day for three days with four concurrent sessions. Daily start times varied to accommodate participants in several time zones. Two Zoom training sessions were created and offered to encourage presenter preparation.² TGME members and participants served as hosts and moderators, facilitating the use of engagement tools such as: polls, breakout rooms, and chat discussions.³ Hosts held practice sessions with presenters to foster a shared understanding of the session plan. One type of oral presentation combined pre-recorded author narrative and visual with real-time presenter Q&A. Two social sessions utilized the Padlet website along with Zoom whiteboards and breakout rooms to create shared products and foster community building.

Outcomes:

Zoom training and practice sessions increased presenter familiarity with program features, which reduced technical problems and improved session coherence. Varying the daily start times made the meeting more accessible to international colleagues, resulting in increased attendance. Member participation as hosts and moderators enhanced presentations, bolstered audience participation, and increased networking opportunities. Formal presentations and informal social sessions both enhanced the healthcare education community of practice.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Online preparation of presenters and time-staggering the program was well-received. Integrated chat discussions enriched the academic conversations. Limitations included sparse resources to technically support the concurrent virtual spaces.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The TGME 2020 innovative elements can be adopted by other organizations to enrich online conferences and increase their value to attendees.

References:

- 1. The Generalists in Medical Education. (2020, November 11-13). 2020 The Generalists in Medical Education annual conference. Retrieved from https://thegeneralists.org/conference/
- 2. Zoom 101/102 preparation sessions. YouTube.
- 3. Denise Kay, Cayla R. Teal, Gerald Crites, Andrea Berry, Larry Hurtubise, Elissa Hall, Mohammed K. Khalil "Being There" Building Productive Scholarly Teams across Distance and Over Time JRMC, Vol. 1, Issue 2(2018) https://pubs.lib.umn.edu/index.php/jrmc/article/view/995/1109

For more information about this abstract please contact: rtreat@mcw.edu

<u>Implementation of a Quality Improvement Curriculum for residents at The Kresge Eye Institute in Detroit, Michigan.</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Shibandri Das, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine Matthew Silbergleit, Wayne State University School of Medicine Mark Juzych, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine Pradeepa Yoganathan, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To design and implement a quality improvement (QI) curriculum for ophthalmology resident at Kresge Eye Institute that satisfies ACGME requirements and equips residents with the skills and knowledge required to improve practice.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The 2020 ACGME guidelines for resident education in ophthalmology state that residents must demonstrate competence in systematically analyzing practice using quality improvement methods. Evidence from the implementation of such programs in other departments have shown that to successfully implement QI projects in residency programs these techniques must be formally taught, and opportunities for resident participation must be multiple and diverse with the ability for residents to benefit from the QI outcomes.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Kresge Eye Institute residents were divided into seven teams of three residents, with one resident from each year per team. Each of these teams will develop, analyze, and implement one QI initiative for the 2020-2021 academic year. In addition to faculty advisor access, teams will be provided protected time in their resident schedule to implement their projects. An April 2021 QI summit will serve as a platform for teams to present a summary of lessons learned and an effectiveness analysis of their initiatives.

Outcomes:

The effectiveness of this new addition to the ophthalmology curriculum at the Kresge Eye Institute will be judged by the five-level Kirkpatrick Pyramid for program evaluation. This will include end of year surveys on resident satisfaction and objectives learned as a result of the new program. The impact of this curriculum will be judged based on the results of the resident team's individual QI initiatives and residents' ability to apply their quality initiatives into clinical practice.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include 100% resident participation and strong institutional support. Limitations relate to time constraints imposed by busy resident schedules.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We hope this program serves as a broadly applicable model for resident QI instruction across specialties throughout the country.

References:

- 1. Akins RB, Handal GA. Utilizing quality improvement methods to improve patient care outcomes in a pediatric residency program. J Grad Med Educ. 2009;1(2):299-303. doi:10.4300/JGME-D-09-00043.1
- 2. Bodenheimer T, Dickinson WP, Kong M. Quality Improvement Models in Residency Programs. J Grad Med Educ.

2019;11(1):15-17.

- 3. Custer PL, Fitzgerald ME, Herman DC, et al. Building a Culture of Safety in Ophthalmology. Ophthalmology. 2016;123(9): S40-S45.
- 4. Lee AG, Chen Y. Structured curricula and curriculum development in ophthalmology residency. Middle East Afr J Ophthalmol. 2014 Apr-Jun;21(2):103-8.
- 5. Ma J, Wong BM, Micieli J, et al. Vision to improve: quality improvement in ophthalmology. Canadian Journal of Ophthalmology. 2020;55(2):107-115.
- 6. Sheldrick JH, Vernon SA, Wilson A, et al. Demand incidence and episode rates of ophthalmic disease in a defined urban population. Bmj. 1992;305(6859):933-936.
- 7. Teisberg EO, Porter ME, Brown GB. Making competition in health care work. Harvard Business Review. 1994 Jul-Aug;72(4):131-141.

For more information about this abstract please contact: das.shibandri@gmail.com

<u>Learner Expertise and Teaching Potential: Implementation of Student-Led</u> Workshops

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Nicolette Codispoti, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Nisha Patel, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Elizabeth Southworth, University of Michigan Medical School Gregory Gruener, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To assess how student expertise and experience can be utilized in medical education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

As preclinical curricula continue to be adapted to prepare trainees for the changing needs of the healthcare system, the traditional medical student has also evolved (1). At Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine (SSOM), medical students enter with unique experiences. In the Class of 2023, 48% of students had at least one gap year, 28% held a prior graduate degree, 60% had previous employment in the medical field, and 58% had previous employment in a non-medical field. With the enhanced backgrounds of incoming medical students, institutions can utilize these skills and experiences to involve students in curricular design.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The SSOM Academic Medicine Interest Group designed a Student Curriculum Series (SCS) to provide supplemental education on topics not comprehensively covered in traditional medical education (clinical research, nutrition, public health, health policy, bioethics, cultural competency). Student educators were recruited based on prior experience and responsible for preparing objectives, interactive workshop materials, and educational content for peers. Workshops are being held via Zoom and will continue over six months.

Outcomes:

Nine educators were recruited, and three out of six sessions have been completed to date with 82 students in attendance. Student feedback suggests that students enjoyed the interactive format of workshops and are interested in additional sessions to explore topics further.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

SCS provides students with an introduction to areas relevant to the role of a physician, but development of more in-depth curricula is needed. SCS presents opportunities for formal incorporation of student expertise in medical education, establishment of continuity in education on these topics through multiseries workshops, and expansion of students' skill sets as the next generation of medical educators.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

With increasing and diverse experience among incoming medical students, institutions can utilize student educators to help mitigate existing content gaps.

References:

1. LCME Annual Medical School Questionnaire Part II, 2017-2018.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ncodispoti@luc.edu

Mixed Methods Inquiry into Medical Student Metacognition

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Molly Falk-Steinmetz, Medical College of Wisconsin Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Cheryl Crawford, Medical College of Wisconsin Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This sequential mixed methods study investigates the internal and external factors which influence metacognition through focus groups and surveys.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Metacognition, the knowledge and regulation of thinking, and affiliated factors, such as planning and evaluating, are essential to effective learning.¹ Metacognitive skills and related processes can be taught and developed¹ and have demonstrated correlation with academic performance.² Investigating the role of metacognition, associated processes, and diverse internal and external learner traits can inform educational and developmental programming.³

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In 2019-2020, forty-one medical students identified their interest in focus group participation upon completing these self-reported related surveys: Metacognitive Awareness Inventory and Index of Autonomous Functioning. Data analyzed with SPSS 24.0. Two 60-minute focus group sessions were conducted with M2/3/4 students. Data was transcribed and sorted using the constant comparative method by two research team members. The study is IRB approved.

Outcomes:

Focus group results: Categories included time management and goal setting strategies, personal reflection, engaging in experiences, inherent traits, and peer/professional feedback. An overarching theme to students' perceptions was their perceived autonomy in their success and growth. The value of their experiences and feedback was reportedly discovered and ingrained through self-initiated reflection, and this reflection was often attributed as the sole process required to arrive at new understanding and growth.

Survey results: Autonomy was significantly (p<0.050) correlated to overall metacognition (r=0.7) and its factors of declarative knowledge (r=0.6), conditional knowledge (r=0.6), planning (r=0.6) and information management strategies (r=0.5).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Focus group and survey data generated overlapping relational results between metacognition and autonomy. Focus group participants did not include first-year medical students.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A well-informed understanding of the relationship between metacognition and our learners' inherent traits, such as autonomy, and processes, such as reflection, provides insight for programmatic development to improve learner performance and advise intervention strategies.

References:

- 1. Wijnen-Meijer, M. Preparing students for lifelong learning by means of metacognition. GMS Journal for Medical Education 2020, Vol. 37(5), ISSN 2366-5017.
- 2. Medina MS, Castleberry AN, Persky, AM, Strategies for improving learner metacognition in health professional education. American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education 2017; 81 (4) Article 78.
- 3. Han Hong W, Vadivelu J, Daniel EGS, Hiong Sim J. Thinking about thinking: changes in first-year medical students' metacognition and its relation to performance. Medical Education Online 2015, 20: 27561. http://dx.doi.org/10.3402/meo.v20.27561.

For more information about this abstract please contact: msteinmetz@mcw.edu

"Stories of Health Disparities": An online asynchronous introductory elective for health profession students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Melissa Chen, Chicago Medical School at Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine & Science Diane Bridges, Chicago Medical School at Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine & Science Carl Lawson, Chicago Medical School at Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine & Science

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To offer an introductory two-week asynchronous elective to encourage medical students to develop an understanding of health disparities, their causes, and possible solutions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

There is a demonstrated need for health professions to learn about the causes of health disparities so they may become more knowledgeable and compassionate clinicians capable of implementing solutions.1,2 We created an introductory course to engage students on the challenges of health disparities, using inspiring materials in non-medical book, video, and article form.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Two-week asynchronous online course offered to multiple student cohorts throughout the academic year. The course was initially designed with three central components. Under the guidance of CMS faculty facilitators, students 1) Watch instructor selected disparities focused video recordings (e.g. curated TED Talks) and discuss in online forums; 2) Complete a health inequities focused book from the syllabus and discuss in forums; 3) Engage in experiential activities. Students write two detailed reflections on their experiential activities and other course components. During the pandemic, the third component was changed to the review of two current events articles on COVID-19 and health disparities.

Outcomes:

The course has been completed by 125 students in the last 3 academic years. The reviews have been excellent, with students requesting that the material be incorporated into the required curriculum.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: Engaging, relevant material; flexible scheduling

Limitations: Limited timeframe; therefore, not a comprehensive health disparities curriculum.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

For healthcare professions educational institutions that do not offer a comprehensive approach to the understanding of health disparities, this course can serve as an easily implementable introduction that inspires students to delve into the sociopolitical context of health inequities. The limited time scope and asynchronous nature was designed for easy incorporation into the fourth year medical student schedule, but also lends to inclusion into any health profession student curriculum.

References:

- 1. Dopelt K, Davidovitch N, Yahav Z, Urkin J, Bachner YG. Reducing health disparities: The social role of medical schools. Medical Teacher. 2014;36(6):511-517. doi:10.3109/0142159X.2014.891006
- 2. Vanderbilt AA, Baugh RF, Hogue PA, Brennan JA, Ali II. Curricular integration of social medicine: a prospective for medical educators. Medical Education Online. 2016;21:1-N.PAG. doi:10.3402/meo.v21.30586

For more information about this abstract please contact: melissa2.chen@rosalindfranklin.edu

Integrating Communication Skills with Linguistic Minorities into Clinical Skills Curriculum for First Year Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Pilar Ortega, University of Illinois College of Medicine Maria Gabriela Valle Coto, University of Illinois College of Medicine Marina Lentskevich, University of Illinois College of Medicine Reniell Iniguez, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We developed an educational intervention to teach language-related structural barriers to healthcare and the physician's role in communicating with linguistic minorities.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Over 67 million US individuals speak a non-English language(1), and at least 38% have limited English proficiency(2). Healthcare systems are challenged by language discordance (a mismatch between patient and clinician languages), which leads to poor outcomes(3-4). Despite legal requirements(5), students are often underprepared to navigate language-discordant care due lack of training or pressure to "get by" with limited second-language skills or untrained interpreters(6-8).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We designed a 5-hour session targeting first-year medical students titled "The Role and Impact of Language in Health," implemented as a mandatory session in the Doctoring and Clinical Skills curriculum: 2 hours of pre-readings and a 3-hour live virtual session (1 hour didactic and 2 hour rotating breakouts and debriefing). Breakouts featured 4 case-vignettes highlighting language-related healthcare dilemmas led by trained facilitators.

Outcomes:

Overall, 182 students attended, with 176 (96%) survey respondents. Post-session confidence in caring for linguistic minorities and in explaining the impact of language in health significantly increased compared to pre-survey (all p<.001). All respondents reported a plan to apply knowledge gained into clinical practice.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Integrating this session within required curricula sends a strong institutional message about the value of communicating with diverse populations and increases potential applicability of results to a wide range of learners. We acknowledge that education about language and health should not involve one session only but rather periodic curricular integration of progressive complexity to cover topics beyond the scope of this introductory training.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Virtual platforms may be advantageous though require logistical support. A clinical skills session to enhance physician preparedness in addressing linguistic structural barriers to care is a feasible educational innovation and may fill a gap in equity-focused communication skills training that can be replicated at other medical schools.

References:

- 1. Zeigler K, Camarota SA. 67.3 Million in the United States Spoke a Foreign Language at Home in 2018Center for Immigration Studies. Available at: https://cis.org/Report/673-Million-United-States-Spoke-Foreign-Language-Home-2018
- 2. United States Census Bureau. https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?q=language&tid=ACSST1Y2019.S1601&hidePreview=true
- 3. Diamond L, Izquierdo K, Canfield D, Matsoukas K, Gany F. A Systematic Review of the Impact of Patient-Physician Non-English Language Concordance on Quality of Care and Outcomes. J Gen Intern Med. 2019;34(8):1591-1606. doi:10.1007/s11606-019-04847-5
- 4. Ortega P. Spanish Language Concordance in U.S. Medical Care: A Multifaceted Challenge and Call to Action. Acad Med. 2018;93(9):1276-1280. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000002307
- 5. Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, Executive Order 13166, Federal Register, 2000 Aug; Vol. 65, No. 159.
- 6. Karliner LS, Pérez-Stable EJ, Gildengorin G. The language divide: The importance of training in the use of interpreters for outpatient practice. J Gen Intern Med. 2004; 19:175–183.
- 7. Cowden, John D., Darcy A. Thompson, Jennifer Ellzey, and Michael Artman. (2012). "Getting Past Getting By: Training Culturally and Linguistically Competent Physicians." The Journal of Pediatrics 160.6: 891–92.
- 8. Vela MB, Fritz C, Girotti, J. Medical Students' Experiences and Perspectives on Interpreting for LEP Patients at Two U.S. Medical Schools. J Racial Ethn Health Disparities. 2015 May;1-5.

For more information about this abstract please contact: portega1@uic.edu

An Innovative Approach to Global Pathology Education: PathElective.com Experience

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Cullen Lilley, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Kamran Mirza, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The COVID-19 pandemic put in-person pathology electives on-hold as departments adapted to education and patient care changes. We created a virtual, free, modular, and high-quality pathology elective website to address the subsequent void.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Despite its immense importance to all aspects of patient care, pathology is an optional elective in most US medical schools. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there was an increased need for virtual pathology experiences.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We created a pathology elective website using SquareSpace.com. Access to the site is free. Educational material was divided into interactive modules broadly divided into the subcategories of anatomic pathology, clinical pathology, and molecular pathology. We invited faculty from across the globe to create (or curate) content. Each module included a pre-test, aims, objectives, videos, and a post-test.

Outcomes:

From June 1, 2020 to October 1, 2020 Pathelective has had 25,467 unique visitors, 34,988 visits, 181,302 pageviews and 4,449 subscriptions from 99 countries across all continents except Antarctica. Countries with highest traffic are the USA (14,682), India (5,210), and the Philippines (2,195). PathElective's Twitter social graph score increased from 63.59 to 89.3 with the addition of 1637 followers. Data from surveyed users (n=177) shows most to be pathology residents (41%). Most subscribers (89%) are committed to a career in pathology. The majority heard of the website via Twitter (55%). In all survey questions surrounding satisfaction and usefulness, a large majority of the users were either satisfied or very satisfied.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

PathElective is a novel pathology elective that offers a unique opportunity to educate medical students and residents from around the globe and demonstrates high effectiveness and satisfaction among users. The main limitation for equitable access around the globe remains access to the internet.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Under the "for educators" tab we have added practical information regarding how the website content can be adapted to individual departments and electives.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: kamran.mirza@lumc.edu

MI CARES: An Innovative Online Program to Support Addiction Medicine Certification

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Geraud Plantegenest, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Lia Bennett, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Kelly Strutz, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine
Mark Greenwald, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Candace Heeringa, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine
Heather Bunker, Spectrum Health Medical Group
Cara Poland, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Michigan Collaborative Addiction Resources and Education System (MI CARES) program was created to support physicians seeking board certification in Addiction Medicine (ADM). The purpose of this study was to assess physicians' perspectives, use of online modules available in the program in 2020, and perceived effectiveness of learning materials.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Conservative estimates indicate a current need for 7,500 full-time certified addiction medicine physicians to meet public health demands nationwide. There is need for highly trained physicians to meet demand for prevention and treatment services to address the addiction epidemic.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

8 modules (practice pathway, opioids, alcohol, stimulants, nicotine, cannabis, sedatives, club drugs) were designed using the ADM blueprint for board certification. Modules were available starting in January and released thru August with exam dates in October. Modules were built in Articulate 360 and available thru a secured LMS.

Outcomes:

A total of 229 physicians were enrolled in the program from January-October 2020. 59% actively engaged with the online modules, 92% found the modules to be highly valuable for their learning purposes, 91% of physicians completing the Practice Pathway module anticipated using the information learnt towards preparation for board certification. Substance-specific modules received high ratings with 80% expressing confidence in their ability to prevent, assess, manage and treat substance use disorders in their practice.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

MI CARES provides a flexible model that can be adapted to train students, nurses, NPs, and PAs in ADM.

Limitations: Single study with small sample sizes.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

MI CARES is already moving this training upstream into Michigan medical schools as this would be critical in how we train the ADM workforce to treat addiction.

References:

1. Miller, S. C., Fiellin, D. A., Rosenthal, R. N., & Saitz, R. (2019). The ASAM principles of addiction medicine. Philadelphia:

Wolters Kluwer.

- 2. Scholl L, Seth P, Kariisa M, Wilson N, Baldwin G. (2019) Drug and Opioid-Involved Overdose Deaths United States, 2013–2017. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep 2019; 67:1419–1427. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm675152e1
- 3. Judy McKimm & Paul Kneath Jones (2018) Twelve tips for applying change models to curriculum design, development and delivery, Medical Teacher, 40:5, 520-526, DOI: 10.1080/0142159X.2017.1391377
- 4. Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (2019). Drug Overdose Deaths in Michigan 2016-2017 [PDF file]. Retrieved from: https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mdhhs/Drug_Overdose_Deaths_MI_2016- 2017_649230_7.pdf
- 5. Kurt S. ADDIE Model: Instructional Design (2018). Educational Technology. https://educationaltechnology.net/the-addie-model-instructional-design. Accessed November 12, 2020.
- 6. Pappas C.(2019) The Power Of AGILE Instructional Design Approach. eLearning Industry. https://elearningindustry.com/the-power-of-agile-instructional-design-approach. Accessed November 12, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: plantege@msu.edu

Micromanagement in Medical Education: Development of an Instrument

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract
Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: CGEA

Authors:

J.M.Monica Van de Ridder, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine/ Spectrum Health Bhawana Arora, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine/ Spectrum Health Rakesh Sarapaneni, Baylor Scott & White Cancer Center anuradha Mookerjee, Cooper Medical School of Rowan University Vijay Rajput, Nova Southeastern University, Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine,

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Development of instrument exploring (a) the prevalence of micromanagement in Graduate Medical Education (GME), and (b) impact of micromanagement on the individual, team and department.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Program Directors shared that residents were raising concerns about being micromanaged. Micromanagement is defined as a supervisory style of "hovering" and directly commanding all the details. Business literature reveals a debate about this topic for last few decades, in GME we were only able to identify six publications in PubMed. We think it is appropriate to develop an instrument because (a) the medical education field is very different than the business field and therefor micromanagement might look very different in GME compared to the business world, and (b) we have not found existing instruments in Medical Education that measure prevalence and impact of micromanagement.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

For the instrument development we use the steps as suggested Wetzel (2012): Determining what is to be measured, Generating an item pool, Determining the format for measuring (scale), Expert reviewing of initial question pool, Considering inclusion of validation items (6) Administering the items to a development sample, Evaluating the items, and Optimizing scale length.

Outcomes:

Based on expert reviews (methodology (n=3), practitioners (n=12), fellows (n=4)) and think aloud protocols we have adjusted our item-pool and scales. The current questionnaire consists of questions related to the existence of micromanagement (9 items), the possible impact (9 items), and demographics (10 items).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The development sample will take place in three institutions and only among residents and fellows. Although the questionnaire will 'just' focus perceptions, this is important, because micromanagement is in the eye of the beholder.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption: Once the questionnaire is validated it should be able to be used by other institutions.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Once the questionnaire is validated it should be able to be used by other institutions.

References:

1. Accredidation Council for Graduate Medical Education. ACGME Common Program Requirements (Residency). Revised February 3, 2020. https://www.acgme.org/Portals/0/PFAssets/ProgramRequirements/CPRResidency2020.pdf Accessed August

- 22, 2020.
- 2. Farnan JM, Johnson JK, Meltzer DO, Humphrey HJ, Arora VM. On-call supervision and resident autonomy: from micromanager to absentee attending. Am J Med. Aug 2009;122(8):784-8. doi:10.1016/j.amjmed.2009.04.011
- 3. Pingree EW, Huth K, Harper BD, et al. Encouraging Entrustment: A Qualitative Study of Resident Behaviors That Promote Entrustment. Acad Med. 2020; Publish Ahead of Printdoi:10.1097/acm.000000000003487
- 4. Ranji SR. A piece of my mind. What gets measured gets (micro)managed. Jama. Oct 22-29 2014;312(16):1637-8. doi:10.1001/jama.2014.11268
- 5. Merriam-Webster Inc. "Micromanage." https://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary/micromanage.Accessed September 1, 2020.
- 6. Wilkins MM. Signs that you are a micromanager. Harvard Business Review. Published November 2014. https://hbr.org/2014/11/signs-that-youre-a-micromanager. Accessed August 21, 2020.
- 7. Finn KM, Metlay JP, Chang Y, et al. Effect of Increased Inpatient Attending Physician Supervision on Medical Errors, Patient Safety, and Resident Education: A Randomized Clinical Trial. JAMA Intern Med. Jul 1 2018;178(7):952-959. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2018.1244
- 8. Crockett C, Joshi C, Rosenbaum M, Suneja M. Learning to drive: resident physicians' perceptions of how attending physicians promote and undermine autonomy. BMC Med Educ. 2019;19(1):293-293. doi:10.1186/s12909-019-1732-6
- 9. Duehring GL. Delegation: developing the habit. Radiol Manage. Jul-Aug 2001;23(4):16-20, 22, 24.
- 10. Serrat O. The Travails of Micromanagement. Knowledge Solutions: Tools, Methods, and Approaches to Drive Organizational Performance. Springer Singapore; 2017:473-479.
- 11. Sulphey M, Upadhyay Y. Construction and validation of micromanagement questionnaire. International Journal of Environment, Workplace and Employment. 01/01 2019;5:193. doi:10.1504/IJEWE.2019.103378
- 12. Ripley L. Components of a Teaching Team. J Grad Med Educ. Jun 2020;12(3):371-372. doi:10.4300/jgme-d-19-00744.1
- 13. Biondi EA, Leonard MS, Nocera E, Chen R, Arora J, Alverson B. Tempering pediatric hospitalist supervision of residents improves admission process efficiency without decreasing quality of care. J Hosp Med. 2014;9(2):106-110. doi:10.1002/jhm.2138
- 14. Lachance S, Latulippe J-F, Valiquette L, et al. Perceived effects of the 16-hour workday restriction on surgical specialties: Quebec's experience. J Surg Educ. 2014 Sep-Oct 2014;71(5):707-715. doi:10.1016/j.jsurg.2014.01.008
- 15. Gruppen LD, Irby DM, Durning SJ, Maggio LA. Conceptualizing Learning Environments in the Health Professions. Acad Med. 2019;94(7):969-974. doi:10.1097/acm.000000000002702
- 16. Allen T. If You Do These 5 Things, It's Obvious You Are A Micromanager. Forbes. Published August 24, 2019. https://www.forbes.com/sites/terinaallen/2019/08/24/when-you-do-these-5-annoying-things-its-obvious-that-you-are-a-micromanager/#338af9f5a8e5 Accessed June 19, 2020.
- 17. Cleary M, Hungerford C, Lopez V, Cutcliffe JR. Towards Effective Management in Psychiatric-Mental Health Nursing: The Dangers and Consequences of Micromanagement. Issues Ment Health Nurs. Jun 2015;36(6):424-9. doi:10.3109/01612840.2014.968694
- 18. Ryan RM, Deci EL. Self-determination theory and the facilitation of intrinsic motivation, social development, and well-being. American Psychologist. 2000;55(1):68-78. doi:10.1037/0003-066X.55.1.68
- 19. Collins SK, Collins KS. Micromanagement -- a costly management style. Radiol Manage. Nov-Dec 2002;24(6):32-5.
- 20. Carbo AR, Huang GC. Promoting clinical autonomy in medical learners. The Clinical Teacher. 2019;16(5):454-457. doi:10.1111/tct.13066
- 21. Mailloux, Cynthia Glawe. Using the essentials of baccalaureate education for professional nursing practice (2008) as a framework for curriculum revision. Journal of Professional Nursing. 2011;27(6):385-389.
- 22. Moriarty JA, Vellanki S, Trope LA, Hilgenberg SL, Blankenburg RL. Righting the Autonomy-Supervision Pendulum: Understanding the Impact of Independent Rounds on Medical Students, Residents, and Faculty. Acad Med. 2020; Publish Ahead of Print
- 23. Rajput V, Mookerjee AL. Thirty years of Night Medicine In Graduate Medical Education. MedEdPublish. 2017;6(4):19. doi:https://doi.org/10.15694/mep.2017.000188
- 24. Delgado O, Strauss EM, Ortega MA. Micromanagement: When to avoid it and how to use it effectively. Am J Health Syst Pharm. 2015;72(10):772-776. doi:10.2146/ajhp140125
- 25. Angelovska N. 7 Reasons Why Micromanagers Are Good For Teams And Companies. Forbes. Published Nov 5 2018. https://www.forbes.com/sites/ninaangelovska/2018/11/05/why-you-should-add-micromanagement-as-a-skill-in-your-jobapplication/#799243cc68bc. Accessed June 19, 2020.
- 26. Kerlin MP, Small DS, Cooney E, et al. A randomized trial of nighttime physician staffing in an intensive care unit. N Engl J Med. 2013;368(23):2201-9. doi:10.1056/NEJMoa1302854
- 27. Reynolds S. The Dangers of Micromanagement and the Three Freedoms. Journal of the Michigan Dental Association. 2012;(August):26-27.
- 28. Knight R. How to Stop Micromanaging Your Team. Harvard Business Review. 2015:7(1).https://hbr.org/2015/08/how-to-stop-micromanaging-your-team.

- 29. Maxfield D, Greeny J, McMillan R, Patterson K, Switzler A. Silence Kills: The Seven Crucial Conversations for Healthcare. VitalSmarts 2005. https://psnet.ahrq.gov/issue/silence-kills-seven-crucial-conversations-healthcare. Accessed November 5, 2020.
- 30. Beck J, Kind T, Meyer R, Bhansali P. Promoting Resident Autonomy During Family-Centered Rounds: A Qualitative Study of Resident, Hospitalist, and Subspecialty Physicians. J Grad Med Educ2016;8(5):731-738. doi:10.4300/jgme-d-16-00231.1
- 31. Santen SA, Wolff MS, Saxon K, Juneja N, Bassin B. Factors Affecting Entrustment and Autonomy in Emergency Medicine: "How much rope do I give them?". West J Emerg Med. 2019;20(1):58-63. doi:10.5811/westjem.2018.10.39843
- 32. Raffel K. The Safety Challenges of Supervision and Night Coverage in Academic Residency. Published October 2019. https://psnet.ahrq.gov/web-mm/safety-challenges-supervision-and-night-coverage-academic-residency Accessed October 31, 2020.
- 33. Viviano J. How to Work with a Micromanager. https://www.linkedin.com/learning/how-to-work-with-a-micromanager. Released Nov 21, 2019. Accessed September 16, 2020.
- 34. Viviano J. Processing feedback from a micromanager. https://www.linkedin.com/learning/how-to-work-with-a-micromanager/processing-feedback-from-a-micromanager. Released Nov 21, 2019. Accessed September 16, 2020.
- 35. Eikenberry K. Resisting micromanaging. https://www.linkedin.com/learning/management-foundations-5/resisting-micromanaging. Released November13, 2019. Accessed September 16, 2020.
- 36. Clark D. How to work better under micromanagers. https://www.linkedin.com/learning/personal-effectiveness-tips/how-to-work-better-under-micromanagers. Released July 10, 2017. Accessed September 16, 2020.
- 37. Schumacher DJ, Frintner MP, Jain A, Cull W. The 2011 ACGME Standards: Impact Reported by Graduating Residents on the Working and Learning Environment. Acad Ped. 2014;14(2):149-154. doi:10.1016/j.acap.2013.09.002
- 38. Edmondson AC, Kramer RM, Cook KS. Psychological Safety, Trust, and Learning in Organizations: A Group-level Lens. Trust and Distrust in Organizations: Dilemmas and Approaches. 2004;12:239-272.
- 39. Edmonson AC. Strategies for Learning from Failure. Harvard Business Review. 2011;89(4):48-55.
- 40. Alexander JB, Rajput V, Katz P. A Culture of Respect. Acad Med. 2013;88(6):741. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e31828f9e8a

For more information about this abstract please contact: vanderid@msu.edu

<u>Phase 1 Synthesis and Summary: A unique USMLE Step 1 Review course that integrates student self-directed study, flexibility, and wellness</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Jaya Yodh, Carle Illinois College of Medicine, University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign Atif Jaleel, Carle Illinois College of Medicine, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign Rob Wallon, Carle Illinois College of Medicine, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In January 2020, Carle Illinois College of Medicine implemented a novel course, 'Phase 1 Synthesis and Summary,' designed to provide holistic academic and wellness support for second-year students preparing for the USMLE Step 1 exam.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Standard medical school practice includes 4-8 weeks of independent 'dedicated' study time for Step 1 [1] during which students have reported considerable stress. [2] We sought to improve student experiences via a course incorporating wellness checkpoints alongside content reviews, while maintaining sufficient time and flexibility for targeted self-study. [3]

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Co-directed by a basic scientist-clinician faculty team during the final four weeks of the pre-clerkship phase, this course was designed to enable flexibility in choosing in-person or synchronous online participation. Course components included:

- 1. Individual Study Plans (ISP, course prerequisite)
- 2. Practice Self-Assessments (Three required)
- 3. Faculty-led Interactive Review Sessions (IRS) covering preclinical science topics. Students were required to select 4 out of 9 IRS to attend.
- 4. Faculty Office Hours (optional)
- 5. Reflection Surveys documenting study plan progress and wellness (one per week)
- 6. Faculty Mentor Check-In Meetings at course mid/endpoints

Determinations of student Step 1-readiness were guided by monitoring academic/wellness parameters.

Outcomes:

Course impact was measured from 23 students' responses (79% response rate) to a post-course evaluation (Likert-scale 1 'far-below' to 5 'far-exceeds' expectations). Average ratings for 6 course components ranged from 2.86-3.17; Overall course rating was 2.9. Activities associated with student autonomy (ISP, practice assessments, faculty check-ins) rated higher than those perceived as 'required' (weekly surveys, IRS).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Course strengths centered on aspects that maximized student flexibility, autonomy, and wellness. Time constraints prevented a comprehensive review across all pre-clerkship curricula.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Course elements may provide models for other schools to holistically improve students' preparation for

Step 1 and other exams that have potential to become more high-stakes upon transition to pass/fail scoring of Step 1. [4]

References:

- 1. Burk-Rafel, J, Santen, SA, and Purkiss, J. Study Behaviors and USMLE Step 1 Performance: Implications of a student self-directed parallel curriculum. Acad Med. 2017; 92: S67-S74.
- 2. Chen, DR, Priest, KC, Batten, JN, Fragoso, LE, Reinfeld, BI, Laitman, BM. Student perspectives on the "Step 1 climate" in preclinical medical education. Acad Med. 2019;94:302–304.
- 3. Alcamo, AM, Davids, AR, Lynn, DJ, and Vandre, DD. The Impact of a peer-designed and -led USMLE Step 1 Review Course: Improvement in Preparation and Scores. Acad Med. 2010; 85: S45-S48.
- 4. Kogan, JR and Hauer, KE. Sparking Change: How a Shift to Step 1 Pass/Fail Scoring could promote the educational and catalytic effects of assessments in medical education. Acad Med. 2020; 95(9): 1315-1317.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jyodh@illinois.edu

The longitudinal use of fictional families in health systems sciences education: Adding "butter" to "broccoli".

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Adil Khan, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Rachel Gallimore, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Daniel Waters, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Mekala Neelakantan, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Keshav Patel, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Alexis Jones, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Maria Sheakley, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine Kelly Quesnelle, Western Michigan University Homer Stryker M.D. School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To increase engagement and contextual understanding in health systems sciences (HSS) by integrating longitudinal case examples for pre-clinical medical students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Implementation of HSS in pre-clinical curricula is criticized by students, with increased performance gaps in student ratings. Students report perceiving the material as irrelevant and lacking continuity. The use of narrative is an effective means of education with previous success in the HSS realm and may reduce these criticisms.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A team of 6 fourth-year medical students developed a diverse family of characters pertinent to established learning objectives within their institution's HSS curriculum. Using these families, the team developed three different scenarios for each learning event. A full family tree with descriptions and backgrounds of characters was constructed in the Prezi digital platform. Course lecturers were then provided access to the family tree and case narratives and are now able to implement them into their teaching style and materials.

Outcomes:

The team successfully created a longitudinal family with diverse individuals which is being integrated into the new curriculum. Course directors are presently collecting responses to the new curriculum through use of mandatory RedCap surveys.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This curriculum was designed by a diverse group of 4th year students informed by their individual experiences. Characters are of diverse racial, cultural, gender, age, sexual, and religious identities. Such longitudinal use of characters allows students to develop empathy and connect ideas to their professional identity. Conversely, this approach has only been implemented at a single institution for several months. It has thus been difficult to find a comparative sample due to the lack of available data.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This low-cost innovation is easily transferable to other institutions and leverages the experiences of the medical student body. Scenarios can be customized to particular community needs, with focuses such as mental health or migrant work.

References:

- 1. Gonzalo, Jed D., and Greg Ogrinc. "Health Systems Science: The 'Broccoli' of Undergraduate Medical Education." Academic Medicine. Lippincott Williams and Wilkins, October 1, 2019. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000002815.
- 2. White, Earla J, Joy H Lewis, and Lise McCoy. "Gaming Science Innovations to Integrate Health Systems Science into Medical Education and Practice." Advances in Medical Education and Practice Volume 9 (May 2018): 407–14. https://doi.org/10.2147/amep.s137760.
- 3. Gonzalo JD, Davis C, Thompson BM, Haidet P. Teaching and Learning in Medicine An International Journal Unpacking Medical Students' Mixed Engagement in Health Systems Science Education Unpacking Medical Students' Mixed Engagement in Health Systems Science Education. Teach Learn Med. 2019;32(3):250-258. doi:10.1080/10401334.2019.1704765
- 4. Rossiter M. Narrative and Stories in Adult Teaching and Learning. ERIC Digests; 2002. https://eric.ed.gov/?id=ED473147. Accessed November 22, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: adil.khan@med.wmich.edu

A MAP for uncharted territory: Creating a guide for assessment in a competency-based medical school curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Heather Laird-Fick, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Dianne Wagner, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Robin Demuth, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Colleen Bush, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Robert Malinowski, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Jonathan Gold, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Wanda Lipscomb, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To describe our process for developing and implementing a unique guide for students, faculty members and administrators engaged in a competency-based medical school curriculum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In 2016, we launched a new curriculum incorporating early clinical experiences, integrated basic and clinical sciences, competency-based advancement, demonstration of competence and aspiring to excellence, and alignment of assessments, curricular content and real-world performance. We created a guiding document – the Manual for Assessment and Promotion (MAP) – to actualize these principles. We believe this process could aid other schools transitioning to competency-based curricula.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Writing the MAP was an iterative, collaborative process involving faculty members, academic and student affairs leaders, and students. It combines pre-existing elements (e.g., technical standards) with new ones (e.g., milestones, student competence committee). Milestones were based on curricular timelines, ACGME Core Competencies, and AAMC Core Entrustable Professional Activities. The assessment suite includes progress testing, multisource feedback, direct observation, and portfolios. The student competence committee structure is influenced by GME clinical competency committees and student-specific protections (e.g., FERRPA).

Outcomes:

Writing the MAP created a unified vision for those involved that was easily communicated to others. Milestone timelines reinforce our integrated courses. Our student competence committee has recommended approximately 2900 course grades to date. The MAP has withstood the test of time; most amendments clarify language or intent, rather than introducing substantive changes.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The MAP unifies our curriculum and aligns us with national UME and GME priorities. We are still defining metrics for excellence as we accrue data about progress suite performance and other student outcomes.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The MAP itself is quite contextual, limiting verbatim transfer to other colleges. We think that our process and vision could be adopted by others who embark on this journey.

References:

- 1. Andolsek K, Padmore J, Kauer KE, Ekpenyong A, Edgar L, Holmboe E. Clinical Competency Committees: A guidebook for Programs. 3rd edition. Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education.
- https://acgme.org/Portals/0/ACGMEClinicalCompetencyCommitteeGuidebook.pdf?ver=2020-04-16-121941-380. Accessed December 12, 2020.
- 2. Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency Curriculum Developers' Guide. Association of American Medical Colleges. 2014. https://store.aamc.org/downloadable/download/sample/sample_id/63/ Accessed December 12, 2020.
- 3. Friedman Ben-David M. AMEE Guide No. 14: Outcome-based education: Part 3 Assessment in outcome-based education. Medical Teacher. 1999; 21(1).
- 4. Shared Discovery Curriculum. Michigan State University College of Human Medicine. https://curriculum.chm.msu.edu/ Accessed December 12, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: lairdhea@msu.edu

<u>Creating Safe Learning Environments to Explore Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and</u> Anti-Racism Curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Amy Seegmiller Renner, Mayo Clinic
Adebisi Alli, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Sierra Tollefson, Mayo Clinic
James Gross, Mayo Clinic
Metta Kuehntopp, Mayo Clinic
Amit Shah, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Barbara Jordan, Mayo Clinic
Shannon Laughlin-Tommaso, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To answer a call to action from Mayo Clinic Alix School of Medicine students, a 4-day Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-racism (DEI-AR) course was created for first and second-year medical students (n=194). Paramount to the creation of this course was the establishment of a safe learning environment (LE). Limited by the COVID 19 pandemic, a virtual LE was required and spotlighted extra attention to psychological safety.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

A safe LE allows students to co-construct knowledge1 through discussion and discourse with faculty and fellow students. Critical components to creating a safe LE include all aspects of the environment (personal, physical/virtual, social, and psychological)2,3 and the modeling of optimal behaviors (growth mindset4, empathy5, and compassion). Cumulative effects of a safe LE allow students to examine sensitive or triggering topics, thus challenging biases and fostering inclusive thinking.6

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Prior to the course, faculty/facilitators were trained through interactive, case-based DEI-AR scenarios for skill set development. Faculty/facilitators created safe LE through large and small group (10 students or less) exploration. Office hours helped to debrief curricular or individual questions/concerns for facilitators and students separately. Given the virtual environment requirement, we optimized functions in Zoom such as highlighting inclusive language via posting of personal pronouns and phonetic spelling of names. Zoom chat function provided opportunities to create a social environment through discussion and reactions.

Outcomes:

Students rated the course learning environment with a 4.0/5.0. Student comments highlighted the use of empathy, respect, compassion, and constructive growth as strengths of the faculty/facilitators and ultimately the course.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The course launched amid a pandemic. Additional academic years will provide greater clarity on the creation of a safe LE and the need for a virtual platform.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The creation of safe LE can be replicated throughout medical and health professions education. Thoughtful consideration is required to examine and meet learner's needs.

References:

- 1. van Schaik, Sandrijn M. MD, PhD; Reeves, Susan A. EdD, RN; Headrick, Linda A. MD, MS Exemplary Learning Environments for the Health Professions: A Vision, Academic Medicine: July 2019 Volume 94 Issue 7 p 975-982 doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002689
- 2. Jaffe, L.E., Lindell, D., Sullivan, A.M. et al. Clear skies ahead: optimizing the learning environment for critical thinking from a qualitative analysis of interviews with expert teachers. Perspect Med Educ 8, 289–297 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1007/s40037-019-00536-5
- 3. Irby, D. M. (2018, December). Improving environments for learning in the health professions. In Proceedings of a conference sponsored by Josiah Macy Jr. Foundation in April.

https://macyfoundation.org/assets/reports/publications/macy monograph 2018 webfile.pdf

- 4. Wolcott, M. D., McLaughlin, J. E., Hann, A., Miklavec, A., Beck Dallaghan, G. L., Rhoney, D. H., & Zomorodi, M. (2020). A review to characterise and map the growth mindset theory in health professions education. Medical Education.
- 5. Batt-Rawden, Samantha A., MBChB; Chisolm, Margaret S., MD; Anton, Blair; Flickinger, Tabor E., MD, MPH Teaching Empathy to Medical Students, Academic Medicine: August 2013 Volume 88 Issue 8 p 1171-1177 doi: 10.1097/ACM.0b013e318299f3e3
- 6. Young JE, Williamson MI, Egan TG. Students' reflections on the relationships between safe learning environments, learning challenge and positive experiences of learning in a simulated GP clinic. Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract. 2016 Mar;21(1):63-77. doi: 10.1007/s10459-015-9611-3. Epub 2015 May 8. PMID: 25952645.

For more information about this abstract please contact: seegmiller.amy@mayo.edu

<u>Creating a Diverse Problem-Based Learning Patient Population</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Colleen Croniger, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Kelli Qua, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Anastasia Roland-Seymour, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Amy Wilson-Delfosse, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

PBL case scenarios offer a unique opportunity to diversify exposure to patient identities and create curriculum that addresses diversity. The purpose of this study was to create and evaluate inclusion of Patient ID cards in a PBL curriculum and determine the impact on students' discussions in PBL.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

PBL cases represent 40% of curricular time at Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine. Analysis of 93 PBL cases for age, racial identity, ethnicity and gender identity revealed that identifiers were lacking. This lack of diversity fails to prepare students for the diverse populations they will ultimately see in clinical practice.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Patient ID cards were developed for each PBL case that included a patient photograph and random assignment of name, age, sex at birth, gender identity, sexual orientation, racial identity, ethnicity and zip code. We collected facilitator feedback to evaluate the addition of Patient ID cards.

Outcomes:

The inclusion of Patient ID cards enriched discussions in PBL groups. For example, a Type 2 Diabetes case had the patient's racial identity assigned as Native American. Some groups discussed the incidence of Type 2 Diabetes in the Native American population as well as in other populations. Discussions also included social determinants of health such as lack of support and access to care. In a different case on CML the patient was assigned as gay for sexual orientation. Some groups discussed obstacles for receiving care in the LGBT community.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Inclusion of Patient ID cards enriches PBL discussions and prompts students to discuss diverse patient populations and social determinants of health. Random assignment of patient identifiers avoids the possibility of unintended stereotyping of various populations. Care must be taken to assure that clinical conditions presented within the PBL case are consistent with the assigned patient identity.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The Patient ID cards can be easily adopted by other institutions.

References:

- 1. Dogra, N., Conning, S., Gill, P., Spencer, J., & Turner, M. (2005). Teaching of cultural diversity in medical schools in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland: cross sectional questionnaire survey. BMJ, 330(7488), 403-404. doi:10.1136/bmj.38338.661493.AE
- 2. Dogra, N., Giordano, J., & France, N. (2007). Cultural diversity teaching and issues of uncertainty: the findings of a qualitative study. BMC Med Educ, 7, 8. doi:10.1186/1472-6920-7-8
- 3. Paternotte, E., Fokkema, J. P., van Loon, K. A., van Dulmen, S., & Scheele, F. (2014). Cultural diversity: blind spot in medical curriculum documents, a document analysis. BMC Med Educ, 14, 176. doi:10.1186/1472-6920-14-176
- 4. Pratt-Chapman, M. L. (2020). Implementation of sexual and gender minority health curricula in health care professional schools: a qualitative study. BMC Med Educ, 20(1), 138. doi:10.1186/s12909-020-02045-0

For more information about this abstract please contact: cmc6@case.edu

<u>Clerkship Year Honors: Rewarding Students for Sustained Superior Performance</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Amber Todd, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Amanda Bell, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Irina Overman, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Katharine Conway, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine Luke McCoy, Wright State University Boonshoft School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

WSU-BSOM recently changed clerkship grading to Pass/Fail, removing the requirement for shelf exams, and introducing a Doctoring Honors designation for sustained superior performance in the clerkship year. The objective of this innovation report is to introduce these changes to a broad audience and report our outcomes.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Clerkship grading is highly variable across medical schools. Many schools have tiered (fail/pass/high pass/honors) grading systems and use NBME subject (shelf) exams as a large part of grade calculation.1 Clerkship grading is challenging because of subjective clinical evaluations, standardized exams disadvantaging minority students,2 and/or not appropriately weighting what matters in a good physician.3

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

During the 2019-2020 AY year, clerkships were graded using the new schema. At the end of each block, clerkship directors gave honors nominations to students whom they felt demonstrated superior performance. At the end of the year, honors nominations for each student were compiled. Clerkship directors and administrative staff then met to discuss students who fell in the top 20% to decide if specific behaviors merited inclusion in the honors category. Honors was determined by consensus of the group and was included on the MSPE.

Outcomes:

Throughout the year, clerkship directors developed their honors criteria, consisting of superior performance on evaluations, graded activities and professionalism. Directors were struck by the similarity in honors nominations and ease of consensus of the group. A small number of students were discussed for professionalism and unanimously removed from consideration. Student perception was that the process was not transparent and that those who do not receive honors suffer from a lack of accolades on their MSPE.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include consensus and consistent grading in clerkships; limitations are one year of data.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We believe this grading scheme is general and feasible enough to be transferable to many other contexts.

References:

- 1. National Board of Medical Examiners. 2016 NBME Clinical Clerkship Subject Examination Survey: Summary of Results.; 2016.
- 2. Hauer KE, Lucey CR. Core Clerkship Grading: The Illusion of Objectivity. Acad Med. 2019;94(4):469-472.

doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000002413

3. Ingram MA, Pearman JL, Estrada CA, Zinski A, Williams WL. Are We Measuring What Matters? How Student and Clerkship Characteristics Influence Clinical Grading. Acad Med. 2020; Publish Ah. doi:10.1097/acm.000000000003616

For more information about this abstract please contact: amber.todd@wright.edu

<u>Patient Safety Day: a virtual initiative to improve medical student knowledge on</u> quality improvement

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Caleb Sokolowski, Wayne State University School of Medicine Megan Walsh, Wayne State University School of Medicine Diane Levine, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The goal of this project is to improve the knowledge of medical students on quality improvement and patient safety using a virtual initiative.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical errors are the third leading cause of death in the United States (1). Despite this, patient safety and quality improvement (QI) are often overlooked in undergraduate medical training. COVID-19 has added challenges to medical education as many in-person events have been cancelled.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Using the Zoom platform, a short patient safety lecture was given, then students were sent to breakout rooms of < 15 students based on a medical specialty of their choice. In these rooms, students were given a QI and/or patient safety-related "problem" within that specialty. Students developed an aim, created a driver diagram, and designed PDSA (plan, do study, act) cycles based on the problem. Students' learning was evaluated using a pre and post-test. Statistical analysis was completed using paired t-test and chi-squared analysis.

Outcomes:

Based on our QI test, we saw a 16% (n= 272, p<.00005) increase in quality theory knowledge. There was also a self perceived increase in knowledge as 92% of students (n=269, p<.00005) said they improved their QI knowledge. 81% (n=268, p<.0005) of students also stated that they were more equipped to start their own QI project.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Using an interactive online platform, quality theory can be taught through formal lecture and small group interaction. More study is necessary to determine the longitudinal benefit of this initiative, however, it is our hope that this will translate to increased involvement in QI to improve our health system and ultimately patient care.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Due to the virtual nature of this event, it is feasible to add this initiative to current medical curricula. Schools would need an online software to host the meeting and faculty or senior students to lead breakout room discussions.

References:

1. Makary Martin A, Daniel Michael. Medical error—the third leading cause of death in the US BMJ 2016; 353:i2139

For more information about this abstract please contact: Caleb.soko8@gmail.com

<u>Practicing Community Level Intervention to Promote the Health and Well-being</u> of a Vulnerable Population During a Pandemic

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Osama Alkhalili, Wayne State University School of Medicine Kiana Cabasa, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sikander Chohan, Wayne State University School of Medicine David Huynh, Wayne State University School of Medicine Carly Conway, Wayne State University School of Medicine Cassandra Keinath, Wayne State University School of Medicine Crisshara Allen, Detroit Area Agency on Aging Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective of this innovation is to improve the social connectedness of older adults amidst the pandemic and gain invaluable medical student experience implementing community level interventions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The responsibilities of future leaders in health care extend beyond exceptional clinical practice. A holistic approach to patient care is essential for aspiring physicians including a willingness to take action within communities. This must be emphasized in medical education.

Unique challenges of the pandemic demonstrate the need for multidimensionally considerate health care. This crisis creates a major communication barrier and may lead individuals into social isolation which is implicated in reduced health outcomes. The older adult population's technological inexperience increases their risk of social isolation and downstream consequences on their well-being.

The Michigan State Plan on Aging includes objectives to expand and enhance electronic/virtual connectivity and to promote virtual social connectedness. Community level interventions that promote elderly access to technology help accomplish these objectives and improve the health of a vulnerable population during the pandemic.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

- 1. In collaboration with the Detroit Area Agency on Aging (DAAA), a training curriculum for older adults was selected for development a Zoom tutorial for mobile devices.
- 2. Best practices were researched and the curriculum was developed in the form of an original video and pamphlet.
- The tutorial was presented to older adult participants and their satisfaction was surveyed.
 Outcomes include the percentage of older adults reporting increased comfort using technology to make social connections.
- 4. Students reflected on this intervention's impact on their medical education.

Outcomes:

This is a work in progress, but older adults have responded positively, indicating the curriculum will help increase older adult comfort with technology. Students report positive impact on medical education.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include the ability to intervene completely virtually.

Limitations include that outcome measures are built on personal experience.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Easily Adaptable.

References:

- 1. Chen, Yi-Ru Regina (01/28/2016). "The Effect of Information Communication Technology Interventions on Reducing Social Isolation in the Elderly: A Systematic Review". Journal of Medical Internet Research (1439-4456), 18 (1), p. e18
- 2. "Coronavirus COVID-19." Detroit Health Department, City of Detroit, Oct. 2020, detroitmi.gov/departments/detroit-health-department/programs-and-services/communicable-disease/coronavirus-covid-19.
- 3. "MICHIGAN STATE PLAN ON AGING FISCAL YEARS 2021-2023." Aging & Adult Services Agency, Michigan Department of Health & Human Services, 12 Oct. 2020.
- 4. Ozaki, Akihiko, et al. "Social Isolation and Cancer Management Advanced Rectal Cancer with Patient Delay Following the 2011 Triple Disaster in Fukushima, Japan: a Case Report." Journal of Medical Case Reports, vol. 11, no. 1, 2017, doi:10.1186/s13256-017-1306-3.
- 5. Smitherman, Herbert C, et al. "Dying Before Their Time III 19-Year (1997-2017) Comparative Analysis of Excess Mortality in Detroit (PSA 1-A)." Detroit Area Agency on Aging, Wayne State University School of Medicine, July 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: fv5388@wayne.edu

A Student Led Intervention: Integrating Anti-Racist Social Justice Content into Medical Education

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Ashleigh Peoples, Wayne State University School of Medicine Suma Alzouhayli, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sara Saymuah, Wayne State University School of Medicine Capricia Bell, Wayne State University School of Medicine Manvir Sandhu, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Diversity Week was designed to address the gap in our curriculum regarding racism, health equity and social justice education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In 2000, the LCME guidelines called for integration of SDoH and cultural competency as part of medical education. Since then, medical schools have struggled to incorporate these concepts, Wayne State University School of Medicine (WSUSOM) included. The calls for racial reconciliation and the COVID-19 pandemic reveal persistent health disparities in minoritized communities. It is imperative that medical curricula embrace anti-racist education.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Five days held virtually over Zoom from 6-8pm with a mix of webinars, panels, & small-groups, led by SOM faculty, alumni, & local experts. Sessions were open to the public and medical students with the option of service-learning credit for preclinical students. Topics covered: racism in medicine, as a form of trauma, identities and intersectionality, discrimination in medical education, healthcare and vulnerable communities, and allyship. Voluntary post-session surveys were distributed following each session to identify attendees' attitudes and understanding of the topics presented.

Outcomes:

Attendance for the whole week was over 1,500 with an average of 170 participants per session demonstrating consistent voluntary attendance by medical students, faculty, and community leaders. Post-session survey analysis revealed an evident need for substantive curricula changes to include antiracist social justice topics. Over the week, 55-65% of respondents said the sessions were 'very impactful' in understanding racial disparities in medicine, consequences of microaggression, intersectionality, and race as a construct.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Participants indicated the need for more small-group discussions to process the information, but appreciated the unique format and the accessibility of content presented. 93% of attendees indicated a desire for more content in the curriculum similar to topics presented.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

There is interest and a need for the content but the integration relies on institutional investment of resources and support. Curriculum should be Institution-led with student collaboration.

References:

- 1. American Medical Association, & O'Reilly, K. O. (2020, November 16). AMA: Racism is a threat to public health. American Medical Association. https://www.ama-assn.org/delivering-care/health-equity/ama-racism-threat-public-health
- 2. Kumagai AK, Lypson ML. Beyond cultural competence: critical consciousness, social justice, and multicultural education. Acad Med. 2009;84(6):782-787. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e3181a42398
- 3. Yeager KA, Bauer-Wu S. Cultural humility: essential foundation for clinical researchers. Appl Nurs Res. 2013;26(4):251-256. doi:10.1016/j.apnr.2013.06.008
- 4. Crosson JC, Deng W, Brazeau C, Boyd L, Soto-Greene M. Evaluating the effect of cultural competency training on medical student attitudes. Fam Med. 2004;36(3):199-203.

For more information about this abstract please contact: apeoples@med.wayne.edu

Shedding Light on Moonlighter Supervision

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Meggan Forbes, University of Chicago Elizabeth Murphy, University of Chicago Medicine Jeanne Farnan, University of Chicago Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We aimed to improve attending supervision of post-graduate trainees working off-hour shifts on uncovered hospitalist services and increase their identification of the hospitalist as a resource for clinical decision making.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Moonlighting trainees are an essential labor source in hospital medicine. These shifts provide diverse clinical experiences while increasing confidence and broadening competencies. Despite approximately 450 off-hour shifts covered annually by post-graduate trainees at our institution, little is known about their clinical decision while moonlighting, the amount of clinical supervision provided and who they turn to for assistance.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Eligible moonlighters received an anonymous online pre-onboarding survey, and required to attend an onboarding session clarifying specific criteria for attending notification. Follow-up surveys were completed at 6 month intervals over 18 months. Hospitalists staffing of moonlighter admissions coincided with onboarding initiation and billing data over 2 months was analylzed.

Outcomes:

- Response rates for all surveys (pre, post and post-post) were 30% of post graduate trainees.
- Over 18 months, moonlighters identification of the hospitalist as the primary resource for clinical information increased from 38.5% (pre-onboarding) to 55% (6 months post) to 80% (12 months post).
- Moonlighters desired additional education on managing hospitalist patients while moonlighting (53.8, 50% and 57.7%). Requests for transplant education decreased slightly over 18 months from 76.6% to 57%.
- Attending billing data indicated 52 patients were staffed in a 2 month period.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Hospitalists staffing moonlighter admissions improved their identification of the hospitalist as a resource for clinical decision making with potential patient safety implications. Despite onboarding, moonlighters still sought additional education on managing hospitalist patients. Limitations include the response rate of moonlighters. Areas for future work include determining specific areas for educational interventions regarding hospitalist moonlighting and examining patient outcomes data.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Pre-moonlighting training targeted at specific hospital medicine-related competencies was feasible to implement and could be easily disseminated to other institutions.

References:

- 1. Benson, N. M., & Beach, S. R. (2018). After Hours: A Survey of Moonlighting Practices in Psychiatry Residents. Academic Psychiatry, 43(1), 18–22. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40596-018-1003-6
- 2. Farnan, J. M., Johnson, J. K., Meltzer, D. O., Humphrey, H. J., & Arora, V. M. (2008). Resident uncertainty in clinical decision making and impact on patient care: a qualitative study. Quality and Safety in Health Care, 17(2), 122–126. https://doi.org/10.1136/qshc.2007.023184

For more information about this abstract please contact: mforbes@medicine.bsd.uchicago.edu

<u>Professional Coaching in Residency: The Analysis of a Novel Approach to address</u> Resident Burnout

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Matthew Silbergleit, Wayne State University School of Medicine Shibandri Das, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine Mark Juzych, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine Pradeepa Yoganathan, Kresge Eye Institute/Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To implement and analyze an organizational level coaching program for ophthalmology residents at Kresge Eye Institute as the front-line method for prevention and management of physician burnout.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Burnout is a well-documented stressor in medicine. A 2018 study found that 55.8% of ophthalmology residents displayed symptoms of burnout. Burnout has been shown to significantly increase unprofessional conduct and medical errors. However, there is varied effectiveness and limited data regarding current "self-care" interventions addressing burnout. Simply put, we have yet to find one cure for this pervasive phenomenon in medicine. A recent and promising model to tackle burnout in the medical field is coaching. The Harvard Business Review and American Medical Association have demonstrated the importance of coaching and its positive effects on professional performance and well-being.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We plan on utilizing the six-step Kern Method to develop a resident wellness curriculum addressing resident burnout. This curriculum will focus on implementation of professional coaching. We will evaluate the success of this program at six months and one year of implementation though survey data.

Outcomes:

The effectiveness of professional coaching as a new addition to the ophthalmology curriculum at Kresge Eye Institute will largely be judged by the five level Kirkpatrick Pyramid for program evaluation. The goal will be to provide knowledge and teach the vocabulary and skills needed to tackle burnout. We will measure the residents' ability to adapt these tools into their education through surveys grading the effectiveness of our coaching curriculum throughout all stages of the Kirkpatrick Pyramid.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Potential limitations include standardizing quality of coaches and creating adequate time during residency to engage with coaches. We plan to address this by tracking individual coach results and utilizing virtual meeting techniques, respectively.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We hope this program serves as a broadly applicable model for improving resident wellness across specialties throughout the country

References:

- 1. Center C, Davis M, Detre T, et al. Confronting Depression and Suicide in Physicians: A Consensus Statement. JAMA. 2003;289(23):3161–3166.
- 2. Coutu D, Kauffman C. What Can Coaches Do for You? Harvard Business Review. January 2009.

- 3. Deiorio NM, Carney PA, Kahl LE, et al. Coaching: a new model for academic and career achievement. Medical Education Online. 2016;21(1):33480. doi:10.3402/meo.v21.33480
- 4. Deiorio NM, Hammoud MM. Coaching in Medical Education . Chicago, IL: American Medical Association; 2017.
- 5. Dyrbye LN, Burke SE, Hardeman RR, et al. Association of Clinical Specialty With Symptoms of Burnout and Career Choice Regret Among US Resident Physicians. JAMA. 2018;320(11):1114–1130.
- 6. Dyrbye LN, Massie FS, Eacker A, et al. Relationship Between Burnout and Professional Conduct and Attitudes Among US Medical Students. JAMA. 2010;304(11):1173–1180.
- 7. Dyrbye LN, Shanafelt TD, Gill PR, Satele DV, West CP. Effect of a Professional Coaching Intervention on the Well-being and Distress of Physicians: A Pilot Randomized Clinical Trial. JAMA Intern Med.2019;179(10):1406–1414.
- 8. Mackie D. Evaluating the effectiveness of executive coaching: Where are we now and where do we need to be? Australian Psychologist. 2007;42(4):310-318.
- 9. West CP, Tan AD, Habermann TM, et al. Association of resident fatigue and distress with perceived medical errors. JAMA. 2009 Sep 23;302(12):1294-300.

For more information about this abstract please contact: das.shibandri@gmail.com

<u>Bridge to M4: development of an innovative residency application preparation</u> curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Elizabeth Southworth, University of Michigan Medical School Nicolette Codispoti, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Scott Graziano, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Gregory Gruener, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To create a curriculum designed to prepare medical students for the residency application process.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The residency application process is daunting, time-consuming, and variable for applicants, and mentoring students through this process is important, perhaps this year more than ever (1). The complex decision-making applicants face when assessing program "fit" and creating rank lists can be overwhelming, and with changes to the application process due to COVID-19, students were challenged to learn about programs remotely and interview virtually (2).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A needs assessment survey was distributed to rising fourth-year medical students to inform the development of Bridge to M4 (B2M4). Course materials utilized a combination of existing residency preparation materials from medical organizations (e.g., AAMC, AMA), while other in-house resources were developed to facilitate a strength-based and values-based approach to application preparation.

Outcomes:

35 students responded to the survey, with 35/35 indicating a strong interest in a course to prepare for the changes to the residency application process. Utilizing this data, B2M4 was designed as a four-week elective with nine faculty course facilitators. In B2M4, students (n=36) participated in virtual mock interviews, developed their curriculum vitae and personal statement, prepared an elevator pitch and selected residency programs to apply (~35 hours).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

B2M4 was an innovative curriculum design, giving students the opportunity to prepare for the residency application process through reflective activities guiding values clarification, strengths identification, and goal setting. This elective demonstrates the value of student-informed curriculum with the support of faculty mentors.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This curriculum has proven to be transferable to students at both the institutions of ES and NC, as reflective activities are currently being utilized formally and informally by faculty and residents at these institutions with their mentees. B2M4 offers a formal opportunity for students to continue to explore their goals and desires when making decisions about a future residency program.

References:

1. Rodoni BM, Eyrich NW, Fessell DP. COVID-19 & the Residency Match: The Added Importance of Mentoring. Ann Surg. 2020;272(2):e151-e152.

2. Hammoud MM, Standiford T, Carmody JB. Potential Implications of COVID-19 for the 2020-2021 Residency Application Cycle. JAMA. 2020;324(1):29–30.

For more information about this abstract please contact: soelizab@med.umich.edu

A Student Led Virtual Tabletop Simulation for the Allocation of Scarce Critical Care Resources during a Public Health Emergency

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Karina Shah, University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine Donya Jahandar, University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine Emily Hillman, University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine Michael Moncure, University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To utilize a tabletop simulation to prepare a triage team to apply policy guidelines when allocating critical care resources during a public health emergency.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

It is imperative that hospital teams prepare to implement policies to allocate scarce critical resources during the COVID-19 pandemic. The bridge between policy creation and optimal implementation is fraught with challenges, yet inefficiencies cannot be afforded during a pandemic. Tabletop simulations are used to prepare teams for disaster scenarios, and may help teams enhance pandemic preparedness.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The multidisciplinary hospital-based triage team responsible for enacting a critical resources policy participated in a 60-minute tabletop simulation virtually. The case-based simulation was led by a skilled facilitator; participants were asked to apply the policy to various patient scenarios. Notes were taken regarding participants' reflections during debriefing. Participants were asked to complete a pre- and posttest in Google Forms; test questions assessed their recall and ability to apply the policy to clinical cases.

Outcomes:

13/21 triage team members participated in the virtual tabletop simulation. Opportunities to improve policy use and team function across three key themes emerged: policy interpretation, policy application, and policy implementation. In addition, participants found it difficult to separate their roles as triage team members and clinicians which is important for hospital leadership to recognize and support. Preand posttest results were unable to be compared as 18 triage team members participated in the pretest but only 3 participated in the posttest.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The simulation was well received, enabling the team to identify ways to pre-emptively improve policy implementation. Due to the low posttest response rate we were unable to measure if the simulation improves an individual's ability to apply the policy to patient scenarios.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The tabletop simulation cases can be adapted and implemented successfully for this purpose. A trained facilitator is key.

References:

- 1. White DB, Lo B. A framework for rationing ventilators and critical care beds during the COVID-19 pandemic. JAMA. 2020 Mar 27. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.5046
- 2. Christian MD, Devereaux AV, Dichter JR, Rubinson L, Kissoon N; Task Force for Mass Critical Care; Task Force for Mass Critical

Care. Introduction and executive summary: care of the critically ill and injured during pandemics and disasters: CHEST consensus statement. Chest. 2014 Oct;146(4 Suppl):8S-34S. doi: 10.1378/chest.14-0732. PMID: 25144202; PMCID: PMC7094437.

3. Dieckmann P, Torgeirsen K, Qvindesland SA, Thomas L, Bushell V, Langli Ersdal H. The use of simulation to prepare and improve responses to infectious disease outbreaks like COVID-19: practical tips and resources from Norway, Denmark, and the UK. Adv Simul (Lond). 2020 Apr 16;5:3. doi: 10.1186/s41077-020-00121-5. PMID: 32308988; PMCID: PMC7160610.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ksbk5@mail.umkc.edu

A Student in my Pocket: Development of a Virtual Internal Medicine Hospital Rotation during the Covid-19 Pandemic

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Bridget McGrath, University of Chicago Medicine Jina Saltzman, University of Chicago Medicine Kara White, University of Chicago Medicine William Larsen, University of Chicago Medicine Elizabeth Murphy, University of Chicago Medicine Jeanne Farnan, University of Chicago Medicine Shannon Martin, University of Chicago Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Develop a clinical rotation for private Physician Assistant (PA) programs negatively impacted by COVID-19 by implementing and evaluating a four-week Virtual PA Rotation (VPAR) comprised of 1) direct patient care, 2) medical educator facilitated breakout sessions, 3) asynchronous learning.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

40% of PAs identify the hospital as their principal clinical setting. Many hospital student rotations were cancelled due to COVID-19, negatively impacting the 70% of PA programs not affiliated with an academic medical center. To address this need, medical educators at University of Chicago created a VPAR.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Five students were enrolled. Direct patient experiences included virtual interviews, preceptor staffing and completion of progress notes. This was augmented with medical educator-facilitated breakout sessions and asynchronous didactic sessions via Zoom. VPAR evaluation included: 1) comparison of virtual vs traditional in-person rotation patient logs, 2) post-curriculum survey of students and medical educators' satisfaction and self-efficacy, 3) student pass rate on end of rotation (EOR) examination.

Outcomes:

Students recorded seeing 171 patients virtually with 1030 diagnoses, similar to the 182 patients and 845 diagnoses from 2019 in-person rotations. Educational activities including interviewing patients, case presentations and discussions with preceptors, were rated as most useful on a 5-point Likert-scale via student survey results. Students felt most prepared to review charts, analyze results and obtain a history. 100% of students passed their EOR exam.

85% (11/13) of medical educators were moderately or extremely satisfied with the VPAR, 77% were moderately or extremely likely to recommend the VPAR to other educators, and 100% felt this experience made them more open to interprofessional teaching.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: low cost; 100% EOR pass rate; high student ratings; comparable patient encounters and diagnoses. Limitations: increased medical educator time commitment; barriers of technology; loss of organic educational experiences.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This model can be adjusted for other practice settings, specialties and professions and adjusted for different timeframes.

References:

- 1. National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants, Inc. (2020, April). 2019 Statistical Profile of Certified Physician Assistants: An Annual Report of the National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants. Retrieved 11/28/2020, from http://www.nccpa.net/research Physician Assistant Education Association
- 2. By the Numbers: Program Report 35: Data from the 2019 Program Survey, Washington, DC: PAEA; 2020. doi: 10.17538/PR35.2020

For more information about this abstract please contact: bmcgrath@medicine.bsd.uchicago.edu

<u>Educational Leadership in Academic Medicine: A dynamically responsive</u> elective to meet student needs

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Nicolette Codispoti, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Elizabeth Southworth, University of Michigan Medical School Laelle Peterson, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Gregory Gruener, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To implement a student-created leadership course where participant feedback is utilized in an iterative curricular model to meet evolving needs.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The Educational Leadership in Academic Medicine course ("Leadership Elective") was developed in 2017 (by ES) to provide a structured opportunity to explore leadership theories and practice that facilitate the development of effective leaders in both the classroom and clinical setting (1).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Three cohorts of first- and second-year medical students (n=89) enrolled in the Leadership Elective from 2017-2019. Teaching assistants were selected from the previous cohort and mentored in their review and revision of the curriculum. Each cohort of students completed a leadership efficacy questionnaire (pre- and post-course) and submitted course-specific feedback to identify future student leadership needs (2).

Outcomes:

Students reported an overall improvement in their self-perceived leadership efficacy and anecdotally found the course beneficial in developing leadership identity. Student feedback highlighted the need for additional opportunities for reflection to guide personal and professional development that enhances interpersonal and communication skills.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The original Leadership Elective focused primarily on leadership framework and theory, suggesting the need for an integrative approach to apply theory in course activities. The revised curriculum allows students the opportunity to reflect on their leadership story, expand upon professional development, progressively develop leadership skills, and prepare for real world experiences. Limitations include implementing a novel curriculum and gathering comparative feedback, as each student cohort varies every year reflecting changing educational needs.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This curriculum provides students the opportunity to formally reflect on their leadership journey, refine interpersonal and communication skills, and collaborate with peers, all which contribute to furthering leadership development in undergraduate medical education (3). As the existing course provides a flexible structure to implement curriculum changes, course evaluations will continue to be distributed to each cohort to continue the dynamic nature of content based on student needs.

References:

- 1. Northouse PG. Leadership: Theory and practice. Sage publications; 2018.
- 2. Tsai A, Moniz MH, Davis MM, Chang T. Meaning and purpose: refocusing on the why in medical education. NEJM Catalyst. 2017; 3(4).
- 3. van Diggele C, Burgess A, Roberts C, Mellis C. Leadership in healthcare education. BMC Medical Education. 2020; 20(2): 1-6.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ncodispoti@luc.edu

Weekly CME Webinars for Pediatric Urgent Care Providers

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Emily Montgomery, University of Missouri-Kansas City School of Medicine Sadia Ansari, Childrens Wisconsin Urgent Care

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To provide ongoing virtual continuing medical education (CME) to members of the Society for Pediatric Urgent Care (SPUC).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Most states across the United States require physicians to participate in continuing medical education (CME) to maintain licensure. However, pediatric CME is challenging to find (Nelson, 2019), particularly pediatric urgent care (PUC)-specific CME, and challenges have multiplied during the pandemic. For this reason, SPUC started Weekly Webinars, a weekly national webinar that provides PUC-specific CME.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A group of PUC providers from Children's Hospital of Wisconsin, Children's Mercy Kansas City, Seattle Children's, Children's National, and Yale recruit speakers from their institutions for the hour-long weekly webinars held via an online synchronous platform. Speakers may be either subspecialists or PUC providers (for case presentations, evidence-based guidelines). In order to encourage active participation, there are 3-4 poll questions in the webinar covering the material. Participants must receive a score of 60% or higher to pass the quiz and receive CME. The post-webinar survey also assesses participant satisfaction with the webinar and elicits education needs.

Outcomes:

From January 9, 2019, to September 17, 2020, SPUC had 1768 views of 30 webinars covering 30 topics. Participants claimed CME credit 1178 times and passed the post-webinar quiz to receive CME 1066 times. Providers indicate they are satisfied with the CME.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of the SPUC weekly webinar include filling the gap of providing PUC-specific CME to members of SPUC. Limitations of our curriculum include that while we are tailoring many of our webinar topics to provider self-identified needs, we are often limited by speaker availability.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This is an example of how organizations can provide accessible CME now that we are not allowed to attend live conferences.

References:

- 1. American Medical Association. (2018). AMA PRA Credit System: Frequently Asked Questions.
- 2. Chatterjee, D., & Corral, J. (2017). How to Write Well-Defined Learning Objectives. The Journal of Education in Perioperative Medicine: JEPM, 19(4). https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5944406/
- 3. CME Content: Definition and Examples | ACCME. (n.d.). Retrieved July 29, 2020, from https://www.accme.org/accreditation-rules/policies/cme-content-definition-and-examples
- 4. Davis, N., Davis, D., & Bloch, R. (2008). Continuing medical education: AMEE Education Guide No 35. Medical Teacher, 30(7), 652–666. https://doi.org/10.1080/01421590802108323
- 5. Fleming, R. T., & Fleming, N. (2019, April 29). Novel Curriculum to Address Knowledge Gaps in Pediatric Urgent Care (Board 794) [Poster]. PAS, Baltimore, MD.

https://www.xcdsystem.com/pas2019/program/2019/index.cfm?pgid=156&sid=1366&abid=7316

6. National Center for the Improvement of Education Assessment. (2013). Guide for Developing Student Learning Objectives. https://www.nciea.org/sites/default/files/slo-tools/3 Instructional-Guide-for-Developing-Student-Learning-Objectives.pdf

8. Rossi, P. H., Lipsey, M. W., & Henry, G. T. (2019). Evaluation: A systematic approach (8th ed.). Sage. 9. Taylor, D. C. M., & Hamdy, H. (2013). Adult learning theories: Implications for learning and teaching in medical education:

For more information about this abstract please contact: emilyjanemontgomery@gmail.com

AMEE Guide No. 83. Medical Teacher, 35(11), e1561-e1572. https://doi.org/10.3109/0142159X.2013.828153

<u>Assessing What Matters – A Milestone Focused on Justice, Equity, Diversity, & Inclusion (JEDI)</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Deborah Simpson, Advocate Aurora Health Deborah Simpson, AdvocateAurora Health Kristin Ouweneel, Advocate Aurora Health Tricia LaFratta, Advocate Aurora Health Willhelm Lehmann, Advocate Aurora Health Kjersti Knox, Advocate Aurora Health Colleen Nichols, Advocate Aurora Health Dhrubajyoti Bhattacharya, Advocate Aurora Health Alyson Capp, Advocate Aurora Health Brenda Fay, Advocate Aurora Health Kathryn Agard, Advocate Aurora Health Steven Murphy, Advocate Aurora Health Aboud Affi, Advocate Aurora Health Mohammad Mortada, Advocate Aurora Health Nicole Salvo, Advocate Aurora Health Jessica O'Brien, Advocate Aurora Health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To develop an ACGME-like milestone that concurrently serves as a curriculum blueprint across the continuum of medical education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In 2019, Milwaukee County became one of the first municipalities to declare racism a public health crisis.(1) Motivated by racial injustice and COVID-19 disparities medical education (2-4) are accelerating efforts to address racism and eliminate health disparities (AAMC's DEI Cross-Continuum Competencies). Yet, the 2019 ACGME Common Program Requirements six core competencies fails to include the key terms (disparities, inequities, justice, community, underserved) and requires a new structural competency domain with assessments.(5)

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

To match our existing assessment framework, an ACGME like milestone, applicable across the continuum of medical education was developed by an interprofessional team (eg, MedEd, Ethics, DE&I). A literature review was completed to identify key milestone elements. Milestone was framed by ACGME core competencies (eg, MK, PC, SBP) and progression delineated across five levels. The 8-page milestone was iteratively revised by multiple stakeholders to 1-page suitable for inclusion as the end of each GME program's required milestone assessment form.

Outcomes:

Enthusiastic and pervasive support for the structural fluency milestone was achieved across the continuum. It was approved by GME Council for inclusion as a required formative milestone in every program. GME milestone data informs curriculum/instruction across the continuum (UME, GME, CME)

using an expanded 2-page milestone for use as a blueprint at it retained each of the competency domains and references.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Our milestone innovation recognizes need for data: to monitor our ability to learn/teach and ultimately eliminate racism (and other isms) and health disparities. Its strength is its limitation as we recognize it's a journey and it will evolve as we do.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Formatted like existing ACGME milestones implementation within the assessment system was seamless enhancing its feasibility and transferability.

References:

- 1. Spicuzza M. Racism is a public health crisis': Milwaukee County leaders call for racial equity. Milwaukee Journal Sentinel. April 4, 2019. Accessed December 12, 2020 https://www.jsonline.com/story/news/politics/2019/04/04/milwaukee-county-leaders-proclaim-racism-public-health-crisis/3362685002/
- 2. Elliott VS, Kim I, Loomis K. Structural and Social Determinants of Health. In Skochelak S, ed. Health Systems Science: Structural and Social Determinants of Health. 2nd edition. E-book: Elsevier; 2021:191-219. Accessed October 15, 2020. https://bookmark.elsevierhealth.com/health-systems-science-structural-and-social-determinants-of-health/?utm_source=SFMC&utm_medium=email&utm_term=10142020&utm_content=20%e2%80%9310011+474017+Oct+ChangeMedEd+Monthly&utm_campaign=&utm_uid=&utm_effort=
- 3. Healthcare Anchor Network. It is undeniable: Racism is a public health crisis. Published September 27, 2020. Accessed October 13, 2020 https://healthcareanchor.network/2020/09/it-is-undeniable-racism-is-a-public-health-crisis/
 4. Academic Medicine Supplement. Addressing Race and Racism in Medical Education. Acad Med. 2020; 95(12):1781-1926. 5. Castillo EG. Isom J, DeBonis K, Jordan A, Braslow JT et al. Reconsidering Systems-Based Practice: Advancing Structural Competency, Health Equity, and Social Responsibility in Graduate Medical Education, Acad Med. 2020; 95(12):1817-1822.

For more information about this abstract please contact: deb.simpson@aah.org

A Novel Clerkship Curriculum to Address Racism in Pediatrics; A Partnership of Clerkship Coordinator and Director

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Elizabeth Van Opstal, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Rochelle Reeder, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Johnny Alvarez de la Cruz, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

- Create a pediatric clerkship session on controversial topics in the lens of equity and structural
- Engage students to share both societal and personal experiences with structural racism

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Our pediatric clerkship, like many pediatric UME programs, lacked structural didactic sessions addressing current examples of structural racism. (1, 2). Our clerkship coordinator and director partnered to develop an innovative, interactive session addressing structural racism. Given the disproportionate burden on COVID 19 on communities of color (3), as well as inequities in public education, we chose if and how public elementary schools should physically reopen.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Clerkship faculty provided pre-session materials. Each session had approximately 25 students. Students divided into two groups in a debate format, and assigned a "side" to argue for (in person vs remote learning) based on racial and social barriers. After reviewing resources and discussion, each side gave an argument and counterargument. We adapted a previously published after session evaluation tool. (4)

Outcomes:

Response rate was 61% (44/72). 57% of students stated that this session changed their perspective about racism. 68% of students agreed that their knowledge improved ability to apply real life examples of structural racism. 95% felt their opinions were valued. Positive student comments included enjoying the interactive nature of the session and application to controversial topics. Critique included disproportionately the white students avoided the topic of racism.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Although the majority of students felt comfortable expressing their opinions, not all students did. In particular, one Latinx student expressed discomfort at the debate style picking a "winner" as making light of a serious topic. In addition, faculty noted that often the white students dominated conversation, and spoke less about racism in discussion. We plan to adapt the topic of future sessions, based on current controversies.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This session is easily adapted and shared with other institutions.

References:

- 1. Ahmad NJ, Shi M. The need for anti-racism training in medical school curricula. Acad Med. 2017;92(8):1073 10.1097
- 2. Mendoza FS, Walker LR, Stoll BJ. Diversity and inclusion training in pediatric departments. Pediatrics. 2015;135:707–713. doi: 10.1542/peds.2014-1653.

3. https://www.chicago.gov/city/en/sites/covid-19/home/latest-data.html
4. DallaPiazza, M, et al . Exploring Racism and Health: An Intensive Interactive Session for Medical Students. Med Ed Portal. 2018 Dec 14;14:10783. doi: 10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10783

For more information about this abstract please contact: bethpeterson2@yahoo.com

Exploring Health Information Visualization as an Innovative Method for Strengthening Clinical Reasoning and Patient Education

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Narmeen Rehman, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jacob Hoofman, Wayne State University School of Medicine Rachel Monconduit, Wayne State University School of Medicine Ho Jun Yun, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The aim of this study was to determine the effectiveness of evidence-based infographic development in facilitating medical student skills in identifying, evaluating, and translating complex health information to a non-medical audience.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Effective doctor-physician communication is a major determinant of patient outcomes. (1) Health information visualization through methods like infographics have shown to facilitate this process, improving patient engagement and comprehension of information across differing levels of health literacy. (2,3) This project also explores methods to increase student application of evidence-based medicine skills, such as critical evaluation of research and integrating evidence-based knowledge with patient values. (4)

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

290 students at Wayne State University School of Medicine were assigned to groups of six to create an infographic informing a target audience about a myth about COVID-19. The assignment was divided into four steps: conducting a literature search, evaluating literature, creating an infographic, and presenting this information to a community partner. A survey was disseminated to students to determine the efficacy of infographic development in the aims stated above.

Outcomes:

First year medical students (29.3%) responded to the survey. The majority (89.4%) indicated infographics were effective for patient education. Seventy-three percent noted improved skills in communicating health information to a non-medical audience. The students found greatest difficulty in selecting relevant information from their literature search to share (24.7%).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

With a growing body of new evidence on COVID-19 and risk of misinformation, this project uniquely positioned students to practice critically analyzing factors that increase the quality of research studies and translating health literature for patient consumption. A limitation to the project was access to robust literature on COVID-19 relevant to their target audience.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This project can be easily adapted at any other medical institution.

References:

- $1. \ Ha\ JF, Longnecker\ N.\ Doctor-patient\ communication:\ a\ review.\ Ochsner\ J.\ 2010; 10(1):38-43.$
- 2. Arcia A, Woollen J, Bakken S. A Systematic Method for Exploring Data Attributes in Preparation for Designing Tailored

Infographics of Patient Reported Outcomes. EGEMS (Wash DC). 2018;6(1):2. Published 2018 Jan 24. doi:10.5334/egems.190 3. Balkac M, Ergun E. Role of Infographics in Healthcare. Chin Med J (Engl). 2018;131(20):2514-2517. doi:10.4103/0366-6999.243569

4. Morris MJ, Fewell AE, Oleszewski RT. Evidence-based medicine: specific skills necessary for developing expertise in critical appraisal. South Med J. 2012;105(3):114-119. doi:10.1097/SMJ.0b013e31824b197c

For more information about this abstract please contact: fw0599@wayne.edu

Longitudinal Coaching for Fostering Character Development in Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Kurt Pfeifer, Medical College of Wisconsin
Jose Franco, Medical College of Wisconsin
Kaicy von Stockhausen, Medical College of Wisconsin
Tavinder Ark, Medical College of Wisconsin
Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin
Karen Marcdante, Medical College of Wisconsin
Martin Muntz, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Foster character development in medical students through a longitudinal coaching program.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical schools are increasingly utilizing learning communities and coaching to facilitate medical student professional development. The Medical College of Wisconsin's Kern Institute for the Transformation of Medical Education was established in 2017 to nurture authentic expressions of good character in medicine that enable caring and competence in the service of patients. Coaching programs offer an opportunity for focusing on such character development.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We designed a pilot program of longitudinal coaching that partners a faculty member with 3-4 medical students for the duration of students' medical education. Faculty coaches meet individually with students every other month to discuss their personal and professional development. Faculty members and their students also meet monthly as a group sharing experiences and discussing the cultivation of character in their professional lives. Monthly faculty development sessions provide education on the topic and exercises for the monthly group coaching meetings.

Outcomes:

A total of 48 students and 13 faculty volunteered to participate in the program. Evaluation data obtained after the first year indicated a strong impact on students for multiple character strengths, especially honesty, perspective, and gratitude. Student surveys also showed the program's positive influence on attitudes and behaviors consistent with a growth mindset. Coach surveys showed that faculty also benefited greatly from the program with increases in sense of engagement and mentorship ability.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of this program included integration of faculty development and maintenance of group continuity to build trust and a sense of community. A significant limitation of the program is its voluntary status.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This pilot shows that coaching programs are an effective means of achieving medical student character development. Addition of character development into existing learning community and coaching programs is achievable with the application of focused faculty development.

References:

- 1. Hauer K, Iverson N, Quach A, et al. Fostering medical students' lifelong learning skills with a dashboard, coaching and learning planning. Perspect Med Educ. 2018;7(5):311-7.
- 2. Kalet A, Buckvar-Keltz L, Monson V, et al. Professional Identity Formation in medical school: One measure reflects changes during pre-clerkship training. MedEdPublish. 2081;7(1):41.
- 3. Cruess RL, Cruess SR, Boudrequ D, Snell L, Steinert Y. A Schematic representation of the professional identify formation and socialization of medical students and residents: A guide for Medical Educators. Acad Med 2015:90(6): 1-8.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kpfeifer@mcw.edu

<u>Using an innovative longitudinal course to offer alternative pathways in undergraduate medical education</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Karri Grob, University of Michigan Medical School Samiah Haque, University of Michigan Medical School Quintin Solano, University of Michigan Medical School Beth Holman, University of Michigan Medical School Michael Englesbe, University of Michigan Medical School Carmen Colby, University of Michigan Medical School Seetha Monrad, University of Michigan Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Many medical students require flexibility in their education and primarily use a leave of absence (LOA). Our LOA students have reported feelings of isolation and distress around loss of connections, as well as housing instability, difficulty maintaining health insurance, and food insecurity. These negative outcomes disproportionately affect lower SES and URiM student populations. We present a University of Michigan Medical School (UMMS) administrative strategy to lessen the immediate financial burden and loss of community for decelerating students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Using a case study approach, qualitative data from existing LOA students will codify the impacts of LOA. Responses will inform development of an interview guide for CFI pilot students, who will participate during winter-spring 2021. We will conduct interviews with the pilot participants to measure student outcomes and inform broader implementation thereafter.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We identified courses amenable to enrollment in lieu of an LOA and selected the Capstone for Impact (CFI), a graduation requirement for UMMS students requiring sustained self-directed learning. CFI was converted to a longitudinal course with variable credit load, providing flexibility. Students use the CFI checklist to determine a timeline for completion in consultation with a CFI advisor. Students are required to submit a detailed reflection at the semester's end.

Outcomes:

We modeled two cases representing needy students. For the year students are on LOA, out-of-pocket expenses (including health insurance) totaled ~\$32,570, with no income from FFA or grants. The second case model showed annual expenses (including health insurance and prorated tuition) were ~\$67,634. Income from FFA and grants (\$64,950) was preserved, generating annual out-of-pocket expenses of ~\$2,684.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Although the study is limited to a pilot case study at one institution, other medical schools may use this study and outcomes to model pathways at their own institutions.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The study's domains of focus are not confined to one institution and are easily transferable.

References:

- 1. AAMC Careers in Medicine. Unplanned leaves of absence: Should I stay or should I go? https://www.aamc.org/cim/explore-options/unplanned-leaves-absence-should-i-stay-or-should-i-go
- 2. Fallar, R., Leikauf, J., Dokun, O., Anand, S., Gliatto, P., Mellman, L., Autenrieth, S., & Katz, C. (2019). Medical students' experiences of unplanned leaves of absence. Medical Science Educator, 29, 1003-1011. https://doi-org.proxy.lib.umich.edu/10.1007/s40670-019-00792-4
- 3. Flynn, M.M., Monteiro, K., George, P., Tunkel, A.R. (2020). Assessing food insecurity in medical students. Family Medicine, 52(7), 512-513.
- 4. Leung, W-C. (2009). Differentiation and undergraduate medical education. Medical Teacher, 23(1), 88-89. https://doi.org/10.1080/01421590150214636
- 5. Pisaniello, M.S., Asahina, A.D., Bacchi, S., Wagner, M., Perry, S.W., Wong, M.L., & Licinio, J. (2019). Effect of medical student debt on mental health, academic performance, and specialty choice: A systematic review. BMJ Open, e029980. doi:10.1136/bmjopen-2019-029980.
- 6. Stake, R.E. (1995). The art of case study research. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kgrob@med.umich.edu

Building Champions for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Suzan Kamel-ElSayed, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Berkley Browne, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Deirdre Pitts, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Robin Rivest, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Kevin Roby, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Ann Voorheis-Sargent, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Tracey Taylor, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To describe the creation of an innovative Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) initiative called the Diversity Champion Program.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The Diversity Champion Program is informed by medical and higher education research that analyzed the prevalence and impact of gender discrimination, racial discrimination, and sexual harassment. The program aligns with the recommendations identified in the holistic student affairs framework. The intent behind this design was to go beyond awareness, and to effectively engage the institutional transformation process.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Diversity Champions serve the medical school's mission and support diversity efforts across the University and the Health System. To this end, we defined five stages for the development of the Diversity Champion Program, including (1) define the roles of a champion; (2) identify and recruit champion candidates; (3) develop a champion training program; (4) train the champions; (5) assign roles to champions who will act on behalf of OUWB.

Outcomes:

Building champions that include residents, students from all 4 years, staff and faculty will help to enhance the learning environment with respect to inclusiveness, advise administration on current issues pertaining to DEI, serve as a resource for stakeholders on relevant issues, and facilitate opportunities for successes of underrepresented populations. Following recruitment and screening of applications, 25 resident, student, staff, and faculty champions have been selected.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Though our champions, this program will facilitate change at all levels. To reduce potential selection bias, we developed and applied a scoring rubric for objective selection. Time limitations exist for implementation as this is not anyone's primary role.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Program effectiveness will be evaluated one year post implementation. Accountability of the champions by attending training and participation is essential. This program is largely transferrable to other medical education programs; however, program success relies on support from administration (and in our case, the DEI Council).

References:

- 1. Berray, M. 2019. Campus partnerships for promoting equity, diversity and inclusion: A case study of the NCBI Model for reducing prejudice and intergroup conflict at Florida State University Libraries. J Acad Librarianship. 45:102014. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.acalib.2019.03.002
- 2. Grieco, C. A., Naha, U., Palermo, A. G., Currence, P., Teraguchi, D. H. (2019). Promoting and supporting diversity in medical school: The case for holistic student affairs. CGSA-SGSA-COSR Joint Regional Meeting. Louisville, KY.
- 3. Hardeman, R., Perry, S., Phelan, S. M., Prezedworski, J. M., & Burgess, D. J. (2016). Racial identity and mental well-being: The experience of African American medical students. Journal of Racial & Ethnic Health Disparities, 3(2), 250-258.

For more information about this abstract please contact: tataylor2@oakland.edu

Zooming through Milestones: Adapting a Preclerkship Pediatric Developmental Milestone Experience to Virtual

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Elizabeth Van Opstal, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Marylouse Wilkerson, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Christina Chen, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Adam Isbiroglu, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Michele De Leon Jauregui, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Reid Davison, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Pre clerkship students nationally rated comfort with pediatric clinical skills below most other clerkships.1 At our institution, students previously rotated through a daycare to asses developmental milestones; this was not possible due to COVID. In order to practice assessing milestones and HEADSS assessments, we developed an interactive Zoom session, facilitated by clinicians, and senior medical students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Develop virtual preclerkship experience and resources to provide experience assessing developmental milestones. Provide virtual practice with HEADSSS assessments.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Faculty and students were provided with pre-course materials, including developmental milestones, reference charts, and an article on HEADSSS assessment. M2 students, (N= 150) were divided into breakout groups, with either a faculty member or an M4 assigned to each group. During the session, students reviewed videos of faculty's children demonstrating milestones. They then identified the skills demonstrated and ascertained the children's ages. Students also practiced interviewing a "teenage patient" using the HEADSSS assessment. The session culminated with a faculty member's live child on zoom, where children demonstrated milestones.

Outcomes:

Overall students rated the session very highly. The aggregate positive score in five quantifiable categories: 97.5% (negative score: 2.5%). The overall quality of the module was excellent: 5.5 (1-Strongly disagree, 6 strongly agree). Survey response rate was 62% (N of 79/127). Representative comments included: I learned a lot about the peds exam and milestones (even virtually). I appreciated all the work that went into making the videos.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of the curriculum included interacting with attending children, especially having "live" children, and personalizing faculty and their families. This unique activity potentially facilitated deeper connection to memorize milestones. Limitations included availability of children, and dedicated time for pediatricians to plan and facilitate sessions. During some sessions, streaming of videos was slow.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This format could be easily shared with other institutions.

References:

1. Held M, Gibbs K, Lewin L, Weinstein A. Do pre-clinical experiences adequately prepare students for their pediatrics clerkship: A needs assessment to inform curricular development. Med Sci Educ. 2017;27(3):515-521. doi: 10.1007/s40670-017-0422-4.

Links to our guides and videos:

https://docs.google.com/document/d/107dmK8ZmblCqIEwO8BwMso4KUj-voqKoRw8weCKRmMI/edit?usp=sharing

For more information about this abstract please contact: <u>bethpeterson2@yahoo.com</u>

<u>Incorporating Spiritual Health into Pre-Clinical Training at Wayne State</u> University School of Medicine

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Gabrielle Barthel, Wayne State University School of Medicine Nakia Allen, Wayne State University School of Medicine Ralph Williams, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To better prepare future physicians to identify and address spirituality-related social determinants of health, the first year (M1) curriculum at Wayne State University incorporated a virtual three hour Spirituality in Medicine event.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The majority of U.S. adults believe spiritual health impacts personal well-being and many want their physicians to discuss their spirituality.1-3 Physician surveys, however, identified lack of training in spiritual assessments as a major barrier to addressing patient spirituality in a clinical setting.3-4 Early engagement with this topic supplements development of student communication skills in preparation for both communication-focused STEP 1 questions and participation in more holistic patient care.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This event included an introductory lecture,5 panel Q & A with healthcare providers and clergy, and three group breakout sessions featuring discussion of simulated patient cases. To assess student knowledge of and preparedness in addressing patients' spiritual needs based on NIDCSME competencies,6 pre- and post-surveys employing 5 point Likhert scales were distributed to the participants. Surveys underwent qualitative and frequency analysis, with 291 pre- and 271 post-event responses.

Outcomes:

Following the event, the proportion of students reporting at least 4 out of 5 confidence increased in discussing patient spirituality with differing beliefs (36% to 64%), referring a patient to spiritual care (37% to 79%), engaging with a spiritual care team (48% to 81%), and identifying whether a patient is in a spiritual crisis (0% to 59%) on the same scale. Likewise, 75% of students strongly agreed spiritual care is medically relevant compared to 47% prior to the event.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Smaller breakout sessions and increased focus on interactive case studies could enhance student participation, but the event clearly increased students' confidence in and appreciation for addressing patients' spirituality.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This event's format is adaptable to a variety of controversial topics and successfully engages both students and local healthcare providers.

References:

- 1. Saguil A, Phelps K. The Spiritual Assessment. American Family Physician. 2012;86(6):546-550. doi:10.1037/e519712004-001.
- 2. Sajja A, Puchalski C. Training Physicians as Healers. AMA Journal of Ethics. 2018;20(7):E655-663.

doi:10.1001/amajethics.2018.655.

- 3. Talley JA, Magie R. The Integration of the "Spirituality in Medicine" Curriculum Into the Osteopathic Communication Curriculum at Kansas City University of Medicine and Biosciences. Academic Medicine. 2014;89(1):43-47. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000000078.
- 4. Atkinson HG, Fleenor D, Learner SM, Poliandro E, Truglio J. Teaching Third-Year Medical Students to Address Patients' Spiritual Needs in the Surgery/Anesthesiology Clerkship. MedEdPORTAL. 2018:1-13. doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10784. 5. Stoller L, Fowler M. Spiritual Histories: Putting Religio-Cultural Competence into Practice. MedEdPORTAL. 2015. doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10029
- 6. Puchalski CM, Blatt B, Kogan M, Butler A. Spirituality and Health: The Development of a Field. Academic Medicine. 2014;89(1):10-16. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000000033.

For more information about this abstract please contact: gs9455@wayne.edu

Survey Assessing the Attitudes and Knowledge of Programs on Gender Equity

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Miloni Shah, Wayne State University School of Medicine Beena Sood, Detroit Medical Center Kate Sheppard, McLaren Macomb Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study is to survey program directors, faculty, administration, and current and future physicians in training affiliated with Southeast Michigan hospital systems and medical schools about improvements to gender equity in medical training programs.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

As of 2020, more than half of medical students in the United States are women. However, numerous barriers that negatively affect women's opportunities in the medical field. These factors include a lack of support of maternity leave and childbearing, absence of mentorship programs, workplace harassment, and gendered implicit biases. Residency and fellowship programs are a key part of medical training where women must be given the agency and opportunity to grow in their field.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Participants completed an anonymous survey. The questions were adopted from the ACP Recommendations for Gender Equity and Family Friendly Practices in American Pediatrics' Annual Survey of Graduating Residents. Program directors and administrators were asked about their awareness and implementation of gender equity policies in their programs. Fellows/residents were asked about benefits that were offered during their training, and what they considered to be important for future programs. Medical students were asked to rank how important certain factors/benefits were in selecting a future training program, and offer recommendations to improve gender equity.

Outcomes:

A total of 580 responses were collected. Initial results indicate an importance of proper understanding and utilization of reporting procedures for harassment, inclusion of female members on job search committees, flexible rotational and daily scheduling, and care for ill children. Future recommendations emphasized improvement in parental leave, mentorship, and implicit bias training.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

A strength of this project is that it encompasses a wide participant pool that span all levels of the medical education realm. A limitation is the number of total participants from different specialties.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This survey can be easily adopted for any institution or hospital system.

References:

- 1. Butkus R, Serchen J, Moyer DV, Bornstein SS, Hingle ST; Health and Public Policy Committee of the American College of Physicians. Achieving Gender Equity in Physician Compensation and Career Advancement: A Position Paper of the American College of Physicians. Ann Intern Med. 2018;168(10):721–723. doi:10.7326/M17-3438
- 2. Mast MS, Hall JA, Cronauer CK, Cousin G. Perceived dominance in physicians: Are female physicians under scrutiny? Patient Education and Counseling. 2011;83(2):174-179. doi:10.1016/j.pec.2010.06.030
- 3. Snyder RA, Bills JL, Phillips SE, Tarpley MJ, Tarpley JL. Specific interventions to increase women's interest in surgery: A comprehensive survey. Journal of the American College of Surgeons. 2008;207(3):942-947.

doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2008.06.231

4. Simone A, Block L, LaVine N. A Call to Action: Support Our Female Internal Medicine Residents. SGIM Forum. 2019;42(6):1-2. https://www.sgim.org/FileLibrary/SGIM/Resource Library/Forum/2019/SGIM-Jun-1.pdf.

5. Berkowitz CD, Frintner MP, Cull WL. Pediatric Resident Perceptions of Family-Friendly Benefits. Academic Pediatrics. 2010;10(5):360-366. doi:10.1016/j.acap.2010.06.013

6. AAP.org. 2019. Annual Survey Of Graduating Residents. [online] Available at:

For more information about this abstract please contact: fv5828@wayne.edu

<u>Virtual Room of Horrors: Transforming a quality improvement education</u> <u>program to a virtual setting with the goal of early introduction of quality</u> <u>improvement and awareness of patient safety and medical errors to medical</u> students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Megan Walsh, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Jie Chi, Detroit Medical Center, Wayne State University School of Medicine, John D. Dingell Veterans Affaires Medical Center

Omid Yazdanpanah, Detroit Medical Center

Caleb Sokolowski, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Lea Monday, Henry Ford Hospital, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Mowyad Khalid, Detroit Medical Center

Diane Levine, Wayne State University School of Medicine/Detroit Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This initiative was designed to teach medical students Quality Improvement (QI) foundations and introduce patient safety considerations while transitioning an in-person event to the virtual space.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical error is the third leading cause of mortality (1). As a QI philosophy, Kaizen suggests that everyone in a system is responsible for recognizing, suggesting and implementing improvements (2). Medical students are a member of the healthcare team; however their awareness and knowledge of QI is lacking. We adapted our annual in-person event to a virtual setting using the Plan, Do, Study, Act (PDSA) method in compliance with social distancing.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

An existing in-person event based on Dr. J. Farnan's Patient Safety Room of Horrors was updated for the virtual space by staging and photographing a mock patient safety Room of Horrors, creating a Qualtrics based case, and delivering the case, discussion, and debrief with QI lecture through a synchronous Zoom format (3). The study used a quasi-experimental design of pre-test/post-test repeated measurements. QI Knowledge was tested by 5 questions focused on recognizing HRO and utilizing QI tools. Willingness and confidence in participating in QI was measured by Likert Scale. Two-sample t tests were performed.

Outcomes:

Participant knowledge was evaluated by the mean percentage of correct answers; a large improvement in the 5-question quiz for QI knowledge was seen (p=0.00003). Participants reported higher levels of overall QI self-efficacy after completing the program (P= .0004) Participants reported higher likelihood of participating in a QI project after completing the program (P= .003)

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The case and debrief can be delivered effectively while maintaining student engagement and interest in QI. We have not yet assessed the long-term implications of delivering content in this format.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Many programs can use the format described to transition in-person events to virtual events, throughout the pandemic and beyond.

References:

- 1. Makary Martin A, Daniel Michael. Medical error—the third leading cause of death in the US BMJ 2016; 353:i2139
- 2. Graban, M. and Swartz, J., 2013. Executive Guide To Healthcare Kaizen. Portland, USA: CRC Press.
- 3. Farnan, J., Gaffney, S., Poston, J., Slawinski, K., Cappaert, M., Kamin, B. and Arora, V., 2015. Patient safety room of horrors: a novel method to assess medical students and entering residents' ability to identify hazards of hospitalisation. BMJ Quality & Safety, 25(3), pp.153-158.

For more information about this abstract please contact: gt1993@wayne.edu

<u>The Knowledge In Clinical Clerkships Course (KICC) – Continuing Clinical Education During COVID-19 and Considerations for the Future</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Jennifer Schwartz, Indiana University School of Medicine Neelum Safdar, Indiana University School of Medicine Paul Ko, Indiana University School of Medicine Ramya Kumaran, Indiana University School of Medicine Mary Beth Sayre, Indiana University School of Medicine Bradley Allen, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In 2020, Indiana University School of Medicine (IUSM) sought to prepare incoming clerkship students for their clinical duties, recognizing that rotations would need to be shortened to maintain student schedules.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

IUSM is a 9-campus school system with 364 students per year. In March 2020, all student clinical rotations were stopped due to COVID-19. IUSM created an entire curriculum which included the KICC Start course designed to prepare incoming clerkship students for their clinical responsibilities in shortened clinical clerkships.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

IUSM created a virtual online course which covered the Family Medicine, Medicine, Neurology, Obstetrics and Gynecology, Pediatrics, Psychiatry and Surgery core topics over a 5-week period. Using Zoom® and TopHat® technologies, clerkship directors created interactive sessions for the entire class cohort to enhance medical knowledge prior to clinical rotations. The front-loading of information permitted increased clinical emphasis during their shortened clerkships. Following each lecture block, students evaluated the impact on medical knowledge and selected which topics were mastered and which remained confusing. This permitted clerkship directors to guide their teaching within the clinical clerkships to meet students' self-identified needs.

Outcomes:

Following each block, 78-94.1% of students strongly agreed/agreed that their medical knowledge was enhanced. Within each specialty, students identified which topics were clearest and most confusing to assist clerkship directors. NBME scores have been tracked and are comparable this academic year compared to years prior, despite reduced clinical exposure.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This pilot showed that a comparable innovative curriculum can be implemented across a 9-campus system despite disruptions and an unconventional timeline. A "flipped clerkship" model helped guide clerkships in their core topic delivery. However, this year has been limited by COVID-19 and clerkship shortening; this will have to be further evaluated within the standard clerkship model.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This model is easily applied at other institutions and may assist others with multiple campus systems.

- References: 1. Am J Surg. 2015 Jan;209(1):145-51
- 2. Med Ed Online 2017;22(1):1395679.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jeschwar@iu.edu

NEGEA Innovation Abstracts

<u>Financial Literacy for Students – A Crucial Tool for Success in the Medical</u> Profession

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Martin Penn, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Steven Henick, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Madhumitha Rajagopal, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Rachel Mirsky, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Rivka Thurm, Albert Einstein College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

By the end of the course, students will demonstrate increased knowledge and skills in financial literacy.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Financial literacy among medical students is low, which can have long-lasting consequences. Students will gain enhanced ability to engage in healthcare policy and lead medical practices or healthcare organizations, and create a pathway for improved personal/ family well-being and security.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A small-group (fifteen 4th-year medical students) spend approximately two hours per day in lecture / discussions led by a faculty member who is also a Certified Public Accountant. Some sessions include guest speakers and others involve interactive problem-solving activities. The different topics during the 4-week course include asset protection, employment, banking, investing, retirement, advisors, malpractice and risk management, contract negotiations, billing and coding medical records, income taxes and about 3 hours of discussions dedicated to student loans led by the Assistant Dean for Student Finance.

Outcomes:

All students successfully completed the final project, a personal 5-year budget plan, starting with their first year of residency training, incorporating into their budgets the concepts discussed during the class.

This is an unsolicited quote from a student who took the course: "I've often found it difficult to parse out what information is driven by data vs. opinion and if the information being shared is applicable to me or even has my best interest in mind. Most important to me is that you've created a safe space for us to be greedy and ask the questions that we truly care about."

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This program is currently limited to a small group of students who chose to take this elective, and may have had more interest in the topic. Ideally, a topic of this importance would be incorporated into the required curriculum, so all students would benefit from the content.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Nothing proprietary is discussed in this course, making it easily transferable.

References:

1. Mizell, J, Thrush, C, Steelman, S. The Business of Medicine: A Course to Address the Deficit in Financial Knowledge of Fourth-

 $2. Year\ Medical\ Students.\ (https://www.physicianleaders.org/news/the-business-of-medicine-a-course-to-address-the-deficit-in-financial-knowledge-of-fourth-year-medical-students).$

For more information about this abstract please contact: martin.penn@einsteinmed.org

<u>Impact of Role-Play on Provider Knowledge and Communication Skills of HPV</u> Disease and Vaccines.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Theresa Fiorito, NYU Long Island School of Medicine Leonard Krilov, NYU Langone Long Island Hospital Jeannine Nonaillada, NYU Long Island School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This workshop aimed to improve provider knowledge, skills, and attitudes towards human papillomavirus (HPV) disease and vaccination.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Discussing the human papillomavirus (HPV) vaccine with parents of young children can be challenging for clinicians. Barriers include parental beliefs, strength and quality of clinician recommendations, physician knowledge, and provider comfort levels with discussing sexuality. These areas can be improved using a role-play exercise focusing on practical application of knowledge.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

An interactive workshop consisting of a primary role-play session was implemented: participants took turns playing a "concerned parent" or "provider," addressing common concerns about HPV. This was followed by a 30-minute didactic lecture and a second role-play session to practice skills. All participants completed pre- and post-questionnaires assessing knowledge and attitudes regarding HPV disease and vaccines.

Outcomes:

This workshop was done with 28 pediatric residents and medical students. Responses given in the second role-play showed significant improvement in participants' ability to accurately pitch the HPV vaccine to parents (all p values < 0.02) Participant knowledge improved from pre- to post-intervention (33.6% to 100%, p <0.0025, based on average score) as did their self-perceived abilities (3.33 to 4.37, p<0.035, average score based on a 1-5 Likert Scale).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: An interactive approach allowed for active learning, which proved advantageous in retaining knowledge. The opportunity to immediately practice furthered skill development, and the setting of pairs complimented adult learning theory, as learners may have felt intimidated by a large group and being "put on the spot."

Limitations: A small "n" may have led to an overestimation in the workshop's effectiveness. Knowledge and self-confidence may decline over time; booster sessions may longitudinally assess how well study participants retained information.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Using provided supplemental guides and materials, this workshop is feasible and generalizable to a wide variety of educational settings.

References:

1. HPV vaccine recommendations. Pediatrics. 2012;129(3):602-605.

- 2. Petrosky E, Bocchini JA, Hariri S, et al. Use of 9-valent human papillomavirus (HPV) vaccine: Updated HPV vaccination recommendations of the advisory committee on immunization practices. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2015;64(11):300-304.
- 3. Gilkey MB, McRee A. Provider communication about HPV vaccination: A systematic review. Human Vaccines & Immunotherapeutics. 2016;12(6):1454-1468.
- 4. Johnson KL, Lin M, Cabral H, Kazis LE, Katz IT. Variation in human papillomavirus vaccine uptake and acceptability between female and male adolescents and their caregivers. Journal of Community Health. 2017;42(3):522-532.
- 5. Espinosa CM, Marshall GS, Woods CR, et al. Missed opportunities for human papillomavirus vaccine initiation in an insured adolescent female population. J Pediatric Infect Dis Soc. 2017;6(4):360-365. doi: 10.1093/jpids/pix067 [doi].
- 6. Kornides ML, McRee AL, Gilkey MB. Parents who decline HPV vaccination: Who later accepts and why? Acad Pediatr. 2018;18(2S):S37-S43. doi: S1876-2859(17)30367-4 [pii].
- 7. Shay LA, Baldwin AS, Betts AC, et al. Parent-provider communication of HPV vaccine hesitancy. Pediatrics. 2018;141(6):10.
- 8. Kornides ML, Fontenot HB, McRee AL, Panozzo CA, Gilkey MB. Associations between parents' satisfaction with provider communication and HPV vaccination behaviors. Vaccine. 2018;36(19):2637-2642.
- 9. Pellman H, Brown B. Parental reasons for acceptance or refusal of human papillomavirus vaccine in a southern california pediatric practice. Pediatr Infect Dis J. 2016;35(1):119-120.
- 10. Wiley R, Shelal Z, Bernard C, Urbauer D, Toy E, Ramondetta L. Team-based learning module for undergraduate medical education: A module focused on the human papilloma virus to increase willingness to vaccinate. J Cancer Educ. 2017.
- 11. Rachel W, Zeena S, Carolyn B, Diana U, Eugene T, Lois R. Human papillomavirus: From basic science to clinical management for preclinical medical students. MedEdPORTAL. 2018;14.
- 12. Allison C, Deborah L. A flipped classroom and case-based curriculum to prepare medical students for vaccine-related conversations with parents. MedEdPORTAL. 2017;13.
- 13. Fu LY, Bonhomme LA, Cooper SC, Joseph JG, Zimet GD. Educational interventions to increase HPV vaccination acceptance: A systematic review. Vaccine. 2014;32(17):1901-1920.
- 14. Kornides ML, Garrell JM, Gilkey MB. Content of web-based continuing medical education about HPV vaccination. Vaccine. 2017;35(35 Pt B):4510-4514.
- 15. Taylor DCM, Hamdy H. Adult learning theories: Implications for learning and teaching in medical education: AMEE guide no.
- 83. Med Teach. 2013;35(11):1561.

For more information about this abstract please contact: theresa.fiorito@nyulangone.org

<u>Challenges and solutions for creating an inclusive curriculum: A reporting system for identifying misuse of race, gender, and other social constructs in medical education</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Sarita Warrier, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Kristina Monteiro, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Luba Dumenco, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Paul George, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Roxanne Vrees, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Steven Rougas, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University (AMS) created a system to identify, track and respond to the misuse of social constructs in the formal curriculum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Students at AMS have reviewed lecture slides in the pre-clerkship curriculum to identify the use of race without context to describe factors contributing to disparities (1). In response to their findings, AMS created a real-time tracking system to record and respond to similar instances in the curriculum.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In 2017, AMS created a confidential reporting system for tracking instances of "Curricular Opportunities" -- the inappropriate use of race, gender, and other social constructs. Curricular opportunities are submitted by students through a Qualtrics form. The medical education leadership team reviews each submission, records it in a database, and includes responses. Aggregate data is reviewed by the Curriculum Committee and students receive summaries.

Outcomes:

Since 2017, students submitted 130 unique curricular opportunity forms. Of those, 59 relate to inappropriate use of race, 26 relate to gender, and 19 relate to disability. Seven reports did not meet the definition of curricular opportunity. Nineteen reports were classified as other miscellaneous topics.

Common actions taken to address these curricular opportunities include: discussions with course leaders or other teaching faculty; the removal of inappropriate information from lecture slides or handouts; and, in rare cases, no longer inviting a faculty member to teach students.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include the use of accessible survey software; coordinated administrative response to curricular opportunities; identifying patterns in aggregate data; and, holding faculty accountable for the appropriate use of social constructs.

Limitations include a single institution's experience; inability for closed-loop communication with anonymous reports.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A reporting system using accessible survey software can be designed to suit any institution. A

coordinated response team that includes key stakeholders in curricular and student affairs, alongside faculty development, is key to successful implementation.

References:

1. Tsai, Jennifer; Ucik, Laura; Baldwin, Nell; Hasslinger, Christopher; George, Paul. Race Matters? Examining and Rethinking Race Portrayal in Preclinical Medical Education, Academic Medicine: July 2016 - Volume 91 - Issue 7 - p 916-920

For more information about this abstract please contact: sarita_warrier@brown.edu

Can an online discussion forum be used for asynchronous reflective practice to debrief clinical experiences during a medical student rotation in emergency medicine?

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Kiran Pandit, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Lauren Titone, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Daniel Egan, Harvard Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To give medical students in an Emergency Medicine elective an opportunity to asynchronously debrief clinical experiences via an online discussion forum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Discussion-based learning may improve practical clinical knowledge and learner satisfaction in medical students, compared to lecture-based or solitary learning.[1-3] Students have used online discussion to reflect on and share cognitive aspects of clinical experiences, leading to supportive interactions, but with less deep affective reflection.[4] Within Emergency Medicine, reflection serves to allow learners to process unexpected, stressful situations.[5] A digital learning platform for logging "clinical pearls" and brief "learning moments" in the Emergency Department was found to encourage reflection and sharing of knowledge and experiences within a community of practice.[6]

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

52 Columbia University medical students were invited to post written reflections of clinical experiences during their one-week Emergency Medicine elective, between May 13, 2019 and October 30, 2020. Students posted reflections to a HIPAA-compliant online discussion forum using the Courseworks(c) platform. Peers and faculty were encouraged to respond. Posts were not assessed for grading.

Outcomes:

49/52 of students and 2/2 faculty members participated. Of 346 posts total, half were by students. Students averaged 3.27 posts per week. The majority of students' posts contained deep affective reflection, in addition to cognitive clinical content.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: This innovation is simple to execute, with minimal expense. Choice of location and timing of participation is important given asynchronous clinical shifts. Limitations: Effectiveness is limited by the faculty facilitator's availability for participation, as well as debriefing skill, and by students' experience in reflection.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This framework for asynchronous debriefing of clinical experiences is quite feasible and transferable, given the universal adoption of online classroom platforms and availability of training in reflection and debriefing. Further study is needed to understand the themes raised by students, as well as student satisfaction and debriefing effectiveness, in order to inform future curricula.

References:

1. Zhao B, Potter DD. Comparison of Lecture-Based Learning vs Discussion-Based Learning in Undergraduate Medical Students. J

Surg Educ. 2016;73(2):250-257.

- 2. Ravindran R, Kashyap M, Lilis L, Vivekanantham S, Phoenix G. Evaluation of an online medical teaching forum. Clin Teach. 2014;11(4):274-278.
- 3. Worm BS, Jensen K. Does peer learning or higher levels of e-learning improve learning abilities? A randomized controlled trial. Med Educ Online. 2013;18:21877.
- 4. Gillingham K, Eggleton K, Goodyear-Smith F. Is Reflective Learning Visible in Online Discussion Forums for Medical Students on General Practice Placements? A Qualitative Study. Teach Learn Med. 2020;32(4):434-441.
- 5.Bernard AW, Gorgas D, Greenberger S, Jacques A, Khandelwal S. The use of reflection in emergency medicine education. Acad Emerg Med. 2012;19(8):978-982.
- 6. Sheng AY, Chu A, Biancarelli D, Drainoni ML, Sullivan R, Schneider JI. A Novel Web-Based Experiential Learning Platform for Medical Students (Learning Moment): Qualitative Study. JMIR Med Educ. 2018;4(2):e10657.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kbp9@cumc.columbia.edu

The use of deliberate practice and multi-source feedback to develop residents' feedback skills

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Laura Cardella, University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry Wendi Cross, University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry Valerie Lang, University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry Christopher Mooney, University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this innovation is to develop psychiatric residents' skills in providing feedback to medical students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Psychiatry residents are entrusted with providing feedback to medical students on their psychiatric interviewing skills. However, few residents enter postgraduate training with well-developed teaching skills or the understanding of their role in medical student education.1 Although residents-as-teachers interventions have been studied, very few studies have used video-recorded encounters to assess the acquisition of feedback skills.2

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A "Residents As Teachers" program was implemented with second year Psychiatry residents to develop their feedback skills. The resident observed a psychiatric interview performed by a medical student during their psychiatry clerkship. The resident's feedback encounter with the medical student was videorecorded. After the feedback encounter, the resident and medical student completed an assessment. A faculty member also viewed the videorecording, completed an assessment, and met with the resident to provide feedback on the resident's feedback skills. The faculty-of-resident, student-of-resident, and resident self-assessments were modified from a validated feedback scale.3 The exercise is repeated three time points during residents' second year to promote deliberate practice.

Outcomes:

The average feedback scores from all three sources for the residents improved over time, with the largest improvement between sessions two and three. 100% of residents reported on the post-survey that three sessions "just right" for their learning. Resident pre- and post- surveys demonstrated an increase in confidence with teaching and giving feedback. Medical students reported satisfaction with the experience.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The use of videorecorded feedback encounters as a tool for developing feedback skills promotes deliberate practice. One potential limitation is faculty time to review videorecordings and meet with residents. However, the investment in important feedback skills may have a multiplicative impact, both for current and future learners.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The assessment tools and methods are easily transferrable to other training programs, including other non-physician programs.

References:

- 1. Louie AK, Beresin EV, Coverdale J, et al. Residents as teachers. Acad Psychiatry. 2013;37(1):1 5.
- 2. Bree KK, Whicker SH, Fromme HB, et al. Residents-as-teachers publications: what can programs learn from the literature when starting a new or refining an established curriculum? J Grad Med Educ. 2014: 237-248.
- 3. Halman S, Dudek N, Wood T, et al. Direct observation of clinical skills feedback scale: development and validity evidence, Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 2016: 28:4, 385-394.

For more information about this abstract please contact: laura cardella@urmc.rochester.edu

<u>Integration of Basic Science and Clinical Care Using Mechanism of Disease Maps</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract
Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Todd Cassese, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Steven Henick, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Howard Steinman, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Richard Feinn, Frank H. Netter MD School of Medicine at Quinnipiac University Amanda Beck, Albert Einstein College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Medical students struggle applying pre-clerkship learning to patient care. Our innovation aimed to facilitate learner's cognitive integration of basic and clinical sciences in a focused concept map called a Mechanism-of-Disease (MoD) Map to improve clinical reasoning and adaptive expertise.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Cognitive integration occurs when learners apply basic science concepts directly to patient care. Learners demonstrate adaptive expertise when they process a clinical problem, identify what they don't know, and search for information to fill gaps and re-apply that knowledge to patient care. We designed two sessions, in Y1 and Y3, to improve cognitive integration and facilitate adaptive expertise through a concept mapping technique linking basic and clinical sciences.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In the Y1 activity, students worked in small groups creating an MoD Map for Vitamin B12 Deficiency, visually linking inciting factors leading to low B12 and clinical features. In the Y3 activity, students in a transition-to-clerkship course finished a partially completed MoD Map for acute rhinosinusitis after identifying key clinical features. They subsequently identified therapeutic options based on their expected mechanisms of action.

Outcomes:

We conducted a mixed methods assessment that demonstrated student satisfaction, improved learning and retention through collaborative concept mapping, increased learner confidence linking basic science and clinical care, and improved confidence in differential diagnosis and management plans for these clinical conditions.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Analyses indicated that student self-perceived learning and confidence benefit from the organizing framework in MoD Maps and that diagnostic and management decisions are improved. We have not yet gathered data from clerkship directors or assessments of clinical reasoning to know if the confidence learners gain translates into improved oral presentations and management abilities.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

These sessions required no new personnel or financial resources and were implemented within a large medical school class. The relatively few facilitators needed, the self-directed and team-oriented approach make these sessions highly transferable to other institutions.

References:

1. Brauer DG, Ferguson KJ. The integrated curriculum in medical education: AMEE Guide No. 96. Medical teacher. 2015;37(4):312-322.

- 2. Cheung JJH, Kulasegaram KM, Woods NN, Brydges R. Why Content and Cognition Matter: Integrating Conceptual Knowledge to Support Simulation-Based Procedural Skills Transfer. J Gen Intern Med. 2019;34(6):969-977.
- 3. Kulasegaram K, Manzone JC, Ku C, Skye A, Wadey V, Woods NN. Cause and Effect: Testing a Mechanism and Method for the Cognitive Integration of Basic Science. Acad Med. 2015;90(11 Suppl):S63-69.
- 4. Cutrer WB, Castro D, Roy KM, Turner TL. Use of an expert concept map as an advance organizer to improve understanding of respiratory failure. Medical teacher. 2011;33(12):1018-1026.
- 5. Kulasegaram KM, Martimianakis MA, Mylopoulos M, Whitehead CR, Woods NN. Cognition before curriculum: rethinking the integration of basic science and clinical learning. Acad Med. 2013;88(10):1578-1585.
- 6. Bixler GM, Brown A, Way D, Ledford C, Mahan JD. Collaborative Concept Mapping and Critical Thinking in Fourth-Year Medical Students. Clin Pediatr (Phila). 2015;54(9):833-839.
- 7. Bandiera G, Kuper A, Mylopoulos M, et al. Back from basics: integration of science and practice in medical education. Med Educ. 2018;52(1):78-85.
- 8. Lisk K, Agur AM, Woods NN. Exploring cognitive integration of basic science and its effect on diagnostic reasoning in novices. Perspect Med Educ. 2016;5(3):147-153.
- 9. Croskerry P. Adaptive expertise in medical decision making. Medical teacher. 2018;40(8):803-808.
- 10. Kua J, Lim WS, Teo W, Edwards RA. A scoping review of adaptive expertise in education. Medical teacher. 2020:1-30.
- 11. Novak JDC, A.J. Theoretical Origins of Concept Maps, How to Construct Them, and Uses in Education. Reflecting Education. 2007;3(1):29-42.
- 12. Berglund A. What's in a Word? Concept mapping: a graphical tool to reinforce learning of epidemiological concepts. J Epidemiol Community Health. 2015;69(12):1232-1236.
- 13. West DC, Pomeroy JR, Park JK, Gerstenberger EA, Sandoval J. Critical thinking in graduate medical education: A role for concept mapping assessment? JAMA. 2000;284(9):1105-1110.
- 14. Bala S, Dhasmana DC, Kalra J, Kohli S, Sharma T. Role of concept map in teaching general awareness and pharmacotherapy of HIV/AIDS among second professional medical students. Indian J Pharmacol. 2016;48(Suppl 1):S37-S40.
- 15. Bhusnurmath SR, Bhusnurmath B, Goyal S, Hafeez S, Abugroun A, Okpe J. Concept map as an adjunct tool to teach pathology. Indian J Pathol Microbiol. 2017;60(2):226-231.
- 16. Rendas AB, Fonseca M, Pinto PR. Toward meaningful learning in undergraduate medical education using concept maps in a PBL pathophysiology course. Adv Physiol Educ. 2006;30(1):23-29.
- 17. Veronese C, Richards JB, Pernar L, Sullivan AM, Schwartzstein RM. A randomized pilot study of the use of concept maps to enhance problem-based learning among first-year medical students. Medical teacher. 2013;35(9):e1478-1484.
- 18. Gruppen LD. Clinical Reasoning: Defining It, Teaching It, Assessing It, Studying It. West J Emerg Med. 2017;18(1):4-7.
- 19. Kinchin I, Hay D. Using concept maps to optimize the composition of collaborative student groups: a pilot study. J Adv Nurs. 2005;51(2):182-187.
- 20. Hopper MK, Anderson MA, Lipp SN. Mapping the Nephron Exercise Incorporates Multiple Learning Strategies. MedEdPORTAL: the journal of teaching and learning resources. 2017;13:10635.
- 21. Barry DS, Dent JM, Hankin M, et al. The Clinical Anatomy and Imaging Laboratory: Vertical Integration in the Preclerkship Curriculum. MedEdPORTAL: the journal of teaching and learning resources. 2019;15:10824.
- 22. Suter B, Riedel H. Problem-Based Learning: Cervical Adenocarcinoma Three-Session Case for First-Year Medical Students-Patient Minnie Pauls. MedEdPORTAL: the journal of teaching and learning resources. 2017;13:10561.
- 23. Schmidt HG, Rikers RM. How expertise develops in medicine: knowledge encapsulation and illness script formation. Med Educ. 2007;41(12):1133-1139.
- 24. Martinez IL, Ilangovan K, Whisenant EB, Pedoussaut M, Lage OG. Breast Health Disparities: A Primer for Medical Students. MedEdPORTAL: the journal of teaching and learning resources. 2016;12:10471.

For more information about this abstract please contact: todd.cassese@einsteinmed.org

<u>Prioritizing restorative justice: shifting focus to repairing harm and healing community within a medical school Honor Code Consult Service</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Michael Denham, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Kathleen Goodwin, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons A. Nikolai von Krusenstiern, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Craig Blinderman, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Trudi Cloyd, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Hetty Cunningham, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Alyson Fox, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Samuel Quiah, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In 2020 authors engaged in a task force to consider redesign of our school's honor code and student-led honor code consultation service. This service aims to process student concerns about lapses in professionalism. We aimed to address the student behaviors that negatively impact the preclinical and clinical environments by introducing restorative justice principles.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical school is a time of tremendous growth, during which students form the foundation for their professional identity. Many students require support from colleagues to reflect on and reframe their academic and interpersonal behaviors. Prior engagement with the honor code consult service was limited due to its punitive language, which did not reflect our community's values. Restorative justice principles, which prioritize repairing harm over assigning blame and punishment (1), have been used in a wide variety of educational settings. We are unaware of similar approaches in other medical schools (2-6).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A task force of 7 students and 10 faculty members met weekly throughout the summer and fall of 2020 to revise the honor code consult service. The group considered restorative justice practices from other institutions, scholarly reports, and student focus group data.

Outcomes:

The task force developed an algorithm to respond to student concerns about academic and interpersonal professionalism (7). The proposal includes training in restorative justice and conflict mediation for consult service members.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We present an innovative example of how restorative justice principles can promote an equitable and collaborative learning environment and lead toward positive professional identity development. As a pilot program, its effectiveness will be evaluated following this academic year.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Restorative justice principles are easily adoptable in medical education. These principles are especially relevant as our community works to repair structural inequities and breaches of trust.

References:

- 1) Wright, M. (1999). Restoring Respect for Justice. Winchester.
- 2) Acosta, D., & Karp, D. R. (2018). Restorative justice as the Rx for mistreatment in academic medicine: applications to consider for learners, faculty, and staff. Academic Medicine, 93(3), 354-356.
- 3) Ashley, J., & Burke, K. (2009). Implementing restorative justice: A guide for schools. Chicago, IL: Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority.
- 4) Karp, D. R. (2019). The little book of restorative justice for colleges and universities: Repairing harm and rebuilding trust in response to student misconduct. Simon and Schuster.
- 5) Karp, D. R., & Frank, O. (2016). Restorative justice and student development in higher education: Expanding "offender" horizons beyond punishment and rehabilitation to community engagement and personal growth. Offenders no more: An interdisciplinary restorative justice dialogue, 141-164.
- 6) The Schott Foundation. (2014). Restorative Practices: Fostering Healthy Relationships & Promoting Positive Discipline in Schools. Retrieved from http://schottfoundation.org/resources/restorative-practices-toolkit
- 7) Proposed VP&S Honor Code Committee Consult Service Process Flow Chart. (2020). Retrieved from https://drive.google.com/file/d/10zQvbldpiZ5UX51QialLs_LVpXxtkqCH/view?usp=sharing

For more information about this abstract please contact: mwd2126@cumc.columbia.edu

Improving Diversity and Representation within the OSCE Experience

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Meka Uffenheimer, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Elizabeth Vasile, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Doreen Olvet, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell R. Ellen Pearlman, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Gabrielle Goldberg, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Janice John, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Rebecca Dougherty, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This study aims to identify areas for improvement in diversity, inclusion and representation within the OSCE experience at a single medical school.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Addressing diversity in all aspects of medical education is a particularly germane topic given this year's events. By accurately representing a medical school's diverse patient population within the objective structured clinical examination (OSCE), educators can minimize bias, reinforce a culture of inclusion, and provide a more realistic learning environment.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We analyzed current OSCE cases, standardized patient (SP) demographics and OSCE case author profiles as they relate to various aspects of diversity. The OSCE cases currently in use are evaluated using factors identified in the local healthcare system's health's equity initiatives, as well as evidence-based factors that contribute to implicit bias and structurally based healthcare disparities. A subset of these factors are surveyed among OSCE case authors and standardized patients who participate in the examinations. The checklist utilized in this assessment is provided for other institutions to conduct similar assessments of their curricula. Following the tabulation of the curricular data, researchers compare it to that of the local population utilizing descriptive statistics.

Outcomes:

The differences between the curricular data and that of our community will guide recommendations to accurately reflect the local patient population within OSCEs. Results are forthcoming.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of this evaluation include its comprehensive assessment and generalizability to other institutions. Limitations include currently untested interrater reliability of the evaluation tool. Recognition of gaps in representation within the OSCE experience is an important initial step in prioritizing diversity, inclusion, and representation in a medical school.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This tool can help institutions discover population discrepancies and identify changes they can make to prepare medical trainees to interact with diverse patient populations and foster a culture of inclusion.

References

- 1. Bourgois, P., Holmes, S., Sue, K. and Quesada, J., 2017. Structural Vulnerability. Academic Medicine, 92(3), pp.299-307.
- 2. Caruso Brown, A., Hobart, T., Botash, A. and Germain, L., 2019. Can a checklist ameliorate implicit bias in medical education?.

Medical Education, 53(5), pp.510-510.

- 3. Metzl, J. and Hansen, H., 2014. Structural competency: Theorizing a new medical engagement with stigma and inequality. Social Science & Medicine, 103, pp.126-133.
- 4. Neff, J., Holmes, S., Knight, K., Strong, S., Thompson-Lastad, A., McGuinness, C., Duncan, L., Saxena, N., Harvey, M., Langford, A., Carey-Simms, K., Minahan, S., Satterwhite, S., Ruppel, C., Lee, S., Walkover, L., De Avila, J., Lewis, B., Matthews, J. and Nelson, N., 2020. Structural Competency: Curriculum for Medical Students, Residents, and Interprofessional Teams on the Structural Factors That Produce Health Disparities. MedEdPORTAL, 16(1).
- 5. Northwell Health, 2018. Center For Diversity, Inclusion And Health Equity Report. [online] Available at:

For more information about this abstract please contact: muffenheimer1@pride.hofstra.edu

<u>Teaching Health Equity in the Time of COVID-19: A Virtual Look through the Lens</u> of Structural Racism

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Manasa Ayyala, Rutgers New Jersey Medical School James Hill, Rutgers New Jersey Medical School Christin Traba, Rutgers New Jersey Medical School Maria Soto-Greene, Rutgers New Jersey Medical School Michelle DallaPiazza, Rutgers New Jersey Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To create and implement content for a virtual COVID-19 pandemic course for 3rd and 4th year medical students focused on the effect of structural racism on COVID-19 disparities.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical schools have an obligation to address health equity (HE) training through the lens of structural racism, particularly in the context of COVID-19 health disparities. In April 2020, at the height of our clinical pandemic response, we created three HE/structural racism educational sessions which we integrated into a 4-week, virtual COVID-19 pandemic course for 396 3rd and 4th year medical students.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The HE sessions 1) reviewed COVID-19 health disparities data through the lens of structural racism, 2) described the neurocognitive basis for othering and its influence on health disparities and scapegoating in pandemics, and 3) introduced skills-based frameworks that can lead to a more equitable post-pandemic world. Content delivery consisted of narrated recorded presentations, reflections, and virtual student-facilitated small group discussions.

Outcomes:

In matched pre- and post-surveys, students who participated in the virtual COVID-19 course reported significant changes in their confidence in achieving the learning objectives for the HE content and expressed high satisfaction with the virtual components. Overall, 88% agreed that the content will impact their care for patients in the future; and 87% agreed that the sessions contributed to their ability to work in disadvantaged communities.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Students reported high engagement in small group learning in this virtual format and valued the skills-based frameworks for addressing health equity. The use of pre-recorded lectures rather than live video lectures may have led to a lower level of engagement with didactic materials.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A virtual curriculum employing reflection and small group dialogue was engaging for students, and feasible for faculty involved in a clinical/educational pandemic response. Institutions implementing similar content can easily adopt the skills-based frameworks on dismantling structural racism.

References:

- 1. Bibbins-Domingo K. This Time Must Be Different: Disparities During the COVID-19 Pandemic. Ann Intern Med. 2020;173(3):233-234. doi:10.7326/M20-2247
- 2. Chen JT, Krieger N. Revealing the Unequal Burden of COVID-19 by Income, Race/Ethnicity, and Household Crowding: US

County Versus Zip Code Analyses. J Public Health Manag Pract. 2021;27 Suppl 1, COVID-19 and Public Health: Looking Back, Moving Forward:S43-S56. doi:10.1097/PHH.00000000001263

- 3. Chowkwanyun M, Reed AL Jr. Racial Health Disparities and Covid-19 Caution and Context. N Engl J Med. 2020;383(3):201-203. doi:10.1056/NEJMp2012910
- 4. DallaPiazza M, Padilla-Register M, Dwarakanath M, Obamedo E, Hill J, Soto-Greene ML. Exploring Racism and Health: An Intensive Interactive Session for Medical Students. MedEdPORTAL. 2018;14:10783. Published 2018 Dec 14. doi:10.15766/mep 2374-8265.10783
- 5. DallaPiazza M, Ayyala MS, Soto-Greene ML. Empowering future physicians to advocate for health equity: A blueprint for a longitudinal thread in undergraduate medical education. Med Teach. 2020;42(7):806-812. doi:10.1080/0142159X.2020.1737322
- 6. Devakumar D, Shannon G, Bhopal SS, Abubakar I. Racism and discrimination in COVID-19 responses. Lancet. 2020;395(10231):1194. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(20)30792-3
- 7. Hardeman RR, Medina EM, Boyd RW. Stolen Breaths. N Engl J Med. 2020;383(3):197-199. doi:10.1056/NEJMp2021072

For more information about this abstract please contact: manasa.ayyala@njms.rutgers.edu

<u>Just in Time Teaching (JiTT) infographics Teaching Tools: App Development to Support Technologically Assisted Faculty Development</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Alice Fornari, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Teaching in the clinical environment mostly originates from trainees or clinicians who are not formally trained or naturally skilled in teaching. Clearly defined and geographically accessible structured postgraduate trainee/faculty teaching resources are very limited.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Access of evidence-based content is limited with teaching time constraints, delivery of relevant content at a point in time, and lack of knowledge where to find the resources in the moment.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We will describe an innovation that applies to faculty and trainee development as a clinician educator. An electronic infographic teaching program utilizing technology-assisted modalities prepares trainees and faculty on how to teach and foster learning in busy clinical environments. The innovation will describe transition from an automated email software distribution platform to a phone App that re-sizes evidence-based infographics for distribution on mobile devices to trainee/clinician teachers to assure true 'just in time" accessibly, not bound by any geographic, institutional or financial barriers across the world.

Outcomes:

We will share the Infographics as designed for clinical education. We will share all the intricate steps to create and maintain an innovative teaching application available to the public via a phone App. We will share preliminary implementation data, based on an internal satisfaction survey and analytics on usage and geographic distribution. All challenges will be shared as well as opportunities for partnership and collaboration.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

JiTTs are effective resource to deliver timely relevant information to trainee and faculty. Based on lessons learned in App development, delivery and feedback from end users, future iterations will be shared to enhance content delivered and accessed. Faculty and trainees must partner and serve as champions to reinforce the use of JiTTs in their clinical learning environment.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Faculty developers must expand their creativity for delivery of content and develop systems using technology-assisted modalities that can be shared among diverse medical education environments.

References:

- 1. Achkar MA, Hanauer M, Morrison E, Davies MK, Oh R. Changing trends in residents-as-teachers across graduate medical education, Advances in Medical Education and Practice. Volume 8 (2017) 299–306. https://doi.org/10.2147/amep.s127007
- 2. Alghofili HH, Alaska YA, Alghofili MH, Al-Shehri MD, Isnani A, Arafat MS. Emergency medicine residents as teachers: A survey pertaining to the perceptions toward teaching by such residents, Journal of Nature and Science of Medicine. 0 (2019) 0. https://doi.org/10.4103/jnsm.jnsm_71_18
- 3. Arya V, Gehlawat VK, Verma A, Kaushik JS. Perception of One-Minute Preceptor (OMP) Model as a Teaching Framework

- among Pediatric Postgraduate Residents: A Feedback Survey, The Indian Journal of Pediatrics. 85 (2018) 598–598. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12098-018-2622-3
- 4. Bing-You RG, Sproul MS. Medical students' perceptions of themselves and residents as teachers, Medical Teacher. 14 (1992) 133–138. https://doi.org/10.3109/01421599209079479
- 5. Bree KK, Whicker SA, Fromme HB, Paik S, Greenberg L. Residents-as-Teachers Publications: What Can Programs Learn From the Literature When Starting a New or Refining an Established Curriculum?, J Grad Med Educ. 6 (2014) 237–48. https://doi.org/10.4300/JGME-D-13-00308.1
- 6. CanadiEM MVP Infographic Series. https://canadiem.org/canadiem-mvp-infographic-series/ . Accessed May 17, 2020.
- 7. Chaudhury SR. Encouraging undergraduate students to 'self-learn' digital marketing using infographics: An exploratory study, Innovations in Education and Teaching International. (2019) 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1080/14703297.2019.1706617
- 8. Habermehl N, Habermehl G, Kim G. See one do one...teach one? Learning to be doctors, teachers, or both?, MedEdPublish. 7 (2018). https://doi.org/10.15694/mep.2018.0000160.1
- 9. Hill A, Srinivasa S, Hawken SJ, Barrow M, Farrell SE, Hattie J, Yu TC. Impact of a Resident-as-Teacher Workshop on Teaching Behavior of Interns and Learning Outcomes of Medical Students., J Grad Med Educ. 4 (2012) 34–41. https://doi.org/10.4300/JGME-D-11-00062.1
- 10. Ibrahim AM. Seeing is Believing: Using Visual Abstracts to Disseminate Scientific Research, American Journal of Gastroenterology. 113 (2018) 459–461. https://doi.org/10.1038/ajg.2017.268
- 11. Lee Y, Yang K, Jin S-C, Choi W-I, Lee J-H. The Effect and Applicability of Anatographic for Anatomy Education, Korean Journal of Physical Anthropology. 31 (2018) 51. https://doi.org/10.11637/kjpa.2018.31.2.51
- 12. McKeon BA, Ricciotti HA, Sandora TJ, Ramani S, Pels R, Miloslavsky EM, Haviland MJ, Cho TA. A Consensus Guideline to Support Resident-as-Teacher Programs and Enhance the Culture of Teaching and Learning, Journal of Graduate Medical Education. 11 (2019) 313–318. https://doi.org/10.4300/jgme-d-18-00612.1
- 13. Montacute T, Chan TV, Chen YG, Schillinger E, Lin S. Qualities of Resident Teachers Valued by Medical Students., Fam Med. 48 (2016) 381–4. https://pdfs.semanticscholar.org/d383/e25f07c82d3917bac7494c852d24d4f7cc98.pdf
- 14. Ozdamli F, Ozdal H. Developing an Instructional Design for the Design of Infographics and the Evaluation of Infographic Usage in Teaching Based on Teacher and Student Opinions, Eurasia Journal of Mathematics Science and Technology Education. (2018). https://doi.org/10.29333/ejmste/81868
- 15. Ravichandran L, Sivaprakasam E, Balaji S, Swaminathan N. Effectiveness of the 1-Minute Preceptor on Feedback to Pediatric Residents in a Busy Ambulatory Setting, Journal of Graduate Medical Education. 11 (2019) 204–206. https://doi.org/10.4300/jgme-d-19-00440
- 16. Scott H, Fawkner S, Oliver C, Murray A. Why healthcare professionals should know a little about infographics, British Journal of Sports Medicine. 50 (2016) 1104–1105.
- 17. Seely AJE, Pelletier MP, Snell LS, Trudel JL. Do surgical residents rated as better teachers perform better on in-training examinations?11An abstract of this work was presented at the 18th Annual Meeting of the Association for Surgical Education Vancouver, British Columbia, April 24, 1998., The American Journal of Surgery. 177 (1999) 33–37. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0002-9610(98)00306-7
- 18. Sward LB, Ellis S, Mercado C. Teaching Now-Teaching (TNT): self-assessment of OB/Gyn faculty and resident teaching skills pre-and post-intervention. MedEdPublish, (2020); 9. https://doi.org/10.15694/mep.2020.000022.1
- 19. Tan A, Babenko O, England A, Humphries P, Hillier T. A novel resident-as-teacher curriculum: the role of experiential learning and coaching, MedEdPublish. 6 (2017). https://doi.org/10.15694/mep.2017.000168
- 20. Thoma B, Murray H, Huang SYM, Milne WK, Martin LJ, Bond CM, Mohindra R, Chin A, Yeh CH, Sanderson WB, Chan TM. The impact of social media promotion with infographics and podcasts on research dissemination and readership, CJEM. 20 (2017) 300–306. https://doi.org/10.1017/cem.2017.394
- 21. Watkins AA, Gondek SP, Lagisetty KH, Castillo-Angeles M, Gangadharan SP, Cahalane MJ, Kent TS. Weekly e-mailed teaching tips and reading material influence teaching among general surgery residents, The American Journal of Surgery. 213 (2017) 195–201.e3. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.amjsurg.2016.05.004

For more information about this abstract please contact: afornari@northwell.edu

<u>Power N-A-P: A Brief Common Factors Communication Skills Session Increases</u> Pediatric Subspecialty Trainees' Confidence in Addressing Mental Health Issues

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Juliann Reardon, Yale School of Medicine
Paige Lembeck, Yale School of Medicine
Erica Sood, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University
Pnina Weiss, Yale School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To evaluate the impact of an interactive common factors communication skills session on pediatric subspecialty trainees' confidence addressing mental and behavioral health (MBH).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Pediatric subspecialists are urged to address their patients' MBH concerns. Yet pediatricians feel inadequately prepared to provide MBH care despite educational reform. Patients of providers trained in common factors communication skills have improved mental health symptoms. However, pediatric subspecialty fellows feel less confident in their MBH communication skills when compared to subspecialty attendings.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A one-hour interactive educational session on MBH communication skills was administered to pediatric residents interested in pursuing a subspecialty and pediatric subspecialty fellows at Yale University. The session included small group discussion, a didactic on a common factors approach, "Normalize-Ask-Pause," and role-play. Trainees completed a survey about their experience with the curriculum and a retrospective pre-post test rating their confidence communicating MBH concerns to patients.

Outcomes:

Eighteen of 23 participants responded to the survey (response rate 78%). Almost all the participants felt the session was a good use of their time (91%) and very-extremely effective (88%). All respondents felt the session was appropriate for their stage of learning, the right duration, and would recommend the session. All respondents felt "Normalize-Ask-Pause" was effective. There was a significant difference between those who self-reported their confidence as high before and after training for both initiating a conversation about mental health care (22% to 94%, p<0.001) and providing MBH guidance/information (19% to 78%, p=0.01).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This session was well received by pediatric trainees and improved their confidence addressing MBH. Further investigation of the effectiveness of this curriculum is important to determine whether it is associated with changes in provider behavior or patient outcomes.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This session is easily transferable to other institutions and offers a brief intervention--which is especially important since subspecialists report time as a barrier to addressing MBH.

References:

1. Green, C. M., Foy, J. M., & Earls, M. F. (2019). Achieving the Pediatric Mental Health Competencies. Pediatrics, 144(5), e20192758.

- 2. Pickles, D. M., Lihn, S. L., Boat, T. F., & Lannon, C. (2020). A Roadmap to Emotional Health for Children and Families With Chronic Pediatric Conditions. Pediatrics, 145(2), e20191324.
- 3. Wissow, L., Gadomski, A., Roter, D., Larson, S., Lewis, B., & Brown, J. (2011). Aspects of mental health communication skills training that predict parent and child outcomes in pediatric primary care. Patient education and counseling, 82(2), 226-232.
 4. Reardon, J. L., Lembeck, P., Murray, T., & Weiss, P. (2020). 113. MENTAL HEALTH IN THE PEDIATRIC SUBSPECIALTIES: PHYSICIANS' BELIEFS AND CONFIDENCE PROVIDING CARE. Academic Pediatrics, 20(7), e53-e54.

For more information about this abstract please contact: juliann.reardon@yale.edu

<u>Training Medical Students to Understand the Impact of Poverty Using A Virtual</u> World Poverty Simulation

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Pablo Buitron de la Vega, Boston University School of Medicine / Boston Medical Center Celia Greenlaw, Boston University School of Medicine Mara Eyllon, Boston Medical Center Oluwatomisin Bello, Boston University School of Medicine Andrew Vallejo, Boston University School of Medicine Lauren Dzera, Boston University School of Medicine Suzanne Sarfaty, Boston University School of Medicine Priya Garg, Boston University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Develop a Virtual World Poverty Simulation (VWPS) to train first-year Medical Students (MS1) to understand the realities of living in poverty and its impact on health.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Poverty is associated with factors contributing to health inequities. Medical students receive insufficient training to understand the impact of poverty on health. Live poverty simulations have been found to improve knowledge and perceptions. However, they require multiple personnel, a large space, and significant time to complete. Virtual worlds can support problems found in conventional learning methods, such as time constraints, and require fewer resources. We developed a 60-minute VWPS to train MS1 to understand the impact of poverty.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The VWPS featured five families experiencing poverty and six agencies offering resources. MS1 played the role of a family member. Service agencies were staffed by faculty facilitator. To develop the virtual world, we partnered with Virtway, a platform that provides virtual 3D online experiences. 160 MS1s participated and voluntarily completed a pre- and post-survey assessing knowledge and attitudes about poverty.

Outcomes:

283 pre- and post-surveys were completed and results were compared with t-tests. Students reported statistically significant improvements in knowledge of local resources available for people experiencing poverty (t(281) = 3.1, p = 0.002), agreement that students should explore patients' social needs (t(281) = 2.35, p = 0.02) and agreement that students should connect patients to resources (t(281) = 2.21, p = 0.03).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include ease to incorporate into the curriculum and positive impact on MS knowledge and attitudes towards poverty. In times of COVID19 pandemic, it provides an engaging and safe environment to teach about poverty. Data is limited to self-reported changes in knowledge and attitudes.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

It was feasible to develop and implement a VWPS for MS1. Once the VWPS was developed, the resources needed to run it were minimal compared to live poverty simulations.

References:

- 1. Vandsburger E, Duncan-Daston R, Akerson E, Dillon T. The effects of poverty simulation, an experiential learning modality, on students' understanding of life in poverty. Journal of Teaching in Social Work. 2010;30(3):300-316.
- 2. Gentry SV, Gauthier A, Ehrstrom BLE, Wortley D, Lilienthal A, Car LT, et al Serious gaming and gamification education in health professions: systematic review. Journal of medical Internet research. 2019;21(3):e12994.

For more information about this abstract please contact: pbuitro1@bu.edu

Truth and Reconciliation: An Antiracism Curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Philippe Rameau, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Mulugeta Sarbanes, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Anise Diaz, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Sandeep Kapoor, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Joanne Willey, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Judith Brenner, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Razia Jayman-Aristide, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Jake Lehman, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell William Borenzweig, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Amanda Aguilo-Cuadra, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Stephanie Williams, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Arrianna Mohammed, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Janice John, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This 8-week curriculum was developed to examine how white supremacy permeates our political, social, and economic systems and how racism influences individual perceptions, decisions, and interactions. The curriculum design sought to inspire members of the medical school community to identify ways to reverse racism and health disparities.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Recent attention to racial disparities has exposed the need for greater understanding and comfort discussing systemic racism and its impact on medicine. Medical education curricula often do not address the history of racism in medicine and resulting health disparities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A 13-member leadership team consisting of students and faculty developed the curriculum, which was separated into 3 blocks: (1) develop engagement skills to dialogue about race and antiracism, (2) explore roots of slavery and lynching in the US, and (3) analyze interconnections of race, medicine and health disparities. Excerpts from five books and two documentaries were discussed by 53 participants (9 faculty, 38 students, 6 staff), who met weekly in small groups. Discussion was facilitated by trained student leaders. Weekly pre/post-meeting surveys and a final survey were used to assess achievement of learning objectives.

Outcomes:

Response rates ranged from 35% (end-of-course survey) to 95% (pre-session surveys). Participants reported significant increase in confidence in conversing about race and racism with family, friends, and black colleagues. Participants were able to accurately identify examples of exploitation of black bodies for the advancement of medicine and medical implications mapped directly to systemic racism.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This series provided a safe, structured space to engage in difficult discussion and empowered

participants with terminology and tools to do so. Participant growth was determined and limited by personal preparation for and participation in each session (~5hrs/week).

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The curriculum can be easily adapted by other institutions who want to develop a culture of antiracism with an emphasis on healthcare.

References:

- 1. Diangelo, R. (2018). White fragility why it's so hard for white people to talk about racism. BEACON PRESS.
- 2. Kendi, I. (2019). How to be an antiracist. Bodley Head.
- 3. Washington, H. A. (2006). Medical apartheid: the dark history of medical experimentation on Black Americans from colonial times to the present. New York: Doubleday.
- 4. HOBERMAN, J. (2012). Black and Blue: The Origins and Consequences of Medical Racism. BERKELEY; LOS ANGELES; LONDON: University of California Press.
- 5. Matthew, D. (2015). Just Medicine: A Cure for Racial Inequality in American Health Care. NYU Press.
- 6. Stevenson, B. (Director). (2019). True Justice: Bryan Stevenson's Fight for Equality [Video file]. Retrieved 2020, from https://www.hbo.com/documentaries/true-justice-bryan-stevensons-fight-for-equality
- 7.Ava Duvernay & Jason Moran. (2016) 13TH. USA.

For more information about this abstract please contact: pride.hofstra.edu

<u>Power in Numbers: The New England Pediatric Education Collaborative as a</u> Multi-institutional Approach to COVID-19

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Joanne Crowley, University of Connecticut School of Medicine Mary Brown, Tufts University School of Medicine Allyson McDermott, University of Connecticut School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In late March 2020, medical students across the country were removed from clinical rotations, and medical educators nationwide were challenged with developing and providing a virtual curriculum for their learners.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

As several institutions faced similar challenges, we formed the New England Pediatric Education Collaborative (NEPEC), a virtual Pediatrics curriculum offered to all medical students from the UConn, Tufts, and Quinnipiac, to capitalize on collective faculty resources and expertise.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The NEPEC curriculum was delivered via the Blackboard Collaborate platform and included didactic sessions, case-based conferences, interactive tutorials, live oral presentation practice, team-based learning clinical reasoning, journal club, and virtual simulation sessions. Each session allowed for student participation via video and audio, small breakout groups, and real-time audience polling to maximize engagement.

Outcomes:

The NEPEC resulted in 40 sessions with over 60 hours of content. A total of 71 students participated. Students rated all conferences as "excellent" or "good" for overall quality of the conference (86%), effectiveness of the conference presenter (86%), and level of active engagement of the conference (76%). Evaluation comments demonstrated successful acquisition of new knowledge, and provided constructive feedback on each session.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We anticipate a need for delivering virtual content for some time to come. Strengths include an online curricular product with learning objectives, conference pre-work assignments, and video recorded conferences that can be re-purposed. Thematic analysis of qualitative evaluation data has helped identify successful strategies, allowing us to maximize student engagement in current virtual clerkship components. Limitations include coordination, availability of educators to offer virtual sessions, and discrepancy between institutional rotation schedules.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We believe our unique multi-institutional approach offers a depth and breadth of content, technological modalities, and student engagement tips that will be generalizable to our UME and GME colleagues, and have collaborative implications during and beyond the pandemic.

References:

1. Important guidance for medical students on clinical rotations during the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. Press release. Association of American Medical Colleges. Published March 17, 2020. Accessed March 23, 2020. https://www.aamc.org/news-

 $\underline{insights/press-releases/important-guidance-medical-students-clinical-rotations-during-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreak}$

- 2. Narayan A, Held M, Noelck M, Sutherell J. COMSEP Curriculum Revision Action Team Toolkit. COMSEP Curriculum Revision Action Team, March 2019
- 3. Rose S. Medical Student Education in the Time of COVID-19. JAMA. Published online March 31, 2020. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.5227

For more information about this abstract please contact: jcrowley01@connecticutchildrens.org

<u>Development of a Brief e-Learning Module for Providers Addressing Firearm</u> Safe Storage Screening and Counseling.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Thomas Delaney, University of Vermont Larner College of Medicine Rebecca Bell, UVM Dept. of Pediatrics

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To assess the acceptability and effectiveness of a self-directed e-learning module on screening and counseling for firearm safe storage.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Firearms-related injury is a major public health problem in the US. Firearm safe storage practices are associated with reductions in injuries and deaths. Primary Care Providers (PCPs) in particular are well positioned to screen and counsel on safe storage practices for children and families. Unfortunately, many PCPs report low levels of knowledge about firearm safe storage.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A brief (13 minute) self-directed e-learning module was developed and pilot tested with medical students. Didactic material was mixed with filmed clinical vignettes demonstrating key competencies. A series of reflection/quiz items assessed changes in knowledge and confidence, using an agreement scale. A convenience sample of medical students completed the module and participated in a focus group to determine the preliminary acceptability of the module.

Outcomes:

10 students contributed data to the in-module assessment questions and focus group. Students' mean ratings were scaled as 0 - 3 (strongly disagree to strongly agree) and reflected pre- versus post module increases in knowledge (1.0 to 2.1) confidence is asking about firearm storage (1.8 to 2.1) and confidence in discussing safe storage practices (1.0 to 2.2). Students provided detailed information about potential barriers to engaging in firearm safe storage counseling and provided feedback on the module formatting and contents.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The firearm safe storage screening and counseling module shows promise as an educational support for PCPs to improve their practice in this area. Testing with medical students was useful for determining initial acceptability of the module (they are full time learners) but additional testing with providers in practice is needed.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This educational innovation has a high potential for adoption by providers and medical education programs. The module is brief, addresses a training gap and can be completed at the learner's convenience.

References:

1. Fowler A, Dahlberg L, Haileyesus T, Gutierrez C, Bacon S (2017). Childhood firearm injuries in the United States. Pediatrics. 140(1):e20163486

2. DuRant R, Barkin S, Craig J, Weiley V, Ip E, Wasserman R (2007). Firearm ownership and storage patterns among families with children who receive well-child care in pediatric offices. Pediatrics. 119(6):e1271

For more information about this abstract please contact: thomas.delaney@uvm.edu

Enhancing patient-centered care for limited English proficiency patients through Tell Me More®: A student-driven initiative to develop students' communication skills and understand the patient as a person

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Angela Liu, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Alicia Leong, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Taranjeet Ahuja, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Alice Fornari, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We aimed to include hospitalised limited English proficiency (LEP) patients in Tell Me More® (TMM®) by using medical interpreter phones (MIP). The objectives of our pilot study were to: (1) evaluate the feasibility of this approach, and (2) compare TMM® engagement between LEP and English-speaking (ES) patients.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

TMM® is a medical student-driven initiative to build rapport between patients, students, and the healthcare team through patient interviews and personalised posters. TMM® has the potential to address impaired patient-provider communication often experienced by populations with LEP. However, previous TMM® initiatives were offered only to ES patients.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The student interviewed hospitalised LEP and ES patients with probing questions on patients' unique qualities and experiences beyond their diagnoses, then transcribed patients' stories to bedside posters, per TMM®'s established protocol. LEP patients were interviewed using MIP. At the end of their interview, patients rated TMM®'s impact on hospital stay using a five-point Likert scale.

Outcomes:

Our results demonstrate that MIP-supported TMM® is an implementable approach to enhancing patient-centered communication with LEP patients. Preliminary findings supported significantly higher TMM® participation rates for LEP versus ES patients (X^2(1,N=45)=5.31, p<.05). Reflections from student journal entries show that TMM® enriches medical student education by focusing on the patient as a person through use of empathy skills and recording of expanded social histories.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of our study include our novel approach to communication with LEP patients, reinforcing medical student education, and enhancing the healthcare team's understanding of the patient as a person. Our limitations are characteristic of most pilot studies, which include the need for future reproducible results with larger sample sizes and more in-depth analyses of TMM®'s impact on both patient and healthcare team.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Future applications should consider other medical interpreting methods, and students' time constraints since LEP interviews described here lasted up to two hours longer than ES interviews.

References:

- 1. Aranguri, C., Davidson, B., & Ramirez, R. (2006). Patterns of Communication through Interpreters: A Detailed Sociolinguistic Analysis. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 21(6), 623–629. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1525-1497.2006.00451.x
- 2. Batalova, J., Bolter, J., & Blizzard, B. (2020, February 12). Frequently Requested Statistics on Immigrants and Immigration in the United States. Migration Policy Institute. https://www.migrationpolicy.org/article/frequently-requested-statistics-immigrants-and-immigration-united-states
- 3. Batalova, J., & Zong, J. (2016, November 10). Language Diversity and English Proficiency in the United States. Migration Policy Institute. https://www.migrationpolicy.org/article/language-diversity-and-english-proficiency-united-states-2015
- 4. Berdahl, T. A., & Kirby, J. B. (2019). Patient-Provider Communication Disparities by Limited English Proficiency (LEP): Trends from the US Medical Expenditure Panel Survey, 2006–2015. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 34(8), 1434–1440. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11606-018-4757-3
- 5. Cardinal, L. J., Maldonado, M., & Fried, E. D. (2016). A National Survey to Evaluate Graduate Medical Education in Disparities and Limited English Proficiency: A Report From the AAIM Diversity and Inclusion Committee. The American Journal of Medicine, 129(1), 117–125. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.amjmed.2015.09.007
- 6. Coren, J. S., Filipetto, F. A., & Weiss, L. B. (2009). Eliminating Barriers for Patients With Limited English Proficiency. The Journal of the American Osteopathic Association, 109(12), 634–640. https://doi.org/10.7556/jaoa.2009.109.12.634
- 7. Divi, C., Koss, R. G., Schmaltz, S. P., & Loeb, J. M. (2007). Language proficiency and adverse events in US hospitals: A pilot study. International Journal for Quality in Health Care, 19(2), 60–67. https://doi.org/10.1093/intqhc/mzl069
- 8. Dupras, D. M., Wieland, M. L., Halvorsen, A. J., Maldonado, M., Willett, L. L., & Harris, L. (2020). Assessment of Training in Health Disparities in US Internal Medicine Residency Programs. JAMA Network Open, 3(8), e2012757. https://doi.org/10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2020.12757
- 9. Jacobs, E., Chen, A. H., Karliner, L. S., Agger-Gupta, N., & Mutha, S. (2006). The Need for More Research on Language Barriers in Health Care: A Proposed Research Agenda. The Milbank Quarterly, 84(1), 111–133. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-0009.2006.00440.x
- 10. John-Baptiste, A., Naglie, G., Tomlinson, G., Alibhai, S. M. H., Etchells, E., Cheung, A., Kapral, M., Gold, W. L., Abrams, H., Bacchus, M., & Krahn, M. (2004). The effect of English language proficiency on length of stay and in-hospital mortality. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 19(3), 221–228. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1525-1497.2004.21205.x
- 11. Karliner, L. S., Auerbach, A., Nápoles, A., Schillinger, D., Nickleach, D., & Pérez-Stable, E. J. (2012). Language Barriers and Understanding of Hospital Discharge Instructions. Medical Care, 50(4), 283–289. https://doi.org/10.1097/MLR.0b013e318249c949
- 12. Karliner, L. S., Jacobs, E. A., Chen, A. H., & Mutha, S. (2007). Do Professional Interpreters Improve Clinical Care for Patients with Limited English Proficiency? A Systematic Review of the Literature. Health Services Research, 42(2), 727–754. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1475-6773.2006.00629.x
- 13. Karliner, L. S., Pérez-Stable, E. J., & Gregorich, S. E. (2017). Convenient Access to Professional Interpreters in the Hospital Decreases Readmission Rates and Estimated Hospital Expenditures for Patients With Limited English Proficiency. Medical Care, 55(3), 199–206. https://doi.org/10.1097/MLR.0000000000000643
- 14. Lindholm, M., Hargraves, J. L., Ferguson, W. J., & Reed, G. (2012). Professional language interpretation and inpatient length of stay and readmission rates. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 27(10), 1294–1299. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11606-012-2041-5
- 15. Lopez-Quintero, C., Berry, E. M., & Neumark, Y. (2009). Limited English Proficiency Is a Barrier to Receipt of Advice about Physical Activity and Diet among Hispanics with Chronic Diseases in the United States. Journal of the American Dietetic Association, 109(10), 1769–1774. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jada.2009.07.003
- 16. Majlesi, A. R., & Plejert, C. (2018). Embodiment in tests of cognitive functioning: A study of an interpreter-mediated dementia evaluation. Dementia, 17(2), 138–163. https://doi.org/10.1177/1471301216635341
- 17. Morales, L. S., Cunningham, W. E., Brown, J. A., Liu, H., & Hays, R. D. (1999). Are Latinos less satisfied with communication by health care providers? Journal of General Internal Medicine, 14(7), 409–417. https://doi.org/10.1046/j.1525-1497.1999.06198.x
- 18. Paananen, J., & Majlesi, A. R. (2018). Patient-centered interaction in interpreted primary care consultations. Journal of Pragmatics, 138, 98–118. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pragma.2018.10.003
- 19. Paredes, A. Z., Idrees, J. J., Beal, E. W., Chen, Q., Cerier, E., Okunrintemi, V., Olsen, G., Sun, S., Cloyd, J. M., & Pawlik, T. M. (2018). Influence of English proficiency on patient-provider communication and shared decision-making. Surgery, 163(6), 1220–1225. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.surg.2018.01.012
- 20. Pippins, J. R., Alegría, M., & Haas, J. S. (2007). Association Between Language Proficiency and the Quality of Primary Care Among a National Sample of Insured Latinos. Medical Care, 45(11), 1020–1025. https://doi.org/10.1097/MLR.0b013e31814847be
- 21. Qing, D., Narayan, A., Reese, K., Hartman, S., Ahuja, T., & Fornari, A. (2018). Tell Me More: Promoting compassionate patient care through conversations with medical students. Patient Experience Journal, 5(3), 167–176. https://doi.org/10.35680/2372-0247.1271

- 22. Rodriguez, F., Cohen, A., Betancourt, J. R., & Green, A. R. (2011). Evaluation of medical student self-rated preparedness to care for limited English proficiency patients. BMC Medical Education, 11(1), 26. https://doi.org/10.1186/1472-6920-11-26
 23. Roter, D. L., Gregorich, S. E., Diamond, L., Livaudais-Toman, J., Kaplan, C., Pathak, S., & Karliner, L. (2020). Loss of patient centeredness in interpreter-mediated primary care visits. Patient Education and Counseling, 103(11), 2244–2251. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pec.2020.07.028
- 24. Sleptsova, M., Weber, H., Schöpf, A. C., Nübling, M., Morina, N., Hofer, G., & Langewitz, W. (2017). Using interpreters in medical consultations: What is said and what is translated—A descriptive analysis using RIAS. Patient Education and Counseling, 100(9), 1667–1671. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pec.2017.03.023
- 25. Tell Me More®. (n.d.). The Arnold P. Gold Foundation. Retrieved December 11, 2020, from https://www.gold-foundation.org/programs/tell-me-more/
- 26. Theys, L., Krystallidou, D., Salaets, H., Wermuth, C., & Pype, P. (2020). Emotion work in interpreter-mediated consultations: A systematic literature review. Patient Education and Counseling, 103(1), 33–43. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pec.2019.08.006
 27. Thompson, D. A., Hernandez, R. G., Cowden, J. D., Sisson, S. D., & Moon, M. (2013). Caring for Patients With Limited English Proficiency: Are Residents Prepared to Use Medical Interpreters? Academic Medicine, 88(10), 1485–1492. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.0b013e3182a3479d
- 28. Weech-Maldonado, R., Morales, L. S., Elliott, M., Spritzer, K., Marshall, G., & Hays, R. D. (2003). Race/Ethnicity, Language, and Patients' Assessments of Care in Medicaid Managed Care. Health Services Research, 38(3), 789–808. https://doi.org/10.1111/1475-6773.00147
- 29. Wiking, E., Sundquist, J., & Saleh-Stattin, N. (2013). Consultations between Immigrant Patients, Their Interpreters, and Their General Practitioners: Are They Real Meetings or Just Encounters? A Qualitative Study in Primary Health Care. International Journal of Family Medicine, 2013. https://doi.org/10.1155/2013/794937
- 30. Wilson, E., Hm Chen, A., Grumbach, K., Wang, F., & Fernandez, A. (2005). Effects of limited English proficiency and physician language on health care comprehension. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 20(9), 800–806. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1525-1497.2005.0174.x

For more information about this abstract please contact: aliu6@pride.hofstra.edu

<u>JeffDOT: a novel way to increase bedside observation</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Katherine Berg, Sidney Kimmel Medical College, Thomas Jefferson University Anita Rawls, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Kathy Day, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Nina Mingioni, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Steven Herrine, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We developed and implemented the JeffDOT app to address the challenges of workplace assessment.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Currently, healthcare faculty have less time to provide formative feedback to medical students. Bedside assessments vary in frequency, structure, standardization, and quality of student evaluation. There is a need to provide an easy-to-use, systematic approach to clinical skill observation and high quality documentation of competency.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The direct observation tool (DOT) delivers competency-based micro-assessments, provides real-time feedback, and documents the students' skill level using a mobile app. To use DOT, the student presents their mobile device or a QR code with the appropriate checklist to the faculty at the bedside. The observer provides commentary and rates the learners' skill level into one of five categories: cannot perform, requires direct supervision, requires indirect supervision, can perform independently, or can teach junior medical students.

Outcomes:

Since April 2019, 549 learners used the DOT during their clerkships. During first two academic years of use, 13,282 checklists were completed. Core skills assessed included history taking (3,982), physical exam (3,123), oral presentation (3,631) and counseling 2,546). Results from DOT suggest that at least 70% of students are competent to independently perform the four core skills by the end of the third year of medical school.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

JeffDOT is an easy-to-use app which allows for a systematic approach to clinical skill observation, more effective assessment of clinical competency and high quality documentation of progress toward competence. The JeffDOT does not resolve the faculty level of comfortability with providing student feedback.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This bedside direct observation tool enables effective collection of brief student assessments in the workplace. This information is particularly valuable to track student progress across the medical school curriculum. Future updates to the DOT app will focus on continuous improvement in the technology, increasing training, and expansion of use to other schools.

References:

1. Frank, J.R., Snell, L.S., Ten Cate, O., Holmboe, E.S., Carraccio, Swing, S.R., Harris, P., Glasgow, N. J., Campbell, C., Dath, D., Harden, R. M., Iobst, W., Long, D.M., Mungroo, R., Richardson, D.L., Sherbino, J., Silver, I., Taber, S., Talbot, M., Harris, K. A.

(2010) Competency-based medical education: theory to practice, Medical Teacher, 32:8, 638-645, DOI: 10.3109/0142159X.2010.501190

For more information about this abstract please contact: katherine.berg@jefferson.edu

<u>A Longitudinal Curriculum on Implicit Bias and Structural Racism in a Pediatric</u> Residency Program

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Hannah Anderson, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia
Beth Rezet, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia
Nicole Washington, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Jessica Fowler, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Adelaide Barnes, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
George Dalembert, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This curriculum aimed to increase and sustain trainees' awareness of and response to implicit bias and structural racism.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

While curricula for targeting implicit bias and structural racism have been developed in residency programs around the US, longitudinal interventions to improve trainees' awareness of and response to implicit bias are lacking. [1] Single curricular interventions such as the Implicit Association Test (IAT) have been demonstrated as useful in medical education, however, their effectiveness as a stand-alone intervention is limited. [2-3] Additionally, short-term training on topics such as bias are potentially problematic if not sustained by ongoing reflection, discussion and implementation. [4]

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We developed and piloted a 3-year longitudinal curriculum from 2017-2020. Starting at intern orientation and continuing through their 3rd year, residents engage in the IAT and an exclusion/inclusion exercise followed by a regularly scheduled racial awareness curriculum including conferences on implicit bias, microaggressions and systemic racism; advocacy journal clubs; grand rounds; health equity rounds; and a film series. All sessions include facilitated discussions.

Outcomes:

After the three-year pilot, we evaluated the curriculum, through surveys and interviews of graduating residents on their experiences in the curriculum. We conducted thematic analysis of their responses. [5] We identified several themes: increased confidence in discussing bias, development of a shared language to understand and process bias, and new tools to confront bias when it arose in clinical and educational environments.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This curriculum's primary strength was its integration into cohesive, longitudinal, sustained discussions of bias in various educational settings. It was limited by service needs of a busy academic center.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This curriculum was implemented in a large academic children's hospital and required time-intensive support from leadership, faculty members, and program staff. Therefore, it may have limited transferability to other settings where resources to support are not readily available.

References:

- 1. Khatri, U., Zeidan, A., LaRiviere, M., Sanchez, S., Weaver, L., Lynn, J., Shofer, F., Todd, B., & Aysola, J. (2019). An evaluation of implicit bias training in graduate medical education. MedEdPublish, 8(2). https://doi.org/10.15694/mep.2019.000109.1
- 2. Sukhera, J., & Watling, C. (2018). A framework for integrating implicit bias recognition into health professions education. Academic Medicine, 93(1), 35-40. https://doi.org/10.1097/acm.0000000000001819
- 3. Gonzalez, C. M., Garba, R. J., Liguori, A., Marantz, P. R., McKee, M. D., & Lypson, M. L. (2018). How to make or break implicit bias instruction. Academic Medicine, 93(11S), S74-S81. https://doi.org/10.1097/acm.0000000000002386
- 4. Gonzalez, C. M., Kim, M. Y., & Marantz, P. R. (2014). Implicit bias and its relation to health disparities: A teaching program and survey of medical students. Teaching and Learning in Medicine, 26(1), 64-71.

https://doi.org/10.1080/10401334.2013.857341

5. Braun, V., & Clarke, V. (2006). Using thematic analysis in psychology. Qualitative Research in Psychology, 3(2), 77-101. https://doi.org/10.1191/1478088706qp063oa

For more information about this abstract please contact: dalembertg@email.chop.edu

Restorative Justice in Academic Medicine: Implementation of a diversity education pilot at one medical school

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Karl Vosatka, Albany Medical College
Tanuj Sharma, University at Albany, State University of New York
John Jawiche, Albany Medical College
Jessmehar Walia, Albany Medical College
Marva Richards, Albany Medical College
Johanna Crane, Albany Medical College
Branden Eggan, Siena College
Sara Aoun, Albany Medical College
Jeffrey Winseman, Albany Medical College
Hyacinth Mason, Albany Medical College

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Since 2018, Albany Medical College (AMC) has piloted using restorative justice (RJ) practices to promote inclusion and teach health equity principles.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

RJ practices develop relationships through mutual respect and address community needs via three tiers (Acosta and Karp, 2018). Tier 1 practices build community. Tier 2 practices respond directly to harm and promote repair (Karp and Frank, 2014). Tier 3 practices reintegrate returnees after separation (Karp, 2015).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We piloted Tier 1 RJ practices at AMC through a voluntary program with medical students. Every circle includes group gathering (virtually or in person), a trained circle keeper, a talking piece to ensure parity between voices, and shared agreements. Efficacy was measured via surveys before and after circle sessions.

Outcomes:

In 2018, circle practice was added to medical student orientation to help build community, enhance community engagement, and teach students about the social determinants of health. This activity, titled Social Determinants of Albany's Health (SoDAH), was positively appraised; 98.6% of students reported finding the circles "beneficial/extremely beneficial." In response to students' enthusiasm, we are piloting the expansion of circle opportunities to PA students, residents, and diverse affinity groups.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

RJ circles build community in person and virtually. They constitute an effective model, particularly for handling sensitive subjects, that promotes inclusion and a more restorative means of addressing harm at a low financial cost.

RJ can be a time intensive, yet high-yield practice. Time is often a luxury in academic medical centers.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Adoption of RJ in US medical schools has grown, as evidenced by the AAMC's launch of RJAM, an

initiative applying RJ principles to challenging aspects of medical education (Acosta and Karp, 2018). RJ has proven feasible at AMC, and this program has inspired further RJ implementation here.

References:

- 1. Brewer, L., and Grbic, D. Medical Students' Socioeconomic Background and Their Completion of the First Two Years of Medical School. Analysis in Brief.2010; 9 (11).
- 2. Orom, H., Semalulu, T., and Underwood, W.I. The Social and Learning Environments Experienced by Underrepresented Minority Medical Students: A Narrative Review. Academic Medicine. 2013. (88) 1765-1777.
- 3. Acosta, D and Karp D.R. Restorative Justice as the Rx for Mistreatment in Academic Medicine: Applications to Consider for Learners, Faculty and Staff. Academic Medicine.2018; 93(3): 356-356.
- 4. Andriole C.A., Jefffe, D.B. Pre-matriculation variables associated with suboptimal outcomes for the 1994-1999 cohort of US medical school matriculants. JAMA. 2010 15;304(11):1212-9.
- 5. Karp, C. Little Book of Restorative Justice for Colleges and Universities: Revised and Updated: Repairing Harm and Rebuilding Trust in Response to Student Misconduct. Revised. Good Books; 2015
- 6. Liaison Committee on Medical Education. Liaison Committee on Medical Education Standards on Diversity. Washington, DC: American Association of Medical Colleges;2009.
- 7. Lauer, M. (2019) Expanding NIH's Definition of Socio-Economic Disadvantaged to be More Inclusive and Diversify the Workforce. National Institutes of Health.2019. https://nexus.od.nih.gov/all/2019/11/26/expanding-nihs-definition-of-socio-economic-disadvantaged-to-be-more-inclusive-and-diversify-the-workforce/
- 8. Lett, L., Murdock, H.M., Orji, W.U., Aysola, J., Sebro, R. Trends in Racial/Ethnic Representation Among US Medical Students. JAMA Network Open Sept 4; 2(9): e1910490.
- 9. Andriole C.A., Jefffe, D.B. Pre-matriculation variables associated with suboptimal outcomes for the 1994-1999 cohort of US medical school matriculants. JAMA. 2010 15;304(11):1212-9.
- 10. Mason, H. The Path through Medical School: The role of First-Generation Status. Learn, Serve, Lead 2019: The AAMC Annual Meeting, Phoenix, AZ. Workshop held Tuesday 11.12, 2019
- 11. Brewer, L., and Grbic, D. Medical Students' Socioeconomic Background and Their Completion of the First Two Years of Medical School. Analysis in Brief.2010; 9 (11).
- 12. Orom, H., Semalulu, T., and Underwood, W.I. The Social and Learning Environments Experienced by Underrepresented Minority Medical Students: A Narrative Review. Academic Medicine. 2013. (88) 1765-1777.
- 13. Acosta, D and Karp D.R. Restorative Justice as the Rx for Mistreatment in Academic Medicine: Applications to Consider for Learners, Faculty and Staff. Academic Medicine.2018; 93(3): 356-356.

For more information about this abstract please contact: karl.vosatka1@gmail.com

<u>Enhancing Resident Diversity and Equity by Addressing Economic Disadvantage</u> Among Applicants

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Debra Weinstein, Mass General Brigham

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Addressing economic barriers impacting residency choice

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Higher education, including medical school, often provides financial aid that facilitates economically disadvantaged individuals accessing this education. Need-based aid has not been part of graduate medical education: residency matriculants are generally paid on an institution-based salary scale, regardless of their financial circumstances (debt burden, dependents, etc.). Applicants with limited resources – disproportionately those who are underrepresented in medicine (UiM) – may be excluded from high-cost locations, as documented on our annual post-match applicant survey.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In 2018 Mass General Brigham initiated a recruitment stipend for economically disadvantaged residents as a 3-year pilot. In order to impact applicants' choice of residency, clear eligibility criteria must allow individuals to know if they qualify for the stipend prior to submitting their rank list. In Year 1, prior approval for AAMC's Fee Assistance Program was the sole eligibility criterion; subsequently, having had a Pell Grant or a Loan for Disadvantaged Students were additional qualifiers (i.e. any one of the three). Qualifying matriculants to 3+-year residencies receive \$10,000 above the standard salary annually for three years.

Outcomes:

22 matriculants (~5%) qualified for the stipend in 2019, and 51 (11%) in 2020. Stipend recipients were significantly more diverse than other recruited residents: ~¾ minority and ½ UiM. Survey results suggest the stipend program positively impacts ranking decisions and the affordability of Boston. Because financial need analysis is not possible, eligibility criteria are arbitrary and suboptimal. Long-term sustainability of funding is not certain.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Positive impact on equity and diversity. Because financial need analysis is not possible, eligibility criteria are arbitrary and suboptimal. Long-term sustainability of funding is not certain.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The program is transferable to other institutions based on a) availability of funds, or b) willingness to fund out of the total resident salary budget, so that resident salary levels reflect individual economic need.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: dweinstein@partners.org

<u>Validate entrustable professional activity (EPA)-based assessment in pathology</u> residency training for common on-call activities.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Bronwyn Bryant, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study is to use entrustable professional activities (EPAs) evaluate a resident's performance of a specific activity and link to competencies, which can inform assigning graduated responsibilities (e.g. taking call).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

At the University of Vermont (UVM), the Clinical Competency Committee (CCC) decides whether a resident is competent to take call, but it is currently operating with limited data. This study aims to implement and validate EPAs in a common on-call duty of performing an intraoperative consultation

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The proposed use of the EPAs in this study is to provide data to the CCC to inform decisions about a resident's competency to take call. This validation study follows the Kane Framework (scoring—generalization—extrapolation—implication) by providing multiple pieces of evidence for the CCC to review. Residents' performance of intraoperative consultations during their surgical pathology rotation will be evaluated by multiple EPA-based formative assessments (scoring). Residents will be assigned an entrustment level at the end of the rotation (generalization). Formative and summative assessments will be reviewed by the CCC (extrapolation, implication) to determine readiness to take call. The impact of EPAs will be assessed by periodic surveys to all participants.

Outcomes:

Entrustment is an intuitive, but novel, anchor for assessment. EPAs will promote direct observation of trainees, allowing faculty to provide more specific and timely feedback. EPAs should provide objective data to the CCC, and should benefit residents by setting clear expectations and increasing resident confidence in performing intraoperative consultations.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This is the first validation study of EPAs in pathology training. Given the small number of residents in this program, there may be insufficient survey data to demonstrate an impact. The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted resident education in frozen assessment, which may be a confounding factor in this study.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This study will inform a national study of four EPAs in pathology residency.

References:

- 1. Ten Cate O. Nuts and bolts of entrustable professional activities. J Grad Med Educ. 2013;5:157-158.
- 2.Ten Cate O, Hart D, Ankel F, et al. Entrustment Decision Making in Clinical Training. Acad Med. 2016;91:191-198.
- 3. Aulet TH, Moore JS, Callas PW, et al. (En)trust me: Validating an assessment rubric for documenting clinical encounters during a surgery clerkship clinical skills exam. Am J Surg. 2018.
- 4. Carraccio C, Englander R, Gilhooly J, et al. Building a Framework of Entrustable Professional Activities, Supported by Competencies and Milestones, to Bridge the Educational Continuum. Acad Med. 2017;92:324-330.

5. McCloskey CB, Domen RE, Conran RM, et al. Entrustable Professional Activities for Pathology: Recommendations From the College of American Pathologists Graduate Medical Education Committee. Acad Pathol. 2017;4:2374289517714283.
6. Cook DA, Brydges R, Ginsburg S, et al. A contemporary approach to validity arguments: a practical guide to Kane's framework. Med Educ. 2015;49:560-575.

7.Peters H, Holzhausen Y, Boscardin C, et al. Twelve tips for the implementation of EPAs for assessment and entrustment decisions. Med Teach. 2017;39:802-807.

For more information about this abstract please contact: Bronwyn.Bryant@uvmhealth.org

eBite: A Medical Education Blog for a Global Community of Learners

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Elisabeth Schlegel, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The disruptions in medical education and faculty development delivery due to the public health concerns during the Spring of 2020 rapidly led to re-establishing educational discourse through webbased tools including text-driven media such as blogging1. Specifically, educational blogs enrich learning experiences comparable to online discussion forums with the added benefit of attractive content presentation using text, images, audio, and video, appealing to a variety of learning preferences2. We developed the educational blog eBite with the purpose to (1) provide preparatory content and (2) reference material for enhancing the effectiveness of faculty development sessions. eBite is easy to access from anywhere on any device and enhances learning and reflection of target audiences at their own pace as well as interested readers worldwide.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Contextualized by sociocultural and constructivist theories, a community of learners establishes rapidly as readers engage with the content and exchange reflections and opinions in the comment section3.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

eBite blog entries with discussion prompts are posted by the medical education expert either prior to or after a corresponding faculty development session to enhance and review concepts discussed.

Outcomes:

Initial data indicated benefit through (1) mental accessibility of complex topics, (2) stimulating critical thinking, and (3) reflection on in-person-sessions supported by eBite content. Additional value is establishing instant rapport with the audience, as eBite is introduced in the initial email preceding an upcoming session. Frequent posting is necessary for engaging the audience beyond the session.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Using multimedia display options and blog functionality, a growing community of learners/educators of all levels can connect with each other, expanding each other's horizons.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The educational blog eBite is an effective tool promoting deep learning which can easily be adopted by medical educators to advance the educational discourse of faculty development in a global community.

References:

1. Lu, D., Ruan, B., Lee, M., Yilmaz, Y., & Chan, T. M. (2020). Good practices in harnessing social media for scholarly discourse, knowledge translation, and education. Perspectives on medical education, 1-10.

2.Vai, M., & Sosulski, K. (2015). Essentials of online course design: A standards-based guide. Routledge.

3. Steinert, Y. (Ed.). (2014). Faculty development in the health professions: a focus on research and practice (Vol. 11). Springer Science & Business Media.

For more information about this abstract please contact: Elisabeth.Schlegel@Hofstra.edu

Rx/Museum: Art and Reflection in Medicine. Fostering clinician well-being and a more humanistic practice of medicine through visual art and reflective pedagogy.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Lyndsay Hoy, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Aaron Levy, University of Pennsylvania, Slought Foundation
Horace DeLisser, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Jason Han, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Jeffrey Millstein, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Adam Rizzo, Philadelphia Museum of Art
William Perthes, Barnes Foundation
Ella Comberg, Slought Foundation

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

- To provide a free, web-based medical humanities curriculum featuring a curated series of 52 artworks with essayistic reflections.
- To create space for self-care.
- To strengthen communication and empathy.
- To encourage engagement with the arts and humanities in medicine.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The COVID-19 pandemic has spurred an urgent need to address physician burn-out. Guided visual art exercises are a widely disseminated method for fortifying wellness and resilience among medical providers. While clinicians are often enthusiastic about engaging with the arts, they may feel intimidated or are unable to attend organized opportunities. Rx/Museum brings the museum to the physician in an accessible virtual environment through an interdisciplinary lens combining clinical medicine, medical anthropology, art history and social justice.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Every Monday for a year, subscribers are emailed an artwork from Philadelphia Museum of Art, Barnes Foundation, or Slought Foundation. Each accompanying essay examines traditionally challenging themes such as managing uncertainty, nuance, ambiguity, death, illness, and suffering. Subscribers are encouraged to explore artworks by theme and generate small-group discussion with the content.

Outcomes:

Since launching in July 2020, over 4,500 individuals have visited the Rx/Museum site and more than one thousand have subscribed to the weekly listserv. Essays receive up to 400 readers per week with an average session duration of three to four minutes.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Rx/Museum unites stakeholders across the spectrum of medical training via the visual arts and written reflection. At year's end, Rx/Museum will be a self-sustaining curriculum that can be accessed and applied in a variety of clinical and educational contexts. An inherent limitation of Rx/Museum is the challenge of meaningfully engaging with art outside of a gallery setting.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Rx/Museum facilitates an expanding subscriber cross-section of health professionals, students, and scholars from across the globe. While the Rx/Museum collection is unique to Philadelphia, the collaborative model is highly transferable.

References:

- 1. Gowda, Deepthiman et al. "Art as Sanctuary: A Four-Year Mixed-Methods Evaluation of a Visual Art Course Addressing Uncertainty Through Reflection." Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges vol. 93,11S Association of American Medical Colleges Learn Serve Lead: Proceedings of the 57th Annual Research in Medical Education Sessions (2018): S8-S13. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000002379.
- 2. Liu, Emily Yang et al. "The long-term impact of a comprehensive scholarly concentration program in biomedical ethics and medical humanities." BMC medical education vol. 18,1 204. 28 Aug. 2018, doi:10.1186/s12909-018-1311-2.
- 3. "NYU LitMed: Literature, Arts Medicine Database." http://medhum.med.nyu.edu. Accessed 10 Oct 2019.
- 4. Ofri, Danielle. "Medical Humanities: The Rx for Uncertainty?." Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges vol. 92,12 (2017): 1657-1658. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001983.
- 5. Orr, Andrew R et al. "The Fostering Resilience through Art in Medical Education (FRAME) workshop: a partnership with the Philadelphia Museum of Art." Advances in medical education and practice vol. 10 361-369. 27 May. 2019, doi:10.2147/AMEP.S194575.
- 6. Zhang, Christiana M et al. "Bedside Education in the Art of Medicine (BEAM): an Arts and Humanities Web-Based Clinical Teaching Resource." Academic psychiatry: the journal of the American Association of Directors of Psychiatric Residency Training and the Association for Academic Psychiatry, 10.1007/s40596-020-01270-5. 30 Jun. 2020, doi:10.1007/s40596-020-01270-5.

For more information about this abstract please contact: lyndsay.hoy@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

Clinically Integrated Advanced Basic Science

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Shruti Chandra, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Joanna Chan, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Deliver clinically integrated advanced basic science (ABS) education to senior medical students in a flexible, online format.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Traditionally medical schools offer basic science education during the preclinical years. Although clinical topics have been incorporated into preclinical curricula, basic sciences have not been formally taught in clinical years. Thomas Jefferson University created ABS courses to integrate basic science curriculum during the senior year.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

ABS courses were designed to address basic science curricular threads that were de-emphasized during clinical years. Their expanded content explicitly applies to clinical decision making. Universal scientific principles such as evidence based medicine were incorporated into all courses. Courses are offered virtually through the Canvas learning management system (LMS). The courses have a hybrid approach of self-directed and case-based learning to allow students to reinforce basic science principles while applying them to clinical scenarios. Courses are in a two-week, Pass/Fail format and students are required to take at least one ABS course.

Outcomes:

36 senior students took an ABS course in December 2019 and March 2020; 26 responded to post-course evaluations. 85% would recommend the course to fellow students, 76% thought the course would positively impact their future career, and 88% thought there was sufficient direction and faculty interaction. 100% thought that more online asynchronous courses should be offered. Further data analysis is pending.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: ABS courses seamlessly build on and integrate basic science into clinical context. The flexible format and delivery allows students control over their schedule, especially during residency application season. The virtual format was critical during the pandemic.

Limitations: Educators need to teach and build courses using new technologies requiring design support. Small class sizes are required to accommodate small group learning. The virtual format may limit faculty/student interaction and feedback.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

ABS courses are easily adoptable by any institution through their own LMS.

References:

- 1. Pangaro, L, The Role and Value of the Basic Sciences in Medical Education: The Perspective of Clinical Education -Students' Progress from Understanding to Action, JIAMSE, 2010, 20:3, 307-313
- 2. Spencer AL, Brosenitsch T, Levine AS, Kanter SL, Back to the basic sciences: An innovative approach to teaching senior medical students how best to integrate basic science and clinical medicine, Acad Med, 2008, 83, 662 669.

 $3.\ Association\ of\ American\ Medical\ Colleges.\ Curriculum\ Directory.\ Available\ at:\ (http://services.aamc.org/currdir/section2/schematicManagerRemote.cfm).$

For more information about this abstract please contact: $\underline{shruti.chandra@jefferson.edu}$

<u>Interprofessional Students and Faculty Collaborate to Restructure Medical</u> Student Research

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Hannah Saven, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Mariana Markell, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Shirley Eisner, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Students and faculty from the College of Medicine, School of Public Health, and Graduate School collaborated to 1) assess medical student attitudes about research opportunities, 2) develop research skills with required curricular activities 3) improve communication about research opportunities and 4) create a centralized medical student research database.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Research experience and meaningful publication are vital to successful residency applications. The transformation of Step 1 to Pass/Fail has increased pressure on students and faculty to accelerate research activities that lead to presentation and publication. SUNY Downstate has a long history of strong student-faculty reciprocal mentoring for curriculum strengthening.(1) Many schools have adapted longitudinal research components to strengthen the curriculum.(2) Student-faculty coproduction transforms learners into engaged participants.(3)

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We distributed a Qualtrics survey to evaluate research opportunities and barriers in medical school. An interprofessional faculty—student Research Education Group (REG) was created to identify gaps in curricular resources related to student research, research methodology, biostatistics, and integration of evidence-based medicine across the four years. Three workgroups meet bi-monthly: Communication, Curriculum and Faculty Development.

Outcomes:

Survey responses from 203 medical students provided data on research activities, outcomes, and barriers experienced by those who did not do research. Data analysis contributed support for curriculum renovation. In only three months, the REG developed required curriculum on research planning, data evaluation, writing, and Big-Data. A new longitudinal hypothesis driven research requirement culminating in preparing a submission for publication has launched. They created optional, virtual "luncheons" to introduce mentors and improve communication.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The interprofessional student-faculty collaboration was essential to develop longitudinal and individual curricular components to drive student research and improve research competencies,(1) despite current challenges of remote Covid-19 curriculum implementation. Developing a web-based curriculum structure requires instructional technology support.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Developing a strong student-faculty and interprofessional collaboration for optimal co-production to attain student research competencies has potential in any institution.

References:

- 1.Scott, K. W., Callahan, D. G., Chen, J. J., Lynn, M. H., Cote, D. J., Morenz, A., Fisher, J., Antoine, V. L., Lemoine, E. R., Bakshi, S. K., Stuart, J., Hundert, E. M., Chang, B. S., & Gooding, H. (2019). Fostering Student-Faculty Partnerships for Continuous Curricular Improvement in Undergraduate Medical Education. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges, 94(7), 996–1001. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.00000000000002726
- 2. Boninger, Michael, MD; Troen, Philip, MD; Green, Emily, MA; Borkan, Jeffrey, MD, PhD; Lance-Jones, Cynthia, PhD; Humphrey, Allen, PhD; Gruppuso, Philip, MD; Kant, Peter, MA; McGee, James, MD; Willochell, Michael; Schor, Nina, MD, PhD; Kanter, Steven L., MD; Levine, Arthur S., (2010) MD Implementation of a Longitudinal Mentored Scholarly Project: An Approach at Two Medical Schools. Academic Medicine, 85(3), 429-437. doi: 10.1097/ACM.0b013e3181ccc96f
- 3. Athakkakath, M., Al-Maskari, A., & Kumudha, A. (2015). Coproduction of Knowledge: A Literature Review and Synthesis for a University Paradigm.

For more information about this abstract please contact: hannah.saven@downstate.edu

<u>Teaching What Matters: Integrating Student-Led Surgical Disparities Education</u> into the Surgical Clerkship

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Olivia Familusi, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Kristin Goodsell, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Hillary Mulvey, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Cheyenne Williams, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Andrea Yeguez, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Ari Brooks, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To increase learner awareness of surgical health inequities and provide learners with assessment frameworks and interventions to address these disparities.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Surgeon awareness of surgical health inequities is low (1,2). To combat this, we created a surgical disparities learning module for the surgical clerkship.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This module consisted of asynchronous pre-readings on surgical disparities frameworks (3,4), and a pre-recorded prostate cancer lecture. Synchronous material included a 1-hour case-based discussion, based on the pre-readings and adapted from the AUA Medical Student Curriculum (5), that were led by rotating groups of upper-level student facilitators.

Levels 2a (attitudes) and 2b (knowledge) of Kirkpatrick's model for programmatic evaluation were used.6 Responses to pre- and post-course questionnaires were analyzed by Pearson's chi-squared test. Free-text responses were thematically analyzed based on grounded theory methodology (7).

Outcomes:

Eighty-one learners completed the module and surveys (response rate: 65% Pre-, 26% Post-). Responses indicated post-module increased perception of having a framework to assess surgical disparities (87% vs 20%; p<0.01) and greater knowledge of interventions for addressing disparities among learners (78% vs 22%; p<0.01). Thematic analysis revealed increased ability to describe prevalence and causes of health disparities and to identify a framework for assessing causes of disparities. Almost all students agreed disparities-related knowledge would make them a better physician (96%).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This module focused on providing a framework for assessing disparities, thus it is adaptable to various surgical topics. Student led teaching both allows upper-level students to practice teaching skills while facilitating peer-based discussions of student experience with surgical disparities. Limited post-survey responses is a limitation to the program evaluation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This module focused on providing a framework for assessing disparities, thus it is adaptable to various surgical topics. Asynchronous reading and pre-recorded lectures make the material transferable to other

institutions. We provide an example of effectively incorporating health disparities teaching into medical school curricula.

References:

- 1. Britton BV, Nagarajan N, Zogg CK, et al. Awareness of racial/ethnic disparities in surgical outcomes and care: factors affecting acknowledgment and action. Am J Surg. 2016;212(1):102-108.e2. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2015.07.022
- 2. Britton BV, Nagarajan N, Zogg CK, et al. US Surgeons' Perceptions of Racial/Ethnic Disparities in Health Care: A Cross-sectional Study. JAMA Surg. 2016;151(6):582. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2015.4901
- 3. Haider AH, Scott VK, Rehman KA, Velopulos C, Bentley JM, Cornwell EE 3rd, Al-Refaie W. Racial disparities in surgical care and outcomes in the United States: a comprehensive review of patient, provider, and systemic factors. J Am Coll Surg. 2013 Mar;216(3):482-92.e12. doi: 10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2012.11.014. Epub 2013 Jan 11. PMID: 23318117; PMCID: PMC5995336.
- 4. Mj T, Ac M-B, I D-M, et al. Surgical Disparities: A Comprehensive Review and New Conceptual Framework. J Am Coll Surg. 2016;223(2):408-418. doi:10.1016/j.jamcollsurg.2016.04.047
- 5. American Urological Association. AUA Medical Students Curriculum. American Urological Association. Accessed June 20, 2020. https://www.auanet.org/education/auauniversity/education-and-career-resources/for-medical-students
- 6. Yardley S, Dornan T. Kirkpatrick's levels and education "evidence." Med Educ. 2012;46(1):97-106. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2923.2011.04076.x
- 7. Charmaz K. Constructing Grounded Theory: A Practical Guide through Qualitative Analysis. SAGE; 2006.

For more information about this abstract please contact: OLIVIAFAMILUSI3@GMAIL.COM

<u>An Interdisciplinary and Virtual Health Policy Curriculum for Health Professions</u> Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Alexandra Greenberg, SUNY Downstate Medical School Radhika Viswanathan, SUNY Downstate Medical School Sana Sajjad, SUNY Downstate Medical School Bethel Ozed-Williams, SUNY Downstate Medical School Daniel Ehlke, SUNY Downstate School of Public Health Orlando Ivan Solá, SUNY Downstate School of Public Health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To develop a peer-facilitated model for teaching health professions students about health policy and equipping them to become student advocates.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Health policy education is often inaccessible to health professions students, but is invaluable given the complexity of the US healthcare system and existence of health inequities, exacerbated by COVID-19. Our multidisciplinary team of public health and medical students adapted an existing health policy curriculum into a student-driven, flexible virtual elective to meet interdisciplinary educational needs and interests of health professions students across schools at SUNY Downstate while also engaging with health policy at a local level in Brooklyn.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The adapted curriculum consists of pre-readings and select components from twelve asynchronous lectures and four synchronous competency-based sessions, originally developed by faculty using the Kern model. Our elective is the first student-driven course using this curriculum template. It includes a peer-moderated discussion forum, policy-based writing assignment, and culminates in a local advocacy event. Through student leadership, we have created an individualized and dynamic learning experience implemented across diverse educational contexts.

Outcomes:

Pre- and post-surveys evaluate satisfaction (Kirkpatrick Level 1), knowledge gained (Level 2), and competencies developed (Level 3) for sessions. Results of the previous 36-participant faculty-led elective showed a statistically significant increase in attendants' reported confidence in their knowledge of health policy topics taught. Surveys from our student-run elective will allow us to evaluate relative efficacy of peer facilitation in health policy education.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of our curriculum include mentorship from health policy faculty and adaptation of a successful curriculum, which utilizes the evidence-based CDC framework. Limitations include difficulty coordinating the curriculum in parallel with ongoing coursework across multiple health programs.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This curriculum is readily transferable across health professions schools given use of virtual modules accessible at individual paces and fluidity of topics, which can be adapted to current policy events across the country.

References:

- 1. Reforming Health Professions Education Will Require Culture Change And Closer Ties Between Classroom And Practice. Health Affairs. 2013;32(11):1928-1932.
- 2. Thibault GE. Public health education reform in the context of health professions education reform. Am J Public Health. 2015;105 Suppl 1(Suppl 1):S8-S10. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2014.302407
- 3. Sklar DP. COVID-19: Lessons From the Disaster That Can Improve Health Professions Education. Acad Med. 2020;95(11):1631-1633. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000000003547
- 4. Thomas PA, Kern DE, Hughes MT, Chen BY. Curriculum development for medical education: A six-step approach. Johns Hopkins University Press; 2015.
- 5. Smidt A, Balandin S, Sigafoos J, Reed VA. The Kirkpatrick model: A useful tool for evaluating training outcomes. Journal of Intellectual & Developmental Disability. 2009;34(3):266-274.
- 6. Walton R, Greenberg A, Ehlke D, Solá O. Development of a Health Policy Elective for Medical Students During the COVID-19 Pandemic: A Pilot Study. PRIMER. 2020;4:29. https://doi.org/10.22454/PRIMER.2020.557079
- 7. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. CDC's Policy Analytical Framework. Atlanta, GA: CDC; 2013.

For more information about this abstract please contact: Alexandra.Greenberg@downstate.edu

<u>The Underrepresented, Low-Income, and First Time (UpLIFT) Project: A comprehensive, open-access guide to medical school admissions aimed to increase educational equity for underrepresented pre-medical students.</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Eric Li, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Cheyenne Williams, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Michaela Hitchner, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Anusha Naik, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
K Charlotte Lee, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Sally Nijm, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Hasan Ahmad, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Fahad Ahmed, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Lori Jia, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Suzanne Rose, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Deliver comprehensive, up-to-date information about preparing for medical school via an open-access web-based platform.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Minority, first-generation, and low-income students continue to be underrepresented among medical school matriculants[1]. Roughly 50% of matriculating students each year came from the top quintile of household income[2]. One factor contributing to this disparity is a lack of reliable and affordable resources necessary for navigating the pre-medical and application process[3,4]. Open-access advising resources can address these issues.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Twenty-six medical students applied a curriculum development model to determine needs, develop objectives, design and create The UpLIFT Guide, a comprehensive resource for medical school applicants, organized temporally from completing pre-medical coursework to navigating financial aid processes[5]. The resource includes ready-to-use email templates, budget spreadsheets, and scholarship resources. It was disseminated via the website (https://uplift.guide), social media, and outreach to undergraduate pre-health advisors. Downloads of the resource and website traffic were recorded, and end-user feedback was collected.

Outcomes:

The UpLIFT Guide launched online on August 27, 2020. Over 13 weeks, the resource was viewed 7223 times by 3373 unique users, downloaded 303 times, and used by 34 undergraduate institutions. The Guide has also been paired with national mentorship efforts and endorsed by medical school faculty and pre-health advisors at several universities. Preliminary reviews indicate that this guide fulfills the need for accessible advising.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of this innovation include its ability to increase educational equity by providing ready-to-use materials specific for underrepresented pre-med applicants and its "crowd-sourcing" model to compile

reliable advice. The limitations are that the resource requires internet access, which may be a barrier for some. Qualitative feedback and admissions outcomes are forthcoming.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The open-access resource is easily accessible online to pre-health offices and interested students. We continue to build relationships with pre-health advisors and work with national mentorship organizations to connect applicants with in-person or virtual mentors.

References:

- 1. Lett, L. A., Murdock, H. M., Orji, W. U., Aysola, J., & Sebro, R. (2019). Trends in racial/ethnic representation among US medical students. JAMA network open, 2(9), e1910490-e1910490.
- 2. Grbic, D., Jones, D. J., & Case, S. T. (2015). The role of socioeconomic status in medical school admissions: validation of a socioeconomic indicator for use in medical school admissions. Academic Medicine, 90(7), 953-960.
- 3. An Updated Look at the Economic Diversity of U.S. Medical Students. AAMC. Accessed December 4, 2020. https://www.aamc.org/data-reports/analysis-brief/report/updated-look-economic-diversity-us-medical-students
- 4. Bauer, H. H., Anderson, C. B., Hirko, K., & Wendling, A. (2019). Barriers to college and health care careers among US students from a rural community. PRiMER: Peer-Review Reports in Medical Education Research, 3.
- 5. Chen, B. Y., Kern, D. E., Kearns, R. M., Thomas, P. A., Hughes, M. T., & Tackett, S. (2019). From modules to MOOCs: application of the six-step approach to online curriculum development for medical education. Academic Medicine, 94(5), 678-685.

For more information about this abstract please contact: cheyenne.williams@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

Conscious Efforts to Address Unconscious Biases in Healthcare Delivery Training: The iPAC (integrated Pain and Addiction Curriculum) Program at Stony Brook Renaissance School of Medicine

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Kevin Zacharoff, Renaissance School of Medicine at Stony Brook University Phyllis Migdal, Renaissance School of Medicine at Stony Brook University Perrilynn Baldelli, Renaissance School of Medicine at Stony Brook University Richard Iuli, Renaissance School of Medicine at Stony Brook University Wei-Hsin Lu, Stony Brook University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To increase learners awareness of inherent implicit and explicit biases in physicians.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The iPAC curriculum (integrated Pain and Addiction Curriculum) focuses on pain and opioid use and was integrated longitudinally across our existing LEARN curriculum1, first establishing baseline knowledge and skills then gradually building on this foundation for students to apply and practice.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We developed three case vignettes with the goal of demonstrating how biases may impact care and medical decision-making in patients with pain and/or substance use disorders. The inaugural iPAC curriculum was implemented for incoming students during the Transition to Medical and Dental School course via a 2-hour Zoom class session. Prior to the session, a survey consisting of components from validated surveys such as the Race Implicit Association Test (IAT)2 was administered. The cases were presented using a progressive case disclosure approach and a voice-over PowerPoint of audio interactions between a physician and three patients requesting early prescription refills. Audience response questions were embedded throughout the presentation polling students for their thoughts in response to the unfolding cases.

Outcomes:

Over one quarter (26.6%) of the participating Medical and Dental students (n=173) were found to have no preference towards African or European Americans which is higher than the participants on the IAT website (18%).2 Audience response data indicated students were more comfortable prescribing an early opioid medication refill to an elderly Caucasian woman patient (23% comfortable), who in fact did not need it, compared to the other two patients; a Caucasian male (2%) and an African American male (1%).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This curriculum highlights topics that are important both locally and nationally. Our data represents baseline data of one cohort of students at the beginning stages of the curriculum implementation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

iPAC is a multimodal, longitudinal, and integrated curriculum that can be implemented at various stages of training appropriate for the learner.

References:

1. Chandran L, Iuli RJ, Strano-Paul L, Post SG. Developing "a Way of Being": Deliberate Approaches to Professional Identity

Formation in Medical Education. Academic Psychiatry: the journal of the American Association of Directors of Psychiatric Residency Training and the Association for Academic Psychiatry. 2019 Oct;43(5):521-527.

2. Project Implicit. Harvard University. https://implicit.harvard.edu/implicit/iatdetails.html

For more information about this abstract please contact: wei-hsin.lu@stonybrookmedicine.edu

NEGEA Special Interest group (SIG): Health Humanities as Teaching and Learning Strategy

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Alice Fornari, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Leigh Ann Holterman, Larner College of Medicine Angela Sweeney, UMass Medical School - Baystate Tara Jenna, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Lisa Martin, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To cultivate a regional Community of Practice (CoP) for medical educators interested in health humanities (HH) and reflective practice as a pedagogical framework. This community can support and collate interests of diverse inter-professionals who collaborate on projects and share ideas. In addition, engaging in reflective practices and nurturing one's interest in the humanities builds resilience to flourish in healthcare environments.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

This reflective practice theoretical framework, to develop three types of reflection: in-action, on-action, for action, leads to a parallel interest in HH as a prompt for reflective practice. HH programming explores the arts and humanities as both formal and informal content and how this can inform physician-patient relationships, cultural humility, and physician well-being.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The SIG, approved by the NEGEA Steering Committee in April 2018, initiated interest among attendees at a regional meeting lunch and learn. Based on individuals that came forward formed a small task force was formed across 5 NEGEA medical schools to plan a kickoff event.

Outcomes:

The inaugural virtual event took place in July 2019. Since that event we have had five virtual events in 2020 and one planned for early 2021. Participation crosses AAMC regions and a ½ day symposium resulted in 250 participants. Each event is framed by different humanities formats to prompt discussion on content and teaching skills. The SIG has about 100 'members', with open enrollment.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Our intent is to display early strengths of our CoP SIG model to utilize HH as a teaching and learning pedagogical tool with diverse programs. A limitation is how to reach the continuum of medical education: students, trainees and faculty and foster relationships for a successful vision within required curriculum.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our goal is for this regional SIG to exemplify a partnership and collaboration with other AAMC regions to support successful programming to serve all AAMC member institutions.

References:

- 1. Adams Z, Reisman A. Beyond Sparking Joy: A Call for a Critical Medical Humanities. Acad Med. 2019 Oct;94(10):1404. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002871. PMID: 31567206.
- 2. Blackie M, Wear D, Zarconi J. Narrative Intersectionality in Caring for Marginalized or Disadvantaged Patients: Thinking

Beyond Categories in Medical Education and Care. Acad Med. 2019 Jan;94(1):59-63. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002425. PMID: 30134270.

- 3. Bleakley A. Invoking the Medical Humanities to Develop a #MedicineWeCanTrust. Acad Med. 2019 Oct;94(10):1422-1424. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002870. PMID: 31299677.
- 4. Engholm VB, Boria D. Proposing a Health Humanities Minor: Some Lessons. J Med Humanit. 2017 Dec;38(4):409-417. doi: 10.1007/s10912-017-9461-5. PMID: 28623439.
- 5. Gillies J. Compassion, medical humanities and medical education. Educ Prim Care. 2018 Mar;29(2):68-70. doi: 10.1080/14739879.2018.1427004. Epub 2018 Jan 26. PMID: 29373950.
- 6. Greene C, Pearson A, Uwhubetine O, Rowley W, Chung B. Narrative medicine as a medical education tool: A medical student perspective. Med Teach. 2020 Apr;42(4):476. doi: 10.1080/0142159X.2019.1626357. Epub 2019 Jun 14. PMID: 31195910.
- 7. Klugman CM. How Health Humanities Will Save the Life of the Humanities. J Med Humanit. 2017 Dec;38(4):419-430. doi: 10.1007/s10912-017-9453-5. PMID: 28642990.
- 8. Klugman CM. Medical Humanities Teaching in North American Allopathic and Osteopathic Medical Schools. J Med Humanit. 2018 Dec;39(4):473-481. doi: 10.1007/s10912-017-9491-z. PMID: 29110114.
- 9. Kumagai AK. Beyond "Dr. Feel-Good": A Role for the Humanities in Medical Education. Acad Med. 2017 Dec;92(12):1659-1660. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000001957. PMID: 28991843.
- 10. Milota MM, van Thiel GJMW, van Delden JJM. Narrative medicine as a medical education tool: A systematic review. Med Teach. 2019 Jul;41(7):802-810. doi: 10.1080/0142159X.2019.1584274. Epub 2019 Apr 14. PMID: 30983460.
- 11. Sklar DP. Health Humanities and Medical Education: Joined by a Common Purpose. Acad Med. 2017 Dec;92(12):1647-1649. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000001972. PMID: 29210729.
- 12. Thibault GE. Humanism in Medicine: What Does It Mean and Why Is It More Important Than Ever? Acad Med. 2019 Aug;94(8):1074-1077. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002796. PMID: 31135401.
- 13. Wald HS, McFarland J, Markovina I. Medical humanities in medical education and practice. Med Teach. 2019 May;41(5):492-496. doi: 10.1080/0142159X.2018.1497151. Epub 2018 Aug 23. PMID: 30134753.

For more information about this abstract please contact: afornari@northwell.edu

<u>Ready for Sub-Is – An EPA-based gateway training to entrust learners for sub-internship electives</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Athina Vassilakis, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Jonathan Amiel, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Rachel Gordon, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Shubha Dathatri, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Create a curriculum focused on advanced clinical skills (EPAs 4, 6, 8, and 10) to prepare students for better sub-internship performance.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The competencies needed to enter and succeed in sub-internship and beyond are not clearly defined in the literature. The context of the COVID-19 pandemic created further need to focus on student preparation at this critical juncture given the limitations they have faced during their core clerkship year. We realigned our post-core- clerkship clinical skills training to provide additional practice opportunities and advanced skill training before students move to the next phase of the curriculum. Additional enrichment opportunities will be offered as needed based on performance, rendering this course a gateway point in our curriculum.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Key course content was developed by reviewing relevant educational literature and surveying needs/perspectives of sub-internship directors as well as third- and fourth-year students. This three-day, remote pilot is a hybrid (synchronous and asynchronous) course designed to promote advanced clinical reasoning. There is a different case each day. The morning begins with an Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE), which flows into an interactive online module.

Outcomes:

To examine the impact of the course and growth in clinical skills, we will conduct pre-/post- tests within the course, evaluate OSCE scores, and assess sub-internship performance through workplace-based assessments and final evaluations compared to historical/contemporary controls. Student and sub-internship director surveys will further help us gain insights into course efficacy and satisfaction.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths of the innovation include a formative approach to honing clinical skills and focusing on advanced EPA skills required for sub-internship experiences. Challenges include finding time within the curriculum to include this coursework and optimizing learning clinical skills in the remote, digital setting.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

For medical schools that already use OSCEs and a flexible Learning Management System in their curriculum, adaptation to align with preparation for sub-internships is possible.

References:

1) Herrigel DJ, Donovan C, Goodman E, Pradhan A, Bridgeman MM, Hogshire L, Fanning C, Whitman A, Maniaci M, Kim S. Simulation as a Platform for Development of Entrustable Professional Activities: A Modular, Longitudinal Approach. Cureus. 2020 Oct 22;12(10).

- 2) McGaghie WC, Harris IB. Learning Theory Foundations of Simulation-Based Mastery Learning. Simul Healthc. 2018 Jun;13(3S Suppl 1):S15-S20.
- 3) Keeley, Meg G. MD; Gusic, Maryellen E. MD; Morgan, Helen K. MD; Aagaard, Eva M. MD; Santen, Sally A. MD, PhD Moving Toward Summative Competency Assessment to Individualize the Postclerkship Phase, Academic Medicine: December 2019 Volume 94 Issue 12 p 1858-1864.
- 4) Michelle Daniel, Jennifer Stojan, Margaret Wolff, Bizath Taqui, Tiffany Glasgow, Susan Forster, Todd Cassese Applying four-component instructional design to develop a case presentation curriculum Perspect Med Educ (2018) 7:276–280.

For more information about this abstract please contact: av2060@columbia.edu

"If not now, When? Confronting Racism and Health Inequity in the COVID Era" Conference Reflections

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Jessica Mineroff, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Colleen Beckford, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Isabella Giunta, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Alexandra Greenberg, State University of New York Downstate Medical School Anjali Jaiman, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Andrea Martinez, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Chanelle Simmons, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Tatyana Yatsenko, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Julia Sokel, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Justin Ingram, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The student-organized conference created a space for community voices to shift the narrative of COVID-19 disparities beyond pre-existing conditions towards a critical understanding of how systemic oppression creates the health inequities witnessed during this pandemic.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Students organized in response to the lack of education regarding COVID-19 disparities. "If not now, When? Confronting Racism and Health Inequity in the COVID Era" ("INNW"), is part of an annual student-led conference, Social Justice in Health, which aims to enrich our curriculum by direct engagement with our community.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The conference included a keynote address from a health justice historian, panel discussions with community organizers, breakout workshops with civil rights activists, and closing remarks from the NYC Public Advocate. Sessions addressed issues including structural oppression during the pandemic, advocacy, and the future of pandemic response. We identified steps to transform institutions that create and perpetuate these disparities.

Outcomes:

"INNW" featured 200 participants from across the country. Nearly all respondents agreed that the conference deepened their understanding of the roots and manifestations of structural racism, particularly in the context of pandemics.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Highlighting the perspectives and lived experiences of community members allowed us to address the real, rather than perceived, needs of local neighborhoods. Breakout sessions and panels mobilized participants to become more than passive listeners. The virtual format provided accessibility to participants and speakers without travel/expense limitations. Survey collection was poor in comparison to attendance. Our survey data is not representative of participant demographics nor the breadth of ideas that were discussed.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The conference featured NYC activists who analyzed systemic health injustices at the local level. However, these organizational principles and thematic contents can be adopted by medical institutions across the country to teach students how to critically analyze COVID-19 disparities in their own communities.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: Jessica.Mineroff@downstate.edu

"The Patient Will See You Now:" Harnessing Telehealth Technology to Implement a Synchronous, Virtual Clinical Rotation in the Age of COVID

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Brittany Guttadauria, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Megan Lavoie, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Jill Posner, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Mamata Senthil, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Anna Weiss, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Our primary aim was to implement a virtual clinical rotation harnessing telehealth technology to allow for real-time patient encounters. Our secondary aim was to establish the acceptability of this curriculum as we approximated the clinical precepting relationship in a remote format.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In this unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic, medical educators were tasked with designing curricula allowing students to enhance clinical skills in a remote setting and providing resident trainees with ongoing experience as teachers. Using telehealth and virtual meeting technologies, we designed a student elective to continue to provide these opportunities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Content in our virtual rotation was delivered via multiple technological modalities, including remote meeting software and camera-equipped mobile tablets. Students were paired with resident preceptors who were on-site and who brought the mobile tablets into patient rooms for each encounter. The student conducted the patient interview and observed the resident's physical exam via telehealth. The two then discussed the case and the student presented the patient to the attending physician via the mobile tablet. Feasibility and acceptability were assessed through student evaluations of the rotation and by surveying the resident preceptors.

Outcomes:

In post-rotation evaluations, students reported the virtual elective allowed them to refine their history-taking skills and to practice presenting synthesized differential diagnoses as they would on an in-person rotation.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This innovative elective demonstrates telehealth can promote teaching and learning educational experiences when the learner is remote. Limitations include longer patient encounters due to working a new technology into patient flow.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Harnessing telehealth, telesimulation, and remote meeting technologies is a feasible way to ensure learners continue to hone their clinical skills even when they are unable to be physically present, and can be translated to any educator-learner dyad who are equipped with a tablet/phone and internet abilities.

References:

Rose S. Medical Student Education in the Time of COVID-19. JAMA. 2020;323(21):2131–2132.

For more information about this abstract please contact: bguttadauria19@gmail.com

<u>Immersive Legislative Advocacy: Piloting a Novel Elective to Develop Medical</u> Student Advocates

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Kiara Taquechel, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Hilary Bediako, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Adora Moneme, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Faith Arimoro, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Nolan Kavanagh, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Jenifer Martin, University of Michigan School of Public Health Daphne Owens, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To design an elective course for medical students that enhances their understanding of the legislative process and empowers them to advocate for policies that promote health equity.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Several physician societies recognize advocacy as an essential responsibility of physicians. Many have called for physicians to take a more active role in policy, politics, and legislation. However, while many institutions have developed brief lecture- or skills-based advocacy experiences, the literature on advocacy training in medical education demonstrates a dearth of programs that directly engage medical students in the legislative process.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We piloted an elective course on legislative advocacy for medical students. The course consisted of eleven 1.5-hour sessions, each designed to develop a specific skill for effective advocacy, such as how to review policy evaluations, identify bills that would promote health equity, elaborate talking points, and draft one-page summaries of bills. The course culminated in required meetings with state legislators to advocate for two bills that students identified.

Outcomes:

The course enrolled 35 students. Students identified two bills on police reform active in the state legislature's current session and collectively met with approximately 100 state legislators to advocate for them. At the course's completion, students reported an enhanced understanding of the state's government systems, strong attitudes that physicians have an important role in legislative advocacy, and competence in a variety of advocacy skills.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The course successfully engaged a cohort of students in the legislative process, beyond pedagogical training. However, it was limited by funding and the availability of legislators, who often limited meetings to constituents from their district.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The elective was adapted from a similar experience at the University of Michigan. It can be delivered fully online (as we did) or in-person, requiring only the availability of student preceptors and a faculty adviser to implement it.

References:

- 1. Arya, N. (2013). Advocacy as medical responsibility. CMAJ, 185(15), 1368-1368. https://doi.org/10.1503/cmaj.130649
- 2. Chung Esther K., Kahn Stephanie, Altshuler Marc, Lane J. Lindsey, & Plumb James. (2016). The JeffSTARS Advocacy and Community Partnership Elective: A Closer Look at Child Health Advocacy in Action. MedEdPORTAL, 12. https://doi.org/10.15766/mep 2374-8265.10526
- 3. Luft, L. M. (2017). The essential role of physician as advocate: How and why we pass it on. Canadian Medical Education Journal, 8(3), e109–e116.

For more information about this abstract please contact: <u>kiara.taquechel@pennmedicine.upenn.edu</u>

<u>Teaching Health Equity by Neighborhood: Exploring the 15 year Life Expectancy</u> **Gap at the School of Medicine Doorstep**

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Kirsten Ek, UCONN School of Medicine Courtenay Jackson, Office of the Mayor, Hartford Emil Coman, UCONN Health Kathryn Fiducia, AmeriCorps Gregory Pollard, AmeriCorps Ellen Nestler, UCONN School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Students have clinical rotations in neighborhoods with starkly different life expectancies despite being within the same 8-mile radius. We aim to equip students with skills to assess neighborhood health assets and challenges through a lens of health equity.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The module is framed around the astonishing 15-year life expectancy gap between the neighborhoods of the School of Medicine (SOM) and the socioeconomically vulnerable neighborhoods of the North Hartford Promise Zone (NHPZ). Students explore stakeholders' perceptions of contributing factors and the physician's role in reducing the gap.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Students receive background material on the history of the NHPZ, including its redlining. Students receive instruction on health asset mapping using windshield tours and stakeholder interviews. A tour curated by the Mayor's Office is followed by a community forum with NHPZ stakeholders including the Urban League, Health & Human Services, HUD, United Way, AmeriCorp interns, business, religious, cultural, environmental, school and public safety leaders, and persons sharing experiences of receiving care in the area. A statistician from the Health Disparities Institute supports the discussion in real-time with PolicyMap, such as showing medical debt by street.

Outcomes:

Students will inventory reasons for the life expectancy gap and be able to capture these challenges in future encounters using social determinants of health ICD coding (Z codes). Students will analyze suggestions from stakeholders on how physicians can address identified challenges, with a goal toward closing the life expectancy gap at their doorstep.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Early students will have familiarity with the community, and have considered stakeholders' opinions as to how to help. Conversational topics could be uncomfortable for some participants; a plan for debriefing is advised.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Success depends on the sustained engagement of community leaders. Stakeholders were generous in lending their time and voice to training physicians. All are directly involved in the planning and direction of this module.

References:

- 1. What is the North Hartford Promise Zone? http://www.hartford.gov/mayors-office/115-office-of-the-mayor/1674-north-hartford-promise-zone
- 2. Inequalities in Life Expectancy Among US Counties, 1980 to 2014: Temporal Trends and Key Drivers. Laura Dwyer-Lindgren, MPH1; Amelia Bertozzi-Villa, MPH1; Rebecca W. Stubbs, BA1; et al. JAMA Intern Med. 2017;177(7):1003-1011. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2017.0918 https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamainternalmedicine/fullarticle/2626194
- 3. What is a Windshield Tour and what should I be looking as I complete mine in the NHPZ? Community Toolbox, Chapter 3, Section 21 Windshield and Walking Surveys https://ctb.ku.edu/en/table-of-contents/assessment/assessing-community-needs-and-resources/windshield-walking-surveys/main (Credit: Community Tool Box, Kansas University; S. Fawcett, C. Holt, J. Shultz, P. Rabinowitz)
- 4. Community Toolbox, Chapter 3, Section 22, Using Small Area Analysis to Uncover Disparities https://ctb.ku.edu/en/table-of-contents/assessment/assessing-community-needs-and-resources/small-area-analysis/main
- 5. Alderwick, H., & Gottlieb, L. M. (2019). Meanings and Misunderstandings: A Social Determinants of Health Lexicon for Health Care Systems. The Milbank Quarterly, 97(2).

For more information about this abstract please contact: ek@uchc.edu

SGEA Innovation Abstracts

Middle and High School Students as Standardized Patients: A Pediatric Standardized Patient Case for Pre-clerkship Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Mario Jacomino, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University Peter Averkiou, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University Lisa Martinez, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Medical students' first experience with pediatric history is in the clerkship years. We describe a session involving pre-clerkship students obtaining a history from a teenage standardized patient (SP) so the see the differences when eliciting a medical history in pediatric patients as compared to adult patients

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Medical students are taught clinical skills in their pre-clerkship phase and typically includes communication and physical exam on adult standardized patients (SP). This activity is different in that it uses actual pediatric SPs. We collaborated with medical academies in public schools in our county to have their students function as SP to experience the training provided in medical schools and to increase their interest in pursuing a career in medicine.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A SP scenario was created of a caregiver/parent of an infant. Underrepresented students from middle and high schools were the SP performing the role of the parent. A checklist/benchmarks was utilized to include professionalism and communication skills to prepare the medical students. Pre-clerkship students received instructions and had 45 minutes to complete the interview with the SP inside the room. A faculty observed the interaction with the SP and provided formative feedback. After 45 minutes, all medical students attended a debrief of the activity.

Outcomes:

We had 80% of student completing an evaluation form and felt they had a better understanding of communication with pediatric patients. The middle and high school students gained an appreciation for the medical education system, and felt that the experience was valuable for them and the medical students.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This presents a way to expose pre-clerkship medical students to the pediatric history, while also engaging underrepresented minorities from middle and high school in the medical education process.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This session could be used effectively at other institutions to improve diversity in the medical field, while also providing pre-clerkship students with pediatric experiences.

References:

- 1. Elizabeth E. Pediatric well-child interview standardized patient scenarios. MedEdPORTAL. 2014; 10.
- 2. Patrick M, Coral S. Infant with jaundice: A pediatric standardized patient OSCE case. MedEdPORTAL. 2014; 10.
- 3. Molloy M, Jones A, Johnson M, Stewart R, McGuire M. Pediatric training modules for preclinical medical students.

MedEdPORTAL. 2015; 11.

- 4. Apple R, Fleming, A, Israel S. Pediatric clinical rounds training teaching guide: A preclinical curriculum to improve medicals student comfort with pediatric patients. MedEdPORTAL. 2012; 8.
- 5. Rashied-Henry K, Fraser-White M, Roberts CB, Morgan R, Brown H, Shaw R, et al. Engaging minority high school students as health disparities interns: findings and policy implications of a summer youth pipeline program. J Natl Med Assoc. 2012; 104:412–19.
- 6. Derck J, Zahn K, Finds JG, Mand S, Sandhu G. Doctors of tomorrow: An innovative curriculum connecting underrepresented minority high school students to medical school. Educ Health (serial online) 2016:29'259-65.

For more information about this abstract please contact: <u>mjacomin@health.fau.edu</u>

<u>Learning in Leadership at Carolina- A Career Advancement and Leadership</u> **Program for Women Students**

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Alison Hollis, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Kenya McNeal-Trice, University of North Carolina School of Medicine
Sue Tolleson-Rinehart, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Erin Malloy, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Amelia Drake, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We identified a gap in education of career-advancement and leadership skills in the curriculum. A needs assessment among self-identifying women students identified a perception that students feel their education has lacked formal career development skills. We created a 3-day program, LILAC, to address this gap in education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Social cognitive and social cognitive career theory (SCCT) were used as theoretical framework for the program. SCCT accounts for how experiences impact career choices.1,2 A review found that in most STEM domains, the self-efficacy beliefs of women were often lower than majority of their peers.3 Women-in-medicine programs have shown promise through improved recruitment, retention and creating a culture of inclusion.4,5

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The program included lectures on public speaking, time management, interview rounds, negotiation, mentorship, CV writing, networking, and student-doctor panels.

Outcomes:

Upon IRB approval, participants completed anonymous pre- and post-program surveys that were matched (n=29). We evaluated participants' change in confidence or comfort in career and leadership skills and efficacy of the program. Questions were graded on a scale of 0-100 of each quality. Many educational sessions showed significant improvements in participants' perceived ability. For example, participants increased 37.5 points in comfort negotiating (p < 0.01) and 27.7 points in knowing what questions to ask in an interview (p < 0.01). Participants positively evaluated the program, believed it would facilitate the next step in their career and felt supported as a woman in medicine.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Participants reported improvement in all skills taught. The ease of implementation and strong impact make this initiative worthwhile to implement. A limitation includes time, resources, and availability of students and faculty.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This could be reproduced at any institution in which faculty are motivated to teach these sessions. Curriculum can be catered based on faculty expertise and student interest. Clinical students also requested a similar program for their level of education.

References:

- 1. Connolly MR, Lee YG, Savoy JN. The Effects of Doctoral Teaching Development on Early-Career STEM Scholars' College Teaching Self-efficacy. CBE Life Sci Educ. 2018;17(1):ar14. doi:10.1187/cbe.17-02-0039
- 2. Bandura, Albert, W. H. Freeman, and Richard Lightsey. "Self-efficacy: The exercise of control." (1999): 158-166.
- 3. Lindley LD. The Paradox of Self-Efficacy: Research With Diverse Populations. Journal of Career Assessment. 2006;14(1):143-160. doi:10.1177/1069072705281371
- 4. Smith JL, Stoop C, Young M, Belou R, Held S. Grant-Writing Bootcamp: An Intervention to Enhance the Research Capacity of Academic Women in STEM. Bioscience. 2017;67(7):638-645. doi:10.1093/biosci/bix050

For more information about this abstract please contact: alison hollis@med.unc.edu

<u>Developing a Course on Pandemic Medicine: An Example of Adaptive Expertise</u> in Medical Education

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Kendra Parekh, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine Rachel Apple, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine Travis Crook, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine Cody Chastain, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine William Cutrer, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

During the COVID-19 pandemic, we created a virtual course on pandemic medicine for clerkship and post-clerkship students which was broadly applicable for students with diverse career goals.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

As the pandemic unfolded, many medical schools followed recommendations from the Association of American Medical Colleges to remove students from clinical learning environments. We rapidly engaged clerkship and post-clerkship students in a completely virtual, contextual learning environment while still ensuring progress toward graduation.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Over a two-week period in March 2020, we developed a 4-week virtual course: "Pandemic Medicine Integrated Science Course," for 197 students that was delivered in April 2020. Students were divided into seven tracks to accommodate individualize learning interests: communication and information sharing, ethics, emerging therapeutics, global perspectives, health inequities, leadership, and public health. Case-based learning (CBL) groups were created with representation from each track to allow for application and peer teaching.

Outcomes:

All students (197/197) passed the course and 99% (195/197) completed end-of-course evaluations. Students' reactions to the course were favorable, with students most highly rating the course leadership and mix of learning activities. The mean (SD) overall rating for the course (1=very poor, 5=excellent) was 4.27 (0.80). Comments frequently recognized the unique stressors and compressed timeline required to design a large, virtual course.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Development of this course is an example of adaptive expertise in medical education as the course was developed during unprecedented circumstances in a time-compressed manner; a range of standard and innovative educational strategies had to be adapted to meet these demands.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We plan to incorporate the course into the formal curriculum with modifications to the CBL cases and clinical experiences in the future. The overall approach to curriculum development and the course structure serves as a model for others and may be employed at any institution by adapting to local context and available expertise.

References:

- 1. Rose S. Medical student education in the time of COVID-19. [published online ahead of print March 31, 2020]. JAMA. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.5227
- 2. Association of American Medical Colleges. Important guidance for medical students on clinical rotations during the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. Press release. https://www.aamc.org/news-insights/press-releases/important-guidance-medical-students-clinical-rotations-during-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreak. Published March 17, 2020. Accessed May 17, 2020.
- 3. Gottlieb M, Wagner E, Wagner A, Chan T. Applying design thinking principles to curricular development in medical education. Acad Emerg Med Educ Training. 2017;1(1):21-26.

For more information about this abstract please contact: rachel.apple@vumc.org

<u>Tuesdays are Great for Teaching Tips: A Spaced Education Strategy for Faculty</u> **Development**

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Colleen Kalynych, University of Florida College of Medicine Jacksonville Linda Edwards, University of Florida College of Medicine Jacksonville Denise West, University of Florida College of Medicine Jacksonville Charity Snodgrass, University of Florida College of Medicine Jacksonville Elisa Zenni, University of Florida College of Medicine Jacksonville

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Faculty development (FD) programs to improve knowledge, skills, and behaviors of faculty as educators is required by ACGME for core faculty. Difficulty in meeting these requirements is consistently reported in the literature. COVID19 has increased the challenge, we sought to develop an innovative program via email utilizing spaced education as a strategy to reimagine delivering course content regarding evaluation and feedback.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Our program utilized spaced education as the theoretical background. Spaced education suggests when information is presented and repeated in small intervals versus a bolus of information, knowledge, skills and behaviors are more easily retained and available for use. Due to limited time for FD, innovative programs that build on prior knowledge, are convenient and encourage practice are of great value.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Our Tuesday's Teaching Tips (TTT) program was a CME approved 14-week course focused on evaluation and feedback. We developed a foundational micro-lecture and weekly emailed spaced-education statements adapted from the literature, using visuospatial triggers to assist with encoding and connection back to the micro-lecture. Faculty completed a course evaluation and reflective statement regarding perceived benefits.

Outcomes:

Thirty-one faculty across specialties completed the course. Evaluations revealed 98% rated the program Good-Excellent, 98% felt information gained would enhance patient care or medical education, 97% had moderate-high confidence in implementing changes in their teaching, and 100% wanted more TTT courses. The majority of comments were positive: "was wonderful," "great format," "taught great techniques," "great idea and a wonderful tool in the midst of COVID."

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Faculty were very receptive to this teaching strategy designed to be easily accessible, eliminated "going to trainings," and used simple strategies to practice. Investigators are qualitatively evaluating comments from faculty and future direction should include assessment of behavioral impact on faculty skills and impact on learners.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Tuesday's Teaching Tips has broad applicability across all specialties and institutions.

References:

- 1. Allen D, Abourbin J, Maar M, Boesch, L, Goertzen, J, Cervin C. Does a one-day workshop improve clinical faculty's comfort and behavior in practicing and teaching evidenced-based medicine? A Canadian methods study. BMJ Open. 2017;7:e015174: 1-7. doi:10.1136/bmjopen-2016-015174
- 2. Artino A, Konopasky, A. The practical value of educational theory for learning and teaching in graduate medical education. J Grad Med Ed. Dec 2018 DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.4300/JGME-D-18-00825.1
- 3. Barsoumian AE, Yun HC. Augmenting fellow education through spaced multiple-choice questions. Mil Med. 2018;183(1-2):e122-e126. doi:10.1093/milmed/usx020.
- 4. Cepeda NJ, Pashler, H, Vul, E, Wixted, J, Rohrer, D. Distributed practice in verbal recall tasks: A review and quantitative synthesis. Am Psych Assoc. 2006;132(3): 354-380
- 5. Common Program Requirements (Residency). Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education.
- https://www.acgme.org/What-We-Do/Accreditation/Common-Program-Requirements. Published June 10, 2018.
- 6. Gandhi M, Beasley A, Vinas E, Sangi-Haghpeykar H, Ramin SM, Kilpatrick CC. Electronic learning—spaced education to facilitate resident knowledge and guide program didactics. Obstet Gynecol. 2016;128. doi:10.1097/aog.000000000001576.
- 7. Gottlieb M, Riddell J, Crager, S. Alternatives to the conference status quo: Addressing the learning needs of emergency medicine residents. Annals of EM. 2016;68(4):423-430
- 8. Hill AG, Yu T-C, Barrow M, Hattie J. A systematic review of resident-as-teacher programmes. Med Educ. 2009;43(12):1129-1140. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2923.2009.03523.x.
- 9. House H, Monuteaux MC, Nagler J. A Randomized educational interventional trial of spaced education during a pediatric rotation. AEM Edu Train. 2017;1(2):151-157. doi:10.1002/aet2.10025.
- 10. Kang SHK. Spaced Repetition Promotes Efficient and Effective Learning. Policy Insights from the Behavioral and Brain Sciences. 2016;3(1):12-19. doi:10.1177/2372732215624708.
- 11. Kang SHK, Lindsey RV, Mozer MC, Pashler H. Retrieval practice over the long term: Should spacing be expanding or equal-interval? Psychon Bull Rev. 2014;21:1544-1550. doi:10.3758/s13423-014-0636-z.
- 12. Kerfoot BP, Fu Y, Baker H, Connelly D, Ritchey ML, Genega EM. Online spaced education generates transfer and improves long-term retention of diagnostic skills: A randomized controlled trial. J Am Coll Surg.
- 13. Kamel-ElSayed S, Loftus, S. Using and combining learning theories in medical education. Med Science Ed. 2018; 28:25-258
- 14. Matzie KA, Kerfoot BP, Hafler JP, Breen EM. Spaced education improves the feedback that surgical residents give to medical students: a randomized trial. Am J Surg. 2009;197(2):252-257. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2008.01.025.
- 15. Pernar LI, Corso K, Lipsitz SR, Breen E. Using spaced education to teach interns about teaching skills. Am J Surg. 2013;206(1):120-127. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2012.05.034.
- 16. Shenoi R, Rubalcava D, Naik-Mathuria B, et al. Interactive spaced online education in pediatric trauma. SAGE Open Med Case Rep. 2016;6(2):215824401665316. doi:10.1177/2158244016653167.
- 17. Torre DM, Daley, BJ, Sebastian, JL, Elnicki, M. Overview of current learning theories for medical educators. Assoc Prof of Med. 2006;119:10:903-906
- 18. Weidman J, Baker K. The cognitive science of learning: Concepts and strategies for the educator and learner. Anesth Analg. 2015;121(5):1586-1599. doi: 10.1213/ANE.000000000000890.

For more information about this abstract please contact: Colleen.Kalynych@jax.ufl.edu

<u>Compassionate Off-Ramp Programs: A Way to Leave Medical School with</u> Another Degree

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Ruth Levine, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Jodi Whitlock, University of Illinois College of Medicine Norma Perez Raifaisen, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Nicole Borges, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth Richard Stringham, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Some medical students encounter academic or personal difficulties which prevent them from progressing successfully . Others may decide midway through their education that they no longer want to pursue a medical career. In response, educators at some schools have created "compassionate off-ramp" programs, designed to help students leave medical school and pursue or obtain another degree, typically a Master's degree.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

These programs can help students both financially and emotionally, enabling them to leave their original program with a measure of self esteem, and enter an alternative path which may help them in their future careers.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We performed an online search and identified 12 schools with off-ramp programs willing to participate in a structured 30 minute phone interview. We conducted interviews in 2019 and performed a content analysis on open ended responses to identify, clarify, and reach consensus.

Outcomes:

Degree requirements varied considerably. Most programs awarded a Master of Science in Medical Science or a similar degree. Some programs awarded a degree with no additional requirements; others required additional work or a capstone project. Students were offered access to the programs when they encountered difficulties; programs were not widely promoted.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Most respondents believed that their programs were helpful to both students and the institution. Students valued obtaining credit for effort already expended. Advantages included the opportunity to acknowledge students' work, increase career options, and reduce debt. The major challenge cited was the effort to initiate the program. No institution has conducted long term follow up.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

These programs are both feasible and transferable. While few institutions offer these programs, they appear to be a good strategy for helping students who were unable to or no longer desire to continue their medical education.

References:

- 1. Aagaard EM and Moscoso L: Practical implications of compassionate off-ramps for medical students. Academic Medicine 2019;94(5):619-622. Dio: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002569.
- 2. Bellini LM, Kalet A, Englander R. Providing compassionate off-ramps for medical students is a moral imperative. Academic

Medicine 2019;94(5):656-658. Dio:10.1097/ACM.000000000002568.

3. Stringham R, Whitlock J, Borges N, Perez N, Levine RE: A Snapshot of Current US Medical School Off-Ramp Programs- A Way to Leave Medical School with Another Degree. Medical Science Educator, in press

For more information about this abstract please contact: rlevine@utmb.edu

Establishing a Remote Clinical Skills Research Program

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Laura Weingartner, University of Louisville School of Medicine Emily Noonan, University of Louisville School of Medicine Linda Fuselier, University of Louisville M. Ann Shaw, University of Louisville School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We developed a remote, online clinical skills research program. Although the purpose was to accommodate our multiple clinical/academic campuses that impeded on-site research, this innovation was critical for adapting to pandemic physical distancing requirements.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Recorded standardized patient assessments offer rich but often untapped insight into clinical skills development [1-2]. Observing trainees' clinical skills can engage coders with active learning processes that facilitate knowledge transfer [3], but video coding is also labor intensive—and student research contributions are typically limited by time [4].

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We recruited pre-medical students as research assistants to code videos of medical students completing standardized patient histories. All steps of the research process—mentoring, question development, data collection, analysis, and initial dissemination—were completed remotely through shared cloud-based documents, video conferences, data-collection sheet surveys, and simulation management software to access encounter recordings. Student coders also completed their own pre/post telehealth encounters to demonstrate whether they developed clinical skills through remote coding.

Outcomes:

The remote model allowed us to generate rich data, and we experienced no project interruptions from pandemic distancing requirements. Eleven students coded data remotely, with each completing an internal online research presentation. Student coders also gained clinical skills through the research experience and completed more thorough patient histories afterward (pre-history M=4.6 minutes, post-history M=17.0 minutes).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The innovation is limited by size. However, the program could be readily modeled by both research units and individuals. Remote medical education research facilitates student involvement while benefiting researchers' projects and student coders who gain clinical skills through the process.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Because most academic medical centers record standardized patient encounters, clinical skills research through video coding is highly adaptable to a remote model. This presentation will focus on our lessons learned and demonstrate how participants can build a remote clinical skills research program using existing resources to increase the model's feasibility and transferability.

References:

1. Anderson MB, Stillman PL, Wang Y. Growing use of standardized patients in teaching and evaluation in medical education. Teaching and Learning in Medicine: An International Journal. 1994;6(1):15-22.

- 2. Zhang H, Mörelius E, Goh SHL, Wang W. Effectiveness of video-assisted debriefing in simulation-based health professions education: a systematic review of quantitative evidence. Nurse educator. 2019;44(3):E1-E6.
- 3. Beaird G, Nye C, Thacker LR. The Use of Video Recording and Standardized Patient Feedback to Improve Communication Performance in Undergraduate Nursing Students. Clinical Simulation in Nursing. 2017;13(4):176-85.
- 4. Amgad M, Man Kin Tsui M, Liptrott SJ, Shash E. Medical Student Research: An Integrated Mixed-Methods Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. PLoS One. 2015;10(6):e0127470.

For more information about this abstract please contact: laura.weingartner@louisville.edu

Flipping the Script in a Family Medicine Clerkship: A New Model for Medical Knowledge Delivery

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Denee Moore, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Cherie Edwards, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Melissa Bradner, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study was to determine if there were differences in knowledge gained when students completed the medical knowledge portion of the clerkship without clinical exposure (COVID cohort) compared to students who had standard clerkship instruction with medical knowledge and clinical exposure occurring simultaneously (pre-COVID cohort).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

With the COVID-19 disruption, our school delayed the start of third-year clerkships and shortened the Family Medicine clerkship length by 1 week. There was concern that this would make the simultaneous acquisition of medical knowledge and clinical skills challenging. We decided to have students complete the medical knowledge portion of the clerkship (40 Aquifer Family Medicine online cases) and take the Aquifer written summative examination assessing that knowledge prior to beginning clinical work.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In the COVID cohort, 181 students were given 2 weeks to complete the cases and took the written exam at the end of the 2 weeks. In the pre-COVID cohort, 203 students were given 4 weeks to complete the cases and took the written exam on the last day of the clerkship. The mean score on exam was calculated for the COVID and pre-COVID cohorts and compared. A power calculation (alpha 0.05, power 0.8) to find a difference of 3 points in exam scores would require a sample size of 86 based on the mean and standard deviation.

Outcomes:

The mean score on the exam for the COVID cohort was 78, while the mean score for the pre-COVID cohort was 77. There was no significant difference in the mean score between the groups despite having adequate power to determine a difference.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This approach offers flexibility in the delivery of clinical medical knowledge. A limitation is the lack of follow-up data regarding long-term knowledge retention.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This innovation could be implemented rapidly at institutions that use case-based learning for medical knowledge delivery.

References:

- 1. Aquifer Family Medicine: A Case-Based Virtual Course. Aquifer website. Updated July 1, 2020. Accessed December 9, 2020.
- 2. Hayes JR, Johnston B, Lundh R. Building a Successful, Socially-Distanced Family Medicine Clerkship in the COVID Crisis. PRIMER. 2020;4:34. https://doi.org/10.22454/PRIMER.2020.755864
- 3. Monday LM, Gaynier A, Berschback M, et al. Outcomes of an Online Virtual Boot Camp to Prepare Fourth-Year Medical

Students for a Successful Transition to Internship. Cureus. 2020;12(6):e8558. Published 2020 Jun 11. doi:10.7759/cureus.8558 4. Coffey, C.S., MacDonald, B.V., Shahrvini, B. et al. Student Perspectives on Remote Medical Education in Clinical Core Clerkships During the COVID-19 Pandemic. Med.Sci.Educ. 30, 1577–1584 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1007/s40670-020-01114-9

For more information about this abstract please contact: Denee.Moore@vcuhealth.org

<u>Inclusive Health Education for Residents: Standardized Patient Encounters with</u> Adults with Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Emily Noonan, University of Louisville Priya Chandan, emily.jane.noonan@gmail.com

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective of this educational intervention was to provide Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation (PM&R) residents experience working with people with intellectual/developmental disabilities (PWIDD). We built capacity among community partners by training PWIDD to serve as standardized patients (SPs) at the University of Louisville School of Medicine.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

PWIDD are a priority population for reducing health disparities, as the population is at increased risk for poor health outcomes and [1-3]. One modifiable cause of the cumulative health disparities experienced by PWIDD[4] is lack of healthcare provider training [1-3,5,6]. Interventions to improve physicians' competency are needed, and such efforts should include PWIDD as experts on their lived experiences [1-3,7].

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

SPs with IDD were recruited from Down Syndrome Louisville's (DSL) Actor Program and trained to portray patients with knee/shoulder pain. The encounters focused on communication and patient education. Residents were evaluated by a DSL staff member with a standardized clinical skills assessment, and by SPs with a modified assessment. SPs (n=4), DSL staff (n=2), and residents (n=6) participated in debrief focus groups.

Outcomes:

Participants were positive in their assessment of the experience. SPs reported on the verbal and nonverbal actions that produced positive encounters: "We did eye contact and...talking about my favorite cartoon...my family, my stupid pet, and my house." Residents agreed: "[S]he had a Hogwarts shirt on. I was joking with her about it during the encounter...so just finding common ground with your patient in any way." Participants reported that the act of writing down care instructions encouraged patient understanding.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The strength of this intervention is its meaningful application of inclusive health, by intentionally including PWIDD in a resident educational activity and by adapting assessment methods to be accessible to those with IDD. Limitations include small sample size.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Strong relationships with community partners and individual self-advocates with IDD are vital for success at other institutions.

References:

1. Office of the Surgeon General (US), National Institute of Child Health and Human Development (US), Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (US). Closing the Gap: A National blueprint to improve the health of persons with mental retardation: Report of the Surgeon General's Conference on Health Disparities and Mental Retardation. Washington (DC): US Department of

Health and Human Services; 2002. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK44346/. Accessed December 1, 2017.

- 2. Ervin DA, Hennen B, Merrick J, Morad M. Healthcare for persons with intellectual and developmental disability in the community. Front Public Health. 2014;2. doi:10.3389/fpubh.2014.00083.
- 3. Havercamp SM. National health surveillance of adults with disabilities, adults with intellectual and developmental disabilities, and adults with no disabilities. Disabil Health J. 2015;8(2):165-172.
- 4. Krahn GL, Hammond L, Turner A. A cascade of disparities: Health and health care access for people with intellectual disabilities. Ment Retard Dev Disabil Res Rev. 2006;12(1):70-82.
- 5. Woodard LJ, Havercamp SM, Zwygart KK, Perkins EA. An innovative clerkship module focused on patients with disabilities. Acad Med. 2012;87(4):537-542. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e318248ed0a.
- 6. Robey KL, Minihan PM, Long-Bellil LM, Hahn JE, Reiss JG, Eddey GE. Teaching health care students about disability within a cultural competency context. Disabil Health J. 2013;6(4):271-279.
- 7. lezzoni LI, Long-Bellil LM. Training physicians about caring for persons with disabilities: "Nothing about us without us!" Disability and Health Journal. 2012;5(3):136-139. doi:10.1016/j.dhjo.2012.03.003

For more information about this abstract please contact: ejnoon01@louisville.edu

The development of a set of coaching competencies for medical education using a modified Delphi approach

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Nicole Deiorio, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Margaret Wolff, University of Michigan Medical School Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Maya Hammoud, University of Michigan Medical School Margaret Moore, Institute of Coaching Amy Miller Juve, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Coaching attempts to support academic, professional identity, and wellbeing goals in medical education (1, 2). Scant literature exists on assessing coaches and evaluating programs (3). Identifying the core competencies of a coach would begin to address this gap.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The International Coaching Federation has published executive/leadership coaching competencies (4). The National Board of Health and Wellness Coaches and the National Board of Medical Examiners have developed coaching competencies for healthcare providers. Neither of these were specifically designed for medical education coaching. We describe the creation of a set of coaching competencies for medical education using a modified Delphi approach (5).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The expert team was 7 experts in the field of coaching and/or assessment; 4 are certified coaches. A national Thematic Coaching Meeting occurred in October 2018, open to the AMA Accelerating Change in Medical Education Consortium schools. We also invited experts in coaching, adaptive learning, neuroscience, and medical education. Discussion, led by the study team and informed by our review of the literature, generated categories and individual competencies, using the ICF model as a starting point. Three rounds of consensus process followed by the expert panel in which domains and competencies were finalized.

Outcomes:

7 members participated in three Delphi rounds. 13 competencies in 4 domains resulted: 1. Coaching process and structure: establishing the coaching agreement, meeting management, managing process and accountability, coach self-monitoring. 2. Relational skills: establishing meaningful coaching relationships, emotional intelligence, adaptability, effective communication. 3. Coaching skills: fostering development of master adaptive learners, facilitating coachee wellbeing & professional fulfillment, Emphasizing co-creative collaboration. 4. Coaching theories and research: Identifying current coaching models and tools to support learning, flexibility.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

These competencies share overlap with pre-existing competencies but reflect the unique learning environment and needs of medical learners.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

These competencies can inform learning objectives and coach assessment tools.

References:

- 1. Wolff M, Hammoud M, Santen S, Deiorio N, Fix M. Coaching in undergraduate medical education: a national survey. Med Educ Online. 2020 Dec;25(1):1699765. doi: 10.1080/10872981.2019.1699765. PMID: 31793843; PMCID: PMC6896497.

 2. Cutrer WB, Atkinson HG, Friedman E, Deiorio N, Gruppen LD, Dekhtyar M, Pusic M. Exploring the characteristics and context that allow Master Adaptive Learners to thrive, Medical Teacher. 2018 40:8, 791-796, DOI: 10.1080/0142159X.2018.1484560

 3. Carney PA, Bonura, EM, Kraakevik, JA Miller Juve A, Kahl LE, Deiorio N. Measuring Coaching in Undergraduate Medical
- 3. Carney PA, Bonura, EM, Kraakevik, JA Miller Juve A, Kahl LE, Deiorio N. Measuring Coaching in Undergraduate Medica Education: the Development and Psychometric Validation of New Instruments. J Gen Intern Med. 34, 677–683 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1007/s11606-019-04888-w
- 4. ICF Core Competencies. International Coaching Federation. Updated November 2019. Accessed December 7th, 2020. https://coachfederation.org/core-competencies
- 5. Hasson F, Mckenna HP. Research guidelines for the Delphi Survey Technique. JAN 2000; (April 2016).

For more information about this abstract please contact: nicole.deiorio@vcuhealth.org

Adding validity evidence to a coaching assessment tool

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Nicole Deiorio, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Jean Bailey, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Brieanne Dubinsky, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Deborah DiazGranados, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Prayag Pershad, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Ashlie Tseng, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Medical education coaching evaluation suffers from few tools permitting program evaluation/coach feedback.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

We replicated an existing single-site instrument measuring coaching/the coaching relationship (1) to augment its validity evidence. Questions addressed the highest level of Miller's pyramid ("Does") (2).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

For content validity, all prompts were examined and deemed relevant by the curriculum assessment team. Two were edited for local use ("learning": "EPA"; "OHSU": "VCU") and emailed to all SOM students to assess their coach's performance in the 2019-2020 academic year.

- 1. I am able to accept any weaknesses or challenges my coach helps me understand.
- 2. I am able to work with my coach to select, organize, and interpret information I need to set goals.
- 3. I am able to work with my coach to set specific, measurable, achievable goals.
- 4. I trust my coach to help me navigate my EPA experiences.
- 5. I work with my coach to determine what my success at VCU SOM will look like.
- 6. My coach and I are responsible to each other.
- 7. My coach encourages me to develop my own learning objectives toward my professional development.
- 8. My coach helps me take a closer look at my thinking habits.
- 9. My coach stimulates me to take responsibility for my own learning process.
- 10. What kind of feedback would you like to receive from your coach at this time?
- 11. What would you like your coach to know about how things are going?

Outcomes:

460/806 instruments were returned (62%); 5 submitted blank/with fewer than 2 responses, representing 40/40 (100%) coaches. Full scale ranges were used.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Local contextualization was feasible and demonstrated psychometric strengths. Generalizability may be limited to programs that demonstrate a similarity in their framework for coaching.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We add validity evidence for this tool, which suggests other programs could feasibly incorporate this tool also.

References:

- 1. Carney PA, Bonura EM, Kraakevik JA, Miller Juve A, Kahl LE, Deiorio NM. Measuring Coaching in Undergraduate Medical Education: the Development and Psychometric Validation of New Instruments. Journal of general internal medicine, 2019. 34(5), 677-683.
- 2. Miller GE. The assessment of clinical skills/competence/performance. Acad Med 1990; 65: 563–67.

For more information about this abstract please contact: nicole.deiorio@vcuhealth.org

Applying Coactivity Scales to EPA Assessments of Clerkship Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Gauri Agarwal, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Matthew Imm, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Chi Zhang, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Amar Deshpande, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Barry Issenberg, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Latha Chandran, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study was to evaluate the feasibility of applying coactivity scales to EPA-based assessments by comparing (1) the ratings of students performing EPAs with increasing levels of difficulty, and (2) the ratings of cohorts of students performing the same EPAs over time.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Clinical clerkships provide critical opportunities to evaluate medical student performance on core Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs). However, there is no standardized method for assigning entrustability. The AAMC proposes the use of the Modified Ottawa coactivity scale to anchor entrustability assessments.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We adapted a modified PRIME scale (professionalism, reporter, interpreter, and manager) to assign a developmental hierarchy to the EPAs. To assess student skills in selected EPAs, we used the Modified Ottawa coactivity scale, and assigned a value of 1-4 in order of increasing entrustability to anchors in the scale. We calculated and compared mean ratings of EPAs over time using IBM SPSS Statistics (v25) for descriptive analyses, ANOVA, and general linear models.

Outcomes:

A total of 2623 evaluations (Cronbach's alpha of 0.927), were completed for 247 medical students, and showed a significant increase over time for Professionalism (p=0.011), Reporter (p=0.007), Interpreter (p=0.004) and Manager (p=0.007). EPAs with increasing intellectual demand were associated with lower student EPA ratings.: 3.51 (+/-0.50) for Professionalism, 3.45 (+/-0.47) for Reporter, 3.35 (+/-0.59) for Interpreter, and 3.28 (+/-0.60) for Manager.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The University of Miami EPA assessment tool provides a useful measure of student readiness for patient care. Raters entrusted students more with skills of professionalism, reporting, and interpreting than with managing, a more sophisticated skill. In every domain, entrustability increased with clinical experience. A limitation of this study is that the tool was used at a single institution.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The tool can potentially be deployed across multiple clerkships at other medical schools as an effective and practical tool for medical student evaluation.

References

1) Fazio SB, Ledford CH, Aronowitz PB, et al. Competency-Based Medical Education in the Internal Medicine Clerkship: A Report From the Alliance for Academic Internal Medicine Undergraduate Medical Education Task Force. Acad Med. 2018:93:421-427.

- 2) Association of American Medical Colleges. Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency: Curriculum Developers Guide. Washington, DC: Association of American Medical Colleges; 2014.
- 3) Meyer EG, Kelly WF, Hemmer PA, Pangaro LN. The RIME Model Provides a Context for Entrustable Professional Activities Across Undergraduate Medical Education. Acad Med. 2018 Jun;93(6):954.

For more information about this abstract please contact: gagarwal@med.miami.edu

<u>Medical Student to Medical Doctor: Refinement of a Two-Week Transition to</u> Residency Course

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Uma Ayyala, Baylor College of Medicine Nital Appelbaum, Baylor College of Medicine Jennifer Christner, Baylor College of Medicine Nadia Ismail, Baylor College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To develop a transitions-to-residency course that meets the evolving needs of both graduating medical students and graduate medical education (GME).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Transition to internship courses have become integral components to bridge the gap between undergraduate medical education (UME) and GME. As requirements for GME evolve, so must curriculum for transition courses.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Advanced Physician Experience (APEX) is a 10-day mandatory preparatory course for fourth-year medical students at Baylor College of Medicine. The curriculum uses multiple teaching modalities and involves both UME and GME educators. The course utilizes a continuous quality improvement (CQI) process to ensure the delivery of relevant content and optimize preparedness for residency. Between 2017-2019, 521 medical students enrolled in APEX. Course evaluations provided outcomes data for course objectives.

Outcomes:

Group comparison data (based on 92% response rate) by year revealed that almost all of the course evaluation items significantly improved in 2018 and 2019 in comparison to 2017. APEX was rated to have clear learning objectives in 2018 and 2019 in comparison to 2017, $H(2)=51.30,p<.001,\eta=0.10$. Faculty were also perceived to provide more effective teaching in 2018 and 2019 in comparison to 2017, $H(2)=45.67,p<.001,\eta=0.09$.

Feedback led to 1) less emphasis on procedures and a focus on acquisition of ultrasound skills for all students 2) integration of Common Overnight scenarios that test clinical reasoning into ob-gyn and surgery and 3) an expansion of a Teach-the-Teacher curriculum for all students.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Our innovation's strength is through a robust CQI approach to provide the most relevant curriculum for students that can meet the needs of GME. Limitations include the inability to evaluate prospectively the impact of the curriculum on these students.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Both course content and the CQI approach are transferable to other schools.

References:

1. Teo AR, Harleman E, O'Sullivan P S, Maa J. The key role of a transition course in preparing medical students for internship. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2011;86(7):860-865.

- 2. Lyss-Lerman P, Teherani A, Aagaard E, Loeser H, Cooke M, Harper GM. What training is needed in the fourth year of medical school? Views of residency program directors. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2009;84(7):823-829
- 3. O'Brien BC. What to Do About the Transition to Residency? Exploring Problems and Solutions From Three Perspectives. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2018;93(5):681-684.
- 4. Blouin D, Tekian A. Accreditation of Medical Education Programs: Moving From Student Outcomes to Continuous Quality Improvement Measures. Acad Med. 2018;93(3):377–383.
- 5. Murray KE, Lane JL, Carraccio C, et al. Crossing the Gap: Using Competency-Based Assessment to Determine Whether Learners Are Ready for the Undergraduate-to-Graduate Transition. Acad Med. 2019;94(3):338–345.

For more information about this abstract please contact: nital.appelbaum@bcm.edu

<u>Use of a Standardized Patient Encounter to Assess Shared-Decision Making</u> Communication Skills in Third-Year Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Heather Ridinger, Vanderbilt University School of Medicine Vikranth Induru, Vanderbilt University Medical Center Cecelia Theobald, Vanderbilt University Medical Center Jennifer Green, Vanderbilt University Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose is to provide post-clerkship medical students authentic practice and feedback on shared-decision making (SDM) using a standardized patient (SP) encounter. Students 1) explain health concepts and check for understanding using teach-back technique, and 2) facilitate a SDM conversation including multiple management choices.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Shared-decision making (SDM) is a patient-centered communication skill involving collaboratively developing a treatment plan based on patient values/preferences. SDM is based on theories of self-determination and relational autonomy and is increasingly being implemented in undergraduate medical education curricula to promote patient autonomy and inclusion.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We designed an SP case for assessing post-clerkship medical students' SDM skills. Following a didactic, students completed the 25-minute SP encounter: an ambulatory visit for sinusitis. Student door notes included the diagnosis and evidence-based treatment options. Following the encounter, students, faculty observers, and SPs completed rating scales for SDM skills and perceived empathy, followed by small group debrief with faculty.

Outcomes:

We analyzed student performance data between 2016-2018 (n=121). Using a 30-point scale, students rated their overall SDM skills lower than SPs (p=0.03). Students rated their empathy (10-point scale) 7% higher compared to SPs (p< 0.001). 12% of student-SP dyads disagreed about which treatment choice was mutually decided. During debrief, students compared self-assessment and SP scores, reflecting on discrepancies. They enjoyed the case despite how unexpectedly challenging it was. This case highlights the difficulty of mastering SDM and the value of direct observation and patient feedback.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This intervention is simple and time-efficient, and supports learning using simulation and multi-source feedback. Use of validated composite rating scales allows effective comparison between groups. Interpretation of results is limited by lack of a control group or serial measurements.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The case is easily implemented without technical needs and minimal training. Although designed for a simulation center, the case simplicity permits adaptation to virtual learning.

References:

1. Makoul G, Clayman ML. An integrative model of shared decision making in medical encounters. Patient Educ Couns. 2006;60(3):301-312.

- 2. Gravel K, Légaré F, Graham ID. Barriers and facilitators to implementing shared decision-making in clinical practice: a systematic review of health professionals' perceptions. Implement Sci. 2006;1(1):16.
- 3. Towle A, Godolphin W, Greenhalgh T, Gambrill J. Framework for teaching and learning informed shared decision making Commentary: Proposals based on too many assumptions. Bmj. 1999;319(7212):766.
- 4. Elwyn G, Laitner S, Coulter A, Walker E, Watson P, Thomson R. Implementing shared decision making in the NHS. Bmj. 2010;341(oct14 2):c5146.
- 5. Elwyn G, Frosch D, Thomson R, et al. Shared Decision Making: A Model for Clinical Practice. J Gen Intern Med. 2012;27(10):1361-1367.
- 6. Godolphin W. Shared Decision-Making. Healthc Q. 2009;12(sp):e186-e190.
- 7. Durand M-A, DiMilia PR, Song J, Yen RW, Barr PJ. Shared decision making embedded in the undergraduate medical curriculum: A scoping review. Plos One. 2018;13(11):e0207012.

For more information about this abstract please contact: heather-a.ridinger@vanderbilt.edu

From an at-risk student program to an inclusive MS1 program: An extension of student-led, question-based, small group learning

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sam Gary, University of Alabama School of Medicine Colin Quinn, University of Alabama School of Medicine Caleb Rotton, University of Alabama School of Medicine Brook Hubner, University of Alabama School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

As an extension of a pre-matriculation program for at-risk and rural pipeline students, weekly, peer-facilitated, question-based groups were developed to support this cohort through the Fundamentals of Medicine and the first two organ system courses. We recently expanded the program to include all first-year (MS1) students as proof of concept for an inclusive peer-led program that supports an academic and social transition into medical education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Students begin medical school with diverse educational backgrounds and experiences. Passive learning behaviors and challenges integrating large amounts of material can contribute to academic difficulty. Problem-based learning, practice questions, peer-designed and led learning sessions, and a welcoming and supportive learning environment can lead to improved academic performance. Importantly, students with low MCAT scores appear to benefit most from question-based practice.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We created a voluntary, question-based program for all MS1 students. The same small groups of 6-8 students met weekly with a designated peer facilitator. Each week, two lead peer tutors developed original, board-style multiple-choice questions and answer explanations aligned with course content. The standardized question sets were used by each group facilitator.

Outcomes:

83% of MS1s initially participated, forming 21 groups. After 3 months, 78% continued to regularly participate. A Likert scale survey distributed two months into the program received a 45% response rate (n=91). Respondents felt the sessions:

- Improved their understanding of course content (80/84 or 95.25%)
- Decreased exam anxiety (77/83 or 92.77%)
- Positively impacted exam scores (63/83 or 75.90%)
- Fostered a positive learning community (81/83 or 97.59%)

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Small groups appear to be valuable, supportive environments that promote learning and social engagement. Data collection is ongoing. Limitations include self-reported data and an inability to draw conclusions until the end of the courses. Pandemic related distance-learning may have impacted participation and perception.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Motivated volunteer or paid peer educators are crucial to feasibility.

References:

- 1. Alcamo, A. M., Davids, A. R., Way, D. P., Lynn, D. J., & Vandre, D. D. (2010). The impact of a peer-designed and-led USMLE Step 1 review course: improvement in preparation and scores. Academic Medicine, 85(10), S45-S48.
- 2. Baños, J. H., Pepin, M. E., & Van Wagoner, N. (2018). Class-wide access to a commercial Step 1 question bank during preclinical organ-based modules: a pilot project. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges, 93(3), 486.
- 3. Deslauriers, L., McCarty, L. S., Miller, K., Callaghan, K., & Kestin, G. (2019). Measuring actual learning versus feeling of learning in response to being actively engaged in the classroom. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 116(39), 19251-19257
- 4. DeVoe, P., Niles, C., Andrews, N., Benjamin, A., Blacklock, L., Brainard, A., Colombo, E., Dudley, B. Koinis, C., & Osgood, M. (2007). Lessons learned from a study-group pilot program for medical students perceived to be 'at risk'. Medical teacher, 29(2-3), e37-e40.
- 5. Paul, G., Hinman, G., Dottl, S., & Passon, J. (2009). Academic development: a survey of academic difficulties experienced by medical students and support services provided. Teaching and learning in medicine, 21(3), 254-260.
- 6. Wayne, S. J., Fortner, S. A., Kitzes, J. A., Timm, C., & Kalishman, S. (2013). Cause or effect? The relationship between student perception of the medical school learning environment and academic performance on USMLE Step 1. Medical teacher, 35(5), 376-380.

For more information about this abstract please contact: bhubner@uab.edu

<u>Distributive Immersive Virtual Reality to Explore Aging as a member of the LGBTQ Community</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Carrie Elzie, Eastern Virginia Medical School Cody Enciso, Eastern Virginia Medical School Jacqueline Shaia, Eastern Virginia Medical School Molly Snyder, Eastern Virginia Medical School Laurie Wellman, Eastern Virginia Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Determine the feasibility, acceptability, and impact of distributed virtual reality to embody LTBTQ members challenged with caring for their aging partners, finding housing, family dynamics and navigating healthcare.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Sexual and gender minority patients experience poorer overall health due in part to discrimination, homophobia, identity concealment, and a lack of provider training on their unique health needs1. Minimal curriculum time and lack of training has contributed to patient discrimination and incompetence among healthcare providers.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Eden Lab by Embodied Labs was piloted for the Alliance group comprised of LGTBQ students and allies to determine its utility for the medical curriculum. An instructor donned virtual reality goggles and shared the screen permitting students to virtually "embody" these characters. Pause points were created to ask questions, share reflections, and gather feedback on impressions, reactions, and recommendations.

Outcomes:

Students found the module to be an accurate introduction to the challenges that LGTQ members face, a good representation of positive and negative physician behavior, and a valuable educational experience. Members highly recommended including this into the curriculum and provided thoughtful suggestions for its incorporation. Overall, the module provided a short but impactful distance education experience to engage students in conversation and education about caring for LGTBQ patients.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The distributive mode allowed for multiple individuals to benefit with only one set of goggles. The virtual platform allowed for a high level of engagement through chat and video. While the software is costly, it includes several 6 total labs of other topics. Technology requirements of goggles, gaming computer and strong internet connections are potential barriers.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Given the adaptation to distance learning because of Covid-19, distributed virtual reality may be an effective means to deliver first-person perspectives that educate trainees and generate empathy about the unique needs of LGBTQ members.

References:

Streed, C.G., Hedian, H.F., Bertram, A. et al. Assessment of Internal Medicine Resident Preparedness to Care for Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Queer/Questioning Patients. J GEN INTERN MED 34, 893–898 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1007/s11606-019-04855-5

For more information about this abstract please contact: elzieca@evms.edu

Use of Mini PBL Sessions in the Medical School Interview

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Samantha Marazita, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Uma Ramoutar, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Kyle Bauckman, Nova Southeastern University, Dr Kiran C.Patel College of allopathic Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Medical school interviews focus on the ability to engage in a one-on-one conversation. Even modern techniques, like the Multiple Mini Interviews (MMIs) are based on closed conversational environments. The use of a Problem Based Learning (PBL) activity may serve as an indicator of a candidate's success in PBL driven curriculum.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

PBL helps an institution dynamically assess the ability of an interviewee to interact with peers. This allows the admissions committee to observe the interpersonal and professional skills of each candidate. This method provides candidates with an opportunity to determine whether they will be satisfied in a PBL driven curriculum.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Candidates are invited to participate in the PBL session by the Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine (NSUMD) admissions committee. Following the session, candidates were emailed a link to an anonymous and voluntary survey. Candidates are gauged on interest and engagement in the PBL interview session and likeliness to attend a medical school with a PBL curriculum.

Outcomes:

58% of participants had never participated in a PBL session prior to the session, 97% of respondents felt interested and engaged during the session, 97% reported learning something new, 100% felt comfortable sharing knowledge with their peers, 80% reported preferring PBL over traditional interview format, 60% of participants felt the session provided them with an opportunity to demonstrate themselves to NSUMD admissions. 93% of participants preferred attending a medical school with PBL.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Preliminary results show candidates find the PBL interview session interesting, engaging and prefer attending a medical school with a PBL curriculum. Future investigations will survey matriculating students on their views of the PBL interview and survey admission committee faculty on the utility of this data.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We propose this strategy is easy to adopt into any medical school interview process and would help enrich the admissions screening process.

References

- 1. Donner RS, Bickley H. Problem-based learning in American medical education: an overview. Bull Med Libr Assoc. 1993;81(3):294-298.
- 2. Rankin JA. Problem-based medical education: effect on library use. Bull Med Libr Assoc. 1992;80(1):36-43.
- 3. Harris S, Owen C. Discerning quality: using the multiple mini-interview in student selection for the Australian National University Medical School. Med Educ. 2007;41(3):234-241. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2929.2007.02682.x

For more information about this abstract please contact: kbauckman@nova.edu

Improving Diversity in Alpha Omega Alpha Medical Honor Society Selection

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Heather Harrell, University of Florida College of Medicine Joseph Fantone, University of Florida College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Increase diversity of student AOA membership to reflect student body diversity.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Attention to racial disparities in medical education recently increased dramatically.1,2 Lack of diversity in AOA chapters is one problem leading a few schools to suspend their AOA chapters.3-5 UFCOM holistic admissions led to a 5-year average of 23% URM matriculants. Only 2% (15/654) of students inducted into AOA in the last 5 years self-identified as URM. This was despite not using USMLE scores and blinding the selection process which relied solely on evidence of leadership, service, unique accomplishments (e.g. research, awards), and professionalism. Top quartile 3rd year GPA determined eligibility; this was the bottleneck as few URM students met this criteria.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In 2018, a student task force of AOA & non-AOA medical students and the AOA Councilor proposed changes to expand eligibility. Students in the 2nd GPA quartile would be eligible if they met one of the following criteria: top 25% peer evaluation, nomination by their learning community leader, or top quartile performance on the summative Clinical Skills Exam (CSE). Implementation in 2020 did not include CSE data due to pandemic-related adjustments to the exam.

Outcomes:

Six students met alternate pathway criteria, four of whom were URM. All 6 were selected in the blinded election process. Overall 19% (5/26) of new members were URM.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

All students identified through the alternate pathway were selected suggesting we identified top students that GPA alone did not capture. This is only one year of data.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We used a published, validated peer review tool. Most schools have learning communities or other key faculty who could nominate students.6

References:

- 1. Humphreys HJ, Levinson D, Nivet MA, Schoenbaum SC. Addressing harmful bias and eliminating discrimination in health professions learning environments: An urgent challenge (2020) Acad Med; 95:S1-S4.
- 2. Lucey CR, Hauer KE, Boatwright D, Fernandez A. Medical education's wicked problem: Achieving equity in assessment for medical learners (2020) Acad Med; 95:S98-S108.
- 3. Boatwright D, Ross D, et.al. Racial disparities in medical student membership in the Alpha Omega Alpha Honor Society (2017) JAMA Intern Med: 177:659-665.
- 4. ijesekera TP, Kim M, et.al. All other things being equal: Ezploring racial and gender disparities in medical school honor society induction (2019) Acad Med: 94: 562-569.
- 5. Icahn School of Medicine at Mount Sinai. Leadership letters: AOA, equity, and wellness. http://changenow.icahn.mssm.edu/leadership-letters-aoa. Accessed December 13, 2020.
- 6. McCormack WT, Lazarus C, Stern D, Small P. Peer nomination: a tool for identifying medical student exemplars in clinical competence and caring, evaluated at three medical schools (2007) Acad Med; 82(11): 1033-9.

For more information about this abstract please contact: harrellh@ufl.edu

<u>Catalyzing Culture Change through a Comprehensive Social Justice Curriculum</u> Task Force

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Alexa Mieses Malchuk, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Emily Vander Schaaf, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Stephanie Brown, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Julia Draper, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Neva Howard, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Beat Steiner, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Georgette Dent, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Julie Byerley, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Emanuel Nathan Thomas, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

UNC-Chapel Hill School of Medicine (UNC SOM) aimed to transform medical education and promote social justice with an emphasis on anti-racism by: 1) integrating social justice into all curricula, 2) creating a socially just learning environment, and 3) incentivizing faculty development.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Understanding the social dynamics influencing medicine is vital to physicians' efficacy. UNC SOM has a longitudinal Social and Health Systems seminar delivered separately from the biomedical and clinical sciences; this leads to relative devaluing of content compared to that on standardized tests.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Vice Dean of Academic Affairs charged a task force of 21 faculty, staff, and students to develop goals, metrics, and recommendations for integrating social justice into the SOM in July 2020. Workgroups met monthly while leadership met twice per month. A mixed methods approach will assess effectiveness, through interviews of SOM leadership and tracking of implementation.

Outcomes:

The task force developed 42 total recommendations and presented them to SOM leadership in November 2020. Recommendations in curricular innovation included: 1) removing biased content, 2) developing a relationship-based curriculum, 3) modifying student assessment types, 4) creating an advocacy curriculum, and 5) holding faculty accountable to social justice principles. Recommendations to develop a socially just learning environment included: 1) analyzing the hidden curriculum, 2) embedding inclusive counselors, 3) training residents, and 4) considering admissions processes. Recommendations in faculty development regarded 1) faculty expectations, 2) incentives, and 3) recruitment and support of underrepresented faculty. Over the coming months we will be able to report on successes, pitfalls, and influencing factors.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The task force efficiently made meaningful and comprehensive recommendations by establishing concrete goals and timeline, and including key decision-makers and content experts. Some recommendations are already underway, and implementation evaluation is ongoing.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A task force can successfully create comprehensive recommendations to promote social justice culture change.

References:

- 1. Social Justice and Health. American Public Health Association. https://apha.org/what-is-public-health/generation-public-health/our-work/social-justice. Published 2020. Accessed December 13, 2020.
- 2. Hatchett L, Elster N, Wasson K, Anderson L, Parsi K. Integrating Social Justice for Health Professional Education: Self-reflection, Advocacy, and Collaborative Learning. OJHE. 2015;11. doi:10.18785/ojhe.1101.04
- 3. Bakke K, Sidhar K, Kumagai AK. Exploring matters of race through dialogue in the University of Michigan Medical School's longitudinal case studies program. Virtual Mentor. 2014;16(6):442-449.
- 4. Structures & Self: Advancing Equity and Justice in SRH. Innovating Education in Reproductive Health. https://www.innovating-education.org/course/structures-self-advancing-equity-and-justice-in-sexual-and-reproductive-healthcare/. Published 2015. Accessed December 13, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: voemily@med.unc.edu

<u>Creating and implementing a comprehensive and culturally competent medical</u> Spanish curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Maria Padilla, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Reed Wise, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Piero Carletti, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Kyle Bauckman, Nova Southeastern University, Dr Kiran C.Patel College of allopathic Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective of our customized medical Spanish curriculum is to increase the cultural competency and confidence of medical students in caring for low English proficiency patients during their clinical years.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Spanish is the second most common language spoken in the US., however, there is a lack of medical curriculum dedicated to the care of this population. Further, the educational material available often focuses on Hispanic demographics in a ubiquitous manner not considering regional dialects and cultural idiosyncrasies. We developed both dialect and culturally specific sessions based on the predominant demographics in the Broward county area. Teaching methods of spaced repetition and active recall were incorporated to facilitate learning of Medical Spanish terminology for students with a varying range of Spanish fluency.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The elective consists of sessions with community physicians who lead discussions on community health needs of key Hispanic demographics. These sessions are paired with asynchronous activities incorporating the use of spaced repetition and active retrieval to familiarize students with medical and regionally specific terminology and cultural considerations. Students then engage in a standardized patient (SP) experience using culturally diverse scenarios. Pre and post course surveys are administered to assess for satisfaction and confidence.

Outcomes:

Post-course survey showed that 75% of attendees reported increased confidence in vocabulary, interviewing skills, and recognition of cultural contextual differences in patient care.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This curriculum is applicable to students with varying degrees of Spanish fluency and focuses on cultural awareness. Limitations include a small number of enrolled students given that this is a first-time elective and a lack of long-term outcomes during the students' clerkship years.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our study shows a practical and easy to adopt way to customize a Medical Spanish course that is scalable based on the fluency of the medical student and incorporates use of Standardized Patients which are widely available to medical schools.

References:

1. Colby SL, Ortman JM. Projections of the size and composition of the U.S: 2014-2060. US Census Bureau. https://www.census.gov/library/publications/2015/demo/p25-1143.html. Published 2019. Updated 2019-07-02T09:48:47.261-04:00. Accessed.

- 2. Morales R, Rodriguez L, Singh A, et al. National survey of medical Spanish curriculum in U.S. medical schools. J Gen Intern Med. 2015;30(10):1434-1439.
- 3. Divi C, Koss RG, Schmaltz SP, Loeb JM. Language proficiency and adverse events in US hospitals: a pilot study. Int J Qual Health Care. 2007;19(2):60-67.
- 4. Juckett G. Caring for Latino patients. Am Fam Physician. 2013;87(1):48-54.
- 5. Sánchez G, Nevarez T, Schink W, Hayes-Bautista DE. Latino physicians in the United States, 1980–2010: a thirty-year overview from the censuses. Acad Med. 2015;90(7):906-912.
- 6. John-Baptiste A, Naglie G, Tomlinson G, et al. The effect of English language proficiency on length of stay and in-hospital mortality. J Gen Intern Med. 2004;19(3):221-228.
- 7. Ortega P. Spanish language concordance in U.S. medical care: a multifaceted challenge and call to action. Acad Med. 2018;93(9):1276-1280.
- 8. Chukharev-Hudilainen E, Klepikova TA. The effectiveness of computer-based spaced repetition in foreign language vocabulary instruction: a double-blind study. CALICO J. 2016;33(3):334-354.
- 9. Kelley P, Whatson T. Making long-term memories in minutes: a spaced learning pattern from memory research in education. Front Hum Neurosci. 2013;7(589).

For more information about this abstract please contact: mpadilla@nova.edu

Opening a New Medical School in a Pandemic: Teaching Anatomy in the Time of COVID-19

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Thomas Gest, University of Houston College of Medicine Brian Dzwonek, University of Houston College of Medicine Devin Dabney, University of Houston College of Medicine Taha Gilani, University of Houston College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

UHCOM welcomed its inaugural class of medical students in August 2020. Overcoming the challenges of opening a new medical school during a global pandemic required flexibility and creativity. We will cover the specific strategies, collaborations and technology that allowed us to successfully deliver Anatomy.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The widespread need to adapt and deliver medical education during a pandemic is a unified external pressure faced by all US medical schools. As a new medical school delivering the first course to our inaugural class, UHCOM had no previous institutional experience to draw upon to adapt or change as a result of this new pressure. We leveraged a start-up spirit allowing us to address these issues with a small and nimble team.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We will highlight how through the use of technology and a culture of collaboration, we successfully delivered an anatomy course and lab to our inaugural class of medical students.

Outcomes:

Despite the challenges of opening a new medical school during a global pandemic, our team's collaborative partnership and commitment lead to flexible solutions that provided students with face to face and virtual access to the UHCOM Human Anatomy lab that were in compliance with our COVID-19 contingency plan. Student outcomes, including the summaries of course and faculty evaluations with be presented during the session.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include leveraging technology to provide a safe and robust hybrid learning environment and the applicability of best practices that frame organizational collaboration. Limitations include the timing and degree to which technology are available and the internal and external pressures that drive organizational change.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

With the widespread use of conferencing platforms (Zoom, MS Teams, etc.) to facilitate undergraduate medical education to accommodate COVID-19 contingency planning and the importance of anatomy instruction to the pre-clinical curriculum, this presentation is widely applicable to US medical schools.

References:

1. Singal, A., Bansal, A., Chaudhary, P., Singh, H., & Patra, A. (2020). Anatomy education of medical and dental students during COVID-19 pandemic: a reality check. Surgical and radiologic anatomy: SRA, 1–7. Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00276-020-02615-3
br>clwanaga, J, Loukas, M, Dumont, AS, Tubbs, RS. A review of anatomy education during and after the COVID-19 pandemic: Revisiting traditional and modern methods to achieve future innovation.

Clin Anat. 2021; 34: 108–114. https://doi.org/10.1002/ca.23655

2. Ross, C.F., Pescitelli, M.J., Smith, H.F. and Williams, J.M. (2020), Teaching anatomy with dissection in the time of COVID-19 is essential and possible. Clinical Anatomy. https://doi.org/10.1002/ca.23640

For more information about this abstract please contact: bdzwonek@central.uh.edu

<u>Peer to peer learning in medical education: an evaluation of a student-led,</u> online COVID-19 course

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Alison Hollis, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Brooke Spratte, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Emily Hollis, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
William Bennett, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Yasemin Cole, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Seth Alexander, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Thomas Egan, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine
Kurt Gilliland, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The COVID-19 pandemic stressed the educational structure of healthcare and created a need for health professionals in all levels of training to adapt. We evaluated the effectiveness of addressing preclinical students' need for knowledge on a specific topic (i.e., COVID-19) through the use of a virtual student-driven course.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Absent a formal, pandemic-centered learning opportunity for preclinical students at the University of North Carolina School of Medicine, seventeen clinical students developed an optional 8-week course for preclinical students. Studies have demonstrated the benefits of peer teaching for both teacher and learner.1,2

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Clinical students created an online, student-run curriculum to provide knowledge on COVID-19, foster community, and promote public health crisis preparedness. For course evaluation, pre- and post-course surveys were developed for instructors and students. Students created a final presentation at the end of the course.

Outcomes:

Of 188 students in the preclinical cohort, 143 enrolled and 130 completed all course requirements. Students reported increased confidence toward knowledge on all course topics, peer teaching, learning in an online format, and overall preparedness with regards to a public health crisis. The five highest-ranked content topics included clinical presentation and treatment, health policy, epidemiology, ethics, and basic science connection. Overall, 79.2% of student participants and instructors were satisfied with the experience.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

As medical education evolves, with increasing emphasis on small-group and virtual learning experiences, student-driven online curricula provide effective teaching models. Peer-to-peer teaching meets ongoing education needs. Time and availability of clinical students and learners to incorporate this into a time restricted curriculum is a limitation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This course could be incorporated into any curriculum in which students are motivated to provide

instruction to their peers and in which others are eager to learn. The virtual model with current events and topical teaching was effective and met with positive regard at our program.

References:

- 1. Buckley S, Zamora J. Effects of participation in a cross-year peer tutoring programme in clinical examination skills on volunteer tutors' skills and attitudes towards teachers and teaching. BMC Med Educ 2007; 7: 20.
- 2. Sobral DT. Cross-year peer tutoring experience in a medical school: conditions and outcomes for student tutors. Med Educ 2002; 36: 1064–70.

For more information about this abstract please contact: alison_hollis@med.unc.edu

<u>Competency Based Graduation: Improving Patient Care and Increasing Local</u> Workforce

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Sarah Hobgood, Virginia Commonwealth University Joel Moll, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Nicole Karjane, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Steven Crossman, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Michael Ryan, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

At the Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine (VCU-SOM) we developed and piloted an accelerated and competency-based graduation (CBG) program that focuses on competency, rather than time, as the standard for graduation.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In the last decade, there has been renewed interest in three-year MD pathway programs. While these programs help address concerns over debt, they have not addressed rigorous Competency Based Medical Education (CBME) training.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The CBG program at VCU-SOM developed in 2018 is open to all VCU medical students interested in variety of specialties. Students apply for participation at the end of their preclerkship years. Selection is determined by performance and mutual interest between the student and the respective residency training program. Students enter the program at the start of their clinical phase. Students complete the same core clerkships required of all students and an acting internship in their chosen specialty in lieu of an elective month. They are assessed for adequate progress over the course of the clinical year by the Clinical Competency Committee.

Outcomes:

In the first pilot year 9 students entering the program but due to assessment rigors and student choice ultimately 5 students continued onto the match. Prior to the match deadline, all five students were assessed to be competent to graduate and matched into their chosen residency at VCU . They started their internships in July of 2020. To date, all program directors report the graduates are meeting expected milestones and have assimilated into residency well. It is estimated that students saved approximately \$35,000 if in state and \$55,000 if out of state in tuition.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We did identified challenges and limitations in the first cohort including relative lack of data available for several Core EPAs assessed.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The CBG program provides a model for competency-based graduate for medical students while simultaneously lowering the cost of tuition.

References:

- 1. Cangiarella J, Fancher T, Jones B, et al. Three-Year MD Programs: Perspectives from the Consortium of Accelerated Medical Pathway Programs (CAMPP). Acad Med. 2017;92:483-490.
- 2. Carraccio C, Englander R, Van Melle E, et al. Advancing Competency-Based Medical Education: A Charter for Clinician-Educators. Acad Med. 2016;91:645-649.
- 3. Englander R, Flynn T, Call S, Carraccio C, et al. Toward Defining the Foundation of the MD Degree: Core Entrustable Professional Activities for Entering Residency. Acad Med. 2016; 91:1352-1358.
- 4. Sozener CB, Lypson ML, House JB, Hopson LR, Dooley-Hash SL, Hauff S, Eddy M, Fischer JP, Santen SA Reporting Achievement of Medical Student Milestones to Residency Program Directors: An Educational Handover. Acad Med. 2016;91:676-84.

For more information about this abstract please contact: sally.santen@vcuhealth.org

<u>Innovative Race in Medicine Lecture Series Directly Address Gaps in Health Disparities Medical Education</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Aurelio Falconi, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Meron Fessahaye, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Rasagna Kosaraju, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Hari Kota, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Joseph Pena, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Amber Brooks, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

COVID related health disparities, recent national instances of racial injustice, and students' calls for action led to the formation of the Justice Thread Team (JTT) at our institution. The JTT has been charged with making amendments to the curriculum to better prepare students to serve communities facing disproportionate morbidity and mortality. Thus, a Race in Medicine Lecture Series was created to address this curriculum gap.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

LCME mandates the inclusion of health disparities curriculum. With many students focused on retaining information pertinent to board exams, it can be hard to include meaningful discussions on race and medicine. This may lead to oversimplification of race in current curricula and lack of critical thinking regarding health disparities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The lectures were embedded in the pre-clinical curriculum to align with the subject matter being taught. Thus far, three faculty of color from across the nation with content expertise were invited to share knowledge pertaining to the intersection of race and health. Lectures were mandatory and material made testable by course directors. The lectures were delivered virtually in accordance with COVID restrictions.

Outcomes:

This lecture series addresses gaps in medical education including the role that race plays in the practice of medicine and health. The mandatory nature of the lecture series is key to ensuring this important information is disseminated to all students.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

By selecting faculty of color to deliver the lectures, we intentionally expose students to diverse faculty and this may also serve as a recruitment tool. Each guest lecturer was provided with an honorarium to show appreciation and to address the significant minority tax burden that faculty of color often face in academic medicine. Future lectures will include post evaluations.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The lecture series is an innovative, cost-efficient, and transferable strategy for addressing unmet needs in health disparities' education.

References:

1. Stanford FC. The Importance of Diversity and Inclusion in the Healthcare Workforce. J Natl Med Assoc. 2020;112(3):247-249. doi:10.1016/j.jnma.2020.03.014

2.Rodríguez JE, Campbell KM, Pololi LH. Addressing disparities in academic medicine: what of the minority tax?. BMC Med Educ. 2015;15:6. Published 2015 Feb 1. doi:10.1186/s12909-015-0290-9

For more information about this abstract please contact: akbrooks@wakehealth.edu

Red light or green light: Preparing medical students to recognize mistreatment through a virtual, interactive case-based workshop

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sarah Wood, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University Adam Wyatt, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University Elizabeth Gundersen, Florida Atlantic University Jennifer Foster, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The COVID-19 pandemic required thoughtful and innovative alteration of pre-clerkship curricula as students prepared to begin clerkship rotations in the midst of a pandemic and during a nationwide anti-racism call to action.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

During clerkship orientation, all medical students attend a case-based Student Mistreatment workshop. It has traditionally been conducted in person, but due to the pandemic, the session was run virtually in 2020. Students were given the opportunity to interactively annotate slides to graphically reflect their reactions and perceptions to a variety of cases related to student harassment, discrimination, and disrespectful behavior. The goal of the session was to prepare students to respond and report situations involving bias, microaggressions, or other inappropriate behaviors should they occur during their upcoming clinical rotations.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The workshop was run by faculty live for the entire class of rising third year medical students on WebEx using the annotations tool and chat function. Students were given access to annotate slides that demonstrated a sliding scale from green to red demonstrating their discomfort with certain behaviors, situations, or experiences and then discussed through the chat feature how they would respond, address, and report the circumstances if warranted.

Outcomes:

85% of students agreed or strongly agreed that they could define student mistreatment and would know how to report it after participating in the workshop. Informal verbal feedback supported that the workshop format was well received and provided a safe and engaging platform fordiscussion despite the challenges of being virtual.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Increasing attention needs to be paid to providing impactful and practical sessions for students to identify student mistreatment and discrimination and to prepare them for the challenges they may face when entering clinical settings for the first time.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Virtual, interactive case-based workshops are an easily implementable approach to prepare students for potential mistreatment in their clerkships.

References:

1. Hill KA, Samuels EA, Gross CP, et al. Assessment of the Prevalence of Medical Student Mistreatment by Sex, Race/Ethnicity, and Sexual Orientation. JAMA Intern Med. 2020;180(5):653–665. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2020.0030

- 2. Loden M. 1995. Implementing Diversity: Best Practices for Making Diversity Work in Your Organization. New York: McGraw-Hill.
- 3. Brandford E, Hasty B, Bruce JS, Bereknyei Merrell S, Shipper ES, Lin DT, Lau JN. Underlying mechanisms of mistreatment in the surgical learning environment: A thematic analysis of medical student perceptions. Am J Surg. 2018 Feb;215(2):227-232. doi: 10.1016/j.amjsurg.2017.10.042. Epub 2017 Nov 7. PMID: 29167023.
- 4. Wyatt, TR, Balmer, D, Rockich-Winston, N, Chow, CJ, Richards, J, Zaidi, Z. 'Whispers and shadows': A critical review of the professional identity literature with respect to minority physicians. Med Educ. 2020; 00: 1–11. https://doi.org/10.1111/medu.14295

For more information about this abstract please contact: swood31@health.fau.edu

<u>Creation of Justice Thread Team: Health Disparities Education Reimagined</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Aurelio Falconi, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Meron Fessahaye, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Rasagna Kosaraju, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Hari Kota, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Joseph Pena, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Amber Brooks, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

COVID related health disparities, recent atrocities involving racial injustice, and students' calls for action led to the formation of the Justice Thread Team (JTT) at our institution. An evolving vision for the work of the Justice Thread encompasses domains including equity, advocacy, law and policy, and honor.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Justice is a core tenet of bioethics, enshrined at center of a physician's professional identity and mission. Students must acquire the knowledge and skills to understand and recognize injustice and act to defend the health of patients and communities. Despite nationwide efforts to concentrate on preventative health and eliminate health disparities, a common challenge for medical educators is how to facilitate nuanced and complex discussions around subjects such as the intersection of race/ethnicity with medicine that provides students with appropriate depth and understanding and moves them to action.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The JTT is comprised of a faculty director and five medical students from diverse backgrounds. The JTT collaborates with preclinical curriculum course directors to better address how race/ethnicity, sexual orientation, religion, social injustice, and racial injustice impact the delivery of healthcare.

Outcomes:

Thus far, The JTT has (1) developed a race in medicine lecture series; (2) modified the health disparities and social determinants of health standardized patient simulation; and (3) served in a consulting capacity for course directors who would like to provide a deeper, critical analysis around the existence of health disparities.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The JTT was developed with institutional leadership funding and support (protected time for Justice Thread director and honoraria for guest lecturers), demonstrating their commitment to impacting change. Next steps will include developing formal evaluation methods for lecture series.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The JTT is an innovative, student-driven strategy for addressing unmet needs in health disparities' education during the pre-clinical years.

References:

- 1. Stanford FC. The Importance of Diversity and Inclusion in the Healthcare Workforce. J Natl Med Assoc. 2020;112(3):247-249. doi:10.1016/j.inma.2020.03.014
- 2. Bi S, Vela MB, Nathan AG, et al. Teaching Intersectionality of Sexual Orientation, Gender Identity, and Race/Ethnicity in a Health Disparities Course. MedEdPORTAL. 2020;16:10970. Published 2020 Jul 31. doi:10.15766/mep

3. Dupras DM, Wieland ML, Halvorsen AJ, Maldonado M, Willett LL, Harris L. Assessment of Training in Health Disparities in US Internal Medicine Residency Programs. JAMA Netw Open. 2020;3(8):e2012757. doi:10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2020.12757

For more information about this abstract please contact: akbrooks@wakehealth.edu

<u>Developing New Competencies in Health Equity Across the Continuum at Dell</u> Medical School (DMS) at the University of Texas at Austin

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

LUAnn Wilkerson, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School Beth Nelson, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School David Auzenne, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School Jewel Mullen, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In 2019 the associate dean for health equity engaged institutional and community members in strategic planning with the goal of embedding health equity as an operating principle in all areas of DMS. We formed a Health Equity Medical Education Workgroup to integrate health equity into medical education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In the face of national calls for racial and societal equity, structural competency quickly emerged in early meetings as the theoretical framework for this effort. Physicians need to understand the structural forces that contribute to disparate health outcomes and know how to recognize and intervene to reduce inequities at the personal, policy, and system levels.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The workgroup, convened to be diverse and inclusive of specialty, gender, ethnicity and continuum, quickly decided that Health Equity should be a separate domain. Meeting bi-weekly, members reviewed the literature and defined the competencies. Members helped vet the results with faculty, resident, and student reactor panels.

Outcomes:

The resulting Health Equity domain consists of four competencies, each with enabling objectives: historical and current context, personal and interpersonal clarity, community and societal awareness, and intentional disruptive action. The UME curriculum committee adopted the competencies and the GME Committee promoted their inclusion in all residency programs. In 2021 and 2022, we will repeat Items from an April 2020 student survey on perceptions of the cultural competency and disparities curriculum and the degree to which health equity discussions were encouraged to evaluate impact. The annual ACGME resident survey includes an item on health disparities that we will also track.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The institutional commitment to this work is broad. While the competencies have been developed and disseminated, assessment tools need to be developed and faculty development efforts, initiated.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our competencies are aspirational in scope and expectation but the process and outcomes can be used by others to move efforts forward in their own institutions.

References:

- 1. Bailey ZD, Grieger N, Agenor M, Graves J, Linos N, Bassett MT. Structural racism and health inequities in the USA: Evidence and interventions. Lancet, 389: 1453-63, 2017.
- 2. Castillo EG, Isom J, DeBonis KL, Jordan A, Braslow JT, Rohrbaugh R. Reconsidering systems-based practice: Advancing structural competency, health equity, and social responsibility in graduate medical education. Acad Med, 95:1817-22, 2020.

3. Metzl JM and Hansen H. Structural competency: Theorizing a new medical engagement with stigma and inequality. Soc Sci Med, 103:126-133, 2014.

For more information about this abstract please contact: luann.wilkerson@austin.utexas.edu

<u>Transitioning a Capstone Course from In-Person to Virtual Increases Student Engagement and Satisfaction</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Jon Goforth, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Michelle Keating, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020, required us to pivot our "Transition to Residency" (TTR) course from in-person to virtual. We sought to keep students satisfied and engaged while participating in a virtual course.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

TTR courses exist to prepare for the shift from student to resident. Engagement is important. Since 2016, we require graduating students to complete a TTR course to prepare for the transition to internship and residency. The course is traditionally in-person with "required" sessions, a required minimum number of electives, and specialty track days. COVID-19 forced the course virtual.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We utilized a learning management system for delivery. The curriculum was delivered synchronously and asynchronously with live sessions and specialty track days via WebEx, pre-recorded sessions, online learning modules, discussion boards, and a team-based learning project. We incorporated real-time feedback from the course director, daily communications, and added new sessions based on requests/feedback. We measured student satisfaction both quantitatively and qualitatively, and engagement quantitatively.

Outcomes:

From 2016-2019, 86.6% of students "agreed/strongly agreed" the TTR course overall helped prepare them for internship, 70.1% for the required sessions, 94.5% for the elective sessions, and 89.6% for the specialty track day. 2020's TTR course saw increases overall: 98.2% agreed/strongly agreed for the course overall, 93% for required sessions, 98.2% for electives, and 82.6% for the specialty day. Student engagement rose as students averaged 1.8 more electives than required in 2020 vs.1.6.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The virtual course saw highest satisfaction ratings overall since 2016. Student engagement and satisfaction increased as students were able to self-direct their learning. Specialty tracks saw a satisfaction decrease due to hands-on components being eliminated. We plan to deliver a hybrid course model of in-person and virtual in 2021 to hopefully maximize engagement and satisfaction.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Adoptability can occur with learning management systems and telecommunication resources like WebEx or Zoom.

References:

1. Teo AR, Harleman E, O'Sullivan PS, Maa J. The key role of a transition course in preparing medical students for internship. Acad Med. 2011;86(7):860-865. doi:10.1097/ACM.0b013e31821d6ae2

For more information about this abstract please contact: jon.goforth@wakehealth.edu

A strategic questioning tool to promote critical thinking with clinical learners

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Staci Saner, University of Louisville School of Medicine Russell Farmer, University of Louisville School of Medicine Laura Weingartner, University of Louisville School of Medicine Gerard Rabalais, University of Louisville School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We created a pocket tool for medical educators to learn questioning strategies specifically for the clinical learning environment.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Questioning learners has been described as one of the most essential and significant teaching practices [1-2]. However, health professions faculty generally ask questions that prioritize memorizing facts instead of thinking about these facts [1-3]. Purposefully asking higher-cognitive questions can instead foster critical thinking and clinical reasoning skills more effectively.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We developed a strategic questioning tool that models frameworks such as Bloom's revised taxonomy 4 to explicitly show faculty how to develop higher-order questions for clinical teaching. The tool was introduced to 37 faculty in one-hour, inter-professional workshops. Participants practiced questioning strategies, and developed questioning prompts with a pre/post-assessment.

Outcomes:

The majority (71%) of pre-workshop questioning prompts were lower-order thinking skills, while most (69%) post-workshop prompts reflected higher-order thinking skills. Prompt complexity based on Bloom's revised taxonomy increased significantly (W=5387.5, p< < 0.001) after the workshop. Many participants reported that they had not known how to implement strategic questioning frameworks in clinical instruction before the training.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The main limitation is that these outcomes reflect faculty skill development but not the direct implementation of these skills with learners. However, the strengths of the tool are: 1) we have demonstrated that the strategic questioning tool and training are effective, and 2) many active learning strategies do not transfer easily to clinical settings, so this tool fills a gap because it was developed specifically for clinical instruction.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The strategic questioning tool was developed to be a versatile and practical tool for medical educators to adapt in various clinical settings. We have also submitted this tool and related workshop to MedEdPORTAL to deliver the training at other institutions and adapted it as virtual grand rounds presentations to enhance strategic questioning in clinical education.

References:

- 1. Hausmann JS, Schwartzstein RM. Using questions to enhance rheumatology education. Arthritis Care & Research. 2019;71(10):1304-1309.
- 2. Tofade T, Elsner J, Haines ST. Best practice strategies for effective use of questions as a teaching tool. American Journal of

Pharmaceutical Education. 2013;77(7):9.

- 3. Magas CP, Gruppen LD, Barrett M, Dedhia PH, Sandhu G. Intraoperative questioning to advance higher-order thinking. The American Journal of Surgery. 2017;213(2):222-226.
- 4. Anderson LW, Krathwohl D, Airasian P. A taxonomy for learning, teaching, and assessing: A revision of Bloom's taxonomy of educational objectives. New York, NY: Longman; 2001.

For more information about this abstract please contact: g.rabalais@louisville.edu

Clinical Reasoning Remediation for the Graduate Medical Learner in Need

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Andrew Parsons, University of Virginia School of Medicine Karen Warburton, University of Virginia School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To identify specific clinical reasoning deficits among struggling trainees amenable to targeted intervention.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

It is common for graduate medical learners to struggle with clinical performance during training. Assessment of clinical reasoning skills is difficult in standard clinical training situations where evaluation often focuses on factual information and direct observation is limited. Yet, no standard protocol exists for remediation of clinical reasoning struggle.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We designed a step-wise program known as COACH (Committee on Achieving Competence Through Help) to accept graduate medical learners not meeting appropriate milestones:

- 1. A remediation specialist performs a global assessment to identify the primary performance deficit: medical knowledge, clinical reasoning, organization, professionalism, or communication.
- Those with a primary or secondary clinical reasoning deficit are referred for targeted case-based assessment to further delineate the deficit along the clinical reasoning pathway: gathering data, generating hypotheses, problem representation, refinement of initial hypotheses, and developing a management plan.
- 3. An individualized remediation plan is created with targeted coaching exercises.
- 4. Ongoing evaluation

Outcomes:

Over four years, COACH assessed 90/820 (11%) graduate medical learners from 14 departments. Clinical reasoning was a primary or secondary deficit in 27/90 (30%). Targeted assessment revealed deficits in the following domains: gathering data (11/27); generating hypotheses (20/27); problem representation (23/27); hypothesis refinement (8/27); management plan (15/27). After reassessment by their CCC, the majority of learners improved their performance and 74% (14/19) are currently in good standing in their respective programs.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This unique program utilizes a step-wise approach, including global and targeted assessment, to identify specific clinical reasoning deficits amenable to individualized, targeted intervention through coaching. Limitations include the inherent, somewhat subjective nature of the case-based targeted assessment.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Though limited by the substantial time investment required for clinical reasoning coaching, this is a structured, generalizable approach to the remediation of learners with clinical reasoning deficits.

References:

1. Yao DC, Wright SM. National survey of internal medicine residency program directors regarding problem residents. JAMA

2000; 284(9):1099-1104.

- 2. Dupras DM, Edson RS, Halvorsen AJ, Hopkins RH, McDonald FS. "Problem residents": prevalence, problems and remediation in the era of core competencies. Am J Medicine 2012;125(4):421-5.
- 3. Guerrasio J, Garrity MJ, Aagaard EM. Learners deficits and academic outcomes of medical students, residents, fellows, and attending physicians referred to a remediation program, 2006-2012. Acad Med 2014; 89:352-358.
- 4. Warburton KM, Goren E, Dine CJ. Comprehensive Assessment of Struggling Learners Referred to a Graduate Medical Education Remediation Program. J Grad Med Educ. 2017 Dec;9(6):763-767.
- 5. Parsons A, Clancy CB, Rencic JJ, Warburton KM. Targeted Strategies to Remediate Diagnostic Reasoning Deficits. Acad Med. Accepted for Publication. August 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: asp5c@virginia.edu

Introducing Disability Education into Medical School Curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Carolyn McCrossan, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Gabrielle Segal, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Improve disability education for medical students through curricular modifications and direct interactions with people with disabilities (PWD).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Nearly 1 in 5 people in the U.S. are living with a disability [1], yet medical curricula often lack formal disability sensitivity training. Due to comorbidities, communication challenges, and unique presentations PWD face, physicians need specialized training to effectively treat this population. We are working to introduce disability education into our medical school curriculum.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

After discussions with educational leadership we designed a longitudinal curricular plan and implemented the first activity. During the initial course for first-year medical students, we conducted a disability awareness panel composed of self-advocates, family members, and medical professionals. Five panelists shared experiences regarding interactions with PWD, experiences with health care professionals, and invited questions from the audience. Students completed Pre- and post-session surveys assessing changes in attitudes regarding PWD. The next phases of the project include (1) modification of existing Problem Based Learning cases to represent PWD, opening discussions on unique needs, (2) development of an elective allowing students to explore specialties dedicated to treating PWD including community engagement components, and (3) a simulated patient experience with a PWD for use in pre-clerkship training.

Outcomes:

Results from the initial activity showed that students (n=126) demonstrated a significant increase in the understanding of the differently abled, and belief that those with disabilities can live fulfilling lives, and a significant decrease in the belief that the differently abled are a burden on society.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We are encouraged by our initial findings. By continuing discussions of PWD throughout the curriculum, we hope to reinforce these principles and perceptions and provide students with the skills and confidence to appropriately interact with and care for PWD.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Each step of this longitudinal curriculum design provides flexibility and adaptability to other school's needs.

References:

1. Brault, MW. Americans With Disabilities: 2010. The United States Census Bureau. https://www.census.gov/library/publications/2012/demo/p70-131.html. Published July 2012. Updated January, 2018. Accessed October 4, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: mccrossancarolyn@gmail.com

<u>Building Students' Cultural Competency Through a Medical Spanish Program</u> with Service Learning and Community Engagement Components

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Luke Hedrick, Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center/Harvard Medical School Kristen Dodenhoff, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Priscilla Arellano, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Tiffany Shin, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To build medical students' cultural competency through a longitudinal medical Spanish program (MAESTRO) to better serve patients with limited English proficiency (LEP).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Thirty percent of Hispanics in the United States have LEP[1]. Language discordance results in poor patient-clinician communication and healthcare disparities[2]. Medical Spanish education seeks to address health disparities by improving medical students' patient-centered communication skills in Spanish.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The preclinical curriculum included workshops, standardized patient interactions, technology-based learning, community service, and optional community engagement. Eight students completed this curriculum and participated in community engagement. Pre- and post-program surveys (July 2019 and November 2020, respectively) assessed self-reported understanding of social determinants of health (SDOH), comfort working with immigrant patients and those with LEP, and knowledge of community resources.

Outcomes:

Early survey data suggests that completion of the preclinical portion of MAESTRO and associated community engagement increased student understanding of SDOH, comfort with immigrant patients and those with LEP, and knowledge of community resources. More respondents reported comfort recognizing SDOH in their community (75% pre, 100% post). Fifty percent of pre-survey respondents reported feeling comfortable caring for newly arrived immigrants, compared to 87.5% of post-survey respondents. More students reported feeling comfortable caring for patients with LEP and those of varying immigration status (62.5% pre, 87.5% post).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include applying best practices and addressing core competencies per expert consensus; longitudinal teaching and assessment; and collaboration between a student design team, undergraduate Spanish faculty, and medical educators[3]. Limitations include sample size and limited survey anchors. Future work will refine the survey instrument and use multiple cohorts' responses.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Fifty-five percent of medical schools report some medical Spanish education, though educational and assessment methods vary widely, and faculty report barriers such as lack of curricular time and insufficient institutional support[4,5]. This innovation demonstrates the feasibility of addressing reported barriers and incorporating core competences[3].

References:

- 1. Noe-Bustamante L, Flores A. Facts on Latinos in America. Pew Research Center's Hispanic Trends Project. https://www.pewresearch.org/hispanic/fact-sheet/latinos-in-the-u-s-fact-sheet/. Published October 22, 2020. Accessed December 8, 2020.
- 2. Diamond L, Izquierdo K, Canfield D, Matsoukas K, Gany F. A Systematic Review of the Impact of Patient-Physician Non-English Language Concordance on Quality of Care and Outcomes. J Gen Intern Med. 2019;34(8):1591-1606. doi:10.1007/s11606-019-04847-5
- 3. Ortega P, Diamond L, Alemán MA, et al. Medical Spanish Standardization in U.S. Medical Schools: Consensus Statement From a Multidisciplinary Expert Panel. Acad Med. 2020;95(1):22-31. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000002917
- 4. Morales R, Rodriguez L, Singh A, et al. National Survey of Medical Spanish Curriculum in U.S. Medical Schools. J Gen Intern Med. 2015;30(10):1434-1439. doi:10.1007/s11606-015-3309-3
- 5. Hardin KJ, Hardin DM. Medical Spanish programs in the United States: a critical review of published studies and a proposal of best practices. Teach Learn Med. 2013;25(4):306-311. doi:10.1080/10401334.2013.827974

For more information about this abstract please contact: lhedrick@bidmc.harvard.edu

<u>Launching an Institutional Team Science Training Initiative: Initial Steps in Developing Pilot Training Sessions</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Carol Elam, University of Kentucky College of Medicine Michelle Jones, University of Kentucky Robert Kegebein, University of Kentucky Thomas Kelly, University of Kentucky Susan Smyth, University of Kentucky Erin Haynes, University of Kentucky Hilary Surratt, University of Kentucky Victoria King, University of Kentucky

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Biomedical research is transitioning to a team science model that brings together multidisciplinary experts in integrated research teams to pursue scientific discovery.1 How can clinical and translational science workforce development leaders assist investigators in transitioning from roles as solo researchers to members of high functioning teams?

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

A planning committee comprised of researchers, administrators, educators and evaluators was tasked with developing a comprehensive team science training program to enhance the preparation and productivity of clinical and translational research (CTR) teams. Our goal is to deliver skills-oriented topics and training that address opportunities and challenges unique to research teams.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Following a literature review aimed at identifying institutional approaches to team science training and using basic tenets of instructional design, 2 we conducted a needs assessment and defined goals for pilot training. We considered strategies to meet the learning needs of research teams, identified resources available, selected instructional materials, and initiated development of process and performance evaluations.2-4

Outcomes:

A 20-item needs assessment addressing team formation, morale, orientation, assessment, management, and communication was administered to CTR early-career investigators and trainees (response rate: 31/47; 66%). Items judged by at least 40% of respondents to be of greatest interest were effective communication, being an effective team leader, managing people, working in multidisciplinary teams, and demonstrating mutual respect and trust. These findings guide our instructional design.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Creating a comprehensive team science training program for over 200 researchers and trainees in a two-year timeframe is daunting. Following classic instructional design tenets provides necessary structure.2

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We will offer a blended-learning approach to pilot training for CTR early-career researchers (2/2021) and trainees (5/2021). Instructional objectives, methods, resources, and evaluations from our initial pilots

will be shared along with our roadmap for a comprehensive team science training planned for presentation to all CTR teams by December 2022.

References:

- 1 Bennett, L.M. & Gadlin, H. Collaboration and Team Science: From Theory to Practice. Journal of Investigative Medicine. 2012;60(5):768-75.
- 2 Gagne, R.M. & Briggs, L.J. Principles of Instructional Design. Holt, Rinehart, & Winston: New York, 1974. Shr>3 Mayowski, C.A., Norman, M.K., Schenker, Y., Proulx, C.N., & Kapoor, W.N. Developing a team science workshop for early-career educators. Journal of Clinical and Transitional Science. 2019; 3(4): 184–189.
- 4 Bennett, L. M., Gadlin, H., Marchand, C. (2018). Collaboration and Team Science Field Guide. 2nd edn., National Institutes of Health Publication No. 18-7660, National Cancer institute, Bethesda, Unites States of America.

For more information about this abstract please contact: carol.elam@uky.edu

A Pilot Faculty Development Curriculum using TED Masterclass to Develop Skills in Presenting Micro-lectures

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Holly West, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Kathleen Everling, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this pilot faculty development curriculum was to train health professions educators on the creation and delivery of micro-lectures.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In this digital age, students often prefer to receive information in short bursts which focuses their attention without the cognitive overload of the longer, traditional lecture.1 Faculty too often need micro-lectures for the flipped classroom environment.2 Yet, faculty need training on how to create and deliver these micro-lectures. Successful training could lead to a radical transformation of lecture delivery in both synchronous and asynchronous environments. TED Masterclass is an established online, self-paced training program with lessons and activities aimed to improve one's ability to create and deliver short, impactful presentations.3

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A 6-month educator development curriculum was built to enhance micro-lecture creation and delivery skills. The interprofessional curriculum consisted of seven online, self-paced TED Masterclass skill-building lessons along with three, hour long virtual Accountability Sessions facilitated by the authors. These sessions focused on learned skills and the application to health professions education. Participants also prepared and delivered a TED-style micro-lecture for peer and facilitator feedback.

Outcomes:

Twenty-three health professions educators enrolled in the pilot curriculum. At the end of the 7 months, 13 (57%) educators completed the program and several more are pending completion. Participants who attended all three of the Accountability Sessions were more likely to complete the program on time. Positive feedback has been received regarding the Masterclass lessons, Accountability Sessions, and complete curriculum.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This novel interprofessional educator development curriculum was successfully conducted remotely despite the pandemic. Limitations include a 43% incompletion rate as of December 2020.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Using the established TED Masterclass program as an asynchronous training platform and supplemental synchronous small-group accountability sessions is a feasible and transferable model. Several lessons were learned in this pilot cohort which will be useful for planning future cohorts.

References:

- 1. Zazulia, AR, Goldhoff, P. Faculty and Medical Student Attitudes about Pre-Clinical Classroom Attendance, Teach Learn Medicine. 2014; 26(4):327-334. doi: 10.1080/10401334.2014.945028
- 2. Scagnoli, N. 7 Things You Should Know About Microlectures. EDUCAUSE Learning Initiative: ELI Website. https://library.edu/resources/2012/11/7-things-you-should-know-about-microlectures. Published Nov 2012. Accessed

December 11, 2019.

3. TED Masterclass. TED Masterclass Website. https://masterclass.ted.com/. Published 2019. Accessed December 2, 2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: $\underline{hawest@utmb.edu}$

<u>Using Digital Badges as a Tool for Curricular Engagement</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Kelly McCarthy, USF Health Morsani College of Medicine Deborah DeWaay, USF Health Morsani College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this innovation was to utilize digital badges to improve student engagement and task completion in an MD preclinical course.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Prior studies indicate that gamified environments improve student academic performance and increase motivation. Digital badges are an innovative curricular technique that incorporate gamification into a course. Badges encourage learner control and recognize an accomplishment, skill, or trait in a novel way.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Badges were incorporated into 19 modules within an existing course. Each module had a series of assignments that students completed in-person and/or virtually along with a final assessment. The assessment requirements varied and included quizzes, assignment uploads, and completion of tasks in other systems. If the student met the assessment requirement, a badge was awarded for the module. Once a student earned all their badges, they completed the course.

Outcomes:

Administratively, transitioning to digital badges greatly improved student assignment completion rates and coordinator admin time. In the course evaluations, the students found badges to be fun, easy to use, promoted friendly competition, and kept them on top of tasks. We are now expanding the use of badges into other courses.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

While badging has a multitude of uses, in this application it was a perceived as a valuable motivational and organizational tool for the students. Utilizing badges in this application should be used sparingly as its novelty could wane from user fatigue.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Badging is a free, easy to use, tool that is built into most LMS applications and can be implemented in as little as an hour. Badges can be used in lieu of a numerically graded assignments, used in conjunction with graded work to bolster its significance, or they can be used to create a standalone educational program where badges are stacked for a more substantial digital credential that certifies the mastery of a skill or educational achievement.

References:

- 1. Finkelstein, J., Knight, E., & Manning, S. (2013). The potential and value of using digital badges for adult learners. Washington, DC: American Institutes for Research.
- 2. Garnett, T., & Button D. (2018). The use of digital badges by undergraduate nursing students: A three-year study. Nurse Education in Practice, 32, 1-8.
- 3. Hurst, E. J. (2015). Digital badges: Beyond learning incentives. Journal of Electronic Resources in Medical Libraries, 12(3), 182-189. doi: 10.1080/15424065.2015.1065661
- 4. Mehta, N. B., Hull, A. L., Young, J. B., Stoller, J. K. (2013). Just imagine: New paradigms for medical education. Academic

Medicine, 88, 1418-1423.

5. Roy, S., & Clark, D. (2018) Digital badges, do they live up to the hype? British Journal of Educational Technology, 1-18. doi: 10.1111/bjet.12709

6. White, M., & Shellenbarger, T. (2018). Gamification of nursing education with digital badges, Nurse Educator, 42(2), 78-82.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kemccart@usf.edu

<u>Open CaSe: A Virtual Assessment for Student Preparedness for Step 2 CS</u> Psychiatric Complaint

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Michael Miller, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Dawnelle Schatte, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To prepare students for reasoning and performing well on Step 2 CS. The goal is to assess current reasoning abilities, and to provide student feedback these skills. This can be done in a virtual format remotely.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Step 2 Clinical Skills (CS) is required for licensure and often for medical school graduation. The exam influences matching into residency (1) and correlates with internship performance (2). A goal directed activity with feedback is the best use of time and best predictor for future learning and practice (3), so this activity was created as a small-stakes assessment to provide data on student clinical reasoning in a standardized way along with feedback for them to improve on these skills.. The COVID pandemic has promoted demand in remote and virtual learning assessments such as CaSe.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

At the midpoint of the rotation, students in a proctored videoconference watch a brief video interview and review a handout containing a face sheet with vitals and any related paperwork (e.g. clock-drawing screening, completed questionnaires, etc.), similar to the real Step 2 CS testing environment. Students then have 15 minutes to complete a Patient Progress Note in the Step 2 CS format. The authors grade the note on a case specific rubric and give the student feedback.

Outcomes:

We will present the information from previous post-encounter surveys and grade distributions, both from in-person and virtual administrations alongside rubric revisions.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

CaSe is administered virtually and remotely and may be tailored to curricular needs (e.g. adjusting rubric). Technical difficulties may occur, but have been infrequent and simple to resolve.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

CaSe requires no specialized technology, a proctor, and an evaluator. It may be done remotely and tailored to curricular needs.

References:

- 1. Singer, Mona. "How Competitive is the Match?" Presentation. NRMP. Originally given 13 November 2016, accessed 6 July 2018. http://www.nrmp.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/11/Signer-AAMC-Annual-Meeting-2016.pdf
- 2. Taylor et al. "The Relationship Between the National Board of Medical Examiners' Prototype of the Step 2 Clinical Skills Exam and Interns' Performance." Acad Med. 2005; 80: 496-501
- 3. Ambrose et al. Chapter 5: "What Kind of Practice and Feedback Enhance Learning?" How Learning Works. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 2010.

For more information about this abstract please contact: msmiller@utmb.edu

<u>Assessment of Graduate Medical Education Knowledge on Race and Kidney</u> Function

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Amanda McKenna, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Jennifer Cowart, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Ebone Hill, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Ivan Porter, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We hope to assess the knowledge of residents and fellows on race and the manner it is utilized to calculate kidney function through estimated glomerular filtration rate.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Glomerular filtration rate is utilized to estimate kidney function and is essential to medical practice across a wide variety of specialties. The guideline-recommended equation in adults includes a term for race (specified as black versus nonblack), which improves the accuracy of GFR estimation by accounting for differences in non-GFR determinants of serum creatinine by race in the study populations used to develop the equation (Levey, Titan, Powe, Coresh, & Inker, 2020). It has been accepted in many medical and social sciences that race is a social construct (Fontanarosa & Bauchner, 2018). The use of race as a precision variable in the eGFR equation has been called into question due to the strength of evidence for its use in the calculation. This has resulted in some medical institutions excluding race from the eGFR calculation. Based on a recent study by Diao et al, clinical implications of removing the race modifier in the eGFR equation could include reducing delays in the diagnosis of CKD, nephrology consultation and kidney transplant referrals in black adults(Diao et al., 2020) . There are limited studies examining the awareness of physicians on race as a variable in the eGFR equation.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Methods will involve online surveying of both residents and fellows pre/post didactic lecture via Zoom on eGFR and race.

Outcomes:

NA

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

In this study, we hope to identify knowledge gaps of residents and fellows on race and eGFR. It is our hope to increase awareness of the implications of race in medicine in this feasible study. We realize limitations include transferability to other institutions that may not be large academic centers and availability of residents/fellows to attend the lecture.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

See above

References:

1. Diao, J. A., Wu, G. J., Taylor, H. A., Tucker, J. K., Powe, N. R., Kohane, I. S., & Manrai, A. K. (2020). Clinical Implications of Removing Race From Estimates of Kidney Function. JAMA. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.22124

2. Fontanarosa, P. B., & Bauchner, H. (2018). Race, Ancestry, and Medical Research. JAMA, 320(15), 1539-1540. doi:10.1001/jama.2018.14438

3. Levey, A. S., Titan, S. M., Powe, N. R., Coresh, J., & Inker, L. A. (2020). Kidney Disease, Race, and GFR Estimation. Clinical Journal of the American Society of Nephrology, 15(8), 1203-1212. doi:10.2215/cjn.12791019

For more information about this abstract please contact: mckenna.amanda@mayo.edu

COVID-19 in Spanish-speaking populations virtual clinical elective

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sara Chadwick, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Marco Alemán, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Expanding programming in an existing medical Spanish curriculum1 to understand and address vulnerabilities of Spanish-speaking communities to COVID-19 could provide useful insight and training to Spanish-speaking medical students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Limited English language proficiency is a significant barrier to care2 for the 41 million Spanish-speaking people of the US.3 Compounded by the disproportionate effects of COVID-19 on Latinx communities,4,5 the diminished quality of health outcomes has produced higher morbidity and mortality in these populations.6

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The course was administered in Spanish to 12 third- and fourth-year students during April-May 2020 as a four-week elective. Teaching methods illustrating the unique impact of COVID-19 on Spanish-speaking patients included readings, podcasts, live presentations from guest lecturers, and small group discussions. Students then applied knowledge gained through course instruction to outreach projects, including one service-learning project of disseminating information about COVID-19 in Spanish and another involving telemedicine in UNC Internal Medicine clinics. Course appraisal was assessed using the university's standard evaluation of four metrics of quality, as provided below. These items were rated on a scale of 1 (poor) to 10 (excellent).

Outcomes:

Students were highly satisfied with the course and rated course organization (\bar{x} 9.3), learning objectives (\bar{x} 9.7), teaching and formative feedback (\bar{x} 9.6), and learning environment (\bar{x} 9.7).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Based on positive feedback on the course's achievement of learning objectives, the course succeeded in enhancing students' understanding of the specific challenges faced by Spanish-speaking populations during the pandemic. Incorporation of a service learning project equipped students with strategies to inform their Spanish-speaking patients about COVID-19. Limitations included difficulty adapting course content to evolving information about the pandemic and lack of peer-reviewed literature on COVID-19 at the time of course creation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The course's virtual format facilitates transferability. However, other institutions may not have sufficiently robust faculty support to initiate programming in Spanish.

References:

- 1. Reuland D, Frasier P, Slatt L, & Alemán M (2008). A Longitudinal Medical Spanish Program at One US Medical School. J Gen Intern Med, 23(7):1033-1037. doi: 10.1007/s11606-008-0598-9.
- 2. Diamond L, Izquierdo K, Canfield D, Matsoukas K, & Gany F (2019). A Systematic Review of the Impact of Patient-Physician Non-English Language Concordance on Quality of Care and Outcomes. J Gen Intern Med, 34(8):1591-1606. doi:10.1007/s11606-

019-04847-5.

3. U.S. Census Bureau (2019). 2019: ACS 5-Year Estimates Data Profiles. Retrieved from https://data.census.gov/cedsci/table?y=2019&d=ACS%205-Year%20Estimates%20Data%20Profiles&tid=ACSDP5Y2019.DP02&hidePreview=true

4. Stokes EK, Zambrano LD, Anderson KN, et al (2020). Coronavirus Disease 2019 Case Surveillance — United States, January 22–May 30, 2020. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep, 69:759-765. doi: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6924e2.

5. Hsu H, Ashe E, Silverstein M, et al (2020). Race/Ethnicity, Underlying Medical Conditions, Homelessness, and Hospitalization Status of Adult Patients with COVID-19 at an Urban Safety-Net Medical Center — Boston, Massachusetts, 2020, July 10, 2020. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep, 69(27);864-869. doi: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6927a3

6. Garcia MA, Homan PA, García C, & Brown TH (2020). The Color of COVID-19: Structural Racism and the Pandemic's Disproportionate Impact on Older Racial and Ethnic Minorities. J Gerontol B Psychol Sci Soc Sci, gbaa114. doi:10.1093/geronb/gbaa114

For more information about this abstract please contact: sara_chadwick@med.unc.edu

Third Year Medical Student Bootcamp

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sarah Vick, University of Kentucky College of Medicine John Ragsdale, University of Kentucky College of Medicine Elizabeth Seelbach, University of Kentucky College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Goal: to prepare students for the transition to the clinical clerkship (third) year

- Demonstrate an ability to preround on inpatients
- Perform key physical exam skills on simulators
- Write a progress note and orally present in SOAP format
- Demonstrate prerounding proficiency with the EHR

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Preparing medical students to start third year can be challenging. While an orientation about expectations is often provided, there is typically not an opportunity for targeted practice and formative feedback. We created a week-long bootcamp to develop core skills before students begin clinical clerkships.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Instructional methods:

- SOAP format didactic and progress note requirements
- Physical exam simulation sessions with clinician feedback
- OSCE to practice follow-up encounters using standardized patients
- Oral presentations of OSCE cases in small group
- Feedback on progress notes
- Fourth-year student panel providing pre-rounding tips
- EHR practice with competency assessment

Materials used:

- Nine hospitalized patient OSCE cases in a variety of specialties
- Standardized rubric for notes and presentations
- Faculty facilitators
- Standardized patients
- EHR worksheet to demonstrate proficiency

Outcomes:

- Clerkship directors reported better prepared third year students
- Course evaluations show strong student satisfaction. They report feeling more prepared and comfortable starting third year

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The focus on formative feedback and skill development allows students to practice without added pressure of grading. The timing of the bootcamp in the week immediately preceding clerkships promotes strong student buy-in. Challenges include faculty time for feedback and standardized patient costs.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

At our institution, this bootcamp occurs as a part of a longitudinal required course; however, it could exist on its own as part of an extended orientation to third year. Using standardized cases provides comparable feedback but could be accomplished with actual patient encounters.

References:

- 1. Bills, JL, et al. (2013). "Effectiveness of a Clinical Intervention for MD/PhD Students Re-entering Medical School." Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 25(1): 77-83.
- 2. Jackson, MB, et al. (2009). "Impact of a Pre-Clinical Clinical Skills Curriculum on Student Performance in Third-Year Clerkships." JGIM. 24: 929-933.
- 3. https://www.aamc.org/what-we-do/mission-areas/medical-education/cbme/core-epas/guiding-principles

For more information about this abstract please contact: sarah.vick@uky.edu

Teaching Students to Call Effective Consults

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Sarah Vick, University of Kentucky College of Medicine John Ragsdale, University of Kentucky College of Medicine Elizabeth Seelbach, University of Kentucky College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

- List the 5 C's of calling an effective consult
- Formulate a focused question for a consultant based on a patient case
- Perform an effective consultation call

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Calling consults is an essential function of a physician. It is a teachable skill with application to most clinical clerkships. By teaching and assessing this skill in medical students, they can contribute to patient care and be better prepared for internship.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Instructional methods:

- 30-minute didactic about the 5 C's of calling consults
- Small group role-play practice with a faculty facilitator. Each student practices by 'calling'
 another student in the room, who is acting as the consultant, with their own script and
 recommendations. Other students provide feedback based on the rubric.
- Each student is assessed by their facilitator

Materials used:

- Faculty facilitation guide
- 8 patient cases and 8 consultant scripts (one for each student)
- Assessment rubric
- Final assessment case

Outcomes:

- 150 third year medical students across three campuses participated
- All students passed this assessment (most with 100%)
- Course evaluations indicate students felt prepared to call consults and wished these materials were covered before clerkships
- Clerkship directors reported improved consult quality

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This skill is frequently practiced by medical students but not often formally taught or assessed. Strengths include the opportunity for practice with immediate formative feedback and a standardized assessment. The scripts for caller and consultant make the answers standard, which facilitates feedback. Challenges included consistent faculty development of the facilitators.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This innovation can be easily adapted for other programs. For us, this occurs within a longitudinal third-year course but could occur in any third-year clerkship. The biggest resource needed is faculty time to train, facilitate the workshops, and assess students after the workshop. However, the standardized cases and rubric makes this easier.

References:

- 1. Go, S., et al. (1998). "Enhancing medical student consultation request skills in an academic emergency department." J Emerg Med 16(4): 659-662.
- 2. Goldman, L., et al. (1983). "Ten commandments for effective consultations." Arch Intern Med 143(9): 1753-1755.
- 3. Kessler, C. S., et al. (2012). "A prospective, randomized, controlled study demonstrating a novel, effective model of transfer of care between physicians: the 5 Cs of consultation." Acad Emerg Med 19(8): 968-974.
- 4. Kessler, C. S., et al. (2013). "I'm clear, you're clear, we're all clear: improving consultation communication skills in undergraduate medical education." Acad Med 88(6): 753-758.
- 5. Kessler, C. S., et al. (2012). "Validity evidence for a new checklist evaluating consultations, the 5Cs model." Acad Med 87(10): 1408-1412.
- 6. Kessler, C. S., et al. (2015). "The 5Cs of Consultation: Training Medical Students to Communicate Effectively in the Emergency Department." J Emerg Med 49(5): 713-721.
- 7. Podolsky, A., et al. (2015). "The Courteous Consult: A CONSULT Card and Training to Improve Resident Consults." J Grad Med Educ 7(1): 113-117.
- 8. Stephen Salerno, F. H., Stephanie Halvorson and D. Mercado (2007) Examples of effective consultation: An update for the 21st century consultant. Archives internal medicine 167, 271-275.

For more information about this abstract please contact: sarah.vick@uky.edu

Student Led Design of a Pre-matriculation Program for Medical Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Jieun Lee, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Romany Harkas, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Stephanie Pearson, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Kyle Bauckman, Nova Southeastern University, Dr Kiran C.Patel College of allopathic Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This study aims to provide a systemic view of medical school pre-matriculation programs (PMPs) and apply that data alongside Nova Southeastern University Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine (NSU MD) faculty and student perspectives to design a PMP best fit to the needs of incoming NSU MD students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

PMPs are increasingly being implemented by medical schools to ease transition of incoming students but are widely variable. In the literature, there is scarce information on how these programs currently exist systemically throughout different medical schools. As such, we have identified a need for a systematic view of PMPs, especially considering recent events such as the COVID-19 pandemic and transitioning of USMLE Step 1 to pass/fail. We have also recognized the potential of NSU MD's PMP to become more effective at transitioning incoming students.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Four surveys were created to understand the perspectives of NSU MD faculty and students regarding PMPs. We have also used previous feedback and personal experiences as post-didactic students to jumpstart design of the new PMP.

Outcomes:

Based on survey data, we developed a self-guided curriculum by creating scaled learning objectives relative to matriculant counterparts. The entire course is asynchronous and delivered online in order to increase access to all students. Key topics were selected based on student and faculty feedback.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

PMPs are an increasingly popular tool of medical schools that we are exploring. We have created five surveys to help accomplish the goals of this ongoing project: contribute to medical education knowledge regarding PMPs, create a system to identify students for the NSU MD PMP, and design a new PMP that best prepares incoming students for NSU MD.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The customizable approach allows for easy adaption to other medical schools. The remote nature of post-COVID-19 medical schools has created a need and practicality for asynchronous pre-matriculation programs.

References:

- 1. Heck AJ, Gibbons L, Ketter SJ, Furlano A, Prest L. A Survey of the Design of Pre-matriculation Courses at US Medical Schools. Medical Science Educator. 2017/06/01 2017;27(2):229-236.
- 2. Schneid SD, Apperson A, Laiken N, Mandel J, Kelly CJ, Brandl K. A summer prematriculation program to help students succeed in medical school. Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract. Aug 2018;23(3):499-511.

- 3. Kosobuski AW, Whitney A, Skildum A, Prunuske A. Development of an interdisciplinary pre-matriculation program designed to promote medical students' self efficacy. Medical education online. 2017;22(1):1272835-1272835.
- 4. Hairrell AR, Smith S, McIntosh D, Chico DE. Impact of Pre-Matriculation Instruction on Student Acculturation and First-Year Academic Performance in Medical School. Medical Science Educator. 2016/12/01 2016;26(4):519-523.
- 5. Heck AJ, Underwood T. A Pre-matriculation Course that Focuses on a Metacognitive Approach to Learning. Medical Science Educator. 2016/12/01 2016;26(4):515-516.
- 6. Wilson WA, Henry MK, Ewing G, et al. A prematriculation intervention to improve the adjustment of students to medical school. Teach Learn Med. Jul-Sep 2011;23(3):256-262.
- 7. Stoddard HA, Pamies RJ, Carver DS, Todd GL. Developing an online prematriculation orientation program and its relation to student performance in the first class taken in medical school. Teach Learn Med. Oct-Dec 2008;20(4):302-307.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kbauckman@nova.edu

<u>Creating upstanders not bystanders: How to use simulation as a platform to recognize and respond to microaggressions</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Dana Herrigel, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Amy Lannen, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Andrew Austin, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Beth Ladlie, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Maryane Dinkins, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Ebone Hill, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Pedro Perez Barbieri, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Pagan Ricardo, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine
Larry Johnson, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Mayo Clinic Florida identified a need for increased recognition and a framework for responding to microaggressions in the clinical setting. We developed a simulation-based approach with focus on identifying and responding to microaggressions using the GRIT framework (Gather, Restate, Inquire, Talk it Out).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The GRIT framework employs a 4 tier approach to responding to microaggressions. This framework is grounded in assuming positive intent, supporting inquiry of others' experiences, perspectives, and values, and highlights debriefing as an important step in the response. Traditional simulation methods utilize role-play techniques, which is not an ideal approach when learners may be placed in a vulnerable position. We aimed to use the GRIT framework in a novel simulation format where learners assumed an active-bystander role in the scenario.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Our simulation utilized a novel approach to learner involvement. We aimed to preserve learner integrity by engaging them in an active-observation role in each scenario. Standardized patient actors portrayed the roles of the microaggressor and target, and the learners were involved as allies to the individual experiencing the microaggression. This allowed the learners to practice recognition and response to complex dynamics that occur in the clinical education setting. We developed 3 different scenarios to incorporate multiple interactions where microaggressions can occur (provider-patient, patient-provider, and educator-trainee.)

Outcomes:

Due to the overwhelmingly positive response from our learners, this session will be repeated for our faculty and additional learner groups.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This approach allows for learners to actively participate in both the scenario and debriefing session in small groups led by more than one experienced educator immediately after the scenario. One limitation was the effort and time required to develop, practice (dry run), and execute this exercise.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We plan to implement additional scenarios in the next iteration, and make the scenarios and debriefing guide available both inside and outside our own institution.

References:

1. Warner NS, Njathi-Ori CW, O'Brien EK. The GRIT (Gather, Restate, Inquire, Talk It Out) Framework for Addressing Microaggressions. JAMA Surg. 2020;155(2):178–179. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2019.4427

For more information about this abstract please contact: Herrigel.Dana@mayo.edu

A Recipe for Change: Both Implementing and Evaluating Motivational Interviewing Virtually in a Family Medicine Clerkship

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Melissa Bradner, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Cherie Edwards, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Denee Moore, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The purpose of this study is to determine if motivational interviewing skills can be successfully both taught and evaluated virtually in a family medicine clerkship.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Fostering behavior change is a critical skill for physicians-in-training to master.1 Training clinicians in motivational interviewing skills has been shown to positively impact patient health behaviors.2

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Students (n=70) were given a one-hour virtual interactive training session on motivational interviewing. At the end of the 3-week clerkship, students were assessed by a standardized patient in a 10-minute virtual Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) using the Behaviour Change Counseling Index (BECCI).3 The BECCI is comprised of 11 items with a 5-point Likert rating scale (0=Not at All; 1=Minimal; 2=To Some Extent; 3=A Good Deal; 4=A Great Extent). The score was calculated based on the total percentage of points students received out of 44.

Outcomes:

The mean score for all learners (n=70) was 82.79% (SD=14.22). The median score was 86.36% (IQR 72.72-93.75). We conducted a frequency analysis to determine the most selected rating(s). The most frequent rating given by evaluators on all survey items was a 4 (A Great Extent). The second most frequently selected rating was a 3 (A Good Deal). The scores on the BECCI suggest students were able to employ motivational interviewing skills in a virtual counseling session.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Virtual platforms can both deliver and assess clinical skills education. 4

Limitations of this study include the absence of a control group. A follow up study should assess if students retain their motivational interviewing skills.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Educators have refined key motivational interviewing skills for medical students.1 The BECCI is a readily available evaluation tool that adapted well to virtual use.

References:

- 1. Kaltman S, Tankersley A. Teaching Motivational Interviewing to Medical Students: A Systematic Review. Acad Med. 2020 Mar;95(3):458-469. doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000000011. PMID: 31577585.
- 2. Lundahl B, Moleni T, Burke BL, Butters R, Tollefson D, Butler C, Rollnick S. Motivational interviewing in medical care settings: a systematic review and meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. Patient Educ Couns. 2013 Nov;93(2):157-68. doi: 10.1016/j.pec.2013.07.012. Epub 2013 Aug 1. PMID: 24001658.
- 3. Lane C, Huws-Thomas M, Hood K, Rollnick S, Edwards K, Robling M. Measuring adaptations of motivational interviewing: the

development and validation of the behavior change counseling index (BECCI). Patient Educ Couns. 2005 Feb;56(2):166-73. doi: 10.1016/j.pec.2004.01.003. PMID: 15653245.

4. Reger GM, Norr AM, Rizzo AS, Sylvers P, Peltan J, Fischer D, Trimmer M, Porter S, Gant P, Baer JS. Virtual Standardized Patients vs Academic Training for Learning Motivational Interviewing Skills in the US Department of Veterans Affairs and the US Military: A Randomized Trial. JAMA Netw Open. 2020 Oct 1;3(10):e2017348. doi: 10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2020.17348. PMID: 33057643; PMCID: PMC7563071.

For more information about this abstract please contact: melissa.bradner@vcuhealth.org

It Takes a JEDI (Task) Force to Move the Curriculum Graveyard

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Heather Harrell, University of Florida College of Medicine Marcus Threadcraft, University of Florida College of Medicine Brittny Randolph, University of Florida College of Medicine Donna Parker, University of Florida College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Develop solutions for concerns raised by underrepresented in medicine (URIM) students and prepare all students to address the impact of racism on patient care and health equity.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Despite a strong Office for Diversity and Health Equity (ODHE), UFCOM URIM students raised concerns that there remains inadequate attention to health disparities and antiracism in the curriculum, microaggressions persist, and some assessments are biased. Recent events highlighting racial injustice sparked widespread outcries including from the medical community.1-3 This empowered students to form the Justice Equity Diversity Inclusion (JEDI) Task Force to push for a more welcoming environment for URIM students and curriculum to promote cultural humility, address disparities, and prepare students to be antiracists.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In 2020, URIM medical and physician assistant students created and led the JEDI Task Force with guidance from ODHE. All URIM students were electronically surveyed for personal experiences and concerns coupled with town hall discussions. Those perspectives informed by LCME guidelines, literature review, and input from class leadership were synthesized into recommendations for curricular change and a more inclusive culture that was presented to the dean and education leadership.

Outcomes:

Leadership embraced many of the recommendations leading to:

- URIM student town halls
- Updated code of ethics
- Unconscious bias education
- Curriculum race and culture review4
- Clerkship grading reassessment
- New content (health disparities, social determinants of health, racism in medicine)
- Teaching images updated to reflect diversity
- URIM lecturers recruited from outside UFCOM

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Recommendations were literature informed and tied to LCME guidelines. Curriculum changes and student advocacy alone cannot address larger issues of structural racism.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Similar changes are occurring at other institutions but the pace and breadth of changes (during a

pandemic) was largely due to strong student advocacy and very supportive leadership. By empowering students, other schools can move their "curriculum graveyard".

References:

- 1. AMA Board of Trustees pledges action against racism and police brutality. American Medical Association. Published June 23, 2020. Accessed December 12, 2020. https://www.ama-assn.org/about/board-trustees/ama-board-trustees-pledges-action-against-racism-and-police-brutality
- 2. A Healthier Future for All: The AAMC Strategic Plan. Published October 2020. Accessed December 13, 2020. https://strategicplan.aamc.org/AAMC-StrategicPlan-2020.pdf.
- 3. Humphreys HJ, Levinson D, Nivet MA, Schoenbaum SC. Addressing harmful bias and eliminating discrimination in health professions learning environments: An urgent challenge (2020) Acad Med; 95:S1-S4.
- 4. Krishnan A, Rabinowitz M, Aiminsky A, Scott SM, Chretien KC. Addressing race, culture, and structural inequality in medical education: a guide for revising teaching cases (2019) Acad Med; 94: 550-555.

For more information about this abstract please contact: harrellh@ufl.edu

<u>High-Fidelity Simulation in Medical Education as a Tool to Teach Cultural</u> Humility

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Cortlyn Brown, atrium health

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

- 1) To examine if U.S. residency programs were utilizing high-fidelity simulation to teach culturally sensitive care.
- 2) To evaluate if the high-fidelity simulation mannequins used by residency programs across the country accurately reflected the racial and sex breakdown of the U.S. population.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Although one of the main benefits of high-fidelity mannequins is that they are realistic, to our knowledge there are no studies that examine the diversity of high-fidelity mannequin skin color and sex or if this teaching modality is being used to teach medical trainees how to provide culturally sensitive care.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

A questionnaire was administered to simulation center faculty. Logistic regression analysis and chisquared goodness of fit test were used. Expected proportions were estimated from U.S. Census data on racial and ethnic distribution in the population.

Outcomes:

The majority of respondents (64%, n = 32) reported that at least one of their cases was written to include a mannequin of a specific race/ethnicity. Half (n =25) of the programs reported utilizing high-fidelity simulation mannequins to teach culturally sensitive care. The observed mannequin skin color did not differ significantly from the estimated U.S. population, $\chi^2(2, N = 658) = 0.69$, p > .01. The observed mannequin sex assignment was not equally distributed in the population $\chi^2(1, N = 620) = 27.2$, p < .01, with a higher number of male (n = 375) mannequins than female (n = 245). The logistic regression model for programs with cases that involve certain races/ethnicities was statistically significant $\chi^2(7) = 14.2$, p = .047.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: This was a large study that asked a novel question.

Limitations: The total number of mannequins reported did not always match the totals they listed under each male/female as well as light/medium/dark-skinned category.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This study draws attention to the disparity in representation of high fidelity simulation mannequins.

References:

- 1. American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates. In: U.S. Census Bureau; 2018.
- 2. Wilson V. People of color will be a majority of the American working class in 2032: What this means for the effort to grow wages and reduce inequality. Econ Policy Inst. 2016.
- 3. Yeager KA, Bauer-Wu S. Cultural humility: essential foundation for clinical researchers. Appl Nurs Res ANR. 2013;26(4):251-256. doi:10.1016/j.apnr.2013.06.008

- 4. Juarez JA, Marvel K, Brezinski KL, Glazner C, Towbin MM, Lawton S. Bridging the gap: a curriculum to teach residents cultural humility. Fam Med. 2006;38(2):97-102.
- 5. Rodgers DL, Securro S, Pauley RD. The effect of high-fidelity simulation on educational outcomes in an advanced cardiovascular life support course. Simul Healthc J Soc Simul Healthc. 2009;4(4):200-206. doi:10.1097/SIH.0b013e3181b1b877 6. Cooper JB, Taqueti VR. A brief history of the development of mannequin simulators for clinical education and training. Qual Saf Health Care. 2004;13 Suppl 1:i11-18. doi:10.1136/qhc.13.suppl_1.i11
- 7. Al-Elq AH. Simulation-based medical teaching and learning. J Fam Community Med. 2010;17(1):35-40. doi:10.4103/1319-1683.68787
- 8. Mechanic OJ, Dubosh NM, Rosen CL, Landry AM. Cultural Competency Training in Emergency Medicine. J Emerg Med. 2017;53(3):391-396. doi:10.1016/j.jemermed.2017.04.019
- 9. Cheng A, Lockey A, Bhanji F, Lin Y, Hunt EA, Lang E. The use of high-fidelity manikins for advanced life support training--A systematic review and meta-analysis. Resuscitation. 2015;93:142-149. doi:10.1016/j.resuscitation.2015.04.004
- 10. Meurling L, Hedman L, Lidefelt K-J, Escher C, Felländer-Tsai L, Wallin C-J. Comparison of high- and low equipment fidelity during paediatric simulation team training: a case control study. BMC Med Educ. 2014;14:221. doi:10.1186/1472-6920-14-221
- 11. Boling B, Hardin-Pierce M. The effect of high-fidelity simulation on knowledge and confidence in critical care training: An integrative review. Nurse Educ Pract. 2016;16(1):287-293. doi:10.1016/j.nepr.2015.10.004
- 12. Sumlin LL, Garcia AA. Effects of Food-Related Interventions for African American Women With Type 2 Diabetes. Diabetes Educ. 2012;38(2):236-249. doi:10.1177/0145721711422412

For more information about this abstract please contact: cortlyn.brown@atriumhealth.org

WGEA Innovation Abstracts

<u>California Oregon Medical Partnerships to Address Disparities in Rural Education and Health (COMPADRE) Wellness Program</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Margaret Rea, UC Davis School of Medicine Megan Furnari, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

COMPADRE, funded by the AMA's Reimagining Residency initiative, is a program addressing physician workforce shortages in northern California and Oregon. A collaboration between OHSU and UC Davis, COMPADRE includes a comprehensive curriculum to prepare learners for practice in under-resourced communities. This presentation is about the development of the wellness curriculum addressing the unique needs of learners from 2 medical schools and 31 geographically and resource-diverse residency programs (rural, urban, tribal, primary care, and surgical specialties).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

COMPADRE recognizes that preparing providers who are committed to working in under resourced settings also requires a well-being focus that emphasizes connection, community, and preventing burnout.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Following a needs assessment and identification of 31 wellness champions, the wellness curriculum was developed and includes:

- 1. Learner Wellness Plan
- 2. Four Wellness Modules with an introductory video and learner video on:
 - a. Origin Stories & Narrative Reflection
 - b. Belonging & Community
 - c. Resilience & Mental Health
 - d. Purpose & Vision
- 3. Peer Support Training added in response to the COVID pandemic.
- 4. Wellness Assessment to monitor learner wellness and the impact of the curriculum.

Outcomes:

The development and dissemination of a large-scale wellness curriculum and "best practices" that can be applied broadly throughout the UME and GME continuum and community.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include establishing wellness focused relationships and the incorporation of input from all programs to build a generalizable wellness curriculum. Limitations include the pandemic causing stress on programs with reduced capacity to innovate and embrace new programs and the ever-present limitations on learner time for additional activities.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The model is portable and virtual, easy to implement on a large scale across a broad geographic region, and easily executed during the pandemic. This model is also a learning menu, where each site decides

how to engage and with what, an approach that many learners prefer allowing them to optimize and customize the experience.

References:

- 1. Thach SB, Hodge B, Cox M, et al. Cultivating country doctors: preparing learners for rural life and community leadership. Fam Med 2018; 50(9):685-690.
- 2. Marrast LM, Zallman L, Woolhandler S, et al. Minority physicians' role in the care of underserved patients: diversifying the physician workforce may be key in addressing health disparities. JAMA Intern Med 2014; 174:289-91.
- 3. Garcia AN, Kuo T, Arangua L, et al. Factors associated with medical school graduates' intention to work with underserved populations: policy implications for advancing workforce diversity. Acad Med 2019; 93(1):82-89.
- 4. Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR, Massie FS, et al. Burnout and suicidal ideation among U.S. medical students. Ann Intern Med. 2008; 149(5):334-41
- 5. Bodehmeimer T, Sinksy C. From Triple to quadruple aim: care of the patient requires care of the provider. Annals Fam Med. 2014;12(6):573-6.
- 6. Smith CD, Balatbat C, Corbridge S, et al. 2018. Implementing optimal team-based care to reduce clinician burnout. National Academy of Medicine, Washington, DC. https://nam.edu/implementingoptimal-team-based-care-to-reduce-clinician-burnout. Accessed April 13, 2019.
- 7. Linzer M, Poplau S, Grossman E, et al. A cluster randomized trial of interventions to improve work conditions and clinician burnout in primary care: results from the healthy work place (HWP) study. J Gen Intern Med 2015; 30(8):1105-11.
- 8. Zubatsky M, Pettinelli D, Salas J, et al. Associations between integrated care practice and burnout factors of primary care physicians. Fam Med 2018; 50(10):770-774.

For more information about this abstract please contact: mrea@ucdavis.edu

Integrating Human Trafficking Education into Medical Curricula

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Devika Das, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Jordan Dutcher, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Jennifer Talbott, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Matthew Buras, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Elisabeth Lim, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Juliana Kling, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine Paru David, Mayo Clinic School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To implement and evaluate a human trafficking curriculum into medical student education.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Human trafficking victims commonly interact with healthcare practitioners, but are not often identified (1,2). Few medical schools incorporate formal education on human trafficking (3,4).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The curriculum includes a standardized patient (SP) experience and lecture. First year medical students interviewed an SP exhibiting "red flags" for sex trafficking followed by a physician facilitator-led discussion in an observed small group setting. This was integrated into a mandatory sexual history taking course. The next year, a two hour lecture was presented to all first year medical students as part of their longitudinal clinical skills course and prior to the SP case. Curricula objectives included trafficking definitions, victim/survivor identification, intersections with healthcare, and local impact and resources.

Outcomes:

A multiple choice survey to assess knowledge about sex trafficking was developed and administered to students pre and post intervention. Twenty nine out of 50 (58%) students participated. Students demonstrated a significant increase in percentage correct from baseline on: trafficking definition (p < 0.05) and scope (p < 0.05); health consequences (p < 0.001); victim identification (p < 0.01); referral to services (p < 0.001); legal issues (p < 0.05); and security (p < 0.001). Core content themes identified as opportunities for future improvement included prevention and appropriate treatment.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This interactive and portable curriculum appears to reach course objectives. Further evaluation of this pilot curriculum is necessary to evaluate effectiveness and promote replication at other medical schools.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This curriculum can be replicated at other institutions. The lecture slides can be obtained and presented by any individual who has completed the AMWA-PATH Learn to Identify and Fight Trafficking (LIFT) training (5). In addition, the standardized SP script and facilitator instructions are published online.

References:

- 1. Family Violence Prevention Fund, Turning pain into power: trafficking survivors' perspectives on early intervention strategies. www.futureswithoutviolence.org/userfiles/file/ImmigrantWomen/Turning%20Pain%20intoPower.pdf. Published 2005. Accessed March 25, 2019.
- 2. Grace AM, Ahn R, Macias Konstantopoulos W. Integrating curricula on human trafficking into medical education and

residency training. JAMA Pediatr. 2014;168(9):793-794.

- 3. Stoklosa H, Lyman M, Bohnert C, Mittel O. Medical education and human trafficking: using simulation. Med Educ Online. 2017;22 (1):1412746.
- 4. Talbott JMV, Dutcher JS, Pougnier CA, Calvin SL, Roe-Sepowitz D, Kling JM. Review of Published Curriculum on Sex Trafficking for Undergraduate Medical Trainees. Am J Prev Med. 2020;58(4):604-611.
- 5. American Medical Women's Association. Physicians Against The Trafficking Of Humans (PATH). https://www.amwadoc.org/our-work/initiatives/human-trafficking/. Published 2020. Accessed 30 November 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: das.devika@mayo.edu

<u>A Longitudinal Curriculum for Supporting Residents' Educator Identity</u> Formation

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

John Penner, University of California, San Francisco Timothy Dyster, University of California, San Francisco John Davis, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We aimed to design a longitudinal curriculum that promotes educator identity formation (EIDF) for internal medicine residents enrolled in a clinician-educator track (CET).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Developing an educator identity increases clinicians' satisfaction and ongoing investment in a medical education career. Residents interested in medical education frequently enroll in CETs, however completion inconsistently leads to EIDF. Re-designing CETs using strategies for promoting identification from the community of practice framework (CoP) may enhance CETs' impact on EIDF.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We utilized Kern's framework to design a year-long curriculum comprising medical education experiences and weekly virtual seminars. Informed by CoP's modes of belonging, we sought to support learners engaging in education activities (via situated experiences in all five educator portfolio domains), imagining themselves as educators (through reflection on personal development), and aligning with education best practices (by applying education theories to their education practices). Seminars' objectives included summarizing educator dilemmas, describing and applying education theories, and identifying career development opportunities. Educational strategies included story-sharing, reflection, small-group discussions, and lectures.

Outcomes:

Nine residents have completed one-third of the curriculum. Data collection is ongoing. We used Qualtrics surveys following each seminar to evaluate the curriculum. The response rate was 74% (45/61). 94% of survey responses somewhat agreed or strongly agreed seminars accomplished their objectives. Qualitative responses included comments that aligned with the modes of belonging. Participants valued interactions with aspiring clinician-educators, protected time to plan and reflect on career development, and opportunities to learn education theories.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This novel CET design has been well-received by participants and seems to promote EIDF. Robust data evaluating impact on EIDF remain lacking in this early phase of implementation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

We designed this curriculum to be facilitated by chief and senior residents and to require minimal faculty full-time equivalents. It is transferable to programs with access to situated educator experiences and protected curricular time for residents.

References:

1. Cantillon P, Dornan T, De Grave W. Becoming a Clinical Teacher: Identity Formation in Context. Academic Medicine. 2019;94(10):1610-1618. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000002403

- 2. van Lankveld T, Thampy H, Cantillon P, Horsburgh J, Kluijtmans M. Supporting a teacher identity in health professions education: AMEE Guide No. 132. Medical Teacher. Published online November 6, 2020:1-13. doi:10.1080/0142159X.2020.1838463
- 3. Chen HC, Wamsley MA, Azzam A, Julian K, Irby DM, O'Sullivan PS. The Health Professions Education Pathway: Preparing Students, Residents, and Fellows to Become Future Educators. Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 2017;29(2):216-227. doi:10.1080/10401334.2016.1230500
- 4. Friedman K, Lester J, Young JQ. Clinician–Educator Tracks for Trainees in Graduate Medical Education: A Scoping Review. Academic Medicine. 2019;94(10):1599-1609. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000002814
- 5. Jauregui J, O'Sullivan P, Kalishman S, Nishimura H, Robins L. Remooring: A Qualitative Focus Group Exploration of How Educators Maintain Identity in a Sea of Competing Demands. Acad Med. 2019;94(1):122-128. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000000394
- 6. Smith CC, McCormick I, Huang GC. The Clinician–Educator Track: Training Internal Medicine Residents as Clinician–Educators. Academic Medicine. 2014;89(6):888-891. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000000242
- 7. Wenger E. Communities of Practice: Learning, Meaning, and Identity. Cambridge Univ. Press; 2008.
- 8. Kern DE, Thomas PA, Hughes MT, eds. Curriculum Development for Medical Education: A Six-Step Approach. 2nd ed. Johns Hopkins University Press; 2009.
- 9. Baldwin CD, Gusic M, Chandran L. The Educator Portfolio: A Tool for Career Development. AAMC. Accessed December 8, 2020. https://www.aamc.org/professional-development/affinity-groups/gfa/faculty-vitae/educator-portfolio-tool

For more information about this abstract please contact: john.penner@ucsf.edu

MS4-led Virtual Rounding Elective to Facilitate Clerkship Transition Among MS2s

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Adam Zakaria, University of California San Francisco Smrithi Sukumar, University of California San Francisco Nancy Choi, University of California San Francisco Cindy Lai, University of California San Francisco

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Develop a peer-to-peer virtual elective to help second-year medical students (MS2s) gain skills and confidence during the transition to clerkships

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Many transition-to-clerkship courses focus solely on oral presentations [1-2], provide students with limited opportunities to practice [2], utilize standardized patients [2-7] or are resource-intensive [1, 3, 5, 8-10].

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Using Kern's "Curriculum Development for Medical Education" guidebook [11], we created a three-day Virtual Rounding elective for MS2s transitioning into clerkships. On day one, students attended a one-hour interactive session that introduced best practices for electronic health record chart review, oral presentations, and literature searches. On days two and three, MS2s reviewed the chart of a hospitalized patient, prepared an oral presentation, and delivered the presentation during a one-hour videoconferencing session with their "Virtual Rounding team" consisting of 4 MS2s and a fourth-year medical student [MS4] tele-instructor. The MS4 provided feedback on student presentations and taught relevant clinical topics.

Outcomes:

79% (41/52) of participating MS2s and 91% (10/11) of tele-instructors responded to matched pre/post curriculum surveys. Using 5-point Likert scales and comparing results with paired t-tests [12], we found that MS2s' overall confidence approaching clerkships increased from 2.1 to 2.75 (p<0.001). All MS4s reported benefit from teaching, with a pre-post increase from 2.9 to 3.5 (p=0.005) in their confidence in mentoring new clerkship students.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include the flexible virtual learning environment, a formal curricular focus on important skills traditionally learned informally in the clinical environment, and incorporation of peer-to-peer teaching that benefitted MS2s and MS4s. Limitations include the lack of patient interaction and the brevity of the elective, which may limit skill development and exacerbate imposter syndrome in some students based on narrative comments.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our innovative model is highly feasible given no clinical faculty are needed; it can be readily transferred to any school with MS4s willing to facilitate the virtual elective.

References

1. Daniel, M., Rougas, S., Warrier, S., Kwan, B., Anselin, E., Walker, A., & Taylor, J. (2015). Teaching Oral Presentation Skills to Second-Year Medical Students. MedEdPORTAL, 11(1). doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10017

- 2. Helms, A., Tews, M., Palma-Sisto, P., Tipnis, S., Kartman, B., & Redlich, P. (2011). Pearls for Oral Presentations: Just-in-Time Training for Beginning Clinical Students. MedEdPORTAL, 7(1). doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.8386
- 3. Austin, J. P., Baskerville, M., Bumsted, T., Haedinger, L., Nonas, S., Pohoata, E., . . . Mitchell, S. H. (2020). Development and evaluation of a simulation-based transition to clerkship course. Perspectives on Medical Education, 9(6), 379-384. doi:10.1007/s40037-020-00590-4
- 4. Daniel, M., Heney, R., Kwan, B., Mannino, C., Williams, C., Macdonald, K., . . . Sutton, E. (2015). Preparing for Clerkships: Learning to Deliver Specialty-Specific Oral Presentations. MedEdPORTAL, 11(1). doi:10.15766/mep 2374-8265.10261
- 5. Hadvani, T., Hubenthal, E., & Chase, L. (2016). Transitions to Inpatient Medicine Clerkship's SOAP: Notes and Presenting on Rounds. MedEdPORTAL, 12(1). doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10366
- 6. O'brien, B. C., & Poncelet, A. N. (2010). Transition to Clerkship Courses: Preparing Students to Enter the Workplace. Academic Medicine, 85(12), 1862-1869. doi:10.1097/acm.0b013e3181fa2353
- 7. Reinhart, J., Cyril, G., & Stansfield, R. (2009). Peer-Student-Taught Clinical Transition Session: Medical Students Entering the Clinical Clerkships. MedEdPORTAL, 5(1). doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.7832
- 8. Butts, C. A., Speer, J. J., Brady, J. J., Stephenson, R. J., Langenau, E., Ditomasso, R., . . . Sesso, A. (2019). Introduction to Clerkship: Bridging the Gap Between Preclinical and Clinical Medical Education. The Journal of the American Osteopathic Association, 119(9), 578. doi:10.7556/jaoa.2019.101
- 9. Connor, D. M., Conlon, P. J., O'Brien, B. C., & Chou, C. L. (2017). Improving clerkship preparedness: A hospital medicine elective for pre-clerkship students. Medical Education Online, 22(1), 1307082. doi:10.1080/10872981.2017.1307082
- 10. Ryan, M. S., Feldman, M., Bodamer, C., Browning, J., Brock, E., & Grossman, C. (2020). Closing the Gap Between Preclinical and Clinical Training: Impact of a Transition-to-Clerkship Course on Medical Students' Clerkship Performance. Academic Medicine, 95(2), 221-225. doi:10.1097/acm.0000000000002934
- 11. Thomas, P. A., Kern, D. E., Hughes, M. T., & Chen, B. Y. (2015). Curriculum development for medical education: A six-step approach. Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press. Retrieved 2020.
- 12. Sullivan, G. M., & Artino, A. R. (2013). Analyzing and Interpreting Data From Likert-Type Scales. Journal of Graduate Medical Education, 5(4), 541-542. doi:10.4300/jgme-5-4-18

For more information about this abstract please contact: Adam.Zakaria@ucsf.edu

<u>Style Guide for Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Accessibility in Medical</u> Educational Content

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jessica Whittemore, Stanford University School of Medicine Peter Nguyen, Stanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Stanford EdTech is developing a style guide and policy to inform all new online course content creation with best practices for promoting diversity, equity, inclusion (DEI), and accessibility.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

As Schools of Medicine, including Stanford University, establish statements on DEI and its importance in driving innovation and excellence by building an equitable and just present and future, none have published style guides for their written content. EdTech seeks to establish simple and explicit DEI directives for our communication and content, because building more inclusive courses will reach more learners and improve health equity.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We will research best practices from media and higher education on avoiding exclusive language, and incorporating inclusive language, diverse representation of on-screen and audio characters, and accessibility to all learners.

Outcomes:

We will use this to create a written metric for evaluating the inclusivity of existing content and serving as a checklist for future content.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

No amount of research and reflection can ever yield a faultless and permanent style guide for inclusivity because DEI and accessibility are iterative processes that are always open to feedback. But by talking about DEI and accessibility through every project and providing a template for inclusion, we'll make it easy to make good choices, and keep improving.

According to foundational learning theory, stimuli are crucial to establishing learner attention. We hope to engage learners by incorporating diverse stimuli such as inclusive language, representative audio and visual assets, and design for learner variability. Applying this style guide will innovate pedagogical design and normalize inclusive communication for medical school communities.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

After this session, participants will be able to use our DEI metric to evaluate the inclusivity of written statements. Participants will also be able to use our DEI and accessibility style guide—or create their own template—to enhance inclusivity of their online communications.

References:

- 1. Diversity at Stanford Medicine. Diversity. Diversity at Stanford Medicine. https://med.stanford.edu/diversity.html. Published 2020. Accessed December 11, 2020.
- 2. Hunt V, Yee L, Prince S, Dixon-Fyle S. Delivering through diversity. McKinsey & Company. https://www.mckinsey.com/business-functions/organization/our-insights/delivering-through-diversity. Published January 17,

2020. Accessed December 11, 2020.

- 3. Lorenzo R, Voigt N, Tsusaka M, Krentz M, Abouzahr K. How Diverse Leadership Teams Boost Innovation. United States EN. https://www.bcg.com/en-us/publications/2018/how-diverse-leadership-teams-boost-innovation. Published November 18, 2020. Accessed December 11, 2020.
- 4. Kanigel R, ed. The Diversity Style Guide. https://www.diversitystyleguide.com/. Published 2020. Accessed December 10, 2020.
- 5. Diversity Style Guide. The California State University. https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/csu-branding-standards/editorial-style-guide/Pages/diversity-style-guide.aspx. Published 2020. Accessed December 11, 2020.
- 6. Accessible & Inclusive Events Resource Guide: Diversity, Equity & Diversity, Equity & Inclusion: University of Michigan. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion | University of Michigan. https://diversity.umich.edu/resources/accessible-inclusive-events-resource-guide/. Published 2020. Accessed December 11, 2020.
- 7. Alternative Text. WebAIM. https://webaim.org/techniques/alttext/. Published 2019. Accessed December 11, 2020.
- 8. Gagné, R. M. (1985). The conditions of learning and theory of instruction. New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jwhittem@stanford.edu

<u>Increasing Diversity in Faculty via the Academy for Development in Academic</u> Medicine Program

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: WGEA

Authors:

Aaron Dieringer, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Kian Assemi, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Negar Jacobs, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Increase the diversity of academic faculty through the creation of a pipeline program that allows participants to develop the skills necessary to be competitive candidates in academic faculty careers.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Having a diverse faculty body creates excellence in teaching, research, and patient care (AAMC 2016). However, recruiting faculty who are underrepresented in medicine can be challenging. Few pipeline programs focus on residency to faculty and many of those programs concentrate on building interest in academia and not necessarily on development of academic skills (Ahn et al., 2018).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Academy for the Development in Academic Medicine, or ADAM program, was developed by the Office of Diversity and Inclusion and consists of a 3-year longitudinal program. The program offers lunch time educational sessions to resident physicians and PhD students. Each year is themed and includes content on teaching, leadership, and scholarship. Participants also complete a longitudinal scholarly project.

Outcomes:

The ADAM program is in its 4th year with over 70% of participants identifying with at least one of our mission-based diversity groups for faculty. Pre to post survey results show significant increase self-efficacy ratings related to content that was covered each year. Many graduated participants report full time academic faculty appointments or some teaching component in post-graduation employment.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths: the ADAM program is centered around building skills in academic medicine, fosters collaboration across medical specialties and sciences, demonstrates high level of satisfaction among participants, and rotating curriculum allows participants to receive all content over a 3-year residency program. Limitations: it can be hard for participation due to demands of resident education so the use of recorded sessions keeps participation consistent.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The ADAM program is built upon using existing faculty experts in the various subject matters, limited administrative support needed, can use existing support such as online course platforms and facilities, and minimal budget requirements.

References:

1. Ahn, J., Martin, S.K., Farnan, J.M. & Fromme, B. (2018). The graduate medical education scholars track: developing residents as clinician-educators during clinical training via a longitudinal, multimodal, and multidisciplinary track. Academic Medicine, 92(2), 214-219.

For more information about this abstract please contact: nnjacobs@med.unr.edu

<u>Using the SAMR framework to evaluate technological and situational affordances for online learning</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Kerri Shaffer, University of Utah School of Medicine

Scott Brewster, Department of Internal Medicine University of Utah School of Medicine

Lee Chung, Department of Neurology University of Utah School of Medicine and George E. Wahlen VA Medical Center

Alexander Colonna, University of Utah School of Medicine

Megan Fix, Division of Emergency Medicine University of Utah School of Medicine

Katie Lappé, University of Utah School of Medicine and George E. Wahlen VA Hospital

Marlana Li, University of Utah School of Medicine

Karen Moser, University of Utah School of Medicine and Medical Director, Hemostasis/Thrombosis Laboratory, ARUP Laboratories

Candace Chow, University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The COVID-19 pandemic illuminated an existing problem: faculty do not always have the tools needed to make decisions about which educational technologies to incorporate in their teaching. A framework is needed to assist faculty in evaluating the affordances of the learning context. We have revised the Substitution, Augmentation, Modification, and Redefinition (SAMR) framework to serve as a guide for faculty in making these decisions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

To use technology effectively, one must first know what it can do. Affordance theory is a relational framework that was originally designed to analyze the interaction of subjects and their environments [1]. In recent years, affordance theory has been increasingly applied to the study of information communication tools (ICTs) and education technology. The learning environment involves both situational and technological affordances that must be evaluated during the instructional design process.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We reviewed the literature of the existing SAMR framework and its limitations to inform the adapted framework. We drew on affordance theory and instructional design principles to identify what elements would be most useful to faculty during the decision-making process.

Outcomes:

We will use Kirkpatrick's model [2] to determine the efficacy of the framework. Because this innovation is designed for faculty use, we will evaluate faculty response to the tool (Level 1 - Reaction), whether it informs their understanding of educational technology (Level 2 - Learning), and whether it contributes to improved teaching practices (Level 3 - Behavior).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths - The new framework is easy to use and will assist faculty in working through the complex decisions inherent in technology use.

Limitations – We have not yet had the opportunity to gather data from faculty who are using the framework to guide their instructional design.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This tool requires no implementation and very little training. It is easily adaptable for any educational context.

References:

- 1. Greeno, J. G. (1994). Gibson's affordances. Psychological Review 101(2), 336-342.
- 2. Kirkpatrick, D.L., & Kirkpatrick, J.D. (1994). Evaluating Training Programs. San Francisco, CA: Berrett-Koehler Publishers

For more information about this abstract please contact: kerri.shaffer@hsc.utah.edu

Reducing access inequity to age-friendly care through an interprofessional geriatric behavioral health telementoring curriculum for rural primary care providers

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: WGEA

....

Authors:

Laura Byerly, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine Elizabeth Eckstrom, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To increase rural providers' geriatric behavioral health knowledge and encourage age-friendly health system innovation.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Rural older Oregonians have few geriatric behavioral health resources, leading to significant access inequity. Oregon's rural providers have little training in, or access to, geriatric specialty care. To address this gap, we used the Project ECHO model to create the state's first geriatric behavioral health telementoring curriculum for rural primary care providers.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Our interprofessional multi-institution team of geriatric specialists created a 12-session virtual-platform-based biweekly curriculum on geriatric behavioral health (e.g., depression, insomnia) anchored in the age-friendly health system "4Ms" (mentation, medications, mobility, what matters). Project ECHO format included brief teaching talks and participant-driven case consultation/discussion. Participants started practice-based age-friendly system-improvement projects. Participants completed Likert-scale and qualitative pre/post course evaluations. Data analyses included descriptive statistics and thematic coding.

Outcomes:

Thirty-five participants (71% rural and/or underserved) enrolled. Seventeen participants completed preand post-course evaluations. Comfort levels improved in areas of diagnosing and treating conditions, such as dementia (41% pre- vs 81% post-course indicating "comfortable"). Participants cited highest benefits from peer-case discussions, particularly around managing medications in older adults with behavioral health diagnoses. Qualitative themes showed participants planned to incorporate deprescribing and age-appropriate assessments into practice. Most (65%) participants shared course knowledge within their practice. Practice improvement projects were diverse and included sharing an insomnia electronic health record tool.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We demonstrated an approach to "decentralized" geriatric behavioral health knowledge. Strengths included our faculty team who represented 5 professions and 3 healthcare systems and provided broad experiential teaching, as well as our systems-focused approach that encouraged individual and practice-level changes. Limitations included a lack of formal systems-improvement science training for participants, limited statewide representation of practices, and modest post-course evaluation completion.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

A telementoring approach to expanding age-friendly care is feasible with an interprofessional team and virtual platform technology.

References:

For more information about this abstract please contact: byerlyla@ohsu.edu

The Basics of Podcasting for Medical Education

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Andrew Baek, Stanford University School of Medicine Jessica Whittemore, Stanford University School of Medicine William Bottini, Stanford University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To implement podcasting as a tool for delivering medical education content

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In the past decade podcasting has seen a meteoric rise in popularity, largely due to the ease with which one can produce and listen to them. With shows ranging from self-help to criminal investigations, the application of podcasting is limitless, yet there have been relatively few ventures into medical education that utilize this platform. Our objective was to take advantage of podcasting to highlight the innovative work produced by educational technology groups at Stanford Medicine and beyond.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The design of our podcasts takes inspiration from popular interview shows, like Marc Maron's WTF podcast, where the primary focus is speaking with invited guests, and secondary emphasis on host-led segments. This format allows us to survey the medical education landscape through direct interactions, which is a continuation of the patient-centered storytelling and methodologies that our team has incorporated into all our productions.

Outcomes:

Using a combination of home recording setups, Adobe Audition, and a subscription to a hosting platform, our team currently hosts two bi-monthly podcasts, EdTech Café and Teachers in White Coats, both of which have garnered hundreds of listens and a 5-star average rating.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

A few of podcasting's strengths include the ease with which podcasting can be adopted by beginners, the wide reach that can be achieved because of its online delivery, and the high level of listener engagement due to its emphasis on literal human voices. A limitation, however, is that it is difficult to achieve revenue and scalability as a sub-industry within medical education.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This proposal aims to highlight the ease with which podcasting can be adopted and instituted. Anyone can learn to podcast after a quick study of the technology, recording process, and tools to edit and distribute the content.

References:

1. Baek A. Potent Podcasts. https://spark.adobe.com/page/671T9DeamnJAn/. Published 2017. Accessed December 12, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: abaek@stanfordhealthcare.org

MedEd Models: Leveraging Social Media to Disseminate Education Theory

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Timothy Dyster, University of California, San Francisco John Penner, University of California, San Francisco

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We aimed to disseminate core concepts of education theories by creating native content for a social media platform (Twitter©) and posting the content using a dedicated social media handle (@MedEdModels).

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Social media is an important tool in medical education. Twitter-based tutorials ("Tweetorials") are increasingly used to teach clinical content to a broad audience. However, leveraging Tweetorials as a tool for exposing medical educators to education theory has not been described.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We developed original digital content and a strategy to build a social media following for a new Twitter handle. To build a following, we launched teaser content in the month prior to our first Tweetorial and followed the accounts of popular medical education journals and individual users based on key hashtags (e.g., #MedTwitter, #MedEd). To create Tweetorial content, we used widely available computer programs (LucidChart©, Photoshop©) and subscribed to an icon repository (NounProject©). Topics were selected based on the availability of expert reviewers, and included subjects such as cognitive load theory and critical theory. Each Tweetorial included tweet text, 8-10 original images, an expert's comment, and a reading list. Faculty experts reviewed Tweetorials prior to posting.

Outcomes:

At post-launch day 90, the account had 685 followers and posted content had garnered 119,300 impressions (average engagement rate 4.4%) and 152 retweets. The 14-day average retweets, impressions, and engagement rate for the account's first five Tweetorials were 23, 5,973, and 17.2%, respectively. The faculty review team expanded into an international group, partially by recruitment through social media.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Our experience suggests wide dissemination of education theory using a social media platform is feasible. Future work should evaluate for evidence of learning from Tweetorial content.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our innovation utilizes a free, user-friendly social media platform. However, access to content experts and graphics editing software are possible barriers to transferability.

References:

- 1. MedEd Models. Cognitive Load Theory. Twitter (@MedEdModels). Sept 1, 2020. https://twitter.com/MedEdModels/status/1300766149974523904?s=20.
- 2. Colbert GB, Topf J, Jhaveri KD, et al. The Social Media Revolution in Nephrology Education. Kidney Int Rep. 2018;3(3):519-529. doi:10.1016/j.ekir.2018.02.003
- 3. Choo EK, Ranney ML, Chan TM, et al. Twitter as a tool for communication and knowledge exchange in academic medicine: A guide for skeptics and novices. Med Teach. 2015;37(5):411-416. doi:10.3109/0142159X.2014.993371
- 4. Jalali A, Sherbino J, Frank J, Sutherland S. Social media and medical education: Exploring the potential of Twitter as a learning

tool. Int Rev Psychiatry. 2015;27(2):140-146. doi:10.3109/09540261.2015.1015502

5. Breu AC. Why Is a Cow? Curiosity, Tweetorials, and the Return to Why. N Engl J Med. 2019;381(12):1097-1098. doi:10.1056/NEJMp1906790

For more information about this abstract please contact: <u>Timothy.Dyster@ucsf.edu</u>

Narrated Virtual Posters to Disseminate Work and Foster Collaboration among Transition to Residency Educators: Adapting the TTR Symposium in the Time of COVID

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jennifer Plant, University of California Davis Mary Teel, University of Colorado Matthew Rustici, University of Colorado

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The 2020 National Transition to Residency (TTR) Symposium was adapted from in-person to virtual. To showcase work related to TTR courses and foster collaboration among educators, we included narrated virtual posters.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The cancellation of conferences has left a void in opportunities for dissemination of work and professional networking. Many conferences have transitioned to virtual formats, and there are increasing reports of the use of virtual posters with little outcome data.1-3

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We distributed a call for abstracts related to TTR courses. Planning committee members independently rated abstracts and determined acceptances by consensus. Presenters submitted slides of posters and short videos describing their work. These were posted on the TTR educators website (https://www.ttreducators.com/symposium-2020-virtual-posters) prior to the symposium for public viewing. Presenters and attendees could leave comments on posters' webpages.

Outcomes:

More than 220 educators participated in the free symposium (versus 48 in 2019 [capacity was limited by physical space]). There were 33 abstract submissions (versus 10 in 2019) with 23 accepted. In the 6 weeks following posting of the narrated posters, there were 1411 views for posters' webpages and 85 comments. On the symposium evaluation, 64/99 respondents answered "Please indicate how valuable each of these sessions was to you in your work as a TTR educator: -Virtual poster session" with a mean score of 2.6/3.0.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Likely due to decreased cost, increased convenience, and the lack of space limitation, the 2020 virtual TTR symposium had a significant increase in participants and >300% increase in abstract submissions. The narrated virtual posters were frequently viewed, generated robust discussion via comments, and were well received by attendees. Narrated virtual posters are a promising means of sharing work and collaborating, potentially on a larger scale than in person meetings. Additional research into their effectiveness is needed.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our approach can be adapted to a wide variety of settings.

References:

1. Diegel-Vacek L, Carlucci M. An Innovative Virtual Poster Session for Doctor of Nursing Practice Student Project Presentations.

J Nurs Educ. 2020 Dec 1;59(12):697-700. doi: 10.3928/01484834-20201118-07. PMID: 33253399.

- 2. Holt EA, Heim AB, Tessens E, Walker R. Thanks for inviting me to the party: Virtual poster sessions as a way to connect in a time of disconnection. Ecol Evol. 2020 Sep 14;10(22):12423-12430. doi: 10.1002/ece3.6756. PMID: 33250981; PMCID: PMC7679537.
- 3. Society for Pediatric Dermatology 45th Annual Meeting Virtual Poster Presentations July 2020. Pediatr Dermatol. 2020 Nov;37(6):1223-1277. doi: 10.1111/pde.14361. PMID: 33283928

For more information about this abstract please contact: jplant@ucdavis.edu

Redesign of a Transition to Residency Course in the era of COVID: Leveraging technology and peer engagement

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Eric Signoff, University of California Davis Amanda Phares, University of California Davis Zachary Chaffin, University of California Davis Jennifer Plant, University of California Davis

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To use virtual methods to provide practical instruction in the knowledge, skills, and attitudes students need during internship.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

We have offered a two-week Transition to Residency (TTR) course at UCDavis since 2018. Following Kern's model for curriculum development(1) and guided by the AAMC's Core EPAs for Entering Residency(2), we developed a small-group, simulation-based core experience during which students work in specialty-based cohorts to care for virtual patients from presentation to discharge. In response to COVID, UCDavis moved all Spring 2020 coursework online necessitating a rapid redesign of our inperson TTR course.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We moved the entire course to the Canvas learning management system (LMS). We limited synchronous activities, instead posting short recorded lectures on key topics. We cohorted students into specialty groups and created 3-4 member teams. Each team worked through the core curriculum to care for their panel of virtual patients, posting work (e.g. admission orders, video recordings of handoffs), requesting specific feedback, and providing feedback to other assigned teams via discussion boards. Residents and faculty provided additional feedback on discussion boards and offered virtual office hours.

Outcomes:

117 students participated in April 2020. Compared to the in-person course offered May 2019, the virtual version scored higher on 8/8 items on the course evaluation including: Format of sessions was appropriate (6.06 vs 5.87/7), I received regular/constructive feedback (5.91 vs 4.97/7) and Overall quality (5.90 vs 5.32/7). Many comments about "the most useful aspects of the course" referenced the team-based approach to assignments and feedback.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We made improvements to our previously in-person TTR course by leveraging the technology of an LMS and engaging students via teamwork and peer feedback guided by specific prompts. In-person simulation-based training remains important and will be reintroduced when possible.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our approach can be applied to courses of different lengths and specialty-specific courses.

References:

1. Thomas PA, Kern DE, Hughes MT, Chen BY. Curriculum Development for Medical Education: A Six-Step Approach: Third Edition. Baltimore, MD: Johns Hopkins University Press, 2016

2. Associated of American Medical Colleges. The Core Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) for Entering Residency. https://www.aamc.org/what-we-do/mission-areas/medical-education/cbme/core-epas Accessed October 27, 2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jplant@ucdavis.edu

<u>Application by Design: An Evidence-based Toolkit for Designing Team-based</u> Learning (TBL) Sessions in Health Systems Science (HSS)

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Daniel Novak, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California Ronan Hallowell, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To provide educators with evidence-based design tools for designing TBL sessions that feature complex application exercises in HSS.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Team-based Learning (TBL) has been a popular element of active learning since the early 2000s[1,2,3], and trends in curriculum renewal[4] have increased interest in using TBL as an active learning protocol in teaching areas such as health systems science. Based on a systematic analysis of the published literature and TBL lesson plans published through MedEdPortal since 2005, medical educators need support to create application exercises that support the complex multi-domain thinking that are the hallmark of TBL.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This innovation presents the results of the first phase of a design-based research[5] project to create and test a series of tools to help physicians and instructional designers to think through the backwards-design process of creating challenging TBL application exercises. In particular, the scaffolding tools 1) help instructors to design exercises that draw from basic, clinical, and health systems science, and 2) support instructors in aligning objectives, applications, and pre-session work at higher levels of Bloom's Taxonomy. Tools currently include a Master Planning sheet, a syllabus template, a didactic presentation template, a TBL session template, and an end-of-session evaluation.

Outcomes:

The scaffolding tools were introduced to attendees at a large workshop of forty participants in 2020, and have been piloted with two additional faculty at our institution. The tools have been updated after each pilot to improve clarity and effectiveness.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Substantial opportunities exist to improve the design and implementation of TBL sessions in UME. The scaffolding tools support instructors as they design more complex TBL experiences that are better aligned with the strengths of the methodology.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The TBL-HSS design toolkit is a procedural kit that allows instructors at any institution to easily implement the tools. Video instructional guides are also included to support adoption.

References:

- 1. Searle NS, Haidet P, Kelly PA, Schneider VF, Seidel CL, Richards BF. Team learning in medical education: Initial experiences at ten institutions. Acad Med. 2003;78(10 SUPPL.):55-58. doi:10.1097/00001888-200310001-00018
- 2. Burgess AW, McGregor DM, Mellis CM. Applying established guidelines to team-based learning programs in medical schools: A systematic review. Acad Med. 2014;89(4):678-688. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000000162
- 3. Reimschisel T, Herring AL, Huang J, Minor TJ. A systematic review of the published literature on team-based learning in health

professions education. Med Teach. 2017;39(12):1227-1237. doi:10.1080/0142159X.2017.1340636
4. Novak DA, Hallowell R, Ben-Ari R, Elliott D. A Continuum of Innovation: Curricular Renewal Strategies in Undergraduate Medical Education, 2010-2018. Acad Med. 2019;94:S79-S85. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000002909
5. Novak, DA, Hallowell R. Design-based Research in Medical Education (DBR-ME). Acad Med. 2020 (In Press).

For more information about this abstract please contact: dnovak@usc.edu

<u>Digital Health Justice: A scalable blended-learning course on equity and access</u> in digital health for UME students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Daniel Novak, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This course was designed to scaffold UME students' abilities to critically appraise the products, practices, and policies that are emerging in the digital health space. Through the course, students examine and evaluate how these new technologies provide new opportunities for improving the lives of patients, but also where these technologies may fail to do so for all patients.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Digital health comprises a powerful new category of technologies that provide patients with better information and tools to manage their health and disease states[1]. Evidence about the efficacy of technologies such as mobile devices, activity trackers, and portable medical assessment tools emerges every day, but recent trends spotlight that these technologies may reinforce disparities in care[2]. The course was designed to help students identify potential equity issues in a range of digital health technology areas.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The online course included five content-oriented sessions based on challenge-based learning cycles[3] (CBLCs), and focused on the topics of patient-centeredness in digital health, structural competency, bias in artificial intelligence and machine learning, privacy, and virtual reality-based therapies. In the culminating session, students present and share their own CBLCs to the class.

Outcomes:

An analysis of students' CBLC products indicate that learning about the equity dimensions makes students more critical consumers of information about digital health and less prone to accepting hype. Students were most interested in learning more about issues related to health justice and AI and machine learning, serious games, and wearable devices.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The use of the CBLC format ensures that the course design is scalable, and can accommodate a range of topics based on local expert availability, course length, and student interests.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The course structure may be shared to other institutions, who can easily update or add additional sessions on their own online platforms. New instructors can customize the content based on their expertise.

References:

- 1. Meskó B, Drobni Z, Bényei É, Gergely B, Győrffy Z. Digital health is a cultural transformation of traditional healthcare. mHealth. 2017;3(38):38-38. doi:10.21037/mhealth.2017.08.07
- 2. National Academies of Sciences, Engineering and M. The Promises and Perils of Digital Strategies in Achieving Health Equity. (Anderson KM, Olson S, eds.). Washington, D.C.: National Academies Press; 2016. doi:10.17226/23439
- 3. Schwartz DL, Brophy S, Lin X, Bransford JD. Software for managing complex learning: Examples from an educational psychology course. Educ Technol Res Dev. 1999. doi:10.1007/BF02299464

For more information about this abstract please contact: dnovak@usc.edu

<u>Pre-clerkship Content Maps of Health Care Problems in a Problem-Based</u> <u>Learning Curriculum: Monitoring Themes, Gaps, Redundancies and</u> Accreditation Requirements

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Sheri Fong, University of Hawaii, John A. Burns School of Medicine Vanessa Wong, University of Hawaii, John A. Burns School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Our purpose was to map the learning priorities of each Health Care Problem (HCP) in our Problem-Based Learning (PBL) curriculum, alongside applicable accreditation standards1 and the graduation objectives and sub-objectives of the John A. Burns School of Medicine (JABSOM).2

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

JABSOM utilizes PBL as its main educational method in the pre-clerkship curriculum, covering over 90 HCPs in six theme- or organ-based curricular units over two years. Each curricular unit monitors its own content designed to advance students toward the graduation objectives, but JABSOM did not have a process to monitor all applicable accreditation standards and graduation objectives longitudinally throughout the PBL curriculum.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

First, existing Liaison Committee on Medical Education accreditation standards and likely future standards relevant to pre-clerkship education were extracted. JABSOM's graduation objectives and subobjectives were then mapped alongside appropriate standards. Secondly, main identifying information, including relation to other HCPs, chief complaint, key history, physical exam and diagnostic findings, and diagnosis, were determined for each HCP. Thirdly, the HCP learning priorities were mapped to the compiled list of standards/objectives, with associated pre-clerkship ExamSoft identification numbers, if present.

Outcomes:

All HCPs will be listed at the course and curriculum level, to easily identify gaps in content and assessment, as well as which standards and objectives the HCPs address.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The HCP content map will serve as a resource for pre-clerkship course directors to monitor family and disease themes that run throughout the curriculum, determine gaps and redundancies for essential topics and themes alongside their assessment, and track evolving accreditation requirements to prepare for future site visits. Challenges include absent degree of emphasis (introduction, reinforcement, mastery), the limitation of this map to HCPs, and the exclusion of concurrent lectures, labs, clinical skills and other pre-clerkship activities.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This process is time-intensive, but feasible and easily transferred to uniquely map standards and objectives of other programs.

References:

1. Liaison Committee on Medical Education. Standards, Publications & Notification Forms. Data Collection Instrument for Full

Accreditation Surveys, Effective Academic Year 2019-2020. https://lcme.org/publications/#DCI. Published March, 2018. Accessed December 13, 2020.

2. University of Hawai'l John A. Burns School of Medicine Objectives for Graduation. https://jabsom.hawaii.edu/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Graduation-Objectives-2020-approved-6-26-20.pdf Approved June, 2020. Accessed December 13, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: sherif@hawaii.edu

<u>Virtual Shadowing as an Effective Approach to Gaining Exposure to the Field of</u> Emergency Medicine

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

John Wheelwright, University of Utah School of Medicine
Riley Pence, University of Utah School of Medicine
Boyd Richard, University of Utah School of Medicine
Robert Stephen, University of Utah School of Medicine
Susan Stroud, University of Utah School of Medicine
Megan Fix, Division of Emergency Medicine University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We aimed to: virtually expose students to emergency medicine (EM) during the COVID-19 pandemic, facilitate mentor-mentee relationships between faculty and students, and foster a peer-to-peer support network among similarly interested students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Shadowing is an important part of medical student education. The COVID-19 pandemic limited medical students' hospital access during their first two years. In response, we implemented a novel virtual shadowing system to provide safe exposure to the emergency department (ED).

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Six EM faculty hosted 2-hour virtual shadowing experiences. Up to 10 students per shift signed up via signupgenius.com. Before each shift, students were given an overview to read about EM. Virtual shadowing was conducted using a HIPAA-compliant Zoom account on an ED issued mobile telehealth iPad. The physician brought the iPad into the room, obtained consent from patients, and ensured students were able to see the encounter. Between visits, students were encouraged to ask questions using the chat function. A short de-briefing followed each shift. Students were sent a post-encounter survey via Google Forms.

Outcomes:

Survey responses were collected between October 20, 2020, and November 20, 2020. The overall response rate was 96.6% (56/58 completed). Of respondents, 46 (82.1%) rated the experience as "effective" or "very effective" at providing exposure to EM. 53 (94.6%) said they would participate in virtual shadowing again, and 48 (85.7%) would do virtual shadowing in another specialty were it available.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Virtual shadowing was easy to implement and allowed multiple students to shadow at a time, but was limited by lack of ability to witness and learn physical exam skills and absence of 1:1 exposure to faculty.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Virtual shadowing was an effective way for students to shadow physicians in the ED, and should be explored as an accessible way to expose students to a broad array of specialties.

References:

NA

For more information about this abstract please contact: cade.wheelwright@hsc.utah.edu

Growing an inclusive workforce of child and adolescent psychiatrists

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Desiree Shapiro, University of California, San Diego School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The objective of this innovation is to grow a more inclusive workforce of child and adolescent psychiatrists (CAP) targeting medical students through a summer immersion program and yearlong program that focuses on community engagement, cultural sensitivity, sponsorship, collaborative learning, and scholarly projects. By increasing diversity in the CAP workforce and addressing the challenges many physicians face to advance, we will be better able to engage with our communities and foster equity in our workplaces.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

There is a worldwide shortage of child and adolescent psychiatrists (World Health Organization Atlas). In the United States, there are only 8,300 practicing psychiatrists with a projected need of 30,000 (AACAP). Over 15 million youth require the expertise of a quality Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist. Half of all psychiatric illnesses begin before age 14 and 75% begin before age 24 (Kessler 2005). In order to achieve health equity and reduce disparity, our CAPs must reflect the society they serve and advocate for those communities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The program offers engaging guest speakers and events such as documentaries and panels, didactics, group supervision, community engagement, mental health literacy presentations, clinical exposure, and a novel child and adolescent psychiatry preclerkship elective. Instructional methods also include a priority on student well-being and personal growth.

Outcomes:

In the pilot summer program that was virtual, all medical students expressed positive reviews of the program, sharing that they would recommend the program to other students and that the program has increased their interest in the field of CAP. Qualitative comments from focus groups were rich with input of the virtual format, focus on cultural sensitivity, and process of the experience.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The strengths include the positive quantitative and qualitative reviews from the student participants. The limitations include small sample sizes and pilot phase.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This program is eager to share components and offer framework/details with other institutions/programs.

- 1. Kessler RC, Angermeyer M, Anthony JC, et al. Lifetime prevalence and age-of-onset distributions of mental disorders in the World Health Organization's World Mental Health Survey Initiative. World Psychiatry 2007; 6: 168–76
- 2. Volpe T, Boydell KM, Pignatiello A. Choosing child and adolescent psychiatry: factors influencing medical students. J Can Acad Child Adolesc Psychiatry. 2013;22(4):260–7. World Health Organization, 2017. Mental Health ATLAS.
- 3. Mian AI, Milavic G, Skokauskas N. Child and adolescent psychiatry training a global perspective. Child Adolesc Psychiatr Clin N Am. 2015;24(4):699–714.

- 4. Meeting the Demand for Health: Final Report of the California Future Health Workforce Commission. January 2019. https://futurehealthworkforce.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/4.-meeting-the-demand-for-health-jan-2019-draft-appendix-a1.pdf.
- 5. NRMP. Psychiatry Match Results Statistics. 2018. http://www.nrmp.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/Psychiatry-Match-Results-Statistics-AY2018.pdf.
- 6. Merikangas, K., Hep, J., Burstein, M., Swanson, S., Avenevoli, S., Cui, L., Benejet, C...Swendsen, J. (2010). Lifetime prevalence of mental disorders in U.S. adolescents: results from the National Comorbidity Survey Replication--Adolescent Supplement (NCS-A). Journal of American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. 49(10): 980-989. doi: 10.1016/j.jaac.2010.05.017 For more information about this abstract please contact: dlshapiro@ucsd.edu

<u>Teaching Structural Competency to Medical Students During a COVID-19 Stay-</u> at-Home Order

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: WGEA

Authors:

Ronan Hallowell, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In the wake of the COVID-19 crisis during the Spring of 2020, an urgent need arose to offer online electives because of the suspension of in-person activities. To answer this need, and to pilot new health justice curriculum that was already in the planning stage, a peer-reviewed structural competency curriculum (1) was adapted into a 2-week online selective tailored to medical students. This course also allowed for a discussion of disparities that were spotlighted by COVID-19's disproportionate impact on communities of color and the poor.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Structural competency examines how inequitable social, political and economic structures that perpetuate poverty, racism and other injustices contribute to illness for marginalized individuals and populations (2). Structural competency strives to understand the deeper root problems in social systems and seeks transformative solutions that can ameliorate suffering of people whose experience of oppression has resulted in sickness.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The course adapted a daylong in-person training for health professionals developed by the SCWG (1) into a 2-week selective for medical students. The first 3 sessions covered an overview of the relationship between structures and health, the origins of structural competency and how to respond to harmful structures in and beyond the clinic based on the published curriculum and the fourth session included an expert guest speaker. Additional readings were selected and a set of four assignments were developed by the instructor to allow students to explore the topic more deeply.

Outcomes:

An analysis of students' evaluations and assignments indicated that they found the structural competency approach useful in thinking about how the health system can be transformed in the longer term while recognizing strategies to help patients deal with the effects of structures now.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The adaptation creatively leveraged a high-quality extant curriculum. A limitation was time.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This would fit nicely in a health justice curriculum at other schools.

References:

- 1. Neff J, Holmes SM, Knight KR, Strong S, Thompson-Lastad A, McGuinness C, Duncan L, Saxena N, Harvey MJ, Langford A, Carey-Simms KL. Structural Competency: Curriculum for Medical Students, Residents, and Interprofessional Teams on the Structural Factors That Produce Health Disparities. MedEdPORTAL. 2020 Mar 13;16.
- 2. Metzl JM, Hansen H. Structural competency: Theorizing a new medical engagement with stigma and inequality. Social science & medicine. 2014 Feb 1;103:126-33.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ronan.hallowell@usc.edu

Blended learning in the virtual environment: Interactive sessions for preclinical biochemistry that support student learning and engagement.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Tina Cowan, Stanford University School of Medicine Matthew Grieshop, Stanford University School of Medicine Peter Nguyen, Stanford School of Medicine Erfan Mojaddam, Stanford University School of Medicine Sara Cook, Stanford University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

In response to the requirement for virtual learning amidst the pandemic, we adapted our instructional format for Applied Biochemistry with emphasis on maintaining student engagement, fostering a sense of class community, and ensuring that key learning outcomes were attained despite a modified course format.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

At Stanford University, preclinical biochemistry is taught in a blended-learning format using short instructional videos to impart curricular content, with in-class time devoted to interactive exercises that reinforce integration of concepts and their clinical applications. In these weekly sessions, students work in teams of six to solve clinical problems based on that week's videos. Students have approached these popular in-person sessions with lively enthusiasm and engagement.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

In translating to a virtual environment, we focused on elements that support student engagement including appropriate level and pacing of material, clear instructions, anticipation of questions and pitfalls, and rigorous rehearsals of technical steps. We applied this strategy to the weekly interactive sessions as well as a more complex, cumulative review at the end of the course.

Outcomes:

In this virtual setting, students performed as well as previous iterations of the class as measured by final exam scores and overall class performance. Student satisfaction for the course was very high as noted by their course evaluations.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

For the final cumulative session, we developed a highly interactive virtual platform where early preclinical students could reason through clinical cases by ordering tests, consulting instructors, and making diagnoses in a simulated environment that deepened biochemical understanding and approached clinical reasoning necessary for USMLE step 1 and clerkship preparation.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This platform can be shared and is ready for use in clinical biochemistry courses. It can be iteratively expanded to include more patient presentations and the appearance can be modified. We also expect that other clinical reasoning vignettes could be adapted to this platform.

References:

1. Vallée A, Blacher J, Cariou A, Sorbets E. Blended Learning Compared to Traditional Learning in Medical Education: Systematic

Review and Meta-Analysis. J Med Internet Res. 2020 Aug 10;22(8):e16504. doi: 10.2196/16504. PMID: 32773378; PMCID: PMC7445617.

For more information about this abstract please contact: $\underline{tcowan@stanford.edu}$

<u>Pause before implementing: Lessons learned from a pilot microaggression</u> simulation curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jenna Essakow, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Sandrijn VanSchaik, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Jyothi Marbin, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Sneha Daya, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Develop and implement a simulation curriculum for residents to practice skills in recognizing and addressing microaggressions.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Residency programs are increasingly incorporating Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion concepts into their curricula to ensure residents contribute to an inclusive learning environment and apply equity principles to patient care. Despite these efforts, many residents report lack of confidence and skills in recognizing and addressing microaggressions.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We developed a simulation workshop for residents to practice interrupting microaggressions delivered by trained actors. We based simulation cases on incidents residents had witnessed from attending physicians, nurses, and peers. Participating residents practiced acknowledging and addressing microaggressions, and subsequently received feedback from facilitators and peers about their approach.

Outcomes:

After participating in the workshop, 27/30 (90%) pediatric residents felt confident in their ability to intervene when a microaggression occurs versus 8/30 (27%) prior to the workshop. All participants strongly agreed that this type of training should be incorporated in their curriculum. In addition to this positive feedback, some learners indicated feeling triggered and traumatized during the scenarios, in part because of their prior experiences with microaggressions in the learning environment.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Further discussion with facilitators revealed that learners may not be the best initial target audience for this curriculum as they have limited situational power and reserve. We also learned that facilitators required expert skills to navigate the complicated, sensitive conversations that occurred during the debriefing.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Our experience with this simulation pilot serves as a cautionary tale for other programs/institutions planning similar curriculums. We plan to adapt our resident curriculum into a curriculum for faculty, before re-introducing it to residents. We have two aims for this effort: to equip faculty with the skills to interrupt and address microaggressions so they can be the primary change agents to improve inclusivity in learning environments, and to prepare faculty for the facilitator role.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: jenna.essakow@gmail.com

The Power of Active Learning: MS3 Clerkship Support via Student Directed Supplemental Instruction Sessions

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Paul Chang, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Ranna Nash, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Brady Janes, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine John Pelley, Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To provide additional academic support resources to clerkship students.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Academic resources are established for pre-clinical medical school years; however, there is a decline in support structures for the clerkship year. To address this, we implemented adjunct student directed sessions for each clerkship rotation. This system has proven to be effective in addressing pre-clinical curriculum when geared towards active learning rather than traditional didactic lectures. The success of the pre-clinical modules prompted us to explore its efficacy in providing support for third year students.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

One-to-two-hour sessions were provided at a six-week interval for each clerkship cohort (approximately 12-25 students) at UNR School of Medicine. Sessions were run by appointed fourth year students assigned to each clerkship, working in conjunction with clerkship directors and faculty to develop content. Content varied by clerkship, including shelf exam preparation, success tips for the clerkship, oral exam preparation, and career advising. Attendance was optional and recorded; it was then correlated to shelf exam performance. Student surveys were tracked to assess program efficacy.

Outcomes:

Students were very receptive to this resource, with session attendance percentage ranging from 65-100%. When evaluating survey responses, the majority of students report the sessions being helpful in preparing them for their exams and clerkship activities. Shelf exam score data is still being collected.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The program allows for students to direct the learning process with facilitators that have just recently completed the curriculum. It allows for the transmission of high yield content that is directly applicable to current students. The success of these modules is highly dependent on finding capable facilitators, making recruitment and training essential.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

As ever clerkship employed their modules differently, it can be safely stated that the addition of supplemental instruction modules can be implemented regardless of program structure. Sessions were conducted at various times, locations, and dates without any difficulty.

References:

1. Pelley, John and Dalley, Bernell. (2008). Success Types in Medical Education: A Program for Improving Academic Performance (Version 1.1). Lubbock, TX: Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center School of Medicine. Retrieved fromeducation/success-types/book.aspx

- 2. Pelley, John. (2018). Success Types Medical Education Site. Retrieved from https://www.ttuhsc.edu/medicine/medical-education/success-types/
- 3. National Board of Medical Examiners Professional Services, Test Development Services. (2016). Constructing Written Test Questions for Basic and Clinical Sciences. Philadelphia, PA: National Board of Medical Examiners.

For more information about this abstract please contact: chang584@gmail.com

<u>Qualitative Research for Narrative Medicine: Teaching New Perspectives at the</u> Intersection of Social Science, Humanities and Biomedicine

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Ronan Hallowell, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

This course was developed for the MS in Narrative Medicine that launched in 2020 at the Keck School of Medicine. The purpose of the course is to examine how qualitative research can complement narrative medicine's focus on exploring intersubjectivity, relationality, personhood, and embodiment in relationship to social justice issues in medicine and society.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Narrative-based, inductive approaches that include sitting with, querying, and reflecting upon the lived experiences of people in naturalistic settings are the hallmarks of qualitative research (1-2). This resonates with concerns addressed in the humanities, such as the human condition and the relationship of individuals to society. Since narrative medicine sits at the intersection of biomedicine, humanities and social science, qualitative research methods serve as an important methodological bridge between these disciplines.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Students learned about ethnography, observation, interviewing, focus groups, and other techniques for acquiring qualitative data to answer research questions. They explored the philosophical underpinnings of qualitative research and the role of worldview and research approach in shaping how epistemologies develop (3). This was related to key concepts from narrative medicine such as the development of narrative competence where health care providers learn to "recognize, absorb, interpret, and be moved to action by the stories of others" (4). Students collected auto-ethnographic data, conducted an interview and observation, and wrote a research proposal.

Outcomes:

The course was evaluated with mid-term and a final course evaluations. Students valued learning systematic techniques for research design and data collection in which they could recognize parallels with quantitative research while appreciating that the more humanistic approach of qualitative research resonated with what they were learning about narrative medicine.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Considering social science, humanities and biomedicine together was fruitful. A limitation was that with so much material to cover, we couldn't fully unpack it all.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Could be incorporated in to student research projects.

- 1. Green, J., & Thorogood, N. (2018). Qualitative methods for health research. Thousand Oaks, CA. SAGE Publications.
- 2. Maxwell, J. A. (2013). Qualitative research design: An interactive approach. Thousand Oaks, CA: SAGE Publications.
- 3. Denzin, N. K., & Lincoln, Y. S. (2005). The SAGE handbook of qualitative research. Thousand Oaks, CA: SAGE Publications.

4. Charon, R. (2017). Introduction. In R. Charon et al. (Eds.). Principles and Practice of Narrative Medicine (pp.1). New York: Oxford University Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ronan.hallowell@usc.edu

<u>Assessment of First-Year Medical Students Via a Virtual Clinical Experience</u> **During COVID-19**

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jacob Robson, University of Utah School of Medicine Megan Fix, Division of Emergency Medicine University of Utah School of Medicine Amanda Vincent, University of Utah School of Medicine Katherine Anderson, University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Compare ratings on key developmental benchmarks for medical students assessed by longitudinal clinical faculty (CORE) or an alternative faculty educator (ALT) during a virtual clinical experience.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Experiential learning opportunities (ELOs) are part of our institutional Clinical Method Curriculum—a 4-year learning community (LC)-based clinical skills course. LCs consist of 9 students assigned to one or two longitudinal CORE throughout medical school. COVID-19 precautions mandated a switch from inperson outpatient ELOs to a virtual experience in Spring 2020.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

ALT (an experienced physician-educator), other than the student's usual CORE, posed on Zoom as standardized patients (SP) with a common outpatient complaint, and were interviewed and virtually examined by students. These ALT, and the student's CORE, rated students after this experience.

Outcomes:

The majority of first-year medical students (N=103, 82%) were assessed during this virtual experience. There were no statistical differences between ALT and CORE ratings for physical exam, communication, professionalism, or likelihood to struggle during clerkships, but ALT did rate students lower on average across all indices then did CORE. The ability to gather a history was significantly different across raters (5-point scale, 0.2 lower by ALT faculty rater, 3.26 vs. 3.46, p=0.04).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

ALT posing as an SP were able to reliably assess a student's clinical performance via a single virtual session, with minimal discrepancy in ratings compared to CORE. A limitation was that all raters consistently rated students at or above average on all indices, raising concern that faculty naïve to the virtual ELO setting may need additional faculty development to accurately assess students performing below average in the virtual environment.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Virtual ELOs were feasible, easy to run encounters and may be considered as an alternative to clinical inperson experiences in special circumstances. Virtual experiences allow for students to be reliably observed and assessed by a wide variety of experienced faculty raters.

References:

1. Carraccio, C., Englander, R., Gilhooly, J., Mink, R., Hofkosh, D., Barone, M. A., & Holmboe, E. S. (2017). Building a Framework of Entrustable Professional Activities, Supported by Competencies and Milestones, to Bridge the Educational Continuum. Acad Med, 92(3), 324-330. 2. Tabatabai, S. (2020). COVID-19 impact and virtual medical education. J Adv Med Educ Prof, 8(3), 140-143.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jacob.robson@hsc.utah.edu

<u>Integrating Acceptance and Commitment Training into a Medical School</u> <u>Curriculum to Foster Cultural Humility</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Kian Assemi, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Alison Szarko, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Shanna Strauss, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Anayansi Lombardero, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Allison Cotton, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Ramona Houmanfar, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Negar Jacobs, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To teach cultural humility using Acceptance and Commitment Training (ACT), an evidence-based strategy to mitigate bias.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Given our nation's salient history of healthcare disparities and the physician's oath to providing equitable care, it is imperative medical schools identify effective training procedures in order to shape the cultural humility of physicians of the future. This need is highlighted by research on healthcare disparities. The Institute of Medicine (2003) found evidence of poorer quality of care for minority patients in many areas.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Interactive online training modules were developed by a team of interdisciplinary curriculum developers and senior medical students to teach medical students how to understand and apply cultural humility by utilizing principles of ACT. ACT is a behavior scientific technology shown to be effective in a variety of areas including efforts to reduce provider stigma (Masuda et al., 2007) and includes skills related to cultural humility such as mindfulness, perspective taking, and values-based actions. By employing these skills, ACT may strengthen the impact of interventions with the goal of increasing cultural humility. The current modules will be provided within the context of a 4th year Medical Spanish elective in conjunction with other material related to the topic of medical Spanish. Pre and post data will be compared on students' self-efficacy and knowledge about cultural humility.

Outcomes:

ACT may strengthen the impact of interventions with the goal of increasing cultural humility.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Strengths include use of ACT, an evidence-based approach, to teach skills related to cultural humility, using interactive online modules that are feasible and easy to transfer to other schools. Limitations include lack of a control group to compare learning gains. However, this project will set the course for future multi-site comparisons.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The online modules are easy to implement and can be easily transferrable to other medical institutions.

References:

- 1. Institute of Medicine (US) Committee on Understanding and Eliminating Racial and Ethnic Disparities in Health Care, Smedley, B. D., Stith, A. Y., & Nelson, A. R. (Eds.). (2003). Unequal Treatment: Confronting Racial and Ethnic Disparities in Health Care. National Academies Press (US).
- 2. Masuda, A., Hayes, S. C., Fletcher, L. B., Seignourel, P. J., Bunting, K., Herbst, S. A., Twohig, M. P., & Lillis, J. (2007). Impact of acceptance and commitment therapy versus education on stigma toward people with psychological disorders. Behaviour Research and Therapy, 45(11), 2764–2772.

For more information about this abstract please contact: nnjacobs@med.unr.edu

<u>Pediatric Resident Insulin Management Education (PRIME); A Shift to Adult</u> Learning

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Caroline Schulmeister, University of California, San Francisco Ellen Laves, University of California, San Francisco Jenise Wong, University of California, San Francisco Abby Walch, University of California San Francisco

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To improve insulin management self-efficacy in physicians entering pediatric residency.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Insulin is a high-risk medication, and errors can lead to patient morbidity and mortality.1 Additionally, the American Board of Pediatrics (ABP) recommends that all board certified pediatricians be able to develop an insulin management plan for patients with diabetes.2 Pediatric residents at University of California, San Francisco (UCSF) historically received mandatory didactic teaching on insulin management but endorsed low self-efficacy at developing a new subcutaneous insulin plan. We therefore developed an insulin curriculum with an active learning focus to improve resident skills in devising subcutaneous insulin plans.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Following Kern's model for curriculum development,3 we determined our learner's needs, developed objectives, and chose educational strategies. Using the Master Adaptive Learning framework, we supplemented a short didactic session with small group problem-based learning and peer teaching to promote active learning and participation.4 Pre- and Post-Test responses were compared using paired t-tests and were compared to the previous year's responses.

Outcomes:

Twenty-eight incoming pediatric residents participated in this mandatory course. The primary outcome was self-efficacy; an individual's confidence in their ability to perform a specific task in a given domain. There was a statistically significant improvement in self efficacy at creating a new subcutaneous insulin plan after course completion (p<0.001). Post-test self-efficacy scores were higher in this cohort compared to the previous year (p<0.001).

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Integration of active learning methods into an existing curriculum allowed for improved self-efficacy in a pediatric residency insulin curriculum.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Despite being a single institution study of a specific insulin curriculum, these techniques can be easily transferred to other settings and curricula.

- 1. Hicks RW, Becker SC, Cousins DD. Harmful Medication Errors in Children: A 5-Year Analysis of Data from the USP's MEDMARX® Program. J Pediatr Nurs. 2006;21(4):290-298. doi:10.1016/j.pedn.2006.02.002
- 2. THE AMERICAN BOARD OF PEDIATRICS © CONTENT OUTLINE General Pediatrics In-Training, Certification, and Maintenance of Certification Examinations.

- 3. Kern, Bass, Thomas, Howard. Curriculum Development for Medical Education. Baltimore: 1998. Johns Hopkins University Press; 1998.
- 4. Cutrer, William, et al., eds. The Master Adaptive Learner. Elsevier Health Sciences, 2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: caroline.schulmeister@ucsf.edu

Teaching LGBTQIA+ Health through Activist History and Structural Intervention

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Benjamin Jones, University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine

Megha Garg, University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine, San Francisco Veterans Affairs Medical Center

Archna Eniasivam, University of California, San Francisco School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Create innovative methods to engage medical students in the study of LGBTQIA+ health and identity.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Published curricula focus primarily on risk factors, pathologies, and "LGBTQIA+ 101" topics. Few employ cultural or structural humility frameworks and none, to our knowledge, engage with the health impacts of intersectional LGBTQIA+ histories of structural violence and activism.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

We designed a new small group-based curriculum for medical students during a required social justice-focused preclinical course employing transformative learning pedagogy. Student pre-work includes a reading on improving LGBTQIA+ healthcare and preparing group presentations on predetermined LGBTQIA+ activism and health history topics. During the session, students present and discuss their topics. They then read a case of a transgender man with a pelvic mass and use their pre-reading to imagine different levels of intervention to improve his care.

Outcomes:

The curriculum was piloted in November 2020 and evaluations were overwhelmingly favorable. Ninety-seven percent of students completing the post-session survey (n=40) agreed that the content was valuable to their medical education. Qualitative responses indicated gratitude for a nuanced approach to LGBTQIA+ health and diverse intersectional identities that students had not experienced elsewhere. In particular, students were excited to see a patient case that is "finally representative of the lived experiences of many trans folks." Students also expressed a desire for more transgender and gender non-conforming health inclusion in their preclinical curriculum beyond this small group.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

The curriculum successfully approaches LGBTQIA+ health from a new perspective focusing on activist history and structural intervention. Improvements are needed in timing, as the lesson plan was challenging to complete in the time allotted, and to more directly connect LGBTQIA+ histories to their current healthcare impacts.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This session occurs during a required social justice-focused course, without which it may be difficult to contextualize. However, it is designed to be effective as a standalone session.

- 1. Implementing curricular and institutional climate changes to improve health care for individuals who are LGBT, gender nonconforming, or born with DSD: a resource for medical educators. Association of American Medical Colleges; 2014. https://store.aamc.org/downloadable/download/sample/sample_id/129/
- 2. Donald CA, DasGupta S, Metzl JM, Eckstrand KL. Queer frontiers in medicine: a structural competency approach. Academic

Medicine. 2017;92(3):345-350. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001533

- 3. Grubb H, Hutcherson H, Amiel J, Bogart J, Laird J. Cultural numility with lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender populations: a novel curriculum in LGBT health for clinical medical students. MedEdPORTAL. 2013;9. doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.9542
- 4. Cooper M. B, Chacko M, Christner J. Incorporating LGBT health in an undergraduate medical education curriculum through the construct of social determinants of health. MedEdPORTAL. 14. doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10781
- 5. Crenshaw K. Demarginalizing the intersection of race and sex: a Black feminist critique of antidiscrimination doctrine, feminist theory and antiracist politics. University of Chicago Legal Forum. 1989; 1.
- https://chicagounbound.uchicago.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1052&context=uclf
br><6. Tervalon M, Murray-García J. Cultural humility versus cultural competence: a critical distinction in defining physician training outcomes in multicultural education. J Health Care Poor Underserved. 1998;9(2):117-125. doi:10.1353/hpu.2010.0233
- 7. Metzl JM, Hansen H. Structural competency: theorizing a new medical engagement with stigma and inequality. Soc Sci Med. 2014;103:126-133. doi:10.1016/j.socscimed.2013.06.032
- 8. Mezirow J. Transformative learning: theory to practice. New Directions for Adult and Continuing Education. 1997;1997(74):5-12. doi:10.1002/ace.7401
- 9. Neff J, Holmes SM, Knight KR, et al. Structural competency: curriculum for medical students, residents, and interprofessional teams on the structural factors that produce health disparities. MedEdPORTAL. 2020;16. doi:10.15766/mep_2374-8265.10888

For more information about this abstract please contact: benjamin.jones@ucsf.edu

Using Virtual Reality (VR) for Teaching Neuroanatomy

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Huy Tran, Stanford School of Medicine Peter Nguyen, Stanford School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Our project aims to represent MRI data in 3D form to help residents study neuroanatomy through immersive visualization. Developed with the goal of having psychiatry residents immerse inside a virtual environment, MRI data was used to represent the human brain as a complete structure in 3D space.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Traditionally, radiologists and neurology students analyze MRI data only by looking at flat 2D DICOM slices. It is hard to visualize how structures really look. To understand better, it is important to recognize how a structure is spatially constructed and oriented. With the addition of the 3rd dimension, a series of MRIs can become a volumetric visual that is accurate and faithful to its 2D counterpart.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

To re-create MRI data in its volumetric form, we extracted actual MRI data, and reconstructed it in Unreal Engine 4 by using raymarching technique. Learners are immersed in a virtual environment (VR). Inside, they see the actual MRI data, represented as a volumetric form. Using either HTC Vive or Oculus Rift headsets, learners have abilities to manipulate the simulation in a 3D space. A quiz is embedded with randomly generated questions to assess their skill level.

Outcomes:

With the help of volumetric MRI visualization, this innovative educational intervention will not only be the first application of VR in neuroimaging education among psychiatry residents, but also be the first to study the impact of VR technology in learning behavioral neuroimaging concepts.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

This project engages students in an innovative learning modality, and represents anatomical MRI data in a complete volumetric form. It, however, takes time to reconstruct the data accurately. Importing data into the engine is also not automated yet.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This project can be adapted easily with new sets of MRI image data. The curriculum can be converted into a CME course and expanded to include other medical specialties.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: huytran@stanford.edu

<u>Development of Cultural Humility through a Medical Spanish Elective</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Sergio Trejo, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Eric Nguyen, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Shanna Strauss, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Alison Szarko, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Kian Assemi, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

MED 663-Spanish for Medical Professionals is a fourth-year medical school elective designed to alleviate health disparities by teaching medical students the fundamentals of medical Spanish and cultural humility in order to help underserved populations.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Nationally, 64% of non-English speaking patients speak Spanish, resulting in increased health disparities because most physicians in the US primarily speak English. In Washoe County the need for medical providers to speak Spanish is needed, given that the Latinx community comprises 25% of the census population. In the context of the current pandemic, the Latinx community comprises 36% of COVID-19 cases in Washoe County. A lack of well-trained in-person interpreters and culturally humble healthcare teams has magnified the critical need for providers being able to communicate to patients using medical Spanish, not only to decrease the spread of COVID-19 - but also to ensure each patient is receiving just, equitable, and culturally-sensitive care.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

This course is divided into three components, which consist of (1) language acquisition via the Canopy online learning platform, (2) cultural humility via online modules and interactive workshops, and (3) practicum, where students have the opportunity to practice their medical Spanish in a clinic setting.

Outcomes:

Demand for the course was overwhelming as all available seats were filled within minutes. Upon successful completion of this course, students will improve their fluency in Spanish and obtain the resources necessary to facilitate and further improve their communication. Furthermore, students will learn about culture in the context of healthcare and develop their own approach to treating diverse patients

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Early implementation of this course can be difficult due to the cost, gathering support from stakeholders, and educational materials.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

However once established, it will provide an easy, generalizable model for other schools to adopt and meet needs of their specific regional demographics.

- 1.Clarridge, K. E., Fischer, E. A., Quintana, A. R., & Wagner, J. M. (2008). Should All U.S. Physicians Speak Spanish? AMA Journal of Ethics, 10(4), 211-216. doi:10.1001/virtualmentor.2008.10.4.medu1-0804
- 2. Murray-García, J., & Tervalon, M. (2014). The Concept Of Cultural Humility. Health Affairs, 33(7), 1303-1303.

doi:10.1377/hlthaff.2014.0564

3.Stokes EK, Zambrano LD, Anderson KN, et al. Coronavirus Disease 2019 Case Surveillance — United States, January 22–May 30, 2020. MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep 2020;69:759–765. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6924e2external icon. 4. Tervalon, M., & Murray-García, J. (1998). Cultural Humility Versus Cultural Competence: A Critical Distinction in Defining Physician Training Outcomes in Multicultural Education. Journal of Health Care for the Poor and Underserved 9(2), 117-125. doi:10.1353/hpu.2010.0233.

5.Tervalon, M. (2003). Components of Culture in Health for Medical Students' Education. Academic Medicine, 78(6), 570-576. doi:10.1097/00001888-200306000-00005

6. Tervalon, M. (2009). At a Decade: Centers of Excellence in Culturally Competent Care. The Permanente Journal, 13(1). doi:10.7812/tpp/08-074

7.Health District. (n.d.). Retrieved December 13, 2020, from https://www.washoecounty.us/health/8.Social Determinants of Health. (n.d.). Retrieved December 13, 2020, from https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health

9. Washoe County, NV Demographics. (n.d.). Retrieved December 13, 2020, from https://datausa.io/profile/geo/washoe-county-nv

For more information about this abstract please contact: strejo@unr.edu

Medical Education Media Enlivened with Character Animator

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Lauren Watley, Stanford University School of Medicine William Bottini, Stanford University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

After attending this presentation, participants will be able to promote active engagement with medical education content through the art of storytelling and the application, Character Animator.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Today's creative technologies make storytelling and content production accessible, elevating the way we tell medical stories for learning. Animation, often used to explain medical information, dynamically demonstrates technical content, while character animation, often used in role play or simulations, engages learners on an emotional level, enhancing learning [1]. Character Animator, a character animation app by Adobe, is the perfect tool for bringing impactful medical stories to life.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Stanford Edtech uses Character Animator to create learning content where patient and physician stories are central. To use Character Animator, all one needs is a desktop or laptop computer with a webcam. External files, like character rigs created in Photoshop, or jpegs can be brought in as puppets to animate.

Outcomes:

Character Animator continues to be a go-to tool for producing the types of projects our stakeholders appreciate. It makes it possible to take on projects that would be impossible otherwise due to either COVID limitations on live filming, or because live filming requires greater resources. Production time has decreased, with experience.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

When live action filming is a challenge, character animation can be an effective alternative. Personas, built as character rigs or characterized images, can protect patient identity or liven up a didactic scenario. Adobe's AI uses webcam and facial tracking to match expressions in real time, turning any artwork into an animated character. The primary limitation is the time necessary to learn Character Animator.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Adobe's creative cloud service allows for project files to be shared efficiently within a creative team and files can be exported as HD image sequences or video. View an example of our work here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ryzs9JAIEM8&ab channel=StanfordEdTech

References:

1. Kim, I., Choi, M., & Ko, H. (2018). 캐릭터 애니메이션 기반 모바일 외국어 어휘 학습 앱 효과 분석. 한국멀티미디어학회논문지, 21(12), 1526–1533. https://doi.org/10.9717/KMMS.2018.21.12.1526

For more information about this abstract please contact: lwatley@stanford.edu

A creative teaching modality to not only help students learn anatomy but also practice visual communication skills for future interaction with patients.

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Sumana Mahata, UC San Diego School of Medicine Paul Kingston, UC San Diego School of Medicine Mark Whitehead, UC San Diego School of Medicine Katharina Brandl, UC San Diego School of Medicine Geoffroy Noel, UC San Diego School of Medicine Lina Lander, UC San Diego School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

Introducing a new creative modality to anatomy learning could help students learn anatomy and practice visual communication.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Cadaveric dissection has remained the primary modality for anatomy education for several hundred years. However, it has been suggested that combining this teaching practice with more modern approaches could complement the students' learning experience.[1] Beginning in 2020, UC San Diego School of Medicine provided all preclinical students with iPads to provide new opportunities for creative teaching modalities.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The authors generated a series of template images in the Procreate app from existing anatomy lab manuals. Template images were not labeled and omitted key structures. These images were imported into the Notability app and relevant structures were drawn to serve as an example. Duplicate version sans annotations were made available for students to draw the missing structures and label appropriately.

Outcomes:

The authors surveyed the class after students used this new modality. Out of 25 respondents, 19 (76%) used the templates for anatomy once a week or more. Participants reported that they used the templates for problem-based learning presentations (5.5%), non-anatomy coursework (16.7%), and as a basis for flashcard software (11.1%). Students reported that the templates are helpful for knowledge integration and for test preparation. Thus, with this resource, visual anatomy learning has become more accessible and shareable for all learners.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Given the changing climate with respect to distance learning, efforts should be made to bolster alternate resources.[2] Incorporating creative modalities in anatomy learning may foster creativity in students' future careers and help students recognize the benefit of visuals in communicating medicine to patients. Although this exact methodology may not be possible for all institutions, the idea holds that artistic learning modalities are useful to students.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This visual communication could be an invaluable and transferable skill in interacting with patients in the long term.

References:

- 1. Estai, M., & Bunt, S. (2016). Best teaching practices in anatomy education: A critical review. Annals of Anatomy Anatomischer Anzeiger, 208, 151-157. doi:10.1016/j.aanat.2016.02.010
- 2. Franchi, Thomas. (2020). The Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic on Current Anatomy Education and Future Careers: A Student's Perspective, 13(3): 312–315. doi:10.1002/ase.1966

For more information about this abstract please contact: sumahata@health.ucsd.edu

<u>Effectiveness of a Medical Student Led Virtual Nutrition Module for High School</u> Students

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Lauren Lim, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Mitch Pisane, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

The Healthier Nevada Youth Educational Modules Project (HNVP) was designed by medical students and aims to provide evidence-based preventative health education to high school students. This study focuses on the effectiveness of presenting a virtual nutrition module to high school students during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

The Nevada Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) assessment_1 analyzed diet trends among high school students in Washoe County, NV and demonstrated that only 12.8% of students consumed vegetables at least once per day, and 11.2% of students drank soda daily. This prompted the HNVP to create a nutrition module that focuses on decreasing sugar and increasing whole food consumption.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

To continue our efforts despite the COVID-19 pandemic, we adapted our nutrition module for online delivery. Before and after the module students will complete a Likert scale survey that pertains to what they learned about proper diet and nutrition and their overall satisfaction with the online format.

Outcomes:

Data will be collected from December 2020-April 2021, and will be analyzed to see if students are receptive to nutrition education delivered by medical students. Further results will be analyzed to see if students responded well to the online format.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We are limited by the self-reporting nature of data collection and the variability in the delivery of modules when given by different medical student presenters. Successful transition from in-person modules to online has allowed us to continue providing essential nutrition information to students despite COVID19 restrictions. We aim to continue exploring the effectiveness of this module while also transitioning other modules to an online format.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Online modules will help broaden access to public health curriculum in harder to reach populations such as homeschooled or rural students. Overall, creating engaging online content centered around sensitive health topics could provide a great opportunity for medical students to effect change across Nevada.

References:

1. Anderson, M., Diedrick, M., Lensch, T., Zhang, F., Peek, J., Clements-Nolle, K., Yang, W. State of Nevada, Division of Public and Behavioral Health and the University of Nevada, Reno. Nevada High School Youth Risk Behavior Survey (YRBS) Washoe County Comparison Report, 2017-2019.

For more information about this abstract please contact: shreeyaj@med.unr.edu

Addressing a Citation on Biochemistry from the Liaison Committee on Medical Education: The John A. Burns School of Medicine's Approach

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Sheri Fong, University of Hawaii, John A. Burns School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To address a Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME) citation, our aims were to understand student perception and content relevance, develop faculty development and new curricular activities, and measure effectiveness.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In 2017, the John A. Burns School of Medicine (JABSOM) received a LCME citation for Element 7.1 on student dissatisfaction with preparation for clinical clerkships in biochemistry. The associated AAMC-GQ biochemistry ratings for excellent/good was 41.0-47.5% for 2015-2017, below national average.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

The Classes of 2017-2019 were engaged to understand student perception. Faculty development included presentations on learners and active learning methods, direct lecturer observation by experienced teachers, and NBME subject exam review. Clerkship directors' ratings of relevance of biochemistry content1 were incorporated into a longitudinal map. End-clerkship surveys asked students which topics should be covered in pre-clerkship to better prepare for clerkship. From this, new educational content was developed and monitored.

Outcomes:

Students felt biochemistry was less relevant to clerkships; PBL cases could incorporate more biochemistry; lectures had too much information, unclear clinical relevance and needed step-by-step pathways and more interactivity. The latter two were addressed by faculty development. The longitudinal content map identified gaps. Biochemistry content was added to PBL. Pre-lecture step-by-step pathway videos, allowed for more lecture coverage of clinical relevance and board review. Upperclassmen were informed of the pre-clerkship changes and ~85% agreed/strongly agreed that they would have been better prepared for clerkship. This was reflected in AAMC-GQ biochemistry ratings of 71.0-78.0% in 2018-2020, above national average.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

JABSOM successfully developed and implemented initiatives that improved instruction and clinical relevance of the biochemistry curriculum. The students were appreciative of these changes, and this process reviews 2-3 foundational sciences per year. However, since our main changes were implemented for MS1s, these classes have not yet graduated.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

The design is feasible and transferable, with unique outcomes based on information gathered.

References:

1. Association of Biochemistry Educators (ABE). General Public Resources. ABE Learning Objectives and Competencies. https://www.abiochemed.org/public-resources/ Updated 2011. Accessed December 13, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: sherif@hawaii.edu

<u>Character-Driven Storytelling in Medical Education: an essential approach to teaching health</u>

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

William Bottini, Stanford University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

We create character-driven storytelling content in order to teach communication, soft skills, and bedside manner online, in an emotionally compelling and memorable way.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

Across our projects, bedside manner, empathy, and communication skills have been consistent learning objectives. To meet this recurring need, our team has developed a design methodology, content production pipeline, and skillset to create character-driven storytelling education content.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

When developing projects we help our partners reframe their content to put character stories, ideally from real life, at the center. Those stories frame how the content is taught and then our team comes up with a way to represent the story. We have a range of approaches which we will often use in combination, from prose-style narrative writing, to graphic novels, to fully animated sequences using complex digital puppets.

Outcomes:

The outcome I would like to highlight is the qualitative feedback we've received, often unsolicited, about the impact of the stories in our courses. In one case, "Childrens Health Across the Gender Spectrum," we invited eight transgender children to teach the course using their own voices and experiences, and we had such a positive reception to the course that a translator volunteered to translate the entire course into Spanish and Italian for us.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

One strength of character-driven storytelling is its synergy with diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts. Storytelling naturally prompts discussion of whose stories we're telling, and how we might better address the needs of specific populations who are adversely affected by a particular issue.

One limitation is cost; conceiving of, planning, creating this content requires a lot of time, money, the right skills, and a certain level of talent.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

This is a highly transferable innovation in medical education because storytelling is a universal communication strategy that can be scaled to the resources and needs of any team.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: william.bottini@gmail.com

A data-driven and evidence based approach to hybrid UME curriculum

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Janet Corral, University of Arizona College of Medicine Sidney Donzella, University of Arizona

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

A data-driven approach to student engagement in virtual learning is necessary to understand the learning equity of the program.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

While some have posited UME preclerkship can be offered online, creating quality learning experiences for equitable outcomes is challenging. We used a design-based research framework to better understand the interaction between curriculum design and student behaviors.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

Dashboards (Power BI; Microsoft Corporation, Seattle, WA) compared preclerkship hybrid learning behaviors over three years, including before and during the pandemic. Data included logins, content accessed, duration, and time of day. Curriculum design iterated over class years from in-person large group teaching, to some online modules, to fully evidence-based Zoom active learning twice a day with recordings and live small groups. Student feedback was triangulated with dashboard results and analyzed by two reviewers using a prior themes of access and engagement.

Outcomes:

Pre-COVID access to resources showed the same patterns as the March 2020 pivot online; i.e. learners accessed materials afternoons and evenings, but did not engage lecture. During the pandemic, learner engagement shifted to attending active and team learning sessions, and the number of downloads decreased, though did not account for all student access to learning materials. Student feedback was that mid- and higher socioeconomic class students rely on 3rd party tools rather than university-supplied materials, noting that students with fewer economic means use fewer third party tools and higher stress in preparing for exams.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

Dashboards provide key insights into the complex interactions of curricula and student behaviors. However, visualizations alone will not improve equity in academic success. AAMC-wide, we need to mature the data sources for dashboards, both within and across institutions.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Shifting medical school online requires a conscientious understanding of student-driven behaviors and evidence-based needs. This is particularly true for medical schools supporting first-to-college matriculants who need additional learning support.

- 1.Knosp, B., Patton, J., Campion, M., Macfarlane, H. and Corral, J. (2018). "What's In Your Med Ed Data Warehouse?". In S.Th. Konstantinidis, P.D. Bamidis, N. Zary. (Eds.) Digital innovations in healthcare education and training. Cambridge, MA: Academic Press
- 2.Boscardin, C., Fergus, K. B., Hellevig, B., & Hauer, K. E. (2018). Twelve tips to promote successful development of a learner performance dashboard within a medical education program. Medical teacher, 40(8), 855-861.
- 3. Shroyer, A. L., Lu, W. H., & Chandran, L. (2016). Drivers of dashboard development (3-D): a curricular continuous quality

improvement approach. Academic Medicine, 91(4), 517-521.

- 4. Tworek, J., Ellaway, R., & Dornan, T. (2013). Large group teaching. In Oxford Textbook of Medical Education. Oxford University Press Oxford.
- 5. Kincaid, T., Lee, LL., Tan, R., and Corral, J. (2019, in review). Unpacking the Effectiveness of Flipped Classroom: Positive Learning Outcomes but Evaluation Fallouts from Flipping the Embryology Curriculum in an Integrated Medical Gross Anatomy Course. IAMSE 2020: Denver, CO (June 13-16, 2020).
- 6. Barab, S. (2006). Design-based research. The Cambridge handbook of the learning sciences, 153-169.
- 7. Harden, R. M., & Hart, I. R. (2002). An international virtual medical school (IVIMEDS): the future for medical education?. Medical teacher, 24(3), 261-267.
- 8. Emanuel, E. J. (2020). The inevitable reimagining of medical education. Jama, 323(12), 1127-1128.

For more information about this abstract please contact: corralj@medadmin.arizona.edu

<u>Design Thinking-Based Resident-Led Curriculum Development During Covid-19:</u> Feasible, Fast, Effective

Submission Type: Innovation Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Ashley Oliver, University of California, San Francisco Genevieve Manahan, University of California, San Francisco Oana Maties, University of California, San Francisco

Abstract Body:

Objective or purpose of innovation:

To investigate whether design thinking-based, resident-led online curriculum could result in effective learning.

Background and/or theoretical framework and importance to the field:

In March 2020, our Department of Anesthesia suspended residency didactics in the setting of a global pandemic. We created an online course employing design thinking with Kern's six-step approach to curriculum development.

Design: Instructional methods and materials used:

- 1. Empathized, defined and targeted needs assessment.
 - a. Through polling during departmental town hall meetings and Slack channels residents expressed a desire to continue structured learning. A PollEverywhere survey served as a targeted needs assessment for didactics topics. Of 25 polled residents, 6 residents requested basic pharmacology review, 9 residents requested cardiac anesthesia, 3 resident requested thoracic anesthesia, 3 residents requested liver transplant topics, 2 residents requested review of blood products and transfusion, medicine, 2 residents requested Covid-19 topics, 1 resident requested pediatric anesthesia, 1 resident requested OB anesthesia. No residents requested acute or chronic pain topics.
- 2. Goals, educational strategies, and ideation.
 - a. With an objective to provide residents the opportunity to review advanced topics in anesthesia, we employed flipped classroom strategies with suggested pre-reading for sessions and leaned heavily on polling features.
- 3. Implementation, prototyping, testing.

We refined teaching strategies based on resident feedback and attendance.

Outcomes:

- On average, 15 (6-16) residents attended each session.
- Of 16 residents, 11 residents provided feedback (69%).
- 5 residents agreed "the course significantly contributed to my understanding of a topic in education."
- 6 residents agreed it "somewhat contributed to my understanding of a topic in education."
- 11 residents agreed it was "fairly engaging;" no residents indicated that the course was not at all engaging, somewhat engaging, or extremely engaging.

Innovation's strengths and limitations:

We created a rapidly developed, effective curriculum. Limitations include the small cohort size.

Feasibility and transferability for adoption:

Design thinking and Kern's six steps to curricular development are both validated, well-described in the creation of health education. Combining them is feasible and transferable.

References:

- 1. Deitte, Lori A., and Reed A. Omary. "The Power of Design Thinking in Medical Education." Academic Radiology 26, no. 10 (October 2019): 1417–20. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.acra.2019.02.012.
- 2. MacKinnon, Kinnon R., Lori E. Ross, David Rojas Gualdron, and Stella L. Ng. "Teaching Health Professionals How to Tailor Gender-Affirming Medicine Protocols: A Design Thinking Project." Perspectives on Medical Education 9, no. 5 (October 2020): 324–28. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40037-020-00581-5.
- 3. McLaughlin, Jacqueline E., Michael D. Wolcott, Devin Hubbard, Kelly Umstead, and Traci R. Rider. "A Qualitative Review of the Design Thinking Framework in Health Professions Education." Bmc Medical Education 19 (April 4, 2019): 98. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-019-1528-8.
- 4. Melles, Gavin, Zaana Howard, and Scott Thompson-Whiteside. "Teaching Design Thinking: Expanding Horizons in Design Education." In World Conference on Learning, Teaching & Administration 2011, edited by H. Uzunboylu, 31:162–66. Amsterdam: Elsevier Science Bv, 2012. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2011.12.035.
- 5. Ospina Ospina, Daniel Humberto, Diana Carolina Calvo Marin, and Luis Eduardo Pelaez Valencia. "Didactics: From Methodological Dichotomies to the New Challenge of Virtual Education." Attic-Revista D Innovacio Educativa, no. 11 (December 2013): 21–29. https://doi.org/10.7203/attic.11.3052.
- 6. Wolpaw, Daniel R., Kevin Black, and Terry Wolpaw. "Bringing Design Thinking to Medical Education: Student Design Partners as Curriculum Cocreators." Journal of General Internal Medicine 32 (April 2017): S659–S659.
- 7. Kern, D. E. (1998). Curriculum development for medical education: A six step approach. Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact: ashley.oliver@ucsf.edu

Research Abstracts

CGEA Research Abstracts

Neural Network Analysis of Medical Student Burnout as Impacted by Emotion

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin
Jeff Fritz, Medical College of Wisconsin-Central Wisconsin
Amy Prunuske, Medical College of Wisconsin-Central Wisconsin
Craig Hanke, Medical College of Wisconsin-Green Bay
Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin
Molly Falk-Steinmetz, Medical College of Wisconsin
William Hueston, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to determine the predictive relationship of medical student burnout from trait-affect using neural network analysis.

Background and relevance of the study:

Neural network analysis (NNA) is a powerful analytical tool modelled after the structure of the human brain. It can generate more predictive power over regression analysis to identify risk factors for important outcomes such as medical student burnout.¹ Given the implications of medical student burnout and its association with depression, loneliness, and depersonalization,² it is necessary to identify emotional predictors that may influence this phenomenon.³

Design and Methods:

In 2017/18, 205 of 500 first and second-year medical students completed these self-reported surveys: 15-Item Maslach Burnout Inventory (MBI-SS, scale:1=never/7=every day) and 60-Item Positive and Negative Affect Schedule (PANAS-X, scale:1=very slightly/5=extremely) to measure trait affect (emotions).

Multilayer perceptron analysis (a specific form of NNA) generated predictive models of burnout from trait affect (TA). Multivariate logistic regressions were used for comparison to multilayer perceptron analysis. IBM® SPSS® 26.0 generated the statistical analysis. This research was approved by the institution's IRB.

Results:

Medical student burnout (alpha=0.7) scores (mean(sd)=52(15)) had a range of 18-85 and dichotomized as high/low along the median (53).

NNA of burnout/TA completed training time in 30 milliseconds and used 70%/30% of the data for training/testing with an 78% successful testing prediction rate. Area under the ROC burnout/TA high/low curves were 0.860/0.860.

The top six TA predictors of burnout were fatigue (importance coefficient=0.17), fear (0.16), serenity (0.14), attentiveness (0.13), joviality (0.11), surprise (0.10).

Multivariate logistic regression of burnout and TA (Nagelkerke R²=0.49, p<0.001) had three significant TA predictors: attentiveness (B coefficient=-1.3), fear (1.1), and fatigue (0.5) with a 78% successful classification rate.

Conclusions:

Neural network analysis provided a more comprehensive list of emotional risk factors of burnout than logistic regression analysis, but both techniques included the full spectrum of emotional valence (positive, negative, and neutral).

References:

- 1. Hajihosseini M, Norozi E, Azimi T, Ahmadinia H, Comparison of Artificial Neural Networks and Logistic Regression for Determination of Social-Cognitive Factors Impacting Drug Abstinence, Journal of Substance Use 2019; Published Online: https://doi.org/10.1080/14659891.2019.1690060
- 2. Silva V, Costa P, Pereira I, Faria R, Salgueira AP, Costa MJ, et al. Depression in Medical Students: Insights from a Longitudinal Study. BMC Medical Education 2017;17(1):184-9.
- 3. Obregon M, Luo J, Shelton J, Blevins T, MacDowell M, Assessment of Burnout in Medical Students using the Maslach Burnout Inventory-Student Survey: A Cross-sectional Data Analysis, BMC Medical Education 2020;(20)376, doi:10.1186/s12909-020-02274-3

For more information about this abstract please contact rtreat@mcw.edu

<u>Faculty's Perceptions of Culture Conducive to Career Success in Academic</u> Medicine

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Heeyoung Han, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Vidhya Prakash, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Russell Korte, George Washington University Susan Hingle, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study aimed to investigate perceptions of faculty members about organizational culture as it relates to their career success in academic medicine.

Background and relevance of the study:

Faculty career success in academic medicine is complex, especially when considering the intersectionality of gender and race.1-3 The elusive nature of processes such as promotion and tenure and selection for leadership positions compounds the question of whether the culture of academic medicine is conducive to faculty development and career progression.

Design and Methods:

We conducted a qualitative study by interviewing twenty-three faculty at a medical school located in the Midwestern United States. We analyzed the interview transcripts using constant comparison processes based on a grounded theory approach to identify the collective perceptions of the faculty about career success.

Results:

Despite a general perception of a collaborative, friendly, and supportive culture, access to resources seemed to be unequal and tied to position. Participants perceived that leadership selectively accommodated individual faculty needs to achieve collective success as an organization rather than focus on the success of particular individuals. Career opportunities were mostly granted by leaders, and interpersonal relationships with leaders could either promote or hinder career advancement. Emphasis on clinical productivity and academic scholarship led to perceived inequities by clinical faculty, with the misalignment creating inconsistent faculty promotion timelines. Gender bias was present, but subtle. Participants also perceived bias between disciplines that contradicted a culture of collaboration, support, and interdisciplinary connection in academic medicine.

Conclusions:

Transparency and consistency in processes, from promotion and tenure to leadership development and selection, are imperative in building an inclusive culture in academic medicine. Career advancement should be individually tailored with equitable allocation of resources. Further, building high-quality relationships between leaders and all faculty and cultivating mutual respect between specialties are essential to create an organizational culture conducive to faculty career success.

- 1. Bickel J. Organizational Savvy: Critical to Career Development in Academic Medicine. J Womens Health. 2019;28(3):297-301.
- 2. Pololi LH, Krupat E, Civian JT, Ash AS, Brennan RT. Why Are a Quarter of Faculty Considering Leaving Academic Medicine? A Study of Their Perceptions of Institutional Culture and Intentions to Leave at 26 Representative U.S. Medical Schools. Academic

Medicine. 2012;87(7):859-869.

3. Westring AF, Speck RM, Sammel MD, et al. A Culture Conducive to Women's Academic Success: Development of a Measure. Academic Medicine. 2012;87(11):1622-1631.

For more information about this abstract please contact hhan@siumed.edu

<u>Black Lives Matter: Student Perspectives of Institutional Statements on Racial Incidents Using LCME Standards as a Guide</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Sacha Sharp, Indiana University School of Medicine
Alexis Umoye, University of California, Davis, School of Medicine
Taylor Smith, Indiana University School of Medicine
Jamel Hill, Indiana University School of Medicine
Deena Mohamed, Indiana University School of Medicine
Nicole Messmore, Indiana University School of Medicine
Antwione Haywood, Indiana University School of Medicine
Sylk Sotto, Indiana University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Research Question: What is the connection between LCME Standards and the institutional statements developed as a response to the murder of George Floyd?

Sub-question: What is missing from both the LCME standards and the institutional statements in relation to lived experiences of Black medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

The murders of Breonna Taylor, George Floyd, Ahmaud Arbery, and countless other Black Americans at the hands of police have triggered introspection across all academic medical centers. As a response, leaders in academic medicine have released statements to address the social injustices recognized by their campus communities. Yet, what else has influenced the language of these statements? Therefore, we consider the role of the Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME), and how Standards provide direction to campus leaders for discussing issues around racial injustice in the Black community.

Design and Methods:

Using discourse analysis, we analyzed 26 institutional statements collected through the internet. Statements were issued during the timeframe of May 25th to June 9th. Further, we focused our analysis on institutional statements provided by Deans and CDOs in academic medicine.

Results:

The analysis revealed three discursive themes related to relevant LCME Standards. Theme one considers LCME Standard 2.5 and illustrates how the language used to convey the responsibility of the dean often centers whiteness. The two additional themes focus on both LCME Standards 3.4 and 7.6 and highlights redoubled efforts that lead to vagueness perpetuated by LCME, as well as the use of platitudes when addressing racism.

Conclusions:

There is no statement released from a Medical School that can change the dynamics of our society, or no words that can bring back George Floyd and Breonna Taylor. Many mentioned the importance of taking a stance on condemning racism as a whole. The statements that truly stood out were statements that addressed the emotions of those that are being oppressed.

References:

- 1. Cole ER, Harper SR. (2017). Race and rhetoric: An analysis of college presidents' statements on campus racial incidents. J Divers High Educ. 10(4):318–33.
- 2. Morphew CC, Hartley M. (2006). Mission Statements: A Thematic Analysis of Rhetoric Across Institutional Type. J High Educ. 77(3):456–71.
- 3. Grbic D, Hafferty FW, Hafferty PK. (2013). Medical School Mission Statements as Reflections of Institutional Identity and Educational Purpose: A Network Text Analysis. Acad Med. 88(6):852–60.
- 4. Squire D, Nicolazzo Z, Perez RJ. (2019). Institutional Response as Non-Performative: What University Communications (Don't) Say About Movements Toward Justice. Rev High Educ. 42(5):109–33.
- 5. Krishnan A, Rabinowitz M, Ziminsky A, Scott SM, Chretien KC. (2019). Addressing Race, Culture, and Structural Inequality in Medical Education: A Guide for Revising Teaching Cases. Acad Med. 94(4):550–5.
- 6. Nazar M, Kendall K, Day L, Nazar H. (2015). Decolonising medical curricula through diversity education: Lessons from students. Med Teach. 37(4):385–93.
- 7. Simon FA, Aschenbrener CA. (2005). Undergraduate medical education accreditation as a driver of lifelong learning. Journal of Continuing Education in the Health Professions. 25(3):157-61.
- 8. Blood AD, Farnan JM, Fitz-William W. (2020). Curriculum Changes and Trends 2010–2020: A Focused National Review Using the AAMC Curriculum Inventory and the LCME Annual Medical School Questionnaire Part II. Acad Med. 95(9S):S5–14.
- 9. Diaz T, Navarro JR, Chen EH. (2020). An Institutional Approach to Fostering Inclusion and Addressing Racial Bias: Implications for Diversity in Academic Medicine. Teach Learn Med. 32(1):110–6.
- 10. Soto-Greene M, Culbreath K, Guzman DE, Sánchez JP, Romero-Leggott V. (2018) Diversity and Inclusion in the Academic Medicine Workforce: Encouraging Medical Students and Residents to Consider Academic Careers. MedEdPORTAL. 14(1):mep 2374-8265.10689.
- 11. Komaromy M, Grumbach K, Drake M, Vranizan K, Lurie N, Keane D, et al. (1996). The Role of Black and Hispanic Physicians in Providing Health Care for Underserved Populations. N Engl J Med.334(20):1305–10.
- 12. AAMC. Addressing and Eliminating Racism at AAMC and Beyond. Retrieved from https://www.aamc.org/addressing-and-eliminating-racism-aamc-and-beyond?utm source=sfmc&utm medium=email&utm campaign=C2C&utm content=newsletter
- 13. Anderson KT, Holloway J. (2020) Discourse analysis as theory, method, and epistemology in studies of education policy. J Educ Policy. 35(2):188–221.
- 14. van Dijk TA. (1992). Discourse and the Denial of Racism. Discourse Soc. 3(1):87-118.
- 15. van Dijk TA. (1993). Principles of Critical Discourse Analysis. Discourse Soc. 4(2):249-83.

For more information about this abstract please contact sachshar@iu.edu

<u>Evaluation of a Bilingual Cultural Hispanic/Latinx Workshop About Diabetes for</u> Pre-health and Health Professions Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Reniell Iniguez, University of Illinois College of Medicine Pilar Ortega, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To evaluate the impact of a bilingual cultural health workshop about diabetes on pre-health and health professions students' confidence in and attitudes about caring for Hispanic/Latinx patients with diabetes.

Background and relevance of the study:

Patient-physician linguistic and cultural discordance contributes to suboptimal care of Hispanic/Latinx individuals with diabetes in the United States (1-5). Medical education presents an important opportunity to increase future physicians' awareness of Hispanic/Latinx cultural health beliefs, celebrate the linguistic and cultural diversity of the Hispanic/Latinx community, and invest in reinforcing the unique skills of Hispanic/Latinx students and health professionals. Bilingual pedagogies have been proposed as effective methods for preparing students with some pre-existing Spanish skills—including Hispanic/Latinx heritage speakers—to be advocates in their communities (6).

Design and Methods:

The 1-hour workshop consisted of an interactive didactic and bilingual slide presentation to introduce participants to common Hispanic/Latinx cultural beliefs pertaining to diabetes, diabetes terminology in Spanish, and best practices when caring for Spanish-speaking patients with a high risk of diabetes. Two workshops were conducted in partnership with the Medical Organization for Latino Advancement and the Latino Health Science Enrichment program. A four-point Likert scale asked participants to self-rate their confidence with culturally focused diabetes-related topics.

Results:

Of 60 attendees, 51 participants (85%) completed surveys. Comparing pre-and post-workshop responses, showed increases in respondents' confidence to explain the definition of diabetes to Spanish-speaking patients (2.38 vs. 1.47, p < .001), to explain how diabetes relates to general health (2.20 vs 1.42 p < .001), and an increase in general knowledge of cultural diabetes beliefs and how culture may impact health decisions (2.00 vs 1.27, p < .001). The workshop was effective across learners with variable Spanish-proficiencies.

Conclusions:

A culturally-focused diabetes workshop taught bilingually, may be an effective strategy for promoting diversity in medicine and teaching Spanish-heritage learners or second-language learners about culture's integral role in diabetes management in Latinx/Hispanic communities.

- 1. Perez-Escamilla, R. (2011). Acculturation, nutrition, and health disparities in Latinos. The American journal of clinical nutrition, 93(5), 1163S-1167S.
- 2. Chow, E. A., Foster, H., Gonzalez, V., & McIver, L. (2012). The disparate impact of diabetes on racial/ethnic minority populations. Clinical Diabetes, 30(3), 130-133.

- 3. Diamond, L., Izquierdo, K., Canfield, D., Matsoukas, K., & Gany, F. (2019). A systematic review of the impact of Patient–Physician non-English language concordance on quality of care and outcomes. Journal of general internal medicine, 1-16. 4. Parker, M. M., Fernández, A., Moffet, H. H., Grant, R. W., Torreblanca, A., & Karter, A. J. (2017). Association of patient-physician language concordance and glycemic control for limited–English proficiency Latinos with type 2 diabetes. JAMA internal medicine, 177(3), 380-387.
- 5. Chaufan, C., Fielding, H., Chesla, C., & Fernandez, A. (2015). "It's Not the Doctor—It's Me": How Self-Blame Obscures Language and Other Structural Barriers to Diabetes Care among Low-Income Latinos with Limited English Proficiency. In Education, Social Factors, and Health Beliefs in Health and Health Care Services. Emerald Group Publishing Limited.
- 6. Martínez, G. A. (2010). Medical Spanish for heritage learners: A prescription to improve the health of Spanish-speaking communities. In Building communities and making connections (Vol. 2, No. 15, pp. 2-15). Cambridge Scholars Publishing in association with GSE Research.

For more information about this abstract please contact Rinigu2@uic.edu

Use of Artificial Intelligence to Map Assessment Alignment in Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Robin Rivest, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Qirat Maqsood, Oakland University Ian Haworth, University of Southern California James Grogan, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Robert Noiva, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine David Thomas, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine Tracey Taylor, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our goal is to evaluate medical school curriculum mapping using artificial intelligence (AI). Specifically, we will use AI to complement standard current examination mapping processes. We aim to assess the value of AI to improve curricular management and data reporting.

Background and relevance of the study:

Curriculum mapping aligns learning objectives, instruction, and assessment; however, it is a time-consuming process. All supports complex human activities and may become a time-saving innovation to mapping. The potential for big data and machine learning in medical education has been recognized for years. An important extension of curriculum mapping is the linking of learning objectives to exam questions (MCQ). However, none of these approaches are fully automated, and all rely on a decentralized approach. Despite the value of mapping, implementation places a burden on faculty and administrators, which may lead to incomplete and inaccurate maps.

Design and Methods:

MCQ assessment items were manually mapped and aligned with course learning objectives, session learning objectives, and keywords. A rubric was developed to manually score each question indicative of the level of coverage (not, weakly, adequately, or extensively covered). In parallel, items were mapped using AI, with additional mapping and alignment to MeSH terms and the PCRS. The two process outcomes were compared and analyzed.

Results:

Mapping of MCQ assessment items to learning objectives using AI approximates manual question mapping. An AI score of >0.6 indicates extensive coverage of an outcome by an event, and a score between 0.4 to 0.6 reflects good coverage.

Conclusions:

Al can effectively blueprint MCQ assessments in healthcare curricula. Al can 1) decrease workload in aligning learning objectives with assessments, and 2) protect question bank integrity by reducing human participation in the mapping analysis.

We acknowledge funding from the CGEA (Mini-Grant).

- 1. Ellaway RH, Pusic MV, Galbraith RM, Cameron T. Developing the role of big data and analytics in health professional education. Med Teach 2014;36:216-22.
- 2. Harris R, McClain E, Ellefson DD, Gallaher TG, Haworth IS, Sutch BT. Curriculum mapping using an artificial intelligence

approach. Abstract at AACOM Annual Conference, Washington DC, April 2019.

3. Cottrell S., Hedrick JS, Lama A, Chen B, West CA, Graham L, Keifer C, Hogg J, Wright M. Curriculum mapping: a comparative analysis of two medical school models. Med Sci Educator 2016;26,169-74.

For more information about this abstract please contact tataylor2@oakland.edu

<u>Cognitive Load Assessment Scales in Simulation: Validity Evidence for a Novel Measure of Cognitive Load Types</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Sara Greer, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine Donna Jeffe, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine Arushi Manga, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine David Murray, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine Amanda Emke, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We aimed to develop the novel Cognitive Load Assessment Scales in Simulation (CLAS-Sim) and evaluate validity evidence using Kane's framework.1-3

Background and relevance of the study:

Cognitive load (CL) theory provides a framework to inform simulation instructional design.4-6 Reliable measures of CL types (intrinsic [IL], extraneous [EL], and germane load [GL]) in simulation are lacking.7

Design and Methods:

Twenty-two items for CL types were developed and tested in a quasi-experimental study of pediatric residents' performance in both complex-case and simple-case simulations. Participants were assigned to a segmented/pause-and-debrief arm or standard/end-of-case-debrief arm. Following each simulation, participants completed the CLAS-Sim and Paas total CL scale.8 To support Kane's scoring and generalization inferences, principal component analysis (PCA) served to reduce the number of CLAS-Sim items and examine its underlying factor structure. To support Kane's extrapolation inference, Spearman correlations (rs) tested associations between each CLAS-Sim component and the Paas scale. Analyses of variance (ANOVAs) tested CL-type score differences between high and low performers (median split of primary-task-performance scores). Multivariate ANOVAs tested whether CL-type scores varied across cases by arm.

Results:

Eighty pediatric residents completed both cases. PCA yielded three components: 4-item IL, 4-item EL, and 3-item GL scales (Cronbach's alphas, 0.68-0.77). Significant correlations were observed between Paas scores and CLAS-Sim IL and total CL scores in both simple (IL rs=0.69; total CL rs=0.67) and complex (IL rs=0.46; total CL rs=0.33) cases. In the complex case, high performers reported lower IL, EL, and total CL (ANOVAs each p<0.05). In multivariate ANOVAs, CLAS-Sim scores varied by arm across complex and simple cases for IL (p=0.005), GL (p=0.008), and total CL (p=0.018); in both cases, the segmented-debrief arm reported lower IL (each p \leq 0.01).

Conclusions:

The CLAS-Sim distinguishes three CL types and demonstrates initial validity evidence. The CLAS-Sim has potential for evaluations of the impact of simulation-design elements on CL and learning across the education continuum.

References:

1. Cook DA, Brydges R, Ginsburg S, Hatala R. A contemporary approach to validity arguments: a practical guide to Kane's framework. Med Educ. 2015;49(6):560-575.

- 2. Kane MT. Validation. In: Brennan RL, ed. Educational Measurement. 4th ed. Westport, CT: Praeger; 2006:17-64.
- 3. Kane MT. Validating the interpretations and uses of test scores. J Educ Meas. 2013;50:1-73.
- 4. Fraser KL, Ayres P, Sweller J. Cognitive Load Theory for the Design of Medical Simulations. Simul Healthc. 2015;10(5):295-307.
- 5. van Merrienboer JJ, Sweller J. Cognitive load theory in health professional education: design principles and strategies. Med Educ. 2010;44(1):85-93.
- 6. Young JQ, Van Merrienboer J, Durning S, Ten Cate O. Cognitive Load Theory: implications for medical education: AMEE Guide No. 86. Med Teach. 2014;36(5):371-384.
- 7. Naismith LM, Cavalcanti RB. Validity of Cognitive Load Measures in Simulation-Based Training: A Systematic Review. Acad Med. 2015;90(11 Suppl):S24-35.
- 8. Paas FG. Training strategies for attaining transfer of problem-solving skill in statistics: A cognitive load approach. Journal of Educational Psychology. 1992;84(4):429-434.

For more information about this abstract please contact sara.greer@wustl.edu

Becoming a Woman Doctor: Insights from first-year women medical students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Emiko Blalock, Michigan State University Amy Ward, Michigan State University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do first-year medical students who identify as women see themselves becoming doctors?

Background and relevance of the study:

Students who identify as women now matriculate into medical school at a higher rate than men (Boyle, 2019). Despite their majority in admission and attendance, there remains an ideal norm of what becoming a doctor means—white cisgender men are still more likely to be recognized as doctors. (Haggins, 2020; Ludmerer, 2020). Thus, students who identify as women may face greater challenges in integrating into medical school and experience dissonance as they remain tethered to their own ideals and aspirations of becoming a physician against the cultural norms of doctoring (Balmer, et al., 2020; Griffin, et al., 2015). With gender diversity for students in medical school a very real and present fact, it is increasingly relevant to challenge ideal norms of what "doctoring" means and elevate a more diverse perspective about who can doctor and how medicine can be performed.

Design and Methods:

To answer, we interviewed 38 first-year medical students who identify as women to explore how they understand their role as women performing medicine. A conceptual framework of gendered organizations (Acker, 1990) and sensemaking (Weick, 1995) ground this study.

Results:

Preliminary findings from this study are categorized into the following themes: the meaning of being a leader; the meaning of being caring, and the meaning of being resilient. By performing interviews during the earliest stages of medical school, this study provides insights into both the rationale for becoming doctors and a starting point for how that rationale might change throughout their medical careers.

Conclusions:

These early interviews reveal how the dominant image of a cisgender white male doctor is already being challenged by women during their first year of medical school.

- 1. Acker, J. (1990). Hierarchies, jobs, bodies: A theory of gendered organizations. Gender and Society, 4(2), 139–158.
- 2. Balmer, D. F., Courts, K. A., Dougherty, B., Tuton, L. W., Abbuhl, S., & Hirshfield, L. E. (2020). Applying the Theory of Gendered Organizations to the Lived Experience of Women with Established Careers in Academic Medicine. Teaching and Learning in Medicine, 1–10. https://doi.org/10.1080/10401334.2020.1767106
- 3. Boyle, P. (2019). More women than men are enrolled in medical school. AAMC. https://www.aamc.org/news-insights/more-women-men-are-enrolled-medical-school
- 4. Griffin, K. A., Gibbs, K. D., Bennett, J., Staples, C., & Robinson, T. (2015). "Respect me for my science": A Bourdieuian analysis of women scientists' interactions with faculty and socialization into science. Journal of Women and Minorities in Science and Engineering, 21(2), 159–179.
- 5. Haggins, A. N. (2020). To Be Seen, Heard, and Valued: Strategies to Promote a Sense of Belonging for Women and Underrepresented in Medicine Physicians. Academic Medicine, 95(10), 1507–1510. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000003553
- 6. Ludmerer, K. M. (2020). Seeking Parity for Women in Academic Medicine: A Historical Perspective. Academic Medicine,

95(10), 1485–1487. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000000003556
7. Weick, K. E. (1995). Sensemaking in organizations. Sage Publications.

For more information about this abstract please contact blalocka@msu.edu

<u>Trajectories of National Board of Medical Examiners scores in the first year of</u> medical school and its relationship with USMLE Step 1

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Ling Wang, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Heather Laird-Fick, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Carol Parker, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine David Solomon, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study aims to identify students' trajectories in NBME test scores in the first year of medical school and find latent group of students with higher risk failing USMLE Step 1.

Background and relevance of the study:

Many previous studies have found that basic science knowledge is strongly associated with students' performance in USMLE Step 1. However, most of these studies employed NBME test score at one time-point to predict Step 1 results without considering NBME test scores longitudinally and developmentally.

Design and Methods:

Growth Mixture Modeling (GMM) is used to examine different trajectories of NBME test scores and its relationship with USMLE Step 1. It is assumed that the latent growth in NBME tests follow linear patterns with different latent intercepts and slopes. The optimal number of latent classes is decided by model fit indices.

Results:

The study sample is 518 students matriculated in 2016-2018 in our medical school and finished USMLE Step 1 at the end of second year medical school. Twenty-six failed Step 1 in their first try. Complete 6 NBME test scores in the first year medical school were used to find latent trajectory patterns. Four latent subgroups were found by GMM: 1) Group 1 (n=77) with estimated starting NBME test score at 33.6 and slope at 2.30; 2) Group 2 (n=256) with starting score at 35.6 and slope at 2.73; 3) Group 3 (n=159) with starting score at 39.8 and slope at 3.59; 4) Group 4 (n=26) with starting score at 48.6 and slope at 3.49. All 26 students failed Step 1 at the end of second year were identified in Group 1 (33.7%).

Conclusions:

Based on trajectories of NBME test scores, medical educators can identify students with higher risk of failing Step 1 in the first year of medical school and provide help in the early stage.

References:

- 1. Muthén, B. O. 2004. "Latent variable analysis: Growth mixture modeling and related techniques for longitudinal data". In The SAGE handbook of quantitative methodology for the social sciences, Edited by: Kaplan, D. 345–370. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- 2. Muthén, L. K. and Muthén, B. O. 2007. Mplus: Statistical analysis with latent variables user's guide, 5th ed., Los Angeles, CA: Muthén & Muthén.
- 3. Jung, T. and Wickrama, K. A. S. 2008. An introduction to latent class growth analysis and growth mixture modeling. Social and Personality Psychology Compass, 2: 302–317.
- 4. Glew, R. H., Ripkey, D. R., & Swanson, D. B. 1997. Relationship between students' performances on the NBME Comprehensive Basic Science Examination and the USMLE Step 1: a longitudinal investigation at one school. Academic Medicine, 72(12), 1097-102.

For more information about this abstract please contact wangli35@msu.edu

Educator and Learner Perceptions Regarding Virtual Medical Education during COVID-19

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Michael Klemme, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine Sarah Shaffer, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Identify the strengths and weaknesses of virtual clinical medical education during COVID-19.

Background and relevance of the study:

At the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, in-person medical school classes and clinical rotations were cancelled for several months and educators and students found themselves engaged in alternative virtual experiences to meet their learning objectives. While virtual learning is well integrated into modern medical education and has proven effective as a supplement to in-person learning, little is known about completely replacing clinical rotations with online learning. This project sought to evaluate how the transition to virtual education transformed and influenced clinical training for medical students during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Design and Methods:

Surveys were distributed through anonymous links to clerkship directors and clinical medical students and consisted of various multiple choice and open-ended questions evaluating their attitudes toward virtual clerkships. Multiple questions invited suggestions for course improvements and additional resources. Results were categorized based on overarching themes to be shared with school and clerkship administration for curriculum improvement.

Results:

The main challenges identified by students were the loss of clinical experiences and patient and interprofessional interactions. Zoom lectures were deemed inadequate at replacing in-person learning. 70% of students experienced decreased motivation. However, virtual surgical videos with annotations were found helpful, and 84% of students reported spending more quality time with family and friends. 50% of M3s and 20% of M4s were concerned about the impact of shortened clinical rotations on their specialty choice. Clerkship directors believed education, while challenging, continued unhindered despite lacking patient care. Clerkship directors were also concerned students may lack clinical correlation and decision-making skills moving forward.

Conclusions:

The months students spent virtually during the COVID-19 pandemic revealed significant concerns related to practical clinical experiences, future clinical decision making, and specialty choice. Appreciation of this impact should be used to help guide decisions to improve future clinical education.

- 1. Alexander EK, et al. Using a Web-Based, Interactive Educational Model to Enhance Clinical Clerkships. 2006. Acad Med;81:925-931.
- 2. Cook DA, McDonald FS. E-learning: is there anything special about the "E"? Perspect Biol Med. 2008 Winter;51(1):5-21. doi: 10.1353/pbm.2008.0007. https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.proxy.lib.uiowa.edu/pubmed/18192762
- 3. Cook DA. Where are we with Web-based learning in medical education? Med Teach. 2006 Nov;28(7):594-8. doi: 10.1080/01421590601028854 https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.proxy.lib.uiowa.edu/pubmed/17594549

4. Yavner SD1, Pusic MV, Kalet AL, Song HS, Hopkins MA, Nick MW, Ellaway RH. Twelve tips for improving the effectiveness of web-based multimedia instruction for clinical learners. Med Teach. 2015 Mar;37(3):239-44. doi: 10.3109/0142159X.2014.933202 https://www-ncbi-nlm-nih-gov.proxy.lib.uiowa.edu/pubmed/25109353

For more information about this abstract please contact michael-klemme@uiowa.edu

<u>Improving Medical Student's Virtual Rounding Experience - A Qualitative</u> Analysis.

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Aysha Rafaquat, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Tyler McGowan, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Marion Were, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Yuri Fedorovich, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine Heeyoung Han, Southern Illinois University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Due to COVID-19-pandemic, AAMC suspended all clinical activities for medical students. Given the novelty of situation, a Virtual Rounding Curriculum was implemented in the pediatric unit. We conducted qualitative research to discover the principles of an effective medical student virtual learning experience.

Background and relevance of the study:

During COVID-19 pandemic, our In-patient-pediatric-unit formulated a Virtual Rounding curriculum for clerkship students, where students can experience clinical immersion virtually via secured-Cisco-WebEx-video-conferencing. In-patient virtual rounding has not been extensively explored. Therefore, we conducted action research, where we learned by going through new practices.

Design and Methods:

Focus groups were conducted with 6 students enrolled for 2-weeks in virtual-rounding during pediatric in-patient-clerkship. As the pandemic improved, 4 students enrolled later, alternated virtual with physical rounding each week. We did focus groups before, during, and after their experience and record and transcribed them. Once a week, virtual rounds were also observed by a medical educator and field notes were created.

Results:

Based on key aspects, several themes were extracted. The following recommendations were generated.

- All team members should get orientation and have clear expectations.
- Pre-rounds are important for students to set social relationships with patients.
- To optimize audio quality during rounds, the audio device should be near the talker.
- Having a designated contact person in the team, is helpful for a virtual-student.
- Screen sharing of EHRs is useful during hallway discussion of patient cases.
- Due to the lack of social cues, the team should make explicit efforts to involve virtual-students.
- After rounds virtual students should have 15 minutes debriefing meeting with the attending.
- Work assignments (such as lab, consult call, etc) are helpful for virtual students to feel engaged.

Conclusions:

This study provides practical guidelines to medical educators and will contribute to the understanding of how virtual rounds can be implemented effectively for students' clinical learning experiences.

References:

1. Cevik, M., Bamford, C. G. G., & Ho, A. (2020). COVID-19 pandemic—a focused review for clinicians. In Clinical Microbiology and Infection (Vol. 26, Issue 7, p. 842). Elsevier B.V. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cmi.2020.04.023

- 2. Important guidance for medical students on clinical rotations during the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. Press release. Association of American Medical Colleges. Published March 17, 2020. Accessed March 23, 2020. https://www.aamc.org/news-insights/press-releases/important-guidance-medicalstudents-clinical-rotations-during-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreak
- 3. Medical Student Education in the Time of COVID-19 Suzanne Rose, MD, MSEd1 JAMA. 2020; 323(21):2131-2132. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.5227
- 4. Emanuel EJ. The inevitable reimagining of medical education. JAMA. Published online February 27, 2020. doi:10.1001/jama.2020.1227
- 5. Pilot virtual clerkship curriculum during the COVID-19 pandemic: Podcasts, peers and problem-solving Rabih Geha Gurpreet Dhaliwal First published: 17 May 2020 https://doi.org/10.1111/medu.14246
- 6. Strauss A, Corbin J. Basics of Qualitative Research: Techniques and Procedures for Developing Grounded Theory. Thousand Oaks, Calif: Sage; 1998.

For more information about this abstract please contact arafaquat92@siumed.edu

Recommendations from a student-led community needs assessment to create a better-equipped healthcare workforce

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Anjali Alangaden, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sawsan Edriss, Wayne State University School of Medicine Veronica Vigilar, Wayne State University School of Medicine Ntami Echeng, Wayne State University School of Medicine Suma Alzouhayli, Wayne State University School of Medicine Bao Chau Nguyen, Wayne State University School of Medicine Manvir Sandhu, Wayne State University School of Medicine Ashleigh Peoples, Wayne State University School of Medicine Anil Aranha, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do issues of justice, equity, diversity and inclusion affect medical students' personal wellbeing as well as their training to become physicians who care for diverse patient populations?

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical education often lags behind the changing socio-political landscape of the United States. Students from the Institutional Justice and Inclusion Committee (IJI) at a large, single-campus medical school initiated a community needs and assets assessment to better understand peer perceptions of justice, equity, diversity, and inclusion throughout both the pre-clinical and clinical years.

Design and Methods:

IJI committee members recruited their peers through student organizations and shared identities to participate in confidential semi-structured focus groups interviews from January-May 2020. Standardized templates were used by team members to structure the interviews. The qualitative data was de-identified, coded into discrete categories, and used to craft stepwise recommendations for institutional change.

Results:

Thirty-two focus group interviews were conducted. Findings were separated into 'issues' and 'assets.' Issues raised include students' concern that the current curriculum inadequately addresses important issues of racism in medicine, social justice, and health inequity. Participants also discussed the impact of limited avenues for conflict resolution and augmentation of resources to promote student well-being. Assets identified during the interviews include an unparalleled and diverse urban learning environment and strong institutional encouragement of student advocacy and innovation.

Conclusions:

Our peer-to-peer discourse led to three priority recommendations that were presented to leadership. The first priority recommendation is to assign a qualified individual to design and guide the integration of social justice advocacy issues through an iterative process into the four-year curriculum. The second is the creation of an ombudsperson office to organize student resources and mediate conflict. The final priority recommendation advocates for expansion of student support services through the hiring of more counselors and increased mentorship resources.

References:

- 1. Kumagai AK, Lypson ML. Beyond Cultural Competence: Critical Consciousness, Social Justice, and Multicultural Education. Academic Medicine. 2009;84(6):782-787. Doi: 10.1097/ACM.0b013e3181a42398.
- 2. Coria A, McKelvey TG, Charlton P, Woodworth M, Lahey TThe Design of a Medical School Social Justice Curriculum. Academic Medicine. 2013;88(10):1442–1449. doi: 10.1097/ACM.0b013e3182a325be.
- 3. Raymond JR, Layde PM. Three-Year Experience of an Academic Medical Center Ombuds Office. Academic Medicine. 2016;91(3):333–337. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000001031.
- 4. Sastre EA, Burke EE, Silverstein E, et al. Improvements in medical school wellness and career counseling: A comparison of one-on-one advising to an Advisory College Program. Medical Teacher. 2010;32(10):e429-e435. doi:10.3109/0142159X.2010.498486
- 5. Chang E, Eddins-Folensbee F, Porter B, Coverdale J. Utilization of Counseling Services at One Medical School. Southern Medical Journal . 2013;106(8):449–453. doi: 10.1097/SMJ.0b013e3182a05994.

For more information about this abstract please contact anjali.alangaden@med.wayne.edu

Assessing the Impact of Clerkships on the Growth of Clinical Knowledge

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Chi Chang, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Heather Laird-Fick, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Carol Parker, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Benjamin Wexler, Michigan State University Christopher Keyes, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine David Solomon, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do disciplinary clerkships impact medical students' growth in clinical knowledge?

Background and relevance of the study:

Third year medical students rotate through disciplinary clerkships, working in inpatient and outpatient settings, attending lectures and workshops, and studying independently to master content. The goal of this study was to assess the impact of these clerkships on students' growth in clinical knowledge using a specific model of longitudinal data analysis.

Design and Methods:

Our medical school administers the NBME Comprehensive Clinical Science Examination (CCSE) twice a semester during the three semesters of the third year. Using regression-discontinuity analysis, we assessed the change in growth in CCSE scores before and after the clerkship rotation. Disciplinary scores were extracted from each student's CCSE reports, and the differences of pre- and post- regression intercepts for each discipline were assessed separately. Disciplinary scores were plotted and modeled by linear mixed piecewise regression model using the ImerTest package in R (version 3.6.3) statistical software.

Results:

A total of 155 students were included in the study. Disciplinary knowledge increased significantly (p < 0.001) pre to post clerkship in all disciplines except surgery. The performance increase was largest in psychiatry and Ob/Gyn, where it exceeded 10% in CCSE disciplinary scores.

Conclusions:

Progress testing is a powerful tool for program evaluation as well as for feedback and assessment. In addition to the steady growth that we commonly saw in clinical knowledge in the third year, significant increase beyond the general growth were shown in some disciplines after their clerkship rotations. The largest gains were in psychiatry and Ob/GYN clerkships and may reflect more effective clerkship structure and delivery or a closer alignment between disciplinary specific knowledge and the CCSE. Lack of gain in surgery may relate to the organization of the clerkship, learning opportunities, or misalignment between content taught versus assessed on the CCSE.

- 1. National Board of Medical Examiners. Comprehensive Clinical Science Examination. https://www.nbme.org/Schools/Subject-Exams/Subjects/comp_clinicsci.html. Accessed 2019-10-24.
- 2. Thistlethwaite DL. & Campbell DT. Regression-Discontinuity Analysis: An Alternative to the Ex Post Facto Experiment. J Educ Psych. 6:51;1960.
- 3. Package 'ImerTest' https://cran.r-project.org/web/packages/ImerTest/ImerTest.pdf. Accessed 2019-10-24.

4. Albanese MC, Case S M. Progress testing: critical analysis and suggested practices. Advances in Health Sci Educ Theory Practice 2016;21(1): 221-234

For more information about this abstract please contact chisq@msu.edu

<u>Impact of Programmatic Assessment on Practicing Physicians: A Qualitative</u> Study

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Jessica Greenfield, Cleveland Clinic Kelli Qua, Case Western Reserve University School of Medicine Richard Prayson, Cleveland Clinic Beth Bierer, Cleveland Clinic

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Programmatic assessment (PA) treats assessment as a system that considers multiple factors of performance and continuous and varied feedback. PA stands juxtaposed to traditional assessment methods which rely on psychometric principles and examinations. We explored the downstream impact of PA experiences during medical school at the Lerner College of Medicine (CCLCM) on physicians. We examined how being trained under a PA framework prepared graduates to adapt learning strategies in postgraduate training, how they approached feedback, and improvements to be considered for CCLCM's system.

Background and relevance of the study:

CCLCM adopted PA methods in 2005 to assess student performance. Previous research investigates faculty perceptions of PA. To our knowledge, this is the first study exploring alumni perceptions and downstream effects of training within a PA system.

Design and Methods:

We conducted a qualitative study informed by a constructivist approach and thematic analysis to explore physicians' perceptions of PA experiences during medical school. With IRB approval, we invited alumni representing different clinical fields and career stages to participate in semi-structured interviews using a guide informed by the authors' knowledge of SDT, SRL, and PA. Interviews were conducted over a 4-month period (4/2019 - 1/2020). We thematically analyzed transcripts.

Results:

We reached data adequacy at 24 interviews. Several predominant themes emerged. Graduates valued learning to receive feedback in supportive environments to improve performance. By learning to act upon feedback, using portfolios and learning plans to understand the mechanics of the SRL cycle, they were able to internalize the process, making it more intuitive. Exposure to CBA and learning to use feedback to improve positioned graduates well for less-structured environments, where intrinsic motivation is essential. They appreciated how the curriculum provided flexibility yet emphasized deliberate practice to improve competence later in their careers.

Conclusions:

PA helps develop self-directed learners. Self-determination theory proved a useful lens through which to view learners' perceptions of PA.

- 1. Fishleder AJ, Henson LC, Hull AL. Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine: An innovative approach to medical education and the training of physician investigators. Acad Med 2007;82:390–396.
- 2. Dannefer EF, Henson LC. The portfolio approach to competency-based assessment at the Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of

Medicine. Acad Med 2007;82: 493–502.

- 3. Van der Vleuten CP, Schuwirth LWT, Driessen EW, Dijkstra J, Tigelaar D, Baartman LKJ, van Tartwijk J. A model for programmatic assessment fit for purpose. Med Teach 2012;34(3):205-214.
- 4. Braun V, Clark V. Using thematic analysis in psychology. Qual Res Psychol 2006;3:77–101.

For more information about this abstract please contact jtmg2011@gmail.com

<u>COVID-19, Professional Identity Formation and the Education of Medical</u> Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Jessica Byram, Indiana University School of Medicine Richard Frankel, Indiana University School of Medicine

J. Harry Isaacson, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine at Case Western Reserve University Neil Mehta, Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to explore the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on medical students' perceptions of their professional identity formation (PIF) and of virtual medical education.

Background and relevance of the study:

Professional identity formation has been defined as a lifelong process through which medical students internalize the professional values, ethics, knowledge, and skills necessary to practice as a physician (1). Medical educators from across the globe have called attention to the importance of considering the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on PIF of medical students (2,3), including interventions to support learners' mental health and educational development (4). We sought to explore the impact of COVID-19 on medical students experience through a reflective writing exercise.

Design and Methods:

Medical students at Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine received prompt via email inviting them to reflect on the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on their PIF. Reflections and inclusion in this study were voluntary. Reflections were analyzed using the immersion/crystallization method.

Results:

26 students (16%) consented to their reflections being used in this study. Themes emerged related to Changing Conceptions of the Role and Image of a Physician, Views about Medical Education, and the Role of Students in a Pandemic. Students viewed physician role models as altruistic, effective communicators, and pledged to be like them in the future. They expressed mixed views of the virtual curriculum; some mourned the loss of interactions with patients and its effect on clinical skills development; others described frustrations about not being more useful during the pandemic.

Conclusions:

Students' reflections demonstrated significant impacts on their evolving selves as professionals and their expectations and experiences related to their education. Educational programming should consider medical students' lived experiences, their impact on what it means to become a doctor in the midst of a crisis and develop curricula that support students' professional development in newly transformed roles.

- 1. Monrouxe LV. Identity, identification and medical education: why should we care? Med Educ. 2010;44(1):40-49.
- 2. Cullum RJ, Shaughnessy A, Mayat NY, Brown ME. Identity in lockdown: supporting primary care professional identity development in the COVID-19 generation. Educ Prim Care. 2020;31(4):200-204.
- 3. Kalet AL, Jotterand F, Muntz M, Thapa B, Campbell B. Hearing the call of duty: what we must do to allow medical students to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. WMJ. 2020;119(1):6-7.

4. Stetson GV, Kryzhanovskaya IV, Lomen-Hoerth C, Hauer KE. Professional identity formation in disorienting times. Med Educ. 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact jbyram@iu.edu

<u>The Medical Student Check-in Survey to Assess Wellness: What Our Students</u> Say and What Medical Schools Can Do

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Eva Waineo, Wayne State University School of Medicine Robert Stansfield, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jason Booza, Wayne State University School of Medicine Hannah Kopinsky, Wayne State University School of Medicine Margit Chadwell, Wayne State University School of Medicine Tsveti Markova, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Share findings from the Medical Student Check-in Survey (MSCIS) as they relate to informed changes to impact wellbeing at one large medical school.

Background and relevance of the study:

Studies of North American medical students show a higher prevalence of anxiety and depression than age-matched peers. Burnout impacts clinical practice and empathy. These studies demonstrate the need to understand wellbeing influences. Preliminary validity of MSCIS with MSLES was presented at AAMC 2020. Here we describe MSCIS to better understand important influences on wellness.

Design and Methods:

Medical students and faculty collaborated on development of MSCIS, a novel form derived after review of literature, designed to measure frequencies of behaviors and thoughts indicative of student wellbeing using neutral/positive language. The MSCIS was sent to the entire medical school student body with over a 90% response rate (n=1,023). Data from completed surveys was analyzed and missing data was imputed using listwise means.

Results:

Five factors of student wellness are measured by the MSCIS, with mean scores of each medical school year. Personal Confidence (3.24, 3.49, 3.4, 3.44), Hedonic Well-Being which measures happiness and basic needs (3.44, 3.56, 3.39, 3.86) and Knew Who to Call in Case of Emergency (3.56, 3.70, 3.01, and 3.28) change across medical school years. Social Support (3.72, 3.74, 3.85, 3.83) and Euodaimonic Well-Being which measures meaningful work & institutional support (3.19, 3.21, 3.24, 3.31) stay constant.

Conclusions:

Students' sense of wellbeing is influenced by multiple factors. Although the process is complex we are able to measure certain impactful influences. New interventions in 2020 include Early Alert text messaging, emails about medical school life to students and support givers, mental health first aid training, interventions focused on housing and food security, and increased access to mental health treatment. Providing this survey annually will lead to ability to measure change across the same cohort and inform leadership of future effective interventions.

References:

1. Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR, Shanafelt TD. Systematic review of depression, anxiety, and other indicators of psychological distress among U.S. and Canadian medical students. Acad Med. 2006;81(4):354-373.

- 2. Thomas MR, Dyrbye LN, Huntington JL, et al. How do distress and well-being relate to medical student empathy? A multicenter study. J Gen Intern Med. 2007;22:177-183.
- 3. West CP, Dyrbye LN, Shanafelt TD. Physician burnout: contributors, consequences and solutions. J Intern Med. 2018; Epub.
- 4. Dunham et al. Medical Student Perceptions of the Learning Environment in Medical School Change as Students Transition to Clinical Training in Undergraduate Medical Education. Teach Learn Med. 2017 Oct-Dec;29(4):383-391.
- 5. Stansfield RB, Giang D, Markova T. Development of the Resident Wellness Scale for measuring resident wellness. J Patient Cent Res Rev. 2019;6:17-27.
- 6. Glorfeld, L. W. 1995. An Improvement on Horn's Parallel Analysis Methodology for Selecting the Correct Number of Factors to Retain. Educational and Psychological Measurement. 55(3): 377-393.

For more information about this abstract please contact ewaineo@med.wayne.edu

A Second Chance for Learning and Wellness: Implementation of Second Chance Quizzes

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: CGEA

Authors:

Suzy McTaggart, University of Michigan Medical School Eric Wilson, University of Michigan Medical School Jasmine Nevarez, University of Michigan Medical School Michelle Daniel, University of California, San Diego School of Medicine Seetha Monrad, University of Michigan Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Can a novel pre-clinical assessment approach (Second-chance quizzing (SCQ)) grounded in principles of assessment for learning and test-enhanced learning promote student well-being?

Background and relevance of the study:

Given the heightened appreciation of the detrimental impact of medical education on student well-being, new and impactful strategies to address this national issue are sorely needed.

Design and Methods:

With the matriculating class of 2019, University of Michigan Medical School initiated the SCQ system, wherein students take a mandatory first quiz during a flexible weekend testing window. The following Monday, all students are offered the optional SCQ, blueprinted similarly to the first quiz. The higher of the two quiz scores contributes to the student's overall course grade.

The number of students taking the SCQs, student testing behaviors, student performance, and psychometric data were recorded by ExamSoft. End-of-course evaluations contain questions about the SCQ system to assess student perceptions of this assessment strategy.

Descriptive analyses have been conducted to understand students' usage and impact of SCQs. Predictors of SCQ usage will be examined via logistic regression and ANCOVA and the student-selected testing window will be analyzed by Chi-Squared testing.

Results

A combined 24 SCQs were administered: 20 in 2019-20, (n=177 students)] and 4 in 2020-21 (n=168 students).

The majority of students opted to complete the SCQ - ranging from 84 to 145 students [M=118.54, SD=18.67]. In 2019-2020, 100% of students completed at least 2 SCQs [M=13]. SCQs overall show a median score increase on an individual quiz of only 2.37%. On the 2019-2020 course evaluation, 86.8% of students reported that SCQs improved their wellness although 2.13% reported a decrease.

Conclusions:

The moderate score increase between the initial quiz and SCQ is interesting in light of the positive wellness outcomes reported by the students. Our preliminary data suggests that SCQs promote both well-being and learning without compromising the need to measure the attainment of mastery.

References:

1. Lalley, J & Gentile, R (2009) Classroom Assessment and Grading to Assure Mastery, Theory Into Practice, 48:1, 28-35, DOI:

10.1080/00405840802577577

- 2. Larsen, D.P., Butler, A.C. and Roediger III, H.L. (2008), Test-enhanced learning in medical education. Medical Education, 42: 959-966. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2923.2008.03124.x
- 3. Lyndon, M. P., Strom, J. M., Alyami, H. M., Yu, T. C., Wilson, N. C., Singh, P. P., ... & Hill, A. G. (2014). The relationship between academic assessment and psychological distress among medical students: a systematic review. Perspectives on Medical Education, 3(6), 405-418.
- 4. Levant, B. & Paolo, T. A Between-Exam Review Does Not Affect Re-Test Performance of Medical Students in a Two-Test System. Med.Sci.Educ. (2017) 27: 29. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40670-016-0353-5
- 5. Friedman, H. (1987). Repeat Examinations in Introductory Statistics Courses. Teaching of Psychology, 14(1), 20–23. https://doi.org/10.1207/s15328023top1401_4

For more information about this abstract please contact sweeneys@med.umich.edu

<u>Analysis of Medical Student Metacognitive Strategies for Correcting</u> Comprehension and Performance Errors

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Robert Treat, Medical College of Wisconsin Molly Falk-Steinmetz, Medical College of Wisconsin Cheryl Crawford, Medical College of Wisconsin Kristina Kaljo, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study is to analyze the relationship of medical student metacognitive debugging strategies with conscientiousness and autonomy.

Background and relevance of the study:

Metacognition is a twenty-first century requirement for optimal student learning and higher standards of achievement.¹ Educational initiatives and curricular reform have necessitated the use of higher-order cognitive skills in learners in order to thrive in a competitive academic environment such as medical school. During the learning process, metacognitive debugging strategies can correct comprehension errors.² The link between these metacognitive strategies of learners and important individual characteristics needs to be better resolved in order to improve learning.³

Design and Methods:

In 2019-20, forty-one medical students voluntarily completed three self-reported surveys: Metacognitive Awareness Inventory (58-items, scale:0=false/1=true); Index of Autonomous Functioning (scale:1=not at all true/5=completely true); Five-Factor Personality Inventory (IPIP-120, scale:1=very inaccurate/5=very accurate) to measure conscientiousness.

Repeated-measures ANOVA compared mean scores across metacognitive factors. Stepwise multivariate linear regression was reported to predict metacognitive debugging strategies scores from conscientiousness and autonomy. IBM® SPSS® 24.0 used for statistical analysis. Study is IRB approved.

Results:

Repeated-measures ANOVA reported mean scores of debugging strategies $(9.4(\pm 1.2))$ were significantly higher (all p<0.001) than metacognitive elements of information management $(7.8(\pm 1.6))$, comprehension monitoring $(6.6(\pm 2.7))$, planning $(5.4(\pm 2.0))$, and evaluation $(5.3(\pm 3.0))$.

A statistically significant linear regression (R^2 =0.82, p<.001) of metacognitive debugging strategies on five conscientiousness facets of orderliness (beta=0.8), achievement striving (0.5), self-discipline (-0.4), dutifulness (-0.5), and cautiousness (-0.6) was reported. Orderliness, achievement striving, and self-discipline were mediated by personal autonomy (alpha=0.8).

Conclusions:

Medical students reported being great at detecting performance errors that they shouldn't have been making to begin with due to poor planning. Student metacognition debugging strategies yielded a complex, conflicting relationship with conscientiousness since two factors of achievement striving and orderliness improved student's metacognitive strategies, while self-discipline, dutifulness, and

cautiousness reduced it. Student autonomy was required to improve the impact of orderliness and achievement striving.

References:

- 1. LaCaille, Rick A, LaCaille, Lara J, Maslowski, Amy K. Metacognition, course performance, and perceived competence for learning: An examination of quiz and exam wrappers. Scholarship of Teaching and Learning in Psychology. 2019;5(3):209-222. doi:10.1037/stl0000114.
- 2. Zepeda, Cristina D, Nokes-Malach, Timothy J. Metacognitive study strategies in a college course and their relation to exam performance. Memory & Cognition. 2020;No Pagination Specified. doi:10.3758/s13421-020-01106-5.
- 3. Erbas, Ayhan Kursat, Bas, Selda. The contribution of personality traits, motivation, academic risk-taking and metacognition to the creative ability in mathematics. Creativity Research Journal. 2015;27(4):299-307. doi:10.1080/10400419.2015.1087235.

For more information about this abstract please contact rtreat@mcw.edu

Impact of Virtual Seminars on Cultural Stigma and Transmission Perception of Hepatitis B

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Andrew Kao, Wayne State University School of Medicine Kaycee Ching, Wayne State University School of Medicine Qingyu Mao, Wayne State University School of Medicine Philip Ma, Wayne State University School of Medicine Cindy Nguyen, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jocelyn Ang, Children's Hospital of Michigan

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

With pre- and post-seminar questionnaires, we aim to assess the efficacy of virtual seminars in improving student understanding of Hepatitis B disease related stigma and transmission perception among WSUSOM first- and second-year medical students.

Background and relevance of the study:

According to WHO, 257 million people were living with chronic hepatitis B and 887,000 deaths resulted in 2015.[1] In addition, the lack of understanding of HBV's routes of transmission contributes to the fear of close contact.[2] HBV-related stigma may also present as a barrier to treatment and worsen prognosis, calling for the need to improve medical student awareness and knowledge.[2]

Design and Methods:

Twenty-five M1 and twenty-five M2 WSUSOM medical students completed the pre-seminar questionnaire prior to a virtual Hepatitis B Seminar, received thirty minutes of didactic lecture by Dr. Janilla Lee from University of Michigan Health System, and engaged in relevant case studies in randomly assigned small group breakout rooms. All participants then reconvened to discuss the cases. Post-seminar questionnaires were completed at the end of the session.

Results:

Our results (p-value=4.4x10-6) indicated a significant change in student perception in a scenario of a young Asian American patient presenting with HBV infection [Fig 2]. In the pre-seminar questionnaire, most participants selected sexual transmission (49.1%) as the likely cause of her infection, whereas in the post-seminar questionnaire student responded vertical transmission (69.6%) as the most likely route [Fig 2]. Furthermore, there was a significant change (p-value=0.001) with a 41.7% increase in selecting mother-to-child (vertical) spread and a 13.7% reduction in selecting close-contact (kissing, handshake) as ways to transmit HBV [Fig 3].

Conclusions:

Comparing the pre- and post-seminar responses, a significant change in HBV-related stigma perception elucidates the need to increase awareness of possible preconceived notions towards patients with infectious diseases in a clinical setting. Improvement in student understanding of Hepatitis B disease transmission demonstrates the effectiveness of education seminars.

References:

1. Hepatitis B. (2020). Retrieved from https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/hepatitis-b

2. Office of Infectious Disease and HIV/AIDS Policy (OIDP). (2016). Viral Hepatitis in the United States: Data and Trends. Retrieved from https://www.hhs.gov/hepatitis/learn-about-viral-hepatitis/data-and-trends/index.html

For more information about this abstract please contact andrew.kao@med.wayne.edu

<u>Ten-Year Mixed Methods Investigation of the Impact of the Clerkship</u> Administrator Certificate Program

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Gary Beck Dallaghan, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Donnita Pelser, University of Kansas (Wichita) School of Medicine Alison Ricker, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth College

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Research Question: What impact did the Clerkship Administrator Certificate Program have in your life?

Background and relevance of the study:

Background: Over the past 15 years, the roles and responsibilities of administrative staff supporting required clinical medical student experiences has evolved [1,2]. Since 2004, the Association of American Medical Colleges Central Group on Educational Affairs (CGEA) has offered the Clerkship Administrator Certificate Program. This program requires completion of a series of workshops and a project [3]. Research related to long-term outcomes of professional development programs such as this are limited [4,5].

Design and Methods:

Design & Methods: We conducted a mixed methods survey of those who completed the qualifying workshops from 2010 to 2018. Changes were made to the workshops in 2010, which is why we chose this sample. The survey was developed based on the program content and included questions to characterize the impact the program had on their careers. Categorical and scaled data was summarized using descriptive statistics. The realistic evaluation framework was used to guide inductive and deductive content analysis, allowing respondent interpretations and context to define outcomes [6].

Results:

Results: Out of 244 invitations, 50 (20.5%) responded. Of the respondents, 40 still work in medical education in some capacity. Scaled responses (strongly disagree to strongly agree) were positive. Ratings were mixed for the question about recognizing personality types based on Myers-Briggs Test. Institutional and personal contexts (experience, funding, collaborators, time) impacted many individuals' ability to complete the certificate program. A disclosure that promotions and/or raises is not guaranteed by completing the program, several attendees reported these achievements. Additionally, on a personal level, participants felt more confident and accomplished in their career.

Conclusions:

Conclusions: Although positively rated, the success of this program had differential outcomes depending on participant contexts. Finding that participants completing the program received promotions and/or pay increases was rewarding.

- 1. Pangaro L, Fincher RM, Bachicha J, et al. Expectations of and for clerkship directors: a collaborative statement from the Alliance for clinical education. Teach Learn Med. 2003;15(3):217–222.
- 2. Allison L, Pelser D, Meyer ME. Vital roles the clerkship administrator plays in medical student education. In: Morgenstern BZ, Horak H, Konopasek L, et al., editors. Alliance for clinical education guidebook for clerkship directors. 5th ed. North Syracuse, NY:Gegensatz Press; 2019;33–48.
- 3. Pelser D, Chavez C, Allison L, Cleppe V, Beck Dallaghan GL. Professional development for clerkship administrators: A 16-year

overview of the clerkship administrator certificate program. Med Ed Online 2019; 25, 1710327.

- 4. Gjerde CL, Hla KM, Kokotailo PK, Anderson B. Long-term outcomes of a primary care faculty development program at the University of Wisconsin. Fam Med 2008; 40(8):579-584.
- 5. Knight AM, Carrese JA, Wright SM. Qualitative assessment of the long-term impact of a faculty development programme in teaching skills. Med Educ 2007; 41:592-600.
- 6. Pawson R, Tilley N. Realistic evaluation. London, UK: SAGE Publications Ltd.

For more information about this abstract please contact gary beck dallaghan@med.unc.edu

Evaluating Medical School Graduates' Perspectives on Co-curricular Programs

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Zobia Chunara, University of Illinois College of Medicine Lander McGinn, University of Illinois College of Medicine Ameera Lodhi, Johns Hopkins Whiting School of Engineering Zafar Siddiqui, University of Illinois College of Medicine Laura Hirshfield, University of Illinois College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our study aims to investigate graduates' perspectives on the impact of co-curricular programs (CCPs) on their residency application and future endeavors.

Background and relevance of the study:

CCPs, which consist of specialized coursework supplementary to the regular curriculum, have become common among medical institutions. As of 2016, 74% of the top 43 ranked U.S. medical schools reported having CCPs such as global or innovation medicine [1-3]. For context, University of Illinois College of Medicine (UICOM)'s 4 CCPs graduate about 60 out of a class of 190 students each year. However, currently published studies have not investigated the impact of CCPs on participants' future endeavors.

Design and Methods:

We conducted 30-minute interviews with 23 graduates of CCPs at UICOM as a continuation of previous research involving focus groups among 26 current members. We employed referral sampling until we achieved sufficient information power [4]. In each interview, graduates were asked to reflect on the impact of CCPs on their career development. We employed open-and-focused coding to identify common themes in our transcripts [5].

Results:

First, half of graduates remarked that their CCP work was not a central theme in their residency applications, but the majority believed participation enhanced their application and/or interviews. While only some graduates expressed that participation in a CCP influenced their choice of specialty, half of the graduates mentioned that they have already proceeded to or plan to pursue projects in a field related to their CCP during residency or as an attending. Taking this into consideration, graduates' future endeavors were unanimously impacted by participation.

Conclusions:

Students desire mentorship to effectively design and execute a capstone project, as success in doing so contributes to their overall professional development. Co-curricular programs afford students the community and opportunity to develop the knowledge and skills necessary to later take on even greater endeavors to meaningfully impact healthcare.

- 1. Girotti, J. A., Loy, G. L., Michel, J. L., & Henderson, V. A. (2015). The Urban Medicine Program: Developing physician–leaders to serve underserved urban communities. Academic Medicine, 90(12), 1658-1666.
- 2. Burk-Rafel, J., Mullan, P. B., Wagenschutz, H., Pulst-Korenberg, A., Skye, E., & Davis, M. M. (2016). Scholarly concentration program development: a generalizable, data-driven approach. Academic Medicine, 91(11), S16-S23.
- 3. Kost, A., Benedict, J., Andrilla, C. H. A., Osborn, J., & Dobie, S. A. (2014). Primary care residency choice and participation in an

extracurricular longitudinal medical school program to promote practice with medically underserved populations. Academic Medicine, 89(1), 162-168.

- 4. Malterud, K., Siersma, V. D., & Guassora, A. D. (2016). Sample size in qualitative interview studies: guided by information power. Qualitative health research, 26(13), 1753-1760.
- 5. Emerson, R. M., Fretz, R. I., & Shaw, L. L. (1995). Processing fieldnotes: Coding and memoing (Chapter 6, pp. 142-168).

For more information about this abstract please contact zchuna2@uic.edu

The impact of organizational communication on student wellness at a school of medicine: a qualitative study

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Aneesh Hehr, Wayne State University School of Medicine Lacey Brim, Department of Communication, Wayne State University Simone Brennan, Wayne State University School of Medicine Julie M. Novak, Department of Communication, Wayne State University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do communication practices from administrators and faculty members affect student wellness in a school of medicine?

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical students face a disproportionately high level of anxiety, burnout and psychological distress during their educational training. Alarmingly, nearly one-third of medical students globally experience anxiety (1) and 27% experience depressive symptoms (2). As such, medical schools have introduced curricular changes and wellness programs to foster healthier learning environments. However, there is very little research exploring how communication practices, an integral component in a school medicine, can influence these outcomes. Therefore, this project aims to elucidate how organizational communication systems can impact mental wellbeing from a medical student's perspective.

Design and Methods:

This project is a subset of a larger study aimed at mapping organizational communication at Wayne State University School of Medicine. This study used various approaches to gain a rich perspective from medical students at different levels of training (M1 to M4). Data collection methods included focus groups, individual interviews, and surveys with open ended responses. Thematic analysis and triangulation processes were used to identify common themes in student responses.

Results:

Student wellbeing was positively influenced when intent was effectively communicated by administrators and faculty members. Student wellbeing was negatively impacted by several communication practices including overwhelming amounts of communication (i.e., email), failure to address negative attitudes in medicine (i.e., looking down upon individuals who utilize mental-health resources), concerns about confidentiality when approaching school advisors and a lack of timely communication.

Conclusions:

Our findings suggest that medical students may benefit from concise and timely communication practices that emphasize commitment to student wellbeing and confidentiality. Future steps include an analysis of differences in communication-related stressors based on student level of training (i.e., preclerkship compared to clerkship years). Similar studies can be conducted at any school of medicine with a desire to foster healthier communication practices.

References:

1. Quek TT-C, Tam WW-S, Tran BX, et al. The Global Prevalence of Anxiety Among Medical Students: A Meta-Analysis. Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2019;16(15). doi:10.3390/ijerph16152735

2. Puthran R, Zhang MWB, Tam WW, Ho RC. Prevalence of depression amongst medical students: a meta-analysis. Med Educ. 2016;50(4):456-468. doi:https://doi.org/10.1111/medu.12962

For more information about this abstract please contact aneesh.hehr@med.wayne.edu

<u>Utilization of standardized mannequins to enhance verbalization of clinical exam skills taught via video conferencing</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Laelle Peterson, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Adam Magier, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Kavita Krishnan, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Puja Brahmbhatt, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Gabrielle Schweitzer, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Nicolette Codispoti, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Nathan Derhammer, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine
Mary Boyle, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To determine student perceptions of standardized mannequins intended to enhance verbalization of clinical exam skills taught via video conferencing.

Background and relevance of the study:

The COVID-19 pandemic challenged institutions to amend traditional clinical examination skills curricula for preclinical second-year medical students. In compliance with strict social distancing guidelines, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine educators developed an inexpensive solution that allowed for standardized instruction. Each student and physician educator were provided one cost-effective head and anterior torso mannequin lacking distal extremities, which conveniently offered portability and accessibility.

Design and Methods:

Students (n=182) were sent an anonymous survey to assess perceptions of mannequins as a tool for learning clinical skills. Using a 5-point Likert scale, four statements addressed verbalization of exam skills, two related to anatomy and palpation/manipulation, and one regarded projection of skills via video conferencing. Statistical analyses used Welch's t-test to individually compare statement means to each other.

Results:

Student responses (n=101, 55.49%) to "[mannequin use] compelled me to talk through exam skills out loud and therefore allowed me to know these steps more thoroughly", had a mean of 3.15, significantly higher than all other question means ($P \le 0.0163$). Regarding the statement of learning "proper palpation and manipulation", the mean equaled 1.96, significantly lower than all other question means ($P \le 0.0404$). Coincidingly, when asked if these mannequins were "satisfactory to learn the anatomical locations where physical exam skills should be performed", students reported a mean of 2.30, significantly lower than the four statement means addressing verbalization of clinical skills ($P \le 0.0219$).

Conclusions:

Inexpensive and anatomically imperfect mannequins were never intended to replace a human body; however, they served as a standardized tool that allowed for improved verbalization and understanding of clinical exam skills. Though most calculated means fell below a neutral score, students had

significantly higher appreciation for using mannequins to practice verbalization of clinical skills compared to physical maneuvers.

References:

- 1. Li HO, Bailey AMJ. Medical Education Amid the COVID-19 Pandemic: New Perspectives for the Future. Acad Med. 2020;95(11):e11-e12. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000003594
- 2. Wayne DB, Green M, Neilson EG. Medical education in the time of COVID-19. Sci Adv. 2020;6(31):eabc7110. Published 2020 Jul 29. doi:10.1126/sciadv.abc7110

For more information about this abstract please contact lpeterson10@luc.edu

<u>Call for an Integrated, Longitudinal Preclinical Electronic Health Record</u> Curriculum

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Orr Meltzer, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Teresa Cheng, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Erin Rodriguez, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Laelle Peterson, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine Adam Magier, Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To assess student and clerkship director interest in a longitudinal Electronic Health Record (EHR) curriculum for preclinical medical students.

Background and relevance of the study:

Given the advantages and widespread use in healthcare, U.S. medical schools are strongly encouraged to incorporate EHR training into their curricula. EHR use during clerkship training continues to grow among allopathic medical schools. Early EHR introduction with routine engagement may increase proficiency and clinical learning during clerkship rotations.

Design and Methods:

Medical students at the Loyola University Chicago Stritch School of Medicine were anonymously surveyed and seven clinical clerkship directors were interviewed. First/second-year medical students (preclinical) completed a separate survey than third/fourth-year medical students (clerkship). Quantitative analysis and qualitative data identify opportunity for innovation to EHR training. Chi-Squared test of independence examined relation between education level and curriculum preference.

Results:

More preclinical students (n=170) responded than clerkship students (n=83), and reported a higher percentage of EHR experience before medical school (58.2% vs 42,4%, respectively). Collectively, 65.2% supported implementation of a longitudinal preclinical EHR curriculum, though clerkship experience may influence this standpoint (preclinical 70.9% vs clerkship 55.3%, X2(4, N=253)= 20.6, p= 0.00038). When starting clerkship rotations, only 19.0% of clerkship students felt prepared to use EHR while 56.0% did not. Second year medical students share this sentiment as 24.6% feel prepared and 55.4% do not.

Clerkship directors supported the idea of integrated preclinical EHR exposure and suggested emphasizing skills pertaining to clinical note documentation and systematic chart review. They believed experiences allowing students to practice EHR navigation may decrease EHR training time and increase bedside learning during clerkship rotations.

Conclusions:

These data present compelling evidence for the implementation of an integrated, longitudinal EHR curriculum during preclinical medical education. Next steps include addressing gaps and barriers in EHR education that limit student preparation for initial clerkship rotations and restructuring the existing EHR curriculum to better fulfill those needs.

References:

- 1. Welcher CM, Hersh W, Takesue B, Stagg Elliott V, Hawkins RE. Barriers to Medical Students' Electronic Health Record Access Can Impede Their Preparedness for Practice. Acad Med. 2018 Jan;93(1):48-53.
- 2. Habboush Y, Hoyt R, Beidas S. Electronic Health Records as an Educational Tool: Viewpoint. JMIR Med Educ 2018;4(2):e10306.

For more information about this abstract please contact omeltzer@luc.edu

<u>Comparing the Prevalence of Medical Student Mistreatment by Patients at</u> School-Affiliated Sites

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Emma Drenth, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Dariah Lauer, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Nichole Tuite, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Besma Aly, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Akanksha Vaishnav, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Ria Minawala, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Eva Waineo, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Jason Booza, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study assesses the most prevalent Wayne State University School of Medicine (WSUSOM) affiliated sites of student-reported patient mistreatment and examines the distribution based on class-year.

Background and relevance of the study:

Mistreatment of medical students by residents, faculty, and other employees involved in clinical education is a broadly recognized and researched occurrence. However, patients remain an overlooked source of medical student mistreatment. With national advances in preclinical curricula, students are required to work with patients earlier in their medical education, and these interactions are frequently at sites outside of the structured setting of clinical clerkships.

Design and Methods:

Our survey was modeled from the Association of American Medical Colleges Graduation Questionnaire and investigated medical student mistreatment by patients, excluding behavior attributed to neuropsychiatric symptoms, and the WSUSOM-affiliated sites at which the experiences occurred. It was administered to all students enrolled at WSUSOM in April 2020, with a completion rate of 50.7% (n=582).

Results:

Among all respondents, 43% reported at least one experience of patient mistreatment. The most prevalent site of patient mistreatment reported by third- and fourth-year medical students was hospital-based clinical rotations (70.3%, 76.4%), which reflects curriculum progression. Student-run or volunteer clinics were the most common sites for first-year students (41.5%), with WSUSOM-affiliated events and volunteer events (22.0%, 19.5%) as the next common locations. Continuity clinic was the most prevalent site (38.2%) for second-year students, with student-run or volunteer clinics following close behind (32.4%).

Conclusions:

Patient mistreatment is encountered at many WSUSOM-affiliated sites, suggesting that this may be a pervasive issue. These experiences must be acknowledged and researched, and the sites at which they occur should be documented in order to identify how medical education environments could be improved. The incorporation of these questions within institutional and national surveys could allow us

to gather necessary evidence that would influence future policies and procedures, helping us to abate these occurrences.

References:

- 1. Hill KA, Samuels EA, Gross CP, et al. Assessment of the Prevalence of Medical Student Mistreatment by Sex, Race/Ethnicity, and Sexual Orientation. JAMA Intern Med. 2020;180(5):653-665. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2020.0030
- 2. Lind KT, Osborne CM, Badesch B, Blood A, Lowenstein SR. Ending student mistreatment: early successes and continuing challenges. Med Educ Online. 2020;25(1):1690846. doi:10.1080/10872981.2019.1690846
- 3. Cyrus KD, Angoff NR, Illuzzi JL, Schwartz ML, Wilkins KM. When patients hurt us. Med Teach. 2018;40(12):1308-1309. doi:10.1080/0142159X.2018.1428291
- 4. Mustapha T, Ho Y, Andrews JS, Cullen MJ. See No Evil, Hear No Evil, Stop No Evil: Institutional-Level Tracking to Combat Mistreatment of Residents and Fellows. J Grad Med Educ. 2019;11(5):601-605. doi:10.4300/JGME-D-19-00218.1

For more information about this abstract please contact emma.drenth@med.wayne.edu

<u>Tips for Making Early Clinical Experiences Meaningful for Medical Students</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Amy Guenther, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Scot Stanulis, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to identify, from students' perspectives, specific teaching practices that promote student learning in early clinical experiences (ECEs).

Background and relevance of the study:

Many medical schools incorporate ECEs into their curricula (1). ECE students have less knowledge than typical clerkship students, and often spend only a brief time in each rotation. These factors necessitate clinician educators enact particular teaching strategies to create meaningful learning opportunities for learners at this level (2).

Design and Methods:

We conducted online focus groups with 20 second-year medical students who participated in two-week rotations with clinicians in various specialties. We asked participants to identify specific practices that clinician educators used that promoted their learning.

Results:

Participant responses revealed themes related to technical and teaching and learning aspects of the clinical experience. We collapsed these themes into two broad categories.

Inviting Students into the Work

Our participants noted they learned more when clinician educators invited them into the work by:

- 1) Introducing themselves and orienting students to the space and personnel.
- 2) Inquiring about, and responding to, students' interests and goals.
- 3) Adapting teaching to students' developmental levels of understanding.
- 4) Articulating their expectations and establishing routines for the day and the rotation.
- 5) Positioning students as members of the healthcare team.

Preparing for Patient Interactions

Our participants also noted their experiences were more meaningful when clinician educators prepared them for patient interactions by:

- 1) Asking students to research a related topic beforehand.
- 2) Encouraging students to ask questions.
- 3) Reviewing the patient's charts with students.
- Cueing students to watch for certain things during patient interactions.
- 5) Talking through a procedure before going into the patient's room to perform it.

Conclusions:

This study provides concrete approaches to help clinicians teach with intent and can be used to inform professional development for clinician educators.

References:

- 1. Association of American Medical Colleges. Policy priorities to improve our nation's health. https://www.aamc.org/advocacy/472826/policy-priorities-improve-nations-health.html. Published, November 2016; Accessed July 12, 2020.
- 2. Salminen, H., Öhman, E., & Stenfors-Hayes, T. (2016). Medical students' feedback regarding their clinical learning environment in primary healthcare: a qualitative study. BMC Med Ed, 16(1), 313.

For more information about this abstract please contact guenth8@msu.edu

<u>The Formation of Online Learning Communities in a Pre-matriculation Program:</u> A Mixed Methods Study

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Linzy Kirkpatrick, University of Kansas School of Medicine Loza Kebret, University of Kansas School of Medicine Victoria Johnston, University of Kansas School of Medicine Benedict Franco, University of Kansas School of Medicine Cayla Teal, University of Kansas School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To assess the impact of online content delivery and increased active learning activities on learning community formation in the University of Kansas School of Medicine's Pre-matriculation Program (PMP).

Background and relevance of the study:

The PMP is aimed at preparing students from underrepresented/disadvantaged backgrounds for the intensity of medical school; traditionally an in-person program, COVID-19 pushed PMP online for its duration. We evaluated the effect of virtual content delivery and increased active learning sessions on learning community formation.

Design and Methods:

We developed and administered two surveys; the first, at the end of PMP, and the second, after the first block of Year 1. Descriptive analyses were performed focusing on questions regarding learning communities and peer socialization. We also compared data from the 2019 PMP end-of-program survey with the 2020 PMP end-of-program survey. Additionally, we performed interviews assessing the impact of PMP on Year 1, with interviewees selected through purposive sampling of the 2020 cohort.

Results:

There were 17/25 responses (68%) on Survey 1, 14/25 responses on Survey 2 (56%), and 6 interviews were performed. Our preliminary data suggest that while the online-only curriculum decreased peer socialization, it had no effect on learning community formation. Additionally, the increase in active-learning activities may have helped students prepare for the rigor of Year 1. Respondents from the 2020 cohort studied more than 2019 cohort respondents.

Conclusions:

Students report that PMP helped with adjusting to online content delivery encountered in Year 1. Although COVID-19 restrictions and/or the virtual curriculum may have increased the amount of time students spent studying per day, learning community formation wasn't impacted negatively by online delivery. Our study shows that an online-only curriculum can be an appropriate alternative to traditional face-to-face curricula. However, institutions may need to provide opportunities for peer socialization. Future study is needed to determine whether learning community formation would benefit from increased social interaction.

References:

1. DiRamio D, Wolverton M. Integrating learning communities and distance education: Possibility or pipedream? Innovative Higher Education. 2006;31(2):99-113. doi:10.1007/s10755-006-9011- y.

- 2. Gottlieb Z, Epstein S, Richards J. Near-peer teaching programme for medical students. Clin Teach. 2017;14(3):164-169. doi:10.1111/tct.12540.
- 3. Hafferty FW, P.H.D., Watson KV, M.D. The rise of learning communities in medical education: A socio-structural analysis. Journal of Cancer Education. 2007;22(1):6-9.
- 4. Smith SD, Dunham L, Dekhtyar M, et al. Medical student perceptions of the learning environment. Academic Medicine. 2016;91(9):1263–1269. doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000001214.
- 5. Yamada Y, Klugar M, Ivanova K, Oborna I. Psychological distress and academic self-perception among international medical students: The role of peer social support. BMC Med Educ. 2014;14:256. doi:10.1186/s12909-014-0256-3.

For more information about this abstract please contact lkebret@kumc.edu

<u>Could regional campus students experience greater savings from NRMP changes</u> in 2020-1?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Anne Walling, University of Kansas School of Medicine kari Nilsen, University of Kansas School of Medicine Tessa Rohrberg, University of Kansas School of Medicine Tiffany Schwasinger-Schmidt, University of Kansas School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Have students on regional campuses previously incurred greater costs and spent more time interviewing for residency?

Background and relevance of the study:

Applicant cost savings are anticipated from discontinuation of in-person residency interviewing due to the COVID pandemic. These savings could be higher for regional students if they previously had higher travel costs; however, literature searches failed to identify any information on NRMP-related costs for regional students. Any disadvantage for regional students should be considered in future recruiting arrangements.

Our hypotheses were that previously,

- Regional students incurred greater costs and spent more time interviewing than main campus peers;
- Cost and time differences were greater for applicants to non-primary care (PC) specialties

Design and Methods:

We analyzed data from a 6-year institutional study of NRMP participants to compare costs and time reported by students on both regional and main campuses. The 47-items questionnaire is distributed annually prior to announcement of NRMP results. T-tests were used to compare groups.

Results:

The response rate was 96.5% (1006/1042). Regional and main campus applicants reported overall mean cost of \$2,639 and \$4,287 (p = 0.004) respectively for PC; and \$4,621 and \$5,488 (p = 0.015) for non-PC. Average overall interview times were 26.38 vs 28.98 days (p = 0.281) for PC and 30.01 vs 29.47 (p = 0.005) for non-PC. The mean cost per completed interview was \$289 vs \$363 (PC; p < 0.0001) and \$434 vs \$444 (non-PC; p = 0.01). The mean time spent per completed interview was 2.8 (regional) vs 2.4 (main) for both PC and non-PC applicants.

Conclusions:

Regional applicants spent significantly less than those from the main campus. Differences were smaller for non-PC applicants. Mean interview time was significantly higher only for regional applicants to non-PC specialties. These unexpected results could be due to differences in application strategies and local availability of residency programs

References:

1. Huang WW, Feldman SR. The cost of applying to dermatology residency. J Am Acad Derm 2016;74(4):775-6

- 2. Egro FM, Smith BT, Nguyen VT. Systematic review of the cost of applying to integrated plastic surgery residency. Past Reconstr Surg 2018;142(5):820e-812e
- 3. Gruppuso PA, Adashi EY. Residency placement fever: is it time for a reevaluation? Acad Med 2017;92(7):923-926
- 4. Claiborne JR, Crantford JC, Swett KR, David LR. The plastic surgery Match: Predicting success and improving the process. Ann Plast Surg. 2013;70(6):698–703
- 5. Fogel HA, Liskutin TE, Wu K, Nystrom L, Martin B, Schiff A. The economic burden of residency interviews on applicants. Iowa Orthop J. 2018;38:9-15
- 6. Fried JG Cost of applying to residency questionnaire report. Association of American Medical Colleges, Organization of Student Representatives (AAMC/OSR) 2015 https://www.aamc.org/system/files/c/2/430902-costofapplyingtoresidency.pdf accessed December 2020
- 7. Kerfoot BP, Asher KP, McCullough DL. Financial and educational costs of the residency interview process for urology applicants. Urology 2008;71(6):990-5.
- 8. Nikonow TN, Lyon TD, Jackman SV, Averch TD. Survey of applicant experience and cost in the urology Match: opportunities for reform. J Urol. 2015;194(4):1063-1067.
- 9. Oladeji LO, Raley JA, Smith S. Perez JL, McGwin G, Ponce BA. Behind the Match process: is there any financial difference lurking below the specialty of choice? Am Surg 2016;82(12);1163-8
- 10. Polacco MA, Lally J, Walls W, Harrold LR, Malekzadeh S, Chen EY. Digging into dept: the financial burden associated with the otolaryngology Match. Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg 2017;156(6):1091-6
- 11. Van Dermark JT, Wald DA, Corker JR, Reid DG. Financial implications of the emergency medicine interview process. AEM Educ Train 2017;1(1):60-9
- 12. Flannery MT. The 2014 United States National Residency Match Program data for primary care programs: a review. Eu J Intern Med 2015;26(1):6-8
- 13. Ray C, Bishop SE, Dow AW. Rethinking the Match: A Proposal for Modern Matchmaking, Acad Med. 2018;93(1):45-47
- 14. Pereira AG, Chelminski PR, Chheda SG, et al. Application inflation for internal medicine applicants: Drivers, consequences, and potential solutions. Am J Med. 2016;129(8):885–891.
- 15. Weissbart SJ, Kim SJ, Feinn RS, Stock JA. Relationship between the number of residency application and the yearly Match rate: time to start thinking about an application limit? J Grad Med Educ. 2015;7(1):81-85
- 16. Chang CWD, Erhardt BF. Rising residency applications: how high will it go? Otolaryngol. 2015;153(5):702-705

For more information about this abstract please contact awalling@kumc.edu

<u>Third Year Medical and Pharmacy Students' Perceived Knowledge, Attitudes,</u> and Concerns Related to the COVID-19 Pandemic

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Ahmid Al-Shawk, Wayne State University School of Medicine/Detroit Medical Center Hamsa Gabbara, Wayne State University School of Medicine/Detroit Medical Center Francine Salinitri, Wayne State University School of Medicine
Susan Davis, Wayne State University School of Medicine/Henry Ford Hospital Diane Levine, Wayne State University School of Medicine/Detroit Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Determine third-year medical and pharmacy students' perceived knowledge, attitudes, and concerns related to COVID-19 early during the pandemic in the U.S.

Background and relevance of the study:

During pandemics, healthcare professionals are called to provide care. Much has been written about concerns of nurses, less about the concerns of physicians, and even less about the concerns of health professional students.

Design and Methods:

*Convenience sample of 3rd year MD & Pharm.D. students attending an WSU Interprofessional Patient Safety Educational ½ Day Event.

*A 10-item survey addressed personal risk, use of personal protective equipment (PPE), attendance at clinical practice sites, knowledge about and preparation for dealing with COVID-19, and impact on professional education.

*Nine questions used a 5-point Likert scale; one used a 3-answer format (yes/maybe/no). A comment section was provided.

Results:

Of 65 completing the survey, 27 (35.4%) had some level of concern about COVID-19; 7.7% were strongly concerned. More than half (52.3%) responded that they would wear a mask at work. During an epidemic, 4.3% would call in sick, 15.5% would avoid contact with patients, 38.0% would go to their clinical site.

When asked about knowledge, 58.5% agreed that they were very or somewhat knowledgeable; 80% disagreed with a statement that their respective program prepared them for dealing with a COVID-19 epidemic.

Most (84.6%) wanted their school to provide education about coronavirus geared towards healthcare professionals; 73.9% responded that the school should provide PPE.

More than a third (35.4%) were concerned that a coronavirus epidemic will adversely affect their education.

Four paired survey items were strongly correlated (PCC>0.5). Overall, students wanted to be educated, protected from COVID-19, and have their concerns considered.

Conclusions:

Medical & Pharmacy educators should proactively address students' concerns about their personal welfare and education during an epidemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is an opportunity to reemphasize the need to include such education into the professional curriculum.

References:

- 1. Aoyagi Y, Beck CR, Dingwall R, Nguyen-Van-Tam JS. Healthcare workers' willingness to work during an influenza pandemic: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Influenza Other Respir Viruses 2015;9:120-30.
- 2. Bell MA, Dake JA, Price JH, Jordan TR, Rega P. A national survey of emergency nurses and avian influenza threat. J Emerg Nurs 2014;40:212-7; quiz 94-5.
- 3. Devnani M. Factors associated with the willingness of health care personnel to work during an influenza public health emergency: an integrative review. Prehosp Disaster Med 2012;27:551-66.
- 4. Kim CJ, Yoo HR, Yoo MS, Kwon BE, Hwang KJ. Attitude, beliefs, and intentions to care for SARS patients among Korean clinical nurses: an application of theory of planned behavior. Taehan Kanho Hakhoe Chi 2006;36:596-603.
- 5. JD E. Straightforward statistics for behavioral sciences. Pacific Grove, CA: Brooks/Cole Publishing Company; 1996.
- 6. Ehrenstein BP, Hanses F, Salzberger B. Influenza pandemic and professional duty: family or patients first? A survey of hospital employees. BMC Public Health 2006;6:311.
- 7. Balicer RD, Barnett DJ, Thompson CB, et al. Characterizing hospital workers' willingness to report to duty in an influenza pandemic through threat- and efficacy-based assessment. BMC Public Health 2010;10:436.
- 8. Barnett DJ, Levine R, Thompson CB, et al. Gauging U.S. Emergency Medical Services workers' willingness to respond to pandemic influenza using a threat- and efficacy-based assessment framework. PLoS One 2010;5:e9856.
- 9. Damery S, Wilson S, Draper H, et al. Will the NHS continue to function in an influenza pandemic? A survey of healthcare workers in the West Midlands, UK. BMC Public Health 2009;9:142.
- 10. Gee S, Skovdal M. The role of risk perception in willingness to respond to the 2014-2016 West African Ebola outbreak: a qualitative study of international health care workers. Glob Health Res Policy 2017;2:21.
- 11. Goodhue CJ, Burke RV, Ferrer RR, Chokshi NK, Dorey F, Upperman JS. Willingness to respond in a disaster: a pediatric nurse practitioner national survey. J Pediatr Health Care 2012;26:e7-20.
- 12. Irvin CB, Cindrich L, Patterson W, Southall A. Survey of hospital healthcare personnel response during a potential avian influenza pandemic: will they come to work? Prehosp Disaster Med 2008;23:328-35.
- 13. Pogreba-Brown K, Weiss J, Briggs G, et al. Student outbreak response teams: lessons learned from a decade of collaboration. Public Health 2017;149:60-4.
- 14. ben Natan M ZS, Alaev D. Willingness of Future Nursing Workforce to Report for Duty During an Avian Influenza Pandemic. Res Theory Nurs Pract 2015;29:266-75.
- 15. Yonge O RR, Bailey TM, Lake R, Marrie TJ. Willingness of university nursing students to volunteer during a pandemic. Public Health Nurs 2010 27:174-80.
- 16. Markenson D ea. Disaster medicine and public health preparedness of health professions students: a multidisciplinary assessment of knowledge, confidence, and attitudes. Disaster Med Public Health Prep 2013;7:499-506.
- 17. Gallagher TH SA. We Signed Up for This!" Student and Trainee Responses to the Covid-19 Pandemic. 2020.
- 18. A Timeline of the Coronavirus Pandemic. New York Times, 2020. (Accessed April 4, 2020, at https://www.nytimes.com/article/coronavirus-timeline.html?auth=login-email&login=email,.)

For more information about this abstract please contact aalshawk@med.wayne.edu

<u>Evaluation of a Patient Intervention Capture Survey Process in an</u> Interprofessional Student-Run Free Clinic

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Eugenia Zeng, Wayne State University School of Medicine Jennifer Mendez, Wayne State University School of Medicine Justine Gortney, Eugene Applebaum College of Pharmacy and Health Sciences

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to evaluate the impact a patient intervention capture survey (PICS) has made to improve interventions within the clinic.

Background and relevance of the study:

In order to evaluate interventions completed by students at CHIP clinic, an interprofessional student-run free clinic, a PICS was developed. The PICS generates data regarding educational interventions and services were provided within four disciplines, including medicine, pharmacy, social work, and physical therapy.

Design and Methods:

An initial PICS developed in 2016 captured medical education, medications, physical assessments, referrals to other providers, and other services provided by students during the clinic. Results were evaluated and the survey was modified twice for easier data capture and better alignment with interventions with the intention of capturing prospectively. The results of this study are from the original PICS and two modified PICS, which will be called PICS1 and PICS2.

Results:

Using PICS2 data, 95% of patients received some intervention overall. With the original PICS and PICS1, patients who were provided with medical and pharmacy education interventions increased from 58% to 94% with an average of 5.4 to 8.3 patients per month. With PICS2, medical and pharmacy education interventions remained at 94%, with an increased average of 10.6 patients per month. Social work interventions increased from 3.2 to 4.5 to 10.6 in original PICS, PICS1, and PICS2, respectively. PICS2 also introduced a new set of questions regarding physical therapy education, in which 83% of patients were provided intervention with an average of 8.9 patients per month.

Conclusions:

Modifications made to the PICS survey have improved the quality and quantity of interventions. A major increase in social work interventions and referrals was due to increased social work student participation, which was addressed since implementation of PICS1. Additional data physical therapy interventions will be documented accordingly. Continued follow-up and evaluations of interventions captured will continue to be made.

References:

- 1. Gortney J, Mendez J, Bowers C, Appel J, Blanks D, Cheung WL. Patient assessment of engagement with students in an Interprofessional student-run free clinic for individuals experiencing homelessness. Journal of Social Distress and Homelessness. Published online January 22, 2018. https://doi.org/10.1080/10530789.2017.1421871
- 2. Kahkoska AR, Brazeau NF, Lynch KA, Kirkman MS, Largay J, Young L, Buse, JB. Implementation and evaluation of shared medical appointments for type 2 diabetes at a free student-run clinic in Alamance County, North Carolina. Published online 2018. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6053275/

3. Smith SD, Marrone L, Gomez A, Johnson ML, Edland SD, Beck E. Clinical Outcomes of Diabetic Patients at a Student-Run Free Clinic Project. Family Medicine. Published online March 28, 2014. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5872808/

For more information about this abstract please contact gm3521@wayne.edu

<u>Continuous, Peer-Led Curriculum Feedback During Curriculum Revision: An</u> <u>Opportunity for More Timely and Actionable Feedback</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: CGEA

Authors:

Alexander Swantek, Wayne State University School of Medicine Sevan Misirliyan, Wayne State University School of Medicine Cooper Laurain, Wayne State University School of Medicine Michael Franklin, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Can a peer-led, continuous feedback tool lead to more efficient and timely improvements during a curriculum revision than traditional feedback methods alone?

Background and relevance of the study:

In response to changing educational landscapes and standards, the rate of curricula reform has been increasing in medical schools across the nation. Despite many medical schools modifying, or completely redesigning, their curricula, best practices for monitoring a curricular revision are not well documented. Furthermore, traditional student feedback tools often rely on mandatory, end-of-course surveys, missing opportunities to make changes within a course, or for the next course during a curricular revision.

Design and Methods:

Study Design: Single Institution, Cohort Study

Methods:Encompassing a single institution's preclinical curriculum revision, an online curriculum feedback tool was created, advertised weekly, and continuously tracked by students over 3 years. Date of submission, category, topic, urgency, description of responses, and a rating of curriculum were collected with each response. Respondents had the option to include their information or remain anonymous. Descriptive statistical analyses were performed.

Results:

Class A had 61 responses (M1=13, M2=48) during the final years of the legacy curriculum. Class B had 252 responses (M1=177, M2=77) as the first class in the new curriculum, and class C had 226 responses (M1=108, M2=119). A mean of 92% +/- 7% of responses were recorded more than 1 week before an exam by classes B and C. The average time between responses was 10, 3, and 2 days for each class, respectively. However, the most common interval was 0-1 day with 372/514 (72%) responses. The next most common intervals were 1-2 days (7%) and 8-plus days (9%).

Conclusions:

When continuously available and monitored by similarly invested students, a peer-led, student feedback tool can help drive more timely and consistent improvements throughout a curriculum revision for both students going through the revision and future classes.

References:

- 1. Dienstag, J. L. (2011). Evolution of the New Pathway curriculum at Harvard Medical School: the new integrated curriculum. Perspectives in biology and medicine, 54(1), 36-54.
- 2. Dunne, F., McAleer, S., & Roff, S. (2006). Assessment of the undergraduate medical education environment in a large UK medical school. Health Education Journal, 65(2), 149-158.

- 3. Emke, A. R., Cheng, S., Chen, L., Tian, D., & Dufault, C. (2017). A novel approach to assessing professionalism in preclinical medical students using multisource feedback through paired self-and peer evaluations. Teaching and Learning in Medicine, 29(4), 402-410.
- 4. Fetterman, D. M., Deitz, J., & Gesundheit, N. (2010). Empowerment evaluation: A collaborative approach to evaluating and transforming a medical school curriculum. Academic Medicine, 85(5), 813-820.
- 5. Goldfarb, S., & Morrison, G. (2014). Continuous curricular feedback: a formative evaluation approach to curricular improvement. Academic Medicine, 89(2), 264-269.
- 6. Lyndon, M. P., Henning, M. A., Alyami, H., Krishna, S., Yu, T. C., & Hill, A. G. (2017). The impact of a revised curriculum on academic motivation, burnout, and quality of life among medical students. Journal of medical education and curricular development, 4, 2382120517721901.
- 7. Reis, S. (2018). Curriculum reform: Why? What? How? and how will we know it works?. Israel journal of health policy research, 7(1), 30.
- 8. Richman, P. S., Olvet, D. M., Ahmad, S., & Chandran, L. (2019). Use of student feedback to drive quality improvement (QI) in a preclinical US medical school course. Medical education online, 24(1), 1583968.
- 9. Woloschuk, W., Harasym, P. H., & Temple, W. (2004). Attitude change during medical school: a cohort study. Medical education, 38(5), 522-534.

For more information about this abstract please contact alexander.swantek@med.wayne.edu

NEGEA Research Abstracts

Gender-linked Differences in Internal Medicine Clerkship Evaluations

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Deborah Gorth, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Rogan Magee, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Ashley Traczuk, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Sarah Rosenberg, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Nina Mingioni, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Are there gender-linked differences between male and female student Internal Medicine evaluations?

Background and relevance of the study:

Previous work has described gender-dependent differences in clerkship evaluations (1,2,3). To better understand how gender affects clerkship evaluations, we studied multiple metrics of Internal Medicine (IM) evaluations.

Design and Methods:

We analyzed Sidney Kimmel Medical College's IM evaluations from 2017-2018, composed of a narrative, suggested grade, and a Likert scale (1=below expectations, 2=expected, and 3=exceeds expectations) assessment of various competencies. We evaluated summary statistics by gender, and determined which traits were correlated with the evaluator suggested grade. We computed word embeddings to examine contextual relationships between words (4).

Results:

There was no difference in final grade distribution (p = 0.0886) or NBME IM score (p = 0.6558). Female students performed better on the Likert scale evaluation of patient interaction (p < 0.0001), growth mindset (p = 0.0195), communication (p = 0.0128), compassion (p = 0.0005), and professionalism (p = 0.0252). Performance on the NBME exam correlated with subjective assessment of medical knowledge (p < 0.0001). While there was no difference in how subjective knowledge assessment increased with NBME score (p = 0.2549), at comparable NBME scores female students received lower subjective knowledge assessment scores (p < 0.0001). There was no correlation between evaluator-suggested final grade and knowledge assessment, patient interaction, or growth mindset scores. Professionalism score was positively correlated with the suggested grade, compassion, and teamwork (p < 0.0001 for each). Narrative evaluation length did not differ (p = 0.5013), but evaluators more often referenced male students by name (p = 0.0014). Computational language analysis revealed differences in the words associated with gender pronouns. Notably, "he" was associated with agentic terms (skills/rounds/clinical), and "she" with personality terms (wonderful/eager/helpful).

Conclusions:

Although there was no difference in the final suggested grade, there were numerous gender dependent differences in evaluating medical students.

References:

1. Riese A, Rappaport L, Alverson B, Park S, Rockney RM. Clinical Performance Evaluations of Third-Year Medical Students and Association With Student and Evaluator Gender. Acad Med. 2017;92(6):835-840.

- 2. Craig LB, Buery-Joyner SD, Bliss S, et al. To the point: gender differences in the obstetrics and gynecology clerkship. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2018;219(5):430-435.
- 3. Wang-Cheng RM, Fulkerson PK, Barnas GP, Lawrence SL. Effect of student and preceptor gender on clinical grades in an ambulatory care clerkship. Acad Med. 1995;70(4):324-326.
- 4. Mikolov T, Sutskever I, Chen K, Corrado G, Dean J. Distributed representations of words and phrases and their compositionality. Proceedings of the 26th International Conference on Neural Information Processing Systems Volume 2; 2013; Lake Tahoe, Nevada.

For more information about this abstract please contact nina.mingioni@jefferson.edu

<u>Pediatric Physical Exam Skills in Preclinical Medical Student Education</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Adam Weinstein, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth
Peter MacPerson, Queen's University Faculty of Health Sciences
Suzanne Schmidt, Northwestern University The Feinberg School of Medicine
Erica Chou, Medical College of Wisconsin
Mark Pogemiller, University of Oklahoma College of Medicine
Elizabeth Van Opstal, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our aim is to assess what pediatric physical examination skills (PedPEx) clinical skills course directors (CSDs) and pediatric clerkship directors (PCDs) feel medical students should have prior to starting their pediatrics clerkship (PC).

Background and relevance of the study:

There is a striking variability on how and when pediatric clinical skills are taught, including not being taught at all in preclerkship curricula up to 18% of medical schools. Approximately one-third of third year students did not feel well-prepared for their PC, including 40% identifying inadequate preparation with regards to PedPEx. This discrepancy persisted when comparing preparation for the PC to that of internal medicine, family medicine, surgery, and obstetrics-gynecology.

Design and Methods:

We surveyed PCDs and CSDs at North American medical schools, regarding the level of competence students should have in performing various PedPEx prior to starting their PC. The survey tool was piloted by our research group, with review by survey teams from Council on Medical Student Education in Pediatrics and Directors of Clinical Skills Courses. The final survey was sent to member lists for each of those organization, representing PCDs and CSDs.

Results:

We had a total of 139 responses, including 91 PCDs and 44 CSDs. For the majority of PedPEx, both sets of respondents felt students should have knowledge of and some ability to perform the exam maneuver in children. Exceptions included newborn-specific and developmental assessment skills, which both groups felt students should have knowledge, but not an ability to perform. CSDs felt a higher competence of development assessment skills was warranted as compared to PCDs (p<0.0001).

Conclusions:

Both PCDs and CSDs believe students would benefit from knowledge of and some ability to perform PedPEx prior to the PC. Further exploration of how and when to incorporate this learning could serve as a starting point for curricular improvements.

References:

- 1. Guiot AB, Baker RC, Dewitt TG. When and how pediatric history and physical diagnosis are taught in medical school: a survey of pediatric clerkship directors. Hosp Pediatr. 2013 Apr;3(2):139-43. doi: 10.1542/hpeds.2012-0058
- 2. Held M, Gibbs K, Lewin LO, and Weinstein AR. Do Pre-Clinical Experiences Adequately Prepare Students for Their Pediatrics Clerkship: A Needs Assessment to Inform Curricular Development. Medical Science Educator 2017 June; 27(2): DOI: 10.1007/s40670-017-0422-4
- 3. Weinstein AR, Held M, Gibbs K, Hammond B. Medical student preparation for pediatrics compared to other clerkships.

Platform Presentation: Pediatric Academic Societies' Annual Meeting, San Diego, CA, April 26, 2015; and Poster Presentation: Council on Medical Student Education in Pediatrics Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA, March 12, 2015

For more information about this abstract please contact adam.richard.weinstein@dartmouth.edu

<u>Abandoned: Legacy Students and the Emotional Landscape of Curricular</u> Transformation

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Deborah Ziring, Sidney Kimmel Medical College-Thomas Jefferson University Powell Rhea, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Urvashi Vaid, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Garrison Nord, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Nathn L'Etoile, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Steven Herrine, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To capture the emotional responses of stakeholders who participated in curricular transformation at Sidney Kimmel Medical College (SKMC) more than 2 years after change initiation.

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical schools nationwide are changing curricula.1 These are not snapshot events; they impact stakeholders over years. No published studies, however, have examined the emotional impact of curricular change on multiple stakeholder groups over time.2-6 This lack of insight is a critical gap given widespread curricular transformation efforts.

Design and Methods:

In 2019, data were collected using group concept mapping methodology, an asynchronous, mixed methods approach using qualitative and quantitative measures to identify themes characterizing the emotional experience during curricular transformation. Participants were faculty, students and staff at SKMC 27 months after curricular change initiation. Multidimensional scaling and hierarchical cluster analyses were used to analyze the data.

Results:

Among 335 eligible participants,123 completed brainstorming (36.7%), 153 completed rating (45.7%) and 33 completed sorting (9.9%). Six major themes emerged: 1) Enthusiastic 2) Apprehensive 3) Overwhelmed 4) Missed Opportunities 5) Uncertain 6) Abandoned. Mean statement ratings in the enthusiastic theme were highest while those in the abandoned theme were lowest. Demographic subgroup analysis revealed students in the new curriculum (Class of 2021) rated statements in the enthusiastic cluster highest (2.86 vs. 2.12; p<0.001) while students in the legacy curriculum (Class of 2020) rated statements in the abandoned cluster highest (2.71 vs. 2.17; p=0.03). Modest response rate and demographic sub-group size are limitations.

Conclusions:

Curricular change is emotionally taxing. Given the ubiquity of curricular transformation which includes the structural presence of a legacy cohort, all medical schools embarking on this challenge need to carefully attend to the varied emotional responses of the different stakeholder groups. Next steps to evaluate the long-term impact on legacy cohorts are to investigate changes in AAMC GQ data, home institution match rates and alumni-giving.

References:

- 1. Association of American Medical Colleges Curriculum Inventory 2017-18. https://aamc.org/data-reports/curriculum-reports/interactive-data/curriculum-change-us-medical schools. Accessed July 19, 2020.
- 2. Yengo-Kahn AM, Baker CE, Lomis KD. Medical students' perspectives on implementing curriculum change at one institution. Acad Med. 2017; 92(4): 455–461.
- 3. Walling A, Bonaminio G, Meyer M, Griebling TM, Paolo T, Nilse K. Unintended consequences of curricular change: Lessons from legacy students. Med Sci Educ. 2019; 29: 919–922.
- 4. Muller JH, Jain S, Loeser H, Irby DM. Lessons learned about integrating a medical school curriculum: Perceptions of students, faculty and curriculum Leaders. Med Ed. 2008; 42: 778–785.
- 5. Venance SL, Ladonna KA, Watling CJ. Exploring frontline faculty perspectives after a curriculum change. Med Ed. 2014; 48: 998–1007.
- 6. Khalil MK, Kibble JD. Faculty reflections on the process of building an integrated preclerkship curriculum: a new school perspective. Adv Physiol Educ. 2014; 38 (3): 199–209.

For more information about this abstract please contact deborah.ziring@jefferson.edu

<u>Evaluating Student Perceptions of Microaggressions in the Medical School</u> **Learning Environment**

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Naomie Shembo, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University Sarita Warrier, The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To what extent are microaggressions experienced by learners within medical school learning environments?

Background and relevance of the study:

Recently, there has been a call for reconstruction of medical education that emphasizes social determinants of health "so that future doctors are more prepared to discuss and treat racial inequalities". Although there is a general consensus in the literature on a need for race-centered education, there is a lack of research evaluating how medical students perceive and experience learning environments in the context of microaggressions.

Design and Methods:

A 61-item bi-annual internet-based survey at Alpert Medical School with participants from 4 consecutive class years. Students were invited to participate via email invitations to official class list-servs.

Results:

126 out of 432 students responded to the full survey (response rate of 29.1%). 70.6% of respondents reported having witnessed a microaggression in the context of medical school. 26.0% of respondents reported being unsure, 11.0% of respondents had not experienced a microaggression (SD= 0.6). 44.4% of respondents reported having themselves experienced a microaggression in the context of medical school. 17.5% respondents were unsure. Of students who had experienced a microaggression (n=56), 96.0% chose not to report the incident to the administration (SD= 0.2). 26.0% of students reported being very/somewhat confident that upon reporting the medical school would appropriately intervene (SD= 0.2).

Conclusions:

Uncertainty around what constitutes a microaggression in an educational space may lead to hesitancy surrounding formally reporting incidents. Additional bystander training for faculty, students, and staff focusing on definitions of safe spaces and microaggressions may improve reporting. The institution may encourage reporting and build trust with students by clarifying the formal process for complaints and engaging in collective community care following an incident.

References:

- 1. Tsai J, Crawford-Roberts A. A Call for Critical Race Theory in Medical Education. Journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. https://journals.lww.com/academicmedicine/Fulltext/2017/08000/A_Call_for_Critical_Race_Theory_in_Medical.18.aspx. Published 2017. Accessed July 12, 2020. doi: 10.1097.
- 2.Tsai J, Ucik L, Baldwin N, Hasslinger C, George P. Race Matters? Examining and Rethinking Race Portrayal in Preclinical Medical Education. Journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2016. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001232

For more information about this abstract please contact naomie_shembo@brown.edu

<u>Demographic Factors Associated With Taking Leave of Absence from Medical</u> School

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Hyacinth Mason, Albany Medical College
Mytien Nguyen, Yale School of Medicine
Seo Song, Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth
Angelina Ferritto, Albany Medical College
Ashar Ata, Albany Medical College
Donna Jeffe, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

In this study, we examined medical trainees' characteristics and experiences that are associated with taking a medical school leave of absence (LOA).

Background and relevance of the study:

Taking a LOA is significantly associated with attrition from medical school.1 There is a paucity of data on whether disparities in the occurrence of this outcome.

Design and Methods:

De-identified, individual-level data were provided by the Association of American Medical Colleges for 48,406 medical matriculants in academic years 2007-2008 to 2011-2012. We examined in association with the likelihood of LOA using multivariable logistic regression models. Predictors of LOA included MCAT scores, first-generation (no parent with a 4-year degree) or continuing-generation college graduate (at least 1 parent with a 4-year degree), sex, ethno-racial identity, matriculation age, undergraduate institution Carnegie classification, pre-medical experiences, and parental household income. Statistical analyses were performed using STATA 16.1.

Results:

Students who took LOA were from more likely to come from lower- (vs. higher) income households (aOR:1.19, 95% CI:1.09, 1.31) and who participated in summer enrichment (aOR:1.16, 95% CI:1.03, 1.31) and post-baccalaureate pre-medical programs (aOR:1.26, 95% CI:1.10, 1.45). In addition, compared to non-Hispanic (NH) White students, students who identified as NH Black/African American (aOR:1.34, 95% CI:1.13, 1.59), NH Asian/Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander (aOR:1.37, 95%CI:1.22, 1.54), NH American Indian/Alaska Native (aOR: 2.02, 95% CI:1.29, 3.19), NH Multiracial/Other (aOR:1.81, 95% CI:1.58, 2.09), and Hispanic/Latinx (aOR:1.30, 95% CI:1.09, 1.56) were more likely to take an LOA. Students with higher MCAT scores (aOR: 0.95, 95% CI:0.94, 0.96) and laboratory or health volunteer/work experiences (aOR:0.84, 95% CI:0.72, 0.99) were less likely to take a LOA.

Conclusions:

This study reveals ethno-racial and income disparities between medical students who do and do not take a LOA from medical school. Retention initiatives should focus on addressing the factors that influence this disparity; retaining the next-generation of diverse demands it. 2-4

References:

1. Caulfield M, Redden G, Sondheimer H. Graduation Rates and Attrition Factors for U.S. Medical School Students. Washington, DC: Association of American Medical Colleges;2014.

- 2. Nivet MA. A Diversity 3.0 Update: Are We Moving the Needle Enough? Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2015;90(12):1591-1593.
- 3. Xierali IM, Castillo-Page L, Zhang K, Gampfer KR, Nivet MA. AM last page: the urgency of physician workforce diversity. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2014;89(8):1192.
- 4. Rabinowitz HK, Petterson S, Boulger JG, et al. Medical School Rural Programs: A Comparison With International Medical Graduates in Addressing State-Level Rural Family Physician and Primary Care Supply. Academic Medicine. 2012;87(4).

For more information about this abstract please contact masonh1@amc.edu

<u>Preparing Students for Uncertainty in Clinical Practice: Recommendations for Clinical Clerkships</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Dimitrios Papanagnou, Sidney Kimmel Medical College - Thomas Jefferson University David Ebbott, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Deborah Ziring, Sidney Kimmel Medical College- Thomas Jefferson University Nethra Ankam, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We aim to provide recommendations for clerkships to better prepare medical students (MS) for uncertainty in practice. We sought to: 1) capture MS's general self-efficacy (GSE) and intolerance to uncertainty (IUS); 2) describe perceived comfort with uncertainty during clerkships; 3) identify pedagogies that best prepare MS for these situations.

Background and relevance of the study:

MS encounter situations when a diagnosis cannot be made; when treatment recommendations are at odds; when social determinants complicate management. How can clerkships prepare MS for clinical uncertainty?

Design and Methods:

This is an observational cross-sectional study of 289 3rd-year MS from an urban medical school surveyed at the end of clerkships. The survey consisted of GSE and IUS validated scales. Items asked students to rate preparedness, confidence, and comfort for uncertainty in clinical practice. Items on curricular programs asked MS to identify components of training that prepared them for uncertainty in clerkships, and examined correlations with specific elements of uncertainty (EOU): preparing for uncertainty, communicating and building relationships during times of uncertainty, and overall wellbeing. Spearman's correlation coefficient, Chi-Square, and ANOVA were used to assess GSE, IUS, clinical, and curricular items. Open responses were analyzed to generate themes using Braun and Clarke's Framework.

Results:

GSE was inversely correlated with IUS (p<0.001). GSE scores had a positive correlation with EOU ratings (p<0.005). IUS had an inverse correlation with EOU ratings (p<0.005). Curricular pedagogies with statistically-significant relationships with preparing MS for uncertain situations, communicating and building relationships during times of uncertainty, and overall wellbeing included: team debriefs, role plays, case-based learning, team-based learning, story slams, and sharing narratives with peers and faculty (p<0.05). Qualitatively, MS appreciated storytelling, role-modeling of communication strategies, debriefing, and simulations.

Conclusions:

Specific educational formats may help MS cultivate skills to adapt to uncertainty in practice. Clinical debriefs, interprofessional role plays, simulations, communications skills sessions, storytelling, and peer-to-peer conversations may have the most impact.

References:

1. Breines, J. G., & Chen, S. (2012). Self-Compassion Increases Self-Improvement Motivation. Personality and Social Psychology

Bulletin, 38(9), 1133-1143. https://doi.org/10.1177/0146167212445599

- 2. Iannello, P., Mottini, A., Tirelli, S., Riva, S., & Antonietti, A. (2017). Ambiguity and uncertainty tolerance, need for cognition, and their association with stress. A study among Italian practicing physicians. Medical Education Online, 22(1), 1270009. https://doi.org/10.1080/10872981.2016.1270009
- 3. Innes, S. I., Leboeuf-Yde, C., & Walker, B. F. (2017). The relationship between intolerance of uncertainty in chiropractic students and their treatment intervention choices. Chiropractic & Manual Therapies, 25(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12998-017-0150-2
- 4. Leung, J., Cloninger, C. R., Hong, B. A., Cloninger, K. M., & Eley, D. S. (2019). Temperament and character profiles of medical students associated with tolerance of ambiguity and perfectionism. PeerJ, 7, e7109. https://doi.org/10.7717/peerj.7109
 5. MERRILL, J. M., CAMACHO, Z., LAUX, L. F., LORIMOR, R., THORNBY, J. I., & VALLBONA, C. (1994). Uncertainties and ambiguities: measuring how medical students cope. Medical Education, 28(4), 316–322. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2923.1994.tb02719.x
- 6. Neff, K. D., Rude, S. S., & Kirkpatrick, K. L. (2007). An examination of self-compassion in relation to positive psychological functioning and personality traits. Journal of Research in Personality, 41(4), 908–916. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jrp.2006.08.002
 7. Wayne, S., Dellmore, D., Serna, L., Jerabek, R., Timm, C., & Kalishman, S. (2011). The Association Between Intolerance of Ambiguity and Decline in Medical Students' Attitudes Toward the Underserved. Academic Medicine, 86(7), 877–882. https://doi.org/10.1097/acm.0b013e31821dac01

For more information about this abstract please contact dimitrios.papanagnou@jefferson.edu

<u>Applying to medical school: The experiences of first generation and continuing</u> generation medical school matriculates

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Tanuj Sharma, University at Albany
Devasmita Chakraverty, Indian Institute of Management Ahmedabad
Mark Miceli, Keiser University
Carolina Ruiz, UNC-Gillings School of Global Public Health
Rosa Lee, CUNY School of Medicine/Sophie Davis Biomedical Education Program
Alice Stella, Albany Medical College
Branden Eggan, Siena College
Hyacinth Mason, Albany Medical College

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Describe the path to medical school for students and determine whether overall experiences varied by college graduate generational status (First Generation [FG] or Continuing Generation [CG]).

Background and relevance of the study:

Differences in medical school matriculation rates exist between FG and CG pre-medical students.1 This pilot study is a first step in understanding why this disparity exists.

Design and Methods:

Data were collected from three northeastern US medical schools using an embedded mixed-methods approach following IRB approval from Albany Medical College. All enrolled medical students from each campus were invited to complete a brief survey on their experiences and perspectives about applying for and matriculating to medical school. A subset convenience sample of interested respondents was contacted for a follow-up, semi-structured interview. Inductive qualitative analysis was used to develop codes and themes.2

Results:

Survey data indicate that 21% (136/644) of the respondents identified as FG and 79% (508/644) as CG. WHO-5 wellness scores, a measure used to assess mental health and wellness,3 were comparably low among both student groups, with 37.4% of students overall fitting criteria for recommended depression screening. Overarching themes from the interviews were: Economic, cultural and social, with clear similarities and differences between FGs/CGs. Both groups expressed remarkable stress and anxiety throughout the pre-/post-application phases, but differences existed between the FG and CG groups in access to support, perception of the impact of identity on the application process and financial implications.

Conclusions:

While the overall application process for FG/CG students is stressful, in many cases, CG students are better prepared to manage the challenges of the process. Providing more support to FG students during the pre-application phase could provide a stronger foundation for success further along the physician trainee pathway. Providing systems that help applicants navigate the financial, social, and emotional aspects of the process could result in greater success in inclusion of FG physician aspirants.

References:

- 1. D., Garrison, G., Jolly, P. Diversity of U.S. Medical Students by Parental Education. Association of American Medical Colleges, Analysis in Brief 2010; August.
- 2. J., Creswell. Research Design: Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods approaches. Sage Publications. 2nd ed. Thousand Oaks (CA); 2003.
- 3. Topp, C. W., Østergaard, S. D., Søndergaard, S., & Bech, P. (2015). The WHO-5 Well-Being Index: a systematic review of the literature. Psychother Psychosom, 84(3), 167-176. doi:10.1159/000376585

For more information about this abstract please contact sharmat@amc.edu

<u>Lessons from the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) Core</u> <u>Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) for Entering Residency Core EPA Pilot</u> <u>Project: Learning Goal Orientation and Student Perceptions about the Core EPAs</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Katherine Gielissen, Yale University School of Medicine Amy Jayas, The Association of American Medical Colleges Douglas Grbic, The Association of American Medical Colleges

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Is growth mindset associated with positive student perceptions of Core EPAs?

Background and relevance of the study:

The AAMC Core EPAs using an entrustment framework have been piloted at 10 U.S. medical schools since 2015. As prior work from these schools postulated that a growth mindset is an important learner perspective for successful EPAs implementation, we investigated the relationship between students' Learning Goal Orientation (LGO, an instrument established by others to measure growth mindset) and their perceptions about the Core EPAs implementation at their schools.

Design and Methods:

Using a subset of data from the 2020 AAMC questionnaire administered to third-year (M3) clerkship students at selected pilot schools, we tested a set of demographic characteristics, attitudinal variables about Core EPAs implementation, and frequency of direct observation/feedback on EPAs.for their associations with LGO score (the sum of responses to the five LGO instrument items, each rated 1=strongly agree to 6=strongly disagree) in bivariate analyses; 2-sided p <.05 considered significant.

Results:

Among 238 students, the mean (standard deviation) LGO score was 8.9, (3.3). LGO was not associated with age, gender, race or school (each p>.05). Lower LGO score (i.e., a stronger LGO) was associated with each of: comfort with asking supervisors for EPA assessments (p5 (vs \leq 5) times in performance of multiple EPAs (each p<.05).

Conclusions:

M3 students with a stronger LGO – a "growth mindset" – had more positive perceptions about the use of Core EPAs and had more frequent feedback from their supervisors.

References:

- 1. Lomis K, Amiel JM, Ryan MS, et al. Implementing an entrustable professional activities framework in undergraduate medical education: early lessons from the AAMC core entrustable professional activities for entering residency pilot. Academic Medicine. 2017;92(6):765-770.
- 2. VandeWalle, D. (1997). Development and validation of a work domain goal orientation instrument. Educational and psychological measurement, 57(6), 995-1015.

For more information about this abstract please contact katherine.gielissen@yale.edu

Investigating Drivers of Burnout Among Pediatric Fellowship Trainees

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Marissa Kilberg, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Colleen Bennett, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Dorene Balmer, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Jay Mehta, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Anna Weiss, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We sought to understand drivers of burnout among pediatric fellowship trainees and their perceptions of the impact of COVID-19 on their wellness.

Background and relevance of the study:

Specific factors contributing to burnout among pediatric fellows are poorly characterized; consequently, how best to address their burnout is not well-understood. Based on pilot data from our institution demonstrating over 50% of pediatric subspecialty fellows meet the threshold for burnout, we sought to explore the drivers of both burnout and wellness among fellows using qualitative methodology.

Design and Methods:

We conducted focus groups with a convenience sample of pediatric fellowship trainees at our freestanding tertiary-care children's hospital. We facilitated the focus groups using a semi-structured interview guide. Focus groups were recorded, transcribed, and de-identified. Using principles of thematic analysis, we inductively derived codes, applied codes to segments of data, and iteratively scrutinized coded data to identify emerging themes – emphasizing protective factors for trainee wellness, and avoidable and unavoidable drivers of burnout based on the study's conceptual framework.

Results:

We conducted 9 focus groups with 43 fellows representing 24 fellowship programs. Fellows identified avoidable drivers of burnout: administrative burden, workforce-workload misalignment, lack of transparent expectations, technology burden, and scheduling challenges. Unavoidable drivers included: work-life conflict and inherent demands of the medical profession. Fellows noted factors protective of wellness: strong interpersonal/interprofessional relationships; program support and responsiveness; and the ability to find meaning in work. Regarding COVID-19, fellows reported feeling supported by their fellowship programs, but described feelings of anxiety and increased work-life conflict.

Conclusions:

This study identified both avoidable and unavoidable drivers of burnout among pediatric fellowship trainees, providing valuable insight into programmatic and institutional changes that may ameliorate burnout. Consistent fellow trainee input and feedback in burnout prevention strategies are critical and should be actively solicited. Furthermore, our study informs how programs may support trainees in extreme circumstances e.g., the COVID pandemic.

References:

- 1. Beck J, Randall CL, Bassett HK, O'Hara KL, Falco CN, Sullivan EM, Opel DJ. Moral Distress in Pediatric Residents and Pediatric Hospitalists: Sources and Association With Burnout. Acad Pediatr. 2020 Nov-Dec;20(8):1198-1205. doi: 10.1016/j.acap.2020.05.017. Accessed June 4, 2020.
- 2. Card AJ. Physician Burnout: Resilience Training is Only Part of the Solution. Ann Fam Med (2018) 16:267-270. DOI:

- 10.1370/afm.2223. Accessed February 23, 2020.
- 3. National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine; National Academy of Medicine; Committee on Systems Approaches to Improve Patient Care by Supporting Clinician Well-Being. Taking Action Against Clinician Burnout: A Systems Approach to Professional Well-Being. Washington (DC): National Academies Press (US); October 23, 2019.
- 4. Panagioti M, Panagopoulou E, Bower P, et al. Controlled Interventions to Reduce Burnout in Physicians: A Systematic Review and Meta-analysis. JAMA Intern Med (2017). 177:195-205. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2016. 7674. Accessed September 10, 2019.
- 5. Shanafelt TD, Sloan JA, Habermann TM. The well-being of physicians. Am J Med (2003). 114:513-519. DOI: 10.1016/s0002-9343(03)00117-7. Accessed September 10, 2019.
- 6. Weiss A., Quinn S., Danley A., Wiens K., Mehta, J. The Effects of Stress & Burnout on Perceptions of Stigma and Help-Seeking Behavior Among Pediatric Fellowship Trainees. Abstract presented at: Association of Pediatric Program Directors Annual Meeting; March 26-29. 2019; New Orleans, LA.

For more information about this abstract please contact kilbergm@email.chop.edu

<u>Mistreatment of Providers by Patients and Family Members: Effect of an</u> <u>organizational strategy on provider knowledge, self-efficacy, and safety incident</u> reporting of mistreatment

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

3

Authors:

Pnina Weiss, Yale School of Medicine
Marianne Hatfield, Yale School of Medicine
Rebecca Ciaburri, Yale School of Medicine
Henna Shaikh, University of Washington School of Medicine
Kirsten Wilkins, Yale School of Medicine
Kurt Bjorkman, University of Iowa Roy J. and Lucille A. Carver College of Medicine
Matthew Goldenberg, Yale School of Medicine
Sarah McCollum, Yale School of Medicine
Veronika Shabanova, Yale School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We investigated the prevalence of mistreatment of health care providers (HCPs) by patients and family members and the effect of an organizational strategy on HCP knowledge of and self-efficacy in addressing and reporting of mistreatment.

Background and relevance of the study:

Mistreatment of HCPs is common and is associated with burnout and lower quality patient care. Unfortunately, mistreatment of HCPs by patients/family members is under-reported and data on effective strategies to mitigate it are lacking.

Design and Methods:

In this single-center, serial cross-sectional study, we sent an anonymous survey to HCPs before and after intervention, consisting of training, incident reporting, and response protocol, to assess knowledge, self-efficacy and experiences of mistreatment by patients/family at Yale New Haven Children's Hospital 2018-2019. Training included ERASE and "Ouch! That Stereotype Hurts" sessions. We modified the safety incident reporting software to track reports of mistreatment. Multivariable logistic regression examined the effect of intervention on outcomes of interest and moderation by staff role.

Results:

A total of 309 baseline surveys were completed by 72 faculty, 191 nurses, and 46 residents, representing 39.1%, 27.1% and 59.7%, respectively, of eligible HCPs. Verbal threats from patients/family members were reported by 69.5% of HCPs. Offensive behavior was most commonly based on age, gender, ethnicity or race and appearance, but varied by role. HCPs who received training had higher odds of reporting knowledge of mistreatment policies [OR 2.7[Cl 1.38-5.32]], a standardized approach [OR 4.43[Cl 2.03-9.67]] and intervening effectively when experiencing 1.93[0.93-4.01] or witnessing mistreatment 2.39[0.99-5.78]. They had at least twice the odds of reporting having experienced offensive behaviors by patients/family. Incident reporting of mistreatment by patients/family increased three-fold after intervention.

Conclusions:

This is the first report of an effective organizational approach, utilizing existing patient safety

infrastructure, to address mistreatment of HCPs by patients and family members, which can be readily adopted by other institutions.

References:

- 1. Hu YY, Ellis RJ, Hewitt DB, et al. Discrimination, Abuse, Harassment, and Burnout in Surgical Residency Training. N Engl J Med 2019;381:1741-52.
- 2. Roche M, Diers D, Duffield C, Catling-Paull C. Violence toward nurses, the work environment, and patient outcomes. J Nurs Scholarsh 2010;42:13-22.
- 3. Sato K, Wakabayashi T, Kiyoshi-Teo H, Fukahori H. Factors associated with nurses' reporting of patients' aggressive behavior: A cross-sectional survey. International Journal of Nursing Studies 2013;50:1368-76.
- 4. Wilkins KM, Goldenberg MN, Cyrus KD. ERASE-ing Patient Mistreatment of Trainees: Faculty Workshop. MedEdPORTAL 2019;15:10865.
- 5. Ouch! That Stereotype Hurts. 2007. (Accessed July 23, 2020, at https://www.diversityinclusioncenter.com/downloads/Ouch Stereotypes LeadersGuide.pdf.)

For more information about this abstract please contact pnina.weiss@yale.edu

<u>Illuminating educational outcomes of students who self-identify with more than</u> one ethno-racial category

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Mytien Nguyen, Yale School of Medicine
Elle Lett, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania
Sarah Martinez, Albany Medical College
Dowin Boatright, Yale School of Medicine
Donna Jeffe, Washington University in St. Louis School of Medicine
Hyacinth Mason, Albany Medical College

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We examined association between bi-ethnoracial identity on medical school dismissal and withdrawal rates.

Background and relevance of the study:

In medical education research, multiracial students are often been categorized as a monolith, or have been categorized, based on the combination reported, with one racial/ethnic category (1).

Design and Methods:

Deidentified data from the Student Records System and the National Board of Medical Examiners were obtained for US medical school matriculants in academic years 2007-2008 through 2011-2012. Students' self-reported ethno-racial identity was categorized into mono-ethnoracial and bi-ethnoracial categories. Mono-ethnoracial categories include Non-Hispanic (NH) White, Asian, Black/African-American, and American Indian/Alaskan Native/Pacific Islander. Bi-ethnoracial categories included Black-NHWhite, Asian-NHWhite, Native-NHWhite, Native-Black or Asian, Asian-Black, Hispanic-White, Hispanic-Black, Hispanic-Asian, and Hispanic-Native. Other factors considered include sex, age at matriculation, college Carnegie Classification and MCAT scores. Multivariable logistic regression assessed the association between ethno-racial identity and graduation and dismissal/withdrawal. Adjusted odds ratios (aOR) and 95% confidence intervals (CI) are reported. R v3.6.0 was used for analysis.

Results:

Of 65,606 students in our cohort, 59.5% NHWhite, 19.0% Asian, 6.3% Black/African-American, 0.4% American Indian/Alaskan Native/Pacific Islanders, 0.2% Black-NHWhite, 1.6% Asian-NHWhite, 0.4% Native-NHWhite, 0.1% Native-Black or Asian, 0.1% Asian-Black, 4.9% Hispanic-White, 0.3% Hispanic-Black, 0.2% Hispanic-Asian, and 0.07% Hispanic-Native. Compared to monoracial White students, Hispanic-White (aOR:2.55,95%CI:1.52-4.01) and Black-NHWhite (aOR:3.98,95% CI:1.97-7.28) students were more likely to withdraw or be dismissed. Compared to monoracial Asian students, Native-Asian (aOR:3.33,96%CI:1.64-6.12) were more likely to withdraw or be dismissed. No significance was found for Hispanic-Asian, Black-Asian, or White-Asian. Compared to monoracial Black students, Native-Black (aOR:2.34,95%CI:1.15-4.30) students were more likely to be withdraw or be dismissed.

Conclusions:

Significant differences were observed in the academic experiences and trajectories of bi-ethnoracial-identifying medical school matriculants. Our study shows the effect of disaggregation of self-reported

ethnoracial identity and suggests a new norm of disaggregating the category of students who select more than one ethnoracial category may be needed.

References:

1. Hill KA, Samuels EA, Gross CP, et al. Assessment of the Prevalence of Medical Student Mistreatment by Sex, Race/Ethnicity, and Sexual Orientation. JAMA Intern Med. 2020;180(5):653–665. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2020.0030

For more information about this abstract please contact masonh1@amc.edu

<u>Virtualizing Undergraduate Medical Education During the COVID-19 Pandemic</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Wing Fei Wong, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Mustfa Manzur, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Paul DiMuzio, Thomas Jefferson University Hospital Babak Abai, Thomas Jefferson University Hospital

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

In the context of COVID-19, how have changes made to the curricula impacted the perceived quality of undergraduate medical education from the perspective of undergraduate medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

Global coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic has led to profound changes to medical education, including transition of traditional didactics and clinical training to virtualized environments(1-4). It is currently unclear how these efforts impacted perceived quality of undergraduate medical education (UME). This work sought to comprehensively assess undergraduate medical students' perceptions of changes made to basic science didactic education and clinical training during COVID-19.

Design and Methods:

A survey with questions soliciting perspective on changes to UME training was electronically distributed to all students (n=1092) at Sidney Kimmel Medical college (SKMC). Data were collected from August 2020 to November 2020. Significant differences in survey responses across study cohorts were assessed with chi-squared testing. Significance was assigned when p<0.05.

Results:

Approximately 39.7% medical students (n=434) responded. At a confidence level of 95.0%, the overall margin of error for this study was ±3.6%. Second- and third-year students reported positive impact on self-pacing of virtually delivered lectures (77.5% and 73.3%, respectively), and negative impact on inperson clinical experience (94.6% and 92.5%, respectively). Second-year students reported negative impact to volunteer opportunities (87.8%), clinical shadowing (86.1%), student organization involvement (78.3%), and research (72.2%). Over a third (35.2%) of fourth-year respondents reported clinical instruction supplemented with telemedicine visits, of which 83.3% reported it to be less educational and 79.2% reported an inferior clinical experience. Fourth-year students planned to apply to more (40.0%) or significantly more (12.9%) residency positions.

Conclusions:

Virtualization of UME appeared to improve students' perceived quality of didactic education. Reduced availability of in-person clinical, research, and volunteer experiences consistently concerned students across all class years — particularly with respect to their ability to holistically identify and match into their specialty of choice.

- 1. Barach P, Fisher SD, Adams MJ, et al. Disruption of healthcare: Will the COVID pandemic worsen non-COVID outcomes and disease outbreaks? Prog Pediatr Cardiol. 2020. doi:10.1016/j.ppedcard.2020.101254
- 2. Mian A, Khan S. Medical education during pandemics: A UK perspective. BMC Med. 2020;18(1):18-19. doi:10.1186/s12916-020-01577-y
- 3. Wong G, Greenhalgh T, Pawson R, et al. Internet-based medical education: A realist review of what works, for whom and in

what circumstances. Sci Adv. 2020;18(1):3. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001160

4. Wayne DB, Green M, Neilson EG. Medical education in the time of COVID-19. Sci Adv. 2020;6(30):eabc7110. doi:10.1007/s00247-020-04728-8

For more information about this abstract please contact wxw020@students.jefferson.edu

Mitigating Racial Disparities in Surgery Clerkship Grading

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Madeleine Hunter, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Aubrie Swan Sein, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Roman Nowygrod, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Henry Park, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Elizaveta Minko, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We aimed to evaluate for the presence of racial disparity in Surgery clerkship grading and to determine the potential source of such disparity.

Background and relevance of the study:

Racial disparities unfortunately exist in the healthcare system, evident in access/quality of care and patient outcomes as well as in medical student education. (1-3)

Design and Methods:

We conducted a cross-sectional study of 2017 - 2019 Surgery clerkship grades at Columbia University. Self-reported race, final clerkship grades, and scores on individual grade components—NBME Surgery Shelf exam (10% of grade), Surgery clerkship-specific Clinical Reasoning Exam (30%), and clinical performance evaluation components (60%, including Teamwork, Fund of Knowledge, History and Physical, Learning Efforts, and Professionalism)—were obtained. Race was initially evaluated by underrepresented minority (URM) status and then by Asian, Hispanic, Black, White and Other. Disparities were evaluated in Honors and scores received in separate grading components by race. Also, analyses investigated which grading components were predictive of receiving Honors. Logistic regression was used.

Results:

There were 565 students in our sample. The distribution of Honors by race was as follows: 24% in URM, 32% in Asian, 26% in Hispanic, 16% in Black, and 35% in White students. We found that URM students received lower Fund of Knowledge scores compared to their White counterparts (2.23 vs. 2.41, p=0.01). Shelf score was not associated with Honors for URM students though it was for White students (68.13 vs. 75.67, p<0.01). All other grading categories predicted Honors for White and URM students.

Conclusions:

Racial disparity was found in Surgery clerkship grading. Black students received significantly fewer Honors compared to White counterparts. Potential sources of bias were Fund of Knowledge assessment and the Shelf exam. We decreased the weights of these categories in our algorithm for final grades and will amplify faculty development efforts to further mitigate bias.

- 1. Hall W, Chapman M, Lee K, Merino Y, Thomas T, Payne B, Eng E, Day S and Coyne-Beasley T. Implicit Racial/Ethnic Bias Among Health Care Professionals and Its Influence on Health Care Outcomes: A Systematic Review. American Journal of Public Health. 2015;105:E60-E76.
- 2. Low D, Pollack SW, Liao ZC, Maestas R, Kirven LE, Eacker AM and Morales LS. Racial/Ethnic Disparities in Clinical Grading in Medical School. Teach Learn Med. 2019;31:487-496.
- 3. Teherani A, Hauer KE, Fernandez A, King TE and Lucey C. How Small Differences in Assessed Clinical Performance Amplify to

Large Differences in Grades and Awards: A Cascade With Serious Consequences for Students Underrepresented in Medicine. Acad Med. 2018;93:1286-1292.

For more information about this abstract please contact mdh2167@cumc.columbia.edu

A New Micro-Climate Survey Tool to Assess Inclusion in Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Carla Burns, University of Connecticut School of Medicine
Zita Lazzarini, University of Connecticut School of Medicine
Janice Vendetti, University of Connecticut School of Medicine
Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
donna Jackson, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Tonya Fancher, University of California, Davis, School of Medicine
David Henderson, University of Connecticut School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Collaborators from three medical schools developed and validated a brief student survey suitable for measuring inclusion in individual classes/courses.

Background and relevance of the study:

The LCME, ACGME, and AAMC have made diversity a priority. Inclusion is often neglected because it is difficult to assess, particularly in microclimates within medical school. This innovation aims to provide initial validity evidence for a new student survey tool to measure inclusion.

Design and Methods:

We reviewed existing literature. We established face and content validity of the survey instrument. It was revised based on expert feedback, and pilot-tested. The instrument focuses on 3 main areas for students:

- Assess students' "level of comfort" participating in a specified class or course as it related to personal differences (e.g., race, religious beliefs, socioeconomic status, gender/ gender identity)
- 2) Assess students' "level of comfort" in "aspects" of the learning environment (e.g., the content of the curriculum, the behavior of their peers, the faculty/staff/instructors); and
- 3) Assess how students may have a better understanding of others' perspectives and greater clarity of their own perspectives based on experiences in the learning environment.

Results:

Differences in distributions were computed using Mann-Whitney U tests, alpha < .05. Of students asked, 77.7% completed the survey (n=88) in August 2020. 51.1% of the respondents were female, 17.0% were URM. URM students indicated they felt uncomfortable more frequently than non-URM students, due to: differences in race (U=328, p=.005); nation of origin (U=347.5, p=.001); the content of the curriculum (U=302.0, p=.001); and the behavior of their peers (U=357.5, p=.020). Females felt uncomfortable more frequently than males due to the behavior of their peers (U=720.5, p=.022).

Conclusions:

These data indicate that the instrument can detect disparities in students' experience of the social environment of medical education microclimates. This offers opportunities to establish quality improvement processes and improve students' experience of inclusion.

References:

1. George D. Kuh, Ty M. Cruce, Rick Shoup, Jillian Kinzie & Robert M. Gonyea (2016) Unmasking the Effects of Student

Engagement on First-Year College Grades and Persistence, The Journal of Higher Education, 79:5, 540-563, DOI: 10.1080/00221546.2008.11772116

- 2. Outcalt, C. L., & Skewes-Cox, T. E. (2002). Involvement, interaction, and satisfaction: The human environment at HBCUs. Review of Higher Education: Journal of the Association for the Study of Higher Education, 25(3), 331-347.
- 3. Hurtado, S., & Carter, D. F. (1997). Effects of college transition and perceptions of the campus racial climate on Latino college students' sense of belonging. Sociology of Education, 70(4), 324-345.

For more information about this abstract please contact henderson@uchc.edu

Mental Hesitation: A Qualitative Exploration of Pediatric Subspecialists' Perceived Responsibilities and Barriers to Addressing Mental and Behavioral Health

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Juliann Reardon, Yale School of Medicine
Jessica Lee, Yale School of Public Health
Cailin Arechiga, Yale School of Public Health
Morgan Buchanan, Yale School of Public Health
Lakai Legg, Yale School of Public Health
Andres Martin, Yale School of Medicine
Pnina Weiss, Yale School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To describe pediatric subspecialists' experiences providing mental and behavioral health (MBH) care to better understand their perceived responsibilities (RESPONSIBILITY) and barriers (BARRIER) to addressing MBH, to ultimately guide further educational interventions.

Background and relevance of the study:

Children with chronic medical conditions (CMC) are disproportionately affected by MBH issues as compared to their healthy peers. Pediatric subspecialists are urged to address their patients' MBH concerns; however no competencies exist to guide pediatric subspeciality education. Reasons why pediatric subspecialists believe less strongly than general pediatricians that they should address MBH issues and screen less frequently are not yet known.

Design and Methods:

As part of an explanatory mixed methods study, 19 one-on-one semi-structured interviews and two 4-person focus groups with pediatric subspecialty faculty and fellows were conducted from November 2019-June 2020 at Yale University. Transcripts were independently reviewed and coded with a priori and emergent codes. Thematic inductive analysis was used to identify common themes among interviews.

Results:

RESPONSIBILITY themes included: obligation to identify and refer but not treat MBH concerns; differing roles based on practice setting and frequency of patient visits; and concern for mismanagement of MBH issues. BARRIER themes included: competing priorities; perceived MBH stigma among patients and families; lack of training; and lack of awareness and access to MBH resources.

Conclusions:

Pediatric subspecialists believe they should address MBH concerns in a limited manner. They worry they will improperly address MBH concerns and also inadequately address a patient's additional subspecialty care needs. To improve the quality of care delivered to children with comorbid CMCs and MBH concerns, subspecialty MBH competencies should be clearly defined. Additional training can then be tailored to the needs identified: (1) instructing subspecialists on the importance of addressing MBH within subspecialty clinics and their role, (2) improving subspecialists' skills and providing subspecialty-specific MBH resources, and (3) addressing the perceived burdens of limited time and MBH stigma.

References:

- 1. Perrin, J. M., Asarnow, J. R., Stancin, T., Melek, S. P., & Fritz, G. K. (2019). Mental Health Conditions and Health Care Payments for Children with Chronic Medical Conditions. Acad Pediatr, 19(1), 44-50.
- 2. Ferro, M. A. (2015). Major depressive disorder, suicidal behaviour, bipolar disorder, and generalised anxiety disorder among emerging adults with and without chronic health conditions. Epidemiology and Psychiatric Sciences, 25(5), 462-474.
- 3. Secinti, E., Thompson, E. J., Richards, M., & Gaysina, D. (2017). Research Review: Childhood chronic physical illness and adult emotional health a systematic review and meta-analysis. J Child Psychol Psychiatry, 58(7), 753-769.
- 4. Butler, A., Van Lieshout, R. J., Lipman, E. L., MacMillan, H. L., Gonzalez, A., Gorter, J. W., . . . Ferro, M. A. (2018). Mental disorder in children with physical conditions: a pilot study. BMJ Open, 8(1), e019011.
- 5. Pickles, D. M., Lihn, S. L., Boat, T. F., & Lannon, C. (2020). A Roadmap to Emotional Health for Children and Families With Chronic Pediatric Conditions. Pediatrics, 145(2), e20191324.
- 6. Green, C. M., Foy, J. M., & Earls, M. F. (2019). Achieving the Pediatric Mental Health Competencies. Pediatrics, 144(5), e20192758.
- 7. Reardon, J. L., Lembeck, P., Murray, T., & Weiss, P. (2020). 113. MENTAL HEALTH IN THE PEDIATRIC SUBSPECIALTIES: PHYSICIANS' BELIEFS AND CONFIDENCE PROVIDING CARE. Academic Pediatrics, 20(7), e53-e54.
- 8. Green, C., Stein, R. E. K., Storfer-Isser, A., Garner, A. S., Kerker, B. D., Szilagyi, M., . . . Horwitz, S. M. (2019). Do Subspecialists Ask About and Refer Families with Psychosocial Concerns? A Comparison with General Pediatricians. Maternal and Child Health Journal, 23(1), 61-71. doi: 10.1007/s10995-018-2594-y

For more information about this abstract please contact juliann.reardon@yale.edu

<u>Penn Access Summer Scholars Program: A Mixed Method Analysis of a Virtual</u> Offering of the Program

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Cecilia Zhou, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Chielozor Okafor, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Jamal Hagood, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Horace DeLisser, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Racial and ethnic minorities continue to be underrepresented in medical school matriculants and in the physician workforce. Efforts to addresses these disparities have led to establishment of summer premedical enrichment programs at large, research-focused medical centers, targeting undergraduate students from groups underrepresented in medicine (URM). Although their effectiveness has been demonstrated, the costs and logistics associated with onsite programing represent potential barriers to the establishment of more of these types of enrichment programs.

Background and relevance of the study:

The Penn Access Summer Scholars (PASS) program at the Perelman School of Medicine (PSOM) targets URM undergraduate students, providing two consecutive summers of mentored research and enrichment experiences, with the goal of enabling participants' matriculation to PSOM. PASS has been an on-campus experience, but during summer 2020 virtual programming was provided due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Outcomes from the delivery of PASS as a virtual experience are presented, findings with implications for increasing the availability of these enrichment programs.

Design and Methods:

Participants in the summer 2020 virtual offering of PASS completed pre- and post-program surveys that included 5-point Likert-style and open-ended questions to determine the impact of the programing on self-assessments of participants' research skills, familiarity with the physician identity, and preparedness to be a PSOM student. Post-program, participants also assessed program administration and content.

Results:

Participants reported significant increases in their self-reported confidence in doing research, understanding of physician identity, and sense of preparedness for PSOM. The educational value of the program content, their level of engagement in the program and the overall quality of the program was rated as excellent or outstanding by large majorities of respondents. Content analyses of participant comments were consistent with these quantitative results.

Conclusions:

A pre-medical summer enrichment program targeting URM undergraduates can be successfully conducted virtually to achieve program objectives and may increase access to these types of physician pipeline initiatives.

- 1. Association of American Medical Colleges: Diversity in Medical Education: Facts and Figures.2016. http://www.aamcdiversityfactsandfigures2016.org/. Accessed December 13, 2020.
- 2. Summer Health Professions Education Program. http://www.shpep.org. Accessed December 13, 2020.

- 3. Travelers Summer Research Fellowship Program. https://medicaleducation.weill.cornell.edu/medical-education/premedical-programs/travelers-summer-research-fellowship-program. Accessed December 13, 2020
- 4. Stewart KA, Brown SL, Wrensford G, Hurley MM. Creating a Comprehensive Approach to Exposing Underrepresented Prehealth Professions Students to Clinical Medicine and Health Research. J Natl Med Assoc. 2020; 112:36-43.

For more information about this abstract please contact delisser@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

Examining the Impact of Blinding on the Assessment of Residency Selection Interviews

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Justin Clapp, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Sarah Heins, Georgetown University School of Medicine Timothy Gaulton, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Meghan Lane-Fall, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Jaya Aysola, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Dimitry Baranov, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Lee Fleisher, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine Emily Gordon, University of Pennsylvania Perelman School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This mixed methods study examined the impact of blinding on how a residency program evaluated candidate interviews.

Background and relevance of the study:

Residency programs place significant weight on the interview as a selection tool due to its ability to reveal psychosocial qualities.[1,2] However, candidates' academic metrics can bias interviewers' assessments,[3-6] lessening the diversity and inclusivity of residencies. Blinding interviewers to academic metrics is an important potential intervention for mitigation of this bias.

Design and Methods:

During the 2019-2020 residency selection season in the Department of Anesthesiology & Critical Care at the University of Pennsylvania, we randomized interview days to half blinded and half unblinded. On blinded days, interviewers did not receive applicants' USMLE scores, transcripts, or MSPE letters. Independent ratings for all interviewees were collected from faculty interviewers. Consensus ratings subsequently established by committee were collected. Rating outcomes were compared statistically. Committee meetings were audio-recorded, transcribed, and qualitatively coded.

Results:

There were no significant statistical differences in candidate rating outcomes between blinded and unblinded days. Qualitative analysis showed that on blinded days, committees spent more time discussing applicants' personality attributes and were focused less on identifying "red flags" in candidates' academic files, and interviewers were less likely to alter impressions after interviews due to having weaker predispositions about applicants. However, interviewers framed their lack of information about academic metrics as a caveat to their assessments and still formed presumptions about candidates' academic performance.

Conclusions:

Blinding had desirable effects on how committees discussed interviews, lessening their fixation on academic metrics instead of psychosocial qualities. However, interviewers still anchored their assessments to presumed academic performance despite not having access to common metrics, which may have contributed to blinding's lack of statistical effect. These findings suggest that blinding alone

may not be sufficient to consistently eliminate interviewers' tendency to bias assessments based on academic records.

References:

- 1. Stephenson-Famy A, Houmard BS, Oberoi S, Manyak A, Chiang S, Kim S. Use of the Interview in Resident Candidate Selection: A Review of the Literature. J Grad Med Educ. 2015;7(4):539-548.
- 2. Borowitz S. M., Saulsbury F. T., Wilson W. G. Information collected during the residency match process does not predict clinical performance. Arch Pediatr Adolesc Med. 2000;154(3):256–260.
- 3. Kataoka HC, Latham GP, Whyte G. The Relative Resistance of the Situational, Patterned Behavior, and Conventional Structured Interviews to Anchoring Effects. Hum Perform. 1997;10(1):47-63.
- 4. Smilen SW, Funai EF, Bianco AT. Residency selection: should interviewers be given applicants' board scores? Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2001;184(3):508-513. doi:10.1067/mob.2001.109868
- 5. Shaw DL, Martz DM, Lancaster CJ, Sade RM. Influence of medical school applicants' demographic and cognitive characteristics on interviewers' ratings of noncognitive traits. Acad Med J Assoc Am Med Coll. 1995;70(6):532-536.
- 6. Gay SE, Santen SA, Mangrulkar RS, Sisson TH, Ross PT, Zaidi NLB. The influence of MCAT and GPA preadmission academic metrics on interview scores. Adv Health Sci Educ. 2018;23(1):151-158. doi:10.1007/s10459-017-9779-9

For more information about this abstract please contact Justin.Clapp@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

<u>Childcare Insecurity as a Driver of Burnout in Pediatric Fellows</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Lillian Buchhalter, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Cynthia Mollen, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Megan Lavoie, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia Anna Weiss, Children's Hospital of Philadelphia

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The objectives of this study are to describe childcare strategies and challenges among fellow-trainees, assess financial burden of childcare, and explore childcare-related stress as a driver of burnout.

Background and relevance of the study:

Trainee burnout is recognized as a significant issue in medicine. A growing body of literature demonstrates the impact of breastfeeding1, pregnancy,1,2 and parental leave3,4 on trainee well-being, however there are few studies examining childcare2,5,6 despite the frequency of in-training parenthood.7 No studies to-date have explored the relationship between childcare, finances, and burnout. Trainees face unique childcare-related challenges, including separation from family/social networks, long and irregular hours, and a high debt-to-income ratio. All these issues have been heightened in the context of COVID-19.

Design and Methods:

We designed an online survey of fellows at our tertiary-care children's hospital using literature review, key informant interviews, and iterative pilot testing. The survey will be sent to all 300 fellows in our hospital, including fellows without children, who will serve as controls. The survey includes questions about demographics, training program features, debt burden, childcare strategies and stressors, and a validated 2-item burnout measure.

Results:

Data collection is ongoing. We will report demographics of respondents including a financial profile with average childcare costs relative to total household income and debt. We will present program features such as call participation and weekly work-hours, and a detailed description of childcare strategies and stressors. We will present burnout rates among those with and without children, and in groups with different income-to-debt ratios.

Conclusions:

We hope to draw conclusions about childcare strategies and challenges of trainees, and to elucidate the role of these issues in burnout. Our long-term objective is to create foundational research on this topic, and to broaden our scope to include resident trainees locally, and resident and fellowship trainees nationally

- 1. Mwakyanjala EJ, Cowart JB, Hayes SN, Blair JE, Maniaci MJ. Pregnancy and Parenting During Cardiology Fellowship. J Am Heart Assoc. 2019;8(14):e012137. doi:10.1161/JAHA.119.012137
- 2. Rangel EL, Castillo-Angeles M, Changala M, Haider AH, Doherty GM, Smink DS. Perspectives of pregnancy and motherhood among general surgery residents: A qualitative analysis. Am J Surg. 2018;216(4):754-759. doi:10.1016/j.amjsurg.2018.07.036
- 3. Magudia K, Bick A, Cohen J, et al. Childbearing and Family Leave Policies for Resident Physicians at Top Training Institutions. JAMA J Am Med Assoc. 2018;320(22):2372-2374. doi:10.1001/jama.2018.14414

- 4. Hariton E, Matthews B, Burns A, Akileswaran C, Berkowitz LR. Pregnancy and parental leave among obstetrics and gynecology residents: results of a nationwide survey of program directors. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 2018;219(2):199.e1-199.e8. doi:10.1016/j.ajog.2018.04.017
- 5. Kin C, Yang R, Desai P, Mueller C, Girod S. Female trainees believe that having children will negatively impact their careers: results of a quantitative survey of trainees at an academic medical center. BMC Med Educ. 2018;18(1):260. doi:10.1186/s12909-018-1373-1
- 6. Rangel EL, Smink DS, Castillo-Angeles M, et al. Pregnancy and Motherhood During Surgical Training. JAMA Surg. 2018;153(7):644-652. doi:10.1001/jamasurg.2018.0153
- 7. Blair JE, Mayer AP, Caubet SL, Norby SM, O'Connor MI, Hayes SN. Pregnancy and Parental Leave During Graduate Medical Education. Acad Med. 2016;91(7):972-978. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001006

For more information about this abstract please contact buchhaltel@chop.edu

How does having a physician-parent influence interview invitations and admittance to the Larner College of Medicine?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Akua Frimpong, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont Nicole Obongo, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont Raghav Goyal, Larner College of Medicine
Samuel Epstein, Larner College of Medicine
Shaden Eldakar-Hein, Larner College of Medicine
Christina Dawson, Larner College of Medicine
Adam Ross, Larner College of Medicine
Leigh Ann Holterman, Larner College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Does having a physician-parent correlate to receiving an interview and acceptance offer to the Robert Larner, M.D. College of Medicine (LCOM)?

Background and relevance of the study:

The purpose of this study was to ascertain the correlation between medical school applicants with at least one parent physician and interview invitations and admissions prospects to LCOM. This study may disclose a potential selective advantage of having parents in medicine.

Design and Methods:

We examined 14,664 total LCOM applicants from 2018 – 2020. 3,285 withdrew before an interview determination. As a result, this analysis included 11,379 applicants. Furthermore, we looked at the 1,730 applicants who received an interview during that same period. Of these, 36 withdrew before an admission decision. Therefore, this analysis included 1,694 applicants. We categorized the professions of applicants' parents into the following: physician, non-physician clinical, and healthcare nonclinical. We used a chi-square test to analyze the data.

Results:

There is no statistical significance between parent profession of applicants receiving interviews or admittance into LCOM when variables such as admissions docket, GPA, MCAT score, and CASPer score are controlled. Applicants with physician parents make up 20.5% of the total number of applicants invited to interview vs. 18.5% of the total cohort which applied, a difference which is not statistically significant when other factors are controlled. Applicants with physician parents make up 20.4% of all those who received interview offers and make up 20.9% of those admitted to LCOM, a non-statistically significant difference.

Conclusions:

The results suggest that a physician-parent profession does not confer selective advantage for LCOM interview invitations or admittance. Further studies can investigate if parent profession influences applicant decisions to apply to medical school or whether clinical exposure and opportunities make applicants more competitive.

References:

1. Bassett AM, Brosnan C, Southgate E, Lempp H. Transitional journeys into, and through medical education for First-in-Family

(FiF) students: a qualitative interview study. BMC Med Educ. 2018;18(1):102. Published 2018 May 9. doi:10.1186/s12909-018-1217-z

- 2. Conway-Hicks S, de Groot JM. Living in two worlds: Becoming and being a doctor among those who identify with "not from an advantaged background". Curr Probl Pediatr Adolesc Health Care. 2019;49(4):92-101. doi:10.1016/j.cppeds.2019.03.006
 3. Laband DN, Lentz BF. Self-Recruitment in the Legal Profession. Journal of Labor Economics. 1992;10(2):182-201. doi:10.1086/298284
- 4. Lentz BF, Laband DN. Why So Many Children of Doctors Become Doctors: Nepotism vs. Human Capital Transfers. The Journal of Human Resources. 1989;24(3):396-413. doi:10.2307/145820
- 5. Simmenroth-Nayda A, Görlich Y. Medical school admission test: advantages for students whose parents are medical doctors?. BMC Med Educ. 2015;15:81. Published 2015 Apr 23. doi:10.1186/s12909-015-0354-x

For more information about this abstract please contact akua.frimpong@med.uvm.edu

NBME Shelf Exam Score Stability after transition from 4-week to 2-week Neurology Clerkship Case-based Flipped Classroom Virtual Curriculum in the COVID-Era

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Ram Mani, Rutgers Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Ben Deverett, Rutgers, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Paulina Przydzial, Rutgers, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Kevin Colburn, Rutgers, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Igor Rybinnik, Rutgers, Robert Wood Johnson Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Do neurology clerkship NBME shelf exam scores differ for students taking the exam after a 2-week remote curriculum with NO PATIENT CARE compared to students taking the exam after 4-week curriculum of both didactics & direct patient care.

Background and relevance of the study:

There are mixed conclusions from studies on decreasing clerkship duration reducing NBME shelf scores. We hypothesized shelf scores would be similar taking the shelf exam after a shorter didactic rotation without patient care.

Design and Methods:

In April 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the neurology clerkship at Rutgers RWJMS switched from a 4-week clerkship (patient care with didactics) to a structure of 2-weeks virtual-only flipped classroom case-based didactics. Students were offered the opportunity to take the shelf exam after the 2-week virtual curriculum without starting the patient care portion. Exam scores for this 3-month cohort were compared to students in the earlier 4-week combined experience rotation (traditional) from July 2018 - March 2020.

Results:

323 took the shelf exam between July 2018 & June 2020. 43 of 68 (63%) of students chose to take the exam before starting the required clinical rotation. Mean score for the 323 students was 81.7 ± 6.5 (mean \pm sd). 281 students took the exam after the traditional 4-week rotation in the 2018-2020 academic years (AY). Mean scores did not differ between these 281 students and the 2-week didactic-first group (81.7 \pm 6.5 traditional vs $80.9 \pm$ 6.6 virtual, p=0.43). Sensitivity analysis showed no differences when comparing the 2-week group to the traditional group 2019-2020 AY or comparing it to the last quarter of the 2018-2019 AY traditional group.

Conclusions:

Taking the neurology clerkship exam after a 2-week flipped classroom case-based curriculum without patient care did not significantly affect scores compared those in the past 2 years taking the exam after the traditional 4-week didactic plus patient care rotation.

- 1. Bostwick, J Michael; Alexander, Cara. Shorter psychiatry clerkship length is associated with lower NBME psychiatry shelf exam performance. Acad Psychiatry , 2012, Vol.36(3), p.174-176.
- 2. Ouyang W, Cuddy MM, Swanson DB. US medical student performance on the NBME subject examination in internal

medicine: Do clerkship sequence and clerkship length matter? J Gen Intern Med. 2015;30:1307–1312.

- 3. Bostwick JM, Alexander C. Shorter psychiatry clerkship length is associated with lower NBME psychiatry shelf exam performance. Acad Psychiatry. 2012;36:174–176.
- 4. Bhatia ND, Gillespie CC, Berger AJ, Hochberg MS, Ogilvie JB. Cutting too deep? Assessing the impact of a shorter surgery clerkship on students' clinical skills and knowledge. Am J Surg. 2014;207:209–212.

For more information about this abstract please contact manira@rwjms.rutgers.edu

<u>Utilizing Case-Based Learning to Enhance Recognition of Food Insecurity by</u> Medical Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Michele Wong, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Alexis Rivera, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine Crystal Marquez, State University of New York Downstate Medical Center College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Case-based and team-based application exercises will increase clerkship medical student confidence in screening for food insecurity and improve student awareness of disparities in accessing nutritious foods.

Background and relevance of the study:

Food Insecurity is not routinely taught in clerkship medical education and yet an estimated 28% of households with children are food insecure[1] (that is, have limited access to adequate food) where Black, Latinx, and Native American households are more likely to be affected[2]. Inadequate nutrition has been associated with adverse health outcomes in children[3] and several chronic illnesses[4]; the need for increased recognition of food insecurity by clinicians is urgent.

Design and Methods:

Between July and November 2020, 104 clerkship students were offered two 90-minute nutrition sessions at a single medical school, hosted on the Zoom platform. These consisted of an 'Introduction to Nutrition' lecture and case-based application exercises, including virtual grocery shopping on a restrictive budget and a role play case to assess a family for food insecurity. Students received peer feedback using a standardized rubric and an index of resources for food-insecure individuals. A survey administered before and after the sessions assessed knowledge and student confidence via likert scale. Statistical significance was determined at P < .01 and measured using the Wilcoxon signed-rank test.

Results:

82/104 (78%) students attended both the lecture and application exercise sessions; Of those students, 100% completed both pre- and post-test surveys. Pre-session knowledge was high and not significantly impacted by the sessions. However, students reported significantly increased post-test confidence in understanding food security, determining if a patient is at risk for food insecurity, and teaching grocery shopping on a budget. 61/82 (74%) students agreed that they would utilize the session information in the future.

Conclusions:

A single two-part nutrition session significantly improved clerkship student confidence in understanding and screening for food insecurity and could have lasting impacts on a cohort of future physicians.

- 1. Bauer, L. (2020, December 02). Hungry at Thanksgiving: A Fall 2020 update on food insecurity in the U.S. Retrieved December 09, 2020, from https://www.brookings.edu/blog/up-front/2020/11/23/hungry-at-thanksgiving-a-fall-2020-update-on-food-insecurity-in-the-u-s/
- 2. Belanger, M. J., Hill, M. A., Angelidi, A. M., Dalamaga, M., Sowers, J. R., & Mantzoros, C. S. (2020). Covid-19 and disparities in nutrition and obesity. New England Journal of Medicine, 383(11), e69.
- 3. Key Statistics & Graphics. (2019). Retrieved December 09, 2020, from https://www.ers.usda.gov/topics/food-nutrition <a href="https://www.ers.usda.

4. Cook, J. T., Frank, D. A., Berkowitz, C., Black, M. M., Casey, P. H., Cutts, D. B., ... & Heeren, T. (2004). Food insecurity is associated with adverse health outcomes among human infants and toddlers. The Journal of nutrition, 134(6), 1432-1438. For more information about this abstract please contact michele.wong@downstate.edu

The Academic Front Line: A Survey Evaluating the Impact of Anti-Racism Events and Service on Black Medical Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Cheyenne Williams, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Tasha Posid, Department of Urology, The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Alicia Scimeca, Department of Urology, The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Dinah Diab, Department of Urology, The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center Cheryl T Lee, Department of Urology, The Ohio State University Wexner Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To characterize Black medical students' participation in initiatives for racial equity and to assess the academic impact and perceived merits of their institutional service.

Background and relevance of the study:

Anti-racist initiatives have recently grown as a result of continued police brutality and racism against Black Americans[1,2]. Historically, medical students are significant contributors to social activism in medicine, and minority students may additionally feel an increased obligation to participate[3,4]. However, it is currently unclear how this service among minority students may increase "the minority tax" and limit bandwidth for other academic endeavors[5,6].

Design and Methods:

A 39-item survey was distributed online to members of Student National Medical Association (SNMA). The study periods of interest were prior to and during the time of mass social movements for racial justice following June 2020 [7]. The survey collected participants' demographic background, time commitments to academic/diversity activities, perceptions of academic performance, and motivations/perceptions for participating in such initiatives.

Results:

Responses from 463 survey participants were included. Since June 2020, weekly time spent on clinical rotations (M=9.9 hr vs. M=11.5 hr, p=0.003), town halls (M=4.2 hr vs. M=5.0 hr, p<0.001), and service/extracurriculars related to racial diversity increased (M=4.7 hr vs. M=5.7 hr, p<0.001), whereas time spent on classroom-based coursework decreased (M=8.9 hr vs. M=8.0 hr, p=0.029). Respondents reported that recent participation in diversity initiatives prevented them from pursuing coursework (p<0.001), negatively impacted their academic performance (p<0.001), and has not been viewed as equally meritorious when compared to other student activities (p<0.001). Students also indicated that they felt it was more important now to participate in diversity and inclusion events (p=0.02).

Conclusions:

Black medical students report that the recent anti-racism movements have influenced their academic time-commitments, and participating in service for racial equity has negatively impacted their academic success. Institutions should be aware of this tax on Black students and recognize the merits of this advocacy work.

References:

1. Edwards, F., Lee, H., & Esposito, M. (2019). Risk of being killed by police use of force in the United States by age, race–ethnicity, and sex. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 116(34), 16793-16798.

- 2. van Dorn, A., Cooney, R. E., & Sabin, M. L. (2020). COVID-19 exacerbating inequalities in the US. Lancet (London, England), 395(10232), 1243.
- 3. Devakumar, D., Selvarajah, S., Shannon, G., Muraya, K., Lasoye, S., Corona, S., ... & Achiume, E. T. (2020). Racism, the public health crisis we can no longer ignore. Lancet (London, England).
- 4. Hexom, B. (2004). Beyond medical school: The frontier of medical activism. AMA Journal of Ethics, 6(1), 41-43.
- 5. Linder, C., Quaye, S. J., Lange, A. C., Roberts, R. E., Lacy, M. C., & Okello, W. K. (2019). " A Student Should Have the Privilege of Just Being a Student": Student Activism as Labor. The Review of Higher Education, 42(5), 37-62.
- 6. Rodríguez, J. E., Campbell, K. M., & Pololi, L. H. (2015). Addressing disparities in academic medicine: what of the minority tax?. BMC Medical Education, 15(1), 1-5.
- 7.Okaka, Y., AbdelHameid, D., Olson, R. M., Kwarteng-Siaw, M., Spanos, N., & Stone, V. E. (2020). Rallying Against Racism: Hospitals Join the Fight for Racial Justice. Journal of General Internal Medicine, 1-3.

For more information about this abstract please contact cheyenne.williams@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

<u>Integration of Narrative Medicine into Primary Care Residency Curricula</u> <u>Improves Resident Connectedness</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Region: NEGEA

Farah Hussain, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Michelle Silver, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania John Heintz, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Objective 1: To determine the effects of introducing a Narrative Medicine (NM) curriculum into the Primary Care curriculum on resident wellbeing.

Objective 2: To explore the most impactful components of a NM curriculum on resident experiences.

Background and relevance of the study:

Narrative Medicine (NM) is a novel activity that has been shown to combat burnout in learners by providing the opportunity for reflection and normalization of traumatic experiences during training. In this study, a narrative medicine curriculum was introduced into the Primary Care residency curriculum in an effort to study the effects of NM on resident wellbeing and social connectedness.

Design and Methods:

Each Primary Care resident participated in a total of 4 one-hour NM sessions in protected didactic time. Each of the sessions focused on a different theme or topic. Residents spent 5-7 minutes writing in response to the prompt, then shared their writing with the group, and completed an anonymous evaluation.

Results:

Residents were given a survey using a Likert scale of (1) not at all useful to (5) extremely useful. The majority of residents rated the sessions 4-5/5 in terms of the effectiveness of using pieces of literature and art for reflection. All residents rated the group discussion portion as extremely useful (5/5). Interestingly, the writing component of the sessions were considered to be least useful for reflection. The majority of write-in comments stated that sharing stories and experiences as the most valuable aspect of this curriculum. Residents stated that "discussing and debriefing" and "hearing and sharing experiences" with their peers was a unique component of narrative medicine and provided them with the ability to increase their emotional connectedness to each other.

Conclusions:

Our study suggests that the opportunity for residents to reflect on experiences with their peers through storytelling was the most valuable component of the novel integration of narrative medicine into traditional residency curricula.

- 1. Wald H, Weiss B. Making it "More Real": Using Personal Narrative in Faculty Feedback to a Medical Student's Reflective Writing An Illustrative Exemplar. MedEd Publish. 2018;7(3):33.
- 2. Wald HS, Anthony D, Hutchinson TA, Liben S, Smilovitch M, Donato AA. Professional identity formation in medical education for humanistic, resilient physicians: pedagogic strategies for bridging theory to practice. Acad Med. 2015;90(6):753-760.
- 3. Dyrbye LN, Thomas MR, Massie FS, et al. Burnout and suicidal ideation among U.S. medical students. Annals of internal medicine. 2008;149(5):334-341.
- 4. West CP, Dyrbye LN, Erwin PJ, Shanafelt TD. Interventions to prevent and reduce physician burnout: a systematic review and

meta-analysis. Lancet. 2016;388(10057):2272-2281.

- 5. Charon R, Hermann N, Devlin MJ. Close Reading and Creative Writing in Clinical Education: Teaching Attention, Representation, and Affiliation. Acad Med. 2016;91(3):345-350.
- 6. Neumann M, Edelhauser F, Tauschel D, et al. Empathy decline and its reasons: a systematic review of studies with medical students and residents. Acad Med. 2011;86(8):996-1009.
- 7. Dyrbye LN, Massie FS, Jr., Eacker A, et al. Relationship between burnout and professional conduct and attitudes among US medical students. Jama. 2010;304(11):1173-1180.
- 8. Hojat M. Empathy in health professions education and patient care. Springer International. 2016.
- 9. Lee R, Draper M, Lee S. Social connectedness, dysfunctional interpersonal behaviors, and psychological distress: Testing a mediator model. Journal of Counseling Psychology. 2001;48(3):310-318.

For more information about this abstract please contact Farah.hussain@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

The FOCUS Medical Student Fellowship: Developing leadership in women's health & gender-based medicine research

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Hillary Bogner, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Stephanie Abbuhl, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Lucy Wolf Tuton, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Bridget Dougherty, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Diana Zarowin, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Alejandra Guevara, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Heather McClintock, Arcadia University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What impact does the FOCUS on Health & Leadership for Women (FOCUS) Medical Student Fellowship (MSF) in women's health and gender-based medicine have on recipients' scholarship and future academic careers.

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical student research training is critical for developing future women's health leaders who are adept at conducting high-impact research. This study explores the association of an innovative medical student experience in women's health and gender-based medicine research on subsequent fellowship-related publications and career outcomes, contributing to the body of knowledge on the influence of a mentored research leadership program for medical students on academic professional development.

Design and Methods:

Targeted searches of fellowship recipients and their fellowship mentors were conducted in PubMed and Scopus from 2001–2017. Prior student fellows were also contacted to assess whether they held academic positions.

Results:

Since 2001, funds have been secured to support a total of 83 students (69 women, 14 men) in a mentored research experience in women's health and gender-based medicine. In total, 48 out of the 83 (57.8%) medical student fellowship recipients published at least one peer-reviewed research paper or scientific review related to their research project. Of the 50 prior recipients with a least five years of follow-up data (41 women, 9 men), 26 (52%) were in academic careers.

Conclusions:

The FOCUS MSF program is a model of research training and career mentoring associated with markers of leadership, academic success, and proclivity. This unique research experience provides medical students with the opportunity to gain knowledge, skills, and confidence to not only perform high-quality women's health research but also critically evaluate gender-based biological and social differences and apply inferences in their research and clinical careers. Programs such as the FOCUS MSF could be developed at other institutions to promote interest and skills in women's health and gender-based medicine.

References:

1. Amgad, M., Man Kin Tsui, M., Liptrott, S.J. and Shash, E. (2015). "Medical Student Research: An Integrated Mixed-Methods

Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis." PLoS One, Vol. 10 No. (6), pp. e0127470.

- 2. Beery, A.K. and Zucker, I. (2011). "Sex bias in neuroscience and biomedical research." Neurosci Biobehav Rev, Vol. 35 No. (3), pp. 565-572.
- 3. Clayton, J.A. (2016). "Studying both sexes: a guiding principle for biomedicine." FASEB J, Vol. 30 No. (2), pp. 519-524.
- 4. Committee on Maximizing the Potential of Women in Academic Science and Engineering (2007). Beyond Bias and Barriers: Fulfilling the Potential of Women in Academic Science and Engineering. Washington, D.C., The National Academies Press.
- 5. Eshera, N., Itana, H., Zhang, L., Soon, G. and Fadiran, E.O. (2015). "Demographics of clinical trials participants in pivotal clinical trials for new molecular entity drugs and biologics approved by FDA From 2010 to 2012." Am J Ther, Vol. 22 No. (6), pp. 435-455.
- 6. Feuerstein, I.M., Jenkins, M.R., Kornstein, S.G., Lauer, M.S., Scott, P.E., Raju, T.N.K., Johnson, T., Devaney, S., Lolic, M., Henderson, M. and Clayton, J.A. (2018). "Working Together to Address Women's Health in Research and Drug Development: Summary of the 2017 Women's Health Congress Preconference Symposium." J Womens Health (Larchmt), Vol. 27 No. (10), pp. 1195-1203.
- 7. Foulkes, M.A. (2011). "After inclusion, information and inference: reporting on clinical trials results after 15 years of monitoring inclusion of women." J Womens Health (Larchmt), Vol. 20 No. (6), pp. 829-836.
- 8. Frenk, J., Chen, L., Bhutta, Z.A., Cohen, J., Crisp, N., Evans, T., Fineberg, H., Garcia, P., Ke, Y., Kelley, P., Kistnasamy, B., Meleis, A., Naylor, D., Pablos-Mendez, A., Reddy, S., Scrimshaw, S., Sepulveda, J., Serwadda, D. and Zurayk, H. (2010). "Health professionals for a new century: transforming education to strengthen health systems in an interdependent world." Lancet, Vol. 376 No. (9756), pp. 1923-1958.
- 9. Guelich, J.M., Singer, B.H., Castro, M.C. and Rosenberg, L.E. (2002). "A gender gap in the next generation of physician-scientists: medical student interest and participation in research." J Investig Med, Vol. 50 No. (6), pp. 412-418.
- 10. Henrich, J.B., Viscoli, C.M. and Abraham, G.D. (2008). "Medical students' assessment of education and training in women's health and in sex and gender differences." J Womens Health (Larchmt), Vol. 17 No. (5), pp. 815-827.
- 11. Jacobs, C.D. and Cross, P.C. (1995). "The value of medical student research: the experience at Stanford University School of Medicine." Med Educ, Vol. 29 No. (5), pp. 342-346.
- 12. Liu, K.A. and Mager, N.A. (2016). "Women's involvement in clinical trials: historical perspective and future implications." Pharm Pract (Granada), Vol. 14 No. (1), pp. 708.
- 13. Miller, V.M., Flynn, P.M. and Lindor, K.D. (2012). "Evaluating sex and gender competencies in the medical curriculum: a case study." Gend Med, Vol. 9 No. (3), pp. 180-186 e183.
- 14. Miller, V.M., Rice, M., Schiebinger, L., Jenkins, M.R., Werbinski, J., Nunez, A., Wood, S., Viggiano, T.R. and Shuster, L.T. (2013). "Embedding concepts of sex and gender health differences into medical curricula." J Womens Health (Larchmt), Vol. 22 No. (3), pp. 194-202.
- 15. Pfleiderer, B., Burghaus, D., Bayer, G., Kindler-Rohrborn, A., Heue, M. and Becker, J.C. (2012). "Integration of gender-specific aspects into medical curricula--status quo and future perspectives." GMS Z Med Ausbild, Vol. 29 No. (5), pp. Doc65.
- 16. Pinn, V.W. (2003). "Sex and gender factors in medical studies: implications for health and clinical practice." JAMA, Vol. 289 No. (4), pp. 397-400.
- 17. Potluri, T., Engle, K., Fink, A.L., Vom Steeg, L.G. and Klein, S.L. (2017). "Sex Reporting in Preclinical Microbiological and Immunological Research." MBio, Vol. 8 No. (6), pp.
- 18. Risberg, G., Johansson, E.E., Westman, G. and Hamberg, K. (2003). "Gender in medicine an issue for women only? A survey of physician teachers' gender attitudes." Int J Equity Health, Vol. 2 No. (1), pp. 10.

For more information about this abstract please contact bridget.dougherty2@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

Associations of personality and perceptions of online learning in students required to transition compared to those who chose online learning

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Victoria Hart, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont Leigh Ann Holterman, Larner College of Medicine

Stephen Everse, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont Kathryn Huggett, Robert Larner, M.D., College of Medicine at the University of Vermont

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Do associations between personality type and perceptions of online learning differ between students who were forced to transition to online learning versus those who chose online coursework?

Background and relevance of the study:

Online medical education may persist during the COVID-19 pandemic and years following. Literature suggests that student perceptions of online learning differ based on personality and motivation for online coursework (Keller, 2013; Rios, 2019). Understanding associations between personality and perceptions may assist faculty in preparing successful online curriculums.

Design and Methods:

We surveyed the medical student class of 2022, who were forced to transition to online learning during the pandemic, medical student class of 2024, who expected some online learning due to the pandemic, and Master of Public Health (MPH) students, who chose a fully online program and are the comparison group. Participants responded to validated survey instruments regarding personality type (John, 1991, 2008) and perceptions of online learning (Keller, 2013).

Results:

We received 116 responses (co2022: 33, co2024: 45, MPH: 38). Significant differences in perception of online courses were seen between all cohorts, with co2022 having the least favorable perceptions and MPH students having the most favorable (co2022: β =-1.37 p<.01; co2024: β =-.81, p<.01; MPH: Ref). Among MPH students, conscientiousness was positively correlated with engagement in (R=.35, p=.03) and perceived value from (R=.37, p=.02) online courses and negatively correlated with anxiety and frustration with online courses (R=-.34, p=.03). No personality and perception correlations were seen in co2022 or co2024.

Conclusions:

The varied findings between MPH and medical students indicate differences between students who chose online learning compared to those forced to transition. The lack of associations between personality and perceptions of online learning for medical students suggests other mechanisms affect their perceptions, but more research is needed. Recognizing areas in which medical students negatively perceive online learning may support efforts to enhance their learning while online education persists.

- 1. Keller H, Karau SJ. The importance of personality in students' perceptions of the online learning experience. Comput. Human Behav. 2013;29(6):2494-500.
- 2. Rios T. The Relationship between Students' Personalities and Their Perception of Online Course Experiences. J Educ. Online. 2019;16(1):n1.
- 3. John OP, Donahue EM, Kentle RL. Big five inventory. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology. 1991.

4. John OP, Naumann LP, Soto CJ. Paradigm shift to the integrative big five trait taxonomy. Handbook of personality: Theory and research. 2008;3(2):114-58.

For more information about this abstract please contact victoria.hart@med.uvm.edu

<u>Comparison of exam performance between problem-based learning and non-problem based learning questions</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Lora Kasselman, New York University Long Island School of Medicine Veronica Rodriguez, New York University Long Island School of Medicine Orla O'Donoghue, New York University Long Island School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How does exam performance compare between problem-based learning (PBL) and non-PBL learning objectives?

Background and relevance of the study:

Problem Based Learning (PBL) was employed for all incoming students in 2019 (n=24) at New York University Long Island School of Medicine (NYULISOM) to meet the Liaison Committee for Medical Education self-directed, life-long learning standards. Because NYULISOM is a three-year accelerated curriculum, learning objectives (LOs) placed in PBL sessions were predominantly exclusive to PBL, and not taught in any other non-PBL sessions. Most curricula that use PBL embed learning objectives in their PBL sessions but these LOs are typically supportive of LOs that have been (or will be) delivered in non-PBL sessions. Conflicting data exists regarding the efficacy of learning content exclusively in a PBL format. Comparing student exam performance on PBL versus non-PBL LOs may suggest that students can successfully acquire knowledge from LOs exclusive to PBL without additional non-PBL time dedicated to the same LOs.

Design and Methods:

Every 2 weeks, USMLE-style multiple choice exams are given with questions from both PBL and non-PBL sessions. These questions are based on the LOs for each session and are tagged as being from a PBL or non-PBL session. Performance on all PBL-tagged questions (n=28) and 28 randomly chosen non-PBL questions were extracted from the basic science curriculum. A paired t-test was performed comparing student performance on PBL versus non-PBL questions. Question quality was assessed using an unpaired t-test on point biserial values between PBL versus non-PBL.

Results:

There was no significant difference in question quality between PBL and non-PBL questions (p=0.29). Student PBL performance (mean = 83.1%, SD = 14.8%) was significantly higher than non-PBL performance (mean = 78.0%, SD = 17.1%), p=0.009.

Conclusions:

Student performance on PBL-exclusive LOs was better than performance on non-PBL LOs indicating successful acquisition of knowledge from content delivered exclusively in a PBL format.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact lorar.kasselman@nyulangone.org

A Silver Lining of COVID-19 – Innovations Within Internal Medicine Residency Programs and Increased Resident Wellness

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Larissa Wietlisbach, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania David Asch, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Whitney Eriksen, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Frances Barg, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Lisa Bellini, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Sanjay Desai, Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine Abdul-Rakeem Yakubu, University of Pennsylvania Judy Shea, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study asked, "how did COVID-19 and pandemic-related program changes affect internal medicine residents' wellness?"

Background and relevance of the study:

Burnout is associated with negative health and workplace outcomes.1 It is estimated that 46% of healthcare workers experience burnout, with residents displaying greater proportions of burnout than medical students, fellows, and attendings.2-4 The COVID-19 pandemic may have heightened the risk of resident burnout by introducing new stressors.

Design and Methods:

In academic year 2019-2020, 394 residents from four internal medicine residency programs in the Northeast were invited to participate in 18 surveys on wellness, receiving open-ended survey prompts about every two weeks. In March 2020, the prompts were refocused on COVID-19. Data from four COVID-19-related prompts were coded by four trained coders, using content analysis techniques.

Results:

A total of 186 residents expressed interest in participating; 88 were randomly selected to enroll. The average response rate was 89%. The results revealed four main themes. First, the early days of the pandemic were fear- and anxiety-provoking for residents; they worried about availability of PPE, passing COVID-19 onto family members and patients, and the uncertainty of the future. Second, program changes such as work from home were unsettling initially, but soon the residents appreciated the time to virtually socialize, exercise, rest, and reflect. Third, the residents felt confusion and frustration with communication from program leaders in the early days, but administrative leaders quickly adapted to increase the frequency and clarity of COVID-19 messaging. Fourth, most residents expressed gratitude for program innovations made in response to COVID-19, including shorter shifts, the removal of prerounding, and the use of telemedicine.

Conclusions:

The COVID-19 pandemic added many challenges to residency programs and stressors to residents. In response, residency program leaders implemented systemic innovations like improved communication, favorable schedules, and more flexible learning options that boosted resident wellness.

References:

- 1. Dyrbye LN, Shanafelt TD, Sinsky CA, et al. Burnout among health care professionals: A call to explore and address this underrecognized threat to safe, high-quality care. NAM Perspectives. 2017;7:1-11. doi: 10.31478/201707b
- 2. Shanafelt TD, Boone S, Tan L, et al. Burnout and satisfaction with work-life balance among US physicians relative to the general US population. Arch Intern Med. 2012;172(18):1377-1385. doi:10.1001/archinternmed.2012.3199
- 3. Prentice S, Dorstyn D, Benson J, Elliott T. Burnout Levels and Patterns in Postgraduate Medical Trainees: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. Acad Med. 2020;95(9):1444-1454. doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000003379
- 4. Edmondson EK, Kumar AA, Smith SM. Creating a Culture of Wellness in Residency. Acad Med. 2018;93(7):966-968. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000002250
- 5. Kannampallil TG, Goss CW, Evanoff BA, Strickland JR, McAlister RP, Duncan J. Exposure to COVID-19 patients increases physician trainee stress and burnout. PLoS One. 2020;15(8):e0237301. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0237301
- 6. He K, Stolarski A, Whang E, Kristo G. Addressing General Surgery Residents' Concerns in the Early Phase of the COVID-19 Pandemic. J Surg Educ. 2020;77(4):735-738. doi:10.1016/j.jsurg.2020.04.003
- 7. Kogan M, Klein SE, Hannon CP, Nolte MT. Orthopaedic Education During the COVID-19 Pandemic. J Am Acad Orthop Surg. 2020;28(11). doi:10.5435/JAAOS-D-20-00292
- 8. Dedeilia A, Sotiropoulos MG, Hanrahan JG, Janga D, Dedeilias P, Sideris M. Medical and Surgical Education Challenges and Innovations in the COVID-19 Era: A Systematic Review. In Vivo. 2020;34(3 Suppl):1603-1611. doi:10.21873/invivo.11950

For more information about this abstract please contact larissa.wietlisbach@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

<u>Assessing medical students motivations for, and the effects of, virtual and in-</u>person volunteering during the COVID-19 pandemic

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Authors:

Region: NEGEA

Rebecca Jennings, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Sarah Grosser, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Victoria Ende, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Hannah Phillips, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Ian Outhwaite, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Mansi Chandra, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Stephen Post, Stony Brook University School of Medicine Wei-Hsin Lu, Stony Brook University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study investigates the motivations behind medical students participating in volunteering and explores the protective nature of volunteering on student wellbeing and social-emotional capabilities.

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical students with high levels of exhaustion, overall burnout, and lower GPAs are less involved in extracurricular activities, implying a potential role for volunteering in mitigating the effects of student stress (Shadid et al., 2020). Understanding students' motivations for volunteering could provide insight into its perceived utility and allow medical schools to assess the impacts of volunteering. The effects of virtual and in-person volunteering or student motivation to volunteer during a time of excess stress (i.e. the COVID-19 pandemic) is not yet known.

Design and Methods:

An anonymous survey was administered between March-May, 2020 to all enrolled medical students. Motivations to volunteer were assessed by the validated Volunteer Functions Inventory (VFI). Impact was assessed by yes/no questions on whether volunteering during the COVID-19 crisis affected biopsychosocial measures.

Results:

A total of 94 students completed the survey. Volunteering increased self-perceived empathy, compassion, resilience, and ability to cope with COVID-19 in 62.7%, 80.4%, 68.6%, and 80.4% of M1-M4 students respectively. High VFI Values subscale scores were seen, indicating that motivations to volunteer were based on altruistic and humanitarian concerns. Student volunteers who stated increased self-perceived levels of empathy, resilience, and an ability to cope with COVID-19 had significantly higher VFI Values scores (p=0.024; p<0.001; and p=0.046 respectively). A higher percentage of volunteers who had patient contact (75.8%) reported an increase in empathy than those who did not (35.3%, p=0.012).

Conclusions:

Results support the positive impact volunteering has on the subjective experiences of medical students at the height of the initial COVID-19 wave. Motivations for volunteering might mediate the types of volunteering that students participate in, as well as the potential benefits of volunteering.

References:

Shadid, A., Shadid, A.M., Shadid, A., Almutairi, F.E., Almotairi, K.E., Aldarwish, T., Alzamil, O., Alkholaiwi, F., & Khan, S.-U.-D. (2020). Stress, Burnout, and Associated Risk Factors in Medical Students. Cureus, 12(1): e6633. https://doi.org/10.7759/cureus.6633

For more information about this abstract please contact rebeccabjennings@gmail.com

Effects of Pass/Fail Grading on Clerkship NBME Subject Exam Performance

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Nina Mingioni, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Anita Rawls, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Katherine Berg, Sidney Kimmel Medical College, Thomas Jefferson University Deborah Ziring, Sidney Kimmel Medical College-Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Does pass/fail grading on the NBME Subject Examination (SE), rather than the actual score as a component to final clerkship grade, affect SE performance?

Background and relevance of the study:

Curricular redesign forced clerkship duration change to avoid overlapping student cohorts. Surgery, Pediatrics, Obstetrics/Gynecology, Psychiatry, and Family Medicine Clerkships were reduced from 6 to 5 weeks, and Internal Medicine from 8 to 6 weeks. To increase student receptivity to this change, grading changed to require passing SE rather than the actual score as a fraction of a final grade. Previous studies demonstrated that clerkship duration does not affect SE performance (1,2).

Design and Methods:

We analyzed exam performance during the intervention year (AY19) as compared to two previous years and included first-time test takers of SE, excluding students who were missing at least one SE score (N=756). The cohorts were created based on the academic year in which the shelf exams were taken. Welch's T-test with the Tukey-Kramer correction was used to determine group differences in performance on USMLE Step1, SE, and Step 2 CK.

Results:

There was no difference among cohorts' USMLE Step 1 scores, suggesting groups were similar before starting clerkships. While scores for all six clerkship SE decreased during the intervention year, only Internal Medicine and Obstetrics/Gynecology SE scores were significantly lower for AY18 vs AY17 and AY18 (p<0.001 for each). Psychiatry SE scores were also lower (AY19 vs AY17, p=0.005, and AY18, p<0.001), but there was also a difference between AY17 vs AY18 (p=0.00), confounding this finding. Step 2 CK performance did not differ among 3 cohorts.

Conclusions:

In student cohorts that are similar at baseline, pass/fail scoring might negatively affect the SE performance for some clerkships. However, this change does not affect Step 2 CK performance.

References:

- 1. Monrad SU, Zaidi NLB, Gruppen LD, et al. Does Reducing Clerkship Lengths by 25% Affect Medical Student Performance and Perceptions? Acad Med. 2018;93(12):1833-1840.
- 2. Fitz MM, Adams W, Haist SA, et al. Which Internal Medicine Clerkship Characteristics Are Associated With Students' Performance on the NBME Medicine Subject Exam? A Multi-Institutional Analysis. Acad Med. Published online March 17, 2020. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000003322

For more information about this abstract please contact nina.mingioni@jefferson.edu

<u>Preparing for Residency Applications During COVID-19: Medical Student</u> Experiences at a Single Institution

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Gabrielle Steinl, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Latoya Stewart, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Rahul Sharma, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Aubrie Swan Sein, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Catherine McManus, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Rachel Liou, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons James Lee, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons Jennifer Kuo, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our goal was to quantitatively describe the experiences of medical students applying to residency in the 2020-21 cycle given the impact of the COVID-19.

Background and relevance of the study:

During the pandemic, medical schools temporarily paused clinical rotations, away rotations were suspended, and residency interviews became virtual. Though all necessary to limit the spread of COVID-19—and to avoid inequalities with some regions being disproportionately impacted—these difficult decisions have had significant impact on students' perspectives on applying to residency [1].

Design and Methods:

An anonymous survey was distributed to students who were temporarily removed from clinical rotations, asking a variety of questions about their experiences outside of the hospital. Students graduating in 2021 were asked specifically about deciding on a specialty, away rotation plans, virtual residency interviews, and confidence in ability to match.

Results:

148 of 316 students (47%) responded. 71 were applying to residency this cycle. Without clinical experiences, "talking with residents or attendings" was the most common resource used to finalize specialty choice (54% of students). To keep up medical knowledge for eventual sub-internships, students found commercially available subscription services and question banks to be the most valuable. Most students had planned (55%) or at least considered (18%) away rotations. Regarding virtual interviews, the top concerns students endorsed were "not being able to get a feel for a program" (89%), "connecting with an interviewer and making a lasting impression" (79%), and "programs receiving more applications" (79%). Student confidence in matching (scale of 0-10) declined modestly from 7.6 \pm 1.9 to 7.1 \pm 2.3 after the pandemic (p=0.03).

Conclusions:

Students understandably have multiple concerns about the 2020-21 residency application cycle, particularly attempting to get a feel for a program virtually. Future studies are needed to determine the impacts, positive or negative, of virtual residency interviews, and how to best support students in a cycle complicated by a pandemic.

References:

1. Lucey CR, Johnston SC. The Transformational Effects of COVID-19 on Medical Education. JAMA. 2020 Sep 15;324(11):1033-1034. doi: 10.1001/jama.2020.14136. PMID: 32857137.

For more information about this abstract please contact gks2128@cumc.columbia.edu

The Impact of Socioeconomic Factors on Medical School Acceptance Rates

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster

Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Michael Perez, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Cheyenne Williams, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Neha Vapiwala, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania Judy Shea, Perelman School of Medicine at the University of Pennsylvania

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To examine U.S. medical school acceptance rates across familial income and parental education levels and identify applicant factors predictive of medical school acceptance.

Background and relevance of the study:

Seventy-five percent of medical students hail from families in the top two income quintiles[1]. Characterizing bottlenecks along the pre-medical pipeline could inform initiatives that increase representation of medical school matriculants from all socioeconomic backgrounds[2].

Design and Methods:

AMCAS de-identified data were obtained for all medical school applicants from 2014-2019. Descriptive statistical analyses assessed acceptance rates, MCAT scores, and GPAs, stratified by applicant's family income and parents' education. Low-income was defined as reporting a childhood family income < \$75,000, and first-generation status was defined as having no parent with a bachelor's degree. Multivariate regression analysis modeled effects of MCAT, GPA, race/ethnicity, first-generation status, and low-income status on acceptance to at least one MD program.

Results:

AMCAS data from 312,898 applicants were analyzed. The overall acceptance rate over the study period was 42.3%. Low-income applicants and first-generation applicants' acceptance rates were 36.0% (38,674/107,396) and 32.7% (19,701/60,328), respectively. On univariate analysis, acceptance was negatively associated with family income (OR: 0.602, p = < 0.001, CI: 0.592,0.612) and parental education (OR: 0.581, p = < 0.001, CI: 0.570,0.592). On multivariate analysis, among those with MCAT2015 scores (n = 142,961), medical school acceptance was most affected by average science GPA (OR: 6.63, p = < 0.001, CI: 6.345,6.918), UIM identity(OR: 5.119, p= < 0.001, CI: 4.923,5.323), and MCAT score (OR: 1.186, p = < 0.001, CI: 1.184,1.189). Low-income status (OR: 0.968, p = < 0.05, CI: 0.938, 0.999) was negatively associated with acceptance; however, first-generation status (OR: 0.994, p = < 0.758) was not associated.

Conclusions:

First-generation and low-income applicants experience lower medical school acceptance rates, but high grades and test scores mediate the effect, in combination with UiM status. These applicant populations deserve increased support and mentorship to achieve proportional representation amongst medical students.

References:

- 1. Youngclaus, J., & Roskovensky, L. (2018). An updated look at the economic diversity of US medical students. AAMC Anal Brief, 18(5), 1-3.
- 2. Grbic, D., Jones, D. J., & Case, S. T. (2015). The role of socioeconomic status in medical school admissions: validation of a socioeconomic indicator for use in medical school admissions. Academic Medicine, 90(7), 953-960.

For more information about this abstract please contact cheyenne.williams@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

<u>Project Inclusive Genetics: Exploring the impact of training on patient-centered</u> counseling on physical disability bias in the prenatal setting

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Emma Vaimberg, Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine
Lindsay Demers, Boston University School of Medicine
Eric Ford, Story Street Consulting
Maya Sabatello, Columbia University
Blair Stevens, McGovern Medical School at the University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston
Shoumita Dasgupta, Boston University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The goal of this study was to explore the presence of bias against people with physical disability (PD) among a heterogeneous group of healthcare workers and trainees and to evaluate the effect of implicit association testing (IAT) and an educational module on this bias.

Background and relevance of the study:

Many studies have demonstrated that unconscious, or implicit, bias held by healthcare providers can negatively impact patient encounters. This phenomenon has been observed numerous times in the context of racial bias [1,2,3,4]. Importantly, previous studies examining racial and socioeconomic biases have shown effective educational interventions that decrease IAT scores, indicating a decrease in implicit bias [5, 6].

Design and Methods:

The study was composed of a one-hour web-based survey and an educational module on the principles of patient-centered counseling. The survey included an explicit disability bias assessment, disability IATs, demographic collection, and pre- and post- module clinical vignettes of prenatal patient scenarios. Participants indicated their personal preferences on genetic testing and termination as well as provided counseling to hypothetical patients.

Results:

Among the 335 participants, there were both explicit and implicit biases towards individuals with PDs. Prior to the educational module, when respondents were tasked with providing genetic testing recommendations, implicit biases and personal preferences for testing and termination influenced respondents' clinical recommendations. Having previous professional experience with individuals with disabilities diminished biased clinical recommendations prior to the intervention. In response to the IAT and educational intervention, the effect of implicit bias and personal preferences on clinical recommendations decreased.

Conclusions:

This study demonstrates how bias against a marginalized group exists within the medical community and that personal opinions can impact clinical counseling. Our findings suggest that there are strategies that can be easily implemented into curricula to address disability bias, including formal educational interventions and the addition of professional experiences into healthcare professional training programs.

References:

- 1. Hoffman, K.M., et al., Racial bias in pain assessment and treatment recommendations, and false beliefs about biological differences between blacks and whites. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences, 2016. 113(16): p. 4296-4301.
- 2. Green, A.R., et al., Implicit bias among physicians and its prediction of thrombolysis decisions for black and white patients. Journal of general internal medicine, 2007. 22(9): p. 1231-1238.
- 3. Wang, L., et al., Health outcomes in US children with abdominal pain at major emergency departments associated with race and socioeconomic status. PloS one, 2015. 10(8): p. e0132758.
- 4. Cooper, L.A., et al., The associations of clinicians' implicit attitudes about race with medical visit communication and patient ratings of interpersonal care. American journal of public health, 2012. 102(5): p. 979-987.
- 5. van Ryn, M., et al., Psychosocial predictors of attitudes toward physician empathy in clinical encounters among 4732 1st year medical students: A report from the CHANGES study. Patient education and counseling, 2014. 96(3): p. 367-375.
- 6. Devine, P.G., et al., Long-term reduction in implicit race bias: A prejudice habit-breaking intervention. Journal of experimental social psychology, 2012. 48(6): p. 1267-1278.
- 7. Ryan, T.A. and K. Scior, Medical students' attitudes towards people with intellectual disabilities: A literature review. Research in developmental disabilities, 2014. 35(10): p. 2316-2328.
- 8. Ryan, T.A. and K. Scior, Medical students' attitudes towards health Care for People with intellectual disabilities: a qualitative study. Journal of Applied Research in Intellectual Disabilities, 2016. 29(6): p. 508-518.
- 9. Satchidanand, N., et al., Attitudes of healthcare students and professionals toward patients with physical disability: a systematic review. American Journal of Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation, 2012. 91(6): p. 533-545.
- 10. Archambault, M.E., et al., Utilizing Implicit Association Testing to Promote Awareness of Biases Regarding Age and Disability. Journal of Physician Assistant Education (Physician Assistant Education Association), 2008. 19(4).
- 11. Greenwald, A.G., D.E. McGhee, and J.L. Schwartz, Measuring individual differences in implicit cognition: the implicit association test. Journal of personality and social psychology, 1998. 74(6): p. 1464.
- 12. Sukhera, J. and C. Watling, A framework for integrating implicit bias recognition into health professions education. Academic Medicine, 2018. 93(1): p. 35-40.
- 13. Sukhera, J., C.J. Watling, and C.M. Gonzalez, Implicit Bias in Health Professions: From Recognition to Transformation. Academic Medicine, 2020. 95(5): p. 717-723.
- 14. Gonzalez, C.M., et al., How to make or break implicit bias instruction: implications for curriculum development. Academic medicine: journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges, 2018. 93(11): p. S74.
- 15. Ratliff, K., et al. Project Implicit. Available from: https://implicit.harvard.edu/implicit/aboutus.html.
- 16. Gynecologists, A.C.o.O.a., Prenatal diagnostic testing for genetic disorders. ACOG Practice Bulletin No. 162. Obstet Gynecol, 2016. 127: p. e108-e122.
- 17. Gynecologists, A.C.o.O.a., Ethical issues in genetic testing. ACOG Committee opinion no. 410. Obstetrics and Gynecology, 2008. 111: p. 1495-1502.
- 18. Grody, W.W., et al., ACMG position statement on prenatal/preconception expanded carrier screening. Genetics in Medicine, 2013. 15(6): p. 482-483.
- 19. Seaver, L.H. and M. Irons, ACMG practice guideline: genetic evaluation of short stature. Genetics in Medicine, 2009. 11(6): p. 465-470.
- 20. Committee, I.C.; Available from: https://www.genome.gov/27554614/intersociety-coordinating-committee-for-practitioner-education-in-genomics-iscc/.
- 21. Zlotnick, E., A. Dzikiewicz, and Y. Bar-Anan, Minno.js. 2015.
- 22. Greenwald, A.G., B.A. Nosek, and M.R. Banaji, Understanding and using the implicit association test: I. An improved scoring algorithm. Journal of personality and social psychology, 2003. 85(2): p. 197.
- 23. Shakespeare, T. and I. Kleine, Educating health professionals about disability: a review of interventions. Health and Social Care Education, 2013. 2(2): p. 20-37.
- 24. Duggan, A., et al., What can I learn from this interaction? A qualitative analysis of medical student self-reflection and learning in a standardized patient exercise about disability. Journal of Health Communication, 2009. 14(8): p. 797-811.
- 25. Motzkus, C., et al., Pre-clinical medical student reflections on implicit bias: Implications for learning and teaching. PloS one, 2019. 14(11): p. e0225058.
- 26. Sabatello, M., Cultivating inclusivity in precision medicine research: disability, diversity, and cultural competence. Journal of community genetics, 2019. 10(3): p. 363-373.
- 27. Phelan, J.C. and B.G. Link, Fear of people with mental illnesses: The role of personal and impersonal contact and exposure to threat or harm. Journal of Health and Social Behavior, 2004. 45(1): p. 68-80.
- 28. Alexander, L. and B. Link, The impact of contact on stigmatizing attitudes toward people with mental illness. Journal of mental health, 2003. 12(3): p. 271-289.

For more information about this abstract please contact evaimberg@gmail.com

<u>Comparison of Feedback Culture as Perceived by Pediatric Residents and</u> Fellows at an Academic Institution.

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Uma Phatak, Yale School of Medicine John Encandela, Yale School of Medicine Michael Green, Yale School of Medicine Martin Slade, Yale School of Medicine Pnina Weiss, Yale School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What are trainee perceptions of feedback culture within the department of pediatrics at Yale?

Background and relevance of the study:

Effective feedback is essential for trainees to achieve clinical competence.[1] An unsupportive institutional feedback culture can diminish the credibility and uptake of feedback.[2]

Design and Methods:

A mixed methods analysis was conducted using triangulation of findings from quantitative and qualitative methods.[3] Pediatric fellows and residents were invited to anonymously complete a feedback environment survey (FES). The FES uses a 7-point Likert scale, measures seven constructs, and has demonstrated good reliability, internal structure and validity in an industrial setting.[4] Fellow and resident ratings were compared using two-sided Fisher's exact tests. Multivariable analyses used a linear regression model. Participants for the qualitative study were chosen using purposive sampling to achieve a representative mix of residents. Dedoose was used to organize and manage transcript data and guide analysis. The constant comparative method was used to incrementally code and categorize data and to arrive at themes.[5]

Results:

Fifty-two residents and 21 fellows completed the survey. In the bivariate analysis, fellow scores were more favorable for fellows compared to residents in the constructs of source credibility feedback quality, reinforcing feedback, constructive feedback, source availability, and promotion of feedback seeking (all p<0.05)). On multivariate regression analysis, GME program was independently associated with all constructs. Ethnicity and gender were associated with source credibility (p= 0.0361) and constructive feedback (p=0.033), respectively.

Semi-structured interviews were conducted with eight residents (4 females). Two main themes emerged; Efficiency in patient care compromises feedback quality and quantity and, a culture that prioritizes courtesy over candor impacts feedback.

Conclusions:

We have demonstrated deficiencies in the feedback culture in our GME programs, which are more pronounced in the residency program. Barriers caused by efficient patient care and a culture of courtesy explain some of these differences in feedback.

References:

1. Ende J. Feedback in clinical medical education. JAMA. 1983;250:777-81

- 2. Watling C, Driessen E, Van der Vleuten CP et al. Learning culture and feedback: an international study of medical athletes and musicians Med Educ. 2014;48:713-23
- 3. Levy P, Snell A. The feedback environment scale: construct definition, measurement, and validation. Educ and Psychol measurement 2004;64:165-84
- 4. Schifferdecker KE and Reed VA. Using mixed methods research in medical education: basic guidelines for researchers. Med Educ 2009;43:637-644
- 5. Glaser, B. (1965). The Constant Comparative Method of Qualitative Analysis. Social Problems, 12(4), 436-445. doi:10.2307/798843

For more information about this abstract please contact uma.phatak@yale.edu

<u>Evaluating Medical Students Knowledge of and Attitudes towards Value-Based</u> Healthcare Delivery Principles and the Choosing Wisely Initiative

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Margaret Pearce, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Mustfa Manzur, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Ricky Burns, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Madeline McGovern, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Geoffrey Hayden, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Mitchell Kaminski, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University Rhea Powell, Sidney Kimmel Medical College at Thomas Jefferson University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What are the current attitudes towards and knowledge of value-based healthcare delivery and Choosing Wisely Initiative among medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

Healthcare is a major portion of the United States' gross domestic product. It is forecasted to grow by 5.4% annually and is expected to make up around 20% of the economy before 2030.1 Waste is estimated to account for approximately 30% of the aggregate national healthcare expenditure.2 Wasteful care is primarily attributable to physician decision-making.3 Physicians must learn how to focus their diagnostic tests to correctly manage the health of their patients without contributing to medical waste. Choosing Wisely is an evidence-based inter-specialty initiative designed to promote healthcare delivery. Examining medical student awareness of both Choosing Wisely and value-based healthcare delivery is important to informing the pedagogical approach and curricular content necessary for training resource conscious physicians.

Design and Methods:

An IRB-approved survey with questions evaluating medical students' knowledge and attitudes towards the Choosing Wisely Initiative and value-based healthcare delivery principles. was distributed to all students (n=1,092) at Sidney Kimmel Medical College (SKMC) between June and August 2020.

Results:

Approximately 35.6% medical students (n=392) responded. Baseline awareness of Choosing Wisely for first-year students was 27.3% with 96.0% of fourth-year medical students reporting awareness. Perception of healthcare delivery waste was noted to either be a somewhat serious problem (62.0%), very serious problem (33.9%), or not too serious a problem (3.8%). Only 49.5% of students correctly approximated the amount of healthcare expenditure associated with waste, while 74.7% correctly attributed this waste to unnecessary provision of healthcare services.

Conclusions:

Modifications to the SKMC didactic curriculum are being developed to provide education on the critical role physician decision-making plays in reducing healthcare waste. Future work includes further multimodal curricular integration of Choosing Wisely concepts and re-administration of the survey to monitor efficacy.

References:

- 1. Keehan, C, et al. (2020). National Health Expenditure Projections, 2019-28: Expected Rebound In Prices Drives Rising Spending Growth. Health Affairs (Project Hope), 39(4), 704–714. https://doi.org/10.1377/hlthaff.2020.00094
- 2. Berwick, DM., Hackbarth, AD. (2012.). Eliminating Waste in US Health Care. JAMA: the Journal of the American Medical Association., 307(14), 1513–1516. https://doi.org/info:doi/
- 3. Shrank, W., Rogstad, T., Parekh, N. (2019). Waste in the US Health Care System: Estimated Costs and Potential for Savings. JAMA: the Journal of the American Medical Association, 322(15), 1501–1509. https://doi.org/10.1001/jama.2019.13978

For more information about this abstract please contact mxp318@students.jefferson.edu

"Just Do It": Experiential Learning Opportunities Fill the Educational Gap for Pediatric Residents Caring for Patients with Mental Health Concerns

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Elizabeth Chawla, Georgetown University School of Medicine Aditi Gadre, Georgetown University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study sought to explore practicing pediatricians' perspective on their experience in residency training and how those experiences have impacted their current practices treating mental health issues.

Background and relevance of the study:

Less than half of the nearly 20% of U.S. children and adolescents in need of mental health care receive it, leading to pediatric Primary Care Providers filling the void despite self-reported lack of training and comfort providing mental health care. To address the shortage, based on experiential learning theory, we implemented an integrated mental health clinic (IMHC) in 2016 staffed with a Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist specifically for training pediatric residents during their own continuity clinic. No study yet has examined how this type of training model may fill this educational gap.

Design and Methods:

We performed a qualitative study of practicing pediatricians in a variety of clinical practice locations who are all graduates of a single pediatrics residency training program. The purposefully sampled set included graduates with a range of exposure to the IMHC. A total of 11 semi-structured interviews were conducted, and anonymous transcripts were iteratively analyzed and coded using the Consensual Qualitative Research (CQR) method until thematic saturation was reached.

Results:

Despite the range of experiences during residency, all participants endorsed experiential learning as the most effective way to learn to care for patients with MH issues and was associated with confidence and ownership. Other themes emerged which illustrated factors that impact learning: both external factors, such as necessity (there is no one else) and institutional culture, and internal factors, such as personal wellness (personal MH issues or burnout) and personal experiences (loved ones with MH issues), impacted motivation and engagement with the learning.

Conclusions:

Interventions to address the educational gap for pediatricians caring for patients with MH concerns should utilize experiential learning models, and should address external/internal factors that can motivate or demotivate learning.

References:

- 1. McMillan JA, Land M Jr, Leslie LK. Pediatric Residency Education and the Behavioral and Mental Health Crisis: A Call to Action. Pediatrics. 2017 Jan;139(1).
- 2. Foy JM, Green CM, Earls MF; COMMITTEE ON PSYCHOSOCIAL ASPECTS OF CHILD AND FAMILY HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH LEADERSHIP WORK GROUP. "Mental Health Competencies for Pediatric Practice". Pediatrics. 2019 Nov;144(5).
- 3. Green CM, Foy JM, Earls MF; COMMITTEE ON PSYCHOSOCIAL ASPECTS OF CHILD AND FAMILY HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH LEADERSHIP WORK GROUP. "Achieving the Pediatric Mental Health Competencies". Pediatrics. 2019 Nov;144(5).
- 4. Bunik M, Talmi A, Stafford B, Beaty B, Kempe A, Dhepyasuwan N, Serwint JR. Integrating mental health services in primary care continuity clinics: a national CORNET study. Acad Pediatr. 2013 Nov-Dec;13(6):551-7.

- 5. Ragunanthan B, Frosch EJ, Solomon BS. On-site Mental Health Professionals and Pediatric Residents in Continuity Clinic. Clin Pediatr. 2017 Nov;56(13):1219-1226.
- 6. Hampton E, Richardson JE, Bostwick S, Ward MJ, Green C. The current and ideal state of mental health training: pediatric resident perspectives. Teach Learn Med. 2015;27(2):147-54.
- 7. Olfson M, Druss BG, Marcus SC. Trends in mental health care among children and adolescents. N Engl J Med. 2015;372(21):2029-2038.
- 8. Kataoka SH, Zhang L, Wells KB. Unmet need for mental health care among U.S. children: variation by ethnicity and insurance status. AM J Psychiatry. 2002;159(9):1548-1555.
- 9. Horwitz SM, Storfer-Isser A, Kerker BD, et al. Barriers to the identification and management of psychosocial problems: changes from 2004 to 2013. Acad Pediatr. 2015;15(6): 613-620.
- 10. American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry (AACAP). A guide to building collaborative mental health care partnerships in pediatric primary care. 2010.

For more information about this abstract please contact Elizabeth.c.chawla@gunet.georgetown.edu

SGEA Research Abstracts

<u>Influence of Trainee Ethnicity & Race on Assessment in Graduate Medical Education (InTERsect) study</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Robin Klein, Emory University Erin Snyder, University of Alabama School of Medicine Jennifer Koch, University of Louisville School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How does resident race influence assessment in graduate medical education?

Background and relevance of the study:

There is a critical need to ensure equitable assessment practices in medical education. While attention has focused on how gender influences assessment, there is a lack of evidence focused on how race and ethnicity may influence assessment.

Design and Methods:

We performed a multi-site, retrospective, cross-sectional study of faculty evaluations of IM resident performance during inpatient ward rotations from at 6 US IM residency training programs. We assessed the influence of resident race on ratings adjusting for baseline ITE score.

Results:

Data included 3,600 evaluations by 605 faculty (52% men, 48% women) of 703 residents (55% men, 45% women) including 94 (13.4%) underrepresented in medicine (URiM) residents and 609 (86.6%) not underrepresented in medicine (Non-URiM) residents. Resident race was a significant factor associated with evaluation scores in all six core competencies. URiM resident scores were lower than Non-URiM residents scores in PC (mean adjusted standardized scores (SE) URiM 0.024 [0.04] vs NonURiM 0.156 [0.03], p=0.003), MK (-0.014 [0.05] vs 0.139 [0.03], p=0.001), SBP (-0.197 [0.05] vs 0.019 [0.03], p<0.001), PBLI (-0.082 [0.05] vs 0.100 [0.03], p<0.001), PROF (-0.088 [0.05] vs 0.098 [0.03], p<0.001), and ICS (-0.039 [0.05] vs 0.118 [0.03], p=0.002). The interaction of resident race/ethnicity with resident PGY and gender was not significant. However the association between resident race/ethnicity and faculty gender was significant in five of six core competencies with lower scores for URiM residents seen from men faculty.

Conclusions:

In this multi-site quantitative study of the influence of resident race and ethnicity in assessment, findings indicate that resident race/ethnicity was a significant factor influencing evaluation scores with URiM residents' scores lower than scores of Non-URiM residents. Faculty gender was a notable factor associated with these differences with lower scores for URiM residents noted from men faculty.

References:

- 1. Nasca TJ, Philibert I, Brigham T, Flynn TC. The next GME accreditation system—rationale and benefits. New England Journal of Medicine. 2012 Mar 15;366(11):1051-6.
- 2. Colbert CY, French JC, Herring ME, Dannefer EF. Fairness: the hidden challenge for competency-based postgraduate medical education programs. Perspect Med Educ. 2017; 6: 347–355.
- 3. Holmboe ES, Sherbino J, Long DM, Swing SR, Frank JR. The role of assessment in competency-based medical education. Medical Teacher. 2010;32(8):676-682. doi:10.3109/0142159x.2010.500704.

- 4. Axelson RD, Solow CM, Ferguson KJ, Cohen MB. Assessing Implicit Gender Bias in Medical Student Performance Evaluations. Evaluation & the Health Professions. 2010;33(3):365-385. doi:10.1177/0163278710375097.
- 5. Klein R, Julian KA, Snyder ED, et al. Gender Bias in Resident Assessment in Graduate Medical Education: Review of the Literature. Journal of General Internal Medicine. 2019;34(5):712-719. doi:10.1007/s11606-019-04884-0.
- 6. Klein R, Ufere NN, Rao SR, et al. Association of gender with learner assessment in graduate medical education. JAMA Netw Open. 2020;3(7): e2010888.
- 7. Ross DA, Boatright D, Nunez-Smith M, Jordan A, Chekroud A, Moore EZ. Differences in words used to describe racial and gender groups in Medical Student Performance Evaluations. PLoS One. 2017 Aug 9;12(8): e0181659.
- 8. Low D, Pollack SW, Liao ZC, Maestas R, Kirven LE, Eacker AM, Morales LS. Racial/ethnic disparities in clinical grading in medical school. Teaching and learning in medicine. 2019 Oct 20;31(5):487-96.
- 9. Boatright D, Ross D, O'Connor P, Moore E, Nunez-Smith M. Racial disparities in medical student membership in the Alpha Omega Alpha honor society. JAMA Intern Med. 2017;177(5):659-665. doi:10.1001/jamainternmed.2016.9623
- 10. Wijesekera TP, Kim M, Moore EZ, Sorenson O, Ross DA. All other things being equal: exploring racial and gender disparities in medical school honor society induction. Academic Medicine. 2019 Apr 1;94(4):562-9.
- 11. Rojek AE, Khanna R, Yim JW, Gardner R, Lisker S, Hauer KE, Lucey C, Sarkar U. Differences in narrative language in evaluations of medical students by gender and under-represented minority status. Journal of general internal medicine. 2019 May 15;34(5):684-91.
- 12. Grimm LJ, Redmond RA, Campbell JC, Rosette AS. Gender and racial bias in radiology residency letters of recommendation. Journal of the American College of Radiology. 2020 Jan 1;17(1):64-71.
- 13. Powers A, Gerull KM, Rothman R, Klein SA, Wright RW, Dy CJ. Race-and gender-based differences in descriptions of applicants in the letters of recommendation for orthopaedic surgery residency. JBJS Open Access. 2020 Jul;5(3).
- 14. Association of American Medical Colleges. ERAS for Medical Schools. Available at https://www.aamc.org/services/eras-for-institutions/medical-schools. Accessed July 2020.
- 15. Association of American Medical Colleges. Underrepresented in Medicine Definition. Available at https://www.aamc.org/whatwe-do/diversity-inclusion/underrepresented-in-medicine. Accessed July 2020.
- 16. Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. The Internal Medicine Milestone Project. Available at https://www.acgme.org/Portals/0/PDFs/Milestones/InternalMedicineMilestones.pdf. Accessed July 2017.
- 17. Sabin J, Nosek BA, Greenwald A, Rivara FP. Physicians' implicit and explicit attitudes about race by MD race, ethnicity, and gender. J Health Care Poor Underserved. 2009 Aug;20(3):896-913. doi: 10.1353/hpu.0.0185. PMID: 19648715; PMCID: PMC3320738.
- 18. Capers IV Q, Clinchot D, McDougle L, Greenwald AG. Implicit racial bias in medical school admissions. Academic Medicine. 2017 Mar 1;92(3):365-9.
- 19. Hill KA, Samuels EA, Gross CP, Desai MM, Zelin NS, Latimore D, Huot SJ, Cramer LD, Wong AH, Boatright D. Assessment of the prevalence of medical student mistreatment by sex, race/ethnicity, and sexual orientation. JAMA Internal Medicine. 2020 May 1;180(5):653-65.
- 20. Fnais N, Soobiah C, Chen MH, Lillie E, Perrier L, Tashkhandi M, Straus SE, Mamdani M, Al-Omran M, Tricco AC. Harassment and discrimination in medical training: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Academic Medicine. 2014 May 1;89(5):817-27.
- 21. Burgess DJ, Warren J, Phelan S, Dovidio J, Van Ryn M. Stereotype threat and health disparities: what medical educators and future physicians need to know. Journal of general internal medicine. 2010 May;25(2):169-77.
- 22. Osseo-Asare A, Balasuriya L, Huot SJ, Keene D, Berg D, Nunez-Smith M, Genao I, Latimore D, Boatright D. Minority resident physicians' views on the role of race/ethnicity in their training experiences in the workplace. JAMA network open. 2018 Sep 7;1(5): e182723-.
- 23. Bullock JL, Lockspeiser T, del Pino-Jones A, Richards R, Teherani A, Hauer KE. They Don't See a Lot of People My Color: A Mixed Methods Study of Racial/Ethnic Stereotype Threat Among Medical Students on Core Clerkships. Academic Medicine. 2020 Nov 1;95(11S): S58-66.
- 24. Lurie SJ, Mooney CJ, Lyness JM. Measurement of the general competencies of the accreditation council for graduate medical education: a systematic review. Acad Med. 2009;84:301–9.
- 25. Delzell JE, Jr, Ringdahl EN, Kruse RL. The ACGME core competencies: a national survey of family medicine program directors. Fam Med. 2005;37:576–80.
- 26. Teherani A, Hauer KE, Fernandez A, King Jr TE, Lucey C. How small differences in assessed clinical performance amplify to large differences in grades and awards: A cascade with serious consequences for students underrepresented in medicine. Academic Medicine. 2018 Sep 1;93(9):1286-92.
- 27. Klein R, Law K, Koch J. Gender Representation Matters: Intervention to Solicit Medical Resident Input to Enable Equity in Leadership in Graduate Medical Education. Academic Medicine: Journal of the Association of American Medical Colleges. 2020 Sep 1.
- 28. Schwanz RW, Donnelly MB, Sloan DA, Johnson SB, Strodel WE. The relationship between faculty ward evaluations, OSCE, and ABSITE as measures of surgical intern performance. The American journal of surgery. 1995 Apr 1;169(4):414-7.

For more information about this abstract please contact rklein3@emory.edu

Revealing and Dismantling Supremacy Culture in Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Meghan Bratkovich, College of Education, University of South Florida Todd Bates, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study analyzes medical students' peer-to-peer comments posted amid the sweeping changes to medical education during the COVID-19 pandemic and models discourse analysis of critical incidents to identify and resist characteristics of supremacy culture.

Background and relevance of the study:

Mechanisms of oppression go unexamined, unnamed, and unquestioned in the attitudes, behaviors, pedagogies, and practices of medical education. Supremacy culture asks us to ignore them, excuse them, value them, and protect them. Since they feel "normal" and familiar, capitalizing on unusual circumstances and unfamiliar methods may provide new routes toward equity, diversity, justice and inclusion.

Design and Methods:

We collected 5,460 Covid-related r/medicalschool Reddit posts made from 3/12/2020-4/16/2020 and used Okun's (2007, 2013) framework to focus on discourse incidents displaying characteristics "complicit in and/or actively contributing to perpetuating norms and behaviours" of supremacy culture (COCo, 2019, p. 7). We then applied Critical Incident Analysis (Tripp, 1993)--a method for unpacking "underlying trends, motives and structures" in "commonplace events that occur in professional practice" (p. 23-24). Critical incidents "trigger insights about some aspect of teaching and learning" (Richards & Farrell, 2010, p. 13) and provided focal points to begin questioning patterns of iniquity inherent in our own pedagogy and "norms" of medical education.

Results:

Findings revealed myriad incidents of students opting to study for exams over assisting in the pandemic response and aligned with Okun's characteristics of supremacy culture. These results are indicative of a medical education learning environment where students experience tensions between perceived pathways to academic success and preparation to be compassionate and entrustable clinicians.

Conclusions:

Identifying and deliberately resisting the reinscription of supremacy-supporting mentalities will require medical education to prioritize learning opportunities that better reflect the realities of practice and eschew the transactional and score-focused demonstrations of factual knowledge acquisition and reproduction that support supremacy culture in medicine.

References:

- $1. \ Centre for Community Organizations (COCo). (2019). \ White Supremacy Culture in Organizations. \\ \frac{https://coco-net.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/Coco-WhiteSupCulture-ENG4.pdf}{(2019).}$
- 2. Okun, T. (2007). White supremacy culture. Dismantling Racism. https://collectiveliberation.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/01/White Supremacy Culture Okun.pdf
- $3.\ Okun, T.\ (2013).\ Our\ behaviors\ create\ our\ culture\ worksheet.\ Changework-Dismantling\ Racism\ Workbook.\ dr WorksBooks.$
- 4. Richards, J. C., & Farrell, T. S. C. (2010). Professional development for language teachers. Cambridge: University Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact meghanodsliv@gmail.com

<u>Changes in Perception from Preclinical to Clinical Years on Medical School</u> Experiences

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Nital Appelbaum, Baylor College of Medicine Joel Purkiss, Baylor College of Medicine Nadia Ismail, Baylor College of Medicine Phuong Huynh, Baylor College of Medicine Jennifer Christner, Baylor College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To detect within-person changes on end-of-year surveys as students transitioned from second to third year of medical school.

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical schools monitor student perceptions of the learning environment as they progress through undergraduate medical education(1). Reasons for such monitoring include continuous quality improvement, accreditation requirements, and internal program evaluation(1,2). Medical education would benefit from framing assessment of the learning environment as an intersection of psychosocial factors (e.g., curriculum resources, structure, policies, instruction) and material dimensions (e.g., physical and virtual spaces)(3).

Design and Methods:

Year-end surveys were electronically sent to all students at our medical school between July-August of 2018 and 2019. Our study focused on students who completed a survey in both administrations. 74 closed-response items (4-point Likert:1=Very Dissatisfied,4=Very Satisfied) overlapped between the two survey administrations. Questions were drafted based on the LCME Sample Student Opinion Survey, and for curriculum evaluation. Wilcoxon Signed Ranks Tests detected within-person changes.

Results:

132 of 192 students met inclusion criteria. Compared to MS2 year, students' satisfaction significantly decreased with access to secure storage space for personal belongings on campus (Z=-3.34,p<.01,r=0.30) and with foundational science instruction during the preclinical curriculum (Z=-2.48,p=.01,r=0.26) at the end of their MS3 year. Conversely, compared to MS2 year, students' satisfaction significantly increased at the end of MS3 with adequacy of counseling about elective choices (Z=-2.86,p<.01,r=0.40) and adequacy of experiences with the electronic health record (Z=-2.32,p=.02,r=0.20). Students' satisfaction also increased regarding the Office of Student Affair's awareness of student concerns (Z=-2.65,p=.01,r=0.26) and their responsiveness to student problems (Z=-2.11,p=.03,r=0.21).

Conclusions:

Our study suggests the need to monitor within-person differences diligently on the learning environment rather than just aggregate class data. Further investigation is needed through multiple methodologies (e.g., continued annual surveying, focus groups/interviews, curriculum review of interventions) to understand medical student experiences and perceptions.

References:

- 1. Pololi L, Price J. Validation and Use of an Instrument to Measure the Learning Environment as Perceived by Medical Students. Teaching and Learning in Medicine. 2000;12(4):201-207.
- 2. Vassar M, Wheeler DL, Davison M, Franklin J. Program Evaluation in Medical Education: An Overview of the Utilization-focused Approach. J Educ Eval Health Prof. 2010;7.
- 3. Gruppen LD, Irby DM, Durning SJ, Maggio LA. Conceptualizing Learning Environments in the Health Professions. Academic Medicine. 2019;94(7):969.

For more information about this abstract please contact nital.appelbaum@bcm.edu

Assessing the concordance of narrative comments with supervision ratings provided during Entrustable Professional Activity assessments

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Kelley Mark, University of Virginia School of Medicine James Martindale, University of Virginia School of Medicine Megan Bray, University of Virginia School of Medicine Ryan Smith, University of Virginia School of Medicine Andrew Parsons, University of Virginia School of Medicine Elizabeth Bradley, University of Virginia School of Medicine Maryellen Gusic, University of Virginia School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

In this study, we examined the concordance of supervision ratings and narrative comments provided in EPA assessments.

Background and relevance of the study:

Recent reviews have called for additional studies to assess the validity of Entrustable Professional Activity (EPA) assessments.

Design and Methods:

A stratified random sampling of EPA assessments completed by assessors between February 2018 - February 2020 in various clinical settings were extracted. Narrative comments were separated from the supervision rating assigned at the time of the assessment. An expert panel used the narrative comments to independently assign a supervision rating. The Kendall W test of concordance was used to assess inter-rater reliability and to examine comparisons with original supervision ratings.

Results:

For 100 comments, the overall coefficient of concordance (CC) amongst the panel was .67 for EPA 1-history (HX) comments; .76 for EPA 1-physical exam (PE); and .74 for EPA 6-oral presentation (OP). Overall CC between the panel's median rating and the supervision ratings assessed by any assessor at the time of observation was .39 for HX; .70 for PE and .78 for OP. CC between ratings of the panel and the original assessor were highest for Master Assessors (MAs) for all EPAs. CC between the panel and the original assessor were highest for the pediatrics clerkship for HX = .69 and PE = .89. For OP, CC between the panel rating and rating at the time of assessment on internal medicine and surgery was higher (.88) than pediatrics.

Conclusions:

Inter-rater reliability among experts was > .6. Supervision ratings had variable levels of concordance with ratings given by the original assessor; the highest level of concordance was with comments from MAs.

EPA assessments communicate information about a learner through entrustment-supervision ratings and narrative comments. Alignment of these components is critical in making the data meaningful to learners and useful for summative decision-making.

References:

- 1. Shorey, S, Lau, TC, Lau, ST, Ang, E. Entrustable Professional Activities in health care education: a scoping review. Med Educ. 2019;53(8):766-777. doi:10.1111/medu.13879
- 2. ten Cate O et al. Assessing trainees and making entrustment decisions: On the nature and use of entrustment-supervision scales. Acad Med. 2020;95(11):1662-1669. doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000003427
- 3. Bartels J, Mooney CJ, Stone RT. Numerical versus narrative: A comparison between methods to measure medical student performance during clinical clerkships. Med Teach. 2017;39(11):1154-1158. doi: 10.1080/0142159X.2017.1368467.
- 4. Sebok-Syer SS, Klinger DA, Sherbino J, Chan TM. Mixed messages or miscommunication? Investigating the relationship between assessors' workplace-based assessment scores and written comments. Acad Med. 2017;92(12):1774-1779. doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000001743
- 5. Yeates P, O'Neill P, Mann K, Eva K. Seeing the same thing differently: mechanisms that contribute to assessor differences in directly-observed performance measures. Adv Hlth Sci Educ Theory Pract. 2013;18(3):325-341. doi: 10.1007/s10459-012-9372-1

For more information about this abstract please contact meg7qt@virginia.edu

Beyond the MD: A Snapshot & Analysis of Dual Degree Programs at U.S. Medical Schools

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Gauri Agarwal, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Brett Colbert, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Sarah Jacobs, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Amar Deshpande, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Latha Chandran, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine Barry Issenberg, University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The purpose of this study was to determine the scope and type of US dual-degree programs, in particular four-year, Master-level dual-degree programs.

Background and relevance of the study:

Many U.S. medical schools offer dual-degree programs with the goal of graduating physicians with expanded skillsets. Some medical schools provide dual-degree programs within a four-year timeframe and with reduced combined tuition. While prior studies have focused on descriptions of specific dual-degree programs there have been no descriptive reports across all of the US dual-degree programs.

Design and Methods:

We requested data from the AAMC on U.S. medical schools and their aggregate matriculant and graduate counts by dual-degree program for academic years 2014-2015 through 2019-2020. The total number of dual-degree graduates, the number of graduates within specific dual-degree programs, and the length of the program was delineated.

Results:

Of 152 US medical schools, 131 (86.2%) offer at least one of the following MD dual-degree programs: Bachelor of Science (BS), MPH, MBA, Master of Science (MS), Master of Arts (MA), Juris Doctor (JD), or Doctor of Philosophy (PhD). Of the 131 medical schools offering dual-degree programs, 65.8% offer MD/Master programs with 76.9% offering MD/PhD and 12.5% MD/JD programs respectively. Of those 100 schools that offer combined MD/Master programs, the number of total graduates per year per school ranges from 1 to 59. Twenty-six (17.1%) medical schools offer four-year MD/Master programs. Nineteen of these schools graduate an average of 10 or more students per year, and 4 graduate an average of 30 or more students per year.

Conclusions:

Although many medical schools offer dual degree programs, few offer four-year programs, and fewer graduate a large number of students. Medical schools should explore re-structuring MD/Master programs to offer integrated four-year curricula. A few medical schools have successfully offered four-year MD/Master programs with a large number of graduates and can serve as models for other institutions.

References:

 $1) AAMC. \ \ Retrieved from \underline{https://www.aamc.org/data-reports/curriculum-reports/interactive-data/combined-degrees-and-early-acceptance-programs$

- 2) Andriole, D. A., Jeffe, D. B., & Tai, R. H. (2016). Characteristics and career intentions of MD-MPH program graduates: a national cohort study. Public Health Reports, 131(4), 637-649.
- 3) Goyal, R., Aung, K.-K., Oh, B., Hwang, T. J., Besancon, E., & Jain, S. H. (2015). Survey of MD/MBA programs: opportunities for physician management education. Academic Medicine, 90(1), 121.
- 4) Sherrill, W. W. (2000). Dual-degree MD-MBA students: a look at the future of medical leadership. Academic Medicine, 75(10), S37-S39.

For more information about this abstract please contact gagarwal@med.miami.edu

Becoming a physician: A mixed methods exploration of medical students' experiences in clinical training

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Michael Ryan, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Deborah DiazGranados, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine JK Stringer, Rush Medical College of Rush University Medical Center Stacie LeFeavers, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Leroy Thacker, Virginia Commonwealth University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To explore how medical students with a range of tolerance for ambiguity (TFA) develop professional identities over the course of their clinical training.

Background and relevance of the study:

Professional identity formation (PIF) represents the step-wise, transformative journey a learner takes toward becoming a competent physician (1-3). Medical students commonly struggle developing their identity, particularly during transition periods such as the start of clinical clerkships (4). One's tolerance for ambiguity (TFA) may influence the degree to which a learner adjusts to the clinical environment (5). The purpose of this study was to explore how medical students develop PIF over the course of their clerkships.

Design and Methods:

A longitudinal convergent mixed methods study was conducted at Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine. Participants were third-year medical students stratified by scores of TFA. Measures collected included: data from focus group interviews, journal entries, survey-based instruments, and clerkship grades. Qualitative data were analyzed using a constructivist grounded theory approach. Quantitative data were analyzed using the Fisher's exact test and Nonparametric Mann Whitney U.

Results:

Twenty-two participants participated in the study. Qualitative analysis revealed initial challenges associated with adaptation to the clinical environment. Later, students described awareness of their growth and a focus on specialization. Quantitative analysis demonstrated that students grew significantly in PIF over the course of the study (p = .046). Clerkship performance was not significantly correlated with any measure and there were no significant differences between high and low TFA learners.

Conclusions:

The results of this study describe the development of PIF in physicians-in-training. Through experience, mentorship, and adjustment, medical students acclimate to clinical training and demonstrate growth in PIF. Looking forward to specialization may explain growth towards professional identity. TFA did not seem to play a role in PIF. These findings resonate with the non-healthcare literature surrounding PIF theory while adding the importance of specialization for medical students.

References:

 $1. Jarvis-Selinger\ S, MacNeal\ KA,\ Costello\ GRL,\ et\ al.\ Understanding\ professional\ identity\ formation\ in\ early\ clerkship:\ a\ novel framework.\ Acad\ Med.\ 2019;\ 94(10):1574-1580.$

- 2.Cruess RL, Cruess SR, Boudreau DJ, et al. Reframing medical education to support professional identity formation. Acad Med. 2014; 89: 1446-1451.
- 3. Cruess RL, Cruess SR, Boudreau DJ, et al. A schematic representation of the professional identity formation and socialization of medical students and residents: a guide for medical educators. Acad Med. 2015; 90: 718-725.
- 4.O'Brien B, Cooke M, Irby D. Perceptions and attributions of third-year student struggles in clerkships: do students and clerkship directors agree? Acad Med. 2007; 82: 970-978.
- 5. Caulfield M, Andolsek K, Grbic D. Ambiguity tolerance of students matriculating to U.S. medical schools. Acad Med. 2014; 89: 1526-1532.

For more information about this abstract please contact michael.ryan1@vcuhealth.org

To be or not to be a "frontline physician": Professional identity formation during COVID-19

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Rebecca Henderson, University of Florida College of Medicine Elizabeth Gundersen, Florida Atlantic University Lillianna Thomas, University of Florida College of Medicine Zareen Zaidi, University of Florida Melanie Hagen, University of Florida College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The study aims to understand the effect of COVID-19 on professional identity formation of medical students, specifically the ways it has shifted their views on their role as physicians in society including the concepts of risk and self-sacrifice.

Background and relevance of the study:

The COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted medical education and highlighted the challenges of being a physician. The effects of COVID-19 on professional identity formation of medical students are unknown.

Design and Methods:

Semi-structured, peer-led interviews lasting 60 minutes were conducted with 28 first-year medical students at the University of Florida and Florida Atlantic University in Spring, Summer and Fall of 2020. Interviews were transcribed and analyzed using a modified grounded theory approach ensuring interrater reliability.

Results:

While some students voiced pride in their profession, others described anxiety about their future role. They wondered how much they would be called upon to sacrifice for their patients and expressed trepidation at entering what they perceived as a dysfunctional medical system. Others felt drawn to being useful in emergencies and felt reinforced in their career choice. The students also increasingly recognized the relationship between medicine and public health. They felt physicians should communicate health information although they expressed discomfort with patients who may not believe in COVID science. Students were divided regarding the relationship between politics and medicine but felt that these were inseparable.

Conclusions:

COVID-19 has impacted the professional identity formation of medical students by creating tension between "heroism" versus awareness of the risk of being "frontline healthcare workers." They struggle to understand how to fulfill their role within a healthcare system plagued with problems and intertwined with politics. Medical school curricula should foster facilitated discussions whereby students can discuss and navigate tensions created by COVID-19. Students must reflect on their role as future physicians practicing medicine in a politicized world.

References:

- 1. Gallagher TH, Schleyer AM. We signed up for this! Student and trainee responses to the Covid-19 pandemic.N Engl J Med. 2020.
- 2. Chandratre S. Medical students and COVID-19: Challenges and supportive strategies. Journal of medical education and

curricular development. 2020;7:2382120520935059.

- 3. Stetson GV, Dhaliwal G. Using a time out: Reimagining professional identity formation after the pandemic. Medical education. 2020. https://search.proquest.com/docview/2449263118. doi: 10.1111/medu.14386.
- 4. Stetson GV, Kryzhanovskaya IV, Lomen-Hoerth C, Hauer KE. Professional identity formation in disorienting times. Medical education. 2020;54(8):765-766. https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/medu.14202. doi: 10.1111/medu.14202.
- 5. Klasen JM, Vithyapathy A, Zante B, Burm S. "The storm has arrived": The impact of SARS-CoV-2 on medical students. Perspectives on medical education. 2020;9(3):181-185. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/32458382. doi: 10.1007/s40037-020-00592-2.

For more information about this abstract please contact zareen.zaidi@medicine.ufl.edu

How Do We Evaluate a Geriatric Patient as a Team? Results from an Interprofessional Geriatric Workshop for Undergraduate Medical, Occupational Therapy, and Physical Therapy Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Nicole Rockich-Winston, Medical College of Georgia at Augusta University Wanda Jirau-Rosaly, Augusta University Shilpa Brown, Augusta University Colleen Hergott, Augusta University Patricia Watford, Augusta University Meghan Hall, Augusta University Elena Wood, Augusta University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We created an interprofessional geriatric workshop and examined changes in student perceptions of interprofessional teams, attitudes towards the geriatric population, and empathy towards patients.

Background and relevance of the study:

The aging population in the United States poses considerable challenges to our healthcare system, and introducing students to interdisciplinary teams is crucial for improving geriatric care. [1]

Design and Methods:

Second year medical students participated in a 4-hour workshop in collaboration with students from occupational therapy (OT) and physical therapy (PT). Stations emphasized dysphagia assessments, fall risk assessments, cognitive function, Beers Criteria®, home health assessment, and a macular degeneration virtual reality experience. [2] Pre- and post-surveys were administered including the Attitudes Towards Health Care Teams (ATHCT) scale, UCLA Geriatrics Attitudes Scale, and Jefferson Scale of Empathy. [3-5] A focus group of students from each discipline evaluated students' perceptions and experiences after the workshop. Descriptive statistics, paired t-tests, and Analysis of Variance (ANOVA tests) assessed for significant differences. Qualitative analysis incorporated Glaser's constant comparative method to identify themes.

Results:

In total, 189 medical students, 39 OT students, and 36 PT students participated in the workshop. Of our participants, 120 students completed the pre/post surveys (ATHCT, UCLA Geriatrics Attitudes Scale, and Jefferson Scale of Empathy), demonstrating significant increases in students' perceptions of the value of interprofessional education (P < 0.001); however, significance was not demonstrated in the latter two scales, likely due to the relatively high scores evaluating attitudes towards geriatric patients and empathy in pre-workshop data. Analysis of the focus group data indicated that participants advocated for increasing the number of interprofessional activities, moving activities earlier in the curriculum, and including pharmacy students in future activities.

Conclusions:

Introducing medical, OT, and PT students to a variety of geriatric assessments in an interprofessional environment, positively influences their perceptions of working as an interprofessional team member to deliver comprehensive care to older adults.

References:

- 1. Brown, D. K., Fosnight, S., Whitford, M., Hazelett, S., Mcquown, C., Drost, J. C., et al. (2018). Interprofessional education model for geriatric falls risk assessment and prevention. BMJ open quality, 7(4).
- 2. Steinman, M. A., & Fick, D. M. (2019). Using wisely: a reminder on the proper use of the American Geriatrics Society Beers Criteria®. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society, 67(4), 644-646.
- 3. Curran, V. R., Heath, O., Kearney, A., and Button, P. (2010). Evaluation of an interprofessional collaboration workshop for post-graduate residents, nursing and allied health professionals. Journal of Interprofessional Care, 24(3): 315–318.
- 4. Reuben, D. B., Lee, M., Davis Jr, J. W., Eslami, M. S., Osterweil, D. G., Melchiore, S., & Weintraub, N. T. (1998). Development and validation of a geriatrics attitudes scale for primary care residents. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society, 46(11), 1425-1430.
- 5. Hojat, M., Mangione, S., Nasca, T. J., Cohen, M. J., Gonnella, J. S., Erdmann, J. B., et al. (2001). The Jefferson Scale of Physician Empathy: development and preliminary psychometric data. Educational and psychological measurement, 61(2), 349-365.

For more information about this abstract please contact nwinston@augusta.edu

<u>Critical Medicine: An Examination of Pre-clerkship PBL Curriculum Through a</u> Critical Race Theory Lens

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation Region: SGEA

Authors:

Gareth Gingell, The University of Texas at Austin

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do pre-clerkship problem-based learning cases reflect the sociopolitical and historical environments shaping medical education? What is revealed about the embedded curriculum within these artifacts when viewed through the lens of critical race theory?

Background and relevance of the study:

The 2020 COVID-19 pandemic laid bare and widened existing fractures in health equity along racial and ethnic lines in the United States. While medical schools are moving to incorporate health equity focused curriculum, few studies have examined existing biomedical science curricula to determine how they may perpetuate or disrupt dominant racial narratives in medicine. This study applies a critical race theory (CRT) lens to the language in problem-based learning (PBL) cases to better elaborate on these mechanisms.

Design and Methods:

Using a comparative case study methodology, this study draws on texts from six pre-clerkship PBL cases and associated facilitator guides. Through critical discourse analysis (CDA), sentences were coded for genre, style, and actions, then emerging themes were interpreted using core tenets of CRT. The author engaged in reflexive analytic memo writing and researcher triangulation throughout to ensure trustworthiness and credibility of findings.

Results:

Patients holding racialized identities were more frequently excluded from or passivated within cases. Patients with Asian racial identities were associated with verbs of cognition and perception; African American patients, affective and social/relational verbs. Additionally, the lack of explicit racial/ethnic descriptors for most patients, unless presented as a biomedical risk factor, and for all physicians underscores a colorblind ideology that erases whole facets of identity and lived experience.

In this study, a hierarchy emerged, where patients with racialized identities subtly positioned as "lesser than" physician in the clinical encounter through word choice. Critical examination of language in PBL curricula, and extending to other durable curricular artifacts in pre-clerkship medicine, presents a powerful tool for examining, and potentially disrupting, subtle racial narratives.

References:

Conclusions:

- $1.\ Bartlett\ L,\ Vavrus\ F.\ Comparative\ Case\ Studies:\ An\ Innovative\ Approach.\ NJCIE.\ 2017; 1 (1).\ doi:10.7577/njcie.1929$
- 2. Braun L, Saunders B. Avoiding racial essentialism in medical science curricula. AMA journal of ethics. 2017;19(6):518.
- 3. Mullet DR. A General Critical Discourse Analysis Framework for Educational Research. Journal of Advanced Academics. 2018;29(2):116-142. doi:10.1177/1932202X18758260
- 4. Sharma M, Kuper A. The elephant in the room: talking race in medical education. Advances in Health Sciences Education. 2017;22(3):761-764. doi:10.1007/s10459-016-9732-3
- 5.Karani R, Varpio L, May W, et al. Commentary: Racism and Bias in Health Professions Education. Academic Medicine. 2017;92:S1-S6. doi:10.1097/ACM.000000000001928

For more information about this abstract please contact gareth.gingell@utexas.edu

Clinical Skills Confidence: Not Impacted by Prolonged Time away

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Karen Szauter, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Will the extended pandemic-related time away from clinical skills training and patient care impact student confidence in their clinical abilities at the start of clinical clerkships?

Background and relevance of the study:

Our clinical skills curriculum utilizes the Entrustable Professional Activities (EPAs) to frame training. In the pre-clerkship curriculum students focus on fundamental patient care skills (e.g.: history and physical exam, documentation, oral presentation)[1]. Other EPAs are introduced through didactics or problem-based learning cases.

Design and Methods:

In 2018 and 2019 a brief didactic describing the EPAs was presented just prior to starting core clinical clerkships, and students were asked to complete a questionnaire which asked (1) how much training they felt they has received for each EPA in the pre-clerkship curriculum and (2) how ready they felt to perform each EPA.[2] The readiness scale uses language from the EPA document and ranges from "observe only" to "perform without supervision". Responses were summarized and shared with students. In 2020 students participated in a Transitions to Clerkship course (after being away for over 5 months) including the EPA discussion and questionnaire. We analyzed student responses to each item and compared their responses to those of the prior years.

Results:

Responses in 2020 (n=211) reached at least 90% for each question. Perceived curricular exposure to the thirteen EPA skills mirrored prior cohorts; perceived readiness to perform each EPA was fully aligned with prior cohorts. The highest rated skills were "obtain a medical history and perform a physical exam" followed by "documentation" and "oral presentation" of a patient encounter.

Conclusions:

Despite having no actual or simulated patient contact for several months, perceived readiness to perform skills beginning clerkships (Sept 2020) was no different than prior years. While somewhat unexpected, this finding represents student self-perception and not actual ability. Follow up with this class mid-year will reassess their perceived skill reflecting on clerkship experiences.

References

- 1. Lomis K, Amiel JM, Ryan MS, et al. Implementing an entrustable professional activities framework in undergraduate medical education: early lessons from the AAMC core entrustable professional activities for entering residency pilot. Academic Medicine. 2017;92(6):765-70.
- 2. Soukoulis V, Gusic ME. Comparing student and clerkship director perspectives about readiness to perform the core entrustable professional activities at the start of the clerkship curriculum. Medical Science Educator. 2018;28(2):277-80.

For more information about this abstract please contact kszauter@utmb.edu

<u>Medical Student Attitudes Toward Substance Use Disorder Across</u> Undergraduate Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

George Luck, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Hanna Mielke-Maday, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Riyana Lalani, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Sonya Chistov, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Marjorie Kragel, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Mario Jacomino, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

A review of attitudes toward patients with substance use disorder (SUD) among physicians and other health professionals found evidence that they see SUD patients as violent, manipulative, and unmotivated. Medical students perspectives toward SUD have not been surveyed, nor how attitudes might differ at different stages of their education. Our medical students attend several sessions regarding SUD during their first three years of school. Our goal is to assess the role of undergraduate medical curriculum on the attitudes of medical students towards SUD at different levels in their training as a quality improvement project..

Background and relevance of the study:

SUD are determined by impairments in different areas including health problems, disability, and failure to meet responsibilities at work, school, or home and caused by the use of alcohol and/or other drugs. Negative attitudes toward SUD create bias, which leads to discrimination toward each member of the group. This discrimination affects the treatment that the patients receive. Removing stigma is a critical factor in the development of high-quality treatment services.

Design and Methods:

The Addiction Belief Inventory (ABI) is a validated measure of attitudes regarding addiction and substance use. All our medical students completed the ABI between September 2019 to January 2020. The survey included 30 questions contained within eight subscales. ABI score classifies answers from 1.0 as strongly disagree to 5.0 as strongly agree.

Results:

Our data demonstrated a consistency between the responses from all medical students within each of the eight subscales of the ABI regardless of the level of training of the student. Medical students overwhelmingly (91%) perceive addiction as a chronic disease and over two-thirds endorsed patients seeking professional help.

Conclusions:

With this knowledge, medical schools can tailor undergraduate medical education to minimize bias and negative attitudes towards SUD patients. Armed with this skill set, future physicians will be better prepared to better care for SUD patients.

References:

1. Van Boekel, L.C., E. P. Brouwers, J. van Weeghel, and H. F. Garretsen. 2013. Stigma among health professionals towards patients with substance use disorders and its consequences for healthcare delivery: Systematic review. Drug and Alcohol

Dependence 131:23-35. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2013.02.018

- 2. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. 2018. Key substance use and mental health indicators in the United States: Results from the 2018 National Survey on Drug Use and Health.
- $\frac{https://www.samhsa.gov/data/sites/default/files/cbhsqreports/NSDUHNationalFindingsReport2018/NSDUHNationalFindingsReport2018/NSDUHNationalFindingsReport2018.pdf}{}$
- 3. "Time for a Change." Time for a Change, Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs, and Health. Surgeon General, 2016. https://addiction.surgeongeneral.gov/vision-future/time-for-a-change
- 4. Sattler, S., A. Escande, E. Racine, and A. S. Göritz. 2017. Public stigma toward people with drug addiction: A factorial survey. Journal of Studies on Alcohol and Drugs 78(3):415-425. https://doi.org/10.15288/jsad.2017.78.415
- 5. Hammarlund, R., K. A. Crapanzano, L. Luce, L. Mulligan, and K. M. Ward. 2018. Review of the effects of self-stigma and perceived social stigma on the treatment-seeking decisions of individuals with drug- and alcohol-use disorders. Substance Abuse and Rehabilitation 9:115-136. https://doi.org/10.2147/SAR.S183256
- 6. Wakeman, S. E., G. Pham-Kanter, and K. Donelan. 2016. Attitudes, practices, and preparedness to care for patients with substance use disorder: Results from a survey of general internists. Substance Abuse 37(4):635-641. https://doi.org/10.1080/08897077.2016.1187240
- 7. Broadus, AD., et al. "Attitudes about Addiction: A National Study of Addiction Educators." Journal of Drug Education, vol. 40, no. 3, 2010, pp. 281–298. https://doi:10.2190/de.40.3.e
- 8. Luke, DA, Ribisl, KM, Walton, MA, William WS, and Davidson, W. "Assessing the Diversity of Personal Beliefs About Addiction: Development Of The Addiction Belief Inventory." Substance Use & Misuse 37.1 (2002): 89-120. <
- 9. Muzyk, A, Smothers, Z, Akrobetu, D, Ruiz Veve, J; MacEachern, M, Tetrault, JM, and Gruppen, L. Substance Use Disorder Education in Medical Schools: A Scoping Review. Academic Medicine: November 2019, 94 (11) p 1825-1834. https://doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000002883
- 10. Klamen, DL & Miller, NS. Integration in Education for Addiction Medicine, Journal of Psychoactive Drugs, 29:3, 263-268, DOI: 10.1080/02791072.1997.10400200
- 11. Tellier PP, Bélanger E, Rodríguez C, Ware MA, Posel N. Improving undergraduate medical education about pain assessment and management: a qualitative descriptive study of stakeholders' perceptions. Pain Res Manage. 2013; 18(5):259-265. https://www.hindawi.com/journals/prm/2013/920961/
- 12. Stevens DL, King D, Laponis R, et al. Medical students retain pain assessment and management skills long after an experiential curriculum: A controlled study. Pain 2009; 145: 319-24.

For more information about this abstract please contact mjacomin@health.fau.edu

<u>Faculty Development Interests of Millennial Faculty Compared to Boomers and</u> Gen X Faculty: Are there differences?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Michael Rowland, University of Kentucky Carol Elam, University of Kentucky College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What are the generational needs and differences of Baby Boomers, Generation X and Millennial Faculty.

Background and relevance of the study:

Faculty development designers have become increasingly challenged in meeting the diverse career and professional development needs of an ever-changing faculty body. Generational diversity in medicine is reflected in how each generation receives and understands knowledge generation and mechanisms for facilitation of knowledge and skills.

Design and Methods:

An anonymous 18 item online faculty development needs assessment survey was emailed to all 1277 College of Medicine faculty. Responses were received from 310 faculty [Millennials: 98(31%), Generation X: 144(46%), Boomers 68(22%)].

Results:

Setting the standard of 80% of responses designating most or somewhat interested, the faculty development programs that appealed across all three generations were active learning strategies, instructional technology, team building/team management, motivating others, personal goal setting/personal effectiveness, conflict management, negotiation skills, and using talent effectively. Conversely, setting the standard of 45% or fewer responses designating interest, little interest was indicated for sessions on teaching with standardized patients across all generations.

Generational differences were noted in responses to sessions on leading small group learning sessions with 80% of Generation X and Millennial faculty indicating interest compared to only 60% of Boomers. Similarly, 72% of Millennials were interested in sessions on teaching at the bedside compared to 36% of Boomers; 82% of Millennial faculty were interested in sessions on teaching clinical reasoning compared to 55% of Boomers. Millennial faculty indicated greater interest in sessions pertaining to research compared to the other cohorts.

Conclusions:

The results of this study suggest that faculty development professionals should consider offering a wider variety of faculty development sessions appealing to select faculty groups. Millennial faculty indicated interest in attending skill development sessions in teaching, research, and leadership areas that are life stage-appropriate to their current responsibilities and are likely to impinge on their future career success

References:

- 1. Howe N, Strauss W. Millennials Rising: The next great generation. 3rd ed. New York: Vintage.
- 2. Chen PH, Scanlon MH. Teaching radiology trainees from the perspective of a millennial. Acad Radiology 2018;25(6): 794-800.
- 3. Ebling PA, Dent DL, Kempenich JW. The millennials have arrived: What the surgeon educator needs to know to teach millennials. Surgery 2019; 05.28.19; 1-4.

- 4. Lindheim SR, Nouri P, Rabah KA, Yaklic JL. Medical professionalism and enculturation of the millennial physician: meeting of the minds. Feril Steril 2016; 106(7): 1615-1616.
- 5. Ruzycki SM, Desy JR, Lachman N, Wolanskyj-Spinner AP. Medical education for Millennials: How anatomists are doing it right. Clinical Anatomy 2019; 32:20-25.
- 6. Williams VN, Medina J, Medina A, Clifton S. Bridging the Millennial Generation Expectation Gap: Perspectives and strategies for physician and interprofessional faculty. Amer J. Medical Sciences 2017:353(2) 109-115.

For more information about this abstract please contact $\underline{\mathsf{michael}.\mathsf{rowland@uky}.\mathsf{edu}}$

<u>Characterizing the Impact of Medical Student Clinical Exposure to Patients with</u> <u>Opioid Use Disorder on Perceptions of Stigma and Patient Care</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Mohammed Moumen, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Ewen Liu, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Roy Strowd, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Michelle Keating, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Jon Goforth, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Heather Douglas, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Jennifer Oliver, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Fang-Chi Hsu, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study sought to characterize medical students' experiences with patients with opioid use disorder (OUD), understand the features that make a patient encounter memorable, and explore factors that influence future clinical practice and/or stigma.

Background and relevance of the study:

OUD is a growing public health crisis. Despite educational initiatives, many residents and physicians do not feel comfortable working with patients with OUD. Social stigma is a roadblock to delivering equitable and effective care.

Design and Methods:

A qualitative study was conducted using Grounded Theory and purposive sampling of fourth-year medical students (M4s) enrolled at Wake Forest School of Medicine. Data collection consisted of a freetext survey, followed by semi-structured interviews. The survey served to gain an understanding of student encounters with OUD, and interviews helped gain a deeper understanding of the impact on future practice and stigma. Thematic analysis was used to analyze data.

Results:

A total of 170 out of 237 students (RR = 71.7%) completed the free-text survey, and twelve students were interviewed. Patient encounters occurred in three primary settings: Emergency Department, Inpatient Clerkship, or Narcotics Anonymous meetings. Clinical encounters were memorable when there was: conflict with patients/teams, complicated care, inadequate care, and relevance to the student's future career. Memorable encounters influenced future practice by changing students' approaches to: future treatment, future communication, or professionalism. Regarding OUD stigma, students reported that these encounters made them: more aware of stereotypes in medicine, stereotypes in their personal lives, and generated actions that students want to take.

Conclusions:

An influential clinical encounter has the potential to influence medical students' clinical management and stigma towards OUD. Impactful encounters increased knowledge of OUD and fostered empathy and perspective-taking. Not all encounters had a defining impact on students' stigma toward OUD. Medical schools need to create opportunities that will have lasting impact by encouraging students to fully engage with patients with OUD.

References:

- 1.What is the U.S. Opioid Epidemic? 2019; Available from: https://www.hhs.gov/opioids/about-the-epidemic/index.html.
- 2.Sokol, R.J.K., K., Training Future Physicians to Address Opioid Crisis, in AAMC News & Insights. 2017: AAMC.
- 3.ACGME. Opioid Use Disorder. Initiatives 2019; Available from: https://www.acgme.org/What-We-Do/Initiatives/Opioid-Use-Disorder.
- 4. Howley, L., A. Whelan, and T. Rasouli, Addressing the opioid epidemic: US medical school curricular approaches. Analysis in Brief, 2018. 18(1).
- 5.Wallace, P.M., et al., Developing an opioid curriculum for medical students: A consensus report from a national symposium. Subst Abus, 2019: p. 1-7.
- 6. Wakeman, S.E., G. Pham-Kanter, and K. Donelan, Attitudes, practices, and preparedness to care for patients with substance use disorder: Results from a survey of general internists. Subst Abus, 2016. 37(4): p. 635-641.
- 7.Renner, J.A., Jr., Counteracting the Effect of Stigma on Education for Substance Use Disorders. Focus (Am Psychiatr Publ), 2019. 17(2): p. 134-140.
- 8. Avery, J., et al., Improvement in Residents' Attitudes Toward Individuals with Substance Use Disorders Following an Online Training Module on Stigma. HSS J, 2019. 15(1): p. 31-36.
- 9.Horner, G., et al., "You're kind of at war with yourself as a nurse": Perspectives of inpatient nurses on treating people who present with a comorbid opioid use disorder. PLoS One, 2019. 14(10): p. e0224335.
- 10.Pettigrew, T.F. and L.R. Tropp, A meta-analytic test of intergroup contact theory. J Pers Soc Psychol, 2006. 90(5): p. 751-83.
- 11. Pettigrew, T. and L. Tropp, How Does Intergroup Contact Reduce Prejudice? Meta-Analytic Tests of Three Mediators. European Journal of Social Psychology, 2008. 38: p. 922-934.
- 12. Khidir, H. and S.G. Weiner, A Call for Better Opioid Prescribing Training and Education. West J Emerg Med, 2016. 17(6): p. 686-689.
- 13. Feeley, R.J., et al., A Focused Addiction Curriculum and Its Impact on Student Knowledge, Attitudes, and Confidence in the Treatment of Patients with Substance Use. Acad Psychiatry, 2018. 42(2): p. 304-308.

For more information about this abstract please contact mmoumen@wakehealth.edu

<u>Behavior Characteristics, Stressors, and Response to Remediation for Students</u> With Recurrent Professional Behavior Lapses

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Michael Ainsworth, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine Karen Szauter, University of Texas Medical Branch School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Our school tracks faculty-submitted Early Concern Notes (ECNs), which describe student professional behavior lapses. Students who receive ≥ 3 ECNs (3E students) have previously been shown to have less favorable outcomes than other students.1 We questioned (A) whether 3E students were distinguishable from students with fewer ECNs based on types of behaviors reported, reactions to being confronted with the behaviors, or measures of academic performance and personal stressors; and (B) the impact of remediation on medical school outcomes.

Background and relevance of the study:

Professionalism is a core tenet of medicine and an expectation of patients who entrust their lives to physicians. While many publications address professionalism curricula and intervention programs, less is known about identifying students at highest risk, or outcomes of actual remediation.2,3,4

Design and Methods:

Twenty-eight students received \geq 3 ECNs between 2011-2020. We recorded: unprofessional behaviors reported for 3E students; whether they were judged at the time of their first ECN to recognize and accept responsibility for their actions; academic performance; and any identified personal stressors. We recorded whether remediation was prescribed, and ultimate medical school outcome (graduation/dismissal).

Results:

The nature or perceived egregiousness of unprofessional behaviors reported for 3E students were indistinguishable from those of students with fewer ECNs. All 28 3E students had been judged as resistant to recognizing or accepting responsibility for their actions. Academically, 82% of 3E students experienced course failures, a rate far exceeding that of students with fewer, or no ECNs. The most common added stress characteristics identified were medical/mental illness, social anxiety or neurodiverse characteristics, and a pattern of immature behavior. Seventeen 3E students graduated, including 10 of 15 prescribed remediation activities. Seven students were dismissed and 4 remain enrolled.

Conclusions:

Students with recurrent professional behavior lapses are a diverse group of high-risk individuals. Proper identification, support, and attention to underlying issues is essential to promote success in these learners.

References:

- 1. Ainsworth M, Szauter K. Student response to reports of unprofessional behavior: assessing risk of subsequent professional problems in medical school. Medical Education Online, 2018;23:1. 1485432, DOI: 10.1080/10872981.2018.1485432.
- 2. Mak-van der Vossen M, Teherani A, van Mook W, Croiset G, Kusurkar RA. How to identify, address and report students' unprofessional behaviour in medical school. Medical Teacher. 2020;42(4):372-9.
- 3. Mak-van der Vossen MC, de la Croix A, Teherani A, van Mook WN, Croiset G, Kusurkar RA. A road map for attending to

medical students' professionalism lapses. Academic Medicine. 2019;94(4):570-8.

4 Brennan N, Price T, Archer J, Brett J. Remediating professionalism lapses in medical students and doctors: A systematic review. Medical Education. 2020;54(3):196-204.

For more information about this abstract please contact MAINSWOR@UTMB.EDU

<u>Vaccine Recommendations in Standardized Patient Encounters: How</u> Ambivalent Communication Undermines Best Practices

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Eric Brian, University of Louisville Emily Noonan, University of Louisville School of Medicine Laura Weingartner, University of Louisville School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

In this project, we explored how medical students discuss vaccine recommendations in standardized patient encounters. We aimed to identify model language and to understand whether students' verbal discussions with patients aligned with their objective recommendations.

Background and relevance of the study:

Communication skills impact patient care, and patient uptake with vaccines is strongly associated with physician recommendations [1-2]. In the context of the COVID-19 pandemic, vaccine hesitancy is also both widespread and highly consequential [3-4]. Exploring student communication around vaccine recommendations is therefore critical for understanding how to train students to practice effective communication strategies that promote widespread vaccination.

Design and Methods:

We coded a random sample of video-recorded standardized patient encounters with rising third-year medical students. The patient was establishing primary care, had not received care in over a decade, and asked the student about "shots needed." We recorded students' vaccine recommendations and transcribed the language used to discuss vaccines. We compared this language with a post-encounter assessment that directly asked students about recommending various preventive care measures for the patient, including certain vaccines.

Results:

Among 63 coded encounters, vaccine discussions were categorized as directly recommended, suggested, not recommended, or not discussed. With the human papillomavirus (HPV) vaccine, for example, only 12.7% of students directly recommended the vaccine verbally to patients. Other students instead used indirect language (e.g., "you can get it if you want"). This contrasted the post-encounter assessment, in which 40.3% of students indicated that they were likely to recommend the HPV vaccine to the patient.

Conclusions:

Ambivalent language can undermine students' messaging regarding vaccine importance. The low recommendation rates and indirect language observed here may indicate that students lack vaccine confidence and knowledge or that students overestimate patients' understanding of immunizations. In our study, the most effective vaccine recommendation language highlighted both patient autonomy and definitively emphasized the importance of vaccines as a preventive care measure.

References:

- 1. Rosenthal S, Weiss TW, Zimet GD, Ma L, Good M, Vichnin M. Predictors of HPV vaccine uptake among women aged 19–26: importance of a physician's recommendation. Vaccine. 2011;29(5):890-895.
- 2. Wiley KE, Massey PD, Cooper SC, et al. Uptake of influenza vaccine by pregnant women: a cross-sectional survey. Medical

Journal of Australia. 2013;198(7):373-375.

- 3. Dror AA, Eisenbach N, Taiber S, et al. Vaccine hesitancy: the next challenge in the fight against COVID-19. European Journal of Epidemiology. 2020;35(8):775-779.
- 4. Lazarus JV, Ratzan SC, Palayew A, et al. A global survey of potential acceptance of a COVID-19 vaccine. Nature Medicine. 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact laura.weingartner@louisville.edu

<u>Digitization of Medical School Education In Response to COVID-19: Attitudes</u> <u>and Perspectives of Medical Faculty to New Virtual Curriculums</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Noah Newman, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Mohammad Ramadan, Università degli Studi della Campania "Luigi Vanvitelli" Yenya Hu, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To examine medical school faculty experiences with digital resources before and during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Background and relevance of the study:

Guidelines during COVID-19 challenged the medical education system, limiting clinical rotations and student involvement in direct patient care and substituting traditional in-person learning with digital lectures [1,2]. While preclinical curricula were becoming increasingly digital-based prior to the pandemic, the clinical years remained mostly in-person. Despite the major challenges to medical education, few studies have investigated faculty perceptions of digitized medical education and quantified the impact of COVID-19 on the education of a future generation of physicians.

Design and Methods:

This is a single-center, cross-sectional study utilizing a REDcap survey. We surveyed all Wake Forest School of Medicine course-directing faculty (n=52) for MD students during the 2019-2020 academic calendar. Survey questions focused on respondents' experiences before and during student displacement from in-person learning secondary to COVID-19. Data was analyzed using Chi-squared and Fisher's exact tests in SPSS.

Results:

Response rate among faculty was 50%. Faculty reported decreased utilization of clinical settings and inperson lectures (p<0.01), and expressed concern that student learning hours were less than they should be during student displacement (p<0.001). Of faculty interested in increasing digital teaching (75%), resources of interest included video lectures (79%), educational games (53%), and podcasts (58%). While a minority of faculty reported using telehealth to teach (32%), about half of those who used telehealth enjoyed it (44%), believed it was an effective learning tool (44%), and wanted to continue using it (55%).

Conclusions:

Pandemic-induced curricula changes forced many faculty to rely on digital teaching alternatives. These data suggest that most faculty are interested in further adopting digital resources. Therefore, medical education leaders should push development and implementation of more virtual teaching modalities such as telemedicine and reconsider traditional in-person medical teaching paradigms.

References:

- 1. AAMC, Important Guidance for Medical Students on Clinical Rotations During the Coronavirus (COVID-19) Outbreak. 2020.
- 2. CDC. Interim Guidance: Get Your Mass Gatherings or Large Community Events Ready for Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 2020 April 5, 2020; Available from: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/Mass-Gatherings-Document_FINAL.pdf.

For more information about this abstract please contact nanewman@wakehealth.edu

The role for simulation in professional identity formation in medical students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Moshe Feldman, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Cherie Edwards, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Alice Wong, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Jessica Randolph, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Christopher Woleben, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Andrew Nguyen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Catherine Grossman, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study explored student professional identity experiences related to participation in a clinical simulation during the first week of medical school.

Background and relevance of the study:

Implementation of structured professional identity formation experiences in the curriculum is challenging especially early in medical education. The paradigm shift towards individualized learning plans and competency-based education have decreased time to graduation, and highlighted the need for medical students to acculturate sooner in their training when clinical opportunities are scarce. Simulation may offer one mechanism for relevant clinical experiences for students to self reflect on their roles as student-physicians.

Design and Methods:

All matriculating M1 students participated in a 45-minute Simulation-based Orientation to Medical School (SOMS). Goals of the SOMS were to orient students to simulation based clinical learning environments and introduce the concept of teamwork skills in clinical medicine. Each team rotated through three separate clinically relevant simulation scenarios designed to require the minimum level of medical knowledge expected from a beginning first year student to successfully complete each task. Participants completed evaluation surveys measuring PIF related experiences during the SOMS.

Results:

All participants completed the survey (n=186). Students agreed that the SOMS helped them feel what it is like to be a doctor (90%) and transition to the role of student-physician (91%). Student comments about the SOMS reflected PIF related processes such as building a sense of a community of practice among their peers in their roles as a healthcare team. Students also valued the opportunity to engage in reflection about their roles as student-physicians.

Conclusions:

Simulation experiences can be used as a trigger for self-reflection and to assist in medical student professional identity development as early as the first weeks of medical school. Opportunities to reinforce experiences that contribute to professional identity formation with simulation should be integrated longitudinally in the curriculum.

References:

- 1. Cruess RL, Cruess SR, Boudreau JD, Snell L, Steinert Y. Reframing medical education to support professional identity formation. Academic Medicine 2014; 89(11):1446-1451. doi: 10.1097/ACM.000000000000427.
- 2. Holden M, Buck E, Clark M, Szauter K, Trumble J. Professional identity formation in medical education: the convergence of

multiple domains. In HEC forum, Vol. 24 (4). Springer Netherlands, 2012, pp 245-255.

- 3. Merill MD. A pebble-in-the-pond model for instructional design. Performance Improvement 2002; 41(7):39-44.
- 4. Ong YT, Kow CS, Teo YH, En Tan LH, Abdurrahman AB, Sheng Quek NW, Prakash K, et. al. Nurturing professionalism in medical schools. A systematic scoping review of training curricula between 1990–2019. Medical Teacher 2020; 42(6):636-649. doi: 10.1080/0142159X.2020.1724921

For more information about this abstract please contact moshe.feldman@vcuhealth.org

Impact of Racial (In)justice Events on Matriculating Medical Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Curtis Reiber, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Nicholas Hooper, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Cherie Edwards, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Nicole Deiorio, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Meagan Rawls, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Moshe Feldman, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Donna Jackson, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How have recent social injustice events impacted the self-reported wellbeing and school preparation of incoming medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

Recent racial injustices and social activism efforts have created a national spotlight that highlights systemic disadvantages and healthcare disparity (1). For medical matriculants, these events can present unique challenges as well as learning opportunities and identity formation. Understanding how students respond to major societal stressors is essential for designing interventions to maintain psychological health and optimize learning.

Design and Methods:

188 matriculating medical students from the Class of 2024 were asked to, "Describe how the recent social injustices related to police brutality towards persons of color and social action such as protests and statue removal has impacted your perceptions, wellness, and/or preparation for attending medical school at Virginia Commonwealth University (VCU)?" Qualitative analysis involved a mixed deductive and inductive approach, with emergent themes validated through team review (2-3).

Results:

115 of 188 matriculants responded (62%). 75% expressed a eustress response, grouped into three emergent themes: desire for action or change, heightened awareness, and university/community pride. Among the eustress cohort, students felt "empowered to incorporate racial justice into education and medical practice." 24% of the 115 expressed a distressing response, grouped into two emergent themes: personal stress and university/community concerns. The distressing cohort expressed feelings of hopelessness, anxiety, and worry in response to "the alarming [nature] of racism and police brutality" and subsequent environmental stressors.

Conclusions:

Recent events present a unique opportunity for medical education reform and program development to optimize learning from these events with the hopes of promoting activism and social awareness among future physicians. Medical students responded to social injustice events and local social activism efforts with both empowerment and mental distress. Understanding the impacts of these events can be useful for mitigating negative psychological health outcomes and promoting socially conscious physicians.

References:

- 1. Fiscella K. & Sanders M. R. (2016) Racial and Ethnic Disparities in the Quality of Health Care. Annual Review of Public Health, 37: 375-394. https://doi.org/10.1146/annurev-publhealth-032315-021439
- 2. Elo S. & Kyngäs H. The qualitative content analysis process. J Adv Nurs. 2008 Apr; 62(1):107-15. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2648.2007.04569
- 3. Thomas DR. A General Inductive Approach for Analyzing Qualitative Evaluation Data. American Journal of Evaluation. 2006;27(2):237-246. https://doi.org/10.1177/1098214005283748

For more information about this abstract please contact reiberc@vcu.edu

Medical school matriculant wellness in the era of COVID-19 and social injustice

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Curtis Reiber, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Nicholas Hooper, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Moshe Feldman, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Nicole Deiorio, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Michelle Whitehurst-Cook, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Keith Baker, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

What effects have COVID-19 and social (in)justice events had on the wellbeing of matriculating medical students?

Background and relevance of the study:

For the incoming 2020 medical school class, the stress at matriculation included two new factors: COVID-19 pandemic and social (in)justice events. Understanding their impact on matriculants is essential for adaptation to support and improve students' psychological health and mitigate potential negative educational outcomes.

Design and Methods:

A cohort control quantitative study evaluated the stress and well-being of a single-site matriculating classes at orientation from 2018 through 2020. Surveys measured well-being(1), perceived stress (PS)(1), self-reported resilience(1), and academic self-concept (ASC)(2). Between-subject ANOVA analysis was used to test for differences between the class of 2020 and the control classes of 2018/2019. Bonferroni post-hoc tests checked for significant differences between each cohort. Pearson correlations examined associations between the four-study variables.

Results:

542/564 students responded from three cohorts [average response rate of 96% (range 90-99%)] No differences existed between the control classes entering in 2018/2019 on all variables. Statistically significant differences appeared in resilience, ASC, well-being, and PS for the class of 2024. There were reductions in well-being (16.28 ± 4.14 ; p=.003), overall resilience (3.46 ± 0.65 ; p=.016), and academic self-concept (3.05 ± 0.30 ; p=.002). Incoming medical students' perceived stress was increased (5.43 ± 2.0 ; p=.000).

PS negatively correlated with overall well-being (r = -0.61; p < 0.05). Moderate positive correlations were found between ASC and both well-being (r = 0.40; p < 0.05) and PS (r = 0.40; p < 0.05), respectively. A moderate negative correlation existed between PS and resilience (3).

Conclusions:

2020 matriculants demonstrated lower overall resilience, well-being, and ASC, as well as increased PS. This may be due to reactions to injustices, online learning, re-evaluation of career path, and social isolation while moving to new areas (4-8). Implementations should develop social support structures, heighten awareness and education on COVID-19 and social justice topics, and increase resources (3).

References:

- 1. Juul L, Johanne Pallesen K, Bjerggaard M, Nielsen C, Overby Fjorback L. A pilot randomised trial comparing a mindfulness-based stress reduction course, a locally-developed stress reduction intervention and a waiting list control group in a real-life municipal health care setting. BMC Public Health. 2020 Mar 30; 20(409).
- 2. Reynolds WM, Ramirez MP, Magrina A, Allen JE. Initial development and validation of the academic self-concept scale. Educ Psychol Meas. 1980; 40: 1013-1017.
- 3. Ungar M, Theron L. Resilience and mental health: how multisystemic processes contribute to positive outcomes. Lancet Psychiatry. 2020 May;7(5):441-448. https://doi.org/10.1016/S2215-0366(19)30434-1.
- 4. Xiong J, et al. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on mental health in the general population: A systematic review. J. Affect Disord. 2020 Dec 1; 277: 55-64.
- 5. Ferrel MN, Ryan JJ. The Impact of COVID-19 on Medical Education. Cureus. 2020 Mar 31;12(3):e7492. https://doi.org/10.7759/cureus.7492.
- 6. Meo SA, Abukhalaf AA, Alomar AA, Sattar K, Klonoff DC. COVID-19 Pandemic: Impact of Quarantine on Medical Students' Mental Wellbeing and Learning Behaviors. Pak J Med Sci. 2020 May;36(COVID19-S4): S43-S48. https://doi.org/10.12669/pjms.36.COVID19-S4.2809.
- 7. Alsufi A., et al. Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on medical education: Medical students' knowledge attitudes, and practices regarding electronic learning. PlosOne. 2020 Nov 25. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0242905
- 8. Bor J, Venkataramani AS, Williams DR, Tsai AC. Police killings and their spillover effects on the mental health of black Americans: a population-based, quasi-experimental study. Lancet. 2018 Jul 28;392(10144):302-310. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(18)31130-9.

For more information about this abstract please contact reiberc@vcu.edu

<u>The Correlation Between Clinical Science Mastery Series Self-Assessment</u> Results and Performance on NBME Clinical Science Subject Examinations

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Brooke Shipley, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Hong Gao, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To investigate the overall correlation between clinical science mastery series (CSMS) self-assessments and clinical science subject (shelf) examination scores, and the correlation between the two when self-assessments are taken within one week, one to two weeks, and over two weeks from the shelf examination.

Background and relevance of the study:

CSMS vouchers were provided by the school beginning with the cohort of MS2020 due to shortened clerkships. This analysis investigates the relevance of continuing to provide CSMS vouchers for future cohorts.

Design and Methods:

Data for this analysis is derived from the cohorts of MS2020 and MS2021. Significance of correlation was tested using Pearson product-moment correlation coefficients on records where students took a self-assessment prior to the respective shelf examination for seven clerkships (N = 888). First-attempt scores were used for both CSMS and shelf examination scores, with subsequent attempts being eliminated from the dataset.

Results:

Overall correlation between CSMS and shelf examination results is moderate with a Pearson's correlation coefficient of 0.55. 297 (33.45%) self-assessments were taken over two weeks from the date of the shelf examination, 432 (48.65%) were taken between one and two weeks from the shelf examination, and 159 (17.91%) were taken within a week of the shelf examination. The Pearson's correlation coefficient was 0.47, 0.53, and 0.6 for each timeframe, respectively, indicating that the closer the self-assessments are taken to the shelf examination, the more predictive the self-assessments are for actual shelf examination performance.

Conclusions:

While CSMS self-assessments may be valuable for students to assess their own understanding and to target knowledge gaps by using feedback on incorrectly answered questions, the correlation coefficients suggest that CSMS self-assessments are of limited value in predicting actual shelf examination performance. Self-assessments taken closer in time to the shelf examination provide the most predictive ability in actual shelf examination performance.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact b.shipley@wakehealth.edu

Medical Residents as Community Health Educators

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Karina Albab, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School Alejandro Moreno, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To determine the effectiveness of residents as community educators as well as the significance of racial, gender, and linguistic educator-learner concordance for community health events.

Background and relevance of the study:

Residents are effective educators of their peers and medical students; however, little is known about them as community educators. One study found that when internal medicine residents taught community members about geriatric health, they were found to deliver information clearly (1). Moreover, previous studies have found that patient-physician racial concordance is associated with higher patient-perceived communication levels (2). We surveyed attendees of community health events to determine the effectiveness of residents as educators as well as the significance of educator-learner concordance.

Design and Methods:

One-hour informational talks were held by physicians at various community centers providing education on cardiovascular health. Participants received a booklet before the informational session containing questions on their demographics as well as ten content-based questions. After the session, participants were asked to complete the same ten content-based questions. Statistical software was used to analyze the data collected.

Results:

247 people attended 18 events and returned surveys. 67% of the participants identified as women and the majority of attendees were non-white Hispanics. Scores improved on average 9 points between the pre-and post-session questionnaires (p <.0001). Educator level (PGY-1, PGY-3, or attending) did not significantly contribute to score change. Gender concordance did not significantly affect score change while language and racial concordance did.

Conclusions:

Residents, regardless of education level, were able to effectively educate community members. Although there was some evidence that educator-learner racial and language concordance affected immediate knowledge gain; the results were limited by the small number of educators involved in the events. Although further research is required, this study illuminates both the effectiveness of residents as public health educators and the importance of diversity when recruiting for such community events.

References:

- 1. Miller RK, Michener J, Yang P, et al. Effect of a Community-Based Service Learning Experience in Geriatrics on Internal Medicine Residents and Community Participants. J Am Geriatr Soc. 2017;65(9):E130-E134.
- 2. Shen, M. J., Peterson, E. B., Costas-Muñiz, R., Hernandez, M. H., Jewell, S. T., Matsoukas, K., & Bylund, C. L. (2018). The effects of race and racial concordance on patient-physician communication: a systematic review of the literature. Journal of racial and ethnic health disparities, 5(1), 117-140.

For more information about this abstract please contact karina.albab@utexas.edu

<u>Segregation Predicts COVID-19 Fatalities in Less Densely Populated Counties</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: SGEA

Authors:

Becky Li, Nova Southeastern University Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine Ryan Quinn, University of Pennsylvania School of Nursing Salimah Meghani, University of Pennsylvania School of Nursing Jesse Chittams, University of Pennsylvania School of Nursing Vijay Rajput, Nova Southeastern University, Dr. Kiran C. Patel College of Allopathic Medicine,

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Which social determinants of health, if any, are important predictors of COVID-19 outcomes?

Background and relevance of the study:

There is a growing emphasis on integrating social determinants of health (SDoH) into medical education; the prevailing question is how to do so in a meaningful way. Decision trees are useful machine-learning tools with broad applications across fields including medicine. Here we explore a unique application of using decision tree analysis to identify the county-level SDoH that contribute to COVID-19 outcomes.

Design and Methods:

County-specific COVID-19 fatality data from California, Illinois, and New York—three US states with the highest county-level COVID-19 fatalities as of June 15, 2020—were analyzed. Twenty-three county-level SDoH were considered. Decision tree analysis visualized associations among SDoH and counties most at risk for high COVID-19 fatality.

Results:

Population density, segregation (between white and non-white populations), and preventable hospitalization rates were key predictors of COVID-19 fatalities. Segregation is a predictor of COVID-19 fatalities in counties of low population density. Model AUC was 0.79, sensitivity was 74%, specificity was 76%.

Conclusions:

The findings support the influence of SDoH on health outcomes, including COVID-19 outcomes, and display the success of decision tree analysis used in this context. These findings display the decision tree's potential in medical education in exploring complex relationships. While population density correlates to COVID-19 fatality, our study also finds that segregation contributes to COVID-19 fatality in less densely populated counties. These findings have implications for COVID-19 resource planning and require appropriate attention.

References:

- 1. Sharma, Malika MD, MEd; Pinto, Andrew D. MD, MSc; Kumagai, Arno K. MD Teaching the Social Determinants of Health: A Path to Equity or a Road to Nowhere?, Academic Medicine: January 2018 Volume 93 Issue 1 p 25-30 doi: 10.1097/ACM.00000000001689
- 3. Podgorelec V, Kokol P, Stiglic B, Rozman I. Decision trees: an overview and their use in medicine. J Med Syst. 2002 Oct;26(5):445-63. doi: 10.1023/a:1016409317640. PMID: 12182209.

For more information about this abstract please contact beckyli39@gmail.com

WGEA Research Abstracts

Stereotype threat in women internal medicine residents

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Annabel Frank, UCSF
Sophia Bellin Warren, Brigham and Women's Hospital
Justin Bullock, UCSF
Maria Yialamas, Brigham and Women's Hospital
Rebecca Berman, UCSF
Karen Hauer, UCSF

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Stereotype threat (ST) is a phenomenon in which performance is impaired due to fear of confirming negative stereotypes. We explore the prevalence and impact of ST amongst women internal medicine residents.

Background and relevance of the study:

Women in academic medicine are underrepresented in leadership positions, paid less, and experience lower perception of potential. ST may contribute to these disparities. To create an equitable environment for women physicians, we must understand how ST impacts their learning experience.

Design and Methods:

This mixed-methods study used an explanatory sequential design with a survey followed by focus groups. In 2019, we invited all UCSF internal medicine residents to complete a survey adapted from the stereotype vulnerability scale (SVS). We invited women who endorsed ST, defined as a score ≥18, to participate in focus groups. We are using an inductive approach for ongoing thematic analysis.

Results:

Survey response rate was 60.4% (110/182), with 65 women and 45 men. Among respondents, significantly more women endorsed ST compared to men (80% v 2.2%, p <0.001), with respective mean SVS scores 21.4 and 11.6 out of 30. 17 women participated in 3 focus groups. Preliminary thematic analysis shows that participants perceive that patients, nurses, and other physicians doubt their clinical acumen and question their authority. Lack of respect manifests by being ignored or interrupted, or not receiving credit for their contributions. They perceive "pushback" when giving orders and do not feel recognized as leaders, especially in high-acuity clinical settings. They find the stereotypical expectation to be warm at all times "exhausting" and struggle with assertiveness, receiving feedback they are either "pushy" or "indecisive." They sometimes avoid asking questions and devote energy to proving themselves and maintaining confidence.

Conclusions:

Women residents are vulnerable to ST. Gender dynamics in the inpatient setting place a high cognitive load burden on women residents that may detract from their training.

References:

- 1. Spencer SJ, Steele CM, Quinn DM. Stereotype Threat and Women's Math Performance. Journal of Experimental Social Psychology. 1999;35(1):4-28.
- 2. Pennington CR, Heim D, Levy AR, Larkin DT. Twenty Years of Stereotype Threat Research: A Review of Psychological

Mediators. Pavlova MA, ed. PLoS ONE. 2016;11(1):e0146487.

- 3. Pololi LH, Civian JT, Brennan RT, Dottolo AL, Krupat E. Experiencing the Culture of Academic Medicine: Gender Matters, A National Study. Journal of General Internal Medicine. 2013;28(2):201-207.
- 4. Fassiotto M, Hamel EO, Ku M, et al. Women in Academic Medicine: Measuring Stereotype Threat Among Junior Faculty. Journal of Women's Health. 2016;25(3):292-298.
- 5. Butkus R, Serchen J, Moyer DV, Bornstein SS, Hingle ST, for the Health and Public Policy Committee of the American College of Physicians. Achieving Gender Equity in Physician Compensation and Career Advancement: A Position Paper of the American College of Physicians. Ann Intern Med. 2018;168(10):721.
- 6. Creswell JW, Clark VL. Designing and Conducting Mixed Methods Research. Sage Publications; 2017 Aug 31.

For more information about this abstract please contact annabel.frank@ucsf.edu

<u>Impact of Being a Medical Student Peer Instructor on Professional Skills and</u> Career Development

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Sofia Dhanani, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California
Annika Lenz, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California
Brian Chung, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California
Brandon Yoshida, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California
Jacqueline Stoneburner, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California
Nadia Sellami, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How does participating as a peer instructor influence a medical student's leadership skills, professionalism, career development, and sense of belonging?

Background and relevance of the study:

While prior studies demonstrated that self-perceived benefits of peer tutoring include professionalism, and increased likelihood of teaching in the future, these results were not quantified, lacked specificity, and did not explore the experiences of medical students. We aim to comprehensively understand the qualities gained by medical student peer content creators for the Keck Online Learning Initiative (KOLI), who create flashcards, Keck Anatomy Mentorship Program (KAMP) mentors, who tutor anatomy, Keck Peer Instruction Program (KPIP) instructors, who provide interactive lectures to their students, and academic coaches (AC), who are one-on-one peer tutors.

Design and Methods:

In this cross-sectional study, 84 current and former medical students from the Keck School of Medicine of USC evaluated the impact of their participation in KOLI, KAMP, KPIP, and/or AC on their leadership skills, professionalism, career development, and sense of belonging. The data was collected in a survey which assessed 15 aspects of leadership, 14 aspects of professionalism, 7 aspects of career development, and 8 aspects of sense of belonging using a 5-point Likert-scale, as well as multiple openended responses. Descriptive, as well as univariate and multivariate analyses, are currently ongoing.

Results:

Preliminary analyses demonstrate that the greatest positive impacts were in career development and professionalism, where over 70% of participants agreed or strongly agreed that they benefited in 6/7 and 12/14 aspects tested, respectively. The area of least impact was sense of belonging. The single most common skill gained was the confidence to teach medical concepts to peers, which 99% of respondents reported.

Conclusions:

By identifying specific skills gained through peer tutoring, we can help develop programs that facilitate the growth of future physicians who can effectively teach other physicians and lead the field of medicine.

References:

1. Allikmets, S., & Vink, J. (2016). The benefits of peer-led teaching in medical education. Advances in Medical Education and Practice, 7, 329–330. https://doi.org/10.2147/amep.s107776

- 2. Burgess, A., McGregor, D., & Mellis, C. (2014). Medical students as peer tutors: a systematic review. BMC Medical Education, 14(1), 115. https://doi.org/10.1186/1472-6920-14-115
- 3. Burgess, A., Roberts, C., van Diggele, C., & Mellis, C. (2017). Peer teacher training (PTT) program for health professional students: interprofessional and flipped learning. BMC Medical Education, 17(1), 239. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-017-1037-6

For more information about this abstract please contact sdhanani@usc.edu

Skeptical self-regulation: Resident experiences of uncertainty about uncertainty

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jonathan Ilgen, University of Washington Glenn Regehr, University of British Columbia Faculty of Medicine Pim Teunissen, Maastricht University Jonathan Sherbino, McMaster University Anique de Bruin, University of Maastricht

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We aimed to explore novice trainees' experiences with uncertainty in practice, seeking to understand the unique cues that they attended to and how they thought through potential responses to these difficult moments.

Background and relevance of the study:

Practicing clinicians draw from past experiences to gather clues about complex clinical situations, concurrently thinking through steps they might try to address, disambiguate, and monitor these challenging moments.[1-4] We were interested in exploring how novice clinicians managed similar situations in a supervised training environment.

Design and Methods:

Informed by constructivist grounded theory,[5] we explored how novice emergency medicine trainees experienced and managed clinical uncertainty in practice. Using a critical incident technique,[6] we prompted participants to reflect on experiences with uncertainty immediately following a clinical shift, exploring the cues they attended to and the approaches they used to navigate these moments. Two investigators coded line-by-line using constant comparison, organizing the narratives into focused codes. The research team discussed the relationships between these codes and developed a set of themes that supported our efforts to theorize about the phenomenon.

Results:

Trainees attended to multiple cues during moments of uncertainty, stemming from the root causes of the patient problems they were facing and the potential management steps that they might take. Yet they also expressed a pervasive sense of uncertainty about their own abilities and appraisals of a situation, which caused struggles with their selection, interpretation, and use of cues in their environment. Participants invoked several approaches to combat this sense of uncertainty about themselves, rehearsing steps before a clinical encounter, checking interpretations with others, and calibrating their appraisals to those of their supervisors and more experienced team members.

Conclusions:

Trainees' struggles with the legitimacy of their interpretations impacted their experiences with uncertainty. Recognizing these ongoing struggles may enable supervisors to provide more effective scaffolding, validation, and calibration of clinical judgments and patient management.

References:

1. Ilgen JS, Eva KW, de Bruin A, Cook DA, Regehr G. Comfort with uncertainty: reframing our conceptions of how clinicians navigate complex clinical situations. Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract. 2019;24:797-809.

- 2. Cristancho S, Lingard L, Forbes T, Ott M, Novick R. Putting the puzzle together: the role of 'problem definition' in complex clinical judgement. Med Educ. 2017;51:207-214.
- 3. Cristancho S, Lingard L, Regehr G. From problem solving to problem definition: scrutinizing the complex nature of clinical practice. Perspect Med Educ. 2017;6:54-57.
- 4. Moulton CA, Regehr G, Lingard L, Merritt C, MacRae H. Slowing down to stay out of trouble in the operating room: remaining attentive in automaticity. Acad Med. 2010;85:1571-1577.
- 5. Charmaz K. Constructing Grounded Theory: A practical guide through qualitative analysis. 2nd ed. London: Sage Publications; 2014.
- 6. Flanagan JC. The critical incident technique. Psychol Bull. 1954;51:327-358.

For more information about this abstract please contact ilgen@uw.edu

A Spectrum of Orthodoxy: A Systematic, Critical Review of Team-based Learning (TBL) in Undergraduate Medical Education

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Daniel Novak, Keck School of Medicine of the University of Southern California

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

In the published literature and lesson plans on TBL in UME:

- RQ1: How tightly are programs adhering to the TBL methodology in implementation?
- RQ2: In what ways are medical educators using the methodology to foster complex, multidomain thinking?

Background and relevance of the study:

Team-based Learning has been the subject of several systematic reviews since its introduction to health professions education [1,2,3], and current trends in curriculum renewal[4] have increased interest in using TBL as an active learning protocol. This study updates features of two major past reviews [2,3,] expands on previous analyses by updating the literature and focusing on the design of application exercises, and adds an additional analysis of 75 TBL lesson plans published in MedEdPortal.

Design and Methods:

The systematic review was conducted using the PRISMA standards, with eligibility criteria that focused on undergraduate medical education in the US and Europe. The initial search identified 145 papers, and 22 studies published from 2009 to 2020; the second phase of analysis reviewed 75 TBL lesson plans published through MedEdPortal since 2005.

Results:

The review of published studies indicates that programs implement TBL along a spectrum of orthodoxy, with most studies including the key features of TBL, but some radically redesigning the protocol. TBL lesson plans focused mainly on basic or clinical science content in isolation, with few focusing on health systems science content or multi-science topics. The lesson plans were found to use objectives that were insufficiently complex for TBL application problems, negating a key strength of TBL.

Conclusions:

While no studies reported negative results for their students regardless of their degree of orthodox adherence, opportunities exist to improve the design and implementation of TBL sessions in UME. Scaffolding tools such as design planners and session templates may help instructors design more complex TBL experiences that are better aligned with the strengths of the methodology.

References:

- 1. Searle NS, Haidet P, Kelly PA, Schneider VF, Seidel CL, Richards BF. Team learning in medical education: Initial experiences at ten institutions. Acad Med. 2003;78(10 SUPPL.):55-58. doi:10.1097/00001888-200310001-00018
- 2. Burgess AW, McGregor DM, Mellis CM. Applying established guidelines to team-based learning programs in medical schools: A systematic review. Acad Med. 2014;89(4):678-688. doi:10.1097/ACM.00000000000162
- 3. Reimschisel T, Herring AL, Huang J, Minor TJ. A systematic review of the published literature on team-based learning in health professions education. Med Teach. 2017;39(12):1227-1237. doi:10.1080/0142159X.2017.1340636
- 4. Novak DA, Hallowell R, Ben-Ari R, Elliott D. A Continuum of Innovation. Acad Med. 2019;94:S79-S85. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000002909

For more information about this abstract please contact dnovak@usc.edu

Exploring the shadows of COVID-19: It's not just the faculty who are struggling to raise their children during a pandemic

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Candace Chow, University of Utah School of Medicine Michelle Vo, University of Utah School of Medicine Adam Stevenson, University of Utah School of Medicine Tom Hurtado, University of Utah School of Medicine Sara Lamb, University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We explored how medical student parents at our institution were faring during the pandemic to learn more about how we could support them.

Background and relevance of the study:

Medical students who are parents face unique challenges, including the challenge of completing medical school on time and finding childcare (2). Recommended accommodations for student parents include formal parental leave, policies for making up missed coursework (3), assistance with securing childcare (1), and provisions for social support systems (2). We have many student parents at our institution (from 2016-2020, at least 13% of graduating students had at least one child, compared to 4.5% nationwide), and wanted to learn more about the struggles they experience.

Design and Methods:

We employed a collective case study design (4). Student parents were invited via email to participate in a virtual focus group during May 2020. 12 medical students from all four years participated. The focus groups were conducted by a PhD educational researcher, recorded, and transcribed verbatim. Transcripts were coded using content analysis (5).

Results:

The codes were organized into three themes: (1) disruptions to routine, (2) support systems, and (3) desired improvements. Disruptions to routine: Students dealt with finding new childcare routines after daycares and schools closed: "...I just pretty much [study] when my baby's napping...when he's up, I don't." Support systems: Students appreciated faculty accommodations: "... towards the... [end of the] block, they... started allowing for extended testing time...normally...we have to finish by ... 3PM...by the end...they were giving us until 11 PM. Finally, students what still needed to change, including a formal parental leave policy, help finding and subsidizing childcare, and more formal support groups.

Conclusions:

The student parents at our institution face challenges, pandemic notwithstanding, and would benefit from accommodations tailored to their needs. This is of utmost importance as the COVID-19 pandemic continues and disparately impacts medical student parents.

References:

- 1. CMAJ 2019 February 25;191:E243-4. doi: 10.1503/cmaj.109-5707
- 2. Taylor JS, MacNamara MMC, Groskin A, Petras L. 2013. Medical Student-Mothers. Rhode Island Medical Journal; March 2013:42-45

- 3. Bye EM, Brisk BW, Reuter SD, Hansen KA, Nettleman MD. 2017. Pregnancy and Parenthood During Medical School. South Dakota Medicine.70(12):551-555
- 4. Merriam SB. Qualitative research: A guide to design and implementation. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass; 2009.
- 5. Kleinheksel AJ, Rockich-Winston N, Tawfik H, Wyatt TR. Demystifying Content Analysis. American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education. 2020;84(1):7113.

For more information about this abstract please contact candace.chow@hsc.utah.edu

What happens when you pay medical school faculty to teach?

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Candace Chow, University of Utah School of Medicine Jorie Colbert-Getz, University of Utah School of Medicine Kerri Shaffer, University of Utah School of Medicine Sara Lamb, University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We explored what faculty, who have FTE designated for their teaching role in the MD program, enjoy and do not enjoy about their role.

Background and relevance of the study:

Researchers have explored what incentivizes clinicians to teach, given that many are volunteers or receive little compensation. Faculty are motivated by relationships with students, watching students grow, recognition, and opportunities for growth (1). Disincentives include uninterested students, lack of support, competing responsibilities, and a lack of interest in teaching (1). Knowing that one major barrier to retaining medical school faculty is lack of financial compensation and departmental support, we implemented a "core educator" model in AY2017-2018 to provide ~190 faculty with ~31 FTE of support designated for teaching and created professional learning opportunities specifically for this group. We were interested in how this model might affect incentives/disincentives for faculty.

Design and Methods:

Two years after implementing the core educator model, 72% faculty provided feedback to "What aspect(s) of your core educator role(s) do you (1) enjoy? and (2) not enjoy?" Feedback was coded using content analysis. (2)

Results:

Faculty enjoy working with students, collaborating with other faculty, opportunities to learn, and contributing to curricular development. Faculty do not enjoy grading, administrative tasks, working with entitled/unengaged students, and balancing varying responsibilities.

Conclusions:

The finding that faculty enjoy collaborating with others and contributing to the curriculum is novel. We suspect this is due to the unique charge given to our faculty: to work with a core group to design and deliver curriculum. Unlike other studies, our data does not indicate that our faculty feel unsupported in their roles or that teaching is unimportant. This exploratory survey warrants further investigation, but provides data that is promising in showing that the core educator model cultivates a strong sense of connection with students, community among faculty, and recognition that medical educators and teaching play important roles.

References:

- 1. Wisener KM, Eva KW. Incentivizing Medical Teachers: Exploring the Role of Incentives in Influencing Motivations. Academic Medicine. 2018;93(11S):S52-S59.
- 2. Kleinheksel AJ, Rockich-Winston N, Tawfik H, Wyatt TR. Demystifying Content Analysis. American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education. 2020:84(1):7113.

For more information about this abstract please contact candace.chow@hsc.utah.edu

<u>Finding (and keeping) a voice amidst complex systems and increased</u> <u>supervision: residents' perceptions of clinical decision-making and patient care</u> <u>ownership</u>

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Margaret Robinson, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Judith Bowen, Washington State University Elson S. Floyd College of Medicine Megan Aylor, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine Sandrijn VanSchaik, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study explored relationships between clinical decision-making, autonomy, ownership of patient care and learning.

Background and relevance of the study:

Concerns about patient safety have spurred calls for increased clinical supervision of residents.1 Increasing supervision inhibits residents' autonomy which may limit their sense of ownership over patient care and impede learning.2-4 Factors that contribute to residents' perceptions of autonomy and the relationship to clinical decision-making and motivation to learn are incompletely understood. Examining these relationships may augment resident learning despite conditions of increased supervision.

Design and Methods:

We recruited 37 residents from 3 pediatric programs to participate in semi-structured interviews using critical incident technique and explored experiences related to remembered moments of decision-making.5 We analyzed data through an iterative, inductive process in which 2 investigators coded interview transcripts to generate themes. We used DedooseTM software for analysis. Institutional review boards approved this study.

Results:

We identified three major themes:

- 1) Decision-making opportunities can be diminished by a) learning environment factors (culture, sub-specialist involvement), b) patient factors (complexity, acuity), c) resident factors (seniority, knowledge, confidence).
- 2) Sense of ownership is most affected by a) relationship with patients and families, b) inclusion in decision-making.
- Cultivation of purpose is attributed to a) relationships with families, team and supervisors,b) finding and holding a voice.

Residents described ownership as being viewed as the doctor taking care of the patient, regardless of who made decisions. The degree of ownership residents felt varied by institution.

Conclusions:

The ability for residents to feel ownership over clinical care of their patients is essential to their professional development. Several factors outside residents' control affect their ability to do so, including institutional culture and patient complexity. Lessons learned from this study can help redefine

what autonomy means and empower both supervisors and residents to create an effective learning environment despite increased supervision.

References:

- 1. Ulmer C, Miller Wolman D, Johns, Wolman DM. Resident duty hours: enhancing sleep, supervision, and safety: Committee on Optimizing Graduate Medical Trainee (Resident) Hours and Work Schedules to Improve Patient Safety. National Academies Press. 2008.
- 2. Finn KM, Metlay JP, Chang Y, Nagarur A, Yang S, Landrigan CP, Iyasere C. Effect of Increased Inpatient Attending Physician Supervision on Medical Errors, Patient Safety, and Resident Education: A Randomized Clinical Trial. JAMA Internal Medicine. 2018;178(7):952-959.
- 3. McLaren K, Lord J, Murray SB, et al. Ownership of patient care: a behavioural definition and stepwise approach to diagnosing problems in trainees. Perspectives on Medical Education. 2013.
- 4. Teman NR, Gauger PG, Mullan PB, Tarpley JL, Minter RM. Entrustment of general surgery residents in the operating room: factors contributing to provision of resident autonomy. Journal of the American College of Surgeons. 2014;219(4):778-787.
- 5. Gustafson DH, Taylor JO, Thompson S, Chesney P. Assessing the needs of breast cancer patients and their families. Quality Management in Health Care 1993;2:6-17.

For more information about this abstract please contact margaret.robinson@ucsf.edu

<u>Self-regulated Learning and Entrustable Professional Activities-based</u> assessments: Initial Lessons from the UCSF Pediatric Residency Program

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Julia Shalen, UCSF Duncan Henry, UCSF Christy Boscardin, UCSF Virginie Muller-Juge, UCSF

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To investigate whether assessments grounded in Entrustable Professional Activities (EPA) facilitate self-regulated learning in pediatric residents.

Background and relevance of the study:

In the clinical learning environment, residents should be encouraged to drive their own learning. Engagement in self-regulated learning (SRL) practices (information-seeking, goal setting, progress tracking) may support this(1-3). EPAs, observable and essential clinical activities, are a potential alternative framework for trainee evaluation and may provide a format for authentic workplace-based assessment(4-6). We developed EPA-based assessments for our pediatric residency program and examined whether this assessment facilitated residents' utilization of SRL behaviors.

Design and Methods:

We conducted 14 semi-structured interviews with current and recently graduated pediatric residents. Questions focused on how they utilized EPA-based assessments and their use of self-regulated learning behaviors. Using SRL as a sensitizing concept, we conducted a thematic analysis of the interview data using a constant comparison approach to identify themes and sub-themes.

Results:

We found that residents engaged in goal setting and progress tracking behaviors consistent with SRL. However, residents did not see EPA-based assessments as the primary catalyst for this process. Residents' self-regulated learning behaviors appear driven by other factors: relationship with supervisor, ad-hoc feedback focused on patient-specific encounters, clinical uncertainty and future career planning. Residents felt validated in their knowledge and abilities by the EPA-based focus on entrustment and appreciated its contextual relevance. Residents reported selective engagement with assessments as part of enacting SRL due to their perception of faculty's limited ability to directly observe their work.

Conclusions:

While trainees report EPA-based assessments to be useful in framing the context and content of feedback, the assessments themselves do not appear to drive self-regulated learning, and instead trainees find more value in ongoing dialogue with invested supervisors. Future work should look at ways to optimize content and delivery of assessments to better promote SRL.

References:

- 1. Pintrich PR, Wirth J, Leutner D, Schunk DH. A Conceptual Framework for Assessing Motivation and Self-Regulated Learning in College Students. Zeitschrift für Psychol Psychol. 2008;216(4):385-407. doi:10.1207/s15326985ep2501_6
- 2. Winne PH, Perry NE. Chapter 16 Measuring Self-Regulated Learning. In: Boekaerts M, Pintrich PR, Zeidner MBT-H of S-R, eds. San Diego: Academic Press; 2000:531-566. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-012109890-2/50045-7

- 3. Zimmerman BJ, Schunk DH, eds. Handbook of Self-Regulation of Learning and Performance. New York, NY, US: Routledge/Taylor & Francis Group; 2011.
- 4. Touchie C, Ten Cate O. The promise, perils, problems and progress of competency-based medical education. Med Educ. 2016. doi:10.1111/medu.12839
- 5. Ten Cate O. Entrustability of professional activities and competency-based training. Med Educ. 2005. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2929.2005.02341.x
- 6. Brooks MA. Medical education and the tyranny of competency. Perspect Biol Med. 2009

For more information about this abstract please contact jshalen@gmail.com

Am I Thinking What You're Thinking? Response Process Validity Evidence for a Workplace-Based Assessment in Surgery

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Oral Presentation

Region: WGEA

Authors:

Nina Zhao, University of California, San Francisco, Department of Otolaryngology - Head and Neck Surgery

Lindsey Haddock, University of California, San Francisco Bridget O'Brien, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To evaluate the cognitive processes faculty and residents use while completing a smartphone-based workplace-based assessment (WBA), the System for Improving and Measuring Procedural Learning (SIMPL)

Background and relevance of the study:

Constructing a comprehensive validity argument based on Messick's unified validity framework[1,2] for WBAs is challenging given their formative role that emphasizes feedback and assessment for learning.[3] When evidence is gathered, response process is often incompletely explored by failing to include user perspectives, but these may be key to understanding if the assessment can achieve its formative goals.[4]

Design and Methods:

We collected response process evidence through retrospective think-aloud interviews with 4 resident and 5 faculty surgeons during a 6-month pilot of SIMPL in a single department at a tertiary academic medical center. Users explained their interpretation of the three assessment questions (level of autonomy, operative performance, case complexity) and corresponding ratings. We performed directed qualitative content analysis of the data, looking for similarities and differences in response interpretations between users and compared our findings to what is known about the developers' intents.

Results:

Both faculty and residents viewed SIMPL as a possible solution to improve operative feedback. Evidence for response process showed that residents and faculty had overall similar interpretations, but some of their interpretations may be inconsistent with the developers' intent. For example, negative wording of the first performance rating level steered some faculty away from selecting it, suggesting that an emotional response to the wording, rather than the construct of interest, was impacting interpretation.

Conclusions:

Response process evidence for SIMPL supports a reasonable argument for the interpretation of the question ratings and can be improved with additional clarifications. User perspectives can add essential evidence for response process validity for WBAs. Improving alignment of the interpretations will promote consistency in meaning and support the use of WBAs as formative assessment.

References:

1. Messick S. FOUNDATIONS OF VALIDITY: MEANING AND CONSEQUENCES IN PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT. ETS Research Report Series. 1993;1993(2):i-18. doi:10.1002/j.2333-8504.1993.tb01562.x

- 2. American Educational Research Association, American Psychological Association, National Council on Measurement in Education, eds. Standards for Educational and Psychological Testing. American Educational Research Association; 2014.
- 3. Govaerts M. Workplace-Based Assessment and Assessment for Learning: Threats to Validity. J Grad Med Educ. 2015;7(2):265-267. doi:10.4300/JGME-D-15-00101.1
- 4. Kreiter C. When I say ... response process validity. Medical Education. 2015;49(3):247-248. doi:10.1111/medu.12572

For more information about this abstract please contact nina.w.zhao@gmail.com

<u>Lived Experiences of Belongingness, Inclusion, and Cooperation Relating to Joy</u> in Work

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Jennifer Dougherty, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Kian Assemi, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Negar Jacobs, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Jennifer Hagen, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

The objectives of this study were to gain an understanding of (1) what enables and inhibits peoples' joy in their work and (2) what can be done to increase joy in work.

Background and relevance of the study:

Multiple factors can facilitate or inhibit joy in work including positive work environment, retaining good staff, adequate benefits/salary, living the organizational mission, and adequate work resources (Fishman, Mehta, Siewert, Bender, & Kruskal, 2018; Manion, 2003; Rutledge, Wickman, & Winokur, 2018). In turn, joy has the capacity of making the workplace a more appealing environment, improving recruitment and positively effecting the quality of relationships. Moreover, engagement and employee commitment are related to one's attitude about their work and influences retention rates (Manion, 2003).

Design and Methods:

Participants were selected specifically because they were identified as appearing to enjoy work. Each participant was interviewed using a script of questions and interviews were transcribed. Using Nvivo, the participants' answers were coded based on both constructs from previous research and recurring themes that appeared within the interviews (e.g. "Motivated to Learn").

Results:

Eight major themes emerged from data across fourteen in-depth interviews: Appreciation, Cooperation, Mutual Trust, Perception of Learning and Growth, Resources, Values Meaning and Motivation, Wellbeing and Self-Perception, and Work Structuring. Each major theme included multiple sub-themes (e.g. "Gratitude" fell within "Appreciation"). The most referenced joy inducing sub-themes were Cooperation/Connections, Value-Driven and Altruism respectively. The most referenced joy inhibiting sub-themes were Overwhelmed, Limited Resources and Perception of Unfairness.

Conclusions:

This study identified components of work life that are important to the joy of employees within UNR Med. Such qualitative analyses are imperative in order to improve the joy of employees who work within the medical field to increase both satisfaction and productivity. Several themes are relevant to institutions' work fostering an inclusive environment and creating feelings of belongingness and conversely support avoiding perceptions of unfairness.

References:

- 1. Fishman, M. D., Mehta, T. S., Siewert, B., Bender, C. E., & Kruskal, J. B. (2018). The road to wellness: engagement strategies to help radiologists achieve joy at work. Radiographics, 38(6), 1651-1664.
- 2. Manion, J. (2003). Joy at work!: Creating a positive workplace. JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration, 33(12), 652-659.

3. Rutledge, D. N., Wickman, M., & Winokur, E. J. (2018). Instrument validation: Hospital nurse perceptions of meaning and joy in work. Journal of nursing measurement, 26(3), 579-588.

For more information about this abstract please contact kassemi@nevada.unr.edu

Evaluation of a Pilot Program to Implement Best Practices to Promote Diversity in the Search Process

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Negar Jacobs, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Jovonnie Esquierdo-Leal, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Greg Smith, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Melissa Piasecki, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Kian Assemi, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine Ramona Houmanfar, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To evaluate the impact of a search committee training package on committee members' perceived utility and on the diversity of applicants.

Background and relevance of the study:

The AAMC (2016) advocates for increasing diversity in academic medicine, highlighting the relationship between diversity and excellence. Despite this, those who are underrepresented in medicine continue to remain so. Faculty search committees operate as gatekeepers to academic medicine and a rich literature attests to how racial and gender bias may impact search committee decision making (Bertrand & Mullainathan, 2004; Carnes et al., 2015; Steinpres, Anders & Ritzke, 1999).

Design and Methods:

We implemented a 2-hour workshop on best practices in search processes, including implicit bias training. Participants completed two separate social validity surveys, after the workshop and search. Each search committee completed a Diversity Checklist (DCL) of various mandatory and best practices implemented during each search. Historical data on diversity of job applicants, interviewees, and hires over the 5-year period immediately preceding workshop implementation were compared with corresponding diversity data from the participant search committees for a 3-year period following implementation.

Results:

Social validity surveys indicated high ratings on various aspects of the workshop. Implementation of practices outlined in the DCL were high (94% mandatory, 87% best practices). Diversity data compared before and after implementation revealed significant increases in overall diversity (both race and gender) of applicants, interviewees, and those offered a position, in the time period following implementation.

Conclusions:

The training package demonstrated a significant improvement in diversity of applicants, candidates interviewed, and faculty hired after the workshop was implemented. Strengths include implementation of best practices to increase diversity in one training package. Limitations include lack of a control group and implementation at one institution only. Implementation of the training package is feasible, perceived to be socially valid by participants, and can be adopted by other medical schools.

References:

1. Association of American Medical Colleges. Diversity and inclusion in academic medicine: A strategic planning guide. 2nd Ed.

Washington, D.C.: Association of American Medical Colleges; 2016.

- 2. Association of American Medical Colleges. Distribution of US medical school faculty by sex and degree.
- https://www.aamc.org/download/495040/data/18table9.pdf. Updated December 31, 2018. Accessed September 16, 2019.
- 3. Association of American Medical Colleges. Distribution of US medical school faculty by degree and race/ethnicity. https://www.aamc.org/download/495032/data/18table5.pdf. Updated December 31, 2018. Accessed September 16, 2019.
- 4. Bertrand M, Mullainathan S. Are Emily and Greg more employable than Lakisha and Jamal? A field experiment on labor market discrimination. Am Econ Rev. 2004;94(4):991-1013.
- 5. Carnes M, Devine PG, Manwell LB, et al. The effect of an intervention to break the gender bias habit for faculty at one institution: A cluster randomized, controlled trial. Acad Med. 2015;90(2):221-230.
- 6. Steinpres RE, Anders KA, Ritzke D. The impact of gender on the review of the curricula vitae of job applicants and tenure candidates: A national empirical study. Sex Roles. 1999;41:509-528.

For more information about this abstract please contact nnjacobs@med.unr.edu

Qualitative Analysis of the Impact of the initial disruptions caused by the COVID-19 Pandemic on Medical Student Professional Identity Development

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Abigail Luman, University of Utah School of Medicine Madison Bagley, University of Utah School of Medicine Janet Lindsley, University of Utah School of Medicine Todd Christensen, University of Utah School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

This study aims to investigate how initial disruptions from the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the professional identity development of medical students at the University of Utah School of Medicine (UUSOM).

Background and relevance of the study:

The development of a medical student's professional identity is a complex process that requires learners to integrate themselves into the medical profession while also embracing the identity as their own (1-4). The COVID-19 pandemic has altered the medical student experience in many ways, including disrupting clinical rotations schedules and limiting in-person learning experiences (5). Given the necessity of training physicians in the midst of a pandemic, it is key to understand how this situation is impacting students.

Design and Methods:

During the spring of 2020, we used an embedded mixed-methods design to investigate how students viewed their professional identities amidst the COVID-19 pandemic. We conducted Zoom-based focus groups with each cohort (MS1-MS4) at UUSOM (n=20). Recordings were transcribed and coded using thematic analysis. MS1s and MS2s responded to two survey questions that asked how personal and professional identity were related. Responses were analyzed using descriptive statistics.

Results:

Focus group data revealed that the pandemic impacted professional identity development of UUSOM students in novel ways. Participants disclosed various challenges but endorsed increased time for self-awareness and the reevaluation of their perception of roles within medicine, including increased sense of accountability and how physician responsibilities span beyond clinical care. Survey data showed nearly 50% of MS1s and MS2s perceived a shift in their personal and professional identity relationships between February and May 2020.

Conclusions:

Our analysis is important for understanding how global current events impact medical student professional identity development. This can be used to update existing professional identity development frameworks and produce curricula that support positive growth and flexibility during times of immense uncertainty or global disaster.

References:

- 1. Goldie J. The formation of professional identity in medical students: Considerations for educators. Medical Teacher. 2012;34(9):e641-e648.
- 2. Wilson I, Cowin LS, Johnson M, Young H. Professional identity in medical students: pedagogical challenges to medical

education. Teach Learn Med. 2013;25(4):369-373.

- 3. Monrouxe LV. Identity, identification and medical education: why should we care? Medical Education. 2010;44(1):40-49.
- 4. Ibarra H. Provisional Selves: Experimenting with Image and Identity in Professional Adaptation. Administrative Science Quarterly. 1999;44:764.
- 5. Rose S. Medical Student Education in the Time of COVID-19. JAMA. 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact abigail.luman@hsc.utah.edu

How Do Allopathic Medical Schools Structure Assessment, Continuous Quality Improvement, Evaluation, and Accreditation?: Preliminary Results from a Qualitative Study

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Anne Vo, Kaiser Permanente Bernard J. Tyson School of Medicine Araksi Terteryan, Kaiser Permanente Bernard J. Tyson School of Medicine Rocele Estanislao, Kaiser Permanente Bernard J. Tyson School of Medicine Bethelehem Teshome, Kaiser Permanente Bernard J. Tyson School of Medicine Paul Chung, Kaiser Permanente Bernard J. Tyson School of Medicine Carla Lupi, Kaiser Permanente Tyson School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do allopathic medical schools structure assessment, continuous quality improvement, evaluation, and accreditation?

Background and relevance of the study:

When a medical school conducts assessment, continuous quality improvement (CQI), evaluation, and accreditation (i.e., the complete quality assurance [QA] cycle in higher education), it reveals how it values and prioritizes its programs and activities. How is this done, with what resources, by whom, and for whom? There is a paucity of effort to systematically study these related activities, contributing to divergent practices that may affect institutional effectiveness and schools' ability to deliver on the promise of quality education and social good.

Design and Methods:

A qualitative study involving a literature review of the application of QA activities and interviews with representatives from 10 allopathic, US medical schools (a convenience sample) were completed to address this issue.

Results:

Although schools share the goal of achieving institutional effectiveness, the scope of and participants in QA activities (assessment: to understand learner performance; CQI: to monitor process implementation; evaluation: to maintain or change program design; accreditation: to determine a program's/school's integrity) differ. Four organizing frames were identified: assessment, CQI, evaluation, or accreditation alone; assessment and evaluation together; CQI and accreditation together; and CQI, evaluation, and accreditation together. Resources available for QA activities varied across interviewed schools. For instance, of the nine schools that reported staffing for assessment, numbers ranged from 1 to 8.5 full-time equivalents. A greater range of expertise (social science research, education) and skill sets (technology and administrative support) was found in assessment and evaluation compared to CQI and accreditation (administrative support).

Conclusions:

A gold standard for structuring QA activities was not found. Medical schools stand to benefit from understanding the distinct but complementary roles that QA activities play in their journeys toward institutional effectiveness. This would support more systematic efforts to identify transferable best practices and disseminate knowledge.

References:

- 1. Briggs, C. L., Stark, J. S., & Rowland-Poplawski, J. (2003). How do we know a "continuous planning" academic program when we see one? The Journal of Higher Education, 74(4), 361-385.
- 2. Harper, B. J., & Lattuca, L. R. (2010). Tightening curricular connections: CQI and effective curriculum planning. Research in Higher Education, 51(6), 505-527.
- 3. Montrosse-Moorhead, B., Bellara, A. P., & Gambino, A. J. (2017). Communicating about evaluation: A conceptual model and case example. Journal of MultiDisciplinary Evaluation, 13(29), 16-30.
- 4. Christie, C. A., Lemire, S., & Inkelas, M. (2017). Understanding the similarities and distinctions between improvement science and evaluation. In C. A. Christie, M. Inkelas & S. Lemire (Eds.), Improvement Science in Evaluation: Methods and Uses. New Directions for Evaluation, 153, 11–21. doi.org/10.1002/ev.20237
- 5. Mark, M. M., & Pines, E. (1995). Implications of continuous quality improvement for program evaluation and evaluators. Evaluation Practice, 16(2), 131-139. https://doi.org/10.1177/109821409501600203

For more information about this abstract please contact anne.vo@kp.org

Student experiences using a work-based assessment tool to obtain feedback during COVID-19

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Angelina Fluet, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Lauren Phinney, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Karen Hauer, UCSF Bridget O'Brien, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

We explored how curricular changes during the COVID-19 pandemic affected core clerkship students' experiences with feedback using a work-based assessment (WBA) tool.

Background and relevance of the study:

The COVID-19 pandemic disrupted medical students' clinical curricula and likely their learning experiences. Direct observation and feedback from supervisors are key for clinical learning. In January 2020, our medical school implemented a new version of a work-based assessment (WBA) tool to enhance direct observation and feedback for clerkship students. The pandemic affected opportunities for tool usage, which could affect tool uptake and learning.

Design and Methods:

We interviewed clerkship students at the University of California, San Francisco before and during the COVID-19 pandemic. Curricular changes included a 4-month clerkship hiatus focused on examination preparation, followed by condensed rotations with some telemedicine. Students were required to collect twice-weekly WBAs, completed by supervisors or students. Interview questions addressed experiences with the WBA tool. Interviews were analyzed using inductive thematic analysis.

Results:

Eighteen students participated. Tool-related tensions that were emerging pre-COVID-19 persisted and were exacerbated during the pandemic. During COVID-19, students perceived increased difficulty obtaining feedback, which they attributed to shortened rotations, briefer relationships with observers, and limitations of telemedicine. Though many students expressed desire for supervisor-completed WBAs, almost all students opted to self-complete WBAs for ease in meeting requirements. Students described telemedicine experiences as generating insufficient physical exam feedback, and redundant feedback in domains most readily observed virtually, including note-writing and oral presentations. Longitudinal integrated clerkship students, who maintained yearlong relationships with preceptors, did not experience the same degree of increased difficulty eliciting WBAs.

Conclusions:

The COVID-19 pandemic interfered with students' ability to elicit feedback and the focus of feedback received, and highlighted vulnerabilities in the WBA tool. Students adapted by developing strategies to efficiently elicit feedback, namely self-completing WBAs. The implications of changes to feedback via WBA tools should be explored further.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact angel.fluet@ucsf.edu

Starting medical school remotely: the good, the bad, and the zoom fatigue

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Marieke Kruidering, University of California San Francisco Rupa Tuan, UCSF School of Medicine Barbie Klein, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Chantilly Apollon, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Derek Harmon, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine Christian Burke, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

To evaluate the effect of remote education on undergraduate first-year medical students' learning. **Background and relevance of the study:**

The UCSF Bridges curriculum is an integrated, organ systems-based curriculum. Pre-Covid-19, students learned via multiple modalities including: cadaveric dissection labs, lectures, small groups, online videos, interactive online modules, and case-based wrap-up sessions. Summative assessments are open-ended questions (OEQ), which require knowledge application (1).

Anatomy assessment includes OEQ and timed cadaveric identification practical exams. Here, we (1) describe adapting the first Bridges course to a virtual format, (2) compare student exam performance to previous years, and (3) report on student perceptions regarding these changes.

Design and Methods:

We collected MS1 OEQ and anatomy practical scores from the 2018-2019, 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 academic years. OEQs were scored by trained faculty on a scale of 1-6 using a holistic rubric: "meets expectations" (5,6), "borderline" (3,4), or "does not meet expectations" (1,2). Identical OEQ exams were used in 2018 and 2020. OEQ scores were averaged and analyzed using an independent samples t-test. Anatomy practical scores were analyzed in SPSS software using an independent samples t-test. Survey data are being collected and comments will be analyzed for emerging themes.

Results:

Mean OEQ performance was not different between cohorts (mean: 88%; SD \pm 5 for 2018 & 2020). The 2020 MS1s virtual anatomy practical exam performance was significantly higher compared to the 2019 MS1s cadaveric exam performance (p &It; 0.001). Survey data highlighted zoom fatigue and desire for community building.

Conclusions:

Remote instruction did not decrease exam performance for the OEQ-based summative examination, while the anatomy practical exam performance increased significantly, suggesting knowledge transfer can occur via remote teaching. However, we acknowledge that the practical exam formats were not equivalent. The reported stress levels for the 2020 MS1s were higher, and MS1s missed "tips to succeed" typically passed along in person via peer-to-peer interactions.

References:

1. A taxonomy for learning, teaching, and assessing: a revision of Bloom's taxonomy of educational objectives New York: Longman, c2001 editors, LW. Anderson, D Krathwohl

For more information about this abstract please contact marieke.kruidering@ucsf.edu

An Innovative Approach to Teaching Cross-Cultural Communication Among Dental Students

Submission Type: Research Abstract Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Joseph Fuchs, University of Colorado School of Medicine Andrew Tannous, University of Colorado School of Medicine Gretchen Guiton, University of Colorado School of Medicine Paritosh Kaul, University of Colorado School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

Create and evaluate an interactive Cross-Cultural Communication (CCC) educational intervention for Dental Students (DS)

Background and relevance of the study:

Racial and ethnic minorities remain underrepresented within the healthcare workforce generally and within the dental profession. Consequentially, professional organizations including the American Dental Association and Commission on Dental Accreditation identified the importance of cultural competency training in dental education. One essential component of providing care for patients of diverse backgrounds is culturally-sensitive, patient- and family-centered communication. To address this need, we developed and implemented an interactive, two-hour CCC educational session for DS. This study describes the intervention and provides evaluation data on its effectiveness.

Design and Methods:

Our session employed dyad training, patient-provider role play, education about Kleinman's Explanatory Model, and introduced a new model for negotiating across cultures that can be broadly applied to various aspects of patients' culture. Learners included 51 first-year (24) and third-year (27) DS. Evaluation compared students' pre-/post-intervention responses to a modified Health Belief Attitudes Survey (HBAS), which measured four domains: Opinion, Belief, Context, and Quality.

Results:

For the first-year students, the mean differences between the pre- and post-intervention surveys for the domains of Opinion, Belief, Context, and Quality were all statistically significant (P < 0.05). For the third-year students, there was a similar result as compared to the first-year students, with the exception for the domain of Quality (not significant, p=0.083).

Conclusions:

The educational paradigm employed in this study, especially the model for negotiating across cultures, fills a curricular gap in effectively teaching CCC among DS. Moreover, the intervention provides a model that can be applied across health professions education. Limitations include the short-term self-report nature of the instrument which may carry bias. Additionally, the study did not explore the long-term retention of knowledge or performance in the clinical settings.

References:

- ${\bf 1.}\ American\ Dental\ Association.\ ({\bf 2015}).\ The\ Dentist\ Workforce\ Key\ Facts.\ Health\ Policy\ Institute.$
- 2. Commission on Dental Accreditation. (2019). Accreditation Standards for Advanced Dental Education Programs in Advanced Education in General Dentistry.
- 3. Garcia, R. I., Cadoret, C. A., & Henshaw, M. (2008). Multicultural Issues in Oral Health. Dental Clinics of North America, 52(2), 319–332.

For more information about this abstract please contact joseph.fuchs@ucdenver.edu

Co-Learning: How Faculty and Trainees Learn Together in the Workplace

Submission Type: Research Abstract

Accepted as: Poster Region: WGEA

Authors:

Lindsey Haddock, University of California, San Francisco
Josette Rivera, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine
Bridget O'Brien, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Research Statement/Research Question:

How do faculty and trainees learn together in the clinical workplace?

Background and relevance of the study:

Co-learning, defined as faculty and trainees learning together, occurs often in clinical workplaces. Conceptual models of workplace learning focus primarily on individual learning (1-3), leaving a gap in understanding of co-learning and its value. Co-learning gives faculty and trainees opportunities to co-construct knowledge, which may mitigate power differentials, build trust, and foster inclusive learning environments (4-7).

Design and Methods:

Using a constructivist grounded theory approach, we interviewed 34 clinician-educators from 10 specialties to explore how co-learning occurs in their practice, how they perceive its value, and what barriers and facilitators they identify. Through iterative analysis, we developed a conceptual model of co-learning.

Results:

Our model of co-learning in the workplace is similar to models of individual workplace learning processes in that it involves identifying a learning opportunity and engaging in learning activity to bring about a learning outcome; however, our model adds symmetry as a key dimension. Symmetry reflects the degree to which each learner (faculty or trainee) engages in the co-learning process. In our model, faculty, trainees, or both first identify learning opportunities during work-related activities. Next, they choose strategies for learning that lead to interpretation and construction of meaning. These strategies may occur together or separately, but involve some interactive discussion that produces learning outcomes for both parties such as knowledge or insight. Our findings suggest that symmetric engagement throughout co-learning fosters a co-constructive learning process, which may help fully realize the benefits of co-learning. Participants universally viewed co-learning as valuable and felt it helped foster an inclusive learning environment.

Conclusions:

Co-learning adds the concept of symmetry to models of workplace learning and helps consider how we can engage all team members to co-construct workplace learning.

References:

- 1. Dornan, T., Conn, R., Monaghan, H., Kearney, G., Gillespie, H., & Bennett, D. (2019). Experience Based Learning (ExBL): Clinical teaching for the twenty-first century. Medical Teacher, 41(10), 1098–1105. https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159X.2019.1630730
- 2. Sehlbach, C., Teunissen, P. W., Driessen, E. W., Mitchell, S., Rohde, G. G. U., Smeenk, F. W. J. M., & Govaerts, M. J. B. (2020). Learning in the workplace: Use of informal feedback cues in doctor-patient communication. Medical Education, 54(9), 811–820. https://doi.org/10.1111/medu.14148
- 3. Teunissen, P. W., Scheele, F., Scherpbier, A. J. J. A., van der Vleuten, C. P. M., Boor, K., van Luijk, S. J., & van Diemen-

Steenvoorde, J. a. a. M. (2007). How residents learn: Qualitative evidence for the pivotal role of clinical activities. Medical Education, 41(8), 763–770. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-2923.2007.02778.x

- 4. Dollinger, M., Lodge, J., & Coates, H. (2018). Co-creation in higher education: Towards a conceptual model. Journal of Marketing for Higher Education, 28(2), 210–231. https://doi.org/10.1080/08841241.2018.1466756
- 5. Könings, K. D., Mordang, S., Smeenk, F., Stassen, L., & Ramani, S. (2020). Learner involvement in the co-creation of teaching and learning: AMEE Guide No. 138. Medical Teacher, 1–13. https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159X.2020.1838464
- 6. Matthews, K. E., Dwyer, A., Hine, L., & Turner, J. (2018). Conceptions of students as partners. Higher Education, 76(6), 957–971. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10734-018-0257-y
- 7. Molloy, E., & Bearman, M. (2019). Embracing the tension between vulnerability and credibility: "intellectual candour" in health professions education. Medical Education, 53(1), 32–41. https://doi.org/10.1111/medu.13649

For more information about this abstract please contact lindsey.haddock@ucsf.edu

Workshops

CGEA Workshop Abstracts

<u>Using Mattering to promote Inclusion, Diversity, Wellbeing and Success in</u> Medical Education

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Karen Marcdante, Medical College of Wisconsin Deborah Simpson, AdvocateAuroraHealth Terry Frederick, AdvocateAuroraHealth Michael Braun, Medical College of Wisconsin

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Do you perceive you matter to those with whom you work? Mattering is a psychological concept that is the foundation of relationships with other individuals, teams and institutions. When we perceive we matter, we recognize our value, are more engaged and less likely to experience depression and burnout. Creating an environment that promotes the expression of mattering can positively impact the feeling of inclusion and promote diversity and acceptance of ideas. Medical educators are challenged to explicitly address ways to create inclusive, diverse and equitable learning environments. This workshop will introduce the concept of mattering at three levels (interpersonal, team and organization) and present example activities and scripts that can make people feel they matter at each level. Participants will then work in facilitated small groups to identify additional activities that promote a sense of mattering with key ideas shared during the large group activity. Participants will be asked to commit to piloting at least one of the mattering ideas upon their return to their own institution.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. List the importance of mattering at interpersonal, team and organizational levels.
- 2. Identify specific activities that address mattering at each level.
- 3. Commit to piloting at least one activity at the individual, team, or organizational level in the workplace.

Session Methods and Format:

3 min Introduce objectives and facilitators

2 min Prompt: When did you know you mattered?

Participants share times when they knew they mattered in chat feature.

7 min Importance of mattering as individuals, teams, organizations

 Presentation of evidence on impact of mattering and model of interpersonal, organizational and societal mattering

9 min Examples of activities that enhance mattering

 Three facilitators will share how they use the model to identify potential activities that enhance mattering

20 min Small group work to complete worksheet

- Participants will work together to identify additional activities that promote mattering specific to their organizations and teams.
- Facilitators will organize ideas into themes and help group select top 1-2 to report out.

15 min Large group sharing and discussion of ideas

- Each group shares innovative ideas on screen creating a combined listing that can enhance mattering at each of the three levels
- 4 min Wrap up and commitment to pilot one activity
 - Participants will be asked commit to piloting a mattering activity within their workplace using the chat feature.

Online Facilitation:

Participants will use the chat function to answer the initial prompt. Presentations on mattering will include an interactive slide presentation with Q&A via chat. Small group work occurs in breakout rooms. If Mural (or similar application) is available, small group work will occur using the post-it note feature for brainstorming, allowing all participants an opportunity to interact. Each of the breakout groups work showcased in Mural will be used during large group sharing to form a single list that can be distributed. Commitment to piloting an activity will occur in the chat feature allowing preservation of responses. If breakouts crash, worksheets can be completed by individuals and facilitated discussion can assimilate results. Whiteboard features can replace Mural as needed.

Experience:

- Karen Marcdante, MD has been active clinician, medical educator and scholar for >3 decades, serving in multiple teaching, faculty development, and leadership roles resulting in over 200 peer-reviewed and invited national workshops, presentations and publications.
- Deborah "Deb" Simpson, PhD is an experienced presenter (>700 invited/peer reviewed sessions)
 who blends evidence and faculty/organization needs with humor/innovation to address gnarly
 situations in faculty development/medical education.
- Terry Frederick has led a variety educational administrative teams' across the continuum for more than 20 years with scholarly and engaging presentations at the multiple professional societies highlighting this work.
- Michael T. Braun, PhD, is an educational researcher, program manager and skilled presenter able to find common language and use humor to transform scientific evidence into policy and procedure change for educators and social service providers over the last 15 years.

References:

- 1. Flett GL. The Psychology of Mattering. Academic Press, Elsevier, Inc. 2018.
- 2. Lamperski RK. Work Namaste: The Importance of Mattering at Work, and How a Leader Can Create an Environment Where Employees Feel They and Their Work Matter.

https://repository.upenn.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1148&context=mapp capstone

3. Haizlip JA & Plews-Ogan M. In M. Plews- Ogan & G. Beyt. (Eds.) Wisdom leadership in academic health science centers: Leading positive change. 2014: p.135-157. London: Radcliffe Publishing, Ltd.

For more information about this abstract please contact: kwendel@mcw.edu

The role of coaching during transitions across the medical education continuum

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: CGEA

Authors:

Nicole Deiorio, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Maya Hammoud, University of Michigan Medical School Amy Miller Juve, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine Margaret Wolff, University of Michigan Medical School Abigail Winkel, New York University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Coaching is becoming increasingly utilized in the medical education continuum. Coaching programs in medical schools and residency programs continue to be on the rise. From coaching on clinical and surgical skills to coaching on academic performance, advancement, and professional identity formation, often times, these coaching programs tend not to be customized specifically for transitions. Transitions across the medical education continuum can be very challenging and stressful and might require different models than traditional academic coaching. This session will address the role of coaching in supporting learners across the transitions and present examples of current coaching programs helping learners.

Learning Objectives:

Identify the stressors and challenges to learners during transitions across the medical education continuum

- Articulate the benefits of coaching, as unique from mentoring and advising, in supporting professional identity formation and resilience in learners
- Describe 3 coaching models which are appropriate to support learners through the transitions
- List resources available for educators who are coaching learners or developing coaching programs

Session Methods and Format:

Each speaker will cover a distinct coaching program for learners created specifically around the transitions and outline its role in professional identity formation. In each program, we intentionally identify specific coaching models, theories and tools to use that we believe best address the challenges facing this stage of development. The University of Michigan Medical School pairs entering students with coaches to particularly work through the challenges of transitioning to medical school. At Virginia Commonwealth University, Entrustable Professional Activity (EPA) coaching program focuses on transitioning the learner from the pre-clinical curriculum to the clinical one, covering such themes as "becoming trustworthy" and achieving clinical entrustment in a competency-based curriculum. Another separate coaching program pairs graduating students who are headed to surgical residencies with surgical faculty coaches, who coach for wellness and work with the learner to create Individualized Learning Plans that the students will take with them to their residencies. At NYU Grossman School of Medicine coaching is enhancing the transition ofmedical students to residents by faculty coaches who oversee and support learner-driven education and training goals.

At Oregon Health and Science University, the anesthesiology department provides each intern with a coach to help them develop their

professional identity as an anesthesiologist.

Session plan

- 10 minutes: Introduction and overview of the session by the facilitator; didactic component in which several prevailing coaching theories and tools are summarized
- 30 minutes: Speakers showcase their coaching for transitions innovations and the theories and structure they chose to adopt.
- 15 minutes: Small group work—participants will fill out a worksheet to begin developing a
 program in which they identify a coaching need in their learners and choose relevant and highyield strategies a solution could employ at their own institutions
- 10 minutes: Small group report out and wrap up including outlining resources.

Online Facilitation:

Four of the five team members have already successfully conducted several coaching workshops this year using Zoom and are facile with this technology. As the speakers take turns, the other team members are familiar with moderating the chat box. We will open with an icebreaker where we ask participants to introduce themselves asynchronously in the chat and to be polled to identify what transitions they work with at their own programs and what they hope to accomplish in the workshop. This will allow the team to speak more specifically to the audience. For the small group work, participants will be placed in virtual breakout rooms. The worksheet will be posted in the chat box so that participants can access it in real time on their computers. As a backup, any of the session can be done without the use of slides or breakout technology.

Experience:

- Nicole Deiorio, MD is a certified leadership coach and has created undergraduate medical academic coaching programs at two institutions
- Maya Hammoud, MD, MBA is an executive coach and the AMA's special adviser on medical education innovation
- Amy Miller Juve, EdD runs the GME coaching program at OHSU
- Margaret Wolff MD, MHPE is an executive coach and published in the realm of academic coaching in UME, as are the other authors
- Abigail Winkel, MD, MHPE co-directs the transition to residency course at NYU and studies resilience, life-long learning, motivation and self-assessment.

References:

- 1. Sargeant J, Lockyer J, Mann K, Holmboe E, Silver I, Armson H, et al. Facilitated reflective performance feedback: developing an evidence- and theory-based model that builds relationship, explores reactions and content, and coaches for performance change (R2C2). Acad Med 2015; 90:1698–706.
- 2. Gifford KA, Fall LH. Doctor coach: a deliberate practice approach to teaching and learning clinical skills, Acad Med 2014; 89)2): 272-6.
- 3. Gazelle G, Liebschutz JM, Riess H. Physician Burnout: Coaching a Way Out. J Gen Intern Med 2015; 30(40): 508-13.
- 4. Deiorio NM, Hammoud MM. Coaching in Medical Education (Handbook) 1st ed. Chicago, IL: AMA; 2017. https://www.ama-assn.org/media/52126/download
- 5. Wolff M, Jackson J, Hammoud MM. It Takes Two: A Guide to Being a Good Coachee. 1st ed. Chicago, IL: AMA; 2019. https://www.ama-assn.org/media/52121/download

For more information about this abstract please contact: nicole.deiorio@vcuhealth.org

Developing master adaptive learners in medical school

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: CGEA

Authors:

Heather Laird-Fick, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Migdalisel Colon-Berlingeri, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Dianne Wagner, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Jonathan Gold, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine Sathyanarayan Sudhanthar, Michigan State University College of Human Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The rapid pace of change in medicine requires physicians to access, evaluate, and apply new information on nearly a daily basis. Traditional medical school curricula, with their emphasis on course packs and multiple-choice question examinations, have not always prepared students to be such nimble learners.

In 2016, the College of Human Medicine launched its new Shared Discovery Curriculum, based on constructivist learning theory and featuring early clinical experiences integrated with scientific learning and competency-based assessment. Two of the college's core competencies – Rationality and Transformation – establish expectations for student reflection, ability to appraise and assimilate evidence from scientific studies, and self-directed lifelong learning. Each of these has been further described by milestones anchored to courses across the curriculum.

The skills we described align well with Cutrer et. al.'s model of the master adaptive learner, published in 2017. In their model, learners use metacognitive skills to assess, adjust, plan, and learn in response to changing needs for knowledge and skill.

The purpose of this workshop is to allow participants to deconstruct the skills of the master adaptive learner into observable milestones, and to strategically identify opportunities to integrate experiences and assessments to reinforce these behaviors across the continuum.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Describe the knowledge, skills, and attitudes of a master adaptive learner;
- 2. Draft milestones for a developing adaptive learner;
- 3. Describe formative experiences to support adaptive learning;
- 4. Describe approaches for assessing students' adaptive learning skills.

Session Methods and Format:

- 1. Overview of the Master Adaptive Learner (10 mins)
- 2. Participants: Draft milestones for becoming a Master Adaptive Learner (10 mins)
- 3. Report out on milestones drafts (10 mins)
- Participants: Brainstorm formative experiences to support skills development (10 mins)
- 5. Participants: Brainstorm methods for assessing adaptive learning skills (10 mins)
- 6. Report out on ideas for formative experiences and assessment (10 mins)

Online Facilitation:

We will utilize a mix of large group discussions and breakout rooms (the latter designated with "Participants:" in our description of the session methods). Facilitators for the breakout rooms will

provide participants with a link to Google Jamboard to collaboratively capture ideas and discussion. The Jamboard will be reviewed and modified during "report out" periods in the main room. The co-authors will serve as breakout room facilitators and take turns serving as chat moderators. Participants will be able to save copies of the introductory materials and Jamboard for use at their home institutions.

Experience:

- Dr. Laird-Fick is director of assessment for the Shared Discovery Curriculum, a former internal medicine residency program director, a former internal medicine clerkship director, and a general internist.
- Dr. Colon-Berlingeri is the director of our Early Clinical Experience (M1 year) and a physiologist.
- Dr. Wagner is our interim Senior Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, Associate. Dean for Undergraduate Medical Education, and a general internist.
- Dr. Gold is the director of the Shared Discovery Curriculum's Learning Academy, a former pediatrics clerkship director, and a general pediatrician.
- Dr. Sudhanthar is chief of one of the four Learning Societies within our Learning Academy, a former clinical skills director, and a general pediatrician.

References:

- 1. SCRIPT and the Shared Discovery Curriculum. Michigan State University College of Human Medicine. Available at https://curriculum.chm.msu.edu/curricular-content/script-competencies. Accessed December 12, 2020.
- 2. Cutrer WB, Miller B, Pusic MV, Mejicano G, Mangrulkar RS, et al. Fostering the Development of Master Adaptive Learners: A Conceptual Model to Guide Skill Acquisition in Medical Education. Acad Med. 2017;92(1):70-75.
- 3. Edgar L, McLean S, Hogan SO, Hamstra S, Holmboe ES. The Milestones Guidebook Version 2020. Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. Available at https://www.acgme.org/Portals/0/MilestonesGuidebook.pdf?ver=2020-06-11-100958-330. Accessed December 12, 2020.

For more information about this abstract please contact: lairdhea@msu.edu

What Just Happened? Microaggressions in the Learning Environment

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: CGEA

Authors:

Parvathy Pillai, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Scott Mead, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Jamie Hess, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Amy Becker, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health Christine Seibert, University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical education has a key role in advancing health equity through the content that is delivered, as well as the way that content is delivered. Efforts to promote diversity within medicine require an inclusive and equitable environment. Microaggressions have been defined as "the everyday verbal, nonverbal, and environmental slights, snubs, or insults, whether intentional or unintentional, which communicate hostile, derogatory, or negative messages to target persons based solely upon their marginalized group membership." Medical literature confirms that medical students experience microaggressions, 2 occurring in both preclinical and clinical education settings, and impacting learners across a variety of social identities. The consequences of microaggressions can include negative psychological and academic outcomes for the target of the microaggressions; and can additionally have far-reaching consequences beyond the individual student, including medical student cohorts, medical teams, patients and populations. Faculty must be skilled in identifying microaggressions, thus ensuring that they do not serve as an aggressor while also acting as effective bystanders that can interrupt microaggressions. The purpose of this workshop is to teach medical school educators skills in identifying and addressing microaggressions. We will actively engage participants by breaking down real-life examples of microaggressions, as well as discuss ways to address microaggressions in small groups.

Learning Objectives:

- Define what is meant by a microaggression
- Discuss how microaggressions impact the learning environment
- Develop skills to address microaggression in medical education

Session Methods and Format:

We propose an interactive workshop in which facilitators will lead attendees through discussion and discovery. Three video clips from popular media will introduce each thematic section of the workshop, with clip one highlighting a microaggression in medicine, clip two highlighting the impact of microaggressions, and clip three examining a bystander response to microaggressions. In the first twenty minutes of the session, the facilitators will introduce the session, actively engage participants in establishing shared ground rules for the session, and facilitate a discussion around the definition and identifying features of microaggressions. The following twenty minutes of the session focus on the impact of microaggressions. Attendees will break out into small groups to examine real-life examples of microaggressions that occurred in preclinical and clinical settings and discuss the potential messages being sent to medical students and their impacts; these discussions will then be debriefed with the larger group. Finally, the third section of the session will engage participants in a discussion focused on how best to respond to microaggressions in the learning environment. Participants will again convene into breakout groups and discuss microaggressions in a medical educational setting, focusing on when

and how educators can respond to best support learners. The session will conclude with a large group debrief of best practice strategies in responding to microaggressions and brief question and answer period.

Online Facilitation:

All facilitators are experienced in teaching and facilitating online sessions. We plan to use a variety of online modalities to engage workshop participants, including breakout rooms, the chat feature, verbal responses from remote participants, and shared screens. While each twenty-minute section of the workshop is led by one facilitator, the other two facilitators will support the oversight of questions in the chat box and time management. Additionally, all three facilitators will engage with participants in the breakout room discussion. PowerPoint material and case examples will be provided to participants in advance of the session to participants to ensure they have access to material in the case that screen sharing is not possible.

Experience:

The three facilitators have experience facilitating this workshop together, having successfully led approximately 40 attendees through this session content during the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health 2019 Medical Education Day.

- Scott Mead, MD is an internist and oversees the clinical skills education and the professionalism and ethics threads for the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health medical student curriculum.
- Jamie Hess, MD is an emergency medicine physician who oversees interprofessional education and the quality improvement and patient safety threads for the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health medical student curriculum.
- Parvathy Pillai, MD, MPH is a preventive medicine physician and oversees the public health thread for the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health medical student curriculum.

References:

3. Byrd, C. (2018). Microaggressions Self-Defense: A Role-Playing Workshop for Responding to Microaggressions. Social Sciences, 7(6), 96. doi:10.3390/socsci7060096

For more information about this abstract please contact: ppillai@wisc.edu

7 Strategies to Develop Clinical Reasoning with Early Medical Learners: Instructional Scaffolding with Visual, Cognitive, and Cooperative Learning

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: CGEA

Authors:

Sonal Patel, Wayne State University School of Medicine Erin Miller, Wayne State University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

It is challenging to engage early medical learners in meaningful clinical reasoning without prerequisite knowledge in pathophysiology. As a result, early clinical skills curriculum can be heavily task—driven and clinical reasoning is delayed or develops independently, as part of a hidden curriculum. To ensure that reasoning drives the learning, it is critical to flip the focus from task completion to higher-level thinking. By providing more direct and scaffolded instruction on clinical reasoning, early learners begin to build context for history-taking, physical exam maneuvers, note-writing, and oral presentation skills practiced in the pre-clerkship curriculum. Repeated cycles of varied practice, feedback, and reflection enable learners to leave every simulation experience understanding the WHY behind WHAT they are doing.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Discuss challenges to clinical reasoning development with early medical learners.
- 2. Evaluate visual, cognitive, and cooperative learning strategies for advancing clinical reasoning.
- 3. Brainstorm opportunities to implement 2 new strategies at home institutions.

Session Methods and Format:

05 min: Introduction – Background, large group inventory / poll / discussion of challenges

40 min: Small Group Breakouts – Use case vignettes to explore visual, cognitive, and cooperative

learning strategies

05 min: Summary of Strategies and connection to Best Practices

10 min: Large Group Brainstorm / Takeaways

Online Facilitation:

Zoom breakout rooms, Zoom whiteboards, Zoom chat, Zoom poll

Backup handouts to share via Zoom chat if technology fails

Experience:

- Sonal C. Patel, MA: Instructional Designer, Wayne State University School of Medicine
- Erin Miller, MD: Assistant Professor, Course Director for Clinical Skills I longitudinal course, Wayne State University School of Medicine

References:

- 1. Dean Parmelee , Brenda Roman , Irina Overman & Maryam Alizadeh (2020): The lecture-free curriculum: Setting the stage for life-long learning: AMEE Guide No. 135, Medical Teacher, DOI: 10.1080/0142159X.2020.1789083
- 2. Maris F. Cutting & Norma Susswein Saks (2012) Twelve tips for utilizing principles of learning to support medical education, Medical Teacher, 34:1, 20-24, DOI:10.3109/0142159X.2011.558143
- 3. Reg Dennick (2012) Twelve tips for incorporating educational theory into teaching practices, Medical Teacher, 34:8, 618-624, DOI: 10.3109/0142159X.2012.668244

For more information about this abstract please contact: scpatel@med.wayne.edu

NEGEA Workshop Abstracts

<u>The Scholarly Writing Workshop for Most of Us: Basic & Powerful Strategies for Advancing Your Writing</u>

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Rebecca Blanchard, University of Massachusetts Medical School - Baystate Leigh Ann Holterman, Larner College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Health professions educators are critical thinkers, consistent innovators, and insightful researchers. In order for any of this work to reach a broader audience, however, they must also be skilled authors.(1)

Unfortunately, scholarly writing does not typically enjoy a consistent spot within the curriculum of undergraduate or graduate health professions education. While teaching and research skills are reinforced across the continuum, the art and skill of writing remains elusive. At best, rhetoric skills may have been developed in structured undergraduate college programs or through deliberate practice. At worst, the fear of writing may have prevented great ideas from ever being put to paper. Given the vulnerability that health professions educators might feel with writing – especially those voices that are underrepresented in healthcare, considerable attention must be paid to the cultivation of and conversation around these skills.

In this workshop, we present a schema for authors to advance their own scholarly writing and to give feedback to others. This interactive session empowers participants to advance themselves and their peers by demonstrating simple yet effective strategies that blend the work of prominent rhetoricians in the field (1,2,3) and the facilitators' experiences as authors and mentors.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Describe a schema for giving feedback on scholarly writing
- 2. Apply strategies for editing and improving your own writing
- Increase confidence and comfort in giving and receiving feedback on writing
- 4. Discuss methods for successful time management and increased scholarly output

Session Methods and Format:

(5 min) Introductions and Poll of participants' comfort with scholarly writing and editing; Orientation to session: Drs. Holterman and Blanchard will alternate as main presenter and chat monitor for each section below. All small group instructions will be posted to chat.

(5 min) Tip #1 - Write. Participants will be given 4 minutes to write freely based on the prompt: "What is an idea or encounter you had at work that taught you something?" The amount that gets written shows the power of uninterrupted time.

(10 min) Tip #2 - Big Editing: Find your purpose. Participants will be asked to write a purpose statement based on what they've written (or intended to write). In breakout rooms of 3-4, participants will each: Introduce themselves, share their purpose statement and then remain silent while their group members each list 1-2 things they would like to know or questions they have about the purpose. This process highlights the value in sharing your ideas with others early on.

(3 min) Return to Full group, then 2-word chat debrief: What was that like for you?

(7 min) Brief Lecture with PPT: Introduction to the editing process, including Big (structure, story, tone), Medium (paragraph order, sentence structure, verb tense), and Small (word choice, style, verb voice).(2,3)

(7 min) Tip #3 - Medium & Small Editing: In the same breakout groups, participants will be given a taste of Medium and small editing by identifying relevant sentences in their work and then in groups rewriting two sentences; 1) change 1 passive into active voice and 2) rewrite 1 sentence starting with "There are..." or "It is..."

(3 min) In Full Group, 1-2 word chat Debrief: What was that like for you?

(10 Min) Tip #4: Strategizing for Increased Output: participants will review the S.M.A.R.T. (specific, measureable, achievable, relevant, time-limited) framework for goal setting and apply it to time management for scholarly writing. Additional tips for increasing scholarly output will be shared before participants will be asked to build on this list by annotating on a document with their own recommendations or echoing those of their peers. This completed document will be distributed to participants along with additional resources.

(10 min) Debrief & Evaluation – Debrief. Then, end with each participant asked to identify one intention for moving forward and then "set" their intention by sharing it in the chat.

Online Facilitation:

Specific virtual considerations and use of technology described in the session Methods and Format. Both facilitators have extensive experience teaching in the virtual space and have designed activities to allow individual, small group, chat, and large group interaction. Attention will be paid to the needs and size of the group to be flexible and sustain active engagement.

Experience:

- An associate professor at UMMS-Baystate, Dr. Blanchard publishes in peer reviewed journals about health professions education, mentors investigators on scholarly writing, and withstands copious editing of her work.
- Dr. Holterman, an assistant professor at LCOM, publishes manuscripts mentors faculty and students in research and scholarly writing, previously worked as a writing tutor, and credits her graduate school mentor with her success in giving and receiving edits.

References:

- 1. Varpio, L., Driessen, E., Maggio, L. et al. Advice for authors from the editors of Perspectives on Medical Education: Getting your research published. Perspect Med Educ (2018) 7: 343. DOI: 10.1007.s40037-018-0483-0
- 2.Watling, C. & Lingard, L. Giving feedback on others' writing. Perspect Med Educ (2019) 8: 25. DOI: 10.1007.s40037-018-0492-z
- 3. Watling C. The three 'S's of editing: story, structure, and style. Perspect Med Educ. 2016;5:300–2.
- 4. Lingard, L. Joining a conversation. The problem-gap-hook heuristic. Perspect Med Educ (2015) 4: 252. DOI:10.1007/s40037-015-0211-y

For more information about this abstract please contact: rebecca.blanchardphd@baystatehealth.org

A Roadmap for Publishing Health Professions Education Scholarship

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Toni Gallo, Association of American Medical Colleges

Lauren Maggio, Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences F. Edward Hebert School of Medicine

Bridget O'Brien, University of California, San Francisco, School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Publishing your health professions education (HPE) work in a peer-reviewed journal helps disseminate important findings and ideas to a wide audience. Publications are key criteria for promotion and tenure decisions. Yet most journals receive large numbers of submissions and have low acceptance rates. At the same time, the number of venues for publishing has grown as has the variety of publication types, from one-page infographics to comprehensive literature reviews. In this workshop, the presenters will introduce participants to the evolving landscape of publishing in HPE, provide examples of how to think through the available publishing opportunities, and highlight resources authors can use to prepare their work for submission.

Learning Objectives:

At the end of this workshop, participants should be able to:

- (1) Describe a variety of dissemination venues for publishing scholarship in HPE;
- (2) Select the appropriate publication type for their scholarship; and
- (3) Identify the resources available to guide their publication preparation.

Session Methods and Format:

- 25-minute presentation on the HPE publishing landscape, publishing opportunities, and resources for authors (material distribution, screen sharing, polling)
- 15-minute large group exercise with publishing scenarios (Bingo, Jeopardy, or Poll Everywhere activity)
- 20-minute Q&A with the presenters and 1-2 additional HPE journal editors (audio, chat)

Online Facilitation:

During the first part of the workshop, two speakers (Maggio, O'Brien) will use screen sharing to show slides with information on the HPE publishing landscape, publishing opportunities, and author resources. The third speaker (Gallo) will distribute materials in the chat, including the author resources available online. Then all three speakers will present publishing scenarios in a "Where/How should you publish?" exercise and offer feedback on participants' responses. During the Q&A, one speaker (Gallo) will moderate questions and all speakers as well as invited HPE journal editors in the audience will respond to participants' questions.

Experience:

- Toni Gallo is a senior staff editor with Academic Medicine and has led writing workshops at regional and national meetings.
- Lauren Maggio is the Deputy Editor-in-Chief of Perspectives on Medical Education and a professor of Health Professions Education and Medicine at the Uniformed Services University.

- She has led multiple workshops on publishing that draw on her background in information science and education.
- Bridget O'Brien is a Deputy Editor at Academic Medicine and a professor of medicine at the University of California, San Francisco. She has given presentations and facilitated workshops on various aspects of scholarship in health professions education.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: tgallo@aamc.org

Evaluating Curricular Materials to Mitigate Bias: Looking thru the Structural and Social Determinants of Health Lens

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Felise Milan, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Janice John, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicineat Hofstra/Northwell Katharine Yamulla, New York Medical College

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The need to train healthcare professionals to be aware of and mitigate bias in the healthcare system has become an urgent imperative. We know that social determinants of health (SDoH) contribute to health problems and healthcare disparities. Unfortunately, research has shown that the pedagogical focus on cultural competence has not improved healthcare outcomes. Despite efforts to incorporate these topics into medical curricula, the "hidden curriculum" of poor role modeling prevails. Upon review of their curricular materials for teaching and assessment, many can find examples of previously unrecognized bias. This interactive workshop introduces a paradigm shift focused on structural competency which incorporates the structural vulnerability of patients and a level of accountability of clinicians and other team members.

To fully embrace this framework, we must ensure that educational materials including lecture content, readings, multiple choice questions (MCQ), case-vignettes and observed structured clinical encounter (OSCE) materials, are critically appraised for bias and that they recognize the structural challenges our patients face. This workshop seeks to describe this new paradigm and related concepts while empowering participants with tools that will address their educational needs to mitigate bias.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Compare and contrast: cultural competence and cultural vulnerability; structural competence, structural vulnerability and structural humility
- 2. Apply key concepts for addressing bias when creating and revising clinical cases for teaching and assessment
- 3. Critically appraise and revise clinical cases/curricular content to promote inclusion and mitigate bias

Session Methods and Format:

Structure Time Description Virtual Workshop Facilitation (min.)

Icebreaker/Introductions.
 min

Use spotlight feature and host has requested you to unmute to select individuals to introduce themselves and answer icebreaker

- 2. Overview. 10 min
 - Framing
 - Terminology and Definitions

Share screen to share slides. Utilize chat function, with one author monitoring

- 3. Introduction: Tool. 5 min
 - Discussion: Caruso Tool components
 - Instructions for activity

Share screen to share slides. chat box will be used to share documents 1) PDF document of the Caruso tool 2) curricular materials* with participants.

- 4. Small Group: Interactive Activity. 20 min
 - Participants break into 3 groups
 - Each group will apply the Caruso Tool to one of three curricular materials (*MCQs/case vignette/ OSCE case)

Each of the three breakout rooms will have one author facilitating

- 5. Large Group: Debrief Activity. 10 min
 - Discuss challenges
 - Lessons learned

Return to main room and stop share so all participants can see each other well

One participant from each group will report out

One author will scribe challenges and lessons learned

- 6. Large Group: Share Ideas. 10 min
 - Share solutions
 - Promote collaboration

Author will share screen – sharing the slide with containing Challenges and Lessons Learned And instruct participants to unmute and share solutions.

Reflect on take-away points

Participants will place take away points in the chat box, that one author will read aloud

Total Time 60 minutes

Online Facilitation:

All authors have extensive experience leading interactive workshops over virtual media. Above description includes strategies to adapt to the virtual medium.

- Breakout groups for small group activities
- Chat, white board functions for participants to share questions, thoughts.
- Share screen to share slides, tools
- Link to primary tool needed so participants can download.

Experience:

• Felise Milan, MD, is a Professor of Medicine at Albert Einstein College of Medicine, Director of the Clinical Skills curriculum, member of the HRSA funded NCEAS (The National Collaborative for Education to Address the Social Determinants of Health). She is serving as a co-PI on an NIH grant to create performance based assessments on bias in healthcare and as an internal grant

- reviewer on an institutional Reimagining Residency grant from the AMA -Residency Training to Effectively Address Social Determinants of Health: Applying a Curricular Framework Across Four Primary Care Specialties.
- Katharine Yamulla, MA, CHSE, Senior Director of Competency Based Assessment and Clinical Skills Education and Director of the Clinical Skills Center at New York Medical College, has presented numerous peer reviewed workshops at IMSH, ASPE, STFM and DOCS on the topics of Collaborative Feedback, Student Wellness, and Advanced Standardized Training Techniques.
- Janice John, DO, MS, MPH, Assistant Professor of Science Education and Pediatrics, is Co-director of Clinical Skills at the Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell. She provides faculty development on topics such as unconscious bias, inclusion and belonging. She has led her team to create clinical skills exams that are more inclusive and representative of diversity. Through her community engagement, she has developed service learning opportunities for medical students. She partners to oversee the health equity component of the school's curriculum.

References:

- 1. Bourgois, Philippe, Holmes, Seth M., Sue, Kim & Quesada, James. "Structural Vulnerability: Operationalizing the Concept to Address Health Disparities in Clinical Care." Academic Medicine 92, no. 3 (March 2017): 299-307.
- 2. Caruso Brown, Amy E., Hobart, Travis R.,Botash, Anne S., Germain, Lauren J. "Can a checklist ameliorate implicit bias in medical education?" Th Association for the Study of Medical Education, (March 2019): 498-528. (https://redcap.upstate.edu/surveys/?s=KADLRXK8WE)
- 3. Krishnan, Aparna, Rabinowitz, Ziminsky, Ariana, Scott, Stephen M., Chretien, Katherine C. "Addressing Race, Culture, and Structural Inequality in Medical Education." Academic Medicine 94, no. 4 (April 2019): 550-555.

For more information about this abstract please contact: felise.milan@einsteinmed.org

Identifying and Interrupting Microaggressions

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

R. Ellen Pearlman, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Melissa Pawelczak, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Mersema Abate, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell Robert Roswell, Donald and Barbara Zucker School of Medicine at Hofstra/Northwell

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Understanding how microaggressions impact feelings of inclusion in the clinical setting and_appreciating how microaggressions can impact care providers, patients, hospital systems and ultimately health equity are critical to any institution hoping to dismantle structural racism.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of this workshop, participants will be able to...

- Define the various types of microaggressions.
- Recognize when they occur and the reasons they may occur.
- Understand the impact of microaggressions on those who receive them frequently.
- Interrupt microaggressions when they occur using communication techniques.
- Run a similar workshop at their home institutions.

Session Methods and Format:

15 min: Introductions and Mini-didactic on Microaggressions 10 min: Large group exercise: identifying microaggressions

15 min: Pair and Share (in new pairs): Discussion of cases- whether or not to interrupt and how to

interrupt- in breakout rooms

15 min: Large group debrief of cases

5 min: Closing

We will open with introductions and a brief mini-didactic on microaggressions, including a tool that can be used to interrupt microaggressions. This introduction will be followed an exercise during which the participants will be presented with 6 statements (provided by third year students) and asked to determine whether or not they represent microaggressions and why/why not (discussion will occur via chat and audio). Participants will then be paired in breakout rooms to discuss one of four cases. Specifically, the participants will be asked to (a) identify the microaggression, (b) construct an empathic response to the person who is the recipient of a microaggression, (c) discuss whether or not to interrupt the microaggression, and (d) construct an approach to interrupting the microaggression or an alternative next step. Participants will then return to the main room for the final 20 minutes to participate in a large group debrief of the cases. Workshop closing will be brief and consist of the elicitation of take-home points.

Online Facilitation:

This will be an active learning session focused on empowering participants' experiential learning. The facilitators will make use of the following virtual tools during the workshop: material distribution via chat, screen sharing, audience response by audio and chat, and breakout rooms.

Experience:

- Mersema Abate, MD is a Co-Director of the MS3 year at the ZSOM inclusive of the health equity core learning week.
- Melissa Pawelczak, MD is the Assistant Dean for the Advanced Clinical Experience (MS3 year) at the ZSOM and co-director of the health equity core learning week.
- Ellen Pearlman, MD, FACH is the Associate Dean for Professionalism and Doctoring Skills at the ZSOM and serves as the faculty co-chair of the Curriculum Subcommittee of the ZSOM's Committee to Address Racism and Allyship (CARA). She also provides faculty development on communication skills and co-directs the Facilitator-in-Training program of the Academy of Communication in Healthcare.
- Robert Roswell, MD is the Associate Dean for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion at the ZSOM, a codirector of the health equity core learning week, and the chair of the Executive Committee of the ZSOM's Committee to Address Racism and Allyship (CARA).

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: r.e.pearlman@hofstra.edu

<u>Breaking Down the Steps: Turning Teaching Activities into Educational</u> Scholarship

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Emine Abali, CUNY School of Medicine Grace Huang, Harvard Medical School Douglas Gould, Oakland University William Beaumont School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

MedEdPORTAL, the MEDLINE-indexed Journal for Teaching and Learning Resources of the Association of American Medical Colleges, peer reviews and publishes educational and assessment resources. It represents a unique publication venue for health professions educators designing innovative teaching activities for medical and dental learners, while extending their impact by disseminating their works.

The NEGEA community is well positioned to contribute to the literature base in a way that benefits the entire community of health science educators. Additionally, helping members understand how to present their educational innovations as scholarship is critical to individuals' professional development. The process of submitting to MedEdPORTAL requires an Educational Summary Report (ESR), which is structured like a traditional research manuscript. However, preparing a manuscript in a way that allows replicability by future readers requires some details and nuance that is distinct from other medical education journals.

This workshop, led by the Editor-in-Chief and two associate editors of MedEdPORTAL, is designed to provide hands-on experience with preparing an ESR for submission. Participants will consider teaching resources of their own that are potentially submittable to MedEdPORTAL and will be guided through each section of the ESR.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of the session, participants will be able to:

- describe how your teaching activities could be transformed into educational scholarship
- apply principles of scholarly writing to translate a common teaching activity into a MedEdPORTAL submission
- develop a personal "to-do" list to prepare a MedEdPORTAL submission

Session Methods and Format:

15-minutes: Review Glassick's criteria for the scholarship and the Educational Summary Report (ESR) worksheet. Participants select a teaching activity they would consider submitting to MedEdPORTAL.

The first section is didactic, but we aim to provide a learning environment that will invite questions and interaction. The ESR worksheet is a list of prompting questions that provide guidance for preparing an ESR, by section. Participants will think about their own activities that may be eligible for submission to MedEdPORTAL. They will go through the questions on their own, fostering the application of principles introduced in the didactic to their own work.

30-minute: Small group activity in clusters by teaching activity (simulated/standardized patients, interactive workshops, team-based learning, games/other).

Faculty with similar types of teaching activities will be put together, which will foster sharing best practices and idea generation. Then each participant has a turn having the small group help them with a section with the ESR (participant #1 gets help on objectives, participant #2 gets help on the introduction, etc.).

15- minutes: Large group report-out and Wrap-up

The large group report-out will highlight strategies for each section of the ESR. Hearing other participants' experience will essentially provide "worked examples" for inspiration. A facilitator will also take notes that will generate effective principles for tackling parts of a manuscript. The workshop conclusion will allow synthesis and consideration of "muddy points" for future individual reflection.

Online Facilitation:

During the large group activity, one co-author will be the presenter/ moderator and one will be the chat moderator. They will take turns as they are discussing different parts of the presentation.

Small groups will be conducted using the breakout sessions. Two of the co-authors will be breakout facilitators and the third author will be broadcasting a message to all breakout rooms and will join various breakout rooms to listen in on conversations or answer questions. We will share a Google document with the participants that hold the ESR worksheet. We will monitor the Google document in real-time as participants work.

If there are any issues with Zoom, participants can continue working on the Google Doc. The authors will provide feedback to the participants via email.

Experience:

 Grace Huang, MD, is the editor-in-chief of MedEdPORTAL. Emine Abali, Ph.D., and Douglas Gould, Ph.D. are associate editors of MedEdPORTAL. They all have years of experience in editorial work; Dr. Gould was the previous editor-in-chief of Medical Science Educator. Dr. Abali has been the recipient of the national peer reviewer award twice.

References:

1. https://www.mededportal.org

For more information about this abstract please contact: eabali@med.cuny.edu

<u>Difficult Conversations: The Discriminatory Patient</u>

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Christian Torres, New York University School of Medicine Barbara Porter, New York University School of Medicine Margaret Horlick, New York University School of Medicine Richard Greene, New York University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Discriminatory remarks from patients directed at medical trainees are common. In one study by de Bourmont et al (JAMA Network Open, 2020), 98% of residents reported experiencing or witnessing biased behavior at least once in the past year. Many also reported that prioritization of clinical care and a lack of knowledge or skills for responding had kept them from taking action. Even though Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act states that employees of health care institutions have the right to a workplace free from discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, and national origin, health care workers have silently accepted discrimination as part of their job. Discriminatory remarks from patients negatively impact trainees' well-being, and have potential to impact the care a patient receives. We developed a workshop to train physicians in how to explicitly respond to witnessed episodes of patient discrimination toward their colleagues. We will share frameworks for responses, and participants will then practice with cases inspired by real events.

Learning Objectives:

The session will provide an opportunity for participants to engage in a discussion of their approach to interactions with discriminatory patients.

By the end of the session, participants will:

- Recognize that discrimination in any form is unacceptable, even from patients in clinical settings
- Appreciate the complex nature of interactions with a discriminatory patient for patients, direct recipients and witnesses
- Practice an approach to interactions with discriminatory patients

Session Methods and Format:

The session will be structured and timed as follows:

Introduction (12 min)

3 min -- Welcome and Learning Objectives (Dr. Porter)

8 min -- Review of approaches from the literature (Dr. Porter)

2 min -- Introduction to case-based format and discussion (Dr. Torres)

Cases (45 min)

Each case will be discussed for a total of 15 minutes, with 10 minutes for small-group discussion in a breakout room, followed by 5 minutes of large-group debrief. Each breakout room will have one of the four authors serving as a facilitator. Dr. Torres will facilitate the large-group debrief.

Case 1: Gender-based discrimination

Case 2: Race-based discrimination

Case 3: Discrimination against LGBTQ+-identifying individuals

Conclusion (3 min)

Online Facilitation:

The workshop will utilize breakout rooms for each case to allow for intimate discussion of this challenging topic. This will also allow for more individuals to verbalize how they would respond to the prompt, and get personal feedback from their colleagues and facilitator. Those unable or unwilling to share their comments aloud will be encouraged to utilize the chat function of the online platform so that all participants commit to and practice a response.

Experience:-

- Dr. Porter is an Associate Program Director for the NYU Grossman School of Medicine Internal Medicine Residency and has developed and presented similar workshops for both housestaff and faculty.
- Dr. Torres is Director of Diversity Training and Housestaff Mentoring for the NYU GSOM Office of Diversity Affairs and has co-hosted these workshops with Dr. Porter.
- Dr. Horlick is Senior Associate Program Director for the NYU GSOM Internal Medicine Residency and oversees the program's "Resident as Teacher" curriculum, which includes similar workshops.
- Dr. Greene is Director of Health Disparities Education for the NYU GSOM Office of Diversity Affairs and an Associate Program Director for the Internal Medicine Residency, overseeing its anti-racism curriculum.

References:

1. de Bourmont SS, Burra A, Nouri SS, et al. Resident Physician Experiences With and Responses to Biased Patients. JAMA Netw Open. 2020;3(11):e2021769. doi:10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2020.21769

For more information about this abstract please contact: christiantorres.md@gmail.com

Trauma Informed Medical Education: TIME to Act

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Taylor Brown, Harvard Medical School Greeshma Somashekar, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Amy Weil, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine Nhi-Ha Trinh, Harvard Medical School Jennifer Potter, Harvard Medical School

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Because trauma is ubiquitous across the life course and may be associated with a wide variety of adverse health consequences, medical schools are developing trauma-related educational content for their curricula including trauma-informed care (TIC). In addition to considering curricular content, there is growing consensus that medical educators also need to apply a trauma-informed lens to the context of medical education. Students may arrive to medical training having experienced adverse childhood events, bias, and discrimination, and they may experience additional discrimination and or mistreatment during their medical training impacting their ability to engage in education.

Trauma-informed medical education (TIME) aims to minimize the potential for retraumatization (of students who arrive with experiences of trauma), to minimize iatrogenic traumatization (of any student), and to improve educational equity by applying the six principles of TIC to the undergraduate medical education learning environment.1,2 This includes the domains of curricular development, curricular delivery, student advising, and institutional policies. This interactive session will demonstrate three applications of TIME to current challenges in medical education and invite participants to apply the TIME framework to challenges at their own institutions during small group break out sessions. The session will demonstrate how TIME is a broadly applicable framework to address current challenges in medical education.

Learning Objectives:

Upon completion of this session, participants will be able to:

- 1) Outline the 6 principles of trauma-informed care as described by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration;
- 2) Describe how a trauma-informed lens can be applied to the context of undergraduate medical education to enhance the learning environment, learning outcomes, student health/well-being, and educational equity; and
- 3) Identify opportunities to advance trauma-informed medical education at their home institutions, using the TIME framework as a guide.

Session Methods and Format:

To address the pressing need for development of effective trauma-informed medical education (TIME) innovations, this session will begin with a brief didactic review of the need for TIME and present a TIME framework based on the six principles of TIC to be used throughout the session (7 minutes). This will be followed by three TED-style presentations featuring applications of TIME from three different institutions to current challenges in medical education: virtual learning, student performance issues, and

social justice curricula (7 minutes each). Each presentation will summarize the interventions according to the TIME framework.

These presentations will follow with a facilitated, small group activity (20 min) in which participants will brainstorm opportunities to apply trauma-informed principles to their own teaching and educational leadership. Using the TIME framework, small groups will walk through potential solutions to problems identified at their own institutions. Facilitators will all have a background in TIC and be trained in TIME. Participants will then join a large group, interactive wrap-up discussion in which groups will share key issues identified and potential TIME solutions (10 min). We aim to demonstrate how TIME is broadly applicable to a range of challenges in undergraduate medical education.

Online Facilitation:

For the first 4, 7 minute presentations, we will utilize screen share to project slides. Participants will periodically be asked to respond to prompt using the chat feature and the polling feature.

For the small group session, we will utilize the breakout room feature. Each small group will have no more than 5-10 participants. We will recruit additional facilitators as necessary, otherwise the authors will facilitate small groups. For the large group debrief, we will have participants rejoin the large group and share through several zoom polls, and having each group share one solution.

- Experience:
- Taylor Brown is a fourth-year medical student at Harvard Medical School and first author paper of a framework for trauma-informed medical education.
- Greeshma Somashekaris a fourth-year medical student at UNC School of Medicine with background in trauma-informed care and anti-racist advocacy work.
- Amy Weil MD is a Professor, Division of General Medicine and Clinical Epidemiology, and a Medical Co-Director for the Beacon Child and Family Program is a background in traumainformed care.
- Nhi-Ha Trinh MD, MPH is the Director of the Massachusetts General Hospital Department of Psychiatry Center for Diversity and a student advisor at Harvard Medical School with a background in trauma-informed care.
- Jennifer Potter MD is a Professor of Medicine and Advisory Dean at Harvard Medical School with many years experience in trauma-informed care.

References:

1. Brown T, Berman S, McDaniel K, et al. Trauma-Informed Medical Education (TIME): Advancing Curricular Content and Educational Context. Acad Med. 2020; Publish Ahead of Print. doi:10.1097/ACM.0000000000003587
2. McClinton A, Laurencin CT. Just in TIME: Trauma-Informed Medical Education. J Racial Ethn Health Disparities. 2020;7(6):1046-1052. doi:10.1007/s40615-020-00881-w

For more information about this abstract please contact: taylor brown@hms.harvard.edu

<u>Initiating a discussion-based anti-racism curriculum for beginning medical</u> <u>students – a critical race theory and narrative medicine approach</u>

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: NEGEA

Authors:

Hetty Cunningham, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Jean-Marie Alves-Bradford, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Stephen Brookfield, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Michael Devlin, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Nicole Furlonge, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Julie Glickstein, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Reneson Jean-Louis, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Usha Krisnan, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Prantik Saha, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons
Delphine Taylor, Columbia University Vagelos College of Physicians and Surgeons

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical educators have long struggled to create frameworks to discuss systemic racism in small groups settings with diverse students. In the wake of the murder of George Floyd, among many outrageous incidents of this country's pervasive systemic racism, our academic community came face-to-face with the many ways in which our institution has embodied biased and discriminatory practices. Innovative faculty development and curricular content models have been urgently needed.(1) Inspired by student organizing, faculty allies such as ourselves felt called to examine and fundamentally alter our curriculum. In alliance with colleagues in social work and education, this workshop will model interdisciplinary collaboration leading to both faculty development tools and a Narrative Medicine (NM)-based antiracism seminar.

Pre-assigned summer readings explored the history of racism in medicine, health disparities, and implicit bias. We initiated our conversations, first with faculty and then with students, with James Baldwin's "A Letter to My Nephew",(2) with themes of history, systemic racism, bias, privilege, and humanity. To facilitate conversation, we chose a NM framework that achieves narrative humility, multi-perspectivism, and radical listening.(3)

We initially surveyed faculty to identify areas in need of faculty development. Our pre-survey revealed beginner to intermediate confidence in the skills to teach about anti-Black racism, with 17 out of 22 respondents reporting low levels of preparedness to address anti-Black racism. Faculty reported a particular lack of confidence to address biological conversations about race and to navigate racial tension in small groups. Respondents overwhelmingly acknowledged the need and expressed the desire for further education and training.

To prepare faculty to lead these conversations about racism, we invited education experts in African-American literature, adult learning, and critical race theory (CRT) to lead three 90-minute trainings. Social work and education graduate students trained in CRT joined the faculty in preparing for and then facilitating anti-racism sessions with medical students.

Faculty survey reveals that 100% of faculty found the faculty development helpful, and have increased awareness, skills, and confidence to teach anti-racism in medicine to pre-clinical students. We will

formally survey faculty again in August 2021. Re students, of 56% of student survey responses, 90% were positive. Students frequently commented that the session was well-facilitated.

We seek to share these pedagogical methods with medical educators committed to anti-racist medical educational curricula and environment, cultures of humility, and ongoing self-reflection toward bias-free teaching.

Learning Objectives:

Workshop Goal:

• Faculty will be familiar with a variety of skills to facilitate discussions about racism in small group learning environments

Objectives:

- Learn and discuss skills to facilitate discussions about racism
- Explore faculty challenges to classroom discussions about racism
- Experience the use of narrative medicine to facilitate discussions of systemic racism through use of Baldwin's "A Letter to My Nephew."
- Consider interdisciplinary collaboration in teaching about racism

Session Methods and Format:

0 min: Participants will provide contact information, and list questions and challenges via googledocs. Presenters will use this information to guide the session and enable post-session follow-up.

10 minutes: Direct participants to 5-10 member breakout rooms for a facilitated NM exercise using an excerpt from Baldwin's essay. Facilitators will encourage participants to identify challenges and rewards of using this process to facilitate discussions about systemic racism.

5 min: Topic presentation, including faculty pre- and post-session and student post-session surveys 10 min: Summary of pedagogical strategies based in CRT and NM (Drs. Furlonge and Brookfield)

 We will distribute a "Teaching About Racism" handout with multiple practical tools for educators.

15 min: Participants return to breakout rooms with facilitators to apply learned strategies using a different excerpt of the Baldwin essay. Guiding questions for discussion include both content and process.

20 min: Participants and panelists will explore the viewpoints, ideas, challenges, and opportunities discussed during small group discussions using polleverywhere.com and backchannelchat.com and zoom chat.

Online Facilitation:

The described faculty development and curriculum were developed for remote learning; this session will employ the same tools including: zoom chat, polleverywhere.com, backchannelchat.com, breakout rooms, material distribution, Google Docs, and screen sharing.

Experience:

- J.Alves-Bradford is Office of Equity, Diversity and Inclusion in Psychiatry Director.
- S.Brookfield, expert in adult learning and critical race theory (CRT), is Professor of education.
- H.Cunningham is Equity and Justice in Curricular Affairs Director.
- M.Devlin is Associate Foundations of Clinical Medicine (FCM) Course Director.

- N. Furlonge, expert in African-American literature and faculty development, is Professor of education.
- J.Glickstein is an experienced FCM faculty member.
- U.S. Krishnan is an experienced FCM faculty member.
- P.Saha is an experienced FCM faculty member.
- D.Taylor is FCM Course Director.
- J.Reneson is a social work student and racial justice educator.

References:

- 1. Ross, P. T., Lypson, M. L., Byington, C. L., Sánchez, J. P., Wong, B. M., & Kumagai, A. K. (2020). Learning From the Past and Working in the Present to Create an Antiracist Future for Academic Medicine. Academic Medicine, 95(12), 1781-1786.
- 2. Baldwin, J. (1962). A letter to my nephew. The Progressive, 1, 19-20.
- 3. Charon, R. (2017). The principles and practice of narrative medicine. Oxford University Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact: hc451@cumc.columbia.edu

SGEA Workshop Abstracts

Achieving your goals through a learning network

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Jean Bailey, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Sally Santen, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine Mary Haas, University of Michigan Medical School Louito Edje, University of Cincinnati Medical Center Linda Love, University of Nebraska College of Medicine Larry Hurtubise, Ohio State University College of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

A learning network, also known as a personal learning network (PLN), is an informal network of people a learner or educator interacts with and derives knowledge from. The intentional development of learning networks can support faculty to achieve personal and professional goals. These types of connections can be made virtually, which is useful to faculty working remotely and needing support and guidance. With the COVID disruption educators have had a mixture of isolation and a variety of virtual connections. The goal of this workshop is to help participants explore learning networks, identify possible network connections, and apply tips for creating effective networks.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Identify personal goals
- 2. Understand the foundation of learning networks- Connect, contribute, converse, request, share
- 3. Align goals and plan personal network
- 4. Discover and choose appropriate technology to support their network
- Establish a network by mapping, identifying, and contributing to an educational and leadership learning network with like-minded professionals who will broaden their experience and challenge their thinking on an ongoing basis

Session Methods and Format:

This virtual session will provide learners and educators with tools and guides to help them establish goals, plan their network, apply technology tools, and map their connections to educational leaders. In addition, these tools may help faculty develop junior faculty and trainees. Methods used include mini lecture, demonstration, discussion, small group interaction, and hands on activities. The lesson plan includes the following:

Minutes Topic

10 Welcome and introductions

All participants will provide an introduction stating the following:

- Name
- Institutional affiliation
- Areas of expertise and area of growth
- (If group is large, participants will introduce in small groups)

5 Define learning networks and provide evidence of success

Presenters will provide a quick overview of PLNs, experiences using them, and data providing evidence of effectiveness

20 Goal identification and alignment with personal network plan

Presenters will guide participants in small groups to identify goals, identify existing and new connections to achieve the goals.

Through this process participants will complete the following:

- An electronic goals identification worksheet
- A network planning tool to identify possible connections
- Explore technology tools to enhance network connections

 Presenters will lead participants in a discussion to identify possible technology tools

 (Twitter, LinkedIn, research sites, etc.) and specific ways to use these tools to grow a network
- 10 Final questions/debriefing/summary of work completed

Online Facilitation:

One facilitator will serve as session monitor to coordinate technology, mute/unmute participants, assign breakout rooms, tee up technology for session (how to engage), etc.; one facilitator will monitor the chat feature to solicit questions/comments and distribute links to handouts; a facilitator will be in each breakout room with assigned tasks for participants; one facilitator will present using screen sharing features.

Experience:

- Sally Santen, MD, PhD, is Senior Associate Dean of Assessment, Evaluation, and Scholarship at Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine who has 15 years of connecting educators, trainees, and researchers.
- Jean Bailey, PhD, is an Associate Dean for Faculty Development and has over 18 years of experience focused on promoting faculty success and development.
- Mary Haas, MD, MHPE is an instructor, assistant residency program director and assistant
 director of clinical faculty development in the Department of Emergency Medicine at the
 University of Michigan Medical School. She has authored publications and spoken nationally on
 the related subjects of social media use in education and personal learning networks.
- Louito (Lou) Edje, MD, MHPE, FAAFP is the Designated Institutional Officer (DIO) for the University of Cincinnati with over 10 years of faculty development and residency training and serves as the GME Associate Dean.
- Linda Love, EdD is a health professions educator and organizational developer and is the
 Director of Faculty Development, an Interprofessional Academy of Educators Scholar, and
 Assistant Professor in the Department of Psychiatry at the University of Nebraska Medical
 Center.
- Larry Hurtubise, MA is the Director of the Office of Educational Innovation and Scholarship with over 15 years of encouraging collaborative networks and sponsoring colleagues.

References:

1. Haas, M RC, Haley, K, Nagappan, BS, Ankel, F, Swaminathan, A, and Santen, SA. "The Connected Educator: Personal Learning Networks." The Clinical Teacher. 17.4 (2020): 373-77. Web.

For more information about this abstract please contact: jean.bailey@vcuhealth.org

Addressing racism within a coaching program to promote clinical skill development and self-regulated learning skills

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Tiana Walker, University of Virginia School of Medicine
L. Brett Whalen, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Marc Vetter, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Andrew Parsons, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Megan Bray, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Maryellen Gusic, University of Virginia School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

In recognition of current social and racial tensions impacting our communities, current clerkship students sought to augment their clinical skills training to ensure that they are prepared to engage in challenging patient encounters that include culturally sensitive topics. Advised by faculty with expertise in the development of, and use of standardized patients in teaching, cultural competency, and health disparities, equity and racial justice, students developed a curriculum to address these concerns. Student resources were created to help them prepare and "try out" new skills in a simulated setting. The learning activities are being incorporated into our longitudinal Foundations of Clinical Medicine course during which students meet individually with their Faculty Coach (FC) to create learning plans using data from clinical assessments. Resources were also created for the FCs to equip them to partner with students to use this experience as a foundation for creating action steps to apply learning in future clinical experiences.

Coaching is a strategy that is being widely used to guide students in evaluating their performance, identifying specific learning goals and creating a plan to achieve these goals. Applied in this way, coaching is an effective tool to assist students in developing self regulated learning skills needed for life long learning throughout their careers. As such, coaching conversations can help prepare learners to face challenges as they engage in patient care as members of health care team.

In this interactive session, participants will observe a standardized student during a standardized patient encounter that is part of a cultural humility curriculum designed to simulate challenging communication and engagement around race that students may experience in a clinical setting. Participants will practice coaching with the standardized student to help the student assess and articulate the learning needs illuminated by the encounter.

Learning Objectives:

- Illustrate a teaching strategy to enhance students' communication skills in challenging patient encounters related to race
- Define self-regulated learning (SRL) and how these skills impact a learner's ability to engage in life-long learning (LLL)
- Describe how coaching, distinct from advising/mentoring, can be effective in preparing learners to face challenging clinical situations
- Examine how a coaching approach can be used to promote students' ability to identify learning goals and to define an action plan to achieve those goals

Session Methods and Format:

- Introduction: Elicit attendees' experience in addressing race and social justice in their medical student curricula using chat (what teaching strategies have they/are they using);
 Use polling to elicit participants' experience with coaching (one on one, coaching program, planning stage, implemented) (5 min)
- 2. Brief didactic: Review the principles of SRL, LLL and coaching. (5 min)
- 3. Large group: Participants observe a recording of a student-SP encounter during which the patient expresses a racist statement about another member of the healthcare team. (10 min)
- 4. Small group I: Participants will discuss their observations and strategize about how they would approach partnering with the student to facilitate the students' use of this experience to guide learning and to apply skills in future patient encounters (10 min)
- 5. Small group II: In small groups, one participant will role play a coaching conversation with one of the student facilitators. The goal of the conversation is to promote the student's SRL skills and use of tangible communication strategies they can employ in these types of uncertain and uncomfortable encounters. Other participants in the small group and the student facilitator will provide feedback to their colleague. (10 min)
- 6. Large group: Participants create a list of benefits and challenges related to addressing race issues in their curricula and in using coaching at their home institutions. (10 min)
- 7. Questions (5 min)
- 8. Reflections from the student facilitators about the curriculum/the conversations with their coaches related to this experience (5 min)

Online Facilitation:

This session will incorporate break out rooms for small group discussion and hands-on exercises with students and faculty facilitators part of each session. Large group sessions will use chat (one faculty member will monitor and another will focus on responding to questions as they arise, if appropriate). Polling will be used to prime discussion. Screen sharing will enable display of slides and the recording of the student-SP encounter to be viewed by the audience.

Experience:

• Ms. Walker, Ms. Whalen, and Mr. Vetter are students in the UVA class of 2022 who led the efforts to create and implement this curriculum. Drs. Bray and Gusic are on a leadership team that developed the coaching program. Dr. Parsons is a faculty coach and leads the pre-clerkship coaching program.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: asp5c@virginia.edu

How to give an inclusive presentation: from content to delivery

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Cortlyn Brown, atrium health

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The field of emergency medicine celebrates diversity and inclusion in education. However, most emergency physicians have no formal training on how to give an inclusive presentation. In this session, participants will learn tangible ways to deliver inclusive and equitable educational content for all types of learners. First, content must be accessible to all. This includes logistical aspects of content delivery such as placing captions on all videos for those who are hard of hearing, avoiding phrases such as "this, that, these" without verbally indicating what "this, that, these" are for those that cannot see what you are pointing to, ensuring that you are not alienating anybody with mobility difficulty when asking participants to move around a room for an activity and using an accessibility checking software.

It is also important to consider the actual content. Participants will learn to include non-stereotypical vignettes about individuals from diverse backgrounds in order to decrease potentially harmful bias. Similarly, display diversity within graphics and pictures. A picture of an individual in a wheelchair when discussing lacerations helps normalize mobility disabilities. Similarly, a picture of a rash in a brownskinned African American patient gives providers the tools to recognize and treat skin diseases in greater diversity of patients. Lastly, it is necessary to ensure statistics, data, conclusions, and recommendations presented are inclusive of individuals from all backgrounds whenever possible.

Learning Objectives:

- Upon completion of the workshop, participants will be able to apply at least five techniques to make the content and delivery of their next lecture or presentation more inclusive.
- Upon completion of the workshop, participants will be able to identify at least five commonly used phrases or sayings in presentations that alienate individuals and are not inclusive.
- Upon completion of the workshop, participants will be able to utilize at least three different resources for finding diverse graphics and pictures.

Session Methods and Format:

The session will start out with a brief lecture to introduce the topics, this lecture will include videos and active examples. We will then give individuals a topic that they are familiar with to give a presentation on and ask them to work in small groups to come up with a 3 minute presentation incorporating the tools that we provided in the beginning of the lecture. We will then have then present their lecture and all the groups will provide feedback.

Online Facilitation:

There will be a PDF handout that will be distributed prior to the session so participants can actively engage rather than taking notes. There will be breakout sessions and designated individuals to lead these. There will also be a designated chat moderator will answer specific questions via the chat and write down more broad questions to bring up to the group later. The back-up plan is to have the participants work on their presentation while we are troubleshooting technology and then for us to reconvening either via the same online platform or zoom etc..

Experience:

• Dr. Cortlyn Brown has used her formal DEI training from Cornell and co-created and co-lead national workshops on DEI related topics at SAEM, AAEM, and other national conferences.

References:

NA

For more information about this abstract please contact: cortlyn.brown@atriumhealth.org

How's Our Curriculum Doing, Really? Systematically Approaching Program Evaluation

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

John Ragsdale, University of Kentucky College of Medicine Andrea Berry, University of Central Florida College of Medicine Jennifer Gibson, Tulane University School of Medicine Lauren Germain, State University of New York Upstate Medical University

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Evaluating the clinical education we're providing students is critically important. It's also challenging to do well. As workshop facilitators, we don't have all the answers, but we are eager to share what we've learned as we've tried to identify best practices. In particular, we've found that having a framework can help you identify new ways to measure the effectiveness of the curriculum and help you put your data in context. We've also found that it's equally important to consider how you organize and track the data you measure. This content is relevant to anyone who is responsible for measuring learning outcomes and other markers of success for a clinical education program. This session is designed to provide participants with a framework that they will apply to their own institution throughout this session and as they improve their own institution's processes going forward.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Describe your own institution's approach to program evaluation in terms of process vs outcome measures and Kirkpatrick levels
- 2. Discuss opportunities for more robust evaluation of the effectiveness of clinical education at your own institution
- 3. Identify new methods for tracking program data to use in curriculum oversight and planning

Session Methods and Format:

The session will begin with a brief overview of the types of data used in evaluating clinical education programs and how these can be characterized through two different lenses: process vs outcome measures and Kirkpatrick levels (10 min). Using an online form, we will ask participants to select which measures they are currently using at their institution and to identify the most significant opportunity to improve their own program evaluation (10 min). Using breakout rooms, we will facilitate small group discussions of each participant's area for improvement and brainstorm ways to help each person implement changes (15 min). We will reconvene as a large group to discuss strategies for tracking data and allow for participants to comment about the strategies that they have found most helpful (15 min). We will close by discussing how to use program evaluation to support curriculum oversight and allow time for remaining questions (10 min).

Online Facilitation:

This workshop uses a variety of methods to promote interaction using many of the features found in platforms such as Zoom, WebEx, GoToMeeting and others, such as large group discussions, chat, and breakout room discussions. During the breakout session, the workshop leaders will each separately facilitate discussion. During the large group session, one of the leaders will be assigned to moderate the chat function. We will also use a structured worksheet (on google docs) to allow for individual

application of the content. In addition, a link to the speakers' article about program evaluation in Medical Education Online (which is open access) will be provided through the chat feature.

Experience:

 The speakers represent the Program Evaluation Special Interest Group of SGEA. They all come from different institutions and each is directly involved in program evaluation at their own institution.

References:

- 1. Ragsdale JW, Berry A, Gibson JW, Herber-Valdez CR, Germain LJ, Engle DL representing the Program Evaluation Special Interest Group of the Southern Group on Educational Affairs (SGEA) within the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) Evaluating the effectiveness of undergraduate clinical education programs, Medical Education Online. 2020; 25:1.
- 2. Kirkpatrick DL, Kirkpatrick JD. Kirkpatrick's four levels of training evaluation. Alexandria, VA: ATD Press; 2016.
- 3. Durning SJ, Hemmer P, Pangaro LN. The structure of program evaluation: an approach for evaluating a course, clerkship, or components of a residency or fellowship training program. Teach Learn Med. 2007;19(3):308–318.
- 4. Liaison Committee on Medical Education. Standard 8: Curricular management, evaluation, and enhancement. Functions and Structure of a Medical School: Standards for Accreditation of Medical Education Programs Leading to the M.D. Degree. Available from: http://lcme.org/publications/

For more information about this abstract please contact: john.ragsdale@uky.edu

<u>Promoting first generation college graduate student success in medical school:</u> utilizing an online toolkit of resources

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

April Buchanan, University of South Carolina Greenville School of Medicine Jacob Altholz, Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences F. Edward Hebert School of Medicine

Alejandra Casillas, University of California, Los Angeles David Geffen School of Medicine Lisa Coplit, Frank H. Netter MD School of Medicine at Quinnipiac University Hyacinth Mason, Albany Medical College Mytien Nguyen, Yale School of Medicine Vicki Sapp, Geisinger Commonwealth School of Medicine Toshiko Uchida, Northwestern University The Feinberg School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical students who were the first in their families to graduate from college bring unique assets to medical institutions.1 They often possess a track record of highly desirable traits for a physician such as grit, resilience, self-determination, and innovative thinking as well as important insights into the complex health disparities facing the U.S. healthcare system today. However, first generation college graduates (FGCG), and others who come from backgrounds with limited exposure to medicine, may also have unique needs and face challenges that are not always publicly recognized by their schools.2 For example, cultural capital (what one knows about the culture they are in) and social capital (who one has as their guide)3 may be in short supply for FGCG students, leaving them encumbered by what researchers have shown to be invisible yet very real barriers that do not affect their continuing generation counterparts.4 Medical schools may also underestimate the financial constraints that some students face. 5 Recently, the Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) introduced a First-Generation College Student Indicator to allow medical schools to more accurately identify FGCG applicants. In 2019, the Undergraduate Medical Education (UME) Section of the Group on Educational Affairs (GEA) convened a work group to develop an online toolkit of resources for medical schools and mentors to support and celebrate FGCG medical students/trainees. The purpose of this workshop will be to share resources from the recently published toolkit and to help participants develop strategies for supporting FGCG medical students at their own institutions.

Learning Objectives:

- Identify assets FGCG medical students bring to medicine
- Identify challenges FGCG medical students may face during medical school
- Utilize an online toolkit to identify resources for specific needs of FGCG medical students
- State program changes that can be implemented at their own institution to support FGCG medical students

Session Methods and Format:

5 minutes (screen sharing)

- Welcome (Buchanan)
- Define "first-generation" (Mason)

Share data on experiences of first-generation college graduates in medical school (Casillas)

5 minutes (active engagement: whiteboard)

- Common virtual whiteboard to discuss assets FGCG bring to medical schools and the field of medicine (Moderator: Althotz)
- Common virtual whiteboard to highlight challenges faced by FGCG in medical school (Moderator: Nguyen)

5 minutes (screen sharing, material distribution)

- Introduce toolkit resources categorized into the following 6 areas of support (Uchida)
- Academic Support
- Learning Environment
- Professional Development/Career Mentoring
- Emotional Support
- Financial Support
- Family Resources

20 minutes (active engagement: breakout rooms, audio, chat, and material distribution)

- Facilitated breakout rooms (Buchanan, Casillas, Coplit, Mason, Sapp, Uchida)
- Attendees (utilizing audio and chat) work through a case study focused on one of the 6 areas and develop a plan to assist FGCG students in each scenario using toolkit resources
- Attendees (utilizing audio and chat) discuss utilization of the overall toolkit and resources, including needs assessments to support FGCG students in their own institutions

12 minutes (active engagement: audio and chat)

 Selected individuals from small groups will briefly highlight their case study in one of the 6 areas and verbally report their plans to large group, including recommended resources (facilitated by Coplit)

10 minutes (active engagement: audio and chat)

• Selected participants from the breakouts share plans for using the overall toolkit and resources at their own institutions (facilitated by Mason)

3 minutes (screen sharing, chat)

Takeaways (Uchida)

Online Facilitation:

The session will be successful in a virtual platform through the use of screen sharing, facilitated breakout sessions with audio and chat, whiteboards, and material distribution.

Experience:

- April Buchanan is the SGEA representative to the UME section and has extensive experience in workshop facilitation and curriculum design.
- As the former National OSR Delegate for Medical Education, Jacob Altholz has given multiple posters, presentations, and showcases.
- Alejandra Casillas founded and is a faculty advisor for the First Generation Program at the David Geffen and on UCLA's First Generation Advisory Board.

- Lisa Coplit served as the chair of the UME section from 2018-2020 and has extensive experience in developing and facilitating regional and national workshops, as well as online teaching sessions and webinars.
- Hyacinth Mason serves as faculty mentor for the Albany Medical College Chapter of the First-Generation College Graduate and Low-Income Student Association.
- Mytien Nguyen is President of the National First-generation and Low-Income in Medicine Association.
- Vicki Sapp is responsible for the Professional Identity Formation Cultural Humility Curriculum and has extensive experience in workshop presentations and curriculum design.
- Toshiko Uchida organized the team that developed this toolkit and is very familiar with the resources and their potential uses.

References:

- 1. Haskins, J. "Finding Success as a First-Generation Medical Student." AAMC, 2 July 2019, www.aamc.org/news-insights/finding-success-first-generation-medical-student.
- 2. Mason, HRC; Winesman, J; Marcellon, R; Huamantla, M; Ruiz, C; and Ayala, EE. (2018). "First Generation Medical Student Wellness in the US: A Cross-sectional Snapshot." Journal of Best Practices in Health Professions Diversity: Research, Education and Policy. 11(2):96-106.
- 3. Bourdieu, P. (1985). "The forms of capital." In Handbook of Theory Research for the sociology of education, JG Richardson (Ed.). (pp. 241-258). New York: Greenwood Press.
- 4. Gardner, S K; Holley, KA. (2011). "Those invisible barriers are real: The progression of first-generation students through doctoral education." Equity and Excellence in Education, 44:77-92. doi: 10.1080/10665684.2011.529791.
- 5. Goldberg, E. "'I Have a Ph.D. in Not Having Money'." The New York Times, 25 Nov. 2019, https://www.nytimes.com/2019/11/25/health/medical-school-cost-diversity.html?action=click&module=Well&pgtype=Homepage§ion=Health.

For more information about this abstract please contact: april.buchanan@prismahealth.org

Personalizing your Career Pathway in Medical Education

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Andrea Berry, University of Central Florida College of Medicine
Joanna Drowos, Charles E. Schmidt College of Medicine at Florida Atlantic University
Suzanne Minor, Florida International University Herbert Wertheim College of Medicine
Jean Bailey, Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine
Weichao Chen, Baylor College of Medicine
Karim Hanna, USF Health Morsani College of Medicine
A.J. Kleinheksel, Medical College of Georgia at Augusta University
Ulemu Luhanga, Emory University School of Medicine
Lise McCoy, New York Institute of Technology College of Osteopathic Med at Arkansas State
Mariah Rudd, Virginia Tech Carilion School of Medicine
Amy Smith, Lehigh Valley Health Network

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Medical educators are often charged to perform an essential role in diversified areas, including serving as curriculum leaders, mentors, role models, preceptors, and evaluators for learners across the medical and health professions education continuum. Additionally, many are expected to perform and disseminate scholarship, recruit and advise learners, and chair and participate on committees and other service responsibilities. While many educators enthusiastically take on such roles and tasks, alignment of these tasks with one's career portfolio is often overlooked or not considered. With medical educators constantly being asked to take on more with less support and resources (as is the case in the current COVID-19 pandemic), this session aims to provide space for individuals to reflect on and consider ways to identify and advance essential skills that can contribute to their professional success.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of the session, participants will be able to:

- Identify essential skills necessary to successfully meet the expectations of becoming/being a medical educator.
- 2. Create an individualized plan for professional development to enhance, establish, or refine the skills needed to excel as a medical educator using the SMART goal format.
- 3. Describe professional development opportunities for skills unique to the role of medical educator.

Session Methods and Format:

5 minutes – Introduce speakers and poll the audience about the roles they serve in as medical educators.

8 minutes – Present literature review of the roles and skills required for effective medical educators.

2 minutes – Poll audience to determine the following related to their roles:

- What they do the most
- What is considered most difficult to achieve
- Things they wish they had time for
- The ideal balance for their personal and professional growth

30 minutes – Use breakout rooms to facilitate small group discussions. Using a structured worksheet via Google docs:

- New medical educators will be asked to reflect on skills that are strongly performed and those skills they would like to strengthen. For those skills they would like to improve, participants will create SMART plans with the help of the breakout room facilitator and other participants.
- Established medical educators will be asked to reflect on the skills that helped them to be successful, the avenues for professional development they've sought out in the past and new ways forward (especially if they've identified any misalignment between their current roles and future goals). For areas where there is misalignment or interest in forging a new career path, participants will create SMART plans with the help of the small group and facilitator.

15 minutes – Debrief small group activity and provide feedback, aha moments and examples that may be useful to the broader group and conclude.

Online Facilitation:

Workshop presenters have extensive experience using virtual conferencing software (Zoom, Teams, Webex, etc.) and have the skill set to effectively utilize tools such as polling, chat, screen sharing, and breakout rooms to facilitate each portion of this workshop. Additionally, for the small group discussion and individual reflections, the team has extensive experience and will utilize Google docs to ensure participants walk away with an individualized professional development plan that they can use after the conference. Each presenter has a strong internet connection and all presenters will be familiar with all aspects of the workshop in the case that some presenters run into connection issues.

Experience:

 The speakers represent the Faculty Development in Medical Education Special Interest Group of the SGEA. They all come from different institutions and each is directly involved in leading and contributing to faculty development, mentoring, advising and programming to advance faculty as teachers, scholars and clinical educators locally, regionally and nationally.

References:

- 1. Harris D, Krause Kc, Parish DC, Smith MU. Academic Competencies for Medical Faculty. Fam Med. 2007 39(5):343-350.
- 2. Hyman D, Gurgevich E, Alter T et al. Beyond Boyer: The UniSCOPE Model of Scholarship for the 21st Century. Journal of Higher Education Outreach and Engagement. 2001;7(1&2):41.

 scholarship model. Information Knowledge Systems Management. 2013;12:25-51.
- 3. Cripps M. The Faculty Administrator. Inside Higher Ed. Vol May 12: Inside Higher Education; 2014.
- 4. Levinson W, Branch WT, Kroenke K. Clinician-Educators in Academic Medical Centers: A Two-Part Challenge. Annals of Internal Medicine. 1998;July 1.
- 5.Ward K. Faculty Service Roles and the Scholarship of Engagement. ERIC Digest. 2003;ED480469.

For more information about this abstract please contact: andrea.berry@ucf.edu

<u>Management Reasoning: Practical Strategies for Teaching Using the Example of</u> a Struggling Learner

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as:

Region: SGEA

Authors:

Andrew Parsons, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Karen Warburton, University of Virginia School of Medicine
Thilan Wijesekera, Yale School of Medicine
Joseph Rencic, Boston University School of Medicine
Emily Abdoler, University of Michigan Medical School
Andre Olson, University of Minnesota Medical School
Robert Trowbridge, Maine Medical Center
Michelle Daniel, University of California, San Diego School of Medicine
Larry Gruppen, University of Michigan Medical School
Steve Durning Uniformed Services University of the Health Sciences F. Edward Hebert School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The vast majority of clinical reasoning literature, both in the field of health professions education and clinical decision-making and error, has focused on diagnosis (i.e., diagnostic reasoning). Recently, Cook et al. highlighted the need for greater focus on management reasoning, defined as "the process of making decisions about patient management, including choices about treatment, follow-up visits, further testing, and allocation of limited resources." Parsons et al. subsequently described the management script and the management script template as a tool for teaching management reasoning to learners at all levels of training.

To effectively teach the concepts of management reasoning, we propose using the example of a struggling learner. It is common for learners to struggle with clinical reasoning. Whereas remediation of diagnostic reasoning has been described, little has been written on the learner who struggles with management reasoning, a more complex and nuanced process. Doing so requires identifying the processes and core concepts of management reasoning that will facilitate learners understanding and educators teaching this crucial ability. While diagnostic reasoning is primarily a task of classification, management reasoning is primarily a task of "prioritization, shared decision-making, and monitoring." When clinicians employ management reasoning, they move beyond the diagnostic reasoning steps of data collection, problem representation, and prioritizing a differential diagnosis to generating and selecting management options. Just as a clinician weighs information for or against a diagnosis (e.g., pertinent positives and pertinent negatives) when prioritizing a differential diagnosis, they must also consider the harms and benefits in performing each management option. This process requires shared decision-making and consideration of risk, high-value care, and uncertainty. In this workshop, we will apply key theories and empirical evidence from the clinical reasoning literature to the remediation of the learner struggling with management reasoning. We will convey the benefits of early education in management reasoning and provide novel strategies for teaching.

Learning Objectives:

 Describe the concept of management reasoning, including a comparison to diagnostic reasoning.

- Describe the benefits of teaching management reasoning to undergraduate medical learners.
- Apply the core concepts of management reasoning, namely management script activation and selection of management options, to a struggling medical learner.
- Practice novel strategies for teaching management reasoning to undergraduate medical learners.

Session Methods and Format:

- Introduction (15 minutes): The session will begin with an introduction to the concept of
 management reasoning, including a brief review of key literature and the potential benefits of
 teaching management reasoning to undergraduate medical learners.
- Large Group Exercise (10 minutes): As a warm-up exercise, presenters will show a short video of a learner struggling with management reasoning. Participants will then volunteer to identify a few areas where the learner is struggling and how they might potentially address them, with presenters facilitating the discussion of 3-5 comments.
- Breakout Room Small Group Discussion (15 minutes): Participants will break into small groups to brainstorm management reasoning teaching strategies. Small group members will discuss effective methods of teaching the core concepts of management reasoning. Presenters will provide a tip sheet on teaching management reasoning to reinforce and augment the small group discussions.
- Breakout Room Role Play (25 minutes): Small groups will each have the opportunity to engage in
 role play of learners struggling with management reasoning. Each breakout room will be
 provided two clinical vignettes (2-4 minutes each) with short descriptions of educator and
 learner roles for each scenario. Participants will take turns playing the educator or learner
 depending on their comfort. Other small group members will serve as observers or
 commentators. A framework will be provided for each role, but participants will have the
 opportunity to improvise as desired, utilizing the strategies discussed in the previous small
 group activity.
- Large Group Discussion (10 minutes): Presenters will facilitate a "report-out" of 1-2 key
 takeaways volunteered by a participant from each small group. Presenters will then provide a
 brief summary of topics discussed and answer audience member questions.
- Take Home Resources: tip sheets, videos, and exercises will be provided to all participants with a QR code link.

Online Facilitation:

Presenters will use screen sharing (.pptx file), Zoom whiteboard function, Zoom hand raising, chat (written responses) and audio (verbal responses). The small group exercise and role play will take place in randomly-assigned breakout rooms with participants working together on a shared google doc. When the small groups end, facilitators will then share the google doc with the group and have each small group verbally share their contributions.

Experience:

 All authors are medical educators, researchers in the field of clinical reasoning, and many direct courses relevant to this topic.

References:

- 1. Cook DA, Sherbino J, Durning SJ. Management reasoning: Beyond the diagnosis. JAMA 2018;319:2267-2268.
- 2. Cook DA, Durning SJ, Sherbino J, Gruppen LD. Management reasoning: Implications for health professions educators and a research agenda. Acad Med. 2019;94;1310-1316.
- 3. Norman G. Research in clinical reasoning: past history and current trends. Med Educ. 2005;39(4):418-427.

- 4. Guerrasio J, Aagaard EM. Methods and outcomes for the remediation of clinical reasoning. J Gen Intern Med. 2014 Dec 1;29(12):1607-14.
- 5. Parsons AS, Wijesekera TP, Rencic JJ. The Management Script: A Practical Tool for Teaching Management Reasoning. Acad Med. 2020 Aug 95;8:1179-1185.

For more information about this abstract please contact: asp5c@virginia.edu

WGEA Workshop Abstracts

<u>Instructional Peer Observation: How to engage in a learning goal-oriented</u> model

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: WGEA

Authors:

Danit Ariel, Stanford University School of Medicine Al'ai Alvarez, Stanford University School of Medicine Malathi Srinivasan, Stanford University School of Medicine Diane Stafford, Stanford University School of Medicine Kiranjit Brar, Stanford University School of Medicine Adam Hain, Stanford University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Academic faculty infrequently receive educational performance feedback due to institutional, temporal, and interpersonal constraints. Instructional Peer Observation (IPO) provides practical and effective faculty coaching approaches, feedback tools, and evidence-based teaching strategies in educational settings within a supportive and growth-oriented environment.

In IPO programs, colleagues come together to form and foster a community of like-minded faculty who provide formative feedback from which to grow, learn, and strengthen teaching effectiveness. While cultivating a supportive and affirming environment, IPO coaching rubrics provide an objective tool for peers to offer feedback. The effect is feedback that is impartial, constructive, actionable, and well-received. IPO programs have the potential to improve faculty teaching, student learning, and ultimately patient care.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Explain evidence supporting instructional peer observation's effectiveness in strengthening faculty teaching.
- 2. Describe Stanford School of Medicine's IPO model and resources.
- 3. Apply practical and effective coaching approaches, feedback tools, and evidence-based teaching strategies in lecture and bedside educational environments.
- 4. Use principles of rubric-based feedback to cultivate peer-coaching in the teaching environment.
- 5. Consider institutional strategies to launch IPO programs at your institution.

Session Methods and Format:

- 1. Large group presentation and discussion
- Facilitated breakout sessions.
 - Min 0-2 Introduction
 - ♦ Overview, goals, and rules of virtual engagement
 - Min 3-7 IPO Evidence
 - ♦ Background & literature supporting efficacy/need for instructional peer observation
 - Description of Stanford's program including training process; supportive, nonjudgmental feedback among peers;

- Min 8-14 The Stanford IPO Model
 - Discuss themes embedded within instructional peer observation:
 - Value of triangulation of feedback & limitations of 360 and self-assessment;
 - > Barriers and vulnerabilities to peer observation;
 - Growth mindset and emphasis on community building;
 - Adapting to remote environments;
- Min 15-16 IPO rubrics
 - ♦ Discuss lecture and bedside IPO rubrics and their use in peer observation
 - Distribute and provide an overview of IPO rubrics for session;
- Min 17-27Practice bedside peer observation in breakout groups
 - Participants will be divided into five facilitated breakout rooms. Each facilitator will share a short recorded clinical bedside encounter. Participants will utilize the bedside IPO rubric to assess the encounter. Facilitator will guide participants to share/discuss their assessments and feedback using the rubric (overall and point by point), capturing their ideas in Padlet.
- Min 28-34 Practice bedside teaching feedback in the large group
 - Return to large group. One pre-designated participant from each breakout session (5 total participants) will be guided to practice delivering feedback in role-play to the educator from the recorded encounter.
- Min 35-45 Practice lecture peer observation in breakout groups
 - Practice providing peer observation feedback in a didactic lecture teaching environment using the lecture peer observation rubric. Same format as breakout session for clinical bedside teaching but cohorts will be newly assigned, promoting opportunities for new peer-peer interactions.
- Min 46-52 Practice lecture teaching feedback in the large
 - Return to large group. One pre-designated participant from each breakout session will role-play delivering feedback to the educator whose lecture we viewed.
- Min 53-60 Shared lessons and Teaching Pearls

Invite participants to share their experience and lessons learned from the workshops as part of the toolkit participants will take home. Reemphasize the key thematic elements of instructional peer observations, challenges encountered, and successes. Highlight the goals of the session and take-home points to conclude.

Online Facilitation:

Course presenters are experienced online educators. In this interactive session, participants will complete peer coaching rubrics sent in chat links. In facilitated breakout groups, participants will watch sample videos of an educator teaching, complete rubrics, discuss feedback points and strategies using a shared Padlet document, and report out during large groups. Participants will practice providing real-time feedback with the featured educator. Faculty will monitor Zoom chat and facilitate breakout sessions. We will provide ample opportunity for moderated discussion and idea exchange at session close.

Experience:

• Danit Ariel, MD MS: Assistant Clinical Professor of Medicine, Stanford University; Director of Student Guidance, expertise in coaching and teaching students and trainees.

- Al'ai Alvarez, MD: Assistant Clinical Professor in Emergency Medicine, assistant program director in the Stanford Emergency Medicine Residency Program, and co-chair of the largest diversity mentoring initiative in Emergency Medicine.
- Malathi Srinivasan, MD: Clinical Professor of Medicine, Stanford University; board member for the Stanford Clinical Teaching Seminar Series, over 20-years teaching medical students, residents, fellows and faculty.
- Diane Stafford, MD: Clinical Professor of Pediatrics, Stanford University; Associate Program Director for Pediatric Endocrinology Fellowship, over 20-years of experience in mentoring, bedside and small group teaching at the GME level.
- Kiranjit Brar, MS: Director of Evaluation and Instructional Development at Stanford SOM.
- Adam Hain, DET, MAEd.: Associate Director for Instructional Development at Stanford SOM; presented nationally and internationally; taught at graduate level on instructional design.

References:

- 1. Bell, A. E., Meyer, H. S., & Maggio, L. A. (2019). Getting Better Together: A Website Review of Peer Coaching Initiatives for Medical Educators. Teaching and Learning in Medicine, 0(0), 1–8. https://doi.org/10.1080/10401334.2019.1614448
- 2. Mcleod, P. J., & Steinert, Y. (2009). Peer coaching as an approach to faculty development. Medical Teacher, 31(12), 1043–1044. https://doi.org/10.3109/01421590903188729
- 3. Newman, L., Roberts, D., & Schwartzstein, R. (2012). Peer Observation of Teaching Handbook. MedEdPORTAL Publications, (8). https://doi.org/10.15766/mep 2374-8265.9150
- 4. Newman, L. R., Roberts, D. H., & Frankl, S. E. (2018). Twelve tips for providing feedback to peers about their teaching. Medical Teacher, 0(0), 1-6. https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159X.2018.1521953
- 5. Tchekmedyian, V., Shields, H. M., Pelletier, S. R., & Pazo, V. C. (2017). The Effect of Rubric-Guided, Focused, Personalized Coaching Sessions and Video-Recorded Presentations on Teaching Skills Among Fourth-Year Medical Students: A Pilot Study. Academic Medicine, 92(11), 1583. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000001686
- 6. Teaching for Learning and Learning for Teaching Peer Review of Teaching in Higher Education (Book). (2015). In C. Klopper & S. Drew (Eds.), Teaching for Learning and Learning for Teaching: Peer Review of Teaching in Higher Education. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-94-6300-289-9 9
- 7. Truijen, K. J. P., & van Woerkom, M. (2008). The pitfalls of collegial coaching: An analysis of collegial coaching in medical education and its influence on stimulating reflection and performance of novice clinical teachers. Journal of Workplace Learning, 20(5), 316–326. https://doi.org/10.1108/13665620810882923

For more information about this abstract please contact: dariel@stanford.edu

<u>Cognitive bias: Naming, Reframing, and Checking in on the Elephant in Learner</u> Assessment

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: WGEA

Authors:

Tyra Fainstad, University of Colorado School of Medicine Adelaide McClintock, University of Washington School of Medicine Lalena Yarris, Oregon Health & Science University School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Cognitive bias permeates learner assessment in medical education. Bias in assessment has the potential not only to invalidate the assessment, but also to erode respect, value, and inclusivity in the learning environment. For example, the well known assessment bias of "in group" favoritism compounded by a lack of representative educator diversity can cause underrepresented learners to feel disconnected or even unsafe in the learning environment. Decades of data show that there is little educators can do to eliminate bias in their assessments. We offer an evidence-based, three-step solution to understand and move forward with cognitive bias in assessment: (1) Name: a simple admission about the presence of inherent bias in assessment (2) Reframe: a rephrasing of assessment language to shed light on the assessor's subjectivity, and (3) Check-in: a chance to ensure learner understanding and open lines of bidirectional communication. This process is theory-informed and based on decades of educational, sociologic and psychologic literature; we offer it as a logical first step towards a much-needed paradigm shift around addressing bias in learner assessment.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. Name and describe 5 common types of bias in assessment
- 2. Employ a framework to use during assessments to acknowledge and mitigate negative bias effects
- 3. Explore how to specifically modify your learning environment to decrease negative effects of assessment bias

Session Methods and Format:

Introduction/icebreaker (min 0-5, all), video illustration of assessment bias effects (5-10 Addie), introduction to main types of assessment bias with audience polling activity (10-15 Lainie), Reflective writing prompt followed by small group discussion in breakout rooms (15-22 all), "Name-Reframe-Check in" framework introduction (22-30 Tyra), Practice framework on learner cases in breakout rooms (30-42 all), Large group brainstorming discussion about how to apply these tips to specific and variable learning environments (42-50), Close, time for Qs (50-60).

Online Facilitation:

We plan to make this workshop especially interactive given the online requirement. We will employ the polling function, breakout rooms, chat board, and use attention grabbers (videos, personal narrative prompting) parsed through the workshop. Our topic naturally invites an element of personal reflection and, given its nature, we anticipate a variety of responses and questions from the group that will lead to a dynamic and provocative group discussion.

Experience:

- Tyra Fainstad: Associate Professor of Internal Medicine and Certified Professional Life Coach for physicians with experience in feedback delivery and reception and growing niche around bias in medical education assessments.
- Addie McClintock: Assistant Professor of Internal Medicine and Director of the Women's Health
 Training Pathway at the University of Washington with a strong background in medical education
 and specifically cultivating a psychologically safe learning environment.
- Lainie Yarris: Professor of Emergency Medicine and Vice Chair of Faculty Development at Oregon Health & Science University, and Deputy Editor at Journal for Graduate Medical Education, with significant experience in publishing and teaching about medical education feedback.

References:

- 1) Gingerich A, Kogan J, Yeates P, Govaerts M, Holmboe E. Seeing the "black box" differently: assessor cognition from three research perspectives. Med Educ. 2014;48(11):1055-1068.
- 2) Kahneman D. Thinking, Fast and Slow. Macmillan; 2011.
- 3) Brown B. Daring Greatly: How the Courage to Be Vulnerable Transforms the Way We Live, Love, Parent, and Lead. Reprint edition. Avery; 2015.

For more information about this abstract please contact: tyra.fainstad@cuanschutz.edu

<u>Promote equity, diversity and inclusion in medical education through faculty development on inclusive teaching methods.</u>

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: WGEA

Authors:

Rosemary Tyrrell, University of California Riverside School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

What does equity, diversity and inclusion look like in the learning environment? How can faculty ensure that their teaching reflects the kind of inclusion and equity that are part of an institution's mission? While many programs addressing issues of equity, diversity and inclusion exist, few address the role that teaching plays in the equation. Unfortunately, there are many teaching practice and policies that are commonly used in both classroom and clinical learning environments that can disenfranchise some students (Periyakoil et al., 2020; Plews-Ogan et al., 2020; Woodruff et al., 2020). Often forms of harmful bias are part of institutionalized methods of teaching and assessment in medical education (Humphrey et al., 2020). Faculty development in this area is much needed and often neglected. This workshop will explore how to create faculty development that emphasizes inclusive teaching practices (Inclusive Teaching Guide, 2017).

Learning Objectives:

During this session, participants will have the opportunity to:

- Define inclusive teaching
- Identify inclusive teaching methods
- Explore techniques for faculty to engage in inclusive teaching practices
- Develop a plan for a faculty development session or series on inclusive teaching
- Assess teaching practices and policies for potential issues that detract from an inclusive learning environment

Session Methods and Format:

The session will include the following:

- Introduction. 5 minutes. Defining terminology and introducing topic and facilitator. Participants will be asked to rename themselves to identify their preferred pronouns. They will also be asked to add their location on an interactive map. The link to the map will be made available in the chat.
- Ice breaker. 10 minutes. To begin the session and create a sense of energy and fun, the ice breaker will include a polling game related to specific teaching practices and policies to gauge participants views on whether the particular method or policy contributes or detracts from an inclusive learning environment. The game will incorporate many teaching practices and policies which are common practice but can unintentionally disenfranchise some learners.
- Reflection. 5 minutes. Using an online version of a "think-pair-share" activity, participants will be
 asked to reflect and respond to prompt questions by raising a hand and using audio or by
 commenting in the chat box.
- Mini lecture. 20 minutes. Using PowerPoint slides, the facilitator will share strategies for and
 examples from an inclusive teaching faculty development session. Methods for teaching the session
 will be introduced including ways to mitigate faculty anxiety or fatigue. Multiple resources (case
 studies, question prompts, activities, etc.) will be discussed and made available to participants.

- Planning activity. 15 minutes. Using break-out groups, participants will work on a preliminary plan to create an inclusive teaching faculty development session or series in a shared document. Given the limited amount of time in a 60-minute session, an outline will be provided to give participants a head start on their plan. Teams will share their plans with the entire group.
- Closing comments and Q&A. 5 minutes. The facilitator will conclude the session with final comments and take questions.

Online Facilitation:

Several strategies will be used to ensure engagement and participation in the virtual environment.

- Participants will be encouraged to turn on cameras and use the "raise hand" feature if they wish to make a comment using audio.
- While questions will be held to the end to ensure a smooth-running session, chat will be enabled
 and participants can discuss issues, share resources, and ask questions in the chat at any time. The
 facilitator will provide an assistant who will monitor the chat box and bring important items to the
 attention of the facilitator.
- Breakout rooms will be employed for a hands-on planning activity. Spokespersons from each group will be asked to share their insights and present their work.
- The facilitator will screen share PowerPoints and navigate to other websites and resources during the session.
- Kahoot will be used for the ice-breaker activity.
- Google Docs will be used for the planning activity and the document will be screen shared as each team presents their plan.
- All materials and resources will be available in a shared Google folder. A link to the folder will be
 provided before, during, and at the closing of the session in the chat box.

Experience:

• Rosemary Tyrrell, EdD, is the Director of Faculty Development for the University of California Riverside School of Medicine, has over three decades of experience in faculty development and teaching practices, and has facilitated countless workshops on the topic of inclusive teaching.

References

- 1. Humphrey, H. J., Levinson, D., Nivet, M. A., & Schoenbaum, S. C. (2020). Addressing Harmful Bias and Eliminating Discrimination in Health Professions Learning Environments: An Urgent Challenge. Academic Medicine, 95(12S), S1. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000003679
- 2. Inclusive Teaching Guide. (2017, August 10). Columbia CTL. https://ctl.columbia.edu/resources-and-technology/resources/inclusive-teaching-guide/
- 3. Periyakoil, V. S., Chaudron, L., Hill, E. V., Pellegrini, V., Neri, E., & Kraemer, H. C. (2020). Common Types of Gender-Based Microaggressions in Medicine. Academic Medicine, 95(3), 450–457. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.0000000000003057
- 4. Plews-Ogan, M. L., Bell, T. D., Townsend, G., Canterbury, R. J., & Wilkes, D. S. (2020). Acting Wisely: Eliminating Negative Bias in Medical Education—Part 1: The Fundamentals. Academic Medicine, 95(12S), S11. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.000000000003699
- 5. Woodruff, J. N., Vela, M. B., Zayyad, Z., Johnson, T. A., Kyalwazi, B., Amegashie, C., Silverman, R., Levinson, D., Blythe, K., Lee, W. W., Thomas, S., Parrish, W., & Humphrey, H. J. (2020). Supporting Inclusive Learning Environments and Professional Development in Medical Education Through an Identity and Inclusion Initiative. Academic Medicine, 95(12S), S51. https://doi.org/10.1097/ACM.0000000000003689

For more information about this abstract please contact: rosemary.tyrrell@medsch.ucr.edu

<u>Designing Web-based EdTech Materials : Building a production team and a budget</u>

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: WGEA

Authors:

Deila Bumgardner, Stanford Michael McAuliffe, Stanford Hospitals & Clinics

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

The core services of Educational Technology teams must evolve to meet the changing needs of the clients they serve. For some, this evolution has shifted a core mission focused on classroom technology innovation and support into a diverse services portfolio that includes media production and online course development. As these activities transition from exploratory projects into sustained operations, teams must manage staff workloads to maintain production capacity while also providing clients with reasonably accurate cost estimates for projects.

Stanford Medicine's Educational Technology team has, over the past decade, introduced capacity for producing custom illustration & animation media for online courses and increased our capacity for instructional and creative design. With this new capacity came the need to apply consistent rationale to our intake of projects, better predict the effort needed to complete projects, and more accurately estimate the costs of projects based on project size and design. The strategies we'll discuss in this workshop represent a response relevant to our environment and clients. We hope through the discussion we'll be able to share ideas and help participants identify barriers or opportunities for their own teams.

Learning Objectives:

By the end of this workshop participants will be able to:

- Build a project intake form to collect relevant data for initial evaluation.
- Identify objectives for an initial consultation with potential project requestors.
- Construct a hierarchy model to categorize project requests.
- Correlate common production tasks with the appropriate team member skill sets.
- Evaluate a project request for appropriate staffing options based on team capacity (internal staffing, contingent staffing or outsourced).
- Define which production task categories their team should adopt as a service.
- Evaluate proposed work orders for projected cost based on skills and time required to build materials.
- Compile a task workload data set and use it as a cost modeling tool.

Session Methods and Format:

12 minutes: Introductions & presentation of a sample scenario

Overview of session learning objectives and walkthrough of a mock project request. We will
demonstrate our intake processes from proposal to project planning. This will include the online
form for project requests and justification for implementing it as an essential first step to
collaboration with our team. We will also describe key questions covered during a consult and
our prioritization rubric.

10 minutes: Breakout Discussion 1: Mock Consult

• Breakout topic: Each room is given the data from a project request and must generate a list of questions they feel would be effective for a consult to help prioritize the project.

12 minutes: Team Production Capacity

 A description of how Stanford Medicine EdTech determined which types of tasks should be satisfied with internal staff vs external vendors. Also, how we identified the types of tasks that could be reliably tracked across multiple course production projects and how that tracking has been executed. A quick look at the tool we use to track project tasks and progress, F-track to demonstrate the breakdown of task assignments and the essential data produced during a project lifecycle that is used to iterate and refine our cost models for future projects.

10 minutes: Breakout Discussion 2: Anatomy of a Project Plan

Breakout topic: You have a general description of the project needs and now you need to
identify the essential tasks in order to assign staffing. What are the types of production tasks
your team currently provides or would seek to provide as a regular service? What tasks would
you avoid or reserve for specific projects?

10 minutes: Cost Modeling

A description of how Stanford Medicine EdTech performs production task workload tracking and
uses that data to build a cost modeling tool. Demonstration of the cost modeling tool and
examples of situations where that tool has been used as part of consultations with faculty and
as part of our project evaluation process.

6 minutes: Brief summary of lessons learned followed by answering key questions from the session's chat.

Online Facilitation:

We will present audio, video, and screen sharing via Zoom. We plan to have small group discussions via Zoom breakout rooms, PollEverywhere interactions and use Mural for small-group collaboration. Polling questions at key intervals will to help identify shared concerns or similarities between participant teams.

One author will lead the workshop presentation in Zoom. Our other author will moderate the chat, elevate questions and comments as needed, and facilite breakout rooms.

Experience:

- Deila Bumgardner has been a project manager and production specialist as well as instructional designer across multiple online course development projects for CME and GME.
- Michael McAuliffe has been extensive experience projecting and managing project workflows, budget tracking and deliverable management.

References:

N/A

For more information about this abstract please contact: deila@stanford.edu

Integrating Race and Language in Medical Education to Improve Health Equity

Submission Type: Workshop Accepted as: Workshop Region: WGEA

Authors:

Alejandra Zapien-Hidalgo, The University of Arizona- Arizona Health Sciences Glenn Martinez, The Ohio State University Pilar Ortega, University of Illinois College of Medicine Tiffany Shin, Wake Forest School of Medicine of Wake Forest Baptist Medical Center Marco Alemán, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine

Abstract Body:

Rationale:

Strategies to teach patient-centered communication skills with ethnic, racial, and linguistic minorities, such as unconscious bias training and medical Spanish courses, increase demand in medical education. Linguistic minorities, individuals who speak a minority language and have difficulty communicating in English, are particularly vulnerable to structural barriers in accessing quality healthcare due to their race and language's unique intersection. Raciolinguistics is an emerging area that focuses on the conaturalization of language and race and provides unique perspectives on the lives of minority language speakers and people of color (Alim, 2016). In the US, Spanish is the predominant non-English language, spoken by 64% of individuals with limited English proficiency (American Community Survey, 2015).

Communication skills with linguistic minorities should include language skills (e.g., terminology) and an appreciation of the rich, heterogeneous linguistic and cultural practices within communities. The raciolinguistic perspective opens up new ways of understanding ethnic identity relevant to the provision of language-concordant care in Hispanic/Latinx communities (Rosa, 2019). This can be applied to other linguistic minority groups, e.g., Tagalog is the second most common non-English language spoken in California, Russian in Oregon, and Navajo in Arizona (American Community Survey, 2015).

Examples of questions raised by the intersectionality of language and race include: Why do patients feel singled out for speaking Spanish in a hospital waiting room? (Connors, 2019) Why do second-generation Hispanic/Latinx patients report greater discrimination in clinical settings than their first-generation counterparts? (Pérez et al., 2009) While crucial to providing quality care to language minority speakers and people of color, these questions are rarely addressed in the teaching of clinician's communication skills. On the contrary, curricular materials that focus on linguistic minorities such as medical Spanish courses may unintentionally reinforce raciolinguistic hierarchies and stereotypes by predisposing learners to view Spanish speakers through the lens of the myriad "social problems" such as alcoholism, teen pregnancy, poverty, and incarceration (Martínez, 2020).

This workshop will introduce participants to key concepts in raciolinguistics, discuss the intersection of language and race in clinician's communication skills, and apply race and language concepts to medical education teaching materials.

Learning Objectives:

- 1. To understand the intersection between language and race (the raciolinguistic perspective)
- 2. To apply the raciolinguistic perspective to the teaching of clinician's communication skills with linguistic minority patients
- 3. To evaluate medical education curricular materials to identify and address raciolinguistic hierarchies

Session Methods and Format:

- 1. Introducing raciolinguistics and its relevance to health (10 minutes). Presenter will start with a poll question to engage the virtual audience and break the ice.
- 2. Language and race in medical school communication skills training (10 minutes).
 - a. Presenter will discuss the application of raciolinguistics to existing medical education curricular programs, such as medical Spanish courses and unconscious bias training.
- 3. Creating listening subjects through curricular materials (20 minutes). In breakout rooms (5-10 people/room), presenters will role-play a case scenario (5 minutes) that may be used in a clinical skills course followed by discussion (15 minutes). Presenters will guide attendees in critically examining the scenario concerning raciolinguistic concepts and proposing ways to improve the case.
- 4. Undoing raciolinguistic hierarchies in medical education (20 minutes). Presenter will share additional curricular materials (e.g., standardized patient scripts, sample dialogues), and solicit feedback. Poll or chat will ask participants about techniques they might use to reduce raciolinguistic hierarchies in the future—five minutes for final Q&A.

Online Facilitation:

We will utilize the following tools for online facilitation: Audio, Breakout Rooms, Chat, Material Distribution, Polling, Screen Sharing. One Presenter will be in charge of chat moderation to ensure any chat questions/comments are appropriately addressed. In case of technological challenges with polling, we will ask the interactive questions and ask participants to insert responses in the chat.

Experience:

- Alejandra Zapién-Hidalgo, MD, MPH, is Assistant Professor and Director of the Clinical Bilingual Medical Spanish Distinction Track.
- Glenn Martínez, Ph.D., MPH, is a Professor of Hispanic linguistics whose research focuses on the sociolinguistics of Spanish-speaking communities in the US and along the US-Mexico border.
- Pilar Ortega, MD, is Assistant Professor and Founder of the two non-profit organizations to advance Hispanic/Latinx health: the Medical Organization for Latino Advancement and the National Association of Medical Spanish.
- Tiffany M. Shin, MD, is Assistant Professor and Director of the MAESTRO (Medical Applied Education in Spanish through Training, Resources, and Overlearning) Program.
- Marco A. Alemán, MD, is Professor and Director of the Comprehensive Advanced Medical Program of Spanish (CAMPOS).

References:

- 1. Alim, S. (2016). Introducing raciolinguistics: Racing language and languaging race in hyper racial times. In Alim, S, Rickford, J & Ball A, Eds. Raciolinguistics: How language shapes our ideas about race. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- 2. American Community Survey (2015) 2015: ACS 5-Year Estimates Data Profiles. Data.census.gov
- 3. Connors, K. (2019). Barriers Latino patients face in the pediatric emergency department. Pediatric Nursing 45: 37-41.
- 4. Martinez, G. (2020). Spanish in Health Care: Policy, Practice, and Pedagogy in Latino Health. New York: Routledge.
- 5. Perez D, Sribney W & Rodriguez M. (2009). Perceived discrimination and self-reported quality of care among Latinos in the United States. Journal of General Internal Medicine 24 (Suppl 3): 548-54.
- 6. Rosa, J. (2019). Looking like a language, sounding like a race: Raciolinguistic ideologies and the learning of latinidad. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

For more information about this abstract please contact: azapien8@arizona.edu

2021 GEA Joint Regional Conference Committees

2021 GEA Planning Committee

Elizabeth Baker, Rush Medical College of Rush University
Elissa Hall, Mayo Clinic College of Medicine and Science
Jennifer Schwartz, Indiana University
Janine Shapiro, University of Rochester School of Medicine and Dentistry
Steven Rougas, Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University
John Luk, University of Texas at Austin Dell Medical School
Andrea Berry, University of Central Florida College of Medicine
Paul Gordon, Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University
Timothy Baker, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

Tools and Tech Committee

Elissa Hall, Mayo Clinic of Medicine and Science Geraud Plantegenest, Michigan State University Todd Cassese, Albert Einstein College of Medicine Pauline Becker, Stanford Medicine Joy Sturtevant, Louisiana State University School of Medicine in New Orleans Doug Danforth, Ohio State University Helen Macfarlane, University of Nevada, Reno School of Medicine

A special thanks to all the regional steering committee and sub-committee members who assisted in putting together the program and pre-conference sessions.

Reviewers

Janet Jokela jokela@illinois.edu

Laura M. Johnson laura.johnson@wright.edu
Paul Westerman paul.westerman@aah.org
Karen Szauter kszauter@utmb.edu
Lori smith smithl11@ccf.org

Catherine Wares catherine.wares@atriumhealth.org

Amber Heck a.heck@tcu.edu
Sabyasachi Moulik smoulik@fiu.edu

Melissa Hansen, M.Ed. melissa.hansen@utoledo.edu

Randy Seay rseay@uab.edu
Kelly McCarthy kemccart@usf.edu

Lori DeShetler lori.deshetler@utoledo.edu Bindu Menon bindu.menon@utoledo.edu

Wei-Jung Chen wjchen@tamu.edu
Gerald Crites gcrites@uga.edu

Karen Moser karen.moser@hsc.utah.edu
Sonia Crandall crandall@wakehealth.edu
Yenya Hu yehu@wakehealth.edu
Vijay Rajput vrajput@nova.edu

Les Sandlow ljs@uic.edu

Sonia Crandall crandall@wakehealth.edu
Jennifer Calzada jcalzada@tulane.edu

Christine Sullivan christine.sullivan@tmcmed.org

Tracy Moniz tracy.moniz@msvu.ca

Xiaodong (Phoenix) Chen Xiaodong.Chen@osumc.edu

Samuel E. Neher, MS,

EdD Samuel.E.Neher@uth.tmc.edu
Bryan Carmody james.carmody@chkd.org

Louise Lawson Ibraud@tulane.edu

James D. Smiley smiley@berkeley.edu

Eron Drake drakeero@msu.edu

Jeremy Laukka jeremy.laukka@utoledo.edu

Matthew J Rustici matthew.rustici@cuanschutz.edu

Nelia Afonso afonso@oakland.edu Julie Stoner stonerjl@evms.edu Kerrie Jordan kjordan@kansascity.edu Teresa Hartman thartman@unmc.edu macarrol@central.uh.edu Michelle A. Carroll Turpin Angela Hairrell ahairrell@tamu.edu Carrie Bernat carrie-bernat@uiowa.edu Patrick A Carr patrick.carr@und.edu

Jen Hartmark-Hill jhartmarkhill@email.arizona.edu

Amy Ward agward@msu.edu

Mary Ann Clemens maryann.clemens@wsu.edu
Lisa C Yanez-Fox lyanez@email.arizona.edu
Touqir Zahra tzahra@health.fau.edu
Dawn M Schocken schocken@usf.edu
Judith Taylor-Fishwick taylorjc@evms.edu

David M Harris David.Harris2@ucf.edu
Sheri Fong sherif@hawaii.edu

Laura E Johnson johnsolaura@health.missouri.edu

Joy Sturtevant jsturt@lsuhsc.edu

Daniel Hickey daniel.hickey@utoledo.edu
Jennifer Quaintance quaintancej@umkc.edu
Michael Soh michael.soh.ctr@usuhs.edu

Danit Ariel dariel@stanford.edu
Erin M Bonura bonura@ohsu.edu
Solmaz Manuel solmaz.manuel@ucsf.edu
Nicole Capdarest-Arest ncapdarest@ucdavis.edu
Jeffrey Jones jonesjef@ohsu.edu
Andrea Smeraglio smeragli@ohsu.edu

Toshiko Uchida toshiko-uchida@northwestern.edu

Dr. Diane E. Hindman

Mohan V Belthur

Joanna Drowos

Virginia Uhley

Amanda Start, PhD

Aleece Caron

Andrea Berry

dhindman@phoenixchildrens.com

mbelthur@phoenixchildrens.com

jdrowos@health.fau.edu

uhley@oakland.edu

amanda.start@osumc.edu

acaron@metrohealth.org

andrea.berry@ucf.edu

Monzurul Roni roni@uic.edu

Devasmita Chakraverty devasmitac@iima.ac.in Melisa Celaya melisac@arizona.edu

Irene Alexandraki irene.alexandraki@med.fsu.edu

Deborah Simpson deb.simpson@aah.org Elizabeth Bradley ejb4a@virginia.edu amanda.ramos@ucf.edu Amanda Ramos campion@uw.edu Michael Campion Tiffany Berkshire tberkshi@fiu.edu Nagesh Kolishetti nkolishe@fiu.edu Stacey Pylman pylmanst@msu.edu Anabelle Andon aandon@med.cuny.edu Robert Treat rtreat@mcw.edu

Timothy Dyster Timothy.Dyster@ucsf.edu
Laura A. Murray lauraamurray@usf.edu
Heather Hoops hoos@ohsu.edu
Anne Zinski azinski@uab.edu

Heeyoung Han hhan@siumed.edu
Rupa of Tuan rupa.tuan@ucsf.edu

Linda Love Imlove@unmc.edu
Tracey Taylor tataylor2@oakland.edu
Carrie Ann Elzie elzieca@evms.edu
Karen Marcdante kwendel@mcw.edu
Misa Mi mi@oakland.edu

E Shen eshen@wakehealth.edu
Michelle Lizotte-

Waniewski mlizotte@health.fau.edu

Jennifer Findeis-Hosey jennifer_findeis-hosey@urmc.rochester.edu

Janine Shapiro janine_shapiro@urmc.rochester.edu
Samuel Quiah scq2001@cumc.columbia.edu
Aubrie Swan Sein sea2134@cumc.columbia.edu
Tipsuda Junsanto-Bahri Tipsuda.junsanto-bahri@touro.edu

Susan M Perlis perliss@rowan.edu

Richard Iuli richard.iuli@stonybrookmedicine.edu

Urvashi Urvashi.Vaid@jefferson.edu
Shubha Dathatri sd369@columbia.edu
Tanya Horsley thorsley@royalcollege.ca
Raquel Belforti raquel.belforti@bhs.org
Bryan Bognar bbognar@usf.edu
Alisa Peet peet@temple.edu

Lynn Foster-Johnson Lynn.Foster-Johnson@Dartmouth.edu

Harold J Bell harold.bell@cmich.edu

Poonam Bhatia pbhatia@phoenixchildrens.com

Judy Spak judy.spak@yale.edu Andrew Parsons asp5c@virginia.edu

Ulemu Luhanga ulemu.luhanga@emory.edu

John Luk john.luk@austin.utexas.edu
Neil Haycocks, MD, PhD meil.haycocks@unlv.edu
Miriam Hoffman miriam.hoffman@hmhn.org
Andrea Anderson aanderson3125@gwu.edu

William Christopher

Golden cgolden@jhmi.edu Kanta Velamuri velamuri@bcm.edu

Bronwyn Cooper bronwyn.cooper@gmail.com

Janet M Riddle jriddle@uic.edu

Naomi D'Acolatse, MD,

MPH naomi.dacolatse@utrgv.edu
Andrea Braun Andrea.braun@bcm.edu
June M. Chan juc9063@med.cornell.edu

Elizabeth Lorbeer Elizabeth.Lorbeer@med.wmich.edu

Sarah McCallum mccalls@amc.edu

Heather Billings billings.heather@mayo.edu
Martha Garcia mgarcia@sanjuanbautista.edu

Christopher Mooney Christopher mooney@urmc.rochester.edu

danielle roussel@hsc.utah.edu

Spectrum Health Medical Group/ Michigan State

Geraud Plantegenest University

Sonal C. Patel scpatel@med.wayne.edu
Clint ladanza ciadanza@nyit.edu

Simone K Brennan skbrenna@med.wayne.edu
Diego F. Nino, MD, PhD diego.nino@ttuhsc.edu
Jason Booza jbooza@med.wayne.edu
Parvathi Perumareddi pperumar@health.fau.edu

Teresa Isbell tisbell@tamu.edu
Amy Baldwin baldwina@uga.edu

Colleen Colbert, PhD colberc2@ccf.org
Anne Gill gill@bcm.edu

Douglas Danforth
Doug.Danforth@osumc.edu
Deborah Ziring
Jean Bailey
Jean.bailey@vcuhealth.org
Gareth Gingell
Sara Clemons
Cindy Arvidson
Joan Chua, MD
Doug.Danforth@osumc.edu
deborah.ziring@jefferson.edu
jean.bailey@vcuhealth.org
gareth.gingell@utexas.edu
sara.clemons@ucsf.edu
ARVIDSO3@MSU.EDU
jfcchua@email.arizona.edu

William J Pluta plutaw@pennmedicine.upenn.edu

Robert Wallon rwallon2@illinois.edu

Nagaraj Gabbur ngabbur@northwell.edu